
DECE.MBER 9, 2019 - City Council Regular Meeting - 7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

a`''   .    ` Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.
Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
www. ci. lathrop. ca. us 2. Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

City CounCil 4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Public Hearings

Martha Salcedo, Vice Mayor Appeals

Paul Akinjo
Referrals and Reports from

Commissions and Committees

Diane Lazard All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action

Jennifer Torres- O' Callaghan
Items

Study Sessions
6. Council Communications

City Staff
7• Adjournment

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Order of Discussion

Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
information by staff followed by City Council

questions and inquiries.  The applicant,  or their

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer authorized representative,  or interested residents,

may then speak on the item; each speaker may only
Michael King, Public Works Director speak once to each item.  At the close of public

discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Cari James, Finance & Administrative

Council and action taken.
Services Director

Mark Meissner, Community
Consent Calendar

Development Director Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be

routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one
Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation motion and one vote.  There will be no separate

Director discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or
interested resident so requests,  in which case the

Ryan Biedermann, Chief of Police item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and

considered separately.

DECEMBER 9, 2019 — Regular Meeting Agenda — 7: 00 p. m.

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

1



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the meeting.
To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, address and
number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the City Council,
please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and address. In

order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by the Mayor
for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each speaker may
only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to new material;

do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a proposed action in
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public
hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or
prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so under
the Citizen' s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to the
commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have
expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be called

upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from
taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item
meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation ( see
instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message f,or the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, c council@ci. lathroq. ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer or any smart device at the
following Worldwide Web Address: www. ci. lathron. ca. us LIVE STREAMING & CLOSED

CAPTIONING — Available, please visit the City Council Webpage or use the following
URL httqs:// www.ci. lathrop. ca. us/ citvcouncil/ pa4e/ live- stream

Information

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop,  on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.  Supplemental

documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk' s Office.
This agenda was posted at the following locations:   City Hall, Community Center, Generations
Center, Senior Center, and the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District " J" Street and Somerston Parkway
Offices. The meetings of the Lathrop City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable
Television Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or accommodations to this
meeting.   [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II]   Interested persons must request the

accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting the City Clerk
at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City of Lathrop City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City's business is appreciated.

2



CITI( OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MOiVD 4Y, DECEM EIt 9, 2019,

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBEI3, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGEMDA

PLEASE MOTE: There wi// be a C/ osed Session commencinu at 6: 15 n. m.   The fteau/ ar

Meetin_q wi// reconvene at 7:00 . m., or immediafe/ v fol%vvina the Closed Session,

whichever is /ater.

1.       PFtELIMIN/ RY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

1 Potential Case( s)

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to

Government Code Section 54956. 8

Property:  145 Warren Avenue ( APN 196- 050- 70)

Agency Negotiator: Stephen Salvatore, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: David Brandt

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Negotiations

RECONVENE

1. 2. 3 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

1. 3 ROLL CALL

1. 4 INVOCATION

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 7 INFORNiATIONAL ITEM( S) - IVone

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

December 9, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

3



2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION - Declaring December as Homeless Youth Awareness
Month

2. 2 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION - Presented to the Lathrop High School
Spartans Girls' Volleyball Team

2. 3 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION  -  Presented to Manteca Unified School
District:

Michael Mulidor, Music Teacher

Elizabeth VanEerde, Choir Director

2. 4 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION - Presented to Lathrop Police Services:
Deputy Joel Grubb
Deputy Jimmy Claude
Deputy Chris Ly

2. 5 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES:

Roneel Singh, Utility Operator II
Moses Vasquez, Maintenance Worker II

2. 6 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda
may do so under Citizen' s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City
Clerk prior to the commencement of Citizen' s Forum.  Only those who have
submitted speaker cards, or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the

conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please be aware the

California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate
action on an item which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets
stringent statutory requirements.  The City Council can,  however,  allow its

members or staff to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond to statements
made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or report on
his or her own activities. ( See California Government Code Section 54954. 2( a)).
Unless directed otherwise by a majority of the City Council, all questions asked

and not answered at the meeting will be responded to in writing within 10 business
days.  ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE

LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council
and will be enacted by one motion and one vote.  There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless the Mayor,  Councilmember,  or citizen so

requests, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and

considered separately.

December 9, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

4



4. 1 WAIVIIVG OF READIIVG OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waive the Reading in Full of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda and

Adopt by Reading of Title Only, Unless Otherwise Requested by the Mayor
or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of October 14, 2019

4. 3 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of November 21, 2019

4. 4 SECOND READING AfVD ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 19- 410 BY TITLE ONLY

TO REPEAL AND REPLACE LATHROP MUNICIPAL TO TITLE 15  ( BUILDING

AIVD CONSTRUCTION) TO INCORPORATE THE 2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING

STAIVDARDS CODE

Waive Full Reading and Adopt Ordinance 19- 410 by Title Only to Repeal
and Replace Lathrop Municipal Code Title 15 ( Building and Construction) to
Incorporate the 2019 California Building Standards Code

4. 5 TREASURER' S REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2019

Approve Quarterly Treasurer' s Report for December 2019

4. 6 DELINQUENT UTILITY TURN OFFS

Adopt a Resolution to Suspend Service Disconnections for Delinquent

Accounts Scheduled on December 18, 2019

4. 7 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANIVUAL BOND ACCOUIVTABILITY

REPORT FOR FY 2018/ 19

Receive Report for Bonded and Non Bonded Community Facilities Districts

4. 8 RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPNiENT SURPLUS

PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THEIR DISPOSAL

Adopt a Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and Equipment Surplus
Property and Authorizing Their Disposal

4. 9 PURCHASE/ REPLACEMENT OF THREE POLICE VEHICLES AND ONE POLICE

M OTO RCYC LE

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of Three Replacement Police
Vehicles from Chase Chevrolet and One Police Motorcycle from Long Beach
BMW

4. 10 MODIFICATION OF COMPEIVSATION FOR PLANNING COMMISSION

Consider Adoption of a Resolution Modifying Compensation for the Members
of the Planning Commission

4. 11 RECOMMENDATION TO CHANGE ' SOUTH HARLAN ROAD" TO " OLD HARLAN
ROAD"

Adopt a Resolution Approving Street Name Modification to Change " South

Harlan Road" to Old Harlan Road"

December 9, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

5



4. 12 CREATE CIP GG 20- 19 FOR IRRIGATION AND LAIVDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS
IN MOSSDALE VILLAGE

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP GG 20- 19 for Irrigation
and Landscape Improvements in Mossdale Village and Related Budget
Amendment

4. 13 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  16 WITH 4LEAF,  IfVC.,  FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 16 to the Master Professional

Consulting Services Agreement with 4Leaf, Inc., for Professional Services
and Related Budget Amendment

4. 14 APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR SANITARY SEWER PUMP
STATION UPGRADES, PURSUANT TO CIP WW 19- 01 WOODFIELD SEWER

PUMP STATION UPGRADES AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopt Resolution Approving Construction Contract with Telstar Instruments
for Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Upgrades,  Pursuant to CIP WW 19- 01

Woodfield Sewer Pump Station Upgrades and Related Budget Amendment

4. 15 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR CLSP STORM DRAINAGE RIVER

OUTFALL STRUCTURE FROM SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC AND RESCIND INITIAL

REJECTION OF ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS IN FINAL MAP FOR TRACT

3533 AND ACCEPT ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF
IMPROVEMENTS AT A LATER DATE

Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for CLSP Storm Drainage
River Outfall Structure from Saybrook CLSP,   LLC,   Rescinding Initial

Rejection of Roadways and Easements in Final Map for Tract 3533 and
Accepting Roadways and Easements Upon Acceptance of Improvements at
a Later Date

4. 16 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAPS AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
SIA) FOR 418 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS IN TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811

AND 3812 WITHIN STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A OF CENTRAL LATHROP
SPECIFIC PLAN,  OFFERS OF DEDICATION AND RELEASE OF DEFERRED

FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( DFIA) 17- 01

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811
and 3812 within Stanford Crossing Phase 1A, Totaling 418 Single- Family
Lots,   a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Saybrook CLSP,

LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC,  Offers of Dedication and Release of
Deferred Frontage Improvement Agreement 17- 01

4. 17 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY

AVENUE FROM SUKHCHAIN GILL, OWNER OF A& A INTERMODAL LOCATED
AT 1850 E. LOUISE AVENUE

Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for Louise Avenue and
McKinley Avenue from Sukhchain Gill, Owner of A& A Intermodal Located at
1850 E. Louise Avenue

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEM(S)

December 9, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

6



4. 18 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 52 LOTS IN TRACT 3995 VILL4GE T" WITHIIV LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3995 Village T" within the
Lakeside East District,  52 Single- Family Lots,  Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

5o SCWEDUL@D ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER CERTIFICATION OF

THE EIVVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND ADOPTION OF THE IWRMP PW

10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

City Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopt Resolution Certifying the Environmental Impact Report ( SCH#
2019029106),  Including the Adoption of Findings of Fact and
Statement of Overriding Considerations and Adoption of the

Integrated V1/ ater Resources Master Plan PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO COIVSIDER GENERAL PLAN

A IEIVDMENT GPA- 19- 140 TO UPDATE THE CITY' S HOUSING ELEMENT

Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Consider Adoption of a Resolution recommending the City Council
amend the General Plan to replace the Adopted Housing Element
with the 2019 Housing Element Update

5. 3 PUBLIC HEARIIVG ( PUBLISHED fVOTICE) TO CONSIDER MUIVICIPAL CODE

TEXT AMENDMEIVT TA- 19- 141

Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  First Reading and Introduction of an Ordinance to Amend the Zoning
Code,  Title 17 of the Lathrop Municipal Code,  to Implement the

Housing Element of the General Plan.  The Amendments to the

Municipal Code Include the Following:
Sections 17. 36. 020 And 17. 62. 032,  and Table 17. 61. 1 are

Revised to Limit Development of Single Family Units on Sites
Designated for High Density Residential Uses.
Section 17. 68. 010 is Revised to Permit Manufactured Housing
in the Same Manner as Single Family Homes.
Section 17. 36. 050. D. is Revised to Identify Densities for the
RM Zone that are Consistent with the Densities Allowed in the

General Plan Land Use Element

5. 4 PUBLIC HEARIIVG  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER AN ORDINAfVCE

PROHIBITING PEDESTRIAfV USE OF MOBILE ELECTRONIC DEVICES IN
CROSSWALKS AND A RESOLUTIOIV APPROVIIVG RELATED BUDGET

AMEIVDMENT

December 9, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

7



City Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amending the
Lathrop Municipal Code by Adding Chapter 8. 48 to Title 8 to Prohibit
Pedestrian Use of Mobile Electronic Devices in Crosswalks; and

3.  Adopt Resolution Approving Budget Amendment for Purchase of
Signs Prohibiting/ Discouraging Pedestrian Use of Mobile Electronic
Devices in Crosswalks.

5. 5 REVIEW AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON PARK IMPROVEMENTS FOR

SANGALANG PARK

Council to Discuss and Consider the Adoption of a Resolution Approving the
Creation of CIP PK 20- 18 for Improvements at Sangalang Park and
Authorizing Related Budget Amendment

5. 6 FIVE- YEAR WATER AND SEWER RATE PLAN REVIEW

Council to Consider a Resolution Postponing the Scheduled Rate Increase
for both the Water and Wastewater Funds for 2020

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL - Consider Installation of Exercise Equipment

at Crescent Park

6. 2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL - Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the

Youth Advisory Committee with Term Expiring May 31, 2020
Two ( 2) Applications Received

6. 3 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL - Appointment of Vice Mayor for 2020

6. 4 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL - Mayor and Councilmember Assignments for

2020

6. 5 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Akinjo/ Salcedo)
Council of Governments ( Dhaliwal/ Laza d)

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division ( Akinjo/ Torres-

O' Callaghan)

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala)
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (Akinjo/ Dhaliwal)
Water Advisory Board ( Torres- O' Callaghan/ Lazard)
Tri Valley- San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority ( Akinjo)
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( Akinjo & Lazard)

6. 6 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       ADJOURNMENT

i
eresa Vargas, C C,   ity Clerk

December 9, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6

8



ITEM 4. 2

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2019,

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was a C/ osed Session which commenced at 5:34 v. m.  The Reau/ ar

Meetin4 reconvened at 7: 11 a. m.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Vice Mayor Salcedo called the meeting to order 5: 34
p. m.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

3 Potential Case( s)

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL Existing Litigation Pursuant to
Government Code 54956. 9( a)

Adriana Jai Flores- Lopez vs City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County
Superior Court, Case No. STK- CV- UED- 2017- 0012183

RECONVENE - Vice Mayor Salcedo reconvened the meeting at 7: 11 p. m.

1. 2. 3 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that direction was provided to
staff in regards to Item 1. 2; no other reportable action was taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present:       Vice Mayor Salcedo; Councilmembers: Akinjo,
Lazard and Torres- O' Callaghan.

Absent: Mayor Dhaliwal

1. 4 INVOCATION - Associate Pastor Ryan Strong, Grace Community Church,
provided the invocation.

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Associate Pastor Mike Strong led the pledge of
allegiance.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER - None

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

Councilmember Lazard reported conflict of interests with Items 4. 19 and
4. 20, due to her employment with Dell' Osso Farms.

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION - Declaring October pomestic Violence Awareness Month

Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan presented the proclamation to
Stephanie Player,  Victim Services Program Director with the Women' s
Center- Youth & Family Services. Ms. Player spoke on the matter, provided
information related programs and services available to the public.

2. 2 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEE:

Administrative Services and Finance Director Cari James introduced
Thomas Hedegard, Accounting Manager.

2. 3 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE

Economic Development Administrator Shelley Burcham provided a

presentation related to economic development activity during the 3 d
quarter. A question and answer period followed the presentation.

2. 4 PRESENTATION  -  NextGeneration STEAM Academy and River Islands
Technology Academy Presentation on Emergency Preparedness

Fire Chief Gene Neely, Lathrop Manteca Fire District, and Principal Rechelle
Pearlman,   STEAM Academy,   provided a presentation on emergency
preparedness for the NextGeneration STEAM Academy and River Islands
Technology Academy.   A question and answer period followed the
presentation.

2. 5 PRESENTATION  -  Update on Recent Regulations from the State Water
Resources Control Board,   Division of Drinking Water  ( formerly the
California Department of Public Health, Drinking Water Program)

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King introduced City Consultant
Jonathan Sutter, PE, Project Manager with EKI Environment & Water, Inc.
Mr.  King provided the presentation regarding recent Federal and State
regulations due to concerns regarding rising health risks from a group of
chemicals called Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances  ( PFAS)   in water

supplies.  A question and answer period followed the presentation.  City
Manager Stephen Salvatore,   Mr.   Sutter and Mr.   King responded to
questions of the Council.

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



3.       CITIZ N' S FORUfW

City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced information received for public comment from
Nellie Zavala ( Commission on Aging) related to advanced care planning services
provided by Catholic Charities;  and a public comment letter dated October 7,
2019,  received from by Martin Harris with Terra Land Group,  LLC,  related to

various concerns associated with municipal public utilities and hydrology related
impacts affecting the Lower San Joaquin River Basin.

4.       COIVSENT CALEIVDAfz

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo, seconded by Councilmember Lazard, the
City Council approved the Consent Calendar, except ** Items 4. 19 and 4. 20, by
the following roll call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan
IVoes:    Lazard ( Item 4. 3 only), Torres- O' Callaghan ( Item 4. 9 only)
Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: fVone

City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced that a public comment letter was
received, dated October 14, 2019, addressing Consent Items 4. 10, 4. 11,
4. 12, 4. 13, 4. 16, 4. 19, 4. 0 and Scheduled Items 5. 1, 5.2, 5.3, and 5.4,
submitted by Martin Harris with Terra Land Group,  LLC;  the email was
distributed to the City Council via their tablets  ( same process as the

agenda) and copies were made available for the public at the beginning of
the meeting.

Council Comments on Consent Items) Items 4. 6, 4. 7, 4. 8, 4. 9, 4. 11 and
4. 12 were pulled by Councilmember Akinjo for further clarification on
inspection procedures.  Item 4. 9 was pulled by Councilmember Torres-
O' Callaghan;   requested additional information related to the project
improvements;  expressed opposition to the item citing that she wanted
improvements for the lighted crosswalk to be completed prior to approval
of the proposed acceptance.    Councilmember Lazard expressed

disagreement to Item 4. 3; citing a no vote. Items 4. 12, 4. 13, 4. 14, 4. 15,
and 4. 18 were also pulled by Councilmember Akinjo, requested additional
information related to the proposed projects, funding options and potential
impacts on utility rates.  City Manager Stephen Salvatore and Assistant
Public Works Director Michael King provided additional information on the
various items pulled.

Items 4, 19 and 4. 20  -  The City Council voted on these items
separately, fol/owing the vote of the Consent Ca/ endar. Items 4. 19 and 4. 20
were pulled by Councilmember Akinjo requested additional related to the
recycled water land application sites.   City Engineer Glenn Gebhardt
provided the information.

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading in full of ordinances and resolutions on agenda and
adopted by reading of title only, unless otherwise requested by the Mayor
or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Special Council Meeting and Regular Council
Meeting of September 9, 2019.

4. 3     * SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 19- 409 BY TITLE
ONLY AMENDING SPEED LIMITS IN THE CITY OF LATHROP,  TITLE 10
VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC,   CHAPTER 10. 08 SPEED LIMITS,   SECTION
10. 08. 030 OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE

Waived full reading and adopted Ordinance 19- 409 by title only amending
Section 10. 08. 030 of the Lathrop Municipal Code relating to speed limits on
Harlan Road between Roth Road and Slate Street, Johnson Ferry Road
between Colonial Trail and Golden Spike Trail,  Louise Avenue between

Harlan Road and 5th Street and Roth Road between I- 5 and East City limits.

4. 4 CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE

Adopted Resolution 19- 4632 approving temporary street closures for the
Lathrop Christmas parade on December 14, 2019.

4. 5 WINTER HOLIDAY & CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE FOR REMAINDER
OF 2019

Approved proposed Winter Holiday closure and remainder of 2019 City
Council meeting schedule.

4. 6     ** ACCEPT EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION WORK BY DSS COMPANY,  DBA
KNIFE RIVER CONSTRUCTION,  FOR PAVEMENT REPAIRS TO E.  LOUISE
AVENUE AND MANTHEY ROAD

Adopted Resolution 19- 4633 accepting emergency construction work by
DSS Company, DBA Knife River Construction, for pavement repairs to E.
Louise Avenue and Manthey Road and authorized the filing of a Notice of
Completion.

4. 7     ** ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY FBD VANGUARD FOR THE
CITYWIDE SIDEWALK REPAIR PROGRAM CIP PS 15- 04

Adopted Resolution 19- 4634 accepting improvements constructed by
FBD Vanguard for the citywide sidewalk repair program CIP PS 15- 04,
authorized the filing of a Notice of Completion and release of contract
retention.

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



4, 8     ** ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY DSS COMPANY, DBA KNIFE

RIVER CONSTRUCTION,   FOR THE PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE REPAIR
1

PROGRAM CIP PS 18- 01 PHASE I

Adopted Resolution 19- 4635 accepting improvements constructed by
DSS Company,   DBA Knife River Construction,   for the Pavement

Maintenance Repair Program, CIP PS 18- 01 Phase I, authorized the Filing
of a Notice of Completion and release of contract retention.

4. 9     ** ACCEPT SPARTAIV WAY STREET IMPROVEMEfVTS

Adopted Ftesolution 19- 4636 accepting street improvements on Spartan
Way between Land Park Drive and existing Lathrop Road from Saybrook
CLSP, LLC.

4. 10   * RATIFY EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH TRACY GRADIIVG

PAVING, IIVC., FOR PAVEMENT REPAIRS IN CONJUNCTION WITH UPRR' S

EMERGENCY RAILROAD REHABILITATION AT ROTH ROAD

Adopted Resolution 1. 9- 4637 ratifying City Manager' s approval of an
emergency construction contract with Tracy Grading  & Paving,  Inc.,  for

pavement repairs,   in conjunction with UPRR' s emergency railroad

rehabilitation at Roth Road, Accept the Improvements, Approve Related

Budget Amendment and Authorize the Filing of a Notice of Completion

4. 11   */** APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 15 WITH 4LEAF, INC., FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISIOIV

Adopted Resolution 19- 4638 approving Task Order No. 15 to the Master
Professional Consulting Services Agreement with 4Leaf,   Inc.,   for

professional building division services and related budget amendment.

4. 12   */** APPROVE PROFESSIONAL EIVGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR
CIP PS 14- 04 HARLAN ROAD REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD

Adopted Resolution 19 4639 authorizing a Professional Services
Agreement with Dokken Engineering for professional engineering
consulting services for CIP PS 14- 04 Harlan Road realignment at Roth Road.

4. 13   */** CREATE CIP WW 20- 17 SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT AND
BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution 19- 4640 creating CIP W11V 20- 17 Surface Water
Discharge Project and approved related budget amendment.

4. 14   ** CREATE CIP PW 20- 16 GROUfVDWATER TREATMEIVT IMPROVEMENTS
AND APPROVE/ RATIFY AGREEI IEIVTS WITH EKI WATER & ENVIRONMENT,

INC.,     AND FRUIT GROWERS LABORATORY,     INC.,     DBA FGL

ENVIRONi IENTAL, AND BUDGET AMEfVDMENT

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



Adopted Resolution 19- 4641 creating CIP PW 20- 16 Groundwater

Treatment Improvements, approved/ ratified agreements with EKI Water &

Environment,   Inc.,   and Fruit Growers Laboratory,   Inc.,   dba FGL

Environmental to provide technical support services related to the detection

of PFAS in the City' s groundwater supply,  with FGL for water quality
laboratory testing for PFAS, and approved associated budget amendment.

4. 15   ** PURCHASE OF A VACUUM TRUCK FOR PUBLIC WORKS OPERATION AND

MAINTENANCE DIVISION

Adopted Resolution 19- 4642 approving the purchase of a Freightliner
114SD Vacuum Truck from Municipal Maintenance Equipment, Inc. in the

amount of $ 475, 994. 13 for the Public Works Operations and Maintenance

Division and approved related budget amendment.

4. 16   * APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH SOUTH LATHROP LAND LLC FOR

TRANSPORTATION RELATED CAPITAL FACILITY FEES

Adopted Resolution 19- 4643 approving an agreement with South Lathrop
Land LLC for transportation related capital facility fees for the South Lathrop
Commerce Center.

4. 17 CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH DAVID SILVA LANDSCAPE FOR LANDSCAPE

MAINTENANCE SERVICES

Adopted Resolution 19- 4644 approving a contract amendment with
David Silva Landscape to include landscape for maintenance services in

various areas within the City.

4. 18   ** APPROVE AGREEMENT FOR INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM

IPP)   

Adopted Resolution 19- 4645 approving an agreement with Veolia Water
North America West,   Inc.,   for the administration of the Industrial

Pretreatment Program ( IPP).

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEM( S)

Councilmember Lazard recused herself, following the vote of the consent calendar( Items
4. 1 to 4. 18), and left the chamber at 8: 40 p. m., prior to the vote of Item 4. 19, due to

declared conflict of interest as noted in Item 1. 8.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember Torres-
O' Callaghan, the City Council approved Items 4. 19 and 4. 20, by the following roll
call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Torres- O' Callaghan and Salcedo

Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: Lazard

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



4. 19   */*** APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT

AGREEMENT  ( SIA)  FOR 38 LOTS IN TRACT 3992 VILLAGE " V" WITHIN

LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 19- 4646 approving Final Map for Tract 3992 Village
V" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 38 single family lots, Common

Use Agreement with Island Reclamation District 2062 for a Portion of Ulrich

Court and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC.

4. 20   */*** ACCEPT RECYCLED WATER LAND APPLICATION SITE A- 34 FROM

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

Adopted Resolution 19- 4647 approving accepting Recycled Water Land
Application Site A- 34 from River Islands Development, LLC.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

Councilmember Lazard returned to the dais after Item 4. 20,  at 8: 48 p, m..  for the

remainder of the meeting

5. 1     * PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE

LATHROP GATEVVAY BUSINESS PARK SPECIFIC PLAN AND THE SOUTH

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES STUDY AND THE FEES
RECOMMENDED THEREIN

Principal Engineer ] ay Davidson provided the presentation. A question and
answer period followed the presentation. Vice Mayor Salcedo opened the
public hearing.  Christine Mendes  ( 18401 S.  McKinley Ave.)  provided a

public comment letter addressing various concerns related to projects near
her property.   Frank Mendes   ( 18401 S.   McKinley Ave.)   requested

information regarding S. McKinley Avenue and whether it is planned as a
future STAA route.  City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional
information.  Jeff Hill ( Crow Holdings Industrial / Project Developer) gave

project overview and recently installed infrastructure;  thanked staff for
assistance with project. Vice Mayor Salcedo closed the public hearing. A

question and answer period followed the presentation.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember
Lazard, the City Council considered the following:

1.  Held a public hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4648 adopting the Lathrop Gateway
Business Park Specific Plan and the South Lathrop Specific Plan
Capital Facilities Fees Study and the fees recommended therein.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan

Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



5. 2     * PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER THE 2020 SJMSCP

DEVELOPMENT FEE ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT
I

Community Development Director Mark Meissner provided the

presentation. A question and answer period followed the presentation. San

Joaquin Council of Governments Habitat Conservation Plan Project Manager
Steven Mayo provided additional information. Vice Mayor Salcedo opened

the public hearing. There were no speakers. Vice Mayor Salcedo closed the
public hearing.

On a motion by Councilmember Lazard,  seconded by Councilmember
Torres- O' Callaghan, the City Council considered the following:

1.  Held a public hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4649 approving an annual adjustment to
the San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and
Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) Development Fee for 2020.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan

Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

5. 3     * PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER UNMET TRAIVSIT

NEEDS FOR FY 20- 21

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King provided the presentation. A
question and answer period followed the presentation.  Councilmember

Akinjo inquired about school bussing. Councilmembers Torres- O' Callaghan
expressed interest in additional bus routes with stops at the Community
Center, Generations Center and City Hall. Councilmember Lazard expressed
interest in connecting routes between Lathrop and Manteca. City Manager
Stephen Salvatore and City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided additional
information. Vice Mayor Salcedo opened the public hearing. Adriana Flores-
Lopez commented on unmet transit needs on Roth Road and Lathrop Road.
There were no other speakers.  Vice Mayor Salcedo closed the public

hearing. A question and answer period followed the presentation.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember
Lazard, the City Council considered the following:

1.  Held a public hearing; and

1.  Council discussed and' considered unmet transit needs within the City
of Lathrop   (Transportation Development Act Requirements for

Transit Funds).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan

Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



5. 4     * PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ORDINANCE TO

REPEAL AND REPLACE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TO TITLE 15 ( BUILDING

AND CONSTRUCTION) TO INCORPORATE THE 2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING
STANDARDS CODE

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King provided the presentation. A
question and answer period ensued throughout the presentation.  City
Attorney Salvador Navarrete and City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided
additional information.  Vice Mayor Salcedo opened the public hearing.
There were no speakers. Vice Mayor Salcedo closed the public hearing. A
question and answer period followed the presentation.

On a motion by Councilmember Lazard,  seconded by Councilmember
Torres- O' Callaghan, the City Council considered the following:

1.  Held a public hearing; and

2.  Introduced and held first reading of an ordinance to repeal and
replace Lathrop Municipal Code Title 15 ( Building and Construction)
to incorporate the 2019 California Building Standards Code.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan
Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 COUNCILMEMBER TORRES- O' CALLAGHAN REFERRAL - Propose Ordinance

Addressing Distracted Walking and Use of Crosswalks

Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan provided an overview. A question and
answer period ensued.   City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided

additional information.  Council consensus directed staff to agendize the
matter to a future meeting.

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo reported his attendance to the Tri- Valley  -  San

Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority Board of Directors meeting held
October 9, 2019.

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmembers thanked those in attendance and wished everyone a
goodnight.

7.       AD70URNMENT - There being no further business, Vice Mayor Salcedo
adjourned the meeting at 10: 16 p. m.

T resa Vargas, CMC,   it Clerk

October 14, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9

17



18



i ITEM 4. 3

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 2019, 5: 30 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 5: 31
p. m.

1. 2 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Councilmembers: Akinjo,
Lazard and Torres- O' Callaghan

Absent: Vice Mayor Salcedo

1. 3 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan led the
pledge of allegiance.

2.       COWSENT ITEM

2. 1 AUTHORIZE APPLICATION FOR,  AND RECEIPT OF,  SB 2 PLANNIIVG

GRANTS PROGRAM FUNDS THROUGH THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City Clerk Teresa Vargas introduced the item.    Community
Development Director Mark Meissner and City Planning Consultant
David Niskanen  ( JB Anderson Planning)  provided a summary of the
item. A question and answer period followed.

On a motion by Councilmember. Akinjo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal,
the City Council adopted Resolution 19- 4650 authorizing application
for, and receipt of, SB 2 Planning Grants Program Funds through the
State Department of Housing and Community Development.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Salcedo

Abstain: None

3.       AD70URNMENT - There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal
adjourned the meeting at 5: 40 p. m.

1     U; e •

T resa Vargas, CMC,   it`ỳ Clerk

This meeting was called by a majority of the City Council per Government Code Section 54956.
November 21, 2019 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1

19



20



ITEf I 4.4

ORDENAIeICE NO 19- 410

AN OFtDINQ I lCE OF THE CITY COIJNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATWIZAP TO REPEAL

AND REPLACE TITLE    5    (° BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTIOIV'°)    TO

IIVCORPORATE THE 201J CALIF012NIA BUILDIIVC  STAIVD IRDS INTO TF# E

LATHftOP NIUNICIPa4L CODE

WFIEREAS, Chapter 4 of Part 2. 5 of Division 13 of the California Health and

Safety Code, commencing with Section 18935, establishes a process for the California
Building Standards Commission to develop,  adopt and implement a statewide

California Building Standards Code; and

VVHEREAS, Section 17922 of the California Health and Safety Code provides
that such standards shall be adopted by reference except for any additions made by
the State Department of Community Development and shall impose substantially the
same requirements as uniform codes identified in subdivision ( a) of Section 17922;

and

VVhIEREAS,  subdivision  ( c)  of Section 17922 of the California Health and

Safety Code provides that local use zone requirements,  local fire zones,  building
setback, side and rear yard setback requirements and property line requirements are
left entirely to local jurisdictions; and

V1/ HERE IS, Section 17958 of the California Health and Safety Code provides
that any City may change provisions adopted pursuant to Section 17922 if such
changes impose the same requirements as those imposed pursuant to Section 17922

after making express findings pursuant to Section 17958. 5 and 17958. 7 however if
a city does not make changes then the California Building Standards Code becomes
effective in such city 180 days after publication of the California building Standards
Code by the California Building Standards Commission; and

0l/ HEREAS, Section 17958. 5 of the California Health and Safety Code provides
that except for certain noise standards set forth in Section 17922. 6,  a city may

change the requirements of the California Building Standards Code including but not
limited to green building standards as it determines are reasonably necessary based
on local climatic, geological or topological conditions but only pursuant to Section
17958. 7; and

1NHEItEAS, pursuant to Section 17958. 7 of the California Health and Safety
Code, a city may make such local changes but only if it makes the express findings
regarding local climatic, geological and or topographical conditions and files same

with the California Building Standards Commission; and

V1/ HEREAS, administrative amendments and amendments to provisions not

regulating buildings used for human habitation do not require findings; and

VUHEREAS, this ordinance does not require CEQA review because pursuant to

subdivision ( b) ( 3) of Section 15061 of the CEQA Guidelines ( 14 CCR 15061), CEQA

Ordinance No. 19- 410

21



applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on
the environment; and

WHEREAS, because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility
that the adoption of these codes may have a significant effect on the environment,
the adoption of the ordinance is not subject to CEQA.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DOES

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1•

Chapters 15. 00,  15. 02, 15. 04,  15. 06,  15. 08,  15. 10,  15. 12,  15. 14,  15. 16,  15. 18,

15. 20, 15. 22,  15. 24, of the City of Lathrop Municipal Code are hereby repealed in
their entirety.

Section 2•

Chapters 15. 00,  15. 02,  15. 04,  15. 06,  15. 08,  15. 10,  15. 12,  15. 14,  15. 18,  15. 20,

15. 22 and 15. 24 of the City of Lathrop Municipal Code are adopted to read in full as
follows:

Chapter 15. 00 SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION Adopted

15. 00. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 00. 020 A plication to CitY
15. 00. 030 Local amendments to the 2019 CBC

15. 00. 010 Adoation bv reference.

A.  The 2019 California Building Code ( CBC)" ( Part 2 of the Title 24 of the

California Code of Regulations),   Chapter 1,   Division II- Scope and

Administration is adopted by reference and shall apply to all the 2019
California Building Standards Code and made part of the Municipal Code of
the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

15. 00. 020 Application to City

The name City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Building Code and Appendices for the name of the city adopting such code,    ,
and wherever the word " City" as " Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise

used, it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

15. 00. 030 Omissions, amendments, and additions to the 2019 CBC

A.    Section 113 of the 2019 California Building Standards Code  ( Board of

Appeals) as is adopted by the City of Lathrop be amended to read as follows:

Section 113 BOARD OF APPEALS

113. 1 General.  In order to hear and decide appeals of orders,  decisions or

determinations made by the Building Official relative to the application or
interpretations of City of Lathrop Municipal Code, Title 15, there shall be

and is hereby created a Building Life Safety Appeals Board, hereafter known
also as the Local Appeals Board,  consisting of inembers qualified by

Ordinance No. 19- 410

22



experience and/ or training as set forth in 15. 00. 130( C)  to pass upon

matters pertaining to building construction,  building service equipment,
property maintenance, housing standards and fire regulations and who are
not employees of the City. The Building Official shall be an ex officio member
and shall act as secretary to the Local Appeals Board relative to appeals for
City of Lathrop Municipal Code, Title 15, except as to the Fire Code and the
Fire Chief shall be an ex officio member and shall act as secretary to the board
relative to appeals for the Fire Code.  The Local Appeals Board shall be

appointed by the City Manager. The Board may adopt rules of procedure for
conducting its business and shall render all decisions in writing to the
appellant with a duplicate copy to the Building Official or the Fire Chief as is
appropriate.  Appeals to the Local Appeals Board shall be processed in

accordance with the provisions and procedures contained in Title 15 of this

Code.

113. 2 Limitations on authority. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim
that the true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted there under
have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully
apply or an equally good or better form of construction is proposed. The
board shall have no authority to waive requirements of this code.

113. 3 Qualifications. The Local Appeals Board shall consist of five individuals, one

from each of the following:

1)     A retired or currently active registered design professional with

architectural or structural engineering experience or a builder or

superintendent of building construction with at least ten years'

experience, five of which shall have been in responsible charge of work.

2)     A person with experience in dealing with the disabled community or who
has been a community advocate for the disabled community or is a
disabled person with a minimum of 5 years' experience in the area of

disabled access requirements.

3)     A retired or currently active registered design professional with

mechanical and plumbing engineering experience or a mechanical

contractor or a plumbing contractor with at least ten years' experience,
five of which shall have been in responsible charge of work.

4)     A retired or currently active registered design professional with electrical
engineering experience or an electrical contractor with at least ten years'
experience, five of which shall have been in responsible charge of work.

A retired or currently active registered design professional with fire
protection engineering experience or a fire protection contractor with at
least ten years' experience, five of which shall have been in responsible

charge of work.

113. 4 Alternate members.  The governing body shall appoint two alternate
members who shall be called by the board chairperson to hear appeals
during the absence or disqualification of a member. Alternate members
shall possess the qualifications required for board membership.

Ordinance No. 19- 410

23



113. 5 Chairperson. The board shall annually select one of its members to serve
as chairperson.

113. 6 Disqualification of inember. A member shall not hear an appeal in which
that member has a personal, professional or financial interest.

113. 7 Appeals. Any person, firm or corporation may register an appeal with
the Local Appeals Board for review of any decision of the Building Official
about Title 15, provided that the Appeal is made in writing within 30
days of receipt of notice and is accompanied with the administrative fee
specified in the City' s fee schedule for an appeal.  All appeals where

notices declaring structures or equipment  " Dangerous"   must be

submitted within ten ( 10) days of receipt of notice.

113. 8 Conditions.   Any person shall be permitted to appeal a decision of the
Building Official or Fire Chief to the Local Appeals Board when it is
claimed that any one more of the following conditions exists.

1)  The true intent of Title 15, as described in those codes has been

incorrectly interpreted.

2)  A provision in Title 15 does not apply.

3)  A decision is arbitrary as it applies to alternatives, new materials
or interpretations of this Title 15.

4)  Request for appeals action ratification.  For the purposes of this

chapter, " Request for Ratification" shall mean actions required

under California Building Code Division I Section 1. 9. 1. 5.  A

written request by the Building Official that the Board approve a
proposed solution based upon a finding of  unreasonable

hardship" as that term is used in Title 24 of the California Code

of Regulations.

5)  The Board must have approved a Request for Ratification, prior

to the approval of.plans or issuance of a permit, which requires a

finding of unreasonable hardship from an appeal to the Building
OfFicial.

6)  The Building Official shall place any appeal consisting of a request
for ratification to determine an unreasonable hardship on the
Board' s Agenda in compliance with provisions contained in

Section 104 of the 2019 California Building Standards Code
Duties and Powers of Building Official"

113. 9 Decisions.  The Board shall not render any decision allowing a
proposed design solution unless, after the hearing, it finds on

the basis of substantial evidence that:

1)  The proposed design is satisfactory and complies with the intent
of this chapter; and

Ordinance No. 19- 410

24



2)  The proposed design meets the requirements of Title 24.

3)  Board decisions overruling the Building Official' s decisions shall
require four votes. Board decisions ratifying the Building Official' s
requests for ratification shall require three ( 3) votes.

4)  Should the Board render a decision contrary to that of the Building
Official, then the decision of Board shall be deemed the decision of

the Building Official or Fire Chief.

113. 10 Decisions Findings and Order.

1)  The decision of the Board shall be final and conclusive.

2)   The findings and order of the Board shall include the following
notice:

Notice to Parties: The time within which judicial review must be

sought to review this decision is governed by the
provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure

Section 1094. 6.

Chapter 15. 02 CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ADOPTED

15. 02. 010 Title

15. 02. 020 Adoption by reference
15. 02. 030 A plication to Citx

15. 02. 010 Title

This title shall be known and may be cited as the " Lathrop Building Standards Code"
or LBSC."  The Lathrop Building Standards Code consists of the California Building
Standards Code, as codified in Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations.

15. 02. 020 Adoption bv reference.

The " 2019 California Administrative Code" ( Part 1 of the Title 24 of the California

Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of the Municipal Code of
the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

15. 02.030 Application to Citv

The name ' City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Building Code and Appendices for the name of the city adopting such code,
and wherever the word " City" as " Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise

used, it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 04 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE ADOPTED

15. 04. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 04. 020 A plication to Citx
15. 04. 030 Local amendments to the 2019 CBC Appendix J

15. 04. 010 Adootion bv reference.

Ordinance No. 19- 410

25



B.  The " 2019 California Building Code ( CBC)" ( Part 2 of the Title 24 of the

California Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of
the Municipal Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

C.  Adoption of certain 2019 CBC Appendix Chapters

The following Chapters and Appendix of the 2019 California Building
Code are adopted by the City of Lathrop,  as amended by section
15. 04. 030 of this Chapter:

Appendix ) ( Grading)

Appendix H ( Signs)

The remaining Appendix' s are not adopted

15. 04. 020 Application to Citv

The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Building Code and Appendices for the name of the city adopting such code,
and wherever the word " City" as Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise

used, it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

15. 04. 030 Omissions,  amendments,  and aclditions to the  019 C C

Aauendix 7

A.  Section JIOI ( Genera/) sha// be amended as fo// ows:

J101. 1 Scope.  The provisions of this chapter apply to grading, excavation
and earthwork construction,  including sills and embankments in the City of
Lathrop except in Reclamation District 2062.   Where conflicts occur between

the technical requirements of this chapter and the geotechnical report the
geotechnical report shall govern. "

Chapter 15. 06 CALIFOISNIA RESIDENTIAL CADE ADOPTED

15. 06. 010 Ado tion by reference
15. 06. 020 Application to Citx

15. 06. 010 AcEo tion by reference

A.  The 2019 California Residential Code ( CRC)" ( Part 2. 5 of the Title 24 of the

California Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of the
Municipal Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

B.  Adoption of certain 2019 CRC Appendix Chapters

The following Chapters and Appendix of the 2019 California Residential
Code are adopted by the City of Lathrop.

Appendix H ( Patio Covers)

Appendix J ( Existing Buildings and Structures)
Appendix K ( Sound Transmission)

The remaining Appendix' s are not adopted

15. 06. 020 Application to Citv

Ordinance No. 19- 410

26



The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Building Code and Appendices for the name of the city adopting such code,
and wherever the word City" as Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise

used, it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 0 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE ADOPTED

15. 08. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 08. 020 Application to Citv_

15. 08.010 Adoption bv reference

The " 2019 California Electrical Code ( CEC)" ( Part 3 of the Title 24 of the California

Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of the Municipal Code of
the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

15. 08. 020 Aaalication to Citv

The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Electrical Code for the name of the city adopting such code, and wherever
the word City" as " Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise used, it shall

mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 10 C LIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE ADOPTED

15. 10. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 10. 020 A plication to Citx

15. 10. 010 Adoation bv reference.

The 2019 California Mechanical Code ( CMC)" ( Part 4 of the Title 24 of the California

Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of the Municipal Code of
the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

15. 10. 020 Application to Citv

The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Mechanical Code for the name of the city adopting such code, and wherever
the word City" as Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise used, it shall

mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 12 CALI ORNIA PLUMBING CODE ADOPTED

15. 12. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 12. 020 A plication to Citx

15. 12. 010 Adoption by reference.

A.  The ' 2019 California Plumbing Code  ( CPC)" ( Part 5 of the Title 24 of the

California Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of the
Municipal Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

No Appendix' s are adopted

15. 12. 020 Application to Citv

The name City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Plumbing Code and Appendices for the name of the city adopting such code,

Ordinance No. 19- 410

27



and wherever the word City" as Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise

used, it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

CFtapter 15. 14 CALaFORI fI ENERGY CODE ADOPTED

15. 14. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 14. 020 A plication to Citx

15. 14. 010 Adoption by reference.

A.  The 2019 California Energy Code ( CEC)" ( Part 6 of the Title 24 of the California

Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of the Municipal
Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

15. 12. 020 lpplication to Citr

The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Energy Code for the name of the city adopting such code, and wherever
the word City" as " Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise used, it shall

mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 18 CALIFOFtNIA FIRE CODE ADOPTED

15. 18. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 18. 020 A plication to Citx

15. 18. 010 Adoption by reference.

A.  The 2019 California Fire Code ( CFC)" ( Part 9 of the Title 24 of the California

Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of the Municipal
Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

B.  Adoption of certain 2019 CFC Appendix Chapters

The following Appendix of the 2019 California Fire Code are adopted by
the City of Lathrop:

Appendix B ( Fire- Flow Requirements for Buildings)

Appendix C ( Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution)

Appendix D ( Fire Apparatus Access Roads)

The remaining Appendix' s are not adopted

15. 1. 020 i4Dplication to City

The name City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Fire Code and Appendices for the name of the city adopting such code, and
wherever the word City" as Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise used,

it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 20 CALIFORNIA EXISTING BUILDINf; CODE ADOP`TED

15. 20. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 20. 020 A plication to Citv

15. 20. 010 Ado tion by reference.

Ordinance No. 19- 410

28



A.  The " 2019 California Existing Building Code ( CEBC)" which includes California
Historical Code" & " California Reference Standards" ( Part 8, 10 and 12 of the

Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and
made part of the Municipal Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth
herein.

15. 20. 020 Auplication to Citv

The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Existing Building Code for the name of the city adopting such code, and

wherever the word " City" as "] urisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise used,

it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 22 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING CODE ADOPTED

15. 22. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 22. 020 Application to City

15. 22. 010 Adoption by reference.

A.  The 2019 California Green Building Code ( CGBC)" ( Part 11 of the Title 24 of
the California Code of Regulations) is adopted by reference and made part of
the Municipal Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully set forth herein.

15. 22.020 Auulication to CitY

The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Green Building Code for the name of the city adopting such code,  and

wherever the word City" as Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise used,

it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

Chapter 15. 24 CALIFORNIA HOUSING CODE ADOPTED

15. 24. 010 Adoption by reference
15. 24. 020 Application to Citv

15. 04. 030 Local amendments to the 2018 IPMC

15. 24.010 Adoption by reference.

A.  The 2018 International Property Maintenance Code  ( IPMC)" is adopted by
reference and made part of the Municipal Code of the City of Lathrop as if fully
set forth herein.

15. 24. 020 Application to City

The name " City of Lathrop" is inserted in any and all blank spaces provided in the
California Fire Code and Appendices for the name of the city adopting such code, and
wherever the word " City" as " Jurisdiction" appears in the code or is otherwise used,

it shall mean and refer to the City of Lathrop.

15. 24.030 Omissions, amendments, and additions to the 2018 IPMC

Chapter 1 Scope and Administration

Ordinance No. 19- 410

29



Add: Section [ AJ 108. 8 ( Substandard Building). As defined in Health and

Safety Code Section 17922.

Chapter 2 Definitions

Add: Section 202 Substandard Building. As defined in Health and Safety
Code Section 17902, 3

Section 3. this ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect

in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as
to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 4. Severabilitv. If any section, subsection, phrase, or clause of this ordinance
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not afFect the validity
of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each
section, subsection, phrase or clause thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or
more sections,  subsections,  phrases,  or clauses be declared unconstitutional or

invalidity of any section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,  clause or

phrase.

Section 5.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty  (30)  days after

passage thereof.

Section 6.  Publication. This ordinance shall be published in accordance with the

provisions of Government Code Section 36933 of the Government Code.

Ordinance No. 19- 410

30



THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on the

14t" 

day of October 2019, and was PASSED
Q ND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the
9tn

day of December 2019, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 19- 410

31



32



City of Lah 0• ITEM 4. 5

Quarterly Investment Report      
September 2019

This report presents a detailed discussion of the City' s investment portfolio as of.September 30, 2019. It includes
all investments managed by the City on its own behalf as well as the City' s Trustees.  The report provides

information on cash flows, broken down by both investment manager ( City or Trustee) and by percentage
allocation within the portfolio.   

As of September 30, 2019, the investment portfolio was in compliance with all state laws and the City' s Investment
Policy( see Attachment 1).

Current Portfolio Summarv

As directed by the Investment Policy adopted by City Council, City staff strives to attain three primary goals with
the City' s investments as follows ( in order of priority):

1.   Safety— Preservation of the principal of invested funds

2.   Liquidity— Ability to liquidate one or more of the City' s investments if unexpected expenditures arise
3.   Return— Attainment of a market rate of return

The majority of the portfolio is invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund ( LAIF), which is administered by the

California State Treasurer' s office.  LAIF provides the City with an investment vehicle with yields that are slightly
greater than U. S. Treasuries ( T- bills) with a 2- year maturity or less.  LAIF is a high quality investment in terms of

safety, liquidity, and yield. Additionally, LAIF is an" On Demand" account; meaning funds may be withdrawn upon
with 1 day notice, representing maximum liquidity.

In addition to LAIF, the City holds investments in Money Market Mutual Funds, Nonnegotiable Certificates of
Deposit, and State and Local Government Securities ( SLGS). These investments are prudent investment choices

and are included in the City' s Investment Policy as allowable investments.

Each investment mentioned above has a specific maturity date.  However, much of the portfolio is On Demand.

The short weighted average maturity provides the City with a great deal of liquidity during this period of
heightened economic uncertainty and period of low investment yields. This liquidity places the City to invest in
longer term maturity investments once interest rates begin to move up toward their historical norms; overall
macroeconomic indicators signal solid and consistent growth in future years.

The following table (Table: 1) provides a summary of the City' s cash and investments, by holding party, based on
recorded value as of September 30, 2019 compared with the prior quarter:

33



Table: 1

June 30, 2019 , Septe"mber 30, 2019  -  

Holding Party Fund Amounts( i     
P o o

Fund Amounts( i)      

P.{ olio

Investments/ cash held by the City 109, 574, 994 73%     109, 073, 107 75%

Investments held byTrustees 40, 461, 393 27%       36, 460, 264 25%

TOTAL   ':       -.,     ` ,;';    °" , 150,03,6, 387      .,'  100,%   145,533, 371      ` : 100%; `., ,;

1)  Small variances are due to the summation and rounding of multiple figures to the nearest whole dollar

Please see the following pages ( Tables: 2 through 5) for a more detailed analysis of transactional additions and
reductions due to cash flow needs, debt service payments, and maturities/ rollovers of certain investments.

Revenues arrived during the quarter, per City staff expectations, are as follows: utility payments, property tax,
franchise fees, sales tax( including Measure C), developer billing fees, grant reimbursements, building permit fees,
plan check fees, and Transient Occupancy Tax( TOT).

Significant payables paid out during the quarter include:

I. Nonrecurring Expenditure Capital Improvement Projects — General Government, Parks, Streets,

Water, and Wastewater

II. Recurring Expenditures
a.   Contractual— Park& Street Landscaping, and Water Treatment Services
b.   Intergovernmental payments — San Joaquin County ( Police Services), Lathrop Manteca Fire

District, City of Manteca ( Wastewater Contract)

Quarterlv Economic Update

According to the latest projections from the Business Forecasting Center at the University of the Pacific,
California' s economic growth should maintain strong at a rate of 2. 9% through 2019, and then declining to 1. 9%

in 2021 as recession riskgrows. Regionally, the Central Valley is expected to showjob growth due to the booming

logistics sector as it has added jobs to the trucking and warehousing industry.  In addition, the Center estimates
that most Central Valley metro areas will continue to average single- digit unemployment through 2020.  The

strengthening housing market is lending support to manufacturing, which was hit by deep federal government
spending cuts and slowing global demand.  Locally, the San Joaquin Valley area experienced a slight decrease in
unemployment rates ( San Joaquin County: 4. 7%; City of Lathrop: 4. 1%).   While these rates are within the

forecasted levels, caution is key to carry out with the business demands of the City.

I certify that all of the investments reported herein are in accordance with the" City of Lathrop Investment Policy" adopted on November 5, 2012, with the
Government Code, and other contractual agreements. I further certify the investments reported herein provide for the ability of the City to meet cash flow
needs for the next six months.

S en Salvatore C  '   mes

City Manager Director f Fin nce

34



TABLE: 2

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments

As of Sept 30, 2019

e o a ' '.: a   e      •

Local Agency Investment Fund 52, 517, 227 0. 228% 51. 50% 52, 517, 227

Wells Fargo Money Market Mutual Funds 2, 862, 483 0. 000% 2. 81%    2, 862, 483

California Asset It// lanagement Program 10, 130, 167 2. 610% 9. 93% 10, 130, 167

o Be

m    o .

o o

Union Bank 3, 623, 658 0. 027% 3. 55% 3, 623, 658

UMB Bank 366, 927 0. 000% 0. 36%    366, 927

US Bank 0. 025% 0. 00%    

SJ County Pooled Funds 262, 220 0. 260% 0. 26%    262, 220

PFM Asset Management 31, 716, 865 0. 000% 31. 10%   31, 716, 865

BBVA Compass Bank 490, 594 0. 230% 0. 48%    490, 594

o  .      -      •       - . . 00 :.      o   .,

e  
o s

Investments Held by the City and Trustees 101, 970, 141 0. 379%       100. 00%   101, 970, 140

Cash in Checking Accounts- Recorded Value 43, 563, 231

o

Weighted Average Maturity of Portfolio( days): 1

One month benchmark for U. S. Treasuries:       0. 02%

Three month benchmark for U. S. Treasuries:     0. 03%

Notes:

1) See Table: 4 for detailed investments held by the City.
2) See Table: 5 for detailed investments held by Trustees.

35



TABLE: 3

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments
As of Sept 30, 2019

o     .   

o      -      e   -  . o '

Local Agency Investment Fund ( 1)       52, 517, 227 52, 517, 227

Wells Fargo Money Market Mutual Funds ( 2) 2, 857, 998 4, 485 2, 862, 483

California Asset Management Program 10, 111, 711 18, 456 10, 130, 167

o a a •       a -

BBVA Compass Bank 490, 231 363 490, 594

SJ County Pooled Funds 262, 794 574)  $ 262 220

UMB Bank 1, 990, 829 1, 180 1, 625, 081)  $ 366, 927

Union Bank( 3)       6, 110, 881 403, 301 2, 890, 525)  $       3, 623, 658

PFM Asset Management 31, 599, 971 5, 473, 240 5, 356, 346)  $     31, 716, 865

e e . I o    ,

Notes:

1) LAIF interest income is paid quarterly( Mar/ Jun/ Sept/ Dec) and received in the following month ( Apr/ Jul/ Oct/ 1an).

2) Property Tax, Building permit revenue, TOT, Developer payments, and Utility payments; nonrecurring experises paid during the month: General
government, Parks, Streets, Wastewater, and Water CIPs; also, recurring expenses: Park& street landscape maintenance, and water treatment

services; lastly, intergovernmental payments and transfers: Police Services expenses, and SSJID SCSWSP 0& M expenses.

3) Interest earnings, debt service payments.

36



TABLE: 4

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments

As of Sept 30, 2019

Local Agency I,nvestment' Fund    ' y

f_..:_ u_  .._.._.. x_.._ v_ e_ :   ft_     __..___._.._ w._-_ -_____ a ___.___._ `   _...,,_.... . _ ___  __-.      _ _...

Money Market Fund City
Acct No. 98- 39- 437

N/ A 0. 257%     Varies On Demand 52, 517, 227 52, 517, 227

52, 517, 227   $  52, 517, 227

Wells Fargo Mutual Funds  
a_ r_. w. x w --.._.. __.,__,,.. _ ....._----_._.:.___ w____._.._,._._.._.,..

Money Market Mutual- Fund City Acct Na
12641627

N/ A 0. 000%     Varies On Demand 2, 862, 483 2, 862, 483

2, 862, 483   $   2, 862, 483

CalifArina A"sset Management Program         _     
u -__ _    _  ___      _._____..

ti__._ ,__.____..._ ..,_   _____ __.._..._. a. A'

Liquidity Account No. 6084- 001 N/ A 2. 610%     Varies On Demand 10, 130, 167 10, 130, 167

10, 130, 167   $  10, 130, 167

s• 

37



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments
As of Sept 30, 2019

Investments Held by Unron Bank; by Account

03- I Series 2015- Mossdale Village Assessment District

Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2015- Redemption Fund 6712138601 0. 010%   10/ 18/ OS On Demand  $    97  $ 97
Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2005/ 2015- Reserve Fund 6712138602 0. 010%   10/ 18/ 05 On Demand  $      241, 020  $    241, 020

2000 North Horlan Improvement District 99- 01

Money Market- Reserve Account 6711651103 0. 010%    7/ 12/ 00 On Demand  $ 92, 092  $     92, 092

Money Market- Redemption Account 6711651101 0. 010%    7/ 12/ 00 On Demand  $    23  $  23

2003- 2A Lathrop CFD

Money Market- Interest Account 6711720001 0. 010%   12/ 12/ 03 On Demand  $   104  $ 104

LAIF- Interest Account 6711720002 0. 257%   03/ 19/ 03 On Demand  $      730, 489  $ ,   730, 489

CDPH/ CDWR- SRF Loan

Agreement Account 6711908800 0. 000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand  $  128  $ 128
AgreementAccount- Reserve Fund.     6711908801 0. 000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand 602, 025  $    602, 025

2013- 1 Mossdale Village

2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 6712076901 0. 000%   10/ 01/ 13 On Demand  $   187  $ 187
2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 6712076903 0. 000%   10/ 01/ 13 On Demand  $      949, 508  $    949, 508

2013- 1 Special Tax Bonds

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 6712076801 0. 000%   10/ 01/ 13 On Demand  $   102  $ 102
2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 6712076804 0.000%   10/ 01/ 13 On Demand  $      263, 547  $    263, 547
2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 6712076806 0. 000%   30/ Ol/ 13 On Demand  $    75  $ 75

2015 Crossroads Series 8

2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB RDP 6712138801 0. 000%   09/ 01/ 15 On Demand  $   133  $ 133
2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB Reserve 6712138803 0. 000%   09/ 01/ 15 On Demand  $      743, 839  $    743, 839
2015 Crossroads Series B- Improvements 6712138805 0. 000%   09/ 01/ 15 On Demand  $  288  $ 288
2015 Crossroads Series B- COI Custodian Agreement 6712198801 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand

Total Investments Held by Trustee- Union Bank $     3, 623, 658  $  3, 623, 658

lnvestments Held by BBVA Compass Bank by Accouet
v__..,_..,.. e. a. v.  aw. _ w..._.__  __.

u..._..,. s  .> _..._._ ..._ . .,..
P_ .._ __...__. r_. w._.     __ ..__ ...,_ _,_  ,.

T_       . e__.... ti_,:

2012 Water Loan( Refunding of 2000 Water COPs)
Certificate of Deposit- Reserve Fund N/ A 0. 090%    5/ 22/ 19 5/ 21/ 21    $      490, 594  $    490, 594

Total Investments Held by Trustee- BBVA Compass Bank $      490, 594  $    a90, 594

38



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments

As of Sept 30, 2019

Invesfinents Held by UMB Bank' by Account

2006- 1 Central Lat6rop Phase I Insfrastructure CFD
Special Tax Fund 141226. 1 N/ A 0. 000%   09/ 12/ 06 On Demand  $ 2, 798  $       2, 798

Interest Fund 141226. 2 N/ A 0. 000%   09/ 12/ 06 On Demand  $     1  $   1

Principal 141226. 3 N/ A O. 00T%   08/ 26/ 10 On Demand

Redemption 141226. 4 N/ A 0. 001%   08/ 26/ 10 On Demand

TTEE Fee& Comp Exp 141226. 5 N/ A 0. 002%   09/ 12/ 06 On Demand  $    64  $  64

Reserve Fund 141226. 6 N/ A 0. 000%   09/ 12/ 06 On Demand ' $     0  $   0

ImprovementFund 141226J N/ A 0. 000%   09/ 12/ 06 On Demand  $    51  $  51

2018- 1 CentralLathrop CFD
ImprovementArea 1- Admin Expense Reserve Fund 149232. 1 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $ 40, 000  $     40, 000

Other Improvement Areas- Admin Expense Reserve Fund 149232. 2 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $      160, 000  $    160, 000

Improvement Area 1- Principal Account 149232. 3 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 1- Redemption Account 149232. 4 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 1- Interest Account 149232. 5 N/ A 0.000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $     

Improvement Area 1- Admin Expense Account 149232. 6 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $ 9, 013  $       9, 013

Improvement Area 1- Reserve Fund 149232. 7 N/ A 0.000%   02/ Ol/ 19 On Demand  $ 38, 590  $     38, 590

ImprovementAreal- SurplusFund 149232. 8 N/ A 0.000%   02/ 01/ 19 OnDemand

Improvement Area 2- Principal Account 149265. 1 N/ A 0.000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 2- Redemption Account 149265. 2 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand

ImprovementArea2- InterestAccount 149265. 3 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 OnDemand  $     

ImprovementArea2- Admin ExpenseAccount 149265. 4 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $ 9, 189  $       9, 189

ImprovementArea 2- Reserve Fund 149265. 5 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ Ol/ 19 On Demand  $ 17, 052  $      17, 052

ImprovementArea2- SurplusFund 149265. 6 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ Ol/ 19 OnDemand

Improvement Area 3- Principal Account 149267. 1 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ Ol/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 3- Redemption Account 149267. 2 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 3- Interest Account 1492673 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $     

Improvement Area 3- Admin Expense Account 149267. 5 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ Ol/ 19 On Demand  $ 8, 259  $       8, 259

Improvement Area 3- Reserve Fund 149267. 6 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $ 51, 278  $     51, 278

Improvement Area 3- Surplus Fund 149267. 7 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 4- Principal Account 149268. 1 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand

ImprovementArea4- RedemptionAccount 149268. 2 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 OnDemand

ImprovementArea4- InterestAccount 149268. 3 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 OnDemand  $     

ImprovementArea4- AdminExpenseAccount 149268. 4 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ Ol/ 19 OnDemand  $ 9, 779  $       9, 779

ImprovementArea 4- Reserve Fund 149268. 5 N/ A 0.000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $ 4, 659  $      4, 659

Improvement Area 4- Surplus Fund 149268. 6 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand
Improvement Area 5- Principal Account 149269. 1 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ Ol/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 5- Redemption Account 149269. 2 N/ A.    0. 000%   02/ Ol/ 19 On Demand

Improvement Area 5- Interest Ac ount 149269. 3 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 On Demand  $     

ImprovementAreaS- AdminExpenseAccount 149269. 4 N/ A 0. 000%   02/ 01/ 19 OnDemand  $ 10, 168  $      10, 168

ImprovementAreaS- ReserveFund 149269.5 2/ 1/ 19 OnDemand  $ 5, 188  $       5, 188

Improvement Area 5- Surplus Fund 149269. 6 2/ 1/ 19 On Demand

39



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments.
As of Sept 30, 2019

e-  

2018-2 CentralLathrop CFD
Special Tax Fund 149261. 1 N/ A 0. 000%     2/ 1/ 19 On Demand  $   839  $ 839
Surplus Fund 149261. 2 N/ A 0. 000%     2/ 1/ 19 On Demand  $     

Total Investments Held by Trustee- UMB Bank $      366, 927  $    366,927
e      _

e

Investments Held by San Joaquin County, by Account

Sanitary 5ewer Assessment District N1       
Pooled Funds- Redemption Account Fund 57961 N/ A 0. 260%    10/ 1/ 87 On Demand  $      262, 220  $    262, 220

Total Investments Held by Trustee- San Joaquin County $      262, 220  $    262, 220

40



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments
As of Sept 30, 2019

Investments Held by PFM Asset Management by Account `       
PFMAsset Monagement

r.__.._____.-   .._. e.. ..._... _.   __ 
m., s_

Money Market Fund 20260109 N/ A 0. 000%   05/ 28/ 15 05/ 28/ 15    $       195, 522  $    195, 522

US Treasury Bond/ Note
US Treasury Notes 912828XH8 1. 63%    06/ 30/ 15 06/ 30/ 20    $      673, 813  $    673, 813
US Treasury Notes 912828XM7 1. 63%    07/ 31/ 15 07/ 31/ 20    $      748, 565  $    748,565
US Treasury Notes 912828L32 1. 38%    08/ 31/ 15 08/ 31/ 20    $     1, 045, 488  $   1, 045, 488

USTreasuryNotes 912828L99 1. 38%    10/ 31/ 15 10/ 31/ 20    $     1, 045, 161  $   1, 045, 161
US Treasury Notes 912828M98 1. 63%    11/ 30/ 15 11/ 30/ 20    $      598, 781  $    598, 781
US Treasury Notes 912828N48 1. 75%    12/ 31/ 15 12/ 31/ 20    $      809, 462  $    809, 462

USTreasuryNotes 912828N48 1. 75%    12/ 31/ 15 12/ 31/ 20   $     1, 149, 236  $   1, 149, 236
US Treasury Notes 912828N89 1. 38%    01/ 31/ 16 01/ 31/ 21    $      497, 383  $    497, 383
US Treasury Notes 912828N89 1. 38%    Ol/ 31/ 16 Ol/ 31/ 21    $       681, 415  $    681, 415
US Treasury N/ B Notes 9128283X6 2. 25%    02/ 01/ 18 02/ 15/ 21    $      619, 012  $    619, 012
US Treasury Notes 912828C57 2. 25%    03/ 31/ 14 03/ 31/ 21    $      478,488  $    478, 488
US Treasury Notes 912828C57 2. 25%    03/ 31/ 14 03/ 31/ 21    $      579, 223  $    579, 223
USTreasuryNotes 912828WG1 2. 25%    04/ 30/ 14 01/ 00/ 00    $     1, 108, 809  $   1, 108, 809
US Treasury Notes 912828WN6 2. 00%    06/ 02/ 14 05/ 31/ 21    $      653, 021  $    653, 021
USTreasuryNotes 912828WR7 2. 13%    06/ 30/ 14 06/ 30/ 21   $     1, 082,979  $   1, 082, 979
USTreasuryNotes 9128284W7 2J5%  , 08/ 15/ 18 08/ 15/ 21    $     1, 019, 570  $   1, 019, 570
US Treasury Notes 912828D72 2. 00%    09/ 02/ 14 08/ 31/ 21    $     2; 087, 807  $   2, 087, 8b7
USTreasuryN/ B 9128285A4 2. 75%    09/ 17/ 18 09/ 15/ 21    $      510, 684  $    510, 684
US Treasury Notes 912828T34 1. 13%    09/ 30/ 16 09/ 30/ 21    $      296, 930  $    296, 930

41



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Summary of All Investments
As of Sept 30, 2019

US Treasury Notes 9128285L0 2. 88%    11/ 15/ 18 11/ 15/ 21    $      769, 043  $    769, 043

US Treasury Notes 9128285V8 2. 50%    01/ 15/ 19 01/ 15/ 22    $      764, 531  $    764, 531

US Treasury Notes 9128285V8 2. 50%    01/ 15/ 19 O1/ 15/ 22    $      764, 531  $    764, 531

US Treasury Notes 912828V72 1. 88%    01/ 31/ 17 Ol/ 31/ 22    $     2, 262,481  $   2, 262, 481

US Treasury Notes 9128286C9 2. 50%    02/ 15/ 19 02/ 15/ 22    $     1, 096, 710  $   1, 096, 710

USTreasuryNotes 912828W55 1. 88%    02/ 28/ 17 02/ 28/ 22    $      301, 758  $    301, 758

US Treasury Notes 9128286M7 2. 25%    04/ 15/ 19 04/ 15/ 22    $      761, 777  $    761, 777

US Treasury Notes 912828WZ9 1. 75%    04/ 30/ 15 04/ 30/ 22    $     1, 003, 828  $   1, 003, 828

US Treasury Notes 9128282P4 1: 88%    07/ 31/ 17 07/ 31/ 22    $     1, 863, 803  $   1, 863, 803

US Treasury Notes 912828YA2 1. 50%.    08/ 15/ 19 08/ 15/ 22    $      848, 041  $    848, 041

US Treasury Notes 9128282S8 1. 63%    08/ 31/ 17 08/ 31/ 22    $      875, 752  $    875, 752

US Treasury Subtotal:  26, 998, 080  $ 26, 998, 080

Supra- national Agency Bond/ Note
InYI BK Recon& Develop SN Note 459058GU1 2. 125%    5/ 29/ 19 07/ 01/ 22    $      304, 044  $    304, 044

Supra- National Agency Subtotal 304, 044  $    304, 044

Federal Agency Bond/ Note
Freddie Mac Notes 3134GT8J1 2. 60%    04/ Ol/ 19 07/ 01/ 19

FNMA Notes 3135GOT29 1. 50%    02/ 28/ 17 02/ 28/ 20    $      299, 489  $    299, 489

FHLMC Agency Notes 3137EAEF2 138%    04/ 20/ 17 04/ 20/ 20    $      498, 543  $    498, 543

Freddie Mac Notes 3134GTBJ1 2. 60%    04/ 01/ 19 04/ 01/ 21

Fannie Mae Notes 3135GOU35 2. 75%    06/ 25/ 18 06/ 22/ 21    $      452, 889  $    452, 889

Federal Home Loan Banks Agcy 3130AGLD5 1. 88%    06/ 07/ 19 07/ 07/ 21    $      240, 848  $    240, 848

Federal Home Loan Banks Agcy 313AEXV7 3. 00%    09/ 20/ 18 09/ 20/ 21
Federal Home Loan Banks Agcy 3130AF5B9 3. 00%    10/ 12/ 18 10/ 12/ 21    $      436, 266  $    436, 266

Fannie Mae Notes 3135GOU92 2. 65%    Ol/ 11/ 19 01/ 11/ 22    $      306, 409  $    306, 409

Fannie Mae Notes 3135GOU92 2. 65%    01/ 11/ 19 01/ 11/ 22    $      306, 409  $    306, 409

FHLD( Callable) Notes 3130AGD36 2. 70%    04/ 29/ 19 04/ 29/ 22    $      300, 041 .$    300, 041

Federal Home Loan Banks Agcy 313379069 2. 13%    06/ Ol/ 12 06/ 10/ 22    $       632, 917  $    632, 917

Fannie Mae Notes 3135GOW33 1. 38%    09/ 06/ 19 09/ 06/ 22    $       610, 637  $    610, 637

Federal Agency Subtotal:  4,084,446  $  4, 084, 446

Interest

Accrued Interest 134, 773  $.    134, 773

Total Investments Held by Trustee- PFM Asset Management $   31, 716, 865  $ 31, 716, 865

Investments made per CLSP Bond Indenture

42



I

j ITEM 4. 6

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       DELINQUENT UTILITY TURN OFFS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution to Suspend Service

Disconnections for Delinquent Accounts Scheduled
on December 18, 2019

SUMMARY:

As in past years, staff has recommended suspending service disconnections during
the month of December. The City will still assess a 10% late fee to all accounts with

balances not paid by December 31, 2019. Suspension of service disconnections in

December has been approved by Council since 1996.

BACKGROUND:

The Finance Department produces monthly utility invoices for its water and

wastewater customers.  The cycle of the utility bills is as follows:

Invoice Production:     Utility invoices are created and mailed to City
residents at the beginning of each month.  Utility invoices are due by the 25tn
of each month. A 10% penalty fee is assessed to all outstanding accounts on     
the last working day of the month.
Reminder Notice:   Reminder notices are sent to City residents one ( 1) day
after the due date for all outstanding accounts.
Final Notice:   Final notices are normally sent out to City residents two ( 2)

weeks after the due date for all outstanding accounts.   Final Notices inform

the resident that the account is subject to disconnection.     A 72- hour

timeframe is given to residents to submit payment or make payment

arrangements.

Disconnection:  Typically three ( 3) weeks after the due date, accounts with

past due balances after the Final Notice deadline are subject to
disconnection.  Disconnected accounts are assessed a $ 60 reconnection fee.

In the last twelve ( 12) months, the City disconnected an average of 110 customers
per month.   A $ 60 reconnection fee is assessed to all disconnected accounts.   On

average, the City collected a total of $ 7, 100 in service reconnection charges per
month.

Suspension of turn- offs in the month of December may increase account

delinquency and potentially increase the amount of uncollectible accounts written-
off  ( referred to a collections agency)  at the end of the fiscal year.    Instead of

detecting unpaid accounts in mid- December through the turn- off process,  unpaid

accounts are not caught until mid- January, thereby allowing customers to skip late
fees for up to 90- days instead of the customary 60- days.

43



CITY MAWAGEEt' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITI( COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

UTILYTI TURIV OFFS FOR DECEM ER 2019

If Council decides to suspend turn offs in the month of December,  the service

reconnection charges would not be assessed.   However, the City will still apply a
10%  late fee to all delinquent accounts if their balance is not paid by January 2,
2020.     

IZEASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Interruptions of essential City services such as water service due to non- payment
can be disruptive during the holidays.  Therefore,  Council may decide to suspend
service disconnections during the month of December.  This action has been

approved by Council since 1996.

FISC L YMPACT:

Suspension of turn- offs in the month of December has fiscal impacts,  as noted

below:

Potentially increases the number of customers who fail to pay their bills
timely.
Service reconnection charges estimated at $ 7, 100 would not be assessed

or collected.

Increases the likelihood of having a higher number of unpaid accounts
referred to collections.

COIJNCIL C; OALS ADV RICED Bl( THIS AGENDA ITEM:

The agenda item promotes Community Values and a Feeling of Safety by ensuring
continuity of water services for our residents during the month of December.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Adopt a Resolution to Allow Suspension of Service Disconnections for

Delinquent Accounts Scheduled on December 18, 2019.

44



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

UTILITY TURN OFFS FOR DECEMBER 2019

APPROVALS:

c.1. C n   •  '-.   •   ot• o d 9

Vanessa L. Portillo Dafe

Deputy Finance Director

91 ' 6- 1 g
Cari ] ame Date

Director Finance

ll -    
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

G l

S n Salvatore Date

City Manager

4

45



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

SUSPEND SERVICE DISCOIVNECTIONS FOR DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULED ON DECEMBER 18, 2019

WHEREAS, since 1996, the City has allowed utility services to remain
uninterrupted during the month of December for all utility accounts, including
delinquent accounts; and

WHEREAS,  the- City disconnects an average of 110 customers per
month; and

WHEREAS, the fee to reconnect water service after disconnection for

non- payment is $ 60; and

WHEREAS,  the City collects an average of  $ 7, 100 per month in

reconnection fees; and

WHEREAS, the City will continue to charge the delinquent accounts a
10% late fee if the balance is not paid by January 2, 2020;

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that this City Council does
hereby authorize the extension for all. delinquent accounts scheduled for turn
off on December 18, 2019.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
9th

day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council:

AYES:       

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 19-    Page 1 of 1

46



ITEM 4J
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT FOR FY 2018/ 19

RECOMMENDATION:     Receive Report for Bonded and Non Bonded

Community Facilities Districts

SUMMARY:

As mandated by the California Government Code sections 53411 and 50075. 3, City
Staff is submitting the Annual Bond Accountability Report for the City' s Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs") for FY ended June 30, 2019.

BACKGROUND:

Senate Bill 165 enacted the Local Agency Special Tax Bond Accountability Act. This
Act requires the annual preparation of a report containing specific information

concerning the use of the proceeds or annual special taxes for CFDs. The Act only
applies to bonds issued on or after January 1, 2001 in accordance with Section 53410
of the California Government Code. There are seven CFDs included in the FY 2018/ T9
annual report, three bonded CFDs and four non- bonded services CFDs shown on

separate pages ( see Attachment " A" for a detailed listing).

Section 53411 and 50075. 3 of the California Government Code requires the chief

fiscal officer of the issuing local agency to file the annual report with its governing
body no later than Jan 1 every year.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The report will ensure compliance with Sections 53410, 53411 and 50075. 3 of the

California Government Code.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff time to prepare report.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Annual CFD Report for FY Ending June 30, 2019.

47



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR P IEETING

COMMUNITY FACILII' IES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND ACCOUNTABILITY
REPORT FOR FY 2018/ 19

APPROVALS:

fl / R
Cari a Date

Financ D' ector

za r'

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

ll Zl j

Step n Salvatore Date

City Manager

I

48



ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF LATHROP

BONDED COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS REPORT

FOR FY ENDED 6/ 30/ 2019

Initial Amount Deposited to

Improvement Fund or 6/ 30/ 2019 Expended Project

District Project Costs( 1)    Balance( 2)    Amount Status( 3)

CFD 2003- 1

Mossdale Village- Water)       6, 716, 563. 00 0. 00       $ 6, 716, 563. 00 Complete

CFD 2003- 2

Joint Wastewater) 6, 096, 532. 33 0. 00       $ 6, 096, 532. 33 Complete

CFD 2006- 1

Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Infrastructure)      37, 263, 908. 50 0. 00     $ 37, 263, 908. 50 Ongoing

Note( 1)

For CFD 2006- 1 amount excludes$ 4, 000, 000 initially deposited in the Escrow Fund per the Bond Indenture.

Note( 2)

For CFD 2006- 1, bond were redeemed on January 16, 2019 and the district was closed.

Note( 3)

For CFD 2003- 2, the project is now complete.

For CFD 2006- 1, the Improvement Fund proceeds of the initial issuance are almost completely expended, however
the CFD is authorized for an additional$ 150 million of special tax bonds and future proceeds are meant to fund a
portion of a project within an overall estimated cost( in 2006 dollars) of$ 271 million.

49



CITY OF LATHROP

NON- BONDED COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS REPORT
FOR FY ENDED 6/ 30/ 2019

Special Taxes Expended

7/ 1/ 2018 collected during Amount and 6/ 30/2019 Project

District Balance( 1)       FY 2018/ 19( 2)     Encumbrances( 3)     Balance( 4) Status( 5)

CFD 04- 1

Mossdale Services)       182,084.62 2, 251, 163. 97       $ 2, 272, 748. 75       $ 160, 499. 84 Ongoing

CFD 2005- 1

Historic Lathrop Services)  54, 714. 08 47, 843. 13 56, 795. 36 45, 761. 85 Ongoing

CFD 2006- 2

Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Services)  169. 00 221, 490. 68 390, 411. 97      -$ 168, 752. 29 Ongoing

CFD No. 2013- 1

River Islands)      118, 265. 34 279, 358. 81 275, 891. 25       $ 121, 732. 90 Ongoing

Note( 1)

Beginning balances include previous year encumbrances carried forward for payment in the subsequent fiscal year.

Note( 2)

For CFD 04- 1 this amount represents the annual special taxes remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-Controller,
building permit collections, interest earnings, and a transfer for capital equipment replacement.

For CFD 2005- 1 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

For CFD 2006- 2 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by San Joaquin County Auditor- Controller
and interest earnings. The total tax amount is comprised of the total public safety component($ 221, 400), and the actual

receipts of the general governmental component( levied in the amount of$ 199, 151. 96). ( This CFD was partially removed

from the San Joaquin County Teeter Plan beginning in FY 2010/ 11, and only the public safety portion of the annual budget is
remitted via the Teeter Plan. The general governmental portion is a separate County tax code and remittance only includes
actual collections.)

For CFD 2013- 1 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

Note( 3)

For CFD 2006-2, City staff reduced the level of service to the CLSP area( except for Public Safety), thus reducing payables;
in response to San Joaquin County partial suspension of Teeter Plan funding to the CFD in October 2012. This was done in
an effort to preserve the fund balance, which is anticipated to be needed in future fiscal years, to augment ongoing CFD
revenue, as the CLSP area develops at a slower rate than originally anticipated.

Note( 4)

For CFD 2006- 2, the district was closed out on April 17, 2019 and the negative balance will be paid by the developer.

Note( 5)

All CFDs listed above are intended to provide funding for ongoing, perpetual operations and maintenance services.

50



ITEM 4. 8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES AND

EQUIPMENT SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING

THEIR DISPOSAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and
Equipment Surplus Property and Authorizing Their
Disposal

SUMMARY:

The City has two surplus vehicles and various equipment which have either reached
their useful life,  have been replaced,  or the repair costs exceed their fair market
value.   Staff recommends these items to be auctioned, discarded, or recycled with

an approved recycling vendor.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop updated its policy regarding disposition of surplus property on
December 1, 2014 pursuant to Resolution 14- 3848 and staff recommends that the

items listed on Attachment " A" be declared surplus property in accordance with this
policy. All of these items have reached their useful life, have been replaced, or the
cost of repair exceeds their value.   Each item listed on the attachment has a brief

description of the condition of each item.   All of the listed items are ready to be
declared surplus property for sale, recycling, or disposal.

According to City policy, if the market value of surplus items is greater than $ 5, 000,

the Purchasing Officer shall present the listing of such assets to the City Council for
action regarding their declaration as surp.lus.   It has been determined that these

items collectively could ha.ve a value greater than $ 5, 000.

Vehicles will be sold at public auction by Nationwide Fleet Services pursuant to an
existing contract.  Surplus equipment will be discarded or recycled if auction not

successful.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Pursuant to City policy, at least once a year each Department Head shall conduct a
review of inventory,  goods and supplies utilized by that . department and shall
determine what items have become surplus.  City staff has gathered a list of surplus
items from all department' s which are included in Attachment ' A".   These surplus

assets have been reviewed and determined that their collective value could be greater

than $ 5, 000. . Also, once the surplus items are discarded, it will help each department
maintain storage space.

51



CITY MAN 4GER' REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RESOLUTI09el DECLARIIVG CEItTAI1V \/ EHICLES AfVD EQUIPMENT Sl1RPLlJ

PROPERTY AIVD AUTHOI2IZING THEIR DISPOS/AL

FISC L IP IPACT:

Any net revenues from the sale of these items will be returned to the City' s general
fund.

ATT CH P7 E IVTS:

A.  Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and Equipment Surplus Property and
Authorizing Their Disposal

B.  Surplus property items list

52



CITY MAIiIAGEl2' S itEPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COlJR1CIL REGULAR MEETIiVG

RESOLUTIOIV DECLARING CERTAIIV VEHICLE 14ND EQUIPMENT IJRPLdJS

PROPERTY AND AUTHOItIZING THEIR DISPOSAL

APPItOVALS:

s c   -   ...  .      t • o • a

Vanessa Portillo Date

Deputy Finance Director

f

i - a - 19
Cari Jam s Date

Director o inance

l7 z7 t
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l 2- J --

Stephen Salvatore Date

City Manager

53



RESOLUTIOIV IVO. 19-

4 F ESOLUTION OF TFIE CITY COUNCIL OF TWE CITY OF LATHROP

DECL RING CEfZT IN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS PROPERTY /4ND

U' Y"HORIZINC; TFIEIR DISPOSAL

VIIHEREAS, the City of Lathrop has a policy that allows for the disposal of
equipment and inventory with City Council approval; and

11UHEREAS, the City has surplus vehicles and equipment, which have reached
their useful life, are inoperable, or the cost of repairs exceed their value; and

WFIEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the following list of surplus items
which are to be auctioned, recycled, or discarded:

s

BMW Motorc cle WB10439A04ZF49281

BMW Motorc cle WB1044004EZW2343

Boom Truck 1GBM7H1J11899

Line Pum N/ A

40' Aluminum Box Trailer N/ A

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council declares the
above items listed to be surplus property and authorizes the City Manager to dispose
of the surplus equipment and inventory.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
9t'' 

day of December,
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Pagelofl

54



ATTACHMENT B

Surplus Proper- ty Items List
December 9, 2019

r

s

e

r -

1)     BMW Motorcycle WB10439A04ZF49281 N/ A Damaged PD

2)     BMW Motorcycle WB1044004EZW2343 N/ A Damaged PD

3)  Boom Truck 1GBM7H1J11899 N/ A Reached Useful Life PW

r v .

1)    Line Pump n/ a 1 Reached Useful Life PW

2)    40' Aluminum Box Trailer n/ a 1 Reached Useful Life PW

55



56



CITY Ml NAGER' S REPORT
ITEM 4. 9

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING   •   

ITEM:       PURCHASE/ REPLACEMENT OF THREE POLICE

VEHICLES AND ONE POLICE MOTORCYCLE

RECOMIMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of Three
Replacement Police Vehicles From Chase Chevrolet

and One Police Motorcycle From Long Beach BMW

SUMMARY:

Periodically, the City has a need to replace equipment required for the operation,
patrol, and maintenance of the City. There is an existing need to replace three police
vehicles and one police motorcycle for Police Services that will be used throughout

the City.    

Chase Chevrolet provided a quote for 3 replacement vehicles using government fleet
pricing equal to pricing offered through the Office of Procurement,  Department of

General Services of the State of California in conformance with LMC 2. 36. 110( B).

Long Beach BMW is the only motorcycle dealer that sells fully built out police
motorcycles; serving as a sole source provider pursuant to LMC 2. 36. 110( A) and has
provided a quote for one police motorcycle. Police motorcycles purchased from Long

Beach BMW come fully built out and ready for service.

This request seeks authorization to purchase three vehicles from Chase Chevrolet

and one police motorcycle from Long Beach BMW and amend the Fiscal Year 2019-
21 Biennial Budget for the purchase of three ( 3) adclitional replacement vehieles and

one  ( 1)  replacement motorcycle in the amount of  $ 217, 000,  including buildout
equipment and services, in the current fiscal year and approve the related budget

amendment.

BACKGROUND:

The City is responsible for managing the Lathrop Police Services vehicle and
equipment fleet.  This includes the responsibility of determining items that have been
used beyond their economical and/ or useful life.

Tn June 2019, the Council adopted the Fiscal Year 2019- 2021 Biennial Budget, which

includes funding for a total of nine ( 9) Police vehicles. The current Fiscal Year 2019-

2020 budget includes funding for six ( 6) vehicles; five ( 5) replacement vehicles and

one ( 1) new vehicle. All Fiscal Year 2019- 2020 vehicles have been ordered and are

either in buildout or are pending receipt.

The Fiscal Year 2020- 2021 budget includes funding for an additional three  ( 3)

replacement vehicles. Due to mileage limits and mechanical issues there is an urgent

need to expedite the three replacement police vehicles from the Fiscal Year 2020-

2021 budget to the Fiscal Year 2019- 2020 budget. In addition, a model year 2009

patrol motorcycle is in need of costly mechanical repairs that exceed the surplus value

57



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

POLICE VEHICLE AND MOTORCYCLE REPLACEMENTS

of the unit. Staff has identified budget savings, from personnel attrition, to fund the
replacement of the patrol motorcycle.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the purchase of 3 replacement police patrol vehicles and one police

motorcycle and related budget amendments.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding was budgeted and is available in the Fiscal Year 2020- 2021 vehicle
replacement budget for the acquisition of this equipment. This action will move the

appropriation from Fiscal Year 2020- 2021 to Fiscal Year 2019- 2020.  The total

projected expense to replace three police vehicles and one police motorcycle,

including buildout equipment and services,  is  $ 217, 000.  Salary savings has been
identified to offset the cost of the replacement police motorcycle.  The following
budget amendment will be needed:

Fiscal Year 2019/ 20

Increase A propriations

1010- 243- 0000 210, 000

1010- 4010- 450- 30- 00 210, 000

Fiscal Year 2020/ 21

Decrease A propriations

1010- 243- 0000 210, 000

1010- 4010- 450- 30- 00 210, 000

1010- 4010- 379- 01- 00 210, 000

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Purchase of Three Replacement Police Vehicles From
Chase Chevrolet and One Police Motorcycle From Long Beach BMW

58



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

POLICE VEHICLE AND MOTORCYCLE REPLACEMENTS

APPROVALS:

l
Tessy M jes Date

Manage ent Analyst II

2 

Ryan Bieder a Date

Chief of Police

Ca   ]       Date

Finance irector

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

a1. 1 9
S en J. Salvatore Date

ity Manager

59



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTIOiV OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TWE PURCHASE OF THREE REPLACEMENT POLICE VEHICLES

FROM CHASE CHEVROLET AND ONE POLICE MOTORCYCLE FROM LONG

BEACH BMW

WHEREAS, periodically the City has a need to replace equipment required for
the operation, patrol, and maintenance of the City; and

WHEREAS, there is an existing need to replace three police vehicles and one
police motorcycle that will be used throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, Chase Chevrolet provided a quote for 3 replacement vehicles using
government fleet pricing equal to pricing offered through the Office of Procurement,
Department of General Services of the State of California in conformance with LMC

2. 36. 110( B); and

WHEREAS, Long Beach BMW is the only motorcycle dealer that sells fully built
out police motorcycles,  serving as a sole source provider pursuant to LMC

2. 36. 110( A) and has provided a quote for one police motorcycle; and

WHEREAS,  the total projected expense to replace one Law Enforcement

motorcycle and three police vehicles, including buildout equipment and services, is

217, 000; and

WHEREAS, current budget year savings is available to fund a replacement law

enforcement motorcycle and Fiscal Year 2020- 2021 budget includes funding for
replacement of three ( 3) police vehicles; and

WHEREAS, a budget amendment is required to fund replacement of three

police vehicles in the current year;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the purchase of one law enforcement police motorcycle
from Long Beach BMW and three replacement police vehicles from Chase Chevrolet;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of
the City of Lathrop does hereby approve a budget amendment to fund the purchase
of three replacement police vehicles in the current fiscal year.

Fiscal Year 2019/ 20

Increase A propriations

1010- 4010- 450-.30- 00 210, 000

Fiscal Year 2020/ 21

Decrease A propriations

1010- 4010- 450- 30- 00 210, 000

Resolution No. Page 1 of 2

60



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9th day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. Page 2 of 2

61



62



CITYMANAGER' SREPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING   !      ITEM 4. 10
I

ITEM:       MODIFICATION OF COMPENSATION FOR PLANNING

COMMISSION

RECOMMENDATION:     Consider Adoption of a Resolution Modifying
Compensation for the Members of the Planning
Commission

SUMMARY:

Established in 1991, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission consists of five  ( 5)

citizen volunteers who are annually appointed by the City Council.   Each appointed

member serves. a term of four ( 4) years ( LMC 2. 14. 030).

As a body, the Planning Commission recommends to the City Council the adoption,
amendment, and maintenance of the General Plan for the physical development of

the City as mandated by State law.  The Commission provides discretionary review
and approval as provided by the Municipal Code over the subdivision of land, zoning,
and land use ( LMC2. 14. 070).    

The Planning Commission has one regularly scheduled meeting per month and
occasional special meetings as needed.   Currently each commissioner receives a
stipend of twenty dollars ($ 20) per meeting to cover travel and time costs associated
with reviewing development applications submitted with the Planning Commission
agenda.  Staff is recommending the stipend be increased to forty dollars ($ 40) which

is less than the average of surrounding cities.

BACKGROUND:

As required by State law, Chapter 3, Article 1, Local Planning regulations; the City
Council adopted Ordinance no. 91- 62 on December 17, 1991, establishing a Planning
Commission for the City of Lathrop.  Section 4 of the ordinance states: The members

may receive compensation for meetings attended in an amount as fixed from time to
time by resolution of the City Council.

On August 4,  1992,  the City Council adopted Resolution No.  92- 219  ( attached)

establishing Planning Commission member compensation in the amount of $ 20 for

every Planning Commission meeting or official Lathrop Planning Commission

workshop.   For the past 27 years, there has not been an adjustment to the original

compensation for Planning Commissioner' s attendance.

Staff finds an increase is warranted given the Planning Commissioner' s importance
in the city' s development review process, and as an advisory/ recommending body to
the City Council.   Staff further finds the amount of $ 40 per meeting is respectful of
the Planning Commissioner' s willingness to commit the time necessary to perform
their assigned duties that includes more than the time spent at the dais during
meetings.    Staff recommends increasing the compensation from  $ 20 to  $ 40 per

meeting, which is less than the average of surrounding cities, see table below.

63



CITY MAN 1GEFt' S IaEPORT Pi4GE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL ItEGULAIZ MEETIIVG

MODIFICATIOIV OF COI ofPEMSA' TION FOIZ PL 4NNING COMMISSION MEMBElZS

COMPd4RISON OF PL 4NNING COMMISSIONER COMPENS 4TION
I

CITIE:      Per Meeting Mtg./ Month  ; $ Per Month    ; $ Per Year

Brentwood 1_00__ _.._.._ ______._... .._    2 , 200._;__....__...   __2, 400_..

900ElkGrove 38 :................................................................_2.....1........... ....... ..................................._ 75 !1..............................................................................,.     

Livermore *  ._____ 268 ;  2 ;__       535 :      6 420
T ........._,..._._...._.._._...._...._........___..............._..........._._.........._........................

L....,.___---

Lodi 20 2 ;   40 : 480
W_       

Manteca 40 '  2€   80 : 960

Modesto *    0 ;  2 ;     0 ,     0

Stockton 25.:. _..... _....__......._._............_2........_._..._............... .. .. _50......._... ._........._..........__......_6Q_0..W..___._._. _

Tra_cY_..__.._._____._...__._...__.._.._......__. ._..    50 ;  2    50 ' 600

Turlock 50 ;  1 : 100 ;      1, 200
T

A\/ EFZAC; E: ;   4f ;     j

Livermore and_Modesto__removed from_average for being_the h_ighest and lowest__  _  ___ ______

RECOMt ENDATIOIV:

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the attached resolution modifying
the compensation for Planning Commission members to be $ 40 for every Planning
Commission meeting or official Planning Commission workshop attended.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The annual fiscal impact is approximately $ 3, 600 based on  $ 40 per meeting,  per

commissioner ( 5) for 18 meetings per year ( 12 regular and 6 special).

FY 2019- 2020 budget adopted by City Council on June 12, 2019 included $ 3, 600 to

allow the increase in funding for the planning commission stipend.

ATTACH M ENTS:

1.  Resolution approving the modification of the Planning Commission

Compensation

2.  Resolution No. 92- 219

64



CITY MANAGER' S I EPORT P GE 3

DECEMBEFt 9, 2019 CITY COUnICIL REGULAFt MEETING

MODIFICATIOIV OF COMPENSATION FOR PLANNING COM9( YSSIOIV MEM ERS

APPIaOVALS:

l' zl- l9
ark eis ne Date

Comm nity De elopment Director

G2G/' 2`- /'
eresa Vargas Date

Ci Clerk

n l/I
m s Date

Finan e D rector

o ' zi` 9'
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

r

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

65



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP MODIFYING

COMPENSATION FOR THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

WHEREAS, the City of Council of the City of Lathrop adopted Ordinance no.
91- 62 on December 17,  1991 establishing a Planning Commission for the City of
Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, Section 4 of the ordinance permits the members of the Planning
Commission to receive compensation for meetings attended in an amount as fixed

from time to time by resolution of the City Council; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council adopted Resolution No.  92- 219 establishing
Planning Commission member compensation in the amount of twenty dollars ($ 20)

for every Planning Commission meeting or official Lathrop Planning Commission
workshop; and

WHEREAS, for the past twenty seven  ( 27) years, there has not been any
adjustments made to the $ 20 compensation for Planning Commissioners' attendance;
and

WHEREAS, it was determined that increasing compensation to the amount of
forty dollars ($ 40) per meeting would be appropriate compensation paid to members
of the Planning Commission to reflect the increasing commitment of time necessary
to perform their assigned duties; and

WHEREAS, increasing the compensation from $ 20 to $ 40 per meeting is
less than the average of surrounding cities:

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City
of Lathrop as follows:

1.  That compensation paid to the members of the Planning Commission shall
be increased to forty dollars ($ 40) for attendance at Planning Commission
meetings whether regular, special, adjourned or any workshop.

2.   The increase shall be effective as of January 1, 2020.

Resolution No. 19-

66



PASSED ND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of
Lathrop on

9th day of December 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

1

Resolution No. 19-

67



ATTACHMElVT "        u

Y"      RESOLUTION NO. 92-   219

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

LATHROP SETTING COMPENSATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE

PLANNING COMMISSION

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lathrop adopted Ordinance No. 91-
62 on December 17, 1991 establishing a Planning Commission for the City of Lathrop;
and

WHEREAS, Section 4 of that Ordinance permits the members of the Planning
Commission to receive compensation for meetings attended in an amount as fixed

from time to time by resolution of the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop, that compensation for Planning Cornmissioners be set as follows:

For every Planning Commission rneeting or official Lathrop Planning
Commission workshop attended, Commissioners shall receive the amount of

20. 00.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of August, 1992 by the following vote:

AYES:      HcBee, Hill,  Sangalang,  Gatto,  Freeman

NOES:

ABSENT:

i n    -
MAC FREEMAN

MAYOR

ATTEST:

By L cl/       
City Clerk

68



i

ITEM 4. 11       ;

CITY MANAGER REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:      RECOMMENDATION TO CHANGE  SOUTH HARLAN

ROAD" TO " OLD HARLAN ROAD"

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving Street Name

Modification to Change " South Harlan Road" to Old

Harlan Road"

SUMMARY:

Staff is requesting to rename  " South Harlan Road"  to  " Old Harlan Road".  The

purpose of this effort is to improve navigation and provide clarity on existing road
networks in conjunction with existing and proposed development within the

immediate vicinity. The proposed street name change will help prevent confusion
with motorists, delivery services, and emergency responders.

Staff requests the City Council adopt a Resolution approving the proposed street
name change as shown in the attached exhibit.

BACKGROUND:    

In the early 2000' s, the City of Lathrop initiated the realignment of Harlan Road
between Schilling Avenue and J Street.  This realignment was a condition of

approval as part of the development of the Stonebridge Subdivision.     The

realignment affected a portion of South Harlan Road  ( 900 feet south of Lathrop
Road) that was realigned in 2002 to move the intersection of South Harlan Road

and Lathrop Road 400 feet east.  The remaining portion of the original alignment of
South Harlan Road shares the same name and address range as the realigned

portion and needs to be renamed to avoid confusion.

On, January 16, 2019, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission approved the Panda
Express Project  ( Site Plan Review No. : SPR- 18- 92)  at the southeast corner of

Lathrop Road and Interstate 5.  This project is the first phase of a multi- phased

development that will include additional commercial development between Panda

Express and the existing smog shop to the south. The original section of Harlan

Road between Lathrop Road and the realigned Harlan Road assumed the name,
Old Harlan Road" when the realignment took place; however, no official City action

took place to authorize the use of" Old Harlan Road".

The purpose of this effort is to officially establish the name " Old Harlan Road",

which will improve navigation and prevent confusion with motorists,  delivery
services, and emergency responders.

69



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

STREET NAME CHANGE

ANALYSIS:

Notification letters were sent out on November 4, 2019 to affected property owners,
various utility companies,  school district,  county agencies and postal service.  In

addition,  emergency personnel  ( San Joaquin Sheriff' s Office and Lathrop Manteca
Fire Department) have reviewed and approved the proposed street name.

The exhibit below illustrates the proposed street name modification:

I       +      s '`  
4       "     d a

x
s   

r 4 a              r',';

t.:       

r}

g  
s;   

s

E I

G       iG ,     .   ,..:.     -::       6.-,,.. ..,,

7( t 1lilzpC    C

r%
Jf.   4          yi         .    °

1 a       `  1..'""``? j' .-

g` 

F.` r     .'.(' 1,,.• ,'- '^      5   `

yy '  
k"  rY by         +.     

Ajk  *  

J    ,r;     
3

edY...
1..1 i      (•      

4      +  c CTix' N 
Y       ':

m

F a      `'

f   °     — . .  
Q' Y      

a

C

pd*

p`'       '    /    ''.-

r(:+,  
r.       

A

4.;..  
Q .

s
W

Lvt.' L' rs   _ '  '+ .    ''

r'
71     .

4
h . t d;  ve' x ,       ,','.    °"°"'. 

I 4  -  (-"   i Al    / M,'
t^  

rtr  ".
a" c:  

s' r       ;  1' I ,`` 
i            :

J
1     

r

f       

A °  
r<,

K . 5" i

5°      

grP;      , +
7       B W

a
f! S' 4,.   '   

pv    ..,
11,  

T"'   µ r'     

1.._ ..f pj       '   "
J

y  '  

a R
r

T, 7

i n l"      J
f;  -

v `     , w     - r"...".,.., .    

q. 

r   
t'    ,;  .        

h        ' i
ti f       r -,''.

t`?,.."*,       

fr .
rl' 1.    

r
A.

4* M£- yr

Li 4•   j

4 a
S

j
v   .

Y. ,.      ,   

M

f j;         yt r S

ra
y  rt' 

t}
a'"'    . 

j   ...      .     

f`. 6fl, #'S  `       ...    .     
a ,            .'

a     t   ,:-    ,,     

r t4"     '

t 

a a. Ff.: F
y" 

kri..  
rk  ..   

F    .       7 r  r    ' r   .
M   ,

t    ti, 3  

3
f o.

r   ~  " a.   
f.  i' ì 3      11J, t.":

r .
yiq -    .   ..,  ''   ,:     .     .'. 

r

e .     "      ..    .  r   
i

n
Y..+

r,,r. xr; 
t.

u«. z .

r:.  

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council adopt a Resolution approving the
proposed street name change from ' South Harlan Road" to "Old Harlan Road" as shown

in the attached

70



CITY f AN 4GER' REP09 T

DECEIM ER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

STREET NAME CFiANGE

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of replacing three street name signs will be funded by the City.

ATTACH M ENTS:

1.  Resolution Approving the PropDsed Street Name Changes
2.  Street Name Exhibit

71



CITI MAIVAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITI( COUNCIL lSEGIJLA R MEETING

STIZEET NAME CI-IAfVGE

APPROi/ ALS

ll -- lq
M k Me ssn r Date

C mmun ty Devel pment Director

J l -1 /
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

72



RESOLUTION NO.  19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING STREET NAME MODIFICATION TO CHANGE  SOUTH HARLAN

ROAD" TO OLD HARLAN ROAD"

WHEREAS, the proposed street name modification was initiated by staff to
improve navigation and provide clarity on existing road networks in conjunction with
the development of the Panda Express Project and future commercial project; and

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Office and the Lathrop Manteca
Fire Department have reviewed and approved the proposed street name change; and

WHEREAS, a portion of South Harlan Road ( 900 feet south of Lathrop Road)
was realigned in 2002 to move the intersection of South Harlan Road and Lathrop
Road 400 feet east; and

WHEREAS, the remaining portion of the original alignment of South Harlan
Road shares the same name and address range as the realigned portion and needs

to be renamed to avoid confusion; and

WHEREAS, the street name of" South Harlan Road" will be replaced with " Old

Harlan Road" as shown in Attachment 2 of the Staff Report; and

WHEREAS,  notification letters were sent out on November 4,  2019, to all

property owners affected by the proposed street name change and various utility
companies, school district, county agencies and the postal service.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve the street name change as shown in Attachment 2 of the StafF
Report for this resolution, incorporated by reference herein.

Resolution No. 19-    Page 1 of 2

73



PA SED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a regular
meeting on the 9th of December, 2019 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSEfVT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 19-    Page 2 of 2

74



w,,,;       
fi m.,      

s"-     ,      

T=:,   ATTAC H MENT ..2..
P_

k
w4  

t
s,, x   *

t
rv

R"''"-

h, yn,   .    
F;'; S'     w`,

i

4.       a.y  "     '
f,

u.'

c."    

ti. b  .'- k      ....,„       
s,   

a'.:5:   
i H.,      

a .  m,  .   .      0 3,

Y
z

a
m  "     a..

a.._       
e

t

i

y  :
r

g
a

1' 

Qt.     

r       -

X35, r°`
y`+

4      

6-`'''„.-

p.

F

t?.. i

i

r

IF   E

1'..    ...      , .      m'„''

Y4Mk * '     
ey'     -

M2e` r"
T

w'

1
k..

ti,,... y     "   at
r!

a     aN- 8.:     
4

4,       

w t     i 1

a; y
h f..

y

t     . -  

I lis`  y-

r,. Rk.;,
r, w

O  ^ .'`^.,,   

ryT               

tIII;. 5y .         e Y  ;,;`°*,   
Y` F#,       

Q7'    .      ,,       4.  

r.-,

0 a 5f   

i..

q bem       

O

rh,       H  3

w,`

e

f

ria

F'    tta

H
R`?  .,    j . .

o '      ,

i

n.       

a.

c  _     
1

t,      a'      
t ,               '}

y       `    •    "
x   *^ 

e „     

Y
t  . '  "       `

u!'  
b.-          `

R  °` a.

rv

C c
F    i '        `      +

y..     . E     4.            o °  r   .          
t ,,. 5' ",  F„

S
6

1n

tr     R"      

t#..    .  ..  

Yy'.

d       „_• u     h 9
e  .

hr;'..

YG:  .    .  .   

t       '.    
a .

a   

y

i 4Y
k ARI'         Y_  > x 3 CnA'...    . .     .

r     
t-    "      

w.  , 
z       " ,_, _ .      

I,        
r st",      

h    " 
Z  

s i,  ".,..  b   ' o-.    .:.,  

y 

t« ' m       un.    V.     ti'   y,   ,`„ ep`
pE

ry-'!.
4     ',.

A'     w y..    p

u'.
kt   fl'  ',.  

S-   x Y

5
g.

J v ..*  ,  
T S.  

yT      .       
r  W

T,"'    

s§ .. d1 N,,,      '+

w     
l.  `',

y/        

7   .       
F        ,    

I

F..   ';+  '''' w ry '    6    -^ r'. y  ,
g  ".

t      _     t. 

a      '  
s     

7    '          
t   ! E'a..   

h R'  ,    
a;  e.  .          '      _    

y*y     '  " r`     
t s.  q"°w. e

CC   .
f'7 A gi` { 

f

t

y/    

jF       
a

y1     
t,,-

p  •     .       . *#  o'[,
D  ',   ' 4    ". 4"}    .;  t       

4  

aK    '"<   `
t . '       

t
m-       `$

w 

c

4 3

1

y.,      r q
p 7

P r  b Harlan Rd
e       ,  

a
u    

i
e .

r      
A

fs

4 .. i-    a?
f

1;   : yC-- F
1a  .., 5

fi.,    .,   o     
ix

4
a  .- 1

r     .    

y  gy       

c- ad.      

A
r    y  .$     - 

y '   T  . ,

k:. 1

q
n

J y
l '- t, ' h 4.   r S L. l       

i a t.:3::'=.;

t+     
3     .       S" . h, 

1-   
t  

s

b

k      
t    ... , `.

N    

b+7+     
d'

v

1 p

1      -

4( 
f 1 W"

M 3 t'..    n'     
y     n 4 w+  '          

u e._      

T..       

T      '  rr Y    .       
ti y'%  

L     y  ''""        a  

JY3e        
t

i.  $ 
ta`   

r  ....._.                

r n
z

i e E

4 r'.
fi'      y

6
p'     ~

ft 9     ,    

Q      _ .....
r 1

m

2     ...
CG    y          ,    

y                i K        

g,w  _._....   ,_ ....   .,'< rgy," 
x.'    ,,       '

ti.,

y, °

a

jt.
nS?         ..     4;>.-,..    6  :

v:'L

5,..   ...    ..:..
t t" yr„     j  wa  

iyt

i

1  '

4`  / !    

h       ..

w r  .,.       

n_ .   

o..  

a. 7F

4L
m",`

4       .   ..       s   

1.   .  j f,  
ar

7

yy,   

Q   ..
3-+...-  

i
y

E     ' IJ3.     

ri
7 `

y.'
xin.      

n 
l'       .      Y       - 

i

a3•
c

W  :. 

4C
4ufxi'   .       .,    1

N

u:.-     : 
r    .' Y

gi

Y

ry%   vT
b    ' 4a'" 

0
I

p  »..
r-. k. 

mi rJt`   

ft
f 

f-     
yP

wa...«. e.. x

r
t_...,... .. ,   M      -    

w,}`     

s
e

R
g I

y
e . 

1ri'>' Yt` f      $   :  
tl[

r

r. 1
fp

u e

1: y'   "_             9 u'       

p    
k i.:  x"-{a.v     ``

t

e           .          

f..  r
9'       .>  

r 

A.-+_

o    -

f      ,

r,
i__.  .__   a rn,

B. M'
ik

s,      °  .. 
y ..  y,>   , s f.

a,,  
a.$   1_      z a- 1

u-     "   : k. t

i..  i
4 rv       .

r 

If i
i nr

t'
r g.

1   "
S..

Y,.          :.. .    

x

y... ar '"     , "          Y'4    ,+:'`"  t e," L', -.

t  

a, rnu.>

Fx. :, zt: 
a_  

r. 75



76



ITEM 4. 12

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: CREATE CIP GG 20- 19 FOR IRRIGATION AND

LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS IN MOSSDALE

VILLAGE

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution Approving the Creation of
CIP GG 20- 19 for Irrigation and Landscape

Improvements in Mossdale Village and

Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

The existing irrigation and landscape improvements along the major roadways in
Mossdale Village are approximately 12 years old and were specifically designed and
installed for recycled water use.  The State Water Resources Control Board ( SWRCB)

regulates the use of recycled water through various policies.  Over the past 12 years,.

the SWRCB has updated their policies to align with new data,  equipment and

technology.   Utilizing these updated policies, staff has identified several potential

improvements to the existing irrigation system that will make it more efficient and
reduce the long- term operation and maintenance costs.

Staff requests City Council approve the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP)
GG 20- 19 for irrigation and landscape improvements in Mossdale Village and a related

budget amendment.

BACKGROUND:

The Mossdale Village area of Lathrop is Iocated west of Interstate 5 ( I- 5) and east of
the San Joaquin River as shown in Attachment B.   The 1, 161- acre development is

comprised of approximately 2, 845 residential lots along with service commercial and
highway commercial uses.  The existing irrigation and landscape improvements along
the major roadways in Mossdale Village are approximately 12 years old and were
specifically designed and installed for recycled water use.  The State Water Resources

Control Board ( SWRCB) regulates the use of recycled water through various policies.

StafF reviewed the existing irrigation system along the major roadways in Mossdale
Village including Golden Valley Parkway, River Islands Parkway, McKee Boulevard,

Brookhurst Boulevard and Barbara Terry Boulevard.  Several potential improvements

were identified that will make the system more efFicient and reduce long- term
operation and maintenance costs.    These improvements include the removal of

subsurface drip irrigation,   valve replacement,   consolidating meters,   controller

updates, etc.  Staff is recommending that the improvements take place in phases to
minimize impacts to residents with Phase 1 being Golden Valley Parkway between
River Islands Parkway and Towne Centre Drive.   

77



CITY MAfVAGEI' S REPORY P GE 2

DECEM ER 9, 2019, CITY COUI ICIL l EGULAI MEETYNG

CItE YE CIP GG 20- 19 FOR I12RIGATIOIV AIVD LAiVD CAPE IMPROVEMENTS

IN MO SD L VILLAGE

I EASOIV FOI RECOMMENDATIOIN:

Making improvements to the existing irrigation system in Mossdale Village will allow
for more efficient use of recycled water and reduce the long- term operations and
maintenance costs.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total estimated cost for phase 1 improvements to the irrigation and landscape in

Mossdale Village is $ 500, 000. Funds are available in the Landscape Reserve Account.

Prior to staff moving forward, a CIP must be created and funds transferred.   Staff

requests City Council approve the creation of CIP GG 20- 19 and a budget amendment
transferring $ 500, 000 from the Landscape Reserves Fund 1010 as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 500, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 GG 20- 19 500, 000

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 1200 GG 20- 19 500, 000

Decrease Reserve 500, 000

1010- 251- 07- 00

TTAC H M E NT:

A.       Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP GG 20- 19 Mossdale Village
Irrigation and Landscape Improvements and Related Budget Amendment

B.       Map of Mossdale Village

78



CITY M aIVAGER' S tEP012T PAGE 3

DECEMBEIt 9, 2019, CIl'Y COUfo1CIL REGULAR I IEETING

CE Ei4TE CIP GG' 20- 19  FOR I18i2IGATIOfV AiVD Lp nIDSCAPE IMP1 09oENiE1VTS

IN MO SDALE VILLAGE

APPRAVALS:

I 1- Zs—i 

Michael King Date

Publi Works Director

I

li s-/
Cari Jame Date

Finance dministrative

Services irector

l   ` z-   

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

tt z 7• 9
Steph J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

79



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATION OF CIP GG 20- 19 FOR IRRIGATION AND

LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS IN MOSSDALE VILLAGE AND RELATED

BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  the existing irrigation and landscape improvements along the
major roadways in Mossdale Village are approximately 12 years old and were
specifically designed and installed for recycled water use; and

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board ( SWRCB) regulates the

use of recycled water through various policies and over the past 12 years the

SWRCB has updated their policies to align with new data,   equipment and

technology; and

WHEREAS,  staff reviewed the existing irrigation system along the major
roadways in Mossdale Village and several potential improvements were identified

that will make the system more efficient and reduce long- term operation and
maintenance costs; and

WHEREAS,  staff is recommending that the improvements take place in
phases to minimize impacts to residents with Phase 1 being Golden Valley Parkway
between River Islands Parkway and Towne Centre Drive; and

WHEREAS,  the total estimated cost for the phase 1 improvements is

500, 000 and funds are available in the Landscape Reserve Account for these

improvements; and

WHEREAS,  prior to staff moving forward a Capital Improvement Project
CIP) must be created and funds transferred.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOL lED,  the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the creation of CIP GG 20- 19 for irrigation and
landscape improvements in Mossdale Village; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve the following budget amendment from the Reserve Fund 1010 to
cover the cost of the improvements:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 500, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 GG 20- 19 500, 000

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 1200 GG 20- 19 500, 000

Decrease Reserve

1010- 251- 07- 00 500, 000

80



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9th day of
December 2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  A PPI OVED / S YO FOIZM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

81



Attachment B

MOSSDALE VILLAGE PLANNING AREAS

CENTRALLATHROP

1 SPECIFIC PLAN

PAGFICUNIIXJMOMES     ECK ,`
TRACT3a01     ...    VILLAGESA 

PUH
i,.,   

MERIT4GE      i3   

fiACT3 t2

1      /,    .   .   ._         .

BECK   `   . - pqqFlC UNION HOMES      .  
TRACi? 797    ,      TRACT3112

i'    .-. 
eecK

i' r 3s  

y\,

Oi. .

Nyc QV SS G/     
IO

N       J'     / WAI' iIMCKEE
SILVERIA

SJ' S' m TRACT3073
1

pp.s

y cp g
s t  Qp.

I

WESiERNPACIFIC
LAFfERTv

iHACT 3d? 0    ,•  
TRACT3079  i.. µ,i

x
1,           .    ----     -----.r

PROPERTIES I
i

RACT7713 NE HOME

i
VlUGE7     ,   .,..      

TRACT3380 : ..      i    
I 7RACT3s37         

c KBHOM    TRACT
3379

i Pl,' H i

TCN    RECYCLEOY/

ATEftI

PASINS 1 iRP
13225   ,

I RIVER ISLANDS w=_sTe, N a ic1 if2AC'

3073

I"'     

TCN sva e     7W1C

3438

i F' I.nM1' I; Ih('\Itl/

A
I I . I: ili•LanJing I1DC lTem'/ 1'lllll Tru: l lI1'_- I lii, I. I.     ......      .       
I til...lulcLandingllDC( flurtis/ 1' UH) Truct3. 25-[Gl. c

t_.       Y

TGN MiaaJulcLandfngUDC( TCN) Tract3JU-
393Ln  

EACT3M139 M u1 IcLand gl. a7IlDC- 10;

1ot     M::dulc Land- g k,wh UDC 219
Lot,    

i Sikrn.,- G;3Loi.lLoicowihu.

vionWLSP1 Ti tul=_'xJi Li i.
r

i

I• N 0 R T

M 0'    S02'   IOOO 

2000' mac Y s som
s reeEa Nc. ntia auNwr e. w+ o svr+

cvwc a.,,.,,,,.,,,,. cn vzs)- za-

oeea 6- 09- 1001 01. 51. 20 cgucnlner P.\1920J- 24\ p ann
nq\MossUoi Pionniry.

82



ITEM 4. 13       

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  16 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.,

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING

DIVISION

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 16 to the
Master Professional Consulting Services Agreement
with 4Leaf,   Inc.,   for Professional Services and

Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

On September 21, 2015, City Council approved a Master Agreement with 4Leaf, Inc.,
4Leaf)  to provide professional services in the Building Division.    Since then,  an

Amendment and a series of Task Orders have been approved to provide various

professional services within the Building Division.    Due to continued increase in

construction activity related to capital improvement,  private land development,

residential, commercial and industrial projects, staff requested a proposal from 4Leaf

to provide continued professional services in the Building Division.

Staff is requesting City Council to consider approval of Task Order No. 16 with 4Leaf,
Inc., on a time and material basis with a not to exceed amount of $ 400, 000 and a

related budget amendment.  Task Order No.  16 will be fully funded by revenue
received from permit fees collected at the issuance of building permits.

BACKGROUND:      

On September 21, 2015, City Council approved a Master Agreement with 4Leaf to
provide professional services in the Building Division.  On May 13, 2019, City Council
approved Amendment No. 2 extending the Master Agreement to June 30, 2021.  The

Master Agreement with 4Leaf allows staff to issue task orders to align with increased

construction activity that exceeds staff resources.  The ability to use the services of
outside consultants makes it possible to continue providing timely response times to
our residents,  businesses and developers.  The table depicted on the next page

provides a summary of Task Orders approved to date.

83



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  16 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.  FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

Task Order No.       Date A roved Descri tion

1 09/ 21/ 15 Staff Au mentation Services

2 09/ 21/ 15 Plan Check Services

3 07/ 18/ 16 Plan Check Services

4 10/ 17/ 16 Plan Check Services

5 12/ 05/ 16 Ins ection Services

6 06/ 19/ 17 Plan Check Services

7 06/ 19/ 17 Ins ection Services

8 O1/ 29/ 18 Chief Buildin Official Services

9 06/ 11/ 18 Chief Buildin Official Services

10 06/ 21/ 18 Ins ection Services

11 10/ 08/ 18 Plan Check Services

12 05/ 13/ 19 Ins ection Services

13 05/ 13/ 19 Staff Au mentation Services

14 09/ 21/ 19 Chief Buildin Official Services

15 10/ 14/ 19 Professional Services

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Additional professional services are needed in the Building Division to keep up with
the continued increase in construction activity related to capital improvement, private
land development, residential, commercial and industrial projects. The ability to use
the services of outside consultants makes it possible to continue providing timely
response times to our residents, businesses and developers.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Task Order No. 16 with 4Leaf, Inc., will be on a time and material basis with a not to

exceed amount of $ 400, 000. Task Order No. 16 will be fully funded from plan check
fees collected at the issuance of a building permit and will only be paid when revenue
has been received.  Funds approved in the Building Division budget for fiscal year
2019- 2020 is insufficient to cover the unexpected increase in construction activity,
staff is requesting a budget amendment to the adopted budget for the Building
Division to offset the additional expenses.  The budget amendment is as follows:

Increase Revenue

2015- 50- 30- 323- 01- 00 75, 500

Increase Expenditures

2015- 50- 30- 420- 01- 00 75, 500

84



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  16 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.  FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Task Order No. 16 with 4Leaf, Inc., for Professional

Services in the Building Division and Related Budget Amendment

B.       Task Order No. 16 for Professional Services in the Building Division dated
December 9, 2019

85



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  16 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.  FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

APPROVALS:

11- Zo - 19

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

9
Cari s Date

Financ Administrative Services Director

Y  - 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

z? 1

S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

86



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO.   16 TO THE MASTER PROFESSIONAL

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 4LEAF,     INC.,     FOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the City requires contract professional services to keep pace with
ongoing development; and

WHEREAS, 4Leaf, Inc. has the qualifications necessary to provide additional

professional services in the Building Division services; and

WHEREAS, City Council approved a Master Agreement with 4Leaf, Inc.  for

professional services in September 2015; and

WHEREAS, City Council approved Amendment No.  2 extending the Master
Agreement through June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting Council appro.ve Task Order No. 16 to provide

additional professional services on a time and material basis with a not to exceed

amount of $400, 000; and

WHEREAS, Task Order No. 16 will be fully funded by revenue received from
construction permit fees collected at the issuance of building permits; and

WHEREAS,  sufficient funds were not allocated in the adopted Fiscal Year

19/ 20 Budget, and staff is requesting the following budget amendment:

Increase Revenue

2015- 50- 30- 323- 01- 00 75, 500

Increase Expenditures

2015- 50- 30- 420- 01- 00 75, 500

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Task Order No.  16 for professional services in the

Building Division and related budget amendment.

87



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9t'' 

day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED 4S TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk      - Salvador Navarrete, City A'ttorney

88



Attachment B
I

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 16

PURSUANT TO MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED

SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 WITH 4LEAF, INC.

TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

THIS TASK ORDER N0. 16 dated for convenience this 9t" 

day of December 2019
is by and made and entered into by and between 4LEAF, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the -

CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,  on September 21,  2015,  CONSULTANT entered into a Master

Agreement with the CITY, and parties approved an extension of the term to June 30, 2021

pursuant to Amendment No.  2 dated May 13,  2019  (" AGREEMENT")  by which the
CONSULTANT has agreed to provide Building Division Professional Services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
provide professional building services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such professional building
services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation of Master Aqreement

This Task Order hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services for this project,
unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

2)      Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform professional building services in

accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided in Exhibit " A"

to this Task Order No,  16.   CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform
these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession

and to the CITY'S satisfaction.

Page 1 of 3

89



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 16 WITH 4LEAF INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is December 9t", 2019, and it shall

terminate no later than June 30, 2020.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT on a time and material basis
with a not to exceed amount of $ 400, 000 for the professional building
services.   CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested sum due and
payable within thirty  ( 30)  days of receipt of billings containing all
information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.   Compensation for any task
must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete.  In no event

shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in

Exhibit " A", unless a written change order or authorization describing the
extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s authorized
representative prior to the commencement of the work.

5)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall
receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall

not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurance have been received.
City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to
issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

6)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 2 of 3

90



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 16 WITH 4LEAF INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

Approved as to Form:  City of Latfirop
City Attorney

l/ zO~

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Accepted By:
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:

4 Leaf Inc.

2126 Rheem Drive, Suite A

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Fed ID # 94- 3393574

Bus License # 20088

Signature Date

Kevin J. Duqgan, President

Print Name and title)

Page3of3

91



i

i Exhibit A

4LEAF, INc.

ENGINEERING• CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

BUILDING INSPECTION• PLAN CHECK

2019- 21 FEE SCHEDULE & BASIS OF CHARGES

For the City of Lathrop

All Rates are Subject to Basis of Charges

Plan Check Service Fee for 1` Review and two Hourly rate for onsite and/ or greater
2) subsequent rechecks than 3 reviews offsite( with

authorization from Director):

Life Health Safety,
Structural, ADA 125/ hour structural

Requirements and Title 24 65% of City fee
Energy Requirements 95/ hour non- structural

Plan Checks

Plumbing/
Mechanical/ Electrical Only 40% of City fee 95/ hour non- structural

Plan Checks

Structural Only o

Plan Checks
40/ of City fee 125/ hour structural

Additional Buildin Department Services

Senior Combination Building Inspector ...............................................................$ 95/ hour

Commercial Building Inspector ...........................................................................$ 90/ hour

Residential Building Inspector.............................................................................$ 80/ hour

Training Building Inspector..................................................................................$ 70/ hour

CodeEnforcement...............................................................................................$ 85/ hour

Senior Permit Technician.....................................................................................$ 70/ hour

Permit Technician................................................................................................$ 65/ hour

Administrative Support....................................................................................................$60/ hour

On- Site Plan Review Engineer..............................................................................$ 120/ hour

On- Site Non- Structural Plans Examiner................................................................$ 90/ hour

FireReview..........................................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Inspector of Record( including DSA or OSHPD)....................................................$ 135/ hour

Public Works Inspector........................................................................................$ 145/ hour

Interim Chief Building Official..............................................................................$ 130/ hour

CASpInspection...................................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Off-Site Project Manager.....................................................................................$ 160/ hour

Principal- in- Charge..............................................................................................$ 185/ hour

Hourly overtime charge per inspector................................................................. 1. 5 x hourly rate

Mileage( for inspections performed within the City)............................................ IRS Rate+ 20%

Proposal to Provide Plan Check and Inspection Services for the City of Lathrop Building Division Page 1 of 2

November 13„ 2019

92



4LEAF, INc.

ENGINEERING• CONSTRUCTIQN MANAGEMENT

BUILDING INSPECTION• PLAN CHECK

BASIS OF CHARGES

All invoicing will be submitted monthly.

Work is subject to 4- hour minimum charges unless stated otherwise. Services billed in 4- hour

increments.

4LEAF assumes that these rates reflect the 2019- 2021 contract period. 3% escalation for 2021 and 2022

is negotiable per market conditions.

Overtime and Premium time will be charged as follows:

Regular time( work begun after SAM or before 4PMJ 1 x hourly rate

Night Time( work begun after 4PM or before SAM) 1. 125 x hourly rate

Overtime( over 8 hour M- F or SaturdaysJ 1. 5 x hourly rate
Overtime( over 8 hours Sat or

15t
8 hour SunJ 2 x hourly rate

Overtime( over 8 hours Sun or Holidays)       3 x hourly rate

Overtime will only be billed with prior authorization of the Chief Building OfFicial, Public Works Director,

or other responsible designated City personnel.

Expedited reviews will be charged at 1. 4 times the plan review fee

All work with less than 8 hours rest between shifts will be charged the appropriate overtime rate.

Mileage, driven during the course of Lathrop Inspections will be charged at cost plus 20%.

Payment due on receipt. All payments over 30 days will be assessed a 1. 5% interest charge.

Client shall pay attorneys' fees, or other costs incurred in collecting delinquent amounts.

Client agrees that 4LEAF' s liability will be limited to the value of services provided.

4LEAF will negotiate fees on a case by case basis for larger complex projects and projects deemed

special by the City.

Proposal to Provide Plan Check and Inspection Services for the City of Lathrop Building Division Page 2 of 2

November 13„ 2019

93



94



ITEM 4. 14       '

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR

SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES,

PURSUANT TO CIP WW 19- 01 WOODFIELD

SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution Approving Construction

Contract with Telstar Instruments for Sanitary
Sewer Pump Station Upgrades,  Pursuant to

CIP WW 19- 01 Woodfield Sewer Pump Station
Upgrades and Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

On July 9, 2018, City Council approved Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) WW 19-
01 Woodfield Sewer Pump Station Upgrades to accommodate additional flows from
the North Harlan Road/ Roth Road industrial area and to alleviate stress on the

downstream Historic Lathrop system.  Contract plans and specifications for this

project were completed in September 2019 and were advertised for bid on October
2,  2019 according to the Public Contract Code and the Lathrop Municipal Code,
Section 2. 36. 060.

On November 12, 2019, a total of four (4) bids were received and opened by the City
Clerk.  After review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive and responsible

bidder for the project was determined to be Telstar Instruments ( Telstar) based on

the base bid alone for a total of $ 1, 036, 050.

Staff requests City Council approve a construction contract with Telstar for CIP WW
19- 01 of $ 1, 036, 050. Staff also requests Council approve a 10% contingency in the
amount of $ 103, 605 for a total cost not to exceed $ 1, 139, 655.

BACKGROUND:

Improvements to the Woodfield Sewer Pump Station are needed to accommodate
additional flows from the North Harlan Road/ Roth Road industrial area and to alleviate

stress on the downstream Historic Lathrop system.   The project will upgrade the

Woodfield Sewer Pump Station with new pumps and establish a connection to an
existing 10- inch force main that will allow its flow to be pumped to the Manteca Water
Quality Control Facility ( MWQCF) using existing mains that connect to the McKinley
Avenue Sewer Pump Station.    This project will also facilitate a potential future

connection of the Sharpe Army Depot to the City' s wastewater collection system by
providing additional flows needed to prevent settling of solids in the sewer main on
McKinley Avenue. The costs for this project may be paid using funds allocated from
Fund 6060 Wastewater Capital Replacement.

95



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR CIP WW 19- 01 WOODFIELD

SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES

In September 2019, staff completed the plans and specifications for the Woodfield

Sewer Pump Station Upgrades.  The project was advertised for bid through Stockton

ARC in accordance with Lathrop Municipal Code Section 2. 36. 060. A total of four ( 4)
bids were received that were determined to be responsive and responsible. The bid

results are summarized below.

Table 1: Summa of Bid Results

Contractor Total Bid

Telstar Instruments 1, 036, 050

Cazadoro Construction 1, 328, 000

RTC Construction Mana ement 1, 348, 163

Preston Pi elines 1, 435, 000

Staff reviewed the bids and determined that the lowest responsive and responsible

bidder is Telstar.  Staff requests that City Council adopt a resolution approving a
construction contract with Telstar in the amount of $ 1, 036, 050. Staff also requests

City Council authorize a 10% construction contingency of $ 103, 605 and authorize

staff to spend the contingency as necessary to achieve the goals of the project for a
total cost not to exceed $ 1, 139, 655.

Staff complied with the CEQA process for this project with the preparation and filing
of a Notice of Exemption ( NOE) pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines Section 15301( c).

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Woodfield Sewer Pump Station Upgrades are needed to accommodate additional
flows from the North Harlan Road/ Roth Road industrial area and to alleviate stress

on the downstream Historic Lathrop system.  Approving a construction contract with
Telstar and the allocation funds will allow staff to move forward with construction.

96



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR CIP WW 19- 01 WOODFIELD

SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed contract with Telstar Instruments is for   $ 1, 036, 050.   A 10%

contingency is requested in the amount of $ 103, 605 for a total cost not to exceed

1, 139, 655. The amount of $ 520, 000 was included in the FY 19/ 20 Budget for CIP

WW 19- 01 Woodfield Sewer Pump Station Upgrades.  Staff requests City Council
approve a budget amendment transferring   $ 185, 896 from the Wastewater

Connection Fees Fund   ( 6030)   and   $ 433, 759 from the Wastewater Capital

Replacement Fund ( 6060) to the Wastewater CIP Fund ( 6090) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

6030- 9900- 990- 9010 185, 896

Wastewater Connections Fees)

6060- 9900- 990- 9010 433, 759

Wastewater System Capital Replacement)

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 WW 19- 01 619, 655

Wastewater CIP)

Increase A propriation

6090- 8000- 420- 12- 00 WW 19- 01 619, 655

Wastewater CIP Construction Contracts)

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Construction Contract with Telstar Instruments for
Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Upgrades, Pursuant to CIP WW 19- 01 Woodfield
Sewer Pump Station Upgrades and Related Budget Amendment

B.  Construction Contract with Telstar for Woodfield Sewer Pump Station

Upgrades, CIP WW 19- 01

97



CITY MANAGEF' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITI( COUNCYL R GULa4R MEETIIVG

APP6ZO fE i4 COfV5TRl1CTIOfd CONTRACI'  FOR CIP aIVW 19- 01 VI/ OODFIELD

SEINER PUMP STATION UPGR DES

APPROV LS:  

L

Steven J. Med a Date

Assistant Engineer

I/- l{— I

Michael King Date

Pub ic Works Director

I)    Oq
Cari James Date

Finance & Admi istrative

Services Direc

N 19'
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

ai-`9
Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

98



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS FOR

SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES, PURSUANT TO CIP WW 19- 01

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2018, City Council approved the formation of Capital
Improvement Project ( CIP) WW 19- 01 Woodfield Sewer Pump Station Upgrades to
accommodate additional flows from the North Harlan Road/ Roth Road industrial area

and to alleviate stress on the downstream Historic Lathrop system; and

WHEREAS, contract plans and specifications for this project were completed

in September 2019 and were advertised for bid on October 2, 2019 according to the
Public Contract Code and the Lathrop Municipal Code, Section 2. 36. 060; and

WHEREAS, a total of four ( 4) bids were received and opened by the City Clerk
on November 12, 2019; and

WHEREAS,  upon review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive

and responsible bidder for the project was determined to be Telstar Instruments with

a base bid amount of $ 1, 036, 050; and

WHEREAS, staff also requests City Council to authorize a 10% contingency in
the amount of $ 103, 605 and authorize staff to spend the contingency as necessary
to achieve the goals of the project for a total cost not to exceed $ 1, 139, 655; and

WHEREAS,  staff also requests City Council approve a budget amendment
increase transferring $ 185, 896 from the Wastewater Connection Fees Fund ( 6030)

and  $ 433, 759 from the Wastewater Capital Replacement Fund  ( 6060)  to the

Wastewater CIP Fund ( 6090) as follows: as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

6030- 9900- 990- 9010 185, 896

Wastewater Connections Fees)

6060- 9900- 990- 9010 433, 759

Wastewater System Capital Replacement)

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 WW 19- 01 619, 655

Wastewater CIP)

Increase A propriation

6090- 8000- 420- 12- 00 WW 19- 01 619, 655

Wastewater CIP Construction Contracts)

99



NOW THEREFORE, E IT RESOL\/ ED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves a construction contract with Telstar Instruments for
Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Upgrades, pursuant to CIP WW 19- 01 Woodfield Sewer
Pump Station Upgrades for a cost of $ 1, 036, 050; and

NOW, TMEREFORE, E IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of
the City of Lathrop does hereby approve a 10%  construction contingency in the
amount of $ 103, 605 for a total construction cost not to exceed  $ 1, 139, 655 and

authorizes staff to spend this amount, as necessary, to accomplish the goals of the
project.

100



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9th

day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

fVOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSEfVT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

TTEST:  APPROVED A YO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

101



i i

ATTACHMENT B i

SECTION 00500    
I

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

CONTRACT

THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ( hereinafter" Contract"), dated

is entered into by and between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation of the State of
California ( hereinafter " City"),  and Telstar Instruments,  ( hereinafter " Contractor"), whose

Taxpayer ldentification Number is

For and in consideration of the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and
Contractor( the parties) agree:

1.       Term.  This Contract shall commence on, and be binding on the parties on, the date of
execution of this Contract, and shall expire on the date of recordation of the Notice of

Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that final

payment is made hereunder, subject to the earlier termination of this Contract.

2. General Scope of Project and Work. Construction Documents for Woodfield Sewer Pump
Station Upgrades CIP WW 19- 01 ( hereinafter" Project").  Contractor shall furnish labor,

services, materials and equipment in connection with the construction of the Project and

complete the Work in accordance with the covenants, terms and conditions of this Contract

to the satisfaction of City.  The Project and Work is generally described as follows:

The work to be performed under this contract includes all work contained in the

Construction Documents, including, but not limited to the construction of the Woodfield
Sewer Pump Station, an electrical power SES and power generators in Lathrop, CA as
defined in the Contract Documents;  and any task necessary to accomplish the
aforementioned tasks.

The work shall be complete, and all appurtenant work, materials, and services not expressly
shown or called for in the Construction Documents which may be necessary for the
complete and proper construction of the Work in good faith shall be performed, furnished,

and installed by the Contractor as though originally specified or shown.  The Contractor

will be compensated for work actual work performed in accordance with the unit prices

and provisions contained in these Construction Documents.

Base Bid Total:    1, 036, 050

2.  Construction Documents.  This Contract shall include the Construction Documents which

are on file with the Public Works Department and are hereby incorporated by reference
i.e. Project Specifications, Project Plans, addenda, performance bond, labor and materials

bond, certification of insurance, workers' compensation certification, and guaranty).  For

the purposes of construing,  interpreting and resolving inconsistencies between the
provisions of this Contract, these documents and the provisions thereof are set forth in the

order of precedence described in Article 3 of the General Conditions.

00500- 1

102



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

4. Compensation. In consideration of Contractor' s performance of its obligations hereunder,

City shall pay to Contractor the amount set forth in Contractor' s Bid in accordance with
the provisions of this Contract and upon the receipt of written invoices and all necessary
supporting documentation within the time set forth in the Construction Documents.

Contractor hereby shall not be permitted to invoice the City nor accept compensation for
work not yet complete. In no event, shall the Contractor be entitled to payment for work

not included in the approved scope of work, a written task order, or change order signed

by the City' s Public Works Director prior to commencement of any work.

5. Insurance.  On or before the Date of Execution, Contractor shall obtain and maintain the

policies of insurance coverage described in Section 5. 2 of the General Conditions on terms

and conditions and in amounts as may be required by the City.  City shall not be obligated
to take out insurance on Contractor' s personal property or the personal property of any
person performing labor or services or supplying materials or equipment under the Project.
Contractor shall furnish City with the certificates of insurance and with original
endorsements affecting coverage required under this Contract on or before the Date of

Execution. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by
a person who is authorized by that insurer to bind coverage in its behalf. Proof of insurance
shall be mailed to the Project Manager to the address set forth in Section 00002 of this Bid

Specifications.

6.       Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City
Council members, officers, employees, engineer, and construction manager harmless from

and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens,

penalties, suits, or judgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time
from any injury to or death of persons or damage to property as a result of the willful or
negligent acf or omission of Contractor, or which results from Contractor' s noncompliance

with any Law respecting the condition, use, occupation or safety of the Project site, or any
part thereof, or which arises from Contractor' s failure to do anything required under this
Contract or for doing anything which Contractor is required not to do under this Contract,
or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on Contractor in
the performance of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract, except

as may arise from the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees.  This indemnification shall extend to any and all
claims, demands, or liens made or filed by reason of any construction, renovation, or
remodeling work performed by Contractor under this Contract at any time during the term
of this Contract, or arising thereafter.

7. Assumption of Risk.  Contractor agrees to voluntarily assume any and all risk of loss,
damage, or injury to the property of Contractor which may occur in, on, or about the Project
site at any time and in any manner, excepting such loss, injury, or damage as may be caused
by the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City Council members,
officers, or employees.

00500- 2

103



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTI2ACT

8.       Waiver.  The acceptance of any payment or performance, or any part thereof, shall not
operate as a waiver by City of its rights under this Contract. A waiver by City of any breach
of any part or provision of this Contract by Contractor shall not operate as a waiver or
continuing waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision, nor shall
any custom or practice which may arise between the parties in the administration of any
part or provision of this Contract be construed to waive or to lessen the right of City to
insist upon the performance of Contractor in strict compliance with the covenants, terms

and conditions of this Contract.

9. Compliance with Laws. Contractor sha11 comply with all Laws now in force or which may
hereafter be in force pertaining to the Project and Work and this Contract, with the
requirement of any bond or fire underwriters or other similar body now or hereafter
constituted, with any discretionary license or permit issued pursuant to any Law of any
public agency or official as well as with any provision of all recorded documents affecting
the Project site, insofar as any are required by reason of the use or occupancy of the Project
site,  and with all Laws pertaining to nondiscrimination and affirmative action in
employment and hazardous materials.

DEPARTMENT OF IlVDUSTRIAL RELATIONS- COMPLIANCE MONITORING UNIT

DIR I EGISTRATION

a)  Contractor and Subcontractor Compliance.   Strict compliance with DIR registration

requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725. 5 is a material obligation of the

Contractor under the Contract Documents.   The foregoing includes without limitation,
compliance with DIR Registration requirements at all times during performance of the
Work by the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier.  The failure of the Contractor

and all Subcontractors of every tire to be DIR registered at all times during the performance
of the Work is the Contractor' s default of a material obligation of the Contractor under the

Contract Documents.

b)  No Subcontractor Performance of Work without DIl2 Registration. No portion of the Work

is permitted to be performed by a Subcontractor of any tier unless the Subcontractor is a
DIR Registered contractor.

c)  Contractor Obligation to Verify Subcontractor DIR Registration Status.  An affirmative

and on- going obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is the
Contractor' s verification that all Subcontractors,  of all tiers,  are at all times during
performance of Work in full and strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements.

The Contractor shall not permit or allow any Subcontractor of any tier to perform any Work
without the Contractor' s verification that all such Subcontractors are in full and strict

compliance with DIR Registration requirements.

00500- 3

104



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

d)  Contractor Obligation to Request Substitution of Non- DIR Registered Subcontractor.  If

any Subcontractor identified in the Contractor' s Subcontractor List submitted with the
Contractor' s proposal for the Work is not DIR Registered at the time of opening of
proposals for the Work or if a Subcontractor' s DIR registration lapses prior to or during a
Subcontractor' s performance of Work, the Contractor shall request the CTTY' s consent to

substitute the non- DIR registered Subcontractor pursuant to Labor Code Section

1771. 1( c)( 3) and/ or Labor Code Section 1771. 1( d).

CERTIFIED PAYROLL RECORDS

a)   Compliance with Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776. A material obligation of the

Contractor under the Contract Documents is: ( i) the Contractor' s strict compliance with the

requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776 for preparation and

submittal of Certified Payroll Records (" CPR"); and ( ii) the Contractor' s enfarcement of

CPR preparation and submittal for all Subcontractors of every tier.

b)  Express Condition Precedent to Payment of Contact Price.  Strict compliance with CPR

requirements established pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776 is an express condition

precedent to the CITY' s obligation to: ( i) process any request for payment of any portion
of the Contract Price; or( ii) to disburse any portion of the Contract Price to the Contractor.
The Contractor shall demonstrate strict compliance with CPR preparation and submittal

requirements by delivery to the CITY of electronic files or hard copies of all CPR' s
submitted by the Contractor andl or Subcontractors for Work pursuant to Labor Code
Section 1771. 4 and 1776 concurrently with the submittal thereof to the Labor
Commissioner.  The CITY: ( i) shall not be obligated to process or disburse any portion of
the Contract Price; or ( ii) shall not be deemed in default of the CITY' s obligations under

the Contract Documents unless the Contractor' s demonstrates strict compliance with CPR

preparation and submittal requirements.

c)  PWR Monitoring and Enforcement.  During the Work pursuant to Labor Code Section
1771. 4( a)( 4),  the Department of Industrial Relations shall monitor and enforce the

obligation of the Construction and Subcontractors of every tier to pay the laborers
performing any portion of the work the PWR established for the classification of work/
labor performed.

00500- 4

105



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

RECORD OF WAGES PAID: INSPECTION

Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, Contractor stipulates to the following:

a)  Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing the name,
address, social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours
worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman,
apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in connection with the
public work under the Facilities lease and Construction Provisions.  Such records shall be

on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the
same information of such forms.  The payroll records may consist of payroll data that are
maintained as computer records, if printouts contain the same information as the forms

provided by the division and the printouts are verified as specified in subdivision ( a) of
Labor Code section 1776.

b)  The payroll records enumerated under subdivision ( a) shall be certified and shall be

available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of Contractor on the

following basis:

1) A certified copy of an employee' s payroll record shall be made available for
inspection or furnished to such employees or his or her authorized representative

on request.

2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision (a) shall be made
available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the CTTY,

the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and Division of Apprenticeship
Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision ( a) shall be made
available upon request by the public for inspection or copies thereof.  However, a
request by the public shall be made through either the CITY, the Division of
Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement. If the
requested payroll records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph ( 2), the

requesting party shall, prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of
preparation by Contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request
was made.  The public shall not be given access to such records at the principal

office of Contractor.

c)  Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records enumerated in subdivision ( a) with the
entity that requested such records within ten ( 10) days after receipt of the written request.

00500- 5

106



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

d)  Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to
the public or any public agency, by the CITY, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards,
or the division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a

manner as to prevent disclosure of an individual' s name, address and social security
number. The name and address of contractor awarded the contract or performing the
contract shall not be marked or obliterated.

e)  Contractor shall inform the CTTY of the location of the records enumerated under

subdivision (a), including the street address, city, and county, and shall, within (5) working
days, provide a notice of a change of location and address.

fl In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Article, Contractor shall have

ten( 10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying in what
respects Contractor must comply with this Article.  Should noncompliance still be evident
after such 10- day period, Contractor shall pay a penalty of One- Hundred Dollars ($ 100. 00)

to the CTTY for each calendar day,  or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict
compliance is effectuated.  Upon the request of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards
or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, such penalties shall be withheld from the

progress payment then due.

The responsibility for compliance with this Article shall rest upon Contractor.

10.      Bonds.  As a condition precedent to City' s obligation to pay compensation to Contractor,
and on or before the date of Execution, Contractor shall fiirnish to the Project Manager the

Bonds as required under the Notice to Contractors.

11.      Representations and Warranties.  In the supply of any materials and equipment and the
rendering of labor and services during the course and scope of the Project and Work,
Contractor represents and warrants:

1)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Work shall be vested in Contractor;

2)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Work shall be merchantable and fit to be used for the particular

purpose for which the materials are required;

3)      Any labor and services rendered and materials and equipment used or employed
during the course and scope of the Project and Work shall be free of defects in
workmanship for a period of one ( 1) year after the recordation of the Notice of

Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that

final payment is made hereunder;

4)      Any manufacturer' s warranty obtained by Contractor shall be obtained or shall be
deemed obtained by Contractor for and on behalf of City.

00500- 6

107



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

5)      Any information submitted by Contractor prior to the award of Contract,  or
thereafter, upon request, whether or not submitted under a continuing obligation by
the terms of the Contract to do so, is true and correct at the time such information

is submitted or made available to the City;

6)      Contractor has not colluded, conspired, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any
person in regard to the terms and conditions of Contractor' s Bid, except as may be
permitted by the Notice to Contractors;

7)      Contractor has the power and the authority to enter into this Contract with City, that
the individual executing this Contract is duly authorized to do so by appropriate
resolution,  and that this Contract shall be executed,  delivered and performed

pursuant to the power and authority conferred upon the person or persons
authorized to bind Contractor;

8)      Contractor has not made an attempt to exert undue influence with the Project

Manager or any other person who has directly contributed to City' s decision to
award the Contract to Contractor;

9)      There are no unresolved claims or disputes between Contractor and City which
would materially affect Contractor' s ability to perform under the Contract;

10)    Contractor has furnished and will furnish true and accurate statements, records,

reports,  resolutions,  certifications,  and other written information as may be
requested of Contractor by City from time to time during the term of this Contract;

11)    Contractor and any person performing labor and services under this Project is duly
licensed as a contractor with the State of California as required by California
Business & Professional Code Section 7028, as amended; and

12)    Contractor has fully examined and inspected the Project site and has full knowledge
of the physical conditions of the Project site.

12.      Assingment.   This Contract and the performance required hereunder is personal to

Contractor, and it shall not be assigned by Contractor. Any attempted assignment shall be
null and void.

13.      Claims of Contractor.  All claims pertaining to extra work, additional charges, or delays
within the Contract Time or other disputes arising out of the Contract shall be submitted
by Contractor in accordance with the General Conditions.

14.      Audits b itX. During the term of this Contract and for a period of not less than three ( 3)
years after the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract, City shall have the right to
audit Contractor' s Project- related and Work- related writings and business records, as such

terms are defined in California Evidence Code Sections 250 and 1271, as amended, during
the regular business hours of Contractor, or, if Contractor has no such hours, during the
regular business hours of City.

00500- 7

108



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

15.      Notices.   All contracts,  agreements,  appointments,  approvals,  authorizations,  claims,

demands, Change Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements

given by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if (1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail,
postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the case of a facsimile
transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business
hours of the receiving party and followed with two ( 2) days by delivery of a hard copy of
the material sent by facsimile transmission, in accordance with ( 1), ( 2) or ( 3) above.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service by
facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

PHONE: ( 209) 941- 7363

FAX:     ( 209) 941- 7449

ATTN:   Ken Reed, Project Manager

To Contractor:     Telstar Instruments

4017 Vista Park Court

Sacramento, CA 95834

PHONE:( 928) 671- 2888

FAX:     ( 928) 671- 9507

ATTN:   Robert S. Marston, President

16.      Miscellaneous.

1)      Bailee Disclaimer.  The parties understand and agree that City does not purport to
be Contractor' s bailee, and City is, therefore, not responsible for any damage to the
personal property of Contractor.

2)      Consent. Whenever in this Contract the approval or consent of a party is required,
such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person
having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

3)      Controlling Law.   The parties agree that this Contract shall be governed and

construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

00500- 8

109



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

4)      Definitions.  The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

5)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any
delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Contract, which directly results
from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

6)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Contract and shall have no

effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Contract.

7)      Incorporation of Documents.    All documents constituting the Construction
Documents described in Section 3 hereof and all documents which may, from time
to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference
incorporated in this Contract and shall be deemed to be part of this Contract.

8)      Integration.    This Contract and any amendments hereto between the parties
constitute the entire contract between the parties concerning the Project and Work,
and there are no other prior oral or written contracts between the parties that are not

incorporated in this Contract.

9)      Modification of Contract.  This Contract shall not be modified or be binding upon
the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

10)    Provision.   Any contract, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, term or other stipulation in the Contract shall define or otherwise

control, establish, or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required

of or permitted by either party.  All provisions, whether covenants or conditions,

shall be deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

11)    Resolution.   Contractor shall submit with its Bid a copy of any corporate or
partnership resolution or other writing, which authorizes any director, officer or
other employee or partner to act for or on behalf of Contractor or which authorizes

Contractor to enter into this Contract.

12)    Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Contract is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Contract not so

affected shall remain in full force and effect.

13)    Status of Contractor.  In the exercise of rights and obligations under this Contract,

Contractor acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of

City. Contractor shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members,  officers or employees of City,  and Contractor
expressly waives any and all claims to such rights and benefits.

14)    Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Contract shall inure to the benefit

of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

00500- 9

110



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

15)    Time of the Essence.   Time is of the essence of this Contract and each of its

provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in. which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last.  If

the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by City, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

16)    Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree
that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California
in the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of California.

17)    Recovery of costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms
of this Contract or arising out of this Contract, including the enforcement of the
indemnity provision( s), may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable
attorney' s fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the
non- prevailing party.

18)    Contractor and subcontractors must comply with all applicable standards, orders,
or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act ( 42 USC 1857( h)),

Section 508 of the Clean Water Act ( 33 USC1368), Executive Order 11738, and

Environmental Protection Agency Regulations at 40 CFR Part 15.

19)    Contractors and subcontractors must comply with mandatory standards and policies
relating to the energy efficiency which are contained in the State Energy
Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation
ACT ( Public Law 94- 163, 89 stat 871).

20)    The Contractor shall provide access to the site for the Environmental Protection

Agency and its duly authorized representatives, and the City.

21)    If during the course of construction evidence of deposit of historical or
archaeological interest is found, the Contractor shall cease operation affecting the
find and shall notify the City, who shall notify the EPA and the State Historic
Preservation Officer.  No further disturbance of the deposits shall ensue until the

Contractor has been notified by the City that construction may proceed.  The City
will issue a notice to proceed only after the state official has surveyed the find and
made a determination to the EPA and the City.  Compensation to the contractor, if
any, for lost time or changes in construction to avoid the find, shall be determined
in accordance with changed conditions or change order provisions of the

Construction Documents.

00500- 10

111



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

22)    Notice to Proceed.      Prior to commencing work under this Contract,

CONTRACTOR shall receive a written" Notice to Proceed" from CTTY. A Notice

to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurances have been
received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONTRACTOR for any services prior
to issuance of the Notice to proceed.

23)    Signatures. The individuals executing this Contract represent and warrant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this
Contract on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the

CITY.  This Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

24)    This project is a public works project: Contractor shall comply with requirements
of California Labor Code § 1700 and following, and prevailing wages shall be paid
for work performed on this project.

25)    The statutory provisions for penalties for failing to comply with the State of
California wage and labor laws be enforced, as well as that for failing to pay
prevailing wages.

00500- 11

112



SECTION 00500

WOODFIELD SEWER PUMP STATION UPGRADES CONTRACT

IN vVIT1e1ESS WHE1tEOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement on the date
first above stated in Lathrop, California.

CONTRACTOR:

By:

Name:   Robert S. Marston

Title:    President

CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

By:
Michael King, Public Works Director

APPROVED:

B y:
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager

END OF SECTION)

00500- 12

113



114



i

ITEM 4. 15

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR CLSP STORM

DRAINAGE RIVER OUTFALL STRUCTURE FROM

SAYBROOK CLSP,    LLC AND RESCIND INITIAL

REJECTION OF ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS IN

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3533 AND ACCEPT

ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF

IMPROVEMENTS AT A LATER DATE

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for
CLSP Storm Drainage River Outfall Structure from

Saybrook CLSP, LLC, Rescinding Initial Rejection of
Roadways and Easements in Final Map for Tract 3533
and Accepting Roadways and Easements Upon

Acceptance of Improvements at a Later Date

SUMMARY:       

Saybrook CLSP, LLC ( Saybrook), the developer for the Central Lathrop Specific Plan
CLSP) has completed construction of the CLSP storm drainage river outfall structure

in accordance with approved improvement plans.   The river outfall structure

improvements have been inspected by City staff and have been deemed complete
and ready for acceptance. The cost to maintain these facilities will be covered through
user fees collected and CLSP CFD 2019- 2. StafF recommends that City Council accept
the river outfall structure from Saybrook CLSP, LLC.

Also, the City Council approved the Final Map for Tract 3533 in 2006 for portions of
CLSP. At the time the Final Map was processed, roadways and easements offered for
dedication to the City were rejected until improvements were completed in

accordance with Chapter 16, Title 16. 16 of the Lathrop Municipal Code of Ordinances.
So that the irrevocable offer of dedication of roadways and easements of the Final

Map for Tract 3533 remains in place, staff recommends City Council rescind the initial
rejection of roadways and easements in Final Map for Tract 3533 and accept the
roadways and easements offered for dedication upon acceptance of the

improvements at a later date.

BACKGROUND:

In 2006, construction of the CLSP sanitary sewer and storm drain pump station was
initiated by Richland Planned Communities for the CLSP Tract 3533 development
project, but not completed nor accepted by the City.   In 2013, Saybrook acquired

land within the CLSP area and completed improvements for the CLSP low flow sewer

and storm drain improvements that were accepted by the City Council on July 20,
2015.

115



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR CLSP STORM DRAINAGE RIVER

OUTFALL STRUCTURE FROM SAYBROOK CLSP,  LLC AND RESCIND INITIAL

RE7ECTION OF ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS IN FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3533

AND ACCEPT ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF

IMPROVEMENTS AT A LATER DATE

In May 2018, the City agreed to a design standard change which allowed the pump
station to be modified slightly so that the pump configuration could be altered to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.   The City accepted the CLSP sanitary sewer and
storm drain pump station on May 13, 2019.

The storm drainage river outfall structure recommended for acceptance is a

component of the CLSP sanitary sewer and storm drain pump station and will be used
to discharge storm water from the CLSP area to the San Joaquin River. A project
location map is included as Attachment  " B".   Saybrook has now completed

construction of the river outfall structure in accordance with the approved Storm

Drain Outfall Design plans dated December 6,  2017.    Staff has inspected and

confirmed that the storm drainage river outfall structure is constructed to City
specifications.  An offer of dedication is not required for the river outfall structure as

the land was conveyed to the City by the Final Map for Tract 3533 as Parcel 18.

On March 22, 2019, Saybrook and the City entered into an agreement titled, " Central

Lathrop Specific Plan  ( CLSP)  Storm Drain Permit Agreement Amending Permit
Agreement Recorded as Document  # 2010- 135787 San Joaquin County Records".
Tlie agreement was recorded as Document #  2019- 028797,  San Joaquin County
Records.   The agreement grants permission for Saybrook to construct and for the

City to maintain the storm drain outfall structure that crosses the Reclamation District
RD) 17 levee.  RD 17 provided their approval in writing that Saybrook has satisfied

all requirements of said agreement.

The approximate value of the improvements is $ 1, 029, 000 as shown in Attachment

C" for this project, GASB 34 Report for CLSP Storm Drainage River Outfall Structure.

Saybrook has provided a Maintenance and Warranty Bond No. 107015788 in the
amount of$ 217, 168. 14 to guarantee replacement and/ or repair ofthe improvements

as a result of defective materials, equipment or defective workmanship for a period
of one year from the date of acceptance.

Also, the City Council approved the Final Map for Tract 3533 in 2006 for portions of
CLSP. At the time the Final Map was processed, roadways and easements offered for
dedication to the City were rejected until improvements were completed in

accordance with Chapter 16, Title 16. 16 of the Lathrop Municipal Code of Ordinances.
So that the irrevocable offer of dedication of roadways and easements of the Final

Map for Tract 3533 remains in place, staff recommends City Council rescind the initial
rejection of roadways and easements in Final Map for Tract 3533 and accept the
roadways and easements offered for dedication upon acceptance of the

improvements at a later date.

116



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR CLSP STORM DRAINAGE RIVER

OUTFALL STRUCTURE FROM SAYBROOK CLSP,  LLC AND RESCIND INITIAL

RE7ECTION OF ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS IN FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3533
AND ACCEPT ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF

IMPROVEMENTS AT A LATER DATE

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The CLSP storm drainage river outfall structure improvements have been inspected

by City staff and have been deemed complete and ready for acceptance.   Staff has

received the record drawings,  which reflect how the project was built,  and lien

releases  ( Attachment D") for the improvements constructed by Saybrook.   Staff

recommends accepting the CLSP storm drainage river outfall structure improvements
from Saybrook.

So that the irrevocable offer of dedication of roadways and easements of the Final

Map for Tract 3533 remains in place, staff recommends City Council rescind the initial
rejection of roadways and easements in Final Map for Tract 3533 and accept the
roadways and easements offered for dedication upon acceptance of the

improvements at a later date.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City' s maintenance costs will increase due to the additional improvements that
will have to be maintained.  The cost to maintain these facilities will be paid through
user fees collected and CLSP CFD 2019- 2.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for CLSP Storm Drainage
River Outfall Structure from Saybrook CLSP,  LLC and Rescinding Initial
Rejection of Roadways and Easement in Final Map for Tract 3533 and
Accepting Roadways and Easements Upon Acceptance of Improvements at
a Later Date

B.       Location Map of CLSP Storm Drainage River Outfall Structure

C.       Project GASB 34 Report Reflecting Approximate Value of Improvements

D.       Unconditional Lien Release from Saybrook CLSP, LLC

117



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR CLSP STORM DRAINAGE RIVER

OUTFALL STRUCTURE FROM SAYBROOK CLSP,  LLC AND RESCIND INITIAL

RE) ECTION OF ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS IN FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3533

AND ACCEPT ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF

j IMPROVEMENTS AT A LATER DATE

APPROVALS:

ll 2 1

Br aylor Date

Associate Engineer

I- ZS —

Michael Kin Date

Director of Publie Works

c      2- 
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City ngineer

lllo2l'v/
Cari Date

Finance &     ministrative

Services Director

i1  7.[
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l!•?. 1 g
Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

118



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR CLSP STORM DRAINAGE RIVER OUTFALL

STRUCTURE FROM SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC AND RESCINDING STATEMENT IN FINAL
MAP FOR TRACT 3533 TO ACCEPT ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS UPON

ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS AT A LATER DATE

WHEREAS, in 2006, construction of the CLSP sanitary sewer an.d storm drain
pump station was initiated by Richland Planned Communities for the CLSP Tract 3533
development project, but not completed nor accepted by the City; and

WHEREAS, in 2013, Saybrook CLSP, LLC ( Saybrook) acquired land within the

CLSP area and completed improvements for the CLSP low flow sewer and storm drain

improvements that were accepted by the City Council on July 20, 2015; and

WHEREAS, in May 2018, the City agreed to a design standard change which
allowed fhe pump station to be modified slightly so that the pump configuration could
be altered to the satisfaction of the City Engineer; and

WHEREAS, the City accepted the CLSP sanitary sewer and storm drain pump
station on May 13, 2019.  The storm drainage river outfall structure recommended

for acceptance are components of the CLSP sanitary sewer and storm drain pump
station; and

WHEREAS, Saybrook has completed construction of the river outfall structure

in accordance with the approved Storm Drain Outfall Design plans dated December

6, 2017; and

WHEREAS,  on March 22,  2019,  Saybrook and the City entered into an
agreement titled, Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP) Storm Drain Permit Agreement
Amending Permit Agreement Recorded as Document  # 2010- 135787 San Joaquin

County Records.   The agreement was recorded as Document # 2019- 028797, San

Joaquin County Records and Saybrook has satisfied all requirements of the

agreement; and

WHEREAS,  the approximate value of the improvements is  $ 1, 029, 000 as

shown in the GASB 34 Report for the project; and

WHEREAS, Saybrook has provided a Maintenance and Warranty Bond No.
107015788 in the amount of $217, 168. 14 to guarantee replacement and/ or repair of

the improvements as a result of defective materials,  equipment or defective

workmanship for a period of one year from the date of acceptance; and

WHEREAS,  StafF has received the record drawings,  which reflect how the

project was built, and lien releases for the improvements constructed by Saybrook;
and

119



WHEREAS, an ofFer of dedication is not required for the river outfall structure

as the land was conveyed to the City by the Final Map for Tract 3533 as Parcel 18;
and

WHEREAS, staff recommends accepting the CLSP storm drainage river outfall
structure impr.ovements from Saybrook; and

WHEREAS, the Final Map for Tract 3533 within the CLSP was approved by City
Council in 2006 and rejected roadways and easements offered for dedication until

the improvements were completed; and

WHEREAS,  so that the irrevocable ofFer of dedication of roadways and

easements of the Final Map for Tract 3533 remains in place, stafF recommends City
Council rescind the previous rejection and accept the . roadways and easements

offered for dedication with the Final Map for Tract 3533 upon acceptance of the
improvements at a later date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that the completed CLSP storm drainage river outfall structure improvements
are hereby accepted from Saybrook CLSP, LLC; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the City Council of the
City of Lathrop rescinds the initial rejection of roadways and easements in Final Map
for Tract 3533 and accept the roadways and easements offered for dedication upon

acceptance of the improvements at a later date.

120



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9t'' day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPRQVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

121



Attachment B

t r

4 t     -      -      . re'

Y

A    
ayiE

a r

s `      
IT',Y C''_ 

r  .  

Ti7fi.    `     '

a      

nfa

T      _

x.;       ax

u'
A

i ,

i     "     

a -    "'   a     ' f n rri.   
3

C iC' ir,. i 
r`  '  ;...

y,« .        
o.:„ y y„;.,—  ;

i    ,.  

7 s M. i
1     ,'

t
4 aK t    "'"'""       a

1    

i
r.  f`  '   er,-n   '

a

r a

n

a

r

y

i i,           m 1,   

r ...

t......

Y                 

i.
w

a    

N       ,'
9

y

b

r    

4 

r  ,   6'° ,  

River Outfail Structure i
a ;   

f

k

a

s

X
e :.,..,      

L     _     .

1. l l -       j ,i Fyq+      ' 4 ¢. rs

y#j'

1     :..
1 P'#'. A  "` ^

k`. '
1:        . .. .   .   .    

r• C              .„    '.  S °'  `  , .     ;

I5[.],
4

m  - 2   -, i   .      

y.,       

1

4'          

x    

I•

4

f ' y       y.
e!

X *'";

A Ps7Y,  .... e     '';....,  ••          .  

Location Map of CLSP

Storm Drainage River Outfall Structure

122



Attachment C

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT) Date: 11/ 15/ 2019

Submitted by:   MacKav& Somps

Tract No.:       3533( Storm Drain Outfalll)

Item Unit Unit Cost Cost

Concrete Pad and Thrust Blocks CY 20 40. 00   $   800. 00

Storm Outfall Structure CY 75 1, 186. 67  $ 89, 000. 00

36" Buterfly Valve in Valve Box each 6 10, 833. 33  $ 65, 000. 00

8" Vent Pipe Galv Steel each 6 2, 500. 00  $ 15, 000. 00

36" Tideflex Check Valves each 6 9, 200. 00  $ 55, 200. 00

36" Sch 30 Steel Pipe plus Fittings LF 800 662. 50  $       530, 000. 00

Steel Pipe Manifold each 1 50, 000. 00  $ 50,000. 00

18"- 24" Rip Rap Material and InstallaticCY 650 184. 62  $       120, 000. 00

10" minus Rip Rap Material and Installa CY 50 1, 200. 00  $ 60, 000. 00

Armoreflex Matt L- 70 SF 900 32. 78  $ 29, 500. 00

Railing, Fence and Bollards LS 1 14, 500. 00  $ 14, 500. 00

GRAND TOTAL:      1, 029, OOO. UO

123



Attachment D

Citv of Lathrop

NOTICE OF WAIVER AND RELEA E

Saybrook CLSP, LLC provides the following Notice of Waiver and Release for construction of
the following improvement( s):

Tract 3533 Storm Drain Outfali Improvements

CLSP certifies:

1)  To the best of its knowledge, any and all persons entitled to record mechanics lien, stop
payment riotices or payment bond claims for labor, service, equipment, or material

provided to works of improvement identified above have been paid in full; and

2)  That it has not received any notice or claim from any persons entitled to record
mechanics lien, stop payment notices or payment bond claims for labor, service,
ec uipment, or material provided to the works of improvement identified above.

CLSP shall indemnity and hold the City of Lathrop, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers and employees harmless from mechanics liens, stop payment notices or
payment bond claims any persons are entitled to for labor, service, equipment, or material
provided to the works of improvement identified above.

SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC

By:     Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC

Its:     Managing Member

By:
Jef ey M. Wilson

65134. 00001\ 31937409. 1

124



i ITEM 4. 16       

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAPS AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( SIA) FOR 418 SIIVGLE-

FAMILY LOTS IN TRACTS 3808,  3809,  3810,  3811

AND 3812 WITHIN STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A

OF CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN, OFFERS OF

DEDICATION AND RELEASE OF DEFERRED

FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT  ( DFIA)  17-

01

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Maps for Tracts
3808, 3809,  3810, 3811 and 3812 within Stanford

Crossing Phase lA, Totaling 418 Single- Family Lots,
a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with

Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC,

Offers of Dedication and Release of Deferred

Frontage Improvement Agreement 17- 01

SUMMARY:

On September 18,  2017,  City Council approved a phased Large Lot Final Map to
subdivide a 94. 4- acre site within Central Lathrop Specific Plan  ( CLSP)  Stanford

Crossing Phase 1A into six large lots and Deferred Frontage Improvement Agreement
DFIA) 17- 01.

The proposed Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812 will be the first

tract maps within Stanford Crossing Phase 1A of the CLSP. A total of 418 single-
family lots will be established. Stanford Crossing Phase 1A is the triangular shaped
site bound by Golden Valley Parkway, Spartan Way, and Stanford Crossing ( Triangle
Area). A vicinity map is included as Attachment " B".

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Maps for Tracts
3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812 within Stanford Crossing Phase 1A, totaling 418
Single- Family Lots,  a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Saybrook CLSP,

LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC ( Saybrook), Offers of Dedication and release of

DFIA 17- 01.

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Commission approved Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) 3789 on December

18, 2013, and City Council affirmed the Planning Commission' s decision on January
13, 2014, allowing Saybrook to subdivide the 94. 4- acre Triangle Area site within the
Stanford Crossing Phase 1A, of the CLSP, into 430 single- family residential lots.

125



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAPS AND SIA FOR TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812 CLSP

STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A TOTALING 418 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS

On September 18,  2017,  City Council approved a phased Large Lot Final Map to
subdivide the Triangle Area site into six large lots and DFIA 17- 01 consistent with its

Conditions of Approval for VTM 3789.

The proposed Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812 will be the first

small lot tract maps within Stanford Crossing Phase 1A of the CLSP. A total of 418
single- family lots will be established. Tracts 3808, 3809,, 3810, 3811 and 3812 as

proposed by Saybrook, as the subdivider, complies with the moet current conditions
of approval.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain backbone and in-

tract infrastructure improvements. The SIA for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and

3812 required security ( bonds, cash or equivalent) to guarantee completion of all

unfinished infrastructure required for Stanford Crossing Phase 1A.  As a result,  a

performance bond  ( Bond IVo. 4433492) in the amount of $ 5, 146, 132 was posted,

along with a labor and materials bond  ( Bond No.  4433492)  in the amount of

2, 573, 066. The SIA for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812 reaffirms these

bonds as security for all unfinished improvements necessary for Stanford Crossing
Phase lA. The SIA is included as Attachment C".

Saybrook is also required to construct a water tank and neighborhood park as

required by the Development Agreement. Staff has agreed to allow Saybrook to delay
completion of the water tank and neighborhood park until eighteen ( 18) months after

the recordation of the first Residential Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as documented
in the SIA. Saybrook has posted performance bonds and labor and materials bonds

for the tank and neighborhood park as follows:

Bond No.  Performance Bond Labor and Materials

Bond

Water Tank 4433493 5, 416, 509 2, 708, 254

Neighborhood Park 4433491 1, 540, 514 770, 257

Since Saybrook has fulfilled its obligations by entering into a SIA with the City and
has guaranteed completion of all unfinished infrastructure required for Stanford

Crossing Phase 1A,  staff recommends Council release the Deferred Frontage

Improvement Agreement for Street Improvements on Golden Valley Parkway,
Spartan Way and Land Park Drive ( DFIA 17- 01) with Saybrook dated September 18,

2017 ( Attachment D").

In addition, Saybrook has prepared Irrevocable Offers of Dedication for the future

CLSP water tank and neighborhood park sites that are necessary for the Gity to
control and operate once the tank and neighborhood park are constructed and
accepted by the City ( Attachments E" and ' F").

126



CITY Me4NAGEl' S IZEPOatT PAGE 3

DECENI ER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULA92 MEETING

FINa4L MA PS AND SIA FOR TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812 CLSP

STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A TOTALING 41 SINGLE- FAMILY LOYS

REASON OR RECOMMENDATION:

Saybrook has nearly completed street and utility improvements within Stanford

Crossing Phase 1A with some minor improvements left remaining.  Saybrook has

posted security with the City for the unfinished improvements including a future water
tank and neighborhood park as required by the SIA.  Acceptance of all public

improvements will be processed by staff at a later date when the unfinished
improvements are complete. At that time, Saybrook will be required to post one ( 1)

year maintenance bonds as a warranty for the completed infrastructure.

Saybrook has provided the tract maps, the tract improvement plans,  all required

documents and all fees for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812, as required in

VTM 3789 Conditions of Approval including but not limited to:

Documents Status

1.      Final Maps ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping,
Miscellaneous Improvements, Water Tank &  Completed

Nei hborhood Park

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping, Miscellaneous Improvements, Water Completed

Tank & Nei hborhood Park

5.      Improvement Plans- Backbone, In- tract, Water Tank,   
Completed

Neighborhood Park

6.      Geotechnical Report Completed

7.      IOD for Recordation- Future Water Tank Approval Pending
with this item

8.      IOD for Recordation- Future Neighborhood Park
Approval Pending

with this item

9.     Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

10.   Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

11.   Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

12.   Escrow Instructions Completed

13.   Lathrop Community Facilities District ( CFD 2019- 02)     Completed

Fees Status

1.      Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.      Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.      Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

127



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAPS AND SIA FOR TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812 CLSP

STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A TOTALING 418 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS

4.      Fund Proportionate Share of Traffic Signals

GVP/ Spartan Way, GVP/ Stanford Crossing, paid
GVP/ Locomotive Street, Spartan Way/ Central Specific
Street

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3789 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Maps by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off- site improvements to serve Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812

have already been completed including a storm drain outfall structure, storm drain
basin,   construction of storm drain and sewer pump station,   participation in

construction of a Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and
related storage ponds and sprayfields,  purchase of SSJID surface water and

construction of utility infrastructure to serve the proposed Tracts.

As a requirement of the Conditions of Approval  ( COA) for VTM 3789,  Saybrook is

obligated to fund their proportionate share of the future traffics signals at the

intersections of Golden Valley Parkway ( GVP)/ Spartan Way, GVP/ Stanford Crossing,
GVP/ Locomotive Street and Spartan Way/ Central Specific Street. The traffic signal at
GVP/ Spartan Way has been designed and is scheduled to begin construction spring
2020.  The traffic signals at GVP/ Stanford Crossing,  GVP/ Locomotive Street and

Spartan Way/ Central Specific Street are not warranted at this time. Therefore, to

comply with the COA, Saybrook will pay their proportionate share for the signals to
be constructed at a later date.

Before the Final Maps are recorded,  Saybrook must also satisfy the Escrow

Instructions included as Attachment ` G".

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Maps for Tracts
3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812 within Stanford Crossing Phase lA, totaling 418
Single- Family Lots,  a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Saybrook CLSP,

LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC, release DFIA 17- 01 and authorize recording of
Irrevocable Offers of Dedication for the future water tank and neighborhood park.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance. Saybrook is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

128



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAPS AND SIA FOR TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812 CLSP

STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A TOTALING 418 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812
within Stanford Crossing Phase 1A of CLSP, totaling 418 Single- Family Lots, a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land
Acquisition, LLC, release DFIA 17- 01 and authorize recording of the Irrevocable
Offers of Dedication for the future water tank and neighborhood park

B.       Stanford Crossing Phase 1A Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and

Saybrook CLSP,  LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC,  for Tracts 3808,  3809,

3810, 3811 and 3812, Stanford Crossing Phase 1A

D.       DFIA 17- 01, between the City of Lathrop and Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC,

for Street Improvements of Golden Valley Parkway, Spartan Way and Land
Park Drive dated, September 18, 2017

E.       Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Future Water Tank, a portion of APN 191-

210- 00

F.       Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Future Neighborhood Park, APN 191- 210-

430

G.       Escrow Instructions for the Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and

3812

129



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 6

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAPS AND SIA FOR TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812 CLSP

STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A TOTALING 418 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS

APPROVALS

Z  - y
Ja a  ' dso Date

Principal Engineer

11- z5—

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

i -2/- 9
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

9
Car'       es Date

Finance& Ad inistrative Services Director

Z `/

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

2 ,•! l
Ste J. Salvatore Date

ity Manager

130



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAPS FOR TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812

WITHIN STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A OF CLSP, TOTALING 418 SINGLE-

FAMILY LOTS,    A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH

SAYBROOK CLSP,  LLC/ LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION,  LLC,  RELEASE DFIA

17- 01 AND AUTHORIZE RECORDING OF THE IRREVOCABLE OFFERS OF

DEDICATION FOR THE FUTURE WATER TANK AND NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2017, City Council approved a phased Large
Lot Final Map to subdivide a 94. 4- acre site within Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP)
Stanford Crossing Phase lA into six large lots and Deferred Frontage Improvement
Agreement ( DFIA) 17- 01; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and

3812 will be the first tract maps within Stanford Crossing Phase 1A of the CLSP. A
total of 418 single- family lots will be established; and

WHEREAS, Stanford Crossing Phase 1A is the triangular shaped site bound by
Golden Valley Parkway, Spartan Way, and Stanford Crossing; and

WHEREAS, Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC ( Saybrook) has
completed or has guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Maps

3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812, as identified on the approved improvement plans,

and has completed or guaranteed completion of all required documents and payment

of all fees; and

WHEREAS,  a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and
Saybrook CLSP,  LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC,  and provision of security by
Saybrook for unfinished and deferred improvements including the future water tank
and neighborhood park, are required prior to final map approval per the Lathrop
Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS,  a Subdivision Irnprovement Agreement has been signed by
Saybrook CLSP,  LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC and presented to the City for
approval and signature; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure Saybrook' s obligation to

maintain all improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

WHEREAS,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of VTM
3789 required for approval of Final Maps 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812 have

been met,  including those Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision
Improvement Agreement; and

131



WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Maps for Tracts
3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812 are substantially the same as they appeared on
VTM No.  3789, are technically correct, and complies with the requirements of the

Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS,  Saybrook will satisfy the escrow requirements to fund any
remaining fees prior to recordation of the Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810,

3811 and 3812, including proportionate share of traffic signals at the intersections of
Golden Valley Parkway ( GVP)/ Spartan Way, GVP/ Stanford Crossing, GVP/ Locomotive
Street and Spartan Way/ Central Specific Street; and

WHEREAS, Saybrook has fulfilled its obligations by entering into a SIA with
the City and has guaranteed completion of all unfinished infrastructure required for
Stanford Crossing Phase 1A,  and requests the Deferred Frontage Improvement

Agreement for Street Improvements on Golden Valley Parkway, Spartan Way and
Land Park Drive ( DFIA 17- 01) with Saybrook dated September 18, 2017, be released;

and

WHEREAS, an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for a future CLSP water tank

site is necessary for the City to control and operate once the tank is constructed and
accepted by the City; and

WHEREAS, an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for a future CLSP neighborhood

park site is necessary for the City to control and operate once the neighborhood park
is constructed and accepted by the City; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that makes and accepts the following actions:

1.       That the Final Maps for Tracts 3808,  3809,  3810,  3811 and 3812 within

Stanford Crossing Phase 1A of the Central Lathrop Specific Plan are hereby
approved as submitted as part of the public record as has been filed with the

City Clerk.

2.       That the City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute and file with
the City Clerk a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Saybrook CLSP,
LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC.

3.       That the City release DFIA 17- 01 since Saybrook has fulfilled its obligations by
entering into a SIA with the City and has guaranteed completion of all
unfinished infrastructure and the City Manager or his designee is authorized to
complete and record all documents necessary to effectuate this action.

4.       Authorize recordation of an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for a future CLSP

water tank site for the City to accept once the tank is constructed and accepted
by the City.

132



5.       Authorize recordation of an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for a future CLSP

neighborhood park site for the City to accept once the neighborhood park is
constructed and accepted by the City.

6.       That the Escrow Instructions for the Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810,

3811 and 3812 are hereby approved as submitted.

133



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this gtn
day of December 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:     

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

134



ATTACHMENT B

VICINITY MAP

STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A

Future

Mixed Use&

Comr ercial

Existing
Fufiure High Sthool      `

r

Community
Park

f--  kviwi—}  i

y. Lathrop a

r.;a'".;,----       Community     ;          
i

J    "
i

Cerrter       ,' . ,
T

m     • ,.  

TRACT 3812

1` i"`'"; t,;,    ,

r       Pa^ k

F

TRACT 3808  t r."'        y',

sJ  2.,

i

o

1

l.,   ' r"  ` J     - 4
x ;-"•     

t'','  

a       .: i/ "'     3,      t,„''',

r
a ;     r a Praposed

a f,`     `r ,.          
RetaillOffice

e

k  '„  <     
a i'    "" s r-.. `"

3'
a$..

TRACT 3809      a
TRACT 3810  

r   3, pf'     
k   .  r  '•,, f       , s '      

sti

w,,       

a   .q          r

C+    "")`; p," a_ 1 , `'.  ' ;` 9`. i  + Jw
4      

1 '    *.';    ^` ``    `":,         `'         '
y.      4

a.   .   „ E 4   ,   w?.; 3.,        ...
t`` y.  ,"'   

w._ id       ,/ '

c..    ,+      .'       
w.      r3    

OS"° 
5

A:," +     !/^+ r...    

i

t 4ry
r       '  

d

y,,    '`'. yg,>, 
4y„_

2y     , /
Variable De sity       ,`     f w f "      ' C r`C

Residential d,.  TRACT 3811  `^`. 

z w
g

r       
v 1'

v`.,

3"' a.  " z` 

i

x,

5   j PfO' 3l SE ".  

y- 

iy"     a

y' t   ` ' w', ;/      Hl t'1

Dens'rty l

ResidentiaE
o,,.»

135



ATfACHMENT C

CITY OF I.ATHItOP

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMEI IT

CLSP Stanford Crossing— Tracts 3 08, 3809, 3810, 3811, and 3812

Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
9th

day of December 2019, by and between
the CTTY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")

and Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition LLC (hereinafter " SUBDNIDER").

B.       On October 5, 2006, CITY approved the Final Map for Tract 3533 and on December 18,
2013, CITY approved Vesting Tentative Map for Tract 3789, both of which serve as the basis for
the Final Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812.

C.       CITY approved a request to commence at- risk construction of neighborhood improvements

for Tract 3789 by agreement titled Request to Commence At-Risk Construction of Neighborhood
Improvements for Tract 3789 Stanford Crossing ( hereinafter " At- Risk Agreement"), dated April

4, 2019.  Pursuant to aforementioned agreement, SUBDIVIDER agreed that all activities will

commence " at- risk" since the City Council has not yet approved the neighborhood small lot Final
Maps for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 and 3812.

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CTTY' s Subdivision Regulations ( City of Lathrop, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 16),
SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improvements to Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810,

3811 and 3812 in addition to completion of the water tank and boosters and neighborhood park
as detailed in Exhibit D ( hereinafter" Improvements"). However, SUBDIVIDER has completed

a significant portion, but not all, of public infrastructure Improvements associated with Tracts

3808, 3809, 3810, 3811, and 3812 under the At-Risk Improvement Agreement, which also

includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of improvements total

11, 002, 868 and both performance and labor and materials security are required by the Lathrop
Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act and will be posted as outlined in this
Subdivision Improvement Agreement. The security amounts, total Improvement costs and
unfinished Improvement costs are detailed in Exhibit D;

136



Subdivision Improvement Agreement (Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 2

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of CITY' s anticipated approval and acceptance of

the Improvements upon their satisfactory completion, and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811

and 3812, to the limits identified on Exhibit B including the public landscaping, streetlight, and
joint trench improvements. All Improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval

of the City Engineer, in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced
improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of CITY' s

Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop, and the California
Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements in each individual Tract, including all
deferred and unfinished Improvements, prior to December 1, 2020.

3. CTTY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements in each
individual Tract have free access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material

to be used therein. If the Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance
with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the
defective Improvements and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements.  CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDNIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements in each individual Tract

shall be constructed in compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any
defects in work or labor done and from any defects in materials fiirnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER
shall repair and maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY

specifications for one ( 1) year after CTTY' s acceptance of the Itnprovements.  As required by this
Agreement, prior to acceptance of the Improvements for any Tract, SUBDIVIDER shall deposit
with the City Engineer a Maintenance Bond in the amount equal to 10% of performance bond

Cost+ 10% Contingency) x 10°Io} for the Improvements for Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811, and
3812 to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the Improvements in accordance with

the terms of this Agreement.  The Maintenance Bond shall be released at the end of the one- year
guarantee period provided no claims against it are then outstanding.

137



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 3

As an alternative,  SUBDIVIDER can provide CTTY with Maintenance Bonds from the

contractor( s) if CITY is listed as a beneficiary to the bond.

7.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CTTY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.   Once action is taken by CTTY to complete, repair, replace,  and/ or reconstruct the
Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CTTY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CTTY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security ( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair

and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) is insufficient to pay such amounts.  All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499. 4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the Improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER.  In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit, and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

8.       Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to post
Performance and Labor & Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished Improvements associated

with Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811, and 3812 as included and described in Exhibit D of this

Agreement.  The amount of performance security shall be eqttal to the unfinished Improvement
cost plus a 10% contingency as shown in Exhibit D. The corresponding labor and materials bond
amount shall be 50% of the performance bond amount as shown in Exhibit D ( Performance

Security x 50°Io).  Further, SUBDNIDER shall also comply with CITY' s insurance requirements
set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

9. CTTY has agreed to delay completion of the water tank, booster pumps, and neighborhood
park as required by the Development Agreement dated December 6, 2016 until eighteen ( 18)

months after the recordation of the first Residential Small Lot Final Subdivision Map.
SUBDIVIDER is required to post Performance and Labor & Materials bonds to guarantee the

construction of the aforementioned Improvements as included and described in Exhibit D.  The

amount of performance security for the water tank, booster pumps, and neighborhood park shall
be equal to the Improvement cost plus a 10%  contingency as shown in Exhibit D.   The

corresponding labor and materials bond amount shall be 50% of the performance bond amount as

shown in Exhibit D ( Performance Security x 50°Io).

138



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 4

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof.  The above- referenced sureties

hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CTTY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement except in the case of negligence.

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors.  SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and

expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CTTY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non- performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the

negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters.  CTTY does not and

shall not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CTTY by
SUBDIVIDER.   The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDNIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site.  SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

139



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 5

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, a11 outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete.   CTTY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) to finance maintenance and Improvements.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

SUBDIVIDER may otherwise assign this Agreement only with the prior written consent of the
City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. City need not approve a request to transfer
this Agreement to an entity which lacks the financial and other resources to fulfill any then-
unperformed obligations under this Agreement.  No such transfer may accomplish the allocation
of sewer service to land not owned by the assignee or in violation of the Sewer Service Transfer
Policy defined within the Assignment and Amendment of Development Agreement, Doc No.
2017- 007992.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall,  at SUBDIVIDER' s expense,  obtain and maintain all necessary
permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements.  SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all
local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are expressly stated in this Agreement.

19.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the Improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811, and 3812.

20.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed

by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

140



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 6

e. Incoiporation of Documents.  All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.

In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to be performed

falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue.  In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of

such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

141



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 7

EXHIBITS:

EXHIBIT A:  FINAL MAPS - TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812

EXHIBIT B:   TRACT AREA MAP

EXHIBIT C:   CITY 1NSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  TABLE OF TOTAL COSTS, UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST,  AND

BOND VALUES FOR NEIGHBORHOOD PARK,  WATER TANK AND

BOOSTER PUMP, AND TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 AND 3812

142



Subdivision Improvement Agreement (Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this
9th

day

of December 2019, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO F RM BY THE CITY OF LATHROP CITY ATTORNEY

BY:      l 7'— f l '
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC
by Saybrook Fund Advisors, LLC

BY:

Jeffrey M. Wilson Date

Co- Portfolio Manager & Co- Managing Partner
SUBDIVIDER"

143



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 9

EIy IIBIT A

FINAL MAPS - TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 A101D 3812

144



OWNER' S STATEMENT:     
yCT NO. SOO CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT:

THE UNDERSICNEO, OES HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF ALL THE LAND SIIBOIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY I, ANNE- SOPHIE TRUONG, HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE E% AIAINED THIS FINAL MAP OF' fRACT N0.

DEUNEATED AND EMBRACED N7THIN THE OISTINCPVE BORDEft OF THE HEREM EA190DIED FINAL STANFOBO CNOSSING- PHASE 1A 3808, SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNN, STANFORD CROSSING- PHASE IA' AND 1HAT THE

MAP EN11ilED' fRACT N0. 3808 SUBOIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNT7, STANFORD CROSSING- 
A SU9 IVISION OF L0T 1 OF TPACT 3769 AS PECAPOE IN BOOK 92 OF SU6DMSION SHOWN HEREON COMPUES WITH ALL TNE PRONSIONS OF CHAPTER 2 OF TME

PHASE lA' LONSISTING OF SEVEN( 7) SHEETS, hiAT WE HAVE CAUSED SAID MAP TO BE NAPS ANO PLATS, AT PAGE 99, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTV NECOFOS BEING A CA IFORNIA SU901VISION MAP ACT, AS AMENDED, ANO THAT TMIS FINAL MAP IS TECHNICALLY

PREPAREO FOR RECORD AND CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND RECORDATION OF SAIO MAP,    POpTION OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 1 SOIfIFI, PANGE 6 EAST, NOUNT CORRECT.

THAT SAID MAP PAR7ILULARLY SETS FORTH AND OESCRIBES ALl THE 10T5 MTEN ED FOR SAIE DIABLO BASE A MEqIDIAN
9Y Nl1MBER INTH THEIft PRECISE IENGTH AND W1DTH.    CITY OF LATHfiOP ATED THIS DAY OF 2019,      ,

SAN JOA IIIN COUNTY CALIFOHNIA HIE

rs
THE REAL PROPERTY OESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF IATHROP IN FEE FOR

pA
5=;

5

qo 0
UWDSCAPING AND PUBUC UTILITY PURPOSES:  ACM SO PS ANNE- SOPHIE TRUONG, lS N0. 8998 xe. esse n

1. THE REAL PROPERTY DESIGNATED ON SAID MAP AS PARCEL A". si rviwv. ui yzsjns- o o
ACTING CITY SURVEYOR

THE REAL PROPER7Y OESCRIBED BEIOW IS DEDICATED TO THE QTY OF LATHROP AS

p

1PRIL 20919

r o` CA"` oP
EnseMeNrs Foe Pueuc auRaosEs:

CITY ENGWEER STATEMENT:

1. THE REAL PROPERTY DESIGNATED ON SAID MAP AS' ALBANY STREET, 6ACARRA

145



REFERENCES:

R- I) TRACT N0. J53} qp5& PIATS 9K. 40, PG. 100. S. J. C. R.

I
CERTIFICATE OF EDICATION: R- 2) TRACT N0. 1789 F1AP5 k PIATS BK. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.

I
7HE Cltt OF lAiHftOP SNALL RECONVEY PARCEL A 70 THE BELOW- NAAIED OWNER, OR BASIS OF BEARINGS:

511CCESSOR IN INTERESI, IF 7HE Cltt DEfERMWES PURSIIANf TO GOYERNIAENT CODE SECTION THE BEARINC NOR1H 64' S6' 1P' FlST BER4EEN 1HE FOUND

I
66477. 5 TI1AT THE SAME PUBLIC PURPOSE FOR WHICH THE PPOPERTY WAS DEDICATED DOES MONUMENTS ON SPARTAN WAY( FORMERIY IATHROP ROM) AS

LOT 20     / NOT IXIST, OR THE PROPEftIY OR ANY POftIION THEftEOF IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC UIIUIIES.     SHOWN ON TRACT 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF ANPS AND PIAiS, Ai

TA'ACT 3533 PACE 100, SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt RECORDS, WAS USEO AS iHE

I 40 M P 100    
h1AMEC4 UN/F/ED SCHOOL D/ STRILT     OWNFR:    IAiHROV IAN ACOUISITION, LLC fl4515 OF BFARINCS SHOWN HEREON.

DOCUMEA7 NUMBER 2006- i75798
501 SANTA MONICA BLVD SURE 607 NOTES

LOT 29 SANiA lADNICA, CA 90401 I, ALl OIS ANCES SHOWN ARE GROUNO LEYEL DISfANLES.

TRAGT 3533 2. TI7ACT} 808, STANFOR CROSSINC PWSE 1A CONTAINS 91

40 M&P 100 RESI ENTINL 1015, AND 1 LEfTEftED PARCEL, COMNNING 22. 86

ACRES, MORE OR LE55, INCLUDINC 7HE ROAOWAYS THAT PRE BEING

EOICATE BY TMS flNAL MAP, AlL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFASE REFER
N5654' 14' E( R       

Nfi4' Sfi' 12' E764. 79' M- M R= 35oo. ao' d= 6• 75Y8' L= 382, 10• M-      
TO THE AREA SUTAMARY iABLE BELOW)

BASISOFBEARINGS   _— —'—_
N45' 03'48' WIR -_—_—'—_—'—' 

M ---'

ae.oa SPARTAN } y 3500. 00' _
B,_  

TRACT3B08PRFASUMMAftY

N55' 49' IO" E R]    PAPCEL A N64° Sfi' 12° E70074' BNDY   ———————————

AY e_

IB. OP FORMERLY LqTHR
d g 33, 3Z=

559'
00•'

7158. 6        
91 RESIDEMIAL IOTS PNO STREET 22. 84} AC

rt= 3aza. 00 n= a° ae so•  
r'—  

OP ROAD)    Z283_ 3 M- M DEOICATIONS

I
L= 885. 28' gNpY_ 

19

1B
77 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 9 } i 8         N10' 74' S8' w(R}—_.,

i    PAkCEL A 0. 023 AC

1
g

ae. 00•'

TOTAL 22. 863 AC3.'      S
a ze.00,

1
Z

ALHANY STREET S` I

z             \\

O p

O' 21 F
p

a

31 3P 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 qp v LEGENO
C? Y OF L4THROP

1  1  29
30

Cs~,    
52

53 F. = DOCUM£ NT NUMH£ R
DISPNCTIVE BOR EP

1  10 o1
e

22

4
54

55

56      o LOT U E/ PARCEL UNE
2013- 038102

1  
n

J
E,      EXISIING PROPERtt LINE

4 3 44 45 46 47 48 49 5p 51    , a fi EnSEIAENT LINE

1  .
s 1°`- - i`  

2 3
q    

4 z a
61 NONUTAENT LINE

O y
r

C-.  
60

5g R=3034. 00'   i RELINpUISHMEN OF A9URER' S RICHfS

o-   MO° 23' S4°E,  w 58
FOUND 2 I/ 2' 9RA55 06K IN CONCREIE

v  BACARRA STREET
57         = 2i. o s B N O V1 C+ fAm a 2 4       U

o
IAONUMENT 80% I1NL E55 OiH ERWIS E NO i E D

1  '
1  

y R= 20. OU'  V 2
N09' S1' 04' W( R R= 3034'  SEf 2 1/ 2' BRt55 DISK STAIAPED LS 8817' IN

N N7T54' 10"W( R 4v73° 24' 33•  p     /
IJ65' 38' 12" E( R) ft= 618' MONl1MENT BO% PER CI1Y OF IATHROP STANDAROS

3 i Z   25 N L= 25. 62' BNDY V R= 618. 00' M O N( 1 M E N T O f R E C O R O T O B E S E f P ER TRA CT 3789

63
64 65 66 fi7 6B 69    p      A= 3° 44' S7•     

M'GLE POINT

Q        sZ B1 40. 44' BNDY
BNDY BOUNOARY

v
82 Q CENTFRUNE

26 s`,     
w],

i 83
84

Ex ExISTING

F \ 
N81° 53' 15' E( R)   \`     _ P     MONIIMENi TO PROPERiYrLWE

75 76 77 7B    g
B      

N74° 42'38" E298.       
161. 0' BNDY

P7 2 73
74 PUE PUBIIC UTNtt EASEIAENi

49' BND Y
R= 679. Oa' 

M& P M A P S A N D P l AT S
0° 22' S2°       

WE WALL EASEIAENT

LOT 7 \         Z L= 4. 51' 9NDY R)      R40U L BEARWC

7RACT 3533 N45° 2fi' 09° E
ZB

45°38' 42° E 3403' BND MADRONE STREET
m R= 2995. 00'  

LOT 6
PULLBnCR 06TANCE

40 M P 100 \ 0. 00' BN\ Y N39' 49' OBl4( R) R= 1500' F,       y b 1° 45' 44'      
TRf CT 3789              

RECORD DISiANCE

J N4621' IJ E( R
N45' 34' SfiE( R) R= 4465'       

w
2 ry

L= 92. 11' BN Y      
R_ Z 

S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAQUIN COI1NiY RECOR S

5. 64' BN Y
L` 43y

0 ,   gg
B      88 89 gp

91 708. 072' BNOY    \\     
i 3    INDICATES SHEET NU ABER

5
BN     85 R= 471. 0'  

19. da 6` 49' 46'   

N45' 3e' S7' E( R)•    \    R= 4Z85. 00'   
8234'    N56°36' 07" E23Z'

69gNDY .       N66° 01' 32• E278. 13' BNDY L= 56.

4' 
BNDY

Y   -   y      1° 42' 29'    
N4852' 2fi' ER

N6fi° 43' 12' E

N79° 74' 34° E `__ 21' 4$ f(R1
L= 127. 75' BNOY 59. 03' BNDY

5978' BNDY

TRACT NO. 3 808
v SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA l1IN COl1N7V

p ry STANFOPD CPOSSING- PHASE tA

A SUBUIVISION OF LOT i, OF 7flACT 3789 AS pEfAfi0E0 IN 900K 42 OF

LOT ) 4       \  \ n   \     67AP5 PNU PLATS AT PAGE 89 SAN JMDUIN COUNTY NECOfl S BEING A

TRACT 3533      \   
OT 2

POHTION OF SECTIDN 27 TPM: SNIP 1 SOUTH FlANGE 6 FAST YWIR
0 50 100 200 OIABLO BASE 6 NEPIUTAN

40 MhP 100 0   TR4L7 3799
1;   \   

fR- 21 SCALE: 1= 100' 
CITY OF L4IMPOP

SAN JOAQUIN CWNTY CALIFOflNIA

RIACKAY 8c SORIPS
w     

s„ E, o

G9- i1- 20 9 i: 5tlum Jell ll.      P:\ 3521]\ SPV\ wVP1114\ M\ FWSC IA\ Ifl] d0o fY- 0}. GM1L HE 2 F 7

op.

APRIL 20 19 2$ 213- 00

146



q---_        REFERENCES:

R- I iRACi N0. 1533 A7APS k PIATS BH. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- P iRACT N0. 3799 IAPPS& PWTS BH. 4Y, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

I N 4' ss f2•'-,---_ BASIS OF BEARINGS:
E764. 79 M M11       

i
THE BEARING NOftIH 64' S6 12 EAST BERYEEN THE FOUND

NONUTAEMS ON SPARTAN WAY( FORIAERLY WTHROP ROAD) AS

SHOWN ON TRACi 3533, IN 800K 40 OF MAPS AN PlAiS, AT

i
PAGE 100, SAN JOAOUIN COIINIY RECORDS, WAS USEO AS THE

BASIS OF 9fARINCS SHOWN HEREON.

N55' 49' p• E( R   

Pnace a SPARTAN 1yAY o NorEs:

I
92335F LOT- - -_     FORMERLY LqT

AlL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE GROl1ND LE EI ISTANCES.

j '-- iae. ar--___       
n= z° aa ar 29 HROP ROAD 2. TFACT 3809, STANFORD CROSSING PWSE 1A LONTAINS 91
L= 38. 81' r CT 3533 RESIOEMIPL LOTS, ANO 1 lEfiEREO PARCEI, CONTAINING 22. 86

I 3
N69' S0' S3W( R) 48.73' fi5.69' 40 ACRES, MORE OR LE55, WCLU ING THE ROADWAY$ THAT Af1E BEING

1 n gQ, gp•-___
M P I00 OEOICATEO BY THIS FlNAL MAP, PLL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFASE REFER

I
d= 60' 12' SB'      29. 00•   \    5T59' E( R 7l.06'       '-     N.  TO THE PRFA SUAIMARY TABLE BELOW)

L= 30. 4B'      9' 0     e=a• o3' ts'       
a. e-- 56' 72•E700. 74' BNDYo 0 72. HT--_

n

4
cgn7.70.    

I
L= 23. B2'

72. fi1"-'_'_ TRACT 3B08 AREA$ UMIAARY

I 9

v

T  ` N%' S6' 09' E( R) 29A0'      86`-- -       
91 RESIOEMW. lOTS ANO STREET 2Y. 84f AC

i-'   10412t SF
A

66. g4"--

i
I DEOICATIONS

i IA
II 18

m

17             

n

PAflCEL A 0. 02f AC

I
o

I
135302 SF           

91342 SF
NSdRT10' E( R) 105. 00'   

IJ
lo 857925F          15           

voO1i
TOTAL 22. B6f AC

i
rv

813725F 14
I 77L915F          13      

2 Ie    I
ow' sF        12

LEGEND

I
20 a= zo. 00    0he      .       z

rFn      7439t5F o u r

1 p= 87' 19' 10'   i e
DISTINCTh' E BORDER0

4

J I.'a      `    
L= 30. OB'     2 RIGHi OF WAY LWE

e n

I
w      i.    

A' 1' 16' 24'------ 6= 1' 12' 31'--   --' A= 1' 72' 31'--      d- 1' 1291'---   I
m

L= 7378'  L= 70. 01'  L= 70. 01'     ---   07' 02''-       LOT 11NE/ PARCEL LINE
7 i L= 70. 07' 

84 72,     --
d= 7• D7' Oy__      E% 1511NC PROPERtt UNE

Q i I;
i

R= 3379. 00' d= 73' 35' S2' L= 787, 89'       84•    FASEMENi LINE

N53' 3T45' E( R) 105. W'    A= 0' 48' 52' , y7q321' W( R) 7L.50'      MONUMENT 11NEIn    I
R= 329fi5' G= 15• 33' 4p•    L= 46. 88)      B95. 36' M• M4--------------------------____ _       RELINOUISHMEMOFA9UiTFR' SRICHTS

Im
6 p= U' S4' S6'  7

FOUNO 2 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCREfE

21
29. 00'   . L= 52. 68')

ALBANY STREETA     _   o

h33' 2T77' W( R) 35. 50'       
rOO MONIIMENT 80% UNlE55 OIHERWISE NOiEO

6908t SF
1

z     ,  a I

Ntp
SET 2 1/ 2' BRASS ISK STAIAPED° 4S 8817' W

IN       
e i R= 3261. 00' a= 13• q6' 49' L= 7B4. 31'     MONUMEM 80% PER CIIY 0( W7HROP SiANDARDSro

i

r Z
J I 

e= 1' o' 26'       e= 7Yo' 2B•    _  6= 1• 10' 2B•    _  d= 7' 7o' 28'
d= 7Yo' 48•       

MONUMENi OF RECORO TO BE SET PER TRACT 3789

IQ      m

u    /   '
L= 57. 32'----- L= fi6. B5'--   -- L= 66. 85'--   -' L= 66. 85'--  --'

L= 6fi. B5'--     ' 28'  _  -_--    GLEPOIM

N52' 4d1B'
ElR1t05. 0'   

I
I      

R= LO. OU'      

f
o

L= fi6. 84•- 

w

BNDY BOl1NDPRY

O n r     d= 94• 06' 02' e m CL CEMERLINE

Io O F1 I N1    ' 
L= 32. 85'          o o g N y- M MO UIIAEM TO MONUMEM

o W

e'. 22 pg 30           31      M- PL MONUMEM TO PROPER7Y LINE

1I¢   V 7444t5F Q I
z

J677t5F         7008SSF        70U3t5F        691425F        689 t5F         34      '  PUE PUBl1C UTN7Y FlSEMEM

o
I,

J          -      

o s",     m 692B4SF         35 MkP MAPS AND PlATS

S WE WPll EASEMENT

tl       Y

J

I^.     ''
1 i

R)      RADWL BEARING

V PULLBACK OISTANCE

I A
N51' 44' S1'

E1R1705. WI I       
N51' 20' 12" EIR)

RECORD ISTANCE

i

e

N50' 41' 26' E6B. 77 NSB' 41' 2fi' EB4. fi6'    NSB' 41' 2fi' Efi4.67'     N50° 472CE64.72'   S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt RECORDSn
85. 43'    fiB. 90'   fi8.92 39.53'     

N6Y4 6' E

I     
y        o'    1I            29.4q' 93' N62' dT16' E66.fi5
6 23 fie. g3'  3 i INOICATES SHEET NIINBER

I              
7W1t5F

Q~   
N 1

0N1
J

a '

lo   
m

41 42

m

rv

11 N50'
4529' E R O5. 00'

N le
m   

BO40t5F         6871t5F        fi905SSF        
7012x5F          

45

0

I
11 w i m 6970SSF        

6976iSF         47 0 20 40 80

R= 20. 00'   

d= 83° ZO' 44'       
o i n SCALE: 1'= 40'

1I 24 U L= 28. 09'

726825F
29. OU       -= 1' D7' 24''-   -= 1' 15' 05''-     - d= 1' 15' OS'---   - d= 1' 15' OS'-__

1= 54. 53' L= 66. 88' L= 6fi. 88' L= e6. 6B'       --
7505------

d=

IJ
1I L= fi6. 68•  1' 15' OS•______   

I
R= 3053. 00' d= 13• y8' 45'= 778. 46'

fifi. 68'  

Tl l 1CT NO• V 0 V

33' 10' 03YJ R) Y9. 00'
10'

PUE

e= o• 49Y7' i
I N49' S7' 21 E R OS. ar      

2g0p    -
43. 3fi'_______       ___ R= 3024. OD' d_ 75' 10' S2' _ 801. 23' M- M_ _   

o SUBOIVISTONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY

1
STANPoIiO CFOSSING- PHASE 1A

i
N33' S9' 2115JR R= 3024' 

ry

BACARRA STREE7'      A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 1 OF TIIACT 3789 AS pECOPOED IN BOOK 42 OF
y N49' 35' 39' E( R) R= 4J14'   Do A1qPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAQUIN COIINTY PECOBOS BEIN A

N o

fO

e p1 POHTION OF SECTION 27 TORNSHIP 1 SWTN RANGE 6 EAST 40UNT

o,m

i

25 b n

I
N, 0 690825F a  o • m      

N

DIA9L0 6ASE 8 NEflIOIAN

e 1   "'- a'Ao1
CITVOFLATHROP

I
3No

t i

s'.

SqN` J'OA UIN fAUlf Y, CALIFOPNIA

B SqSp' E1R1105. 00'   
29. ott 11 sz 63 64 65 66

6   1

G

ySORIPS
N4' 26 1

SEE SHEET 6 0C'

oe- zs- sois m uomo aie a: zssia\ sav unaamc vu vnrse iapa 5eoe ru- m. owc SHEET 3 OF 7 NPRIL

20193
4521}- 01

147



REFER NC S:

OOL
DISYRIG7 R- I) TRaCT N0. 3533 MPPS h PIAiS BK. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

Mp.MEGA UN F ED 5CH
17579a

R- 2) TRACT N0.} 7g9 AIAPS& PIAiS BK. 4I, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

oocUMENr

NUMBER
2ooe-  ---______ - --- -----    ensis oF a, Rwcs:

THE BEARINC NORTH 64' Sfi' 1Y' FASI BERVEEN THE FOUNO

MONIIMENTS ON SPARTAN WAY( FORMFRLY IATHAOP ROPD) 0.5

SHOWN ON TRACT 3533, IN 800K 40 OF MAPS AND PIAiS, AT

R= 3500. 00'   V" PACE 100, SAN JOAOIIIN COUNtt RECOR S, W0.5 USED AS THE

Z= 7500. 00' A= 6' 75' 18' 1= 382. 10' M M
d= 18' 59' 00'      IS OF 9EARINCS SHOWN HEftEON.

3i L= 1159. fi3' M- M

NOTES:

N64• 5b'
7TEib4'

9 MM-

0- 

SPARTAN fAY ( FORMERLY LATHROP ROAD)       

I   p pISTPNCES SHOWN ARE GROUND IEVEL OISTANCES.

i Ig 2. TRACT 3808, STANFORD CROSSING PHASE IA CONfAINS 91

N' Q
RE510ENTIAL LOTS, AND I LERERED PARCEL COMNNINC 22. 8fi

i N HEREI (   E ftEFER

mi

29
I TO THE AREA SIIMMARY TABLE BEL

ACRES, A70RE OR LESS, INCLU ING THE ROMWAYS HA AR 9 ING

DEDICA7ED BY THIS FINAL MAP, P1L SHOW N. PLFAS

LOT
ow

7RA 7
3533

n- r a sr--, e= a• avir e= o• arir r

40 M P 100 R= 3424. 00' A= 74° 48' S0' L= 885. 28' B

07, 02'--_-  =
74. 21'     =<

7. 00'   L= 47. o0• 
TRACT 1808 AREA SUMAfARv

1$ e=
roroz--     _

es. iT I
A= 1' 7 02

L- 6fi. 77'    91 RESI ENTIAL LOiS AND STREEf E2. 842 AC

j('jy° 56 i2
E700. T4 BNDY___

p_. 52' 3t'-     _
fifi. T7' o+. i E I4 OE ICATIONS

6fi. 70`- L= 52. 30'       y 

nl

14. 4fi' 

o
a

I'
Qr'. 

6
PPRCEL A 0. 02! AC

q            
A      

r 7515z5F     

Z1     ' 
TOTAL 22. B6f AC

fi9032 SF
y,

n,       10         6902t SF

R=20.00'   I m l   3 WE

o p      6903i SF N m

72         
esozcsF        g n= ee° si oi

3       
LEGEND

i L= 31. 01'
13       692925F     _ 

47. 00' 

zlz

47. 00' DISiINCTNE BORDER

N Z p= 0' S2' d3'_-_       

z

z _

p= 7• 0T' 02'------
T      

L= 50. 89' 

I
RIGHT OF WAY LINE

p=• Ol' 02'-- -       L= fi4. 72'  LOT LINE/ PARCEI LME

p= 7' O7' 02'--     
L= 8Q. 72'

L= fi4. 72' R= 329fi. 50'

87. 69'    N79' S778W( R) 7250'    (
d= 7' 09' S9' p= 8' 02' 41' 

E% ISTING PROPERtt IINE

p= 1' O7' 02''--    Lc84. 72'
p_ 7y' 35' 52' L= 7

L= 6fi. 75')_ L= 4fi2. 8fi' M- M   CASEMEM lME

r_-     _
fi4. 72'       R'

379. 00'     y_
r__-      ----       LIONUTAEMUNE

d- Q 51' 59'STREET      ____      i REUNOIIISHNEM OF ABUTiER' S RICHiS
pLBANY as. ea•)      

R_     
p= 15' 33' 44` L-

B95. 36' M- M
N19° 40RBW( RJ35. 50' 

FOUND 2 I/ 2' BRASS OISK IN CONCREfE

jpg6.50'   I w 610NI1lAEM BO% I1NLE55 OiHERWISE NDiEO

N po SEI 2 I/ 2' BRASS ISK STAMPED' LS 8817' IN

46' 49' L= 7B4. 31'   e= 1° 7o' 28'       -
0 43     

I
IAONUMEM BOx PER CRY OF IAiHROP SfANDAR05

y_
3p61, 00'=

13'      E= 7' 1U ZB       -_
fi6. B4'--  --

L= 58. 55'--- i y
MONUAIEM OF RECORO TO BE SEr PER TRACi 5789

28
L= 86. B4'--      ANCLE POINT

p= 1' 70' YB'     _- L_ fi6. e6"--  R40. 0'     29. 00'   29. 00' 
BNDY BOUNDARY

p_ i' 70' 26'       __ 68. 84'"--   6= 90° 51' S9' I I
L. fi6. B4"_       

N

m o a L= 31. 72' 

i i E%       E%ENiENC
NE

40     I
52 F ONUMEM TO uONU AEM

m

38         694125F         
BOOI2SF   u

I
M- PL lAONUMENT TO PROPERIY 11NE

sB9az5F

i
PUE PUBLIC UflLltt EASEMEM

e 36         6752t5F     i    j IA& P AUPS AN PL1TS
6744! SF

g 35        
m

WE WALL FASEMENT

34      fieB425F   _     
s I

F R)      RAOIAL BEARINC
a

e I           PI1lLBACK OISTPNCE

Nfi8° d9' STE75. 41'    
U

RECORO ISTANCE
N

i N68' 4552' EG4. 71'   N68' 49' STE84. b9'       
BS. YS I

QT'
fiE

qp
N6B' 49' 52' E6M1. 80'  

BB,      
S. J, C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COVNfY RECOR S

68. 9T
V

Iry      

N62'   46.4T 0. 
I    3, i

NgZ• 4T E 71

69. p0' m           
INOICATES SHEEf NUMBER

az. su N I'   z m I
ry

d o 0    
1         , Zj I           61

49g 8504! SF

o 48 T     
7029tSF        

644925F   

i I I
4   7186SSF   $     e  ? p R20.00' 

I
46      

706fixSF   $     

o
A= 89° 05' 11'    

y9. 00' 

I
29. 00'   

I
0 20 40 80

ry i
L= 31. 10'     

I
SCALE: 1'= 40'

v

yz
L-= t' 15' OS'__   -

d= 1' 09' 3fi''_-/  

Z
A- 1' 75' OS'--      _

68. 68 1= 67. 87'      

Ip"•
15' OS'--      

L_ B6. 68'       i

p= 1' 15' OS'--      Lvfi6. fiB'     

13' 26' 45' L= 71fi. 4fi'       N18' 43' 1B' W(R) 29.00'

L=
66fiB'  

µ 05700' E'     d= 0'S4'
49'  p

p BACARRA STREET e_ ss'_ 1  TRACT NO. 3 O O
O R=3024.

00' R=3024. 00' A=75' 10' 52' L=807. 23' M- M e= e•z2 5o•     SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOIIIN
COUNTY L=442. 31' M- M STANFOflD CPOSSING- PHASE

lAA 51160IVISION OF LOT 1,OF TflACT 3709 AS flECOflDED IN BOOK 42

OF r-    
o NAPS ANU PLATS AT PAGE 89 SAN JOAOUIN fAUNTY flEfAP05 BE7NG

A POHTION OF SECTION 27 TOYMSHIP 1 SOUTH PANGE 6 EAST

L10UNTod i'+ I
I UTABLD 9PSE 6

NENIOIAN CITY OF

LATHPaP
69 70 71                 I 8       S/ N JOAOIIIN COUNTY

CPLIFORNIA 6--       se IIIACKAY 8c
SOmPS SEE SHEEf

6 u    s,sirn- a

a ae- re- znis e       ii w P:\ 25+ 11\ SF/VMRI: C\ FY\ PI( 45E 1A\ IN) d05 N-6i0I L SHEET 4 OF 7      APRIL 2019 25213-

148



o- R= 3soo. 00'  -     
REFERENCES:

A= 6' 75YB'
R= 3500. 00' d= 79• 59' 00• L= j 59.fi3' M- M  --__ R_) T CT N0. 7533 lAPPS k PfATS BK. 40, PG. 100, S.J.C. R.

L= 3B2. 10' M- M

I
1RACT N0. 3789 MAPS& PlATS BK. 44, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

I       SPARTAN WAY   ( FORMERLY
THE BEARING NORTH 64' S6' 12' FlST BETWEEN 1HE FOUND

M NUNENiS ON SPARTAN WAY( FORIAERLY IAiHROP ROAD) f5

LATHROP ROAD)      SHOWN ON TRACT 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF MAPS AND PIATS, AT

LOT 29 PAGE 100, SPN J AOIIIN COUNtt RECOROS, W/ 5 USED 0.5 THE

I~    TRACT 3533
BASIS OF BEPRINGS SHOWN HEREON,

40 MkP 100
R= 3424. 00'     NOTES:

A= 0' 47' 17'       A= 7' 19Y2--- --- a= pi4' 35'---  -_      '
4° 48' S0' L= 8B5. 28 B 1. ALL OISiANCES SHOWN ARE GROUND LEVEL 01SiANCES.

L= 47. 00' i r   = e. ee  e= rorza•---  -  NDY
I

4' ZB  
1= 67. 06' 

d' Z' 37'-- __ 2. TRACT JB08, S ANFORD CROSSING PFUSE 1A CONiAINS 91

I m n Z. 22' 4`' B' ZS•-- __  ftE51DENilAL LOTS, AND 1 LEfTERED PARCEI, COMAININC 22. 86

m I o
8. 0'  d»• 3q. 18,___      

ACRES, MORE OR LE55, INCLUOING THE ROPDWAYS TNAT ARE BEING

I y      oi       o y o
L° 83. 9y J'   _ DEDICATED BY TNIS FINAL MAP, ALL SHDWN HEFEIN.( PLfASE REFER

e I     mii      
6             

o

N g ry
I    TO 7HE AREA SUMMARY TABLE BELOW)

uN+.     
m     7998SSF          76BOZSF          

4       ^     
3       ^       

e      I      
TRACi 3808 ARFA SUMMPR'!

i I'    WE

i

I p N
6933lSF        

7q67SSF            i

Ev R 0. 00'   8074SSF       91 RESIDENTL4L LOTS PND STREET 22. 842 AC

z i
r

A= BB° 51' 01' d o N   I E ICAilONS
m

N
i 99B2k5F

L= 31. 01'      
z

i o   ;,     I

i R=90.00'  •
d=' S7' P4'-'--_ p' tY4' 35'--_    C= 12° 52' 45'  i      W PARCELA 0. 02tAC

L= 55. 42'     7' 20'_'
L= 72. 01'    d= 7' 12' 37•__  L= 20. 23'       

TOTAL 2P. 86i ACL= 65A'       
d= P18'R= 3296. 50'    I R= 9319, 00' A= 5• 50' 14'

01'      ZS•___  ___   
R`

s
I

G= 15' 33' 46'
7° OB' 59'  Mi7' 39' 30' W( F) 72. 50' L= 338. 14' L= 75. 70'      do

ALBANY STREET B.? o,  3'
L= 895_ 36_ M- M I

L= 66. 15') r__'_'____-_'-_----
7 ZA= O' S7' S9' 

i
O Oe •  1 LEGEND

R= 329fi. 50' d= 8° 0P' 41• L= qfi2. Bfi' M- R1

N11' 4716W( R) T2. 50'-- i S3, B.       

pISPNCiIVE 60R ERL= 49. 84')    d= 1' 03' 2B•       \
N77' S6' 30W( R) 35btl 1 L= 80. 86')

I i.- o       

RIGHT OF WAY IINE

52' 37;   LOT UNE/ PPRCEL LINE
R= 3261. 00' d= 6' 78' 1P• L=       50. 35')    EXISTINC PROPERIY LWE

I
d= 1' 07' 30'    _  6= 7' 17Y2' 

358. 7fi=      N71° 38YB' W( Rj 35. 50'       

L= fi4. 04''-    3' 12'      EASEMENi LINE
L= 69. 43'--  -'- L= fi9. 43'---     ` 23' 44'     i      .... I I  MONUMQJi LINE

R= 20A0'   
L= 79. 43''-.-__ 4 2 34•   v i

I 6= 90' S1' S9'    e
L= 78. 4y-_,       

RELINOUISNMENT OF ABUTTER' S RIGHTS

N I L= 31. 72'      o S'  R= 20. 06 I z

FOUND 2 1/ 2 6ftA55 ISK IN CONCREfE

F al A= 91• 23' 21'  I    -
i

MONUMEM BO% UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOTED

E 52 L= 91. 90'    N
po SET 2 I/ 2' BRASS DISK STAldPED' LS 8817' IN

40
E I          B362tSF         

7095s5F               ^       55 P I     p MONUMENf BO% PER Cltt OF IATHROP STAN AR S

i    N i
m i

7083tSF         
798025F    

I
o m 40NUMENf OF RECORD TO BE SET PER TW1CT 7799

I U ,_ I 56 ANGLE POMi

I w      o    
6,      913025F       o          o BNDY BOUNDARY

I U I      I
F      '       CL CENTERIINE

d= 1° 34' 24•    = hW7    r C E%      E% IS71NG
a '-" I M4' 1503' EB. B4'    

e18 fi4 
IA- M AIONUMEM TO MONUAIEMM          N74' 7507' Efi7. 23'     M4' 15' 03' E8723'  FN74° 75' 03' E77.31'     A1- PL MONUMEN TO PROPERiY LINE

I    zl v I M4' 1503' E92. 0.5        
PIIE PIIBLIC U ILRY EASEAIEM

I
F         

1

N78° f0_ 39' E L +   I      M& P AIAPS M! D PIATS

Z I 10' PIIE
N E:,      Z WE WALL EASEMENT

U g I 0
g R)      RADNL BFARINC

I
O Im PULLBACK DISTANCE

57

m     

61      `      60    '    6 c. CITY Or LATHROP RECORD DISiANCE

i i BP57sSF         6886tSF        
fiB982SF   r

58          
O1

v I°     DOCUMENT NUMBEft S. J.C. R.    SPN JOAOUIN COIINtt RECOROS

i eoeusF 57       2013- 038108I R_   
IN ICATES SHEET NUTABER

4= 89° 5' it'      o '¢"     7 286i5F    <

I      .
i` 3, ieo 0

i i z
w mw A

I I I L= 31. 10'
Z a i        i

d= 1' 04' 40'____' A' 1• 13Y2'__  ai I  airc
a

L= 57. 43'   
a' 1' 13Y2''-_ 

R=20. 00'

I
L= fi5.00'   a= 1' 24' 27'_ _ i A= 97° 57' 32'     ig la R= 3034. 00'    L= 65. 00'

R= 3053. 00' d= 5•     
L= 75. U0'      

L'`

25' 2B''- L 4. 19'/    

ir A= 0° 23' S4°
R= 3024. 00'       i 17' S3'40W(R) 29. 00'  20' S9' L= 33B. 34' S. 9p      -     nin
e= e•+ o• sz•      ^='

S4' 49'      

BACARRA STREE7'   N N I       = 21. os' BNDY

L= 807. 23' M- M  L= 48. 22') oi;  '' N09' S'       0 20 40 BO

Q
Nit' 3Y41W( R) 29. 00'           

N wR J034'e.04. 1 R_ R= 30Y4. 00' A= B' y2' S0' 1= 442.3P M-M '  
i  ( d= f• 0

z z I i
653 Z E R) R= 618'   SCpLE: 1'= 40'

7' Oy\
i_=SB, BB)

I     R=65U. 00' 

G= 3• 3397'  '  
R= 618. 00'

0= 3 44 5     TRACT NO. 3808MPLL- 4033' 

R= 2995. 00
I o

Z„    4`° 45' qq•    32'     
L= 40. 44' BNUY

SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA IIIN COUNTY

I Im I N  ' 9z• 7' BNDY 2s• 53' 1gE( R) 1 STANFOP cPo551NG- PHASE 1A

p1 A SIIBOIVISION OF L0T 1, OF TflACT 3789 AS pECOHOED IN BOOK 92 OF

7     i 81 Bz z       R= 20. Q0' 6. 00' BN Y

1 LOl- 6
IdAPS AND PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAOIIIN COIINTY qECOP S BEING A

I 83 O   d=73° 24' 33' POqTION OF SECTION 27, TOWNSNIP 1 SOIITH, PANCE 6 EASTr Y.OUMI R= 679. 00'
I 7R.4Cf 3789 OIABLO BASE 8 NEHIOIAN84 L= 25. 62' BNDY

p= 0° 22' S2'

I            L= 4. 51' 9NDY
R- 2)  ciTv aF unieOP

I
O

SRN JOAvOUIN COIIMY, CAL[ FOPNIA

SEE SHEET 7 50
ae       -    szsnis- a

0.9-'. t- i019 9 Wn lWcOonalJ P:\ 2521]\ SM F4'PPMG\! N\ PHLSE IA\ 1R J80fi RI- US. UM1' C SHEET 5 OF 7 APRIL 2019 ZSZ1S- Ol

149



SEE SHEET J REFERENCES:

R- 1 iRACi N0. 7573 MAPS& PIATS BK. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

47 4B
49

R- 2 TRACT N0. 3I89 IAAPS& PIATS BK. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R

46
BASIS OF BEARINGS:

44
45

THE BFPRING NORTH 64' S6' 12' FAST BEIWEEN THE FOUND

IAONl1MENiS ON SPPI2TAN WAY( FORMFRLY IAIHROP ROAD) AS

43 SHOWN ON TRRCT 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF MAPS AND PfAiS, AT

PAGE 100, SW JOAOUIN COIINN RECOROS, WAS I1SE0 AS THE

yZ
1O

BA515 OF BEAftINGS SHOWN NEREON.

SEE
SHEE1 3 0

NOTES:
41

1. ALL OISTANCES SHOWN ARE GROUND LEVEL UIS ANCES.

z        ggT 2. TRACT 3808, STPNFORD CROSSMG PHfSE 1A CONiNNS 91

23  ' pU  \\    

Z9  \' 09    \\\    

B2

ooRRA-.
R-

L-
80.

27_ M M_" 

p_ t' 79' 45'

4 _ __- 

DFDICAETE BYOTNIS FlNAINMAP01ALLT5 OWN NERttN.( PLF/ SE REFER

0.1       u,' n R
y01 r     \         p= 1' 19' 45'     _- L= 69. 48' - 

TO TNE AREA SUAIMARY TABLE BELOW)

N•     v      ,\ 
O

995. 00' C' 13' 10'
25• 1.

c680.61'-_

L7

fi9. 48'___   _

L. 69. 48'"- 

N
TRACT3808AREASUMA7ARY

n

59 R\ L- R43 4    ,_''    

q5. 

R- 2  

L•
69. 48'  

mlm p   . 
0

69 91 RESI ENiIAL LOTS AN SiREET I2. Bbt AC

24
m      `\   

N3S,-'
g" E ft     /     C=

19'    '
z 68 f OE ICATIONS

M6BLSF      •         / j49'
353

f"      1c69.
40'  

67          
76A6tSF A

o y      /
p35/,  `

N32' S591' W( R) 29. 00'       ,
t° 19' 48"-       N 7150f5F A o

o

0   \\
o

N ` 5

ec1'

25.

9'  

l-
6g 4            

o.     
ss          

7757sSF A
PARCEL A OA23 AC

a 56.      5g•    2 z

Q

ol     
1+ µ       

o
N \  4. 8           704fix5F Qn TOTAL 22. B63

N495
7d

705725F

P

0 57.77' o   Cn R=20. 00'    N63' 69' 39'
E P j'! `\A=90° 13' 28' 6 3 A 4gg9' EfiT.

05 fi90

SSF

o\ L=34.

29
9

7185t5F
g Nsa• i3s3'

LEGEND
E 67'49' 39' E67.

06' EfiT.
17 N 73. 6tl ISTINCTIVE

BOROER

105     

p    `\

p  9454? SF.    
N

y

4 N63' 49'

39'   7. 9T p m RIGHT OF WAY

LINE
5g5M1E1     

JE          
s

NSg•

1Tq9'

E67 m
K

o      \    n lOT IINE/ PMCEL

LINE p e       ?      
So

T N 78 m    ---E%ISTING PROPERiY

LWE

B
tK4gEb7

05 o
j     

0 77       EASEMENi
LINE.

i5 '

q5T 2i' 85           
F     ,

s g T394xSF p IAONIIMENf

LINE N

o. 9 P

69oesSF

o\  "     \  p\       

Ejq3   
7454t5F A i i i i RELINOUISHMEM OF ABUTiER' S

RICHTS n-

400
N58°

74g
eg. g5 2 75 T FOIlNO 1 I/ 2'BRA55 OISK IN

CONCREfE p
n rn 1p5o   \  

w
Nb..

pq,\9Et,
R1 74

p

7755s5F            SET
P

ENT

BBRASSLDSK
SAIdPEDE' LS 8817'

IN pd
o      

p9
bE

F1       \`

v      \

o,,   
o  \\ 8183SSF            

y p=y34'

4T'---MONUMEM BO%PER Cltt OF fATHROP 51AN

AR05 C         
ty`

e n a      `!   `'   P
47'----   =

8BB4'
v

73

iO,
y y34'      IAONl1MEM OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER TRACT)

789 p         i j     \o

o  \      p aS 8474SSF
68. 04'      P-     ANGIE

POINT

N   
j c•   t0i35z5F p

pc2' 34' 44-    

N2g23; 31w
R)       BN V

BOUNDARY
I

Z 

m
e60.

e   ,
544.

52'     i
L= 25090' M"

h,(       CL
CENTERLINE

i 416'       35'U2
2       7757lSF      \       \`          

G
p;

y34'

47'     0 p- 20
2

150000' -

9

1V E%       E%

ISTING

o

m g4'      

9A  T      -
r(

J\   6B.    

yct52 TRE    _  }- p. t'
54'

14'      2fi' 29'i6W( R1. OU    M- IA F70NUTAEM TO

AIONUTAEM O m m

05    r o R=20. 00' q''     NE
S  _      5.)  p= 7' 4 47     4- PL AIONUMEM TO PROPEft1Y

UNE y      y

m       ,
SpgEIR p= 85° 25' S5' p=

Y6B85' MADR 1Z 1=49. 8 R

1471A 97. 17' PUE PUBLIC UIILf1V

FASEMEM y '    N4    a, pp      `\L•29. 82      i

l.°µ  ,_  m' N p_q. pg 77'      __-       M&P 17AP5

AN

PlATS
O6'
9   9.

23

M      

3' w L- fi7. 2T'--       VIE

WALL EASEMENT 2 p146' 37' 09' E(R) 29. 00'           C''
156 g`  ye32/     N62' 3170' E( R) 29A0    " R)      

RADWL
BFARINC

O'   

28
V

c1j15,

g9 5b'   
1 

2 N N A=90
59'14•       

PULLBACK OISTPNCE
o,     7B65z5F Q 0' 3T+ 3'\        

N       

p'
50o

p 1253 2 8.
x   

pc2 33 7"       - I' C m m L= 31.
76 m

ftECORD DISTANCE m y`f    46' 1710' E( R 29. 00'      %     9. 5H fi5g             „     S. J. C.R.    SAN JOAOUIN
COUNtt RECORDS

A w.   L=
31. 64'          n '       p"

B' x      
R40.

W'          ;  ¢ o 7 V1E
f,'

4     
y+     

1qj1p0'  .

pb' 19' A=92°
53' 02.    m

r]        88        

89
U•

3  \' \^   i P`      B8       l' d      8374iSF    ?     3,i INDICATES

SHEEf NUMBER N461' 8.
04' \  

i

p  o•\'    ,/    

i
1.^ N   L= 32.

42   " ff]   v m          

l       54 0 5 45 4r,,,   G  i `
0

3.     
P lAp7 

D.

6'

S534 V1 F Sgg
7P

Q,      

C`

o
34'     J 056125F

v' P
f

p  r,-;>   i J      ^ dq5 03 N45:
h46   

e0

p0 o 0

0
0

y         
Nn05 753' 1 5' 0    / R_ 20. 00'   86 A ty'%

o u; .   S.E R N45° 2fi' 09° E        3 K' 3100y d=96° 1a' ai'      7987tSF
r i 10. 00'

BN Y N5520'
2

l)rn -__._".--
op

N

D D     9
1

5
N yi y L= 3 3. 6

0

y
N

1    
t` r

Z y.
r,,q  ' Nfifi 0192

E71. 55
Q,  aY

IR. 1       !`  P'.\N44' S3' 49" E( R]  P 29. 45.  N6fi° Ot'

32' E o       i 4q1\:      y; s v   -------    
g 9y.  Nfifi° 43'

12' E 278.

13'
BNDY P%       

N

N' v`,
J

o
876aiSF 9.59.

03' BNDY
Fl    

u;-;•

oo_fi1 gp' t8       I 4$°38' 42' E y N. O  .?      926' I

TZ TRACT NO. VO
V va Tek       34. 03'

BNDYP oa'
m,
2p   " \\ 

N4}
52jg4gft1

36,
o,.

ElR1Z3ZfigeN   

T

jRr) ag SUB IVISIONS OF SAN

JOAUUIN COUNTY y Curve Table
L       N56 STANFOPD CFUSSINO-

PNASE 1A jo' oJ A SUBOIYISION OF LOT 1.OF TfiACT 3709 PS PECOPOED IN BOOK

42 OF Curve# Radius Del a Lengih 4APS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY FECOFDS

BEING A POflTION OF SECTION 27 TOWNSNIP 1 SOUTH. HPNGE 8

EAST NOUNT C1 1500. 0' 1' U6' 3B' 29.OT OIABLO BASE

8 NEHIUTAN CITY

OF LATHFOP 0 20 4B0 80 SAN JOAWIN

COUNTY, CALIFOflN7A 5: =<o mAe Y
s somps e aa,   

9,,;n Os-? 3-± Oi9 QiMm Jell ll      P:\ 25113\ SRJ uGPI1: G\ ilJ\ FH4SE 1A\ iN] ZOb N-OE. O' M1L HF. 6 OF 7 APRIL 20919

150



SEE SHEEf 4 SEE SHEET 5

Q           F' CRY OF LATHROP
49 61 so

j

5s 58 I       -  a ¢     D UMEM NUMBERso I           I
s

i           

oc

48 F ` o 2ota- oaaioa

w m

lew a^   o R= so a. 00
BACARRA STREE'f I o     a= o° za sa°

I}-    
c'   

L= 21. 09' BNOY

R- 3024. 00= 75' 10' 52' L= B01. 23' M_ M  _- (=
0' Sfi' 37' T 6= 0' 58' 37•-

r---'-'-'-' 
R= 30P4. 00' d= 8_ 12' 50_ L= 442_ 77' M- M

NIO' 25'    O

I  _    -       N79' 4S06' W( R) 29. 00'    I
N65' 2fi3T'

1, R- J024'         N09' S I' 09' W
U r

o L= 49. 81')     L= 49. 81' I  N17° 51' 52W( R) 29.00'       E R) R= 650. RL R- J

i
ly      : N65' 3B I2'- ' 0J4'

N12' S4' 10' W R
EIRI R= 679'

Q R' 2995. 00' A= 13' 10' 25' L= 688. 82 R= 2985. 00' d= 4' S7' 43' L= 259.35
a= 1' 12' 22' 

d 3fi731Tp 1' O6' 27' e= 7' 16' S5•     
p= 1' 79' 45'    

L= fi3. 04'-- -       
17' 23'

p= 1' 79' 45'
fi9. 4B'-----

L= 57. 89"-- 

I i
L= fi7. 01"--  -- L= 67. 42'---   '

71' 02'  `   L-00. 33' M- PL  R= 618. 00'

L= 69. 48'-- R= 20. OP L= fi7. BB'--       R= 2995. 00' 3° 44' S7'
k=zo. aa   e= so• ss a•    _     4= 1' 45' 44'       32. 00'     L= 40. 44' BN Y

C= 90° Sfi' 37'   I F, I
L= 31. 75            m

o L= 31. 75 I w o e
m

Z
L= s2. 7P BNDY 2e. oa

R 1S W I r,    6 61° 53' 15' E
g 71          I 87 gZ    ^    p R= 2o. o0' N6 p0' BNDY

69
70     '

r 798uSF   "   rp I n I 8513zSF         707fi35F         83 A= 73° 24' 33'   1
7057YSF        

01tSF n 77p535F   Lo7 6
6B   ' r m I gq          

L= 25. 62' 9NDV R= 679. 00'

I o eozsxsF           d= 0° 22' 52'    `     7RACf 3709

z i v
I#       

E z         L= 4. 51' 6NDY   \       IR- 2)

I   

pa.           
z

mI   79.48'     O
N69' 24' 01' E6T. 17'     N69' 24' 01' E6TA5'      

Nfi9' 24' 01' E74.< 5    
a      fi4. e1'     

73.52'      
91

I v [-.         N74°42' 3B' E29B. 49' BNDY

oo
e5. ao'

5020'   
Z I f

I      m
W' 49' 39' E Iz73.41' 

S          g 80 i   8 p 79            
BB4RSF

i'      I       LEGEN

77 t
7as7: sF g

zo. 00n          8 7r 73861 SF           R-      

i        
pISTINCTNE 80RDFR

C= 90° 00' 00'   

L 1. 42 m o
I

m m LOT 2
RIGHT OF WAY 11NE

b d= 0° 14' 28•      I      -  
lOT LINE/ PARCEL LWEz =

e,«      
ra cr 37ae EXISTING PROPERtt LINE

p= 2' 34' 47'-     -------  IR- Z)  EASEMEM LINE

p= p34' 47'--     =
fi8. 85' M1Y177' ESB. W'

L= 68. B4'   I         
MONUMEM lME

R= 1529. 00' e= 2a' 24' 1b' L= 5a4. 52'     RELINOUISHIAEM OF ABUTIER' S RIGHIS

N NOTES:    FOUND 2 I/ 2' 9RA55 ISK M CONCRETE
5 N71' 1191' E ri       m

1. ALl OISIANCES SHOWN ARE GROIIN IEVEL OISTANCES. MONUMEM BO% UNLE55 OiHERYnSE NOiEU
29. 00'    2. TRACT 3808, SiANFORD CROSSWG PWSE 7A COMNNS 91m"      

µ=7500_ 00_ d 9• a5' 02_ L=250. 90_ M-

M_
o-_107. 00'

tkM _}( 49001 Z RESIOENTIAL LOTS, ANO 7 LETIERE PARCEI, CONiAININC 12, 86 Q    $Ef 2 1 2 BRA55 ISN SiAlAPEO LS 881Y

IN J ALRES, IAORE OR LESS, INCLUOING iHE ROAIlWAYS THAT ARE
BEMG MONUMEM BO%PFR CI7Y OF IATHROP STAN

ARDS
o-      ggg'   N MONUMEM OF ftECORD TO BE SET PER TRACT

3789 MADRONE OEOICATEO BY THIS FlNAL lAAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.(PLE0. 5E

REFER 7° a0' 47' L=197.
t7'     N77' 11' 37•E59. W'        Im TO THE AREA SUA1lAARY TABLE

BELOW) BNDY

OUN
ARYNT R=14'

7700' 42'
25.  2' 35' 11'      SC.

97' CL
CENTERUNE Z     L=60. 40'-  ------'-'    = i       TRACT 7809 AREA

SIIMAIARY L=89.

50'--    3. 02'       R=20. 00'   I    '   I

MxM
OI UIMEM TO

MONUMENT 90' 00'
00'     %91 RESIOEMIAL LOTS AN STREEf P2. 94}

AC N m o
m      '       DEDICAilONS IA- Pl IAONIIMEM TO PRaPERiY

LINE

N      - 3'
4z z PIIE PUBLIC UPlltt

FlSEMENi
e

o            

m

N 9D    '       

9  
A PARCEL A 0.02t

AC P IAPPS AN

PlATS K 89         71124SF
748725F w      wa vsE a

rrr BB       7306t5F o P A d     TOTAL 22. 66t AC R)      RAOIFL

BEARING s:,   
i" 

o

Q  o; y PULL9ACK

OISTANCE o r-I3 N
o A     j RECORD

DISTANCE i Z m a
REFERENCE$'  S. J. C. R.    ShN JOAOIIIN COl1Ntt RECOR

S 49.

Bq` u

o   '     R- 1)TRACT N0. 3533 MAPS& PlATS BK. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C.
R. 776'    z9, gp'  INOICAiES SHEEf

NIllA9ER fiy_ 5T N79• q,.

E R- 2) IRACT N0. 3789 IAAPS& PlATS BK. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.       
3 3    9 B

BNDy    Ǹ64' 21' 45' E( R      BASIS OF
BEARINGS:    2QQ N6fi° 01' 32' E278• 73

BNDY TRACT NO. J V O
V THE BEARING NORTH 64' S6' 12' EAST BEIWEEN THE

FOUN IAONIlMEN15 ON SPARTAN WAY( FORlAFRIY IAiMROP ROAU)

AS SHOWN ON TRACi 357J, IN 800K 40 OF MAPS AND PlATS, AT SU9DIVISIONS OF SAN JOADUIN
COUNTY PAGE 100, SAN JOAOUIN COUNIY RECORDS, WAS USED AS THE STANFOHO CNOSSING- PHASE

tA 8A515 OF BEPRINCS SHOWN HEREON.      A 5119DIVISION OF LOT 1, OF TflACT 3789 AS PECOPDEO IN BOOK 42

OF ANPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 89 SAN JOAOUIN COIINTV PECOfl05 BEING

A POflTION OF SECTION 27,TOYMSHIP 7 SOtITH, RANGE 6 FAST,

NOIIM OIABLO BASE S

NENIDIAN CITY OF
LATHPOP 0 20  SAN JOA UIN COIINiY

CALIFOflNIA SCALE: 1"= 40'     ac v
somps i. emz. ui a: si:is-

Tyoiani oe- aa-+ o s eawm     += u w F:\353U\ SFV LNPPNG\ RJ\ P i+SE lA\ ik SE05 M- W. 0' SL SHEET 7 OF 7 APRIL 2019 25217-

151



OWNER' S STATEMENT:     T 1CT NO. 3809 CITY ENGINEER STATEMENT:

THE UNOERSIGNEO, DOES HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE ONRJERS OF ALL THE LANO SUBOIVISIONS OF SAN JOAQUIN COl1NTY I, CLENN GEBHARDT, HERE6Y STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMMED THIS MAP OF ' RACT N0. 3809,

DEl1NEATE ANO EMBRACED WITHIN THE OISTINCTIVE BORDER OF 7HE NEREIN EMBODIED FINAL
STANFONO CPOSSING- PHASE 18 SUB IVISIONS OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, STANFORO CROSSING - PHASE 1B' AND THAT THE

MAP ENTITLED' fRACT N0. 3809 SU9 IVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, STANFORD CROS9NG- A SIIBOIVISION OF LOT 2 OF TPACT 3789 AS PECOPOEu IN BOOK 42 OF SUB IVISION SHOWN HEREON IS SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE VESTING

PHASE IB' CONSISPNG OF EIGHT ( 8) SHEETS, THAT WE HAVE CAUSED SA10 MAP TO BE
NAPS AN PLATS, AT PAGE B9, SAN JOA UIN COUNTY PECON S BEING A TENTATIVE MAP, AN ANY APPROVE ALTERATIONS THEREOF. I FURTNER STATE THAT THIS FlNAL

PREPAREO FOft RECORD ANO CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION ANU FECOROATION OF SAID MAP,  POPTION OF SECTION 27, TONNSHIP 1 SOUIH, NANGE 8 EAST, 610UNT MAP COMPLIES W1TH ALL APPLICABLE OR INANCES OF THE LITY OF IATHROP, AND ANY

THAT SAID MAP PARTINLARLY SETS FORTH AND ESCRIBES ALL THE LOTS IN7ENDED FOR SALE
DIABLU BASE 6 MEHIOIAN AMENDMENTS THERETO, APPLICABLE AT THE TIME OF APPROVAL OF THE VESTING TENTATI E MAP.

BY NUMBER W7TH THEIR PRECISE LENGTH AND W1DTH.    
CITV OP LATHNOP

DATED 1HI5 DAY OF 2019.   Q0.0 SSIaSAN JOA O/ IIIN COIINTY, CALIFOPNIA
Po   

N

THE REAL PROPERTY OESCRIBED BELOW IS OEOICATED TO THE CITY OF LATHROP AS

AC V9 SO PS
l c

EASEMENTS FOR PUBIIC PURPOSES:   

1. TFiE REAL PROPERTY DESIGNATEO ON SAID MAP AS ' BARBARA TERRY BOULEVARO,  sive ru. wi snlmaw
GLENN CEBHARDT, R. GE. 34681 6 No. 34691 a

oF.

APRIL' d20919 CITY ENGMEER Of THE
CHIMES STREET, CENTRAL PACIFIC STREET, MADRONE STREET, LOCOMOTIVE STREET,    

CITY OF IATMROP, CAUFORNIA
POST STREET, SUNOL STREET, AND TELEGRAPH STREET'.    

f o cW p0.

2. A NON- EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT,    
TDE LIMA ROAD—==== r==T-   CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT:

i

RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAINTAIN SOUNDWALLS, OVER AND UN ER THE STRIPS i

i i i i

OF LANO SHOWN UPON SAID MAP MARKED" WALL EASEMENT'( WE).      
i-- µr-- r- 7------------

i i
I, ANNE- SOPHIE TRUONG, HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE E% AMINEO THIS FlNAL IAAP OF TRACT N0.

3. A NON- E% CIUSIVE EASEMENT TOCETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT, j- ri   809, SUBDIViS10NS OF SAN JOApIIIN COUNTY, STANFORD CROSSING- PHASE 1B" AND THAT THE

RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAINTAIN CABLES, PIPES, AND CONOUITS AND THEIF i i i
SU6DIVISION SHOWN HEREON COMPLIES W1TH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 2 OF TME

APPURTENANCES UPON, OVEft AND UNOEft THE STRIPS OF LAND SHOWN UPON SAID 1 LL---'=

D05 REIS ROAD====__ 
j;'   

CALIFORNIA SUB IVISION MAP ACT, AS AMEN ED. ANO THAT THIS FINAL MAP IS TECHNICAILY

MAP MARKED PUBLIC U7ILITY EASEMENT'( PUE). t1 iyi
I

CORRECT.

i i i           +
p

DATED THIS DAY OF 2019,       uN0
7HE 11NDER5IGNED DOES HEREBY RELINOUISN ANY AND ALL RIGHTS OF INGRE55 AND EGRE55 TO

L    

i i i
I          pNIE ' q`

VEHICULAR TRAFFlC( ABUTTERS RIGHTS) TO STANFORD CROSSING AND PORTIONS OF BARBARA
PN_

vdPY SJT E_, U 

N

90 0
TERRY BOt1LEVARD ALONG THE LO7 UNES INDICATED BY 1HE SYMBOL      

I

PP f      
S J_     ANNE- SOPHIE TRUONC, LS N0. 8998 a. es98 n

THE UNOERSIGNED DOES HEREBY RELEASE, ExTINGUISH, OUITCLAIM, AND REMOVE THE PRIVATE I J,       ACTING CITY SURVEYOR
ACCE55 AND UTILITY EASEMENT OVER LOT 2 AS SHOWN ON TRACT} 789 AS RECORDEO IN BOOK

r sr      ,„     ,.    1  a a4'   2e

o        . F`_' y r ar c u'
42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 99, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY RECOROS.       ap    t P

Ro F'  C I T Y C L E R K' S S T A T E M E N T:
TO ENSURE MUNICIPAL WATER SERV7CE5 TO ALL LOTS SHOWN UPON 1HI5 MAP, ALL WATER C y,,

RIGHTS THAT 7HE UNDERSICNEO MAY HAVE WITHIN THE ISTINCTIVE 80R ER UPON THIS MAP,      

J 

i B

HEREBY ARE EDICATED TO THE CITY OF IATHROP. 1I 
S

NG}-- TT- h-

4[[;
7;   STATEEOF CALIFORNIA, DO HEREBY ST TE 1HAT THE HIERECN EMBIODIED MAPCIENTITLED TRACT N0.

THIS MAP SHOWS ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD ON THE PREMISES.      
J     - Q-`?/_   3809 Sl1BDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUM COUNTY, STANFORD CROSSING- PHASE IB' CONSISTING OF

q 2 EIGHT( 8) SHEETS, WAS PRESENTED TO SAID CITY COUNCIL. AS PRONDED BY LAW, AT A REGULAR

gdb    p._   MEETING THEREOF, HELD ON THE DAY OF_   ' 2019, AN THAT
OWNER: LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION LLC, A OELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY j ,

y
SAID CITY COUNCIL DIO THEREUPON BY RESOLUTION N0.    Of1LY PASSED AND

PRINTED NAME:    
t:"'

i`*        °^ IA    
ADOPTEO AT SAI MEETINC, APPROVE SAID MAP, AND AUTHOR2ED ITS RECORDATION AND DO

Y"  6v 1   "- i N HEREBY ACCEPT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF LATHROP, FOR PUBUC USE, 7NE OEDICATION OF ALL

9GNATURE:   
C       EASEMENTS, ABUTTERS RIGHTS OF ACCESS AND WATER RICH75, AND ACCEPTED THE OFFER OF

VICINITY MAP
DEDICAPON OF ALL BOULEVARDS AND STREETS AS SHOYM ON SAID MAP SUBJECT TO THE

TiLE: NOTTOSCALE
IMPROVEMENTS BEING COMPLETED, IN ACCOROANCE WITH CHAPTER 16, 71T1E i6. 16 OF THE CITY

OF LAIHROP MUNICIPAL COOE.

DATE:    
I NRTHER STATE THAT ALL BONDS AS REOUIRED BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE WITHIN MAP HAVE

SURVEYOR S STATEMENT:      BEEN APPROVED 8Y THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AND Fl ED IN MY OFFICE.

OWNER S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
THIS MAP WAS PREPAREO BY ME OR UNOER MY OIRECTION AND IS BASEO UPON A FlELD SUR4EY DATED 7HI5 DAY OF 2019,

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CER7IFICATE VERIFlES ONLY 1HE IOEN7ITY

ADE IN CONFOftMANCE WiTH THE REOUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION AIAP ACT AND LOCAL

OF THE IN IVIOUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND
OROINANCE AT 7HE REQUEST OF LATHROP LAND ACOUISIPON, LLC, IN NOVEMBER, 20I3. I HEREBY

NOT THE 7RUTHNLNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALIOIT7 OF THAT DOCUMENT. 
STATE 1HAT THIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORIAS TO THE APPROVEO OR CONDITIONALLY

APPROVEO VESIING TENTATIVE MAP. I FURTHER STATE THAT ALL THE MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON

W1LL BE OF THE CHARACTER ANO OCCUPY THE POSITIONS M ICATED BEFORE SAID FINAI MAP TERESA VARGAS
STATE OF CAUFORNIA       SS IMPROVEMENTS ARE ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF LATHROP, ANO THAT SAIO MONUMENTS VdLL BE CITY LLERK AND CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
COUNTY OF_       __       SUFFlCIENT TO ENABLE THIS SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.  THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN,

pHo
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

ON 2019, BEFORE ME A NOTARY PUBUC,       DATEO 1HI5 DAY OF 2019. y,o E MqPERSONAIIY APPEARED WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE

Cs
9r.

BA515 OF SATISFACTORY EVIOENCE TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE
O`

o SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION S STATEMENT:
WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLE GEO TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS Q No. 8817 
AUTHORIZED CAPAQN, AND BY HIS SIGNANRE ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON, OR EN11TY

THIS MAP CONFORMS TO THE VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP N0. 3789 APPROVED BY THE
UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.       IAN BRUCE MACDONALD

PLANNING COMMISSION ON 7HE 18TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2013.
LS N0. 8817 T

I CERIIFY I1N ER PENALTY OF PERJIIRY UNOER 7HE LANS OF THE STATE OF CAUFORNIA 7HAT F" 

DATED THIS DAY OF 2019
THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

WITNESS MY HAND:

sicNnTURt:     

RIGHT TO FARM STATEMENT:   
MaRK MeissHER

SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COlAMISSION

PRINTED NAME. NOTARY PUBUC IN AND FOR SAID COUMY AND STATE PER CITY OF LATHROP CO E OF OR INANCES. TIRE IS CHAPTER 15. 48. 04, 7HE CITY OF LATHROP
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

PRINCIPAL COUNTY OF BUSINESS: LIMITSTSNC LUDINC TH SE THAT UTIUZE CHEMICAL ERTILIZERS AND PESTCIOES. OUTARE HE EIBY COUNTY RECORDER' S STATEMENT:

NOIIFIEO THAT THE PROPERTY YOU ARE PURCHASING IAAY 9E IOCATED CLOSE TO AGRICULTURAL
COMMISSION E% PIRES:       LANOS AND OPERAlI0N5. YOU A7AY BE SUBJECT TO INCONVENIENCE OR DISCOMFORT ARISING FILE 1HI5 DAY OF 2019, AT M. IN BOOK

FROM THE LAWFUL AND PROPER USE OF AGRICULTURAL CHEMICALS AND PESTICIOES AND FROM OF

COMMISSION S OF NOTARY:   OTHER AGRILl1LNRAL ACTIl1PE5, INCLUOING WITMOUT LIMITATION, CULTIVAPONS, PIOWINC, MAPS AN PlATS, AT PAGE AT THE REOUEST OF

SPRAYING, IRRIGAl10N, PRUNING, HARVESTING, BURNING OF AGRICULTURAL WASTE PROOUCTS,

PROTECTION OF CROPS AND ANIMALS FROM OEPREDATION, ANO OTHER ACTIVITIES Yrt11CH MAY FEE: $

STATEMENT OF SOILS REPORT: cENERnTE DUST, SMOKE, NOISE, ODOR, ROOENTS AND PESTS. BE AWARE AL50, THAT THIS

PROPERTY MAY BE LOCAIED ADJACENT TO AGRICULNRAL OPERATIONS OUTSIOE THE CITYS

A SOILS REPORT ENTI7LED," STANFORD CROSSING, LATHROP, CAUFORNIA, GEOTECHNICAL JURISDICTION. CONSEQUENTLY, DEPENDINC ON THE LOCATION OF YOUR PROPERTY, IT MAY BE

E% PLORATION, PROJECT N0. 5747. 003. 003 AND OATED OCTOBER 27, 2017, HAS BEEN PREPARED NECESSARY THAT YOU BE PREPAREO TO ACCEPT SUCH INCONVENIENCES OR OISCOMFORT AS BY:

FOR 1HI5 PROJECT BY ENGEO INCORPORATEO, STEVE HARRIS, P. E., G. E., AND IS ON FlLE W1TH NORIAAL AND NECESSARY ASPECTS OF LIVING IN AN AGftICl1lNRALLY ACTIVE REGION. STEVE J. BESTOLARIDES ASSISTANT/ OEPUTY RECOROER

THE CITY OF LATHROP.  ASSESSOR- RECOROER- COUNTY CLERK

D. D. SHEET N0. 48)       
SAN JOA UIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

8- 22- 2019 6: J4am Jel Ux P:\ 2521J\ SRV MAPPIHG\ GAI\ PHASE 1B\ TR 3509 FM- 01. DYIG HEET 1 OF B 25Z13- 01

N6QtEHCES i lE

NAGES:

152



LOT 6 15
A        REFERENCES:

N61° 53' 15' E/     TR4C7 3789 N A
R- I TRACT N0. 35}} NppS k plqTS BK. 40, PG. IaO, S. J. C. R.

y 61. 00' BNDY
R- 2 TRACT No. 3789 MPPS k P1A75 BK. 42, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

og1j
R_ pl

1 17° 44' q6' E R- 3 TRACT No. 3808 MPPS& PUTS 9K._, PC._, S. J. C. R.

74. 00' BNDY
5  

57 l? rl p

R`
s18' 

4= 44° 08' 29• L= 476. 1Y gN Y
BASIS OF BEARINGS:

72° 75' 14' W 48. 55' BNDY
Nfi2' 16' 07' E( R N THE BEARINC NORiH 64' S6' I2' EtSf BERYEEN FOUND MDNUMENiS

2 LOCOMOTIVE STREET 96    $ ON SPARiAN WAY( FORMERLY IATHROP ROPD)/ 5 SHOWN ON

TRACT 3533, IN BOOK 4o OF IAnPS AND PtAiS, AT PACE 100,

SB   /    '   
B8 m SAN JOAOUIN LOUMY RECOROS, WAS USED 15 THE BA515 OF

g7 82 LOT 3
BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

41---

N
86

85 84
83

95
a TRACT 3789

CUrveTeble
59 yo,  8Bq8Z8 R_ p    NOTES

W y 1. ALL DISiANCES SHOWN ARE GROUND LEVEL OISTANCES.

ti'   BNDy 94 O    2. TRqCT 38 9, SiPNFORD CROSSINC PHASE 1B COMAINS 96

Curve# Radlus Detla LengN 60  /`''   
4

9 RESIDENIW. LOTS, CONTAININC 22. 72 ACRES, MORE OR l£ SS,

75
8    ,' fl INQUOINC THE ROADWAYS THAT ARE BEING OEDICATEO BY THIS FlNAL

Ci 1995. 00' 1' 4544'  92. 11'    
Q

83 0     6      
78 79

80 9 93 MAP, ALL SHOWN HFREIN.( PLEASE REFEft TO THE ARFA SUlAIAARY

a y E, i     \ '?  TABLE BEIOW)
C2 I0. 00'  732C' 33' 25. fi7 C,     4'/   \  b        /, i y y

9. oa o 5z• <. 5,,       
Nr,p s, / Qo'     ez  ti,   

a

G
j

C     
92

a TRACT} 809 AREA SUN. MARY

9'
j s     81= a'   73

TELEGRAPH STREET

91 N

OEDICATIONESM
is ANo STREET zz. izf ac

51  ' 

66 cnR
T  \'

O

72 71           
69 BB

67
O  

iOO
TOTAI.  22. 72t AC

90 2

84a"
s

G

LEGEND
N30' 08' J9" E R    

50  

Z
k

7S,       58
65         89

DISiINCTIVE BORDER

I           BNOy 59 63
fi4 RIGHT OF WAY IINE

49           
80

R 1. 00'       

60 61
62

ExSfINC POPERtt LNE
R= 3749. 00'      

FASEI ENT 11NEc= s° as as•
n° oa iz•     

L- 56. 14' BNDY
MONUMENT LINE

q8 69 79 N64' 2' q5' E R L= 134. 35' BNDY i i RELINOUISHMEM OF ABUTiER' S RIGHiS9s
CENTRAL PACIF[ C STREET

N3p_ 7 51 T R _ FOIIND 2 1N7\ 9° 1 4' 34' E 59. 78' BNDY      -       Z R_ 3749'     2' BWSS DISK IN CONCREiE

47    /  68    78    ]/       \ =
A

N62' S9'? qyy( R) R= q000''       
MONUMENT BO% IlNlE55 OTHERWISE NOTEO

94 0 57 50 qg p SET 2 1/ 2' BR0.55 ISK STMIPE LS BB1Y IN

I F, /          h 56 Sp
51 r o i NONUNENT 80% PER Cltt OF IATHROP SiANOAROS

4fi      \ 
ro            /    m.       

55 54 53

W    
s ,      /    /   93  '

VN
6   

I

D—     ANCtE

OINTF
RECORD TO BE SEf PER TRACT J908

j '   /          J`      
4B    .

9 BNDY BOUNOARY

Q'  47 Z p CL CENTERLINE45  .    fi6      
76   /

59603' BNDY

92  =  

38 39 40 '  , y   qp q3 44
45 4fi

Ez EYJSTINC

Q       IA- M MONUMENi TO MONUMENT

44   / Q. /   
65

J
75    /   SSr NOL

N- PL MONUAIENT TO PROPEftIY LINE

E T
I y

LDT 4 PIIE PUBUC UTILItt EASEMENT

43      /\\\    

IA& P MAPS AND PlATS
I

W
T R 2J

a9
WE WALL EASEMENT

sa
w    SUNOL STREET y e)      aaow ecaamc

l       `      /    4  OW  9
0

78 9 PULLBACK OISTANCE

q   
30 29       3 ftECORO OISTANCE

42   {      
63       /        

3    36 35 34 33 3z 31 N-
7     '     

w
S. J. C. fl.    SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt RECOROS

73
90

oUlQ
4,     .

N-]   
G m SHEET INDEX3t

ai   /               

i;  
3'   ts o m

L       - L
sZ     

z aies.00   
as i;  y

20 2i 22 2a 2a zs zs
2    ZB    "   

D
5.,,  f      1° 42' 29°       N s7 
Q     NIMES

STREET N453q_ 56' E— =
12'—.= s' BNDV

15 9 ZLZ R= qp85'     -     d      0 50 10      200

i
N39' 49" OBY/( R) R= 1500'   "             d <

T R= 1500. 00'     
O

I       ` N43' S2' 26' E( R] CHIMES STREET ry} 7' S8' 10" E( R)    

26'  
27

A= 4° 32' 10'          

SCALE: I'= 100'

GQ/   
I 2a I

29

IL=11B. I5' BNOY q¢
F 12 13

14

L_ 

t
1°   '  

L_  
3°    3,         ,     2 3    <    5 6        B 9 TRACT NO. 3809

i     
R g_ 444Bj'     

11    -   
V SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY

N45° 38' 42° E    ,$ i i i i

N3Z55'_
30: E(, 1_--  —        

STANFOPO CPOSSING- PHASE 18
N22' 42' 17° W( R) P 91

94. 03' BNDY 44' S6' 12' E( R      R= 444B. 00' C= 12° 00' 42' L= 93Z• 48' BNDY
q SIIBUIVISION OF L0T 2, OF TPACT 3789 AS FECOPOEU IN BO K 42 OF

R= 97. 00'     A7qp5 ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99, SAN JOA UIN COIINTY NECORDS 6EING A

y= q5D0. 00' A= 6' S0' 19' L= 537. 07' M- M

p= 54° 40' 26'  POPTION OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTN, NWGE 8 EAST, Lf011NT

N44° 21' 76" W 54. 96' BNDY R= 45 0. 00' p= B' S0' 18' L= 537. 07' M- M L= 86. 84' BNDY UTA0L0 BASE 6 NEqIDIAN
STANFORD CROSSiNG ciTr oF wmeav

N45° 26' 09° E10. 00' BNDY   , J 1 I pry pqp IN COUNiY CALIFOHNIA

I LOT 14

I II RIACKAT e SORIPSL__  I TRACT 3533

1 40 MhP / 00
ia: i: s- u:ia

03-?}-: 019 ¢: S m Jell U•      P:\ 2521]\ SR LLW% tiG\ FII\ PN4SE IB\ iR: 009 N- 0'!. GMG
1

SHEEf 2 OF 8

A

APRIL ZOI9 2521- D1

153



SEE SHEET 5
R FER NC 5:

y  I R- I) TRACT N0. 3573 61APS @ PIATS BK. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.
h_    66° 01' 32' E 145. 28' BN Y k- 2 TRACT No. 7789 IAPPS k PWTS BK. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.

38
R- 3) TRACT No. 8 8 A7PP5 k PUTS BK._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

75
U'

ol S     \      '- 
39

40

4      --- 42--_   

BHSBEARINGBO RIN

456' 12° FAST 9ETWEE FOIIND A7RE      
y

E TH N ONIIMEMS

T        ti'     ON SPARTAN WAY( FOflNEflLY fATHROP ROPD) f5 SNOWN ON
y    

N56' 00' SO" E R_____    
R' S a. 00' o TRACT J517, IN BOOK 40 OF MAPS AND PlATS, AT PACE 1 0,

7 Zg 50 49           SUNOL STREET 54N JOAOUIN COIINIY RELORDS, WAS USED 0.S R1E BASIS OF

N66° 43' 12' E 59. 03' BN Y      s' M M           BFARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

Re

p 4048. 00' d= 6° 41_59' L= 473. 11' N- N______  

r. N TES:
SZ9• 0a'

d_   

V\/ 
I. ALL OISiANCES SHOWN PRE GROUNO LEVEL DISiANCES.

74
d``

06' Sp• 
75 26 z&_

74 2. IRACT 3809, SfANFORD CROSSING PHASE IB CONTAWS 96
87 65, gg      d- e

535     
RESI ENTW. lOTS, COMAINING 12. 72 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,P= 4075. 00' A= 6' 02' 35• L• q2g, B0'   

INCLUOING IHE ROAIIWAYS lI1AT ARE BEING OEOICATED BY THIS FINAL

w

1= 83,   
d'' 43' 29'       A= 0° 54' S4'     d= 0° 54' 54'fiB-- -  - 

51. 55 -      L= 65. OB-  --= 65. 08--  ------      •
SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEfSE REFER TO THE PRFA SIIMIAARY

C h e= 1° 25' S6'
TABIE BELO' N)

L= 13. 22
a

ro          
TRACT 3009 AREA SIIAIlAARY

a      37

p    84755 SF     _   

74

96

SF
35 34 33 32

96 RESIDENML LOTS PNO STREET 22. 72i AC

73 ry      /           0 fi9452 SF BBBBt SF 6BB9s SF
EOICATIONS

y%       U   86 A
rv TOTPL 22J2t AC

z
a"     o m m

I z z

v/    //    
W

N48• 00' 26' W 81. 69'       
76. fi2'

0 81. 69' 29. 87'   38. 82'   24. 46'   42. 29'   N50' 32' S8' W 66. 75'      .

m
63. 27'     

N98' 00' 26' W 63. p7'
o/      

N4B' S9' 23' W 63. 28' N50° 32' 59' W 63. 28'     fi3. 29'

o      /     

Z

I    I     LEGEND

I N
OISPNCTNE BOR ER

I 85

t9 6B2? SF 21
22 23 pq ps

RICHT OF WAY UNE
N45' 7q' S6" E R R_ q285'       ^   

7873x SF 68093 SF
6763t SP 674BS SF

N     __N39, 49, 8 yR
sn2s SF LOT LINE PARCEL L1NEI     )

R= I500'      IXISiING PROPER7Y LINE

PI43' S2' 26" E R  
fO p FASEMENT IJNE

CHIM i z z m m
NOMIMENT LINE

ai
ES STREET 10' Z'   -      RELIN IIISHMEM OF ABIITTER' S RIGHiS

l=B7. 51       --
4` 52' 03'-'  _'

0• 52' 03'.-- '6= 1' Ofi' 38'    e L= 64, B7'      d- 0° 52' 03'--  -- _     __     _     _----- FOUNO 2 I/ 2' BRASS RK IN LONCREIEA 0• 52' 03'       d 0° 52' 09'-
L= 29. 07'       L= 64. B7' L= 64. BB L= 64. B8 L= fi4. B8 MONUTAENT BO% UNLE55 OIHERWISE NOTED

N40' S5' q6
w

P= 4285. 00'      N= 42B5. 00' d= B° 52' S3' = fiB4. 21'
wIJ R=, soo,      d=0°51' 07'- T-_'

42 Z9•   o SEf 2 I/ 2 9RA55 OISK 5( AMPE' LS 8817' IN
N45' 36' 34° E( R) R_ qj q-     

MONUTAENT 8% PER Lltt OF IATHROP STAN AR S
L= 6q. t5           L= 127. 75' BN Y-'-

o 0 2
ft= 4314_ 00' d= 7P78_ 9' U851_ 07' M- M a

AIONUMENT OF RECORO TO BE SEf PER TRACT 37B9

m
N4a° 45' 28' E( N)f a       ' o NONIIlAENT OF RELOR TO BE SET PFR TRACT} BOB

p m N

29. 00'   f-

f CHIMES STREET
N

CLE POIM

v^ Li 4- 4Tz6' H= 43q3. 00' d= 9• 35' 28'      

BNDY BOIlNOARY

v
m

rvJ
W L- 53. 62-    ` 47' 23'   _ .  L= 727. 01'     

f

L= 59. 8fi -       
97' 23'      

d= 0° 47' 23'      EX

EXISIINCNE
I J

vu
O r, 

o
p

m

fl= 20. OD'     _      L= 59. Bfi -  -- -    _    `° 47' 23'   
p= 0° 47' 23'      A= 0° 47' 23'     ____d= 0° 47' 23'1- 59, 86    - IA- IA lAONVMENT TO MONIIMEMd= B7' 2B' 00'   L= 59. 86 -  --= 58. 86'-  -   

QB          

mj  =
70. 53

L= 59. Bfi'     - L= 58. B6'   
M- PL MONUMENT TO PROPER7Y LINE

A    ^    PUE PUBLIC Ulllltt FASEMENT

77302 SF M& P MAPS AND PIAiS

N45° 38' 42•         

P  

7.    I     WE WALL EASEMENi

N45° 38' 42' E fi3fi1s SF q R)      RA W. BFARING
34. 03' BNDY

7 E    
34. 03' 

83fi1t SF
fi3613 SF

fi36a SF
A 9

PULLBACK OISTANCE

9fi,       
N 63fi1t SF fi3fi13 SF 69fi12 SF

RECORD DISiANCE
47. 00'       3

S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAONN COUN7Y RECOROS
N44° 21' 16' 4y      a= o° 53' 12•"I54.96' BND'    '' fiB. B3.     .

reL

1713,.,,.     `
47' 23•      

e

i 3 3` i SHEEf INOE%
0° 47' 23'      d= 0° 47' 23'     

0 47' 23'      A= 0° 47' 23'
L= 61. 31  .,..   

z

6= 0° 47K3'   

Z

p=°     N45° 26' 09' E 10. 00' BN Y 6L37 
r.  r l=e7a1 _     L= et.st .-. ,_,_, L= stsi r   .. L= 61, 31 Na4' S6' 7p'_ELR) fl= 4448. 00'  C= 12° 00' 42°  L= 932. 48' BNDYR= 4500. 00•     I

d= 11y5' 32•
O r-_= 884. M-__  I   __'

R° 45oo. 00  TRACT NO. 3809R= 4500. OD' d= fi• SU' iB•= 537, 07' M- M
d= 8' 50' 18'

STANFORD IN/    
L- 537. 07' M- M

J' j Sl1BDIVI5I0N5 OF SAN JOAOl1IN COUNTY
CROSS         Y''    STANFORO CPOSSING- PHASE 18

A SIIBDIVISION OF LOT 2, OF TPACT 3709 AS pECOpOED IN BOOK 42 OF

W PS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAOUIN WIINTY PECOHOS BEINQ A

POflTION OF SECTION 27 TOWNSHIP 1 SOIfIH PANGE 6 EAST NOUNT

UTABLO BASE d NENIOIAN

CIN OF LATHPOP

SAN JOPQfIIN COUNTV, CALIFOflNIA

o Zo Qo eo mac Y somps
e_    s,_ 2;

On- 1]- 20 9 & Skm Jell Uv P:\ 2521)\ SFV AVSPINL\ fu\ PMISE IH\ iP] B09 FLI- OI. pN' C

SCALE: 1'= 40'
SHEEi 3 OF 8 APRIL12 9 25213- 01

154



R FERENCES:

SEE SHEET 6 R- 1 TRACT N0. SSSS MAPS k PlATS 9N. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- i TRACT Na. 3709 IAPPS k PlA7S BK. 42, PC. 99, S. J. C. ft.

R-} TRACT No. 58 8 MPPS k PUTS BK._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

4Z
43 44 45

46 47

4B_--       R= 4000. 00'     BASIS OF BEARINGS:
4` 5 3    THE 9EARINC NORTH 64' S6' 12' EASL BEiWEEN FOUND MONl1MEM5

L= 346. 17' BNOY ON SPARTAN WAY( FOflMFRLY IATHROP ROAD) AS SHOWN ON

R= 4046. 00'       TRACT 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF M0.P5 AND PIATS, AT PAGE 100,

N34' 27' 42 LIR      =
Z x9 Z     

p R- 4046       SpN JDAOUIN COUNiY RECOftDS, W/5 USEO AS THE BASIS OF

g SUNOL STREET 1i9.
7fi' M- M_-'

ry31' S8' 22 ES- p000       BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

N58' 43' 45"" R) R-
p= 042' 5T'   N33' 44'4SE( R)    NE

R= 4046. 00' d= fi' 41_ 59' L_ 477. 71_ M- M___'--'- T' p=0•39' 24'    _
50. 56'  29. 00' NOTES'

N35' OTO6' E R)  ' qfi • 

R= q075. 00'  I. ALL OISTANCES SHOWN ARE CROUND LEVEL DISTANCES.

29. 00'    i am 2. INACT 3809, STANFORD CROSSING PHASE IB COMAINS 96
i a g p= 0' S4' 35' ___  

Curve Table RESI ENTW. 10T5, COMAINING 22. 72 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,

R= 4075. 00' A= 6' 02' 35' L= 429. 80'
84. 70'  

RnO.ar  _ N. 4,°   INCWDING THE ROAOWAYS 1HA7 ARE BEING OE ICAiFD BY THIS FlNAL

d= 0' 54' 5d'     A= 0' 44' 3fi'       
R=20. 00'    _

L= 0' S4' S4'      d= 0' S4' S4' 
65. 08"- -''`'

2' B7
HERF1 (   E REFER TO THE ARFA SUAIMARYd B rve Redlus Oelta LengN N. P FAS

fiS. OB'----    i   '    1 L 32 00

3B L= 31. 11  , 1 TABLE BELOW) WNd 91' 4fi'     

9° 07' S7'      4200'   Cu #

L= fiS. OB' --  - R= 2D. 0'     T d= 98' S1' 01•        m -       
Ct 4343. 00' 0' 11' 49' 14. 92'

I o
L= 30. 32'  '     n      I    m      7553x5F       '

N'  Ct 4343. 00' 0' 17' 49' 74. 92'       TRACT 3809 AREA SUNMARY

S o
I

m o,   q  1 PUE

C2 90. 00'  12' S6' S2' R0. 34'  96 RESI ENML LOTS AND SiREEf 22J24 AC

31 w 30 Z9 DEDICAiIONS
33 32    '    692345F r-       C2 90. 00'  12° 56' S2' 20.37'

694QtSF   '
yq

696125F       78&SSSF
1 m H   NSg. Q` 53. y1p5.00'

I W I   N  

I

C3 62. 00'  21' OB' 02' P297'  TOTAL 42. 723 AC

1p' ptlE

5 0' 3 Y5 9' W 1 7. 53'     Q:      A C3 6200'  21' OB' 02' Y7. BT

74. OT W         
6303k5F m d O C4 90, 00'  13' 10' 25' 20. 69'

N57' 4552VJ79.OT Im           z

LEGEND
49. 13'   p.7a

Bfi. 76 e 7 +¢ 1

71. 89'   1 m [^ 1 W  ( 1] N m        
9. 00'  13' 1025' P0. 69'

N51' 15' SU N N53' 4552W J] •    i      o i..]  "     OISTINCTNE BORDER

I  '- Q Z
CS 62.00'  1' 30'44' 1. 64'

N58' 07' S9'`
05. 00'      -   

O      RIGHT OF WAY UNE
p'" I ,       o i

w C5 6200'  1' 3tt44'  7. fiA'     LOi 4NE/ PARCEI IJNE

am    
m I<      ,` em

e  ;. 1 m o ISTINC PROPERtt LINE

o I m       zqy  m„ I 16 7+    EASEMENT LME

24          25          
e Z      0 7762sSF

I
mo     \    

I b293i5F   }

WE      + Z lAONIIMENT UNE

26      "'   6776tSF a" REl1N0UI5HlAENT OF ABURER' S RICHiS

6fi97t5F 6fi9B35F    "'    
P

i  
r=    R= 20. 00'  

1             ` CS H
FOUND 2 1/ 1' BRASS ISK IN CONCRETE

d=93' 01' 27'       __   r MONUAIENi 80% UNIESS OTHERHISE NOTED

L= 32. 47'      - N58° 01' S3' W7022B'I d o SEi 2 1/ 2' BRA55 DISK STAIAPED' LS 8817' W

p= 0' 4fiYe'-- N69_< t_ 3} W RI a'    LOT 4 MONUMENi 80% PER CfIY OF IATHROP SiAN0AR05
rmi z

z

o mm,    ". `     '_   -   '
0' S2' 03'--  --''

S2' 03'--      
R OO. U d

TRACT 3789
AIONVAIENT OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER iRACT J789

A= U' 52' 03'--  -- A
L= 64. BB

L= S7. BB'    n.     - -   A= 5° O7' S1'      

L= 64. BB' L= fi4. Be'      e L 6. 3q'       G+    R- ZJ
I M NIIMEM OF RECORO TO BE SEi PER iRACT} 808

R= 4285. 00' 4= 8' S2' S3' L= 604. 21'   N34' S9' 34' E( RJ rv
PNGLE POIM

ygpp-'
i pvp• q7' 09' I      „ 15

m        BNDY BOUN ARY

L= 51. 64'_     
v 70B23s SF

m
J

CL CEMERLINE
V_______'__  

R= 4374. 00' A' 11' 18__ 09'_ L= 851. 01 M' M_-   -- 
p_ 1' 03' 23'       ; E7(      E% ISIING

N75' 21' 47' E( R-     L= 7B. 53       
p", /   

M- A1 M NI1MENi TO MONUMEM

CHIMES STREET 29ar__'       0 
0        R= 304 0' N- PL M NI1MENi TO PROPER7Y UNE

Rc6'

AA a1 y    
A= 5° 01' S1' PUE PUBUC UTILIiY FlSEMENT

q= 4343. 00' C= 9' 35' 28' L= tt7. 01'
I

C7 C2 C3     ;.     

S    L= 26. 34'
MkP MAPS AND PNTS

A= 0' 47' 23'  

A= 0' 47' 23' o

d= 0' 47' 23'   
A= 0' 47' P3'  WE WALL EASEMEM

L= 59. 87"- -       
h?/

1 3' WE 31' S8' OTE ry} 7: 58 10' E, RL= 59. 86''-  -- L= 59. Bfi''-  

qS7 Rl    __     
R      RADLIL BEARING

L= 59. 88"-  _  

m 50. 00' f.
g Sti12    PULL9ACK ISTANCE

o y o
ND;

05'
b8  

RECORD DISTANCE
o'+   

2494= SF L

4939  -

S. J. C. R.    SW JOAOUIN COl1N7Y RECOR S
in o p

m12 g
7. 0     ,  

0          g 10 6362t5F 6733t5F N
00 3    SHEEf INOEX

63fi1s5F 6361SSF 636135F A°''  91d. 7,b O       
i N34' 25 3]° E R 

ryA 1 Pya
p

N l

r---- a

r     

p_.  
o.,   o

e

3 A= 0' 56' 14'      L= 776. 51'•     r

6•

p= 0' 47' 23•      
C= 0' 47' 23'       _

72. 76'-   

r

C= 0' 47' 23'      d= 0' 47' 27'       _

fi1. 31' 
fi1. 31' r+

L= 61. 31' -.   l- s-
L= 61. 31' rr

R. 4500A
R= 4448. 00' A= 12' 00' 42' L= 932_48' BNDY

ry32' S5' 30' E( R R= 4448'       p: fi' S9' 3B'
17' N' R) R' 91

11    

549. 29 M--'
R= 4500. 00'

N2742  (    

s a5o., e  TRACT NO. 3809L- 577.OT M- M

R= asoo. 00 e= s_ so• ie• = ea_ oi_ M-M_-_------      SUB IVISIONS OF SAN JOADUIN COUNTY

STANFORD

CROSSING
STANFOPD CPOSSING- PHASE 1B

A SIIBDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF TIIACT 3799 AS flECOflOED IN BOOK 42 OF

MAPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAOUIN fAIINTV qECOP05 BEING A

PONTION OF SECTION 27 TOPMSNIP 1 SOIfIFI PANGE 6 FAST 1f0UNT

OIABLO BASE 8 NEXIOIAN

SAN JOA UIN COU flCALIFOHNIA

0 20 40 80 n{{ 0
SCALE: I'= 40' suza rP mx m vv..• i i. u n za ivsslies- wo

09-] 1- 2019 B Jelf U+      P:\ 25i13\ SKV ANPPItiG\ FM\ PNqSE IB\ lfl J809 fY- Oi. NG
H 4 F 8 APRIL 2019 7$ 21- 01

155



REFERENCES:

R I TRACT NO } 5}} MppS k PlA7S 6K. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2 TRACT Na. 7789 MAPS& PIATS BN. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.

r
l

R-} TpqCT No. 7908 MAPS& PUTS BK._, PC._, S. J. C. R.

0'      
BASIS OF BEARINGS:
7NE BEARING NORTH fi4' S6' 14' EfST BEIWEEN FOUND lAONUFIENTS

ON SPMTAN WAY( FORlAERLY IAiHROP ROAO) AS SHOWN ON

Q     TRACT 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF 61AP5 AND PfATS, AT PAGE I00,

EE$ HEEf 7 SAN JOAOUM COUNIY ftECOR05, WAS USEU AS RiE fl 515 OF

BEPRINCS SHOWN HEREON.
58

l NOTES:
I. ALL IS ANCES SHOWN AAE GROUND LEVEL DISTANCES.

LL 2. TRACT J809, STANFORU CROSSING PHASE 1B COMAINS 9fi

59
RESIDENiIhL LOTS, CONTNNING 22. 72 ACRES, AIORE OR LE55,

INCLU ING THE ROMWAYS IFiAT pPE BEWG OEOICATEO BY THIS FlNAL

AUP, All SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFASE REFER TO iHE ARFA SUAIMARY

j
60

s      
TABLE BELOW)

j     ,/   \     `       `\      TRACi 809 ARFA SUMMARY

c R= 3778. oU
96 RESIDEMIAL LOTS AND SiREEr 22J2t AC

N79° 14' 34° E p=5• os' oa•
OEOIcanONS

ss. a sNo    4P       CE T  ,       L= 33523' M-04  --

R`  
TR

pACI C

oT.   z.:: A

V /  g Nfi5' I4' 38' E, R)    S pO. Q
4' rs„ 3z

a= ze•oZ5 5B, F86.26STREET
1. fT 2a4.] 5' M. PL _—_—_

o   -

OO

O

y'V Bz3e3?= 5ss. 00 a_
e. as sr _—       

LEGEND

a/   
d, g. qs,     

265. 74•     DISTINCTIVE BOROFR

Q /  Bp, 383__    d= 6• q5' 23•       RIGHT OF WAY 11NE

gp
57

L= fiy. 38' -- ----' LOT LINE/ PARCEL L1NE

0       857DtSF          
l E% ISiINC PROPERiY L1NE

m2p
FASEMFNi UNE

t$    796o6SF        
ONUlAEM LME

w W i

j     /          \       ^
m• 55

REIJNOUISHMENT Of ABUTTER S RIGH( S

ry 7747z5F w         53 FOUND 2 I/ 2' BRA55 DISK IN CONCREiE

lAONUMEM BO% UNLE55 OTHFRWISE NOTED

e9

N3g' 3g'

yyry7z
2

u'^'    

7542i5F     _ 

SEf Y I/ 1' BR0.55 OISK STAMPEO' LS 8877' IN

ae`      

46'' 
IAONUMEM BOX PFR CIIY OF IATHROP STAN AR S

j         
0 58, 7g•   

B. Og•      w I-I'     ONUAIEM OF RECOftO TO BE SE PER TRACi 3) 89

2 N

3B53yyy
Zs.ze'       259'     

ANGLE

POINOF
RECORD TO BE SE( PER TRAC1} 808

N3Jg140   '   N53° 21' 27' W75.74'  
N

BNDY BOUNDARY

a 97'     S9. 68'  
S9'       CL CENTERUNE

j
13. 18'   

EX E% 6TINC

Y N M- M IAONUMEM TO MONUMENT

BB

o
M- PL MONUMEM TO PROPERTY I1NE

NSY20_ 25' E R 3B 39          PUE PU6LIC UTILItt EtSEIAENT

1053025F      '' i
8036t5F

w

40 p M& P A4AP5 PND PlATS

u 7324: SF m 47 42 w 43 WE WAIL EASEMENT

i 65fi425F 6270SSF         R)      RPDIAL BFANMG

w PULIBACK OISTANCE

A= 1' 37' 02'
AECORO ISTANCE

4;,
37 4 ---   

p. s      _      S. J. C. R.    S4N J ApI11N COIINtt RECORDS

R 
100'`

f03. 87'  0' 43' 09'—   . 6= 0' SE' P3'-- —'= 0' S723'-- -- 6= 0' S2' 23'"— Z     $
HEEI INOE%47

L- 50. 42'       L= 6122' L= 8122' L= 61. 22'   JN6fi° 43' 12• E
d' 4' f0' 49' L= i76. 5fi'

R= 4017. 00' d= B' 28' 23' L= 594: 04'

N56_ 00' 70_ E RZ R, 5=
03' BNDY

O. 00' e_ a._      5p49 L= 1P9. 56' M- M —'—'------ 
R= 404B. 00' A= 6' 4P59' L= 473. 11' M- M_____'__,(]

Y

SUNOL STREET
1—  ------- -------- -------  --------  -------- ------       

TRACT NO. 3809
Sl1BDIVISI0N5 OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNN

37
36 35 3q 33 32 31 STANFOPO CPOSSING- PHASE 1B

A 51160IYISION OF L0T 2 OF TPACT 3789 AS pEC HDED IN BOOK 42 OF

MSPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAOVIN COIINTY NECOfl S BEING A

SEE SHEET 3 POHTION OF SECTION 27 TOYRISHIP 1 SOIRH flANGE 6 FAST NOUNT

DIABLO BASE 6 NEHIOIAN

CIN OF LATHPOP

SAN JOADUIN COUMY CALIFOflNIA

o zo  < o eo RIACKAY S SORIPS
SCALE: 1'= 40'

i- a rz. ia nw:u' u wva tssslns- or.°m
oe- n- zais e aeu m r: zszi3\ sav unaamc ru aHnsc ie ra neas nn- os. o nc SHEET 5 OF 8 APRIL 2019 25217- 01

156



REF R NC S:
R- 1 TRACT N0. 35J3 MAPS k PlAiS BK. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2 TRACT No. 3789 AIAPS h PIATS BK. 42, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

SEE SHEET 8

a

1
91

R- 3 TRACT No. J800 MAPS h PLUS BN._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

1   

d g       `  
N`'

0.1'
ot    `  

BASIS OF BEARINGS:
fi6          ,

7 \,         b Y

THE BFARING NORTH 64' S6' 1P' FASI BER4EEN FOUND MONUMENTS

fi7 a    a O ON SPARTAN WAY( FORMFRLY IATHROP ROAD) AS SHOWN ON

N  
90 m TRACT 3533, IN BOON 40 OF 6/ APS AND PfATS, AT PAGE 100,

68
55, 5(

N1fi5 1      `          6327x5F SAN JOAOUIN COUMY RECOROS, WAS USEO AS hiE BA515 OF

N
1 0 `

m  

Z      BFARINGS SHOWN HEREON.69 m

e10     " t+l°
25T           

NOTES:
Nfi0° 3' 16NJ

r '  '     
1

N
4  

o,     1. ALL DISTPNCES SHOWN ARE GROUND LEVEL OIS ANCES.N53' 22' S8' WfiY25'       . 
44. 6T aa `-1.

m+      \  

N60' 03Yfi1V
2. TRACT 3809, S ANFORD CROSSING PHASE 18 CONTAINS 96

Qw ,      
RESIOEMIAL LOTS, CONIAINING 2I. 72 ACRES, A10RE OR LE55,

33. 18'       
N69• 55' 52^ N      o o N INCLUDINC THE ROADWAYS THAi AAE BEING DEOIC4iED BY iH15 FlNAL

m 53' YY58' W          
77.'  `   

a, Y
o10 o m 

89       `

n

Z
wP./ Il. SHOWN HQ2EIN.( PLfASE REFER TO THE ARFA SUMMPRY

i r 29.4J'       ^    w 65
1.

m
9251t5F

1
o d       a

j BWPSSF      `
TABIE BELOW)

w fi2 w
7144xSF      

7 7SSF        1 m d 1e      . R=20. 00'   
N30_08; 39; E( R

61       .   7171tSF A R= 20.00,   R       
1

1 TRACT J809 ARFA SUMMAR(

Z e= ss° zo oz•         
85° 1B' S2'    

34'- `,

d A= 0' 43' 3B'     
29• B  -

79
96 RESIDENTIPI LOTS AND 51REET 72. 72f AC

L= 33. 63'   Bfi. 77
1 w7. se' 34. 35'

BNDY

EOICATIONS

3' 12°
p= p• 55' ta'_-      

3149. 00' ' Z

0' S8' 51'-  TOTAL 22. 725 AC
p= 0' SB' 51'-----'     

L= 6021' 
749_

p= U' SB' S1'--  --      l=fib. t7' N3Z1151 EiR)?=_

L= B6. 17'
L- 84. 1T'    

N32' S8'S9' E( R)_
R= 4000'

q=7749. 00' A= 4' 15' 36' L= 270. 75' 

29. ar
p= 0' 49' 26' 

N6E5924W R)

o L- 54 37' d= 0' 2501'

L= 19. 11'

500. 00' A= 33' S6' S6' L= 29B25 h4M R= 3778. 00' A' S' 05' 03' L= 335_ 23 M- M_-- T _ 44. 06•  •
N32' S0' 19' E( R)i    N3Y09' 33' ESR) R= 3778_

N6Z342}(
R) R= 4000 LEGEND

R= 529. 00'  
CENTRAL

PACIFIC
STREET 29. 00'      

ISTINCiNE BOROER

d= 48' 46' 57'     
R= 3807. 00' A= 4' 24' 16' L= 292. fi6'     

p= 0' S0' 04'_      
29pp

L= 265. 74'     p= 0' 57' 35'       
A= 0' 57' 35'     __

55. 44'  '-'       
RIGHT OF WAY LINE

A= 0' 41' 2T'     
A= 0' S7' 35'  _ ___

By77'--  --
L' 63. 77' T R= 20. 00'      

LOT 3 LOT LINE/ PARCEL IJNE

P TRACT 3 a9 E% ISIINC PROPERIY L1NE
h -----   -- L= 45. 91'- -- L= 83. 77' - A= 85' 14' 10'

qS EM LINE

m
F L= 29. 75'

W g       p pUE E,' O R- Z     
MONUMENi LINE

2 m
a= 7° 53' 16'      S 7, m i REUNOUSH AENT OF ABURER' S RIGHfS

W g  `' 43

o p W 50 w qg r m wj m`   FOUN 2 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCREfE

y g
SZ      .    

51      ,   fi77225F o B213SSF r j  AIpN IAENi BO% UNLESS OiHERW15E NOTED

53 sentSF
54       '   6955t5F

6840lSF    °!,    m i      Qo SET 2 7/ Y Bft0.55 ISK SiAMPED' LS 9817 IN

o z
i

If . 
W

n j AIONl1M. EM 80% PER Cltt OF IATHROP STAN PftDS

N6U39_ 2P'' S. R_      X'-T    ONUTAENf OF RECORD i0 BE SEf PER TRACT 3789

N56° 0397' W' 23  ` 

N

a'`'         I- E°-     MONl1MEM OF RECORD TO BE SEI PER TRACT J808Z
Z       .   

fi5. 5T 5g. 4fi•  ` 
a   

AIJCIE POWT

N`+1°21' 27^ N  '
7931'   

40. 52'   
25. W

o

BNDY BOUNDPRY

fi8. 12'  
3250'  N5fi' 03' 31" N N56° 0331^ Nb9. 6T

oo o CL CENTERLME

N53" 21Z7W59. 6M1'     S9. 63'
NSSY7' 18^ N45. 91' 13. 93'   

45. T'    E%      E% ISTING
1 @ d a M- M MONUMEM TO IA NUMEM

13'   m. n 6 K a M- PL MONUMENi TO PROPERtt I1NE

PUE PUBLIC U IIIIY FASElAEM

aa        <  L07 4 Me a Mnas a o aurs

g g
46 w 53 125F

w 7415s5F  I d'  WE WALL FASEMEM

42 w 43 w         
p

W0125F      
9t5F     

rv     ' 
R40. 00' 11            

T

R' 2)

7a9
R)      RP IAL BFARING

fi2B32SF
fi302t5F     N Y9. 0' PULLBACK OISTANCE

A= 92° OB' 29'
g i I RECORD DISTANCE

L= 32. 18'  
S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COUMY RECOR S

i p= 0' 48' O6'-
p= 0' S2' 23'--    _

5. 88'      
N32' 41Y8' E( R)       3'p= 0' S2' 23'--      

fi 22 SHEEf M EX
p= 0' S2' 23'----      l=   

iI Y9. 00'
d= 0' S2' 23'.- --'

0' SY' 23'- -  

67. 22'
V'61. 22'

L= fi1. 22'
L= 61.22'  p= 0° 42' S6'

R= E077. 00' A= 8' 28' 23' L= 594. 04'     

o N34' 27' 42 E R   L 50. 54'      

R_ 4046'
y'      `. N31' S8' 2YESR__-

400

yyp•-=
175. 76' M- M

N  
N56' 43' 45" W( R)

R' 4a48. 00' ' 2 2

R= 404fiAU' A= 6' 4P59_ L= 473. 11' M- M

SUNOL STREET wW      -----   N31° 58' 07° E

W F    31429' BNDY CT NO. 3809
31----------- o'     1B SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOIIIN COUNTY

32 30
29

I      `

I
H    STANFOPO CP053ING- PHASE 1B

II O    I

A SIlBDIVI5I0N OF LOT 2 OF TflACT 3799 f5 PECOflOEU IN BOOK 42 OF

AAPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 89 SAN JOAQUIN COIINTV PECOP S 9EING A

POqTION OF SECTION 27 T01' MSHIP 1 SOIfIX NANGE 6 EAST LIOUNT

i OIABLO BASE 6 NEflIDIPN

CITY OF LATHHOP

SEE SHEET 4
SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY CALIFOpN7A

o Zo ao eo
RIACKAY SOmPS

n, o. mu,. G s., , am=

n- zz- zois ss9 m uamo ma v: isii sav unrairvc r vwuE iu\ ia ao9 rni- osowc
SCALE: I"= 40'

SHEET fi OF 0 APRIL 2019 252i7- 01

157



REFERENCES:L07 6
R-) 1RACT N0. 3533 MAPS k PlATS BK. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

a$      TRACT 3729 R- 2) TRACT No. 3789 MAPS& PlATS BK. 42, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

y;yo=^+^' R_ Z   R- 3) iRACi Na. 7808 AIAPS k PlATS BK._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

LoCpMa R' 878. 00 a_<
Ct   $      ' Bso.

o.   
TIVE

STRE       - '°
oe' 2g• L= q7611' BNDY

BA51S OF BEARINGS:

Curve Table THE BFARINC NORiN 64' S6' 12' EASI 6EiWEEN FOUND MONUMEN S
c,     

4  

dc
5

4g

Lep`
BB. 55'

Er
Cwvep ReAus Delm Lenglh TRACT 353J, WABOOK 40ftOF lMPS AND PIA,TS ATHP GE 00,

o,`'P' O  /\( Q9'
S3 B•` 

R`
8 9 00•

a,    

zq
Zz M p   

M`--____   

C1 Z783. 00' 0° OB' 22' 6. 7T BFAR NCS

SHOWNU
REON. ORDS, Wf5 USEU AS THE 84515 OF

Q='

py/// 

Ca5•
3275o5p6'

La939. 49'      A79fi0T47?

t

C2 90. 00'  12' 49'25' 20. 14'

V' l'  /   
s5. se      

N

L= 217. OYM M NOTES:
A  

y W
4= 5• 3z

5,  
C3 6200'  11° 599' 7201'      I, ALL DISfPNCES SHOWN ARE GROIlNO IEVEI DISTANCES.

90 BSF q

BS. fiB'__   d= 5•  
2. IRACT 3809, SiANFORD CROSSNG PHfSE IB CONTAINS 96

78' SB•
A= 5• 47' S2'      ____ C6 80. 00'  14KPdT R2. Sfi' FESIOENTIAL lOTS, CONTAINING 22, 72 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,

62. 61'-     - L= fiB. 71' -Q-/ 
W ?    INLLUOING 1HE ROADWAYS TH4T ARE BEINC OE ICATED BY 7H15 FINAL

N tr     o

y
CS 899. U'  2Y4' 01' 34. 65

Mpp q SHOWN HEREIN.( PLElSE REFER TO THE AREA 5116/. NPRY

7597 87
TABLE BEIOWOk,

R
Ig 123125F          

o o o CB 918. 00'  3K5' 09' S4. 78'       
N       ' 1      =       w s

yp'       /     
Z8'

sgzB g es a c  z sa. 00 rosm• szra
py   0 7249t5F     ,

ow
85      ¢      w B3 TRACi 3809 AREA SUMMARY8. 

w r+     k            . C9 2757. 00' 0' 39' 72' 31. 40'z2'
BNDY N. 2

6915xSF
717xSF N 96 RESIOENML LOTS AND S1REEf 42. 71f AC

0

o/

R'/^     
84

yv
z

C9 910. 00'  1' S3' 3Y' 30. 32'    OEOICATIONS

ry    /   \\   y

C10 fi78. 00'  0' 2TSY 4. 51'

N4Jy439 TOiAL 42. 72! AC

998,    
W75.69'   C11 YO. UO'  73' 2433' 25. fi7

N43y4' 9
Q  4.  /  

7'

S9. 18' .
18'     N51' 35' 17' W79. 30'

59. 79'

a m0 83
12372t5F

W o F LineTable LEGEND

j,       L \     2 6 g DI5IINCTIYE BORDER
V o fi84925F    , W`    L1neN Bea ing lengN

p'     02 e            78 79 RIGHT OF WAY 11NE
G'      B fi756SSF

fi6Bif5F N L1 N1C' 4730' W 29.00'

t5.       A     kP  z

EXISiINC PROPER7Y LINE
Y        

82

ry

74      $,      54
2' 49'"-      

r L2 N75' 74' 13' W 29.00'    

b'
ry` 77782 5F 55. 18'    `   I`     ON U ENi 11NE

0'      
yo 9

948 9'' Cq
CS     - a' 4 9' 42'--      01---      

REl1NOl115H1AENTOFABUIiER' SRICHIS
d= 4' 19' 42'--

0 6
O'   g, s   OUNO 2 I/ 2 BW55 OISK IN CONCREfE

N
s°

a    y ry N4T54' 24' E( R) R= eB9. 00' d= 43• 50' 34• = 369. 94'    P= 978. 00'   
o    '  5

ZMiNi BO% I1ME55 OTHERW6E NOTED

j?-  Cq i 29. 00'     a= 15° 11' 58'    Qo 2' BRA55 OISK SiAMPED' LS 8817' IN

q

v

L1lR/ `,` C9 i'' R 878. 00'       
L= 243. 52' N- N 40NUMENi BO% PER CIIY OF IATHROP STANOAROS

W&    ' i 4' 15 71' S6' MONUMENi OF RECORD TO BE SEi PER TRACT 37894 L= 243. 52' M- M
00-            

O lAONUNENT OF RECORD TO BE SEi PER TRACT 38a0B'
66845F 2

R    '^

0  49K600' E( R) 29. 00'     

0       TELEGRAPH STREET ANGLE POINT

b.        >>,
2 BN Y BOUNDARY

N
b'     

y% ; ry     
S y   -  4= 5• OS' 39•      R= 947. 00' A= 25• 28' 47' L= 421. 73'    CL CEMERLINE

pa
y

ti    / 0ry:^`'    

R=20. 00' _ 
L= 89. p0'-'_'_  = 4' 26' 47' d= 4' O6' 35'       ___    E%       E% ISIING

1°+'    J o,%°     o°

j  >'

9     d= 64° 73' 3B' 3. 48'--- -' L= 67. 93'---" - M- M MONIIldENT TO MaNUMENT

p,      
Ap     ,

p" 
2:' i,y'   L= 22. 42'       M- PL MONUMEM TO PROPERIY UNE

O  
72 o     '   g A°?'  x PUE PUBL C U Lltt EASEIAEM

Bi68k SF y Q e     '? ov        m ul,   MkP MAPS AND PfATS

y'    o    .^  1037Qt5F         WE WALI EASEAIEM
R=20.00'     o^^

0A

Oy"iti      /   
W

R RADIAI BEARINGC/     .       A= 96° 59' S4'     0 h  e p   . Ab
w  fi9 68

N
B.      \ 2g.  L= 31. 07'   o   . v/    0 1041fis5F

W

8035s5F
PULLBACK ISTANCE

7'
l   .?9yy

N   •      i       /,
00

ti     
N,

sy RECORD OISiANCE
g            

o          
e

o m S. J. C. R.    SW J AOUIN COUMY RECORDS9B

9k    ro^     o-^'' Y
J/      Qr

o°
m ^   R

7Cr     / R 215      4N  /   ryy'w 1,     S3j, i 3,    SHEET INDE%
I'l    \vj     ° s.

6 qe  o     
wa

aS^  \       
r

r   

4r  i ee rv   
N

b'
W5,       o

M7' 719' E29.00' M- PL R= 20AP 9244kSF 9< Q' N53' Y2' SBWT5. 9T
L          /,` 

9g    / e= si° oz m N45yB'00' W5926'      fi215 Ci
1 = at. 7a' R=471. 00' w N

N          6= fi° 49' 46°     . n"      

BO 1            
B z» 7y  

e s\ L= 56. 14' BNDY,. 2
59 o m m m TRACT NO. 3 809

Q/    
B' 

r,f Ns91j4836435F

W
60 62

SUBOISTANOflDC

OSSIGJOPHASENIBOUNTY
rRp,cr saoa       ,`$/   R t'     Sf 7457t5F   ' Q

s     e A SIIBDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF TPACT 3789! S pECOflDED IN BOOK 42 OF

7fi6325F MAPS AND PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOA UIN LOIINTV pEfAq S 9EING A

R- 3J                 
V    \,

d   
o PONTION OF SECTI N 27 T YMSNIP 1 SOIITH, NANGE 8 FAST 110111I

R= 500. 00'   O
O UTABLO BASE 8 NEflIOIAN

C= 5° 5fi' S3'' o•
D'

0'+,
P'

g).
50 e= o° zs sz•        CIN OF LATHHOP

L= 51. 91' M- PL( R3h\    
a1^ 0  _ CE/

yTRA R=
0.

0p•
d,

y.  
7, 02    '-  - 4= 5' S3'

186- 03 -------'
0 20 40 BO

JOA(I/UIN COUNfY CALIFORNIA

78 9$     \      Sm^  , 
L P.9CI, l

O
yO• 1= 222. 94'       

L= 49. 47'  AY 0
F tEET         '     aaras. 00• e= o° se' si•     scuE: i'= ao'       P: u,.  i,. m: s-« o

os- n-: m9 s. aa m uamo ma a: asni vrv\ u^ aau+ e ru axnse ix m eov rM- m. oac

SEE SHEET 5 64• T
SHEET 7 OF 8 APRIL 2019 2521d- Ol

158



1
LOT 5 i REFERENCES:

T/ 1CT 3 89             R- I) TRACT N0. 3533 MPPS @ PlATS 6K. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2)   /  R- 2J TRACT No. 3789 MAPS& PU7S 9N. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.

LDT 6 p i i
R- 3) TRACT Na. 3909 A4W5& PIATS BN._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

7RAC7 3789

1A5a50N
N a   /  BASIS OF BEARINGS:

IR- ZJ
N 7'

15
A     

n
THE BEARING NORfH 64' S6 12' F/ ST BEIYIEEN FOIIND MONl1FIEM5

y  ON SPPRTPN WAY( FORMERLY lA1HROP RORD) AS SHOWN ON

R=650.00'
p

a, t TRACT 3533, IN BO K 40 OF IAPPS AND PIATS, AT PACE 700,

SW JOAOUIN COUNtt RECORDS, WAS USED AS THE Bt5i5 OF

L= 3553' hLM
N p50j   

g'' BFARINCS SHOWN HEREON.

2+ NOTES:  

pY
1. ALL DISiANLES SHOWN PRE GROUNO LEVEI DISIANLES.

476.
BN

R>
6,-'$   

514tiy
3n. Ni2 50NQ   

2. TRACT 7809, STPNFORD CROSSING PHASE IB CONTAINS 9fi

R= 618. 00' A= 44° OB' 29  
52

q E RI
IR;

4000      ,

g
11+       

55
RESIDENiIAL LOiS, CONTAINING 22. 72 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,

N2;'• pq' v     ( 17.
570   "

N N A IN0. U ING 1HE ROADWAYS iHAT ARE BEING OEOICATFD BY THIS FlWJ.

OTNE STREET
N1052    -,

2•    m g.   IAPP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFASE REFER i0 THE AREA SUNMPHY9 5`

LOCOM
07. 41'"

21T a' Mi
3

4b 5
r o  ..+, 

P
N 2

5
A     

TABLE BELOW)
lc      `  

µ= 650. 0`
79'    <'4B' 09' E(R)f M̀O' 12'

14W p

J
O—  29. 00' 29.

00'  \  R=P0. 00'   gi TRALT 3809 AREA
SUMMARY G= B7' 44'

2fi'
m L_

qj9
by  -5

12,
5.  L=30. 63'     N 96 RESI EMIAL LOTS AND SiREET 22722

AC R=879. 00' A' 37' OS'
O6'   fijg7.-      

96

DEDICAiIONS A= 5' 47'
S2' p= 5' 32'

25'     --- R=20.
Otl^  Nfi9' S9' 40RN

795215F L=68.
71'--- --L=fi5.

66'"-     6= 84° 59'
37'   

p 29.
00'    6= 0°4fi' S9'     m TOTPL 22. 72t

AC L= 29.
67' 

UE L= 55.
05 1'     

i 0

p          \' o             
AYN

a

09.       
m

U',     82      ' T„     '       \   
p5q°

12 2 LOT
3 n

9174SSF ea m 89       ? u       
gs 7RACT 3789

LEGEND
7521t5F

p

m'    r o 6331t5F IZ- 2J 06TINCTNE B

ROER NR  Nbg5T18, LZ-} oo    \
1N

N RICFI OF WAY

UNE T' Z,Y,j97,

60'  
o

pUf LOT uNE/ PARCEL

11NE
N

lB           .+    

o \
C/  ^

Nla t03 EXISTING PROPEF7Y
UNE

5.      \  .  69.
Z'

44
m       '  EASEMEM

LINE 39. qYJ59AT r
p

N

IAONIIMENTIINE N51' 35'17W59.
41'   N     v      \3 a  i i REllN0UI5HMENT OF ABUITER' S

RICHIS- y 'Oo f o,     b4572SF
p /   FOUND 2 1/YBR0. 55 OISK IN

CONCRETE N o o MONUMENi 60%UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED j

81 N      , a`=  m
N po SET 2 1/ 2'BRASS OISN SiAMPEO' LS 6817'

IN
B554lSF N67° 41' 03' W( R)      o,  \     MONUMENi 80%PER CfIY OF IATHROP

STANDAROS

A n Z9•'\ yF,P

a, m

N       
oy llR1 9.'     MONl1MENi OF RECORD TO BE SET PER iRACi

3799
7e 7g m 6WB

SF pR 20. 00'    ;-"' 
y p p

N51"

Lg IAONUMENi OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER TRACT

3808 N
6595sSF    .°  4= 91' 47' 57' 1     o\ y` p •  \   ANGIE

POIM L A2.
04' p   ` o   93 9NDY B

UNDARY
N p; 4' tl' 65'-'       a",\  a, o      `

SF

y y CL

c6665'        

3oB
g.   i2900 m. N. E%       E%

ISTINC

e__ A_ q• 19'
42'"   N

o A= 4' 19'
42'--     L. 67. 7fi' N24' 03' S0' E( R)   

50.

24   
F11037 4      

n

E M IA MONUMENT TO

lAONUMEM M PL IAONUAIENT TO PROPER7Y

lIN fi7. 16'    
l_

9fi994' 29.
00'      -g.p, 91

PUE a 3q• 
5p- N1 PUBLIC UTILItt

EASEMENT
N R=BB9. 00' A- 23'

S M
M  / J

C`.
4B

qB'  

1

f

v" 9
N66'

9fi'     p M@P A7PP5 AN

PNTS 918.
0• p` 15 t1'

56'`

Zq3ix, N23' T73' E(
R) 92 m R)      FMIA

BEARNnC R B1B. 00_ y5'

1-
0_L=243. 5YMJA _

R=      y9, p0' 9 a 6356SSF O PULLBACK
OISTANCE p-    

7      

TELEGRAPH

STREET
o_,

26, p0.  ' 9 N sw oaauiN couNn R[

coRos RECORD

DISiANCE a
1=

56.

7B'      
a m .     S. J.C.

R. R=9L7. 00' A' 25° 28' 47' 1=421. t7'      _
qyt'

49 _    y\  Rl m,.OT R=20. 00'    P

C   p=4' N'
49' 

Lo6957       A=89' 4Q'

01'      
PN 10    

1
xbgqq3B'"   i 3,    SHEEf

INDEX E= 4' Ofi'
35' L=31.

32'     \   $
m.       L=67.

92--   --'L=fi9.

37'-
w 

C" 

N

66    

v     `
v  r` o

fi312t5F

J

915135F     ,  GN a 67
p

p
y 84742 SF

i  68     "'       1 C  1 o.g^
69          e2e6tSF   =' 1   .     '  G 5Y2

W1P1

N    ` 9     

N a,
bs, s    TI ACT NO. 3

809
N.

5g52" N 1

90 1       `;      1Sl1B0IVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN

COUNTY
µ,

03. 5y1T7 8r 1i       STANFOPO CBOSSING-

PHASE 1B N53° 725b^ N77.
75'    1 pp1 A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF TPACT 3789 AS pECOPOE IN BOOK

42 OF fi5           ` 19          NAP5 AN PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOA IIIN fAIINTY PECOROS
BEINO

A

29 p 1 POflTION OF SECTION 27, T04YNSHIP 1 SOIRH, PANGE 6

EAST,
4011NT

61
62 63 64 11 z DIABLO BASE

d NEflIOIAN O CIN

OP LATHROP SAN JOAOlI7N

COUNTV CALIFONNIA SEE SHEET 6 Ap/CO e 0 20 a0 so Y1 1i     

7 r m P.. w ,.:,. u5.• szsino-

a a e:3bm deu u.      e: zssi. r sxa wwci+ s ru vwu ie rA: aos ru-os.

o-ue SCALE: 
I'=40' SHEET 8 Of 8 APRIL 2019

159



OWNER' S STATEMENT:    T1 f CT NO. 3 810 CITY ENGINEER STATEMENT:

SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNN I, GIENN GEBHARDT, HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMINED THIS MAP OF ' fRACT N0. 3810,

THE UNOERSIGNED, OOES HERE6Y STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF ALL THE LAN   STANFOPD CROSSING- PHASE 21 SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY, STANFORD CROSSMC - PHASE 2A' AND THAT THE

ELINEATED AND EMBRACED W17HIN THE DISTINCTIVE BORDER OF THE HEREIN EMBO IED FlNAL A SUB IVISION OF LOT, OF TIIACT 3709 AS flECAP ED IN BOOK 42 OF SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON IS SUBSTANTIALLY 1HE SAME AS IT APPEARE ON 7HE VES7ING
MAP ENTITLED` fRACT N0. 3810 SUB IVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNT7, STANFORD CROSSINC-  MAPS HND PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOMUIN COtINTY AECOP S BEING A TENTATIVE MAP 7789, AND ANY APPROVED ALTERAlI0N5 THEREOF. I FURTHER STATE hiAT THIS

PHASE 2A' CONSISTING OF SIX( 6) SHEETS, THAT WE HAVE CAUSEO SAID MAP TO BE PREPAREO PORTION OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 7 SOIITH NANGE 6 FAST, NOUtir FINAL MAP COMPLIES N7TH ALL APPUCABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LAIHROP, AND ANY

FOR RECORD AND CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND RECORDATION OF SAID MAP, THAT SAID OIABLO BASE 6 IAEBIDIAN AMENDMENTS THERETO, APPLICA6LE AT THE TIME OF APPROVAI OF THE VESIINC TENTAPVE MAP.

MAP PARTICULARLY SETS FORTH AND OESCRIBES AlL THE LOTS INTENDED FOR SALE BY NUMBER CITY OF LATHPOP

WITH THEIR PRECISE LENGIH AND WIDTH.       SNN JOA O/UIN COUNTY CALIFOPNIA OATE THIS OAY OF 2019.

THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED 70 THE CITY OF LA7HROP AS AC. V1Y SO PS

oyRO
Css'

EASEMENTS FOR PUBUC Pl1RPO5E5:  
suso rturuw ezs)i=sEo ao GLENN GEBHAROT, R. C. E. 34681

7. THE REAL PROPERTY DESIGNATED ON SAID MAP AS' ATHENA STREET, BARBARA

Up

APRIL' 2019  CITY ENGINEER OF 1FiE No. 34681

TERRY BOULEVARD, CENTRAL PAqFIC STREET, GEORGE STREET, JEWELS STREET, CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

OCOMOTIVE STREET, AND PORT WASHINGTON STftEET'.     

2. A NON- EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT,    

160



REFERENCES:
R- I) TRACT N0.} 533 MAPS k PfATS BK. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2) TRACT N0. 3789 MAPS& PfATS BK 42 PG 99 S. J, C. R.

R- 3) TRACT N0. J809 MAPS& PfATS BH_ PC_ S. J. C. R.

II`    /   \       \     
LOT 6       /

l

BASIS OF BEARINGS:  .
y,-      i   /            \ TR4LT 3789 THE BEARINC NORiH T75Y S2' EfSi BEIWEEN THE FOUNO

lR- 21      /      f IAONUAIINfS ON GOL EN VAIIEY PARKWAY AS SNOWN ON TRACT

3789, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PIATS, AT PAGE 99, SAN

N77° 44' 46' E42. 00' BNDY o/ JOAOUIN LOI1Ntt NECOR S, Wf5 USEDlS THE Bt515 OF

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

az N 2' tsia waessallo4 y     /      /
LOT 5 NOTES:

7RACT 3729 I     I. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE CROUND LEVEL DISTANCES.
9fi

a R- Il n/   2. TRACT 3810, SiANFORD CROSSING PH0.5E 1A CONTAINS 76

m I     I RESI ENiIAL LOTS, COMAINING 15. 21 ACRES, IAORE OR LESS,

81  / INCIU ING 7HE ROADWAYS 7FUT ARE BEINC OE ICATEO BY THIS FINAL

j\\ \ / 95        
23

24

25

L CD'
O1'I{

S'

Z
15j4'{.y

49
I

y
l l

TABLE BEIOW)

HERON.( PLfASE REFER TO THE AREA SUMlAARY

a xz zs rRE y,    
oS,

alloy- 
l l

94
0

C

27 M2' 14' Sfi' W( R) 97.
91t rc%         iw ci aeto nacn su wwv

66   ' //  93 2``

V`'

28

29

N? I'
qy?

ZY E CATION

LOTS AND STNEEi 15.212 AC

TR4CT 3a 9/\       
20

ORGr
90

31

R         ,-'       )

R/ 31\  ga     
46 S?'

RE@T 32 17°' 46° E46. 01' BNDY

TOTPi 15. 21t AC

p 60
J  /  

9=    

19
72° 1514" W 4. 30' BNDIj

T   \\  '    /  65  /         
b ie cv

es s      
sa m    F,      /[

o7 sa
LEGEN

N30' OB' 39" E( R)      '   
48 TR4CT 3533 OISiINCTIVE BOROER

i  '  \ f      - r-- 7--      :   c 7s
R= 3749. 00' 2° 03' 12', L= 134\ 35' BNDY   `   90

p    '      j 58 62
0 R- Il RIGHi OF WAY IINE

j/     `  y
a Q j       o/ LOT 11NE/ PPACEL LINE

3 y E% ISTINC PROPER7Y 11NEM32' I I' S1' E R R- 74'    
y,    

Z 49 F
34

N62' S9' 24" W( R) t= 4000`    
a9,   _    

57 47 75
16      ^ Z`       CV 63

v       

EASEFIEM IINE

R 4000. OD' 2° 25' 49' SL= 169. 66' BNDY °
Q

50
35 v o/      /       MONIIMEM UNE

56 5 74 vy    y      /      
OO FOUND 2 I/ 2' BRASS OISK IN CONCREfE

49    15 G      
64

36 v
IAONUMENT 60% UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

V v /    
v/      SE 2/ 2 BRA55 OISK SiAMPED 75 8817 IN

57 55      
65

73 f  

o
MONl1MEN1 BO% PER CI1Y OF fATHROP STANOAR S

N6733' 35" W Z    3' 37      /    o/      / MONUlAEM OF RECORU TO BE SET PER TRACT} 789

47   ' Y
p

54
66

72 O p/    +"      / 
a MONUMEM OG RECORD TO 6E SEf PER TRACT 7809

aa  /   
2

C      V 3B h      ¢/       
ANGLE POIM

3 N'   53 71         30.00'       

CLDY
CEMER E

N6.  4
R9`       67 67' OT28' W( R)

e.
jQ   '

r44.
j,  

s
pqC

Fj, 70 d     

39    G,

j.  M OINUMEM TO MONUMFM

eA 30 68  4,  M- PL MONUMENT TO PROPEfttt LME
y ig     . 

1
3.  

6 f 40 a R= 5200. 00' A= 0Y0' i6' L= 15.53' M- M
T B O      PUE PUBLIC UiILI1Y EASEMENT

IQIQ Npy 7 r
69 a   q MkP MAPS ANO PfATS

reo B 41    /     /    WE WALL FASEMEM

N y y           ,/  
LOT 3Y R)      RADU1 BFARING

y9jQ     35:
i3,   10 42    /  

Q TRACT 3533 PULLfl4CK ISTMlCE
O Iti h       / sy /    40 MhP ! 00 RECORD UISiANCEZss

Te Z
hh/     , 2 4' R- IJ S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt RECORDS

L07 4
Npy

3

43    ,',     /"% ,
L/

3     INDICATES SHEEf NIIMBER
TRAGT 3789

ysse 14
Qy     =       , w,o '  

lR- 21 5776 y 

630•      45            /
2A' ,C

BN
y   3 O

z7ryy     , yB,
o

Z

BNDy   ; r
ozPoetv   O

N22° 52' 32' E31. 70' BN Y i         V  

m         
LO7 36   \,      TRACT NO. 3 810

p   

TRACT 3533
SUB IVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY

C'/          
R-»  

STANFONO CXOSSING- PNASE 2A

A SUB IVISION OF LOT 3, OF TPACT 3789 A9 PECOF ED IN BOOK 42 OF

0 I     /     //      PPT ON OFASECTIONP27E TOKNSHIPJI SOVfH,

pANGEp6C
EAST, B6IWNTA

IABLO BASE 8 MERIDiAN

CITY OF LATHPOP

SFN JOA UIN COIINTY, CALIFONNIA

mAc av s som s5  ,      2 0

suzs rw xu  ws+ia u sase Isvia,- ocso

ae- zz- xais s:< x     < n u.      P;\? 5? IS\ SRJ ANPPING\ Fll\ PHiSE TA\ iR J: 1U N- 02111' IG

SCALE: 1"= 100   
SHEET 2 OF 6

oR

APRIL 2019 2521J- 01

161



REFERENCES

R- 1 TRACT N0. 7513 NAPS& PlATS BK. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 7 7RACT ND. 3789 IAAPS h PIATS 6K 42 PG 99 S. J. C. fl.

SEE SHEET 6
R- J TRACT N0. 7809 MAPS @ PlATS BK_ PC_ S. J. C. R.

29. 00'   po

I           

T

I
92

79 N6T25_ 26 W( R  29. 00'

0

4B N= 4fi96. 00'    I BA515 OF BEARINGS:

I
hN6T22_ 29_ YiR]      57 6= 2' S8' S3•    I fi4 1HE BEARING NORIH 22' S2 32' EAST BEIWEEN THE FOUND

I N67' 07' 28' W 104. 43'    z44. 37' M- N M NUMENTS ON GOLDEN VALLEY PARKWAY AS SHOWN ON TRACT

I I
Nfi5' S4' 40' W 105. 25'  I

6= 0° 15' 01'       
3789, VJ BOOK 42 OF 4AP5 PNO PIATS. AT PAGE 99. ShN

d= 0' 17' S0'    8 47,  
N21' 39' 11' E 29. 00'

o

JOAOUIN COUN7Y RECORDS, WA$ USED AS THE& lSiS OF

I Ll      -- - - - yp, gg I 2B. 52'
Nfi• 3B' 20' W 705. D0'  65

BFARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

I   I 18 I_ e= 4a2e. ao'     49

I I' Sfi05s SF      d d= 2' S1' OS'   fi060! SF

m W I m
L= 220. 37' M- 61 56

I             
T$:

I y o

N

i    
m I 5250s SF            1. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE CROUND LEVEL DISiANCES.

I  - 1
N65•' g• W 107. 18'  I Nfi7' 07' 2B' W 105. 00' 

I 2. TRACi 7810, SfPNFORO CROSSING PHASE 7A COMNNS 7fi

I     T KHC7 3a09
I  -     RESIOEMIAL LOiS, COMAINING I5. 21 ACftES, IAORE OR 1E55,

ml
al

P E
105. 0 0'     

P E INCLUDING THE ROAI7WAY5 THAT PRE 9EING E ICATE 6Y THIS FlNAL

IR- 3)    I-       N67' 3B' 20' W       fi6 NAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFlSE REfER TO iHE AREA SUTAFlARY
i

n ( z7

Ni    -- - --_  
57a6s SF

I N E m II 5      I o 
W I

TABLE BEIOW)

I   W m           sosst sF
55 I

W
E., Ie III          i 52505 SF      N j/] I

m W N fi 4° 2 7' S 8' W 109. 07'     TFACT 5910 AREA SUTAMARY

I    ^ E-.   
I

so I;        Ns° m' ze• w t a s. a o' N 
mI

Q.   I 70 PUE I z .. a IN I 76 RESI ENiW. LOTS AND STREET 15.21t AC

I I

z

6 °'       N67' 38' 20' W 105. 00'  I    ] 
67

FDICATIONS

ol d I 16 I,   Z li Y+ 
I

I        seoss sF I N W    m 51 5 4 ti I iOinL i5.2tt nc

I
E     N I

fi069s SF
52505 SF            I      I

al    

I 9

Nfi3° 44' 37' W 110. 98'        d I         10 pUE i

I N67° 07' 28' W 105. 00' 
I LEGENDI Nfi2' S9' qySR R= q000'  a

N67° 07' 26' W N67' 3B' 20' W 105. 00'
29. 00'    

i NJ2' I' I" E( R) R= 3749'  
N30' 08' J9" E( R) I`            

I

I
n N67° 07' 28' WIP)      

68
DISPNCTNE BOR ER

i I 5 I<   N67' 07' 28' W 52 i 53 00 RIGHT OF WAY UNE

7 4 9, 0 0'

Y a      '
R= 20 00'  "' 65192 SF      -   6595s SF       'I  A= 0° 25' 01`   fl= 3 m _     

7454s SF       29. 00'      .      

i
I LOT ll PARCEL LINE

i  
o

a 

L=
85° 9B' 36•

a H= 2 0. 0 0' I      __     
NE

L= 29. 11'    C= 2° 03' 12•'      `    ^    
P= 20. 00'   '       "'     `      

o p= B1° 44' 27'   "-   E% ISTINC PROPERIY LINE
n

L= 73
e= es° sz o7• zs. so il az.    4. 35' B 1 Y     -- _-

7• 24' OU''-  
L= 33. 46' d= 7° 19' 30'.- i - y A= 1° 17' 27'----

0zj 1 MON IIAENTULINEq- 3 49' 0 L- 9 6  

ao
m L= B6. 7D'    :  L= B4. 47' r i^      \      

FOIIND 2 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCRETEp N62' J4' 3° 27Y2' 1= 225. 98'       Z3" yy R) R= 4000'   
p= 3768. 00' A= 2° 3fi' S7' L= 771. 17'     

N2}. 5• a• EiR  MONI1MENT BO% UNLESS OTHERWISE NOiEDN32' 09' J3" E( R) R= 3778•-    
N28° 44' 39' E      i

d= 0° 4-=
377B. 00'   

29. 00' 
d= 0' 49' 22•   `

N27' 13' SB' Elfll N24' 36' S9' E( NJf

ol

1 _ 

W

OO SET 2 1/ 2 BRASS ISK SiAIAPED' l5 8817' IN
7' 28'       d= 4' 14y6' L= 278. 44' M p

0' 41' 20'     29. 00'      29. 00'   I
L= 52, 77     d= p° 37' 26'       --__ 54_ 26'      = q5. d3_ p= 377B. 00' d= 4_ O4' 15' L= 268. 43' N N i

N11=$---    
MONUMENT BO% PER Cltt OF IATHROP STANDARDS

O
N31' 22' O4' E ' 3. 01'     

N2755' i6 E R 
o

I

A= 0' 45' 57' _ fl= 3770. 00'       MONUlAENT OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER TRACT 7789

29•      CENTRAL PACIFIC STREET L= 50, 50' o d= 4' 03' 57'       
a,     MOMIMENT Of RECORD TO 8E SEf PEft TRHCT 3809

L- 2fiB. 10' N- M
pNGIE POINT

1 0• q3' 10'     BN Y 60UNDARY

i
L= 47. 80'-  -

4B' 47•    
d= 0° 4fi' 07'       

fl= 3B07. 00' A= 70' 4B' 34' L= 718. 24 p= p• 46' 47'
L= 51. 81'--      

4` 0' 46' 47'   d= 0' 48' 47'    A= 0° 4fi' 47'    A= 0' 4B' 47'    d= 0° 46' 47'    A= 0° 4fi' 47'    A= 0° 46' 4T'     

51. 81'  
CEHIFRUNE

L= 51. B1''      
L= 51. B7'-  - L= 51. 81' - - L= 51. B1' -  E%       E% ISIING

I
P= 20. 00'     r L= 51. 81'  -    L= 51. 81' - - L= 51. 81'- - L= 51. 81' -
A= 93° 11' 36'   I T M- M MONUMENT TO MDNUMENL

L= 32. 53'    

ol ol
IA- pL MONUMENi TO PROPERiY UNE

I    _       -       '   PUE PUBLIC UfILfIY FASEMEM

I  o m' 7144z SF
z 3 c'

z M& P MAPS AND PIATS

SSBSt SF :'   
S532s SF w 4 5 6 7 8 9 5517 SF w w EM

I
3 p a 5517t SF "'   

6541t SF :'   S519z SF :'   5452s SF :'   5425s SF =°   5438t SF '   54BSt SF = R)      RA IFL BFPRINC

PULLBACH DISTANCE
m

RECORD ISTANCE

I      N6' 33' S2' WjR) S. J. C. R.    SAN JOApUIN COUNIY RECOR S

l
z. 

29. 00' 

z

fi5. 22'       

z

53. 24' 3 i INOICATES SNEET NlllABER53. 27'       S3. 25'       S3. 24'
S3. 25'    

N61° 12' 44' W 307. 23' BNDY
53. 25'      S3. 26' S3. 23'       S3• Z       5• 2Z

I    ., I N64° 35' 33° W 266. 17' 6NUY

I o-=
I BARBARA TERRY BOULEVARD r+ ss^ si zs• w zzs. so sxov

I o" al
I ¢  -  

LOT 4

m      7RACT 3789a

JI
R- 21

TRACT NO. 3810
SUBOIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOIIIN COl1NTY

STANFOF CNOSSING- PHASE 21

A SIIB IVISIDN OF LOT 3 OF TMCT 37B9 AS PECOPDEO IN BOaK 42 OF

N.4P5 AND PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOA IIIN COUNiV flECOP S BEING A

POPTION OF SECTIOY 27, TOhNSHIP 1 SOU H HANGE e FAST NOUM'

OIABLO 9ASE 6 NENIOIAN

SAN JOADIIIN COIINTY HpCALIFOPNIA

o zo 4o eo IiIACKAY 8 SOmPS
s u, .:, a

E  ,

s.»

Scn E: t'= ao' 
op.

APRIL 2 19
oe- lz- zoie e. axm     di m F:\ ssu srsV uavewc nn\ F s[ sa\ re aio ru- m. o vc

SHEE7 3 OF 6 25215- 01

162



REF RENCES:
R- 1 TRACT N0.} SSJ MAPS @ PlATS BN. 40, PC. f00, S. J. C. fl.

R- 2 TRACT N0. 5789 M4P5 @ PlATS BK 42 PC 99 S. J. C. R.

R- 3 TRACT N0.} g09 MAPS @ PlATS BK_ PG_ S. J. C. R.

SEE SHEEf 5 BASIS OF BEARINGS:

1            ,   I
1HE BFARING NOR1H 22' S2 32' FISi BEIWEEN 1HE FOUND

I
Q

E MONIIMENfS ON WLOEN VPILE'! PARKWAY 75 SHOWN ON TRACT

II 29   
Q,      I I ol

3789, IN BOOK 42 OF F1AP5 AND PlATS, AT PAGE 99, S4N

29Aa   

37

Q N a
Q

JOAOUIN COUNIY RECOROS, WAS USEO 0.5 THE 80.515 OF

I 74 i
Q

I I I o I
BEARINCS SHO' NN HEREON.

63
to6. 15     _        

n Z

I
5 8 N 67' 43' 51W( Rl

I     ;

N67°
3Ed4WlR) 105. 00'    

I m<
a I

K a aI N67' 43' 5t' W( RJ 103.^ 

I a=5zoo. 00'     
NOTES:

m''     e m
d= 0' 1tliC 1. ALl OIS ANCES SHOWN ARE GROUNO LEVEL OISfANCES.

I m;^
73 JI   '' N m

e

n I
L= 75. 53' M- M P. TFACT SB70, STANF00. 0 CROSSING PWSE 7A CONTAINS 76m

m w o

m i

o`-    m 38
0 64 5459f SF

e

K a n vi m   52B3t5
36      _' ___'_ Zar_'__"_

J J  

N87' OMe" P
RESIDEMWL LOTS, CONTNNING 1521 ACRES, MOftE OR LESS,

5277t SF e

F        3 0. 0 0'    INC IU DING TH E ROADWAYS THAi PR E BEING EOICA T E BY THIS Fl N PL
n   , n

i
7.     ___       7

57 I
J

J7 3
Nfi7' 07' P75Y1 5      

MAP, hLL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEtSE REFER TO iHE AREA SUMMARYI A

N87' 072BW 105. 02'   T)    iABLE BELOW)

N67' OT20^ N 104. 98' 3' WE      I
I

N21' 1B'31' E
I I

I

0. 88'    
I c   [- y

I I 39
o I

I
TRACT 3810 AftFA SUTAMARY

I

72

II N W       II
52so: 5F II 65 5460SSF

I
Sq5925F I

76 RESI EMIFL lOTS ANU STREEi 15213 AC

I I

DEDICATIONS

Sfi           

N

I
Nb7' OT27 N105. 00'     

I I INfii' OT2BW 105. W'   I F

H I      I N87° 07' 2B' YJ105. 00' I TOTAI 1521t AC

ia' pUE i

I
w e E

N
Z e I

I o„ 71 I o H IN     „      525oiSF             I 7+
b I

66 N"       54fi0t5F I o CJ w      
5460t5F         w z

I
I            I LEGEND

I V]         

55 I
N67'

OT275Y 705. OU
y

U] I Nfi7' OT28' N105. W'   

I N  Iz I

OISIINCTIVE BOR ER

W i
I Ne7' oT28' W1o5. aP I           RIGHT OF WAY LINE

I r d I d      Iw OT LINE/ PARCEL UNE

N
W         i o Q       '

o.

z ''            

525Ik5F       ' 2 .    I          E% ISIINC PROPERIY 11NE

I I     EtSEIAEM LINE

I
67 54fi0x5F         [ r I    "   I I z I            MONUMENT IJNEI N

o u6 SF       ` p„+         

m lI    
n I I Nsrorziw os. 00'

54          

f°  

W
4 i OO FOUNO 2 1/ 2' BRASS DISK IN CONCRETE

I N67' OT28' W10. 5A7
y E I M I MONUTAENf BO% UNlE55 01HERWISE NOTEO

I
N61° 07' 28' W 105. W' 

I Q  

ra

a SEf 2 1/ 2' 6RA55 OISK STAIAPEU' LS 8817' W

I qy
N W

I            I MONUMENT BO% PER Cltt OF IAiHROP SiAIJDARDS
lo I 525Ux5F

r Jx.     M O N U M E M O F ft E C O R D TO 9 E S E T P FR T RA C T 37 6 9

m
I

68 fi9       '       r,        I N I            
I

MONUMENT OF RECORO TO 9E S E T PER TRACT 38W

i776fi35F        6967SSF pg_Oa Nfi7' OT27M' 105. 00'  j
ANGLE POINi

R=70. 00'    
R-' I   -       I    I F"     BNDY B UNOARY

53 I N21 48' 36' E R)
A= B9° 45' S5•       _     

d= B7' 37' 19'   Z  

I     [
Ta

I1= 31. 33' 1' 18' 47'  
L O. fi9

o    A
CL CENTFRLWE

29. 00'        _
p_ 7' 18' Ot'---- --  = 05. 07'  o qg o          a

E%      E X I ST I N C

85. 09'        z    n      
525U2SF       `^    I O I

M MON MENi i0 IAONI1MENi

3fi' 46' L= 770. 96'  A- PL MONUTAEM TO PROPERtt LWE

p= 3749. 00' d= 2'
7 0' P9' S7' E p= 0' 42' 47'

29. 00'      
m       

N23' 089TE pg,pry     . 47. 02'   I 105. 00' m I
PUE PI1911C UINtt EASEMENi

29. 00'     
Nfi7° OT27' YJ

I
IA@P MAPS AND PIATS

N23_51: 01_ E R     p- a' 44' 24'      
4' 03' 57' L= 269. 10'- M 

i spsp27'  WE WALL ElSEA7EM

ae eo•    _
a= 7 e. 00 e= st. oa'          I

o u I

STREET
N20' 3730' E, m;             I

cR      R"° B""

a= 3na. 00     

a CENTRAL P ACIFIC s9. on o 44
R E

CRDC
O I ST A

NCEE
p= 4' 04' 15'      o

o
N      

5 2 5 01 5 F       "+   1-      0

L= 268. 43' M- M n 7 B' 2
0' 44' 00'

I I
S. dC. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COUNiY RECORDS

R' 3807. 00' G' 70' 48' 74'' 

p_ 0' 46' 47'    _
4B. 7Y-   

m

6= 0' 4fi' 47'    
A= 0' 46' 47•    A= 0' bfi' 47'   _

57. 81'"-    
29_ 00'  Nfil' OT27' Ml705.00'

R=20. 00'         
INDICATES SHEET NUTABER

L= 51. 87' -  _ L= 51. BP - - 
L= SI. B1' '_  

3' WE i O I
I

3 i

or
o

o

d=92° 19' 02'  I  Y
o   - I

I m

L= 32. 22'  

i w IN o 45
e

K 17 w
12 w 558425F o 72 6 SF II m

Z

g

II
5250t5F

3D-_ 

I
770 ___-

I
NB__'_    ig   -     10         5537z5F        105. 00'  8' N

S485SSF    
551735F g 29. pp   

29. Od

s  r_  
I N67° 07' 2TW 163. 00' BNDY

i
i I i
I

6s. 54'  
52' 32' E31. 70' BNDY i TR1 CT NO. 3810

5325
532T

I I
sa25

53z4'       Sl10DIVISI0N5 OF SAN JOA l1IN COIINTY

P166° 51' 26° W fi. 30' 01' 1D1    

LO7 4
I

STANFOflD Cfi055IN0- PHASE 2A

N64° 35' 33' W 266. 1T BNDY

I p SI190IVISION OF LOT 3 OF TPACT 3709 PS pECOq EO IN BOOK 42 OF
TRACT 3729 mnes axo vurs, AT PAGE 99 SRN JOAOUIN COUNTY FECOP S BEING A

R- Z)   I
POflTION OF SECTION 27 TOIYNSHIP 1 SOUTN PANGE fi EAST NOI1H

DIABLO BASE 6 11EIIIDIAN

CITY OF LATNflOP

SAN JOAOVIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

20 

RIACKAY 8c SORIPSSCAIE: I'= 40'

si_ a rraimm szs zs- oc o
ou- n- xoiz a: a a,     Jell 11+      P:\ t5213\ SR LL4 RilC\ fil\ FHASE 1A\ 1R] 810 fY- U10' AG SHEET 4 OF 6 4PRIL 2D19 2521]- 01

163



REFERENCES:
R- 1 TRACT N0. S53J AIAPS h PlATS BK. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2 TRACi N0. 3789 MAPS k PlATS BK 42 PC 99 S. J. C. R.

R- 3 TRACi N0. 3809 MAPS k PlATS BK_ PC_ S. J. C. R.

BASIS OF BEARINGS

4
THE 6EARING NORiH PT52'} p' BEIWEEN THE FOUND

0 0  
IAONUMEMS ON GOLOEN VALLEY PARNI4AY A$ SHOWN ON TRACT

3789, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS PND PlATS, AT PAGE 99, S4N

JOAOUIN COUMY RECORDS, WAS USFD AS THE BA515 OF

Curve Table

m

BEAAWCS SH WN HEflEON.

LO7 5 I
Mz• a' s' W  a j

aryea aadm:  oei   a ym
TRACT 3789 1 91gp _____   

NOTES

ft._ Z)       I. ALL OISTPNCES SHOWN ARE GROUND LEVEL UISTANCES.

C1 4993. 00' 0' U6' SY 7299'      
2. 1RACi 3810, STANFORD CROSSWG PNASE 7A CON NNS 76

I
RESIDEMIPL LOTS, CONiAINING 15. 21 ACRES, MORE OR LE55,

C2 90. 00'  72° 5B' 37' 4038'      INCLUDINC THE ROAOWAYS THAT ARE BEINC OEDICATEO BY THIS FlNAL

C3 90.00'  13' 10'2T 2D. 69'   DY '       
IAAP, AI. L SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFlSE REFER TO THE AREA SUMMPRY

N72 15 4• N iqg, 05' BN

fi
P 77° 44' 46' E46. 01' BNDY I TABLE BEIOW)

N7T1514'N7 N7f44' 12_ wLRl-.

STREET p2'
7574^

N69. 5S_;      

I TRACT 3810 AREA SUlAA1ARY

LOCOMOTIVE

N69•
r' r' y! 9824=_- 657."       72° 1514°W 4.30' BNDY

9B_ 

I
76 ftESI ENPAL LOTS AND S1REEf 75. 21t AC

e= o° ix aa°       
oeoicnrioNs

M2'
1514'

W1B9. BT   .
75

L= 18. fi2'   
I `

N71' 31' 39' W( R)

52S

I
TOTAL 15.21f AC

R= 5098)

F______.-

45. 07'  

O 3' WE       II
N,        a- es s os•     

31    32

y         `      

I,      LEGEN
L= 31. 15'   e o W

I
o

30      
5157z5F  

o   
1x454zSF

a6

I
DISiINC71VE BORDER

i
qg r 5251tSF o     

Ca I RIGM OF WAY 11NE
W L= 21' 26' 45' Z , 0 2O

I      I;      -     28 a
5251zSF  

L= 23. 21'    zi
m D LOT LINEIPARCEL LINE

m 6724x5F   i 44.

a'  

Y I
oI

E% IS11NC PROPERtt LINE

I i-      A_
47•   Q I

FASEMEIJT UNE
27          

KaJ

Z a
l,

q
3g'

70\  0! I MONUMEM IINEI 1
R p,  

C?   p= 62. o0• 
a
50      33 Y', 

I
FOUND 2 I/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCRE( E

50. 00'   1B•    1023425F
y9. W;  1 A= 91° 72' 00'  

W R Sy.,  o      p J     MONUMEM BO% I1NLE55 OiHERWISE NOTED
1 L- 1. 95'  -    `+.     52 0tt b   N7 0' 73' 19_ l l.    

3
I cn     y.

46. 38 Ntt'
15Y6''

1 9. C o. 
56' 09' w R,       

m l OO SEf 2 I 2' BRASS OISK SIAMPEO' LS 8917' IN
N69__-      Y I d

MONUMEM BO% PQt CI1Y OF IATHROP STAN PRDS

mn 51. 03    

m+">  
M. So' to''

lR1to1.
04  `•

I O
I           I MONl1MEM OF RECORO TO BE SE! PER TRACT 3789

0 6B. 18' M- M_      y9. 00'      MONI1MENi OF RECORD TO BE SET PER T( 7ACT} 809

l

d, q N7Z'
15t4"

N2   

m N69' 3T4B' WIR)      •   
I
r D--     ANCLE P01

bm   ;"-      E    29. 00•   

NN

d= 15' 20' 10• ez I
ol

allor

80UNDARYNT
N

T GoRGE
5TR

ie. so   N m
7514'"

26830' M' M     (
48. 96')  

8, W
O18'   o

CL CENiERLINE

N1Y   
NTY

S         e'' 9_  
R40. 00'      

JI J    

I
535fitSF             I w Ni

EY EXISiINGo'-       
7 M-! A MONUAIENf TO A70NUAIENTy         N      .

09.  -_         
d_ 92° 37' 28'  

ea11    

Ir
L- 32. 33'  705. 00' ra M- PL MONU61EM TO PROPER7Y LINE

N69° 2B' 43W R 29. 00'  ~`

p
e

ry_     

I       '-" N69' 79' 44^ N( R)    
d K'

40. 00 w
s

Nfi9° 209fiVJ( R)  
U   

J I    ' I
PUE PUBLIC UTILItt FlSEMEM

Fy-- d= 87° lfi' 56' m pg, pp 1 0 7UE 7hF 67AF5 AN PfATS
7fi93S SF

aJ-'
J"""    

61
m     ' WE WALL EASEMENTI L= 30. 47' 

6B8125F    `     !       E"'     35 I    [
t.] 1I R)      RADIAL BEARINC

1       m

in IJ
I(

s]   5297SSF             

I A PULLBACK OISTANCE
N69' 3209' W( R) 29.00'

1

vi

N Sg,,
R  Q I

RECORO OISTANCE

60 i a i N 59,'
qg i  '     

N68' 45' 1<'' R)' a

I       S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COUNIY RECORDS

I      1
w

75
r l Z     

1    

I I 3     INDICATES SHEET NUMBER

E

J

m    
m 36 0

62         
5721lSF      ?

i H

m

e 5290SSF            I
I el w 

540Bt5F I

J

C5

0  

1I
59   

a" 
N  

N

Nfi0' 27' 34' NlR) 70. 75

m       
N  . o

I N68' 17'
04W1R) 1 5.'         I

II

F'  

N6B' 27'
349N1R110325

a      .      

I
u K

nl
Cn

o

iI a Q  m m
74 Q 37 I I

ml[
tl 63       `  

370aiSF o m 5290SSF       

I y    '     54243 SF

J     ' [.

r     I
58 I

W    

ZN
R tOs. 15 i Q' toS. oP

N67' 43' 51 M1' l)
Q      

Nfi7' 36' 44NJlR)      

a '

I I
I       ,

e

y e  

N87' 47' 51' W( R) 103. b3

TRACT NO. 3 81010' PUE        G+    I 38

10' PIIE 3 I
fi4

SUBOIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY

I
STANFONO CNOSSING- PNASE 7A

A SUBOIVISION OF L0T 3 OF Tf1ACT 3799 AS pECOP0E0 IN 900K 42 OF

SEE SHEET 4 61AP5 AN PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY HECONOS 9EING A

POHTION OF SECTION 27,' TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, XANGE fi EAST, 110UNT

OIABLO BASE 8 NEPIOfAN

CITY OF LATHHOP

SAN JOA IIIN COUNTV CALIFOPNIA

o zo 4o eo IIIACKAY C SORIPS
F„ K  P oxEu 9, sRa „ z=,s o

sCn E: i'= ao' 
ppRIL 2019

oe- zz- zoin B Jell U.      P:\ 25t11\ SRV N%PPINL\ F4\ PIVSE: A\ iH 1310 N- OS Vf.G
SHEET 5 OF 6 25215—OI

164



REFERENCES:

II CurveTable
e- i) TRACT N0. 3533 FIAPS @ PlATS 9K. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. ft.

R- 2) TRACT N0. 3709 MAPS @ PIATS BK 42 PG 99 S. J. C. R.

Curveq Radus ella LengN
R- 3) TRACT N0. 3809 IAAPS @ PLATS BK_ PC_ S. J. C. R.

I c   so. aa ia za or ztor
BASIS OF BEARINCS:

I
THE 9EARWC NORiH 2752' 32' EAST 9ERYEEN THE FOUND

C2 fi2. 00'  S' 26' S7' S. 90'     AONUMEMS ON GOLDEN VALLEY PARKWAY AS SHOWN ON iRACT

LO7 5 7799, W BOOK 42 OF MAPS AN PlATS, AT PAGE 99, SW

I 7RACT 3729
C3 fi2.00' P2°39'40' 24.52 JOApIIIN COUNfY RECOR S, WAS USEU AS THE 9A515 OG

6FARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

LO7 6 l IR- 2J C4 90.00' 13Y075' 20.69'

TRACT 3729
NOTES:

IR- Z)       
gNDY

I. ALL ISTANCES SHOWN ARE GflOUND LEYEL DISfPNCES.

N7Z 5, 14•v,j749, 05 y, TNACi 3810, STANFORO CROSSING PHlSE 7A COMPINS 76

yyy, 9b' ht' P    

QfIQj
RESIDEMIAL LOTS, COMAINING 15. 21 ACRES, MORE OR LE55,

I
MY

51'      
INCLUOING 1HE ROADWAYS 1} IAT ARE BEING OEDICATED BY THIS FlNAL

5TREET
MAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEASE REFER TO THE ARFA SIIMAIARY

COM
TIVE

TABLE BELOW)LO
B•      

j 7' 2
1514'W 2 A4M So Z 5L3  R= 20. 00'  I

29. 00'_  
p9. 00'      

v

b 1514'"
293. 55

5Z3tl A= 90° 45' S2'     TRACT 3910 PREA SUMAIARY

N72° 1574' W o r L= 31. 6B'         
o N       pg 76 RESIDEMIAL LOTS PN STREEi 15. 213 AC

48. 55' BNDY    ` y v o o      '" ;,      OE ICATIONS
120. 55' F

o a
2fi        

s99i35F o     a      TOTAL 15. 213 AC

h   
m'    

25

iW- 
5192t5F     aQj

Ic' V
r

124 W

6124t5F a 5992t5F   $  
Z A= 9B 28' 02' 

I 29. 0'__" 19. 00'     ---

t 2s o
so. e      

I- a
LEGEN

96
12 5325F

z OISTINCTNE 80ROFR

I
Y o-!   47bb'

Z 6. 18' 52. a

J

N72°
1514 M 1 _ RIGHi OF WAY 11NE

m
N

lp 52. 3'
1IN7pOfi21_ W RI-,

a

258. 78' 
Jvc lOT UNE/ PARCEL 11NE

I t°  Bk(
R b9   

p C4
1574^ N`+'      T         l<T)     E% 6TINC PROPERtt 11NE

N•     

GE RGg
5TREE      

5 Nfi9' 32' 09W ENFM IJNE
ZB`

d'     
ep'

L

yR9
112H       

b MONUMENTLINE

j- 
r29.00'

I m-    
p'    

gg' SS' RI '.'+  -   

J     --_     
OO FOl1ND 2 I/ 2' BR0.5S OISK M CONCREfE

a N69_'"" y 26B2UMM '
fi24- M2• 5•14 N  MONl1MENT BOX UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOTEO

I
95 a

OO SEi 2 1/ 2 BRA55 ISK SiAMPED LS 0817' IN

z       22 T   
4b  

My g14'">>
7       _  

J1
a_       

IAONUMENT BO% PER CIIY OF IATHROP SfANDAR S

I
BWBYSF

p.
84. 18 _    

Im R= 20.Q0'      61
ONUTAENf OF RECORD TO fiE SEf PER TRACT} 7B9

e I` BB S
7   .   

A= 92' 48' 31      
N69' 2B'43W(R)   1 r.o,(    MONUAIENT OF RECORD TO BE SET PER TRAC1 3809

L  
N7T07' 02" N R_  u  

Q J         __-'    1       L= 32. 38'   -   29.00' 1 ANGLE POWi

i,      I I I BNDY 80UNDARY

Nfig° pq'43' W 95. 90'    

v
R40.00'    

W e 60

I
d= B7° 07' 09• 46      

BS zSF o
I Cl CENfERUNE

Nfi9' 7273' W( R) J m L= 30. 41' gqp tgp
I s  

EX E% ISTING

I 94

U

29' ryfie'
r,urq1N( µJ 108. Oa   

J     

I M A70NUMEM TO UON lAEM

Z      
I

62
M- PL AIONUMENI TO PROPFRtt LINE

I
5279k5F d= 0' 20' 57'

I    ` Nfi9' 09' S3' W( R)   
R 707. 95

el
I PUE PUBUC UTII. IiY FASElAENi

L= 26. B1'

I

29. 0

i
J

Nfi8' S7' 24' Wl)      
M& p MAPS PND PtATS

N68' S1'    S9
a

ml
I WE WALL EfSEMEM

Nfi7R17TW99. 70'    i-`------ 24wIR1 5470fSF I R)      RA IAL BEARMG

I
m

N

E

I
N68; 48_ 56" K', R'

47 I

J

sl PULLBACK ISiANCE

fi0.5225F N6g• i6 q7VJ( R) 10823'       W   
II RELORD DISTANCE

I 93
2       

o w    

N

ol    
S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUM COUNiY RECORDS

5345z SF i W

a

I 63

I 7, CT $ a 9 j

J     

I" 
F

I NfiBYfi' 47' W 81   3     INDICATES SHEEf NUMBEft
58 I

I-    (
R- 3) -- Nfi6' 38' 01' W102. 79

N68' O6' SOl' l, R       0
54762SF            

a  .,. a          

N68_07_ 7 YWiR)% 

a

Q, `      

I W I

I           m N 48 Nfi7° 3B' 20^ N( R) tO5. 8B'     

a p

p 19       ` a
y

pl
Cil

Q

6092tSF 64

I m c       SS9615F o      rT. 

o    

N6T22' 29" W( P 
p1    

I
0 20 40 80

92
N6T25' 26' YI( R) • E" a I .       

I
d ` ; Y^ Nsi°

orxswioa. a3 57 v
N

H N65' SM1' 40' W1052S        K m 52752SF
SCALE: 1'= 40'

I
W 0° 17' S8' I`       8. 10'  '

29. 00'        
L= 22. 99'  

0' 15' 01'  
m"    

N67° 78'20^N105.00'

1B I              I L= 1s. 47' 

49 I      65

i I 6060SSF
q  

a        TRACT NO. 3 810a S605z 5F      , e                 o

I
z  m W w 56

I o r
Wi       g      

NI      
I 525o: 5F I r SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAat1IN COUN' fY

Nfi5' 11Y9^ N107. 18'    I  .  w      N67'
OT28W105. Od

ry

N N STANFOPO CFOSSING- PNASE 21

I r N I n A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 3 OF TflACT 3789 AS FECOPOED IN 900K 42 OF

i N67' 30' 20W 105. W'          I IAAPS AN PLATS AT PAGE 89 SAN JOADUIN COIINTY PECOIiUS BEING A

I p y 50 I PO q T I O N O F S E CT I O N 2 7, T O W N S H I P 1 S O U T N, fl A N G E 6 EAST,/ fOUNT

77 10' PUE 10' PUE

I          
66 OIPBLO BASE 6 NEflIDIAN

I '

55 I
CITY OF L4THFOP

1

SAN JOA IIIN COUNTY CALiFOPNIA

SEE SHEEf 3
S0••'•

s. w, x o sssivas- a

G8- 13- 30 9 e: lu n Jell U.      P:\: 521J\ SR WWPCIG\ iM\ PH4: E 1A\ iN 3910 iM- O6. OWG
H[ 6 OF fi

p

APR Nz
9

9 2$ 213- 0

165



OWNER' S STATEMENT:    T1 1 1CT NO. 3 811 CITY ENGINEER STATEMENT:

THE UNOERSIGNED, OOES HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF ALL THE LAND SUB IVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY I, GLENN GE9HAR T, HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMINED THIS MAP OF ' IRACT N0. 3811,
OELINEATED AND EMBRACED WITHIN THE OISTINCTIVE BORDER OF 1HE HEREIN EMBO IED FINAL STANF RD CpO55ING- PHASE 2B SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COf1NTY, STANFORO CROSSING - PHASE 2B' AND THAT THE
MAP ENTITLED TRACT N0. 7811 SUBOINSIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, STANFORD CROSSING-  A SIIBUIVISION OF LOT 4 OF Tf1ACT 3789 AS HECOPOED IN BOOK 42 OF SUBDIVISION SHON7V HFREON IS SUBSTANPAILY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE VESPNG
PHASE 2B' CONSISTING OF 51%( 6) SHEETS, THAT WE HAVE CAUSED SAID IAAP TO BE PREPARED NAPS AND PLATS AT PAGE 99, SAN JOAOIIIN COIINTY HECONOS BEING A TENTAl1VE MAP, AND ANY APPROVED ALTERAl70N5 THEREOF. I FURTHER STATE THAT THIS FINAL
FOR RECORD AND CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND RECORDATION OF SAID MAP, THAT SAID POqTION OF SECTION 27, T0441VSHIP 1 SOUTN PANGE 6 EAST, MOIINT MAP COMPUES WITH ALL APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LATHROP, AND ANY
MAP PARTICULARIY SETS FOR7H AND OESCRIBES All THE LOTS INTENDEO FOR SALE BY NUMBER DIABLO BASE d 61ERIDIAN AMENDAIENTS THERETO, APPUCABLE AT THE TIME OF APPROVAL OF THE VESTING TENTATIVE MAP.
WITH THEIR PREQSE LENG7H AND WIDTH.   CITY OF LATHPOP

SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY, CALIFONNIA DATED THIS DAY OF 2019.   Qp, o ESslp
THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF LATHROP AS

A
Q  G , l,yEASEMENTS FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES     AC Gf SO PS

1. THE REAL PROPERTY DESIGNATED ON SAID MAP AS EARBARA TERRY BOULEVARD.    s. err.. u    isni zim a GLENN CEBHAROT, R. GE. 34687 No. 34681

PORT WASHINCTON S7REET, RAILWAY STREET, SACRAMENTO STREET, AND Sl1NOL

op

APRIL 2019 CITY ENGINEER OF THE
STREET'. CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

sr C/ vl 

2. A NON- EXCWSIVE EASEMENT TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT,    OI[ AU P
RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAINTAIN SOUNDWALLS, OVER AND UNDER THE STRIPS G 1 - ___— TDE imn ROA

166



NO6° 4897' E207. 49' W M     

9F515 OF BEARING

R= 5200. Otl

e=a• is7s•

Y     L= 392. 51' M- M

R- 7 R' 3C,\
o/

C n Q/ 9P• drP.  R= 5200.00'o

M/ Qis• n as' ao•

o//         
R.

p  / L= 600. 00' M- M     NOTES:

o I. ALl DISiPNCES SHOWN ARE GROUND LEVEL DISTANCES.
R   

P
0

Z 2. TRACT 3811, SfANFORD CROSSING PNASE 28 WMPINS fi6
oj"    S'( R1) 

R,    
R= 5P6o. ao'

q;,       %     N6,•,;   / ,           J
B

A= 4°STJo'  
RESIDENTIA lOTS, CONTAINING 12. 33 ACRES, IAORE OR IESS,

po     \  /   2 0    L=45000'    
INCLUUINC THE ROA WAY THAi IS BEING EOICATEO BY THIS FlNAL

A   isa•  XJ'            Z'Y   4 R,Q zeB4, 7 da9.     /       MAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEfSE REfER TO THE PREA SUAIMARY

p`       
7 CI'      M.  4 ,  (     R--, 200. 00'

s

M 2`(R)  23•B     5   . j'\ d8\  \ S
X/        A= 0' 10' 16'   

TABLE BELOW)

18  / 0. 0

2 NQ'.    /   4J O  \   Q/
L= 15.53' M- M

Y'e' 

d\       
lR3J

R-0000. 00'    
3

6  

7  /        o (
R-0

R,       
TRACi 3811 AREA SUMAi0.RY

2                2° 31' 42'       4 y     a     ''    - t.' e. oe
17  =

O Q L= 176. 51 BNOV 5       • 5'33     9           
sb'

1o'
M' Qbg'

S.  

v  /   

E CATON

LOTS AND SiREEf 12. 735 AC

Qy \    . 
tJ

Q    
15 8 2B6    i o   i T  al} ' l       

l

l     
6

pry 1  7 TBNp    N22° 52' 32' E 31. 70' BN Y       ( R i)         /    TOTAL 12. 37! AC

12   `/\'   
y, °    ,

6          

3;  
e

y        
z        `   °       /

ia  /
14  `   ie   /, p      

9   

o
Nsss

zs

l 3

I 14     :'
y`"'

4` 

aa  /     

l     

R 91. 40' A= 54' 40' 21' L= 86. 83' BNDY 2'      

17          44

45
S'(/nr 11       63p. e      =

o'
p   N67° 07' 27° W /    //    LEGEND

Po    
@ 7g       , Q'  L S',      12 NOy q5 163. 00' BNDY/      SfINCTIVE BOR ER

s
01

qoo.   \ 
46 R 13 LOT 37

s, 
N37' S8' 10' E( R) 81. 00'           C   55

47 T      4) 4 43 TRACT 3533
RICHf OF WAY LINE

I 40 MkP 100
OT IJNE/ PAftCEL LINE

D
B•   \-     

Q     y
Sfi

48
E% ISTINC PROPFR7Y L1NE

49
42

FASEMENi LINE
s.

3

p
57 50 MONIIMENT IJNE

5       58 51
i i pELINpUiSHMENT OF ABUI" fER' S RIGHiy\

1'   S9 Sp Cy
41 OO /   FOUND 2 I/ 2 9RA55 OISK M CONCREiE

1      " t;t      ;      20
60 53 NUTAENT BO% UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

o  ` Z      

sq
61 sa r     

ao    /      o SET 2 I/ 2' 6RASS OISK SiAMPED 75 9817' IN

I 22 C       62 MONIIMENT 80% PER CIIY OF lA7HROP SiANDAR S

WJ\      M T-'     M NUTAENT OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER iRACi 3789

Ns: op..    Rc4 23 N,      63 O 39 m     

JgJ F Rsqs 448 p 24 STR
fi4

65

V

o   ,       b    ANGLE

POIMF
RECORD TO BE SEf AS NOTEO

4'    f(R) y op.
d

4,
B,

o

25
66         

38       C BNDY BOUNDARY

9:. \ s•
y.   

8•   pg 6       Q.   j
CL CEMERLINE

93   •   ,  LOT 31 EI(       FJ( ISTINC
R•      e•   C`

s 27 37 ti R

4g
3

s1 2B
F 4,        /   7RACT 3533 M- M MONUTAENT TO MONl1MEM

qN 1g,    e 0 Y   ..    40 MC[ P 100 M- PL IdONU1LENi TO PROPFRiY UNE

FO
O

M
N

Y 29 a 3fi        /"    /   PUE PUBIIC UilUtt EfSEMENi

30 g
MhP IAAPS AND PIA7S

Ros  si WE WALL EASEMEM

i'   
32

35 W=  '   LOT 36
R)      RAOUL BFNtING

33 VO /'    /    TRACT 3533
PULLBACN O SIANCE

LO7 4 d'
aQ opoa    0  '  40 MkP 100

RECORo OISTANLE

TRACT 3533
BB

5.  ,(    N6)
O)        

34 U /      /       S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COUNIY ftECORUS

4a MftP 100 M      \    7a'' 1'
yg B98,

eNDy
i 3,    IN IGTES SHEET Nl1MBER

wy\
jM

67° 07' 28° W39. 00' BNDY

REFERENCES:  

52' 32° E 65. 00' BNDY//

R- 1) TRACT N0. 35}} MppS k PIAT$ BN. 40, PG. 100. S. J. C. R.       

R- 2) TRACT N0. 3789 MAPS k PIATS BK. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.    7
R- 3) TRACT N0.} 809 MAPS k PIATS BK._, PC._, S. J. C. R.     

R- 9) TRACT N0. 3810 MAPS k PIA15 BK._, PC._, S. J. C. R.

BASIS OF BEARINGS: Tl\[-1 T NO. 3 811THE BFFRING NOR7H 6' 48' 37' EASi BE7NEEN THE FOUND

IAONIIMENTS ON GOI EN VALLEY PARKWAY AS SHOWN ON TRACT Sl10DIVISI0N5 OF SAN JOA l1IN COUNTY
35}}, N BOOK 40 OF MAPS ANO PfATS, AT PAGE 100, SAN STANFOPO CBOSSING- PHASE 2B

JOAQUIN COUNtt RECOROS, WAS USED AS THE BA515 OF A SU9DIVISION OF LOT 4, OF TPACT 3789 AS PECOHOED IN BOOK 42 OF

BEARINGS$ HOWN HEREON.  AfAPS AN PLATS, AT PAGE 89 SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY HECOFDS 9EING A

POflTION OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTN, fiPNGE 6 EAST, NOUM

DIABLO BASE d NEqIDIAN

CITY OF LATHPOP

SAN JOAUIIIN COIINTY CALIFOfiNIA

50  ,°       mAc Y somps
SCALE: 1'= 700'    

si ze mu uun saslzzs-0isa
B: 5> am RII 11      P:\ 35311\ SRI\ V: YGc1L\ fU\ PH45E B\ iP.'. dl I N-]. b. YC H[[ T 2 F s

R

APRIL 2019 Z$ 217- 1

167



R FER NCES:
R- 1 TRACi N0. 7533 NAPS h PtAiS BN. 40, PC. f00, S. J. C. R.

R- 2 TRACT N0. 3769 MAPS @ PfATS BK. 41, PC. 99, S. J. C. fl.

R- 3 TRACT N0. 3809 MAPS& PIAiS BK._, PC._, S. J. C. R.

R- 4 TRACT N0. 3810 MMS! t PlATS BK._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

I I I I I I I I I
BASIS OF BEARINGS:

I I TNE BEARMC NORTH 64B'} 7' FqST BEiYIEEN THE FOUND

I IAONUMENTS ON GOL EN VALLEY PARKWAY AS SHOWN ON iRACT

5537, IN 800K 40 OF A1AP5 ANO PlATS, AT PACE fOD, SWI I I I I TRQCT 38I0

I I I
JOAOU N COUNiY RECORDS, WAS USEO AS THE BASIS OF

I I I             
I

Z I
3 I I      ( ft- 4)   I I I I BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

4 5          

6 I         I
a

I
g I

10

I I    :
N60' 33' 75' W( R) I I Ir

I
NorEs:N60' J3' S2Y/ q1 I I I I I I I. ALL DISTPNCES SHOWN ARE GROUND LEVEL ISiPNCES.

2s. 00'     
NB Z 44° W307,23' BNDY

2. TRACT 7BI1, STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 2B CONTAINS 66

I I
fi577

532T
53y5• N64° 35' 33' W 266. 17' BNDY RESIDENiIAL LOTS, CONTAINING 12. 37 ACftES, NORE OR lESS,

53. Z4 5315 532fi' S313' 5321' S312'  
NCIUDING THE ROPDWAY THAT IS BEING DEOICATEO 9Y TWS FlWJ.

I
MAP, A1L SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEASE ftEFER TO THE PREA SUMMARY

fO

m
TABLE BELOW)

m o

Io, 
o   

a

I'   i       g h g o TRACT 3811 PREA SU671AARY

Q 2 F        fidB3tSF 2
W 3 Wm^        5594zSF
o 5679f5F •      

4   +
i 5        6        7   ^     8        9 70

6fi RESIDENiIAL 10i5 AND STREEf 12. 73f AC
R= 2D. 0'     , m N N

S6fi3S5F     5(dOSSF P 566135F '

oW    
5/ 27SSF     5754SSF 5744tSF EOICATION

G= B9° 77' S5'   

a    ''     I L= 31. 17'    i i
iOTAL 12. 332 AC

1

J rv I-  Fo in n

N58' 43q R
4' 3E' O6•_ 

i z i z

N31' S8'

Sw, R= 4000'^     L= 44. SY   -
6= 0' 46' 47'- _.

d_ p.
22' E( R) R= 4046

4. 67'
46' 47'-

z__

A' 0• 4fi' 47'- m
L= 54. fi7' 48' 47'-  - d= 0' 46' 47'- -' d= 0• 48' 47'-'--       `     L= 54. fi7' A= 0' 4fi' 47''-  - d' 0' 4fi' 47'-

N31° 7TOO• E
L= 5 4. 6 7'      L= 54. 67'      L= 54. 67'      L= 54. fi7'      L= 54. fi7'aoas. 00•     °` 0' 4+' z3•    a=aaae. 00    R= aov.00 e= io• sraa• _ as. oa  LEGEND

d' 2' 29' 20•      `
48. 70'      29. 00'    

d= P• 29' S0'
175. 76'       4- SYB•

I-_'

1_ 6. 35' M- M
N29' 28' 32" E( R g7

m

OISTINCTNE BOP FR

M( R-     . 
EM-   

g)    N 
1= 67. 58'    

dc

50S6•

R= 404fi. 00' A= 9_ 29' 10_ L= fi69. 87' M- M     __      ____     
LOT UNE/ P RCEL LINE

N3U' 11R9' E d- 0• 39' 2q•1

N31° O6'04' E L-      
29. 00'1  L= Ofi. 36'

TRACT 380J
29       R= 4075. 00'    

NSB' 01' S3W N28' 49'08' E SUNOL STREET E% ISTINC PROPERtt UNE

R- 3)       

P

q     _-_ d_ 0• 54' 35•
Y9. 00' `. i 49. 00'     

r

EASEMEN UNE

L= 84, 70'-    R= 4075. 00' d= e' O6' 31' L= 578. 71'   
MONIINENT LINE

a u

p- 3)  

J '     

R= 20.00' 

y

p

d= 0' 39Y9•    E= 0• 45' 24'       REUNOUISHMENT OF ABURER' S RIGHf
4= 89° 07' 57'    

R O. ar       ] _       /-- L' 46. 59'-       
6= 0' 45' 23'     A= 0' 45' 23'     C= 0' d5' 23'     A= 0' 45' P7•   

m

A= 91° 4B' 98'    - 53. 87'-  --_ 5g, gp----_ 59. 80'-- - L= 53. B0' -  - L= 53. 80' -  ---'
OO /   FOUND Y I/ 2' BRA55 ISK IN CONCREfE

I L= 31. 11'   l R=40. 00'

o a P
L= 32. 04' 

A= Bfi' S1' 01•  
lA NIINENi BOX UNLE55 OiHERWISE NOTEO

I 15 I      L= 30. 32'       s,     '^      
OO SEf 2 I/ 2 BRASS OISK SThNPED lS BB17' IN

A70NUMEM BOX PER CIN OF NTHROP SiPN AR05
m   w       

6883z5F I ufOi N50° U7' S3NJ
rv o 0 0

MONUMEM OF RECORO TO 8E SEf PFR TRACT} 789CQ ..!     10' PUE       
29.00'    

I
r c m

F. iy             

p
45 w 46        47        48        49 w MONUMEM OF RECORO i0 6E SEf AS NOiEON° Oi"' 3W f05.00'      

r      ( (^  
771925F 57802SF   '  

SPStSF o
50

I
w  a Z

ry

m    o
SBOUtSF 5/522SF F 5715SSF ANGLE POIM

W    BNDY BOUN AR1'

w E Q.'       i CL CENfERLINE

F,    sasossF I$    H z         
Nfi5' 33'43W Ez ExisTwc

z I"' N           - FUE

z z

p, g

z
z

M- M IAONIIMENf TO FIONUMEM

Nfi2° 39' 43W
M- PL MONUMEM TO PROPERTY LINE

Z     
N58' $ yy 05. 00'     2   ` I ''    

I
N62' 3943W 72. 89'   N62° 3743W 55. I0' N62' 39' 43W 5520'   34.03'       N65' 33'43' W 5521' Nfi5' 33' 43' W 55. 15 PIIE PUBLIC UTNIY EtSEMENT

N

J' WE P .    i M& P MAPS AND PlATS

i a WE WALL EASEAIENTI
Q Q j 55 5g

57
58

59 fi0 s     

lR)      RADIFL BEARING

I W PULLBACK DISiANLE

SEE SHEEf 5
RECORD OISTANCE

S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOIIIN LOUNtt RECOROS

WOICATES SHEET NUUBER

TRACT NO. 3 811
Sl1B0IVI5I0N5 OF SAN JOA l1IN COUNTY

STANFOPD CPOSSING- PHASE 2B

A SVBDIYISION OF LOT 4 OF TflACT 3789 AS flECON0E0 IN BOOK 42 OF

6iAP5 ANO PLATS AT PAGE 89 SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY flECOP05 BEING A

POqTION OF SECTION 27, TOIVNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RPNGE 6 EAST, NOUNT

DIABLO BASE 6 NEHIUTAN

CITY OF LATHPOP

SAN JOAOUIN CAVNiY CALIFORNIA

Z RIACKAY 8c SOmPS
SCALE: 1'= 40' 

i. ze rv. ww   Is sl:s-

mt'
v

OB- 31- 2019 Mac onaltl V:\? 521}\ SFV\ NMPMG\ iM\ PI145E. P\ IR: BII FIA- 3. IVL H[ ET 3 OF 6 APRIL 2019 2$ 213- 01

168



REFERENCES:

R- 1 iRACT N0. 3571 MAPS& PIATS BK. 40, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2 TRACT N0. 3789 lAAPS k PIATS BK. 4P, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

R- 3 TRACT N0. 3809 IAAPS h PIATS BK._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

R- 4 TRACT N0. J810 IAAPS @ PIAiS BK._, PC._, S. J. C. R.

BASIS OF BEARINGS:
iNE BEARING NOR7H fi' 4B' 37' EAST BETWEEN THE FOUND

MONUMENiS ON GOL EN VALLEY PARKWAY AS SNOWN ON iRACT

353} ry BO K 40 OF MAPS PN PIATS, AT PAGE 100, SPN

JO0.011IN COI1Ntt RECOROS, WAS USED AS TME BASIS OF

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

I
NO7ES:

I I
I I I T r-- -     I

L NL DISTaNCES SHOWN ME GROUND IEYEL OISfaYCES.

2. iRACT 7811, SiANFORD CROSSING PHASE 28 CONTAINS 66

I I
I

TRA

ft4)

a'  I I I I I
45

I
I

I RESIOENil4L LOiS, CONTNNINC 12. 33 ACRES, MDRE OR LE55,

I I
INCLUDING THE ROAOWAY THAi IS BEING OEOICAiED BY THI$ flNAL

I
MAP, A1L SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEASE REFER TO THE ARFA SU61MnRYI I I I

14 I I I I TABLE BELOW)

I I
I I I I N67° 07' 27' W 163. OD' BNDY

I I17 N22° 52' 32° E 31, 70' BNDY

TRpCi yB11 AREA SUUMARY
1 I Z N67' oT27' W 705. ar 3, wE

I
9 I    '     

I I I
29. 00'   29.00'     

II o
o

m      6fi RESIOENTWL LO7S AND SiREEi 12.} 7t AC

I          5250t5F        `. v i I 6       . I OE ICATIONI I I
Nfi6° 51' 26' VJ226. 30' BNDV iq.     

I c*
m

cti           
w

N64° 35' 33' W 26fi. 1T BNDY 6s. 54'    23I NI53] 5'
532T N8T° OT27' W 105. 00'            `. C i TOTAL 14. 332 AC

5317 5325' S324'  I J Syio' PUE I 5a d

ziI I 1-    p..
I  `     `     b I 42

I y's I     e I 5250} SF i LEGEND
g    a i r          

i w

W   Z        
13 6577tSF         I a OISTINCTNE BOROER

8     9 10        7t
5649SSF F 5595zSF

z N07° OT27' W105. W' a

M         

574445F 5695tSF     `. ibfi12SF g R 0. 07 I    '

JI
RIGHT OF WAY LME

d= B7° 46' S3' I 10' PUE J-  
LOT IJNE/ PARCEL UNE

i L= 30. 64'   
29=-

1
F-    I

I
E% ISIINC PROPQ2N UNE

N             
i I 41 N I   W ElSEMENT LINE

0' g8' 05'--       5250fSF
DNUMENT IJNE

A= 0' 46' 47''-  -
A= O' 46' 48'-   _

44. 57' I I A

d= 0' 48' 47'

0  -

A= 0' 46' 47'-  --= 0' 4fi' 47'--       
L= 54. 68'       a I REIINQUISHIAEM OF ABUTfFR' S RIGHf

L= 54. 67'      L= 56. 81'       NT9' S9' 22_E( R)    
I Nfi7' OT27' N105. OU'

L= 54. fi7'      L= 54. 67'      N2U' 39'25' E

I
m I        

FOUNO 2 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCREfE

R= 4017. 00' A= 7U' 3T94' L= 745. 00'      

29 00 p_ D. 4Q 04'
J  

00       
MDNUMENi BO% I1NLE55 OTHERWISE NOTED

L= 47. 15   

Q    I
OO SET 2 I/ 2' 6RA55 DISK SiAMPEO' LS 0817' W

SUNOL STREET 15•  
40

0 I MONUNENi BO% PER CfIY OF UiHROP SfAN0ARD5
R° 4046 00• A- 9• 2 Y0• L= 6fi9 87' M_    

50. 90'   

W g gi I
52502SF       " gi W

I o'IN20° 423TE
MONUTAENi OF RECORD i0 BE SEf PER iRACT 3789

pgary' N'

I
w m I N MDNUTAENi OF RECORD i0 BE SEf AS NOiED

E ,

rw'     
Nfi7' o7R7' r' 105. 00'    I i

ANGIE POINf

R= 4075. 00' G= 8' Ofi' 31' L= 5T8. 7T

p• 45' 23'    
A= 0' 3B' 44'    BN Y BOUNDARY

e= o• e5 2a'       L= 45. 91'"-   I
CL CE fIERLINE

G= 0' 4 5' 2 3'     A= 0' 4 5' 2 3'     A= 0' 45' 23'     _

53. 80''- -°
53. 80' - Z9_        

I Z

7{       E% I S T I N C

L= 53. 80'    -' L= 53. 80'-  -- L= 57. 00"--  R= 20.00'    - --'
l  

i o I 39 I
o

o
e= 92° a9' S5' I e I 525azSF       j I

N- N IAONUTAENf TO MONUMENT

b q o N o   -
3Z', INF  ,   IA- PL lAONOIAENi TO PROPER7Y LINE

N I I
PUE PUBLIC UTIUtt EASEFIENT

o S o 9

W W yy I N
N67'

OT27RNtO5. OD'     MkP IAAPS AND PLlTS

W SZ
53     ,   s886: 5F  „      W. r I WE WALL EASEMEM

z w Sp 51 5/53s5F I R RA IAL BEPRINC49
y71B25F e b733S5F     

5724SSF     N
m

r.       I I
48

5715s5F   .  
o

10' PUE IH6 o I 38 I PULI. HACK OISTANCE

i z I H     "'  N I
5250i5F e

I
RECORD OISTPNCE

N65' 33' 43W  i         I I S. J. C. R.    SPN JOAOUIN COUNI'! RECOROS

72. 59'       W I     I
I

Nfi7' 21' 03Y1 ry

N67' OT27' W 105. 00'    

I I i Z i
I

J INOICATES SHEEf NUMBER

N65° 33' 4S^ N55.15 N65' 3843^ N55. 79'      42. fit'   N97' 27V7w+ 9 Nfi7' 21' 03' W5520' Nfil' 27' 03W63. 8Y

I        
Q     

10' PUE
I

i  `tlz 37 I
I

60
61 62 63 64 65 66 i

29.on

I

29. Oo'   

II
7 wE, i           

SEE SHEET 6

TRACT NO. 3 811
SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COl1NTY

STANFOPD CPOSSING- PHlSE 2B

A SUBUIVISION OF LOT 4, OF TflACT 3789 AS FECOPOEO IN 800K a2 OF

MAPS AND PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOA UIN COIINTV NECOP S 9EING A

PONTION OF SECTION 27 TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH FlANGE fi EAST 610VNT

OIABLO BASE 8 NEqIOIAN

CITY OF LATHqOP

SRN JOAOVIN COUNiY CALIFORNIA

Z° mAc Y s somPs
SCALE: 1'= 40'     

uae rr xuiri vzsi no

n- zz- zms io.<a      uac o me a: zssia sm uaca rvc ru vxuc ze iA: su ru-+. owc SHEEf 4 OF 6 RIL 2019 P5213- 01

169



REFERENCES:

R- I TRACT N0. 35J3 MPPS @ PIAiS 6K. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- P TRAC1 N0.) 709 MAPS h PIATS BK. 4P, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

R- 3 TRACT N0. 3809 MPPS @ PIATS BK._, PG._, S. J. GR.

R- 4 TRACT N0. 5810 MPPS @ PLATS BK._, PC._, S. J. C. ft.

SEE SHEEf 3 BASIS OF BFARING4

F
THE BEARING NORiH 6' 48' 37' FAST BEIWEEN THE FOUND

w
MONUMEMS ON COLOEN VALLEY PARKWAY AS SHOWN ON TRACT

w 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF MAPS AND PIATS, AT PACE IOU, SAN

JOApUIN COUMY RECOROS, WAS I15E0 AS THE 80.515 OF
fl' 3)   BFARINCS SHOWN HEREON.

17

I y
76

I
ry    

t/?    '  10' PU

44 45 46 47 48 49

I
N58' Op yy OS. Oa

I
P   I "" o

E

NOTALL OISTANCES SHOWN ARE CROUNO LEVEL OIS7ANCE5.
I W   ' Q.' ^  I NfiP' 39'43YJfi7. 5B`  Nfi2' 39'43W49.& S N62' 39' 43W49. 8h' Nfi2' 39' 43' W49. 85 Nfi5' 33' 43W49. B5 N65' 33' 47W49. B4' 2 CT 3811, STANFORD CROSSINC PHASE 28 CONTPINS 66

1 RESIDEMIAL LOTS, CONTAININC 12. 13 ACRES, MORE OR LE55,

fRACT 3809 I
m 7

Q
m   '`'

I 
a. 

m-     INCIU ING THE ROPDWAY iHAT IS 6EING DEOICATED BY 7HI5 FINAL

IR- 31 A 325az5F      
N=   

i Q ? I
m

m rv

N.M1P, All. SMOWN HEREIN.( PLFASE REFER TO THE AREA SUNAfPRY

m iAHLE BE OW)
16

I   ' m    

55 0 V;

I      p NSb U153' W705. 00'   
I N58' Ot' S3YJ R)      »

9525F    p o o
0

61
29.00'       NSB' 01' S3' W( R) 56   "     57        5B w     $ 9 60 w TRACT 7811 AREA SIIMMMY

N31' S8' W'  pg,pp e 5243t5F p SP52tSF $   5131s5F •    5245SSF o 5291tSF

66 RESI EMIAL lOTS AN SIREEf 72.}} 4 AC

w E
z S

18
6.'

u    '-   "    R= 20. 07 m
Q W        

OEOICATIONI 5151SSF     / l__       4= 93° 01' 27'  Z i i z i
H N

p I
L= 32. 47'

N58°  
W 6= 0' 4238'-     TOTAL 12.}}} ACI    ' R) 101. W'  d= 0' 40' 59'- d=' 40' S9'  - A= 0' 40' 59'-

U

6= 0• 40' S9'-T
m     L= 53. 15'  0• 40' S9''

L= 57. 08'      L= 57. 8'
m

N6613' pp? R     -      <       
L= 51. 08'      L= 51. OB'     L= 51. OB'

1_-=
p N29' 37' S0' E R   N28' S640' E( R)     R= 4pB5. 00' d= B' OB' S3• L= fi09. 37'

15 R= 300. 00'       
r' o d_ 0.   '

1
28. 00'

CY  _     3' WE C= 5° 01' Sfi'    
4109

zs. aa      

y-

5j=fi4  R 4374. 00' d=      SACRAMENTO STREET
a

LEGEND

P6' SC16' E n,

v,    

d= 0• SP34•   92'< Z' 772. 40' M- M
DISPNCINE B ftOER

30. fiBZ 19    \  !
v

B.   

L= 64. 77'     `
N29' 4516' E( R) RICHT OF WAY LINE

R=300. 00'   11fi34SSF p
q e 2g

29.00'     
LOT 11NE/ PARCEL UNE

d= 5' O1' 51'      C. J9•  Z
R= 4343. 00' A= 7' q9' 74' L= 592. 79'   IXISi1NG PROPERIY L1NE

L= 26. 34' 49p0'     C2 ' C1 d= 0• 40' S7'     E= 0• 40' S7'    6= 0' 40' S7'    6= 0' 40' S7'    d= 0' 40' S7'    FASElAENT UNE
w`      31' S8'UTE L= 51. 74'- 

n      .,  
L= 51. 74'  -- L= 51. 73'-  - L= 51. 73'-  - L= 51. 73' -  ------'        /     ONUMENi LME

I p     

oT
RELINOUISHMEM OF A6UTfER' S RICHT

d= 76° 21' 11'    

q      
I d_          - 25, g    , t,

P      

I o o
OO /   FOIIND 2 1/ 2° Bfl755 ISK IN CONCREfE

Q9J•QB.
I oeP AIONUA/ EM BO% UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

e      `'  ,`'    y    

27 w 22    a
N

OO SET 2 I/ 2' BR/ 55 06K STAAfPEO' LS BBi7 IN

R     ' S  7,`'  4= 7° 13' 27'   20 i 5455s SF ^   5499t SF      9 SF
w 24 25 W 26 27 MONUTAENT BOX PER Cltt OF IATHROP STANOARDS

d
s.

9     ,:   _ 47i ipq39t SF       -
o`",

b798t SF 5498sSF o,   5498fSF MONUMENT OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER TRACT 3789

J 86
4'

q O.      MONUMENi OF RECORD TO BE SEf AS NOTED
B

e i.      : NBfi J8'

44' E R) F= 4448'      3  
zl 3 ANGLE POIM

JI' E( R) R= 9'- BNDY BOUN ARY
N37' S8' 10' E( RJ91. 00' M- PL O

4= 7• 40'         ' d= p• q3' p3•       CL CENiERIINE74' L= 12g, 7p• d= 0' 40' S7'     A= 0' 40' S7•     d= 0' 40' S7'     d= 0' 40' S7'    8= 0' 40' S7'      T'   E%       E% ISTINGL= 56. 74'..
r ., L= 52. 99'

r r,. L= 52. 99'
r   . L= 52. 98'

r ,. L= 52. 98'
r   -

L= 52. BB' r AI- IA MONUNEM TO IAONUMEM
R= 4500, 00'   

R= 4448. OD' d= 8° 08Y2' L= 631. 67' BNDY M- PL MONUMENT TO PROPERiY LMEd- B 50 78         PUE PUBUC UTIIM EASEAIENTf L- 577 7
i NJI' S8' 0J" E

MkP A APS AND PlATS
V --_ • ' M- M R1 STANFORD CROSSING R= 450o. 00'       

WE WALL FASEMENi
d' 5' ST

R)      RAOW. 9EARING
L= 164. BB' M- MR= 4500. 00' d= B_ 59' 3B' = 549_29_ M- M PULLBACK DISTANCE

OO      [  ]     RECORD DISiANCE

S. J. C. R.    SAN JOA UM COUNIY RECOROS

3    INDICAiES SHEEf NUMBER

1 a
I F Curve Table Lo7 4

TRACT 3533

I         
c a aam s oaiu   an¢ m 40 MhP ] 00

i        i 3. 00 0 09 09. ,,.       TRACT NO. 3 811
I

L    I c2 so. 00'  12' s552' 20. yt'   SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA l1IN COUNN

Q'      STANFOPD CHOSSING- PHASE 2B

I
C3 62. 00'  1fi' 3238' 17. 90'    p 5119DIVISION OF LOT 4, OF Tf1ACT 3789 AS pECOq EO IN BOOK 42 OF

I NAPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 89 SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY pEC4H05 BEINO A

I
Cq 62• P Z 2 33 Z3.     POPTION OF SECTION 27 TOWNSNIP 1 SDUTN PANGE 6 FAST 1f0UNT

I CS 90. 00'  73' 70KS 20. 69' 
DIABLO BASE 6 NEFlIOIAN

I I
CITY OF LATHfl P

SAN JOAOUIN COlI1RY CALIFOPNIA

Z° mAc aY s som s
SCALE: 1'= 40'     s. n rw+iw m vun=i.ria s̀a s sea ( a: suzsman

OD- 2]- 3019 i0'.I: mn NallonalJ P:\ t511]\ SFJ 4WPING\ FH\ PH0. SE RB\ lfl 1811 ilA- S. OWG SHEEf 5 OF 6 APRIL 2019 Z$ Z13- 0

170



REFERENCES:

R- 1) iRACT ND. 3533 lAAPS @ PlATS BK. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2) iRACT N0. 3789 MAPS @ PIATS 6K. 42, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

R- 3 TRACT ND. 3009 M4PS h PIAiS BK._, PG._, S. J. C. R.

R- 4 iRACT ND. 3810 MAPS& PIATS BK._, PG._. S. J. C, R.

W BASIS OF 6EARINGS

s]      7HE BEARING NORTH 6' 48' 37' EAST BEIWEEN THE FOUND

MONUMENiS ON GOL EN VALLEY PARKWAY AS SHOWN ON iRACT

Er 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF MAPS AN PlATS, AT PAGE 100, S4N

EE SHEET 4    
JOAOUIN COUNtt RECORDS, WAS IlSEO AS THE B/ 515 OF

I z,  I 3' WE  
BFARINCS SHOWN HEREON.

I O I 3B       m p NOTES:

48 qy
5  5  52

53 54    

I         
g     i ^       I q L ISTPNCES SHOWN ARE GROUN LEVEL ISTANCES.

i e z        
I n I 2, TRACT 3811, STANFORD CROSSMG PHASE 28 CONTAINS 66

E w  s

I
RESIOENTIAL LOTS, CONiNNINC 12. 33 ACRES, MORE OR LE55,

m n N67° 07' 27°` N 1 5. 00'     
I Q I INCLUOING THE ROADWAY THAi IS 9EING UEDICATED BY 7HIS FINAL

N67° 27' 03^ N fi7.31'  

m     
r    

o
CG p

MAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEASE REFER TO 7HE AREA SUMAIARY

Nfi5°33'43NJ49. 93' N65' 33' 43' W49. 84' N6T° 21' 03^N4B. 84' N67° 21' U3° W4B. 87 Nfi7' 21' 03W49. 85'    

i    
r     

I
37 N

r, q, l Q      - I
TA6LE BELOW

N           
5250t5F rrI

I m a IZ     
I

1 0' PUE I
I    ^

r.      TRACT 3811 ARFA SIIhIMMY

6 6 I p„ I N67° O T27' W 7 0 5.0 0'     I
I 6

I
66 RESIOENIIAL LOTS AN STREEf 12. 3Sf AC

fi5 fi72fikSF         
N87' OT28V g   I o I

a"

I
EDICATION

fi0 6 sZ
52902SF

5295t5F
527125F

I R9. 00' o m a

5307LSF 5294x5F
R= 2. 00' 

F-'-      5 527tSF           I a I
TOTAL 12. 33t AC

n d= B7' 55' 15'       F

W
L= 30. fi9/   N6' 28°W  

m \  

4 w I C,'

e= o• ae' zs•-- zs. 00

I
7 LEGENz

A= 0' 40' S9'

o  =

0' 40' S9'-   _
45. 38 m N67° 79' S0' W( R) 101. 00'  I    Io

8= 0° 40' S9'- 

z-=

0° 40' S9'.-  -' 0° 40' 59'-    _
51. 08,      

L= 51. 09'    
i

m

i v i Z w
v       L= 51. 00'      L= S1. OB'      

V51. 08' e

DISTINCiNE BOROER

R= 42B5. 00' A= e' OB' S3' L= 609. 37' N20' 4T4B' E' 
p_ 0' 37' 40'

a     
o

W I RIGHT OF WAY LINE

29. 00'      _
47. 2fi'       •

rvoN'  

I Z
I

L

m

LOT LINE/ PARCEL UNE

d'   I I    ISTING PROPERIY LINE

SACRAMENTO STREET
6• 55•  

r   ° '"  3sm

R= 43 4. 00' A= 9_ 27' 42' L= 712. 40' M- M
58. 87'     ; !     

EASEMEM LME
7  _  8997t5F

I      N20' 57' 02'Ef NZp' 0_08" E R)
o

C'
So , z6y.

Q

o MONVIAEM LINE

29.00'       -    67.
0

d, 59,       7p       

I I
i// i/ RELINOUISHMEM OF ABUifER' S RIGHT

C'' CZ

R° , o
A,     

N2B.  Y(     OO FOUND 2 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCRETE

R= 4343. 00' G= 7' 49' 14' L= 591. 79'
p_ 0' 40' ST'  C3   .'

y9k
S= 0' 40' 57'    4= 0' 40' 57'    C= 0° 40' S7'_   _

5174 _----- I I I
MONUMEM BOX IINLE55 OIHERWISE NOiED

d= 0° 40' S7'    = 0' 40' S7'   _
U51. 73''- -

L= 51. 73'"-  
L= 51. 73'- 

z

L= 51. 73' -  - L= 51. 73'    

ag SET 2 I 2 BRA55 DISK STAMPEU LS 8817 IN

o

N67' OMB' W7200'     MONIIMEM BO% PER Q7Y OF LVHROP S ANDPROS

T E'-     MONIIMEM OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER TRACT J789

N67° 07' 28" W MONUMEM OF RECORD TO 9E SET AS NOTED

39. 00' BNDY

I
ANGLE POINi

31
3z 33 jgtSF 3 WE 9NDY BOUNOARY

27 g 29
SF

5579sSF
5573tSF

672325F wY0 CL CEMERLINE

26 SM19Bt5F 54BBtSF
5488s5F Z

I
EX E% ISiINC

m M-! A M NUMFM TO MONUMEM

6= 0° 16' 59' `  

o M- Pl MONUAIEM TO PROPERtt LINE

3 =   
Lc2 97

Z ol
PUE PI16UC MIIfY EASEMEM

yfi4.63'.- r

91' ae M& P MAPS ANO PLATS

A= 0° 40' S7'     A= 0' 40' S7'  

z =

0' 40' 57'  
31. 01'  52.99' r>- r     `'".

02'       
o

WE WALL EASEIAENT

L= 52. 98'.   - L= 52. 98' r  -
L= 5 2. 9 8'-      N 6 7° 07' 28° N! 298. 73' BNDY

N I R)      R A O LIL B EA R M G

R= 4448. 00' = 8° OB' 12" L= 637. 67' BNDY   w PULL& 4CK DISTANCE

iN RECORD OISiANCE

a= asoo. aa    STANFORD CROSSING
Lz

S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN COUMY RECORDS

d= 6° 593B'      

1     

741. 00'_'

L= 50929' M- M i   3,:    INDICATES SHEEf NUMBER

R= 4500. 00' A= 2_ p5' S7_- 84• BB' M- M   ,{
N67' 07' 28^ N49473' M hi

5- t'` r

Curve Table

a# d=  a   e   TRACT NO. 3 811
c  4yts. 00' o° oe' 3e• 72. ta' SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

STANFOPD CPOSSING- PHASE 20

C2 62. 00'  14' 23' 17' 15. 5T A SUBUIVISION OF L0T 4 OF TIIACT 3789 AS pECOpDED IN BOOK 42 OF

MAPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOAOIIIN COIINTY PECONOS BEING A
C3 62. 00'  21° 38' 49' 23.42'  POPTION OF SECTION 27 TOWNSHIP 1 SQUTH PANGE fi EAST 0.10VNT

CA fiZ. 00'  74' 40Y4' 15. 88'      
DIABLO BASE 8 NEPIDIAN

CIN OF LATHNOP

CS 62. 00'  14' 35' 33• 15. 79'    SM' JOA IIIN COUN'/, CALIFOHNIA

20 RIACKAY SO IPS
SCALE: 1'= 40'     

si.: emu. xu.+ o azsji:s-ao su

OP- 3l-] 019 1a: 19om on 4ac anolJ P:\ 35113\ SM\ MWPING\ FN\ PH45E 2B\ iP 3911 fM- 6 YiC
H[ ET fi OF 6

p

APRIL 2019 ZSZ}_

171



OWNER' S STATEMENT:    T CT NO. 3 812 CITY ENGINEER STATEMENT:

7HE UNDERSIGNED, DOES HEREBY STA7E THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF ALL THE LAND SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY I, GLENN GEBHARDT, HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE E% AMINED THIS MAP OF TRACT N0. 3812,

DELINEA7ED AND EMBRACED WITHIN THE OISTINCIIVE BOR ER OF THE HEREIN EMBODIED FINAL STANFUH CROSSINO- PHASE 3 SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, STANFORO CROSSING - PHASE 3' AND THAT THE

MAP ENIIRED` fRACT N0. 3812 SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUN7Y, STANFORD CROSSINC-  A SIlB0IVI5I0N OF l0T 5 OF TAACT 3789 AS PECOflDEU IN 600K 92 OF SUBOINSION SHOWN HEREON IS SUBSTANPALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEAREO ON THE VESIING

PHASE 3' CONSISTING OF 51%( 6) SHEETS, THAT WE HAVE CAUSED SAID MAP TO BE PREPARED
lAAPS AND PLATS AT PAGE 99, SAN JOMUIN fAUNTY PECOPOS BEING A TENTATIVE MAP, AND ANY APPROVEO ALTERATIONS THEREOF. I FURTHER STATE 1HAT THIS FlNAL

FOR RECORD ANO CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND RECORDATION OF SND MAP, THAT SAID
POPTION OF SECTION 27, TOwNSHIP 1 SOM1, PANGE 6 EAST, NOUNT MAP COMPLIES WiTH ALL APPUCAB E OROINANLES OF THE CIT7 OF IATHROP, AND ANY

OL10L0 BASE 6 NEBIDIAN AMEN MENTS THERETO, APPl1CA8LE AT THE TIME OF APPROVAL OF THE VESTINC TENTATIVE MAP.MAP PARTINLARLY SETS FORTH AND OESCRIBES ALL THE L0T5 INTENDED FOR SALE BY NIIMBER
CITV OF LATNPOPWITH THEIR PREqSE LENGTH AND WIDTH.       DATED THIS DAY OF 2019.

SAN JOM/UIN COUpNTY CALIFOPNIA pROiESS ONq
THE REAL PROPERTY OESCRIBED BELOW IS DEOICATED TO THE CITY OF lA1HROP W FEE FOR

mAC.M M SO S
o C 8 (

LAN SCAPING AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES:      

W+ u g„  g_ 5,'* A GIENN GE6HARDT, R. C. E. 34661 No. Sd681
1. THE REAI PROPERTY DESICNATED ON SAID MAP AS' PARCEL A'.    

siixe rvzn   

RIL 2019
CITY ENGMEER OF THE

THE REAL PROPERTV DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEOICATED TO THE CITY OF LAiHROP AS
CITY OF LATHROP, CAIIFORNIA

EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES: Of CAl\ OP

CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT:
1. THE REAL PROPERTY DESIGNATED ON SAI MAP AS" CRESPI STREET, LOCOMOTIVE STREET.     T

E L I M A R 0 A 0-=----
T--

ii

LELAND STftEET. MERCAN7ILE STREET, PANAMA STREET, PICO STREET, SAYBROOK STREET,     
I, ANNE- SOPHIE TRIIONG, HEREBY STA7E THAT I HAVE E% AMMED THIS FINAI MAP OF TRACT N0.i i i

i i

i

t___ T.__._'SENATOR S7REET', 
i i i   i i`  "     -` 3872, SUBOIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY, STANFORD CROSSINC- PHASE 3' AND THAT THE

1   
i    rTy   SIIBOIVISIONS SHOWN HEREON COMPLIES W1TH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 2 OF 1HE

2. A NON- E% ClUSNE EASEMENT TOGETHER W1TH THE RIGHT TO CONSTRl1CT,   i CALIFORNIA SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, AS AMENOED, AND 1HAT THIS FINAL MAP IS TECHNICALLY
RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAMTAIN SOUNDWALLS, OVER AND UNOER THE STRIPS i_

D O S R E I S R O A 0=====__     
CORRECT.

OF LAND SHON7J UPON SAID MAP MARKEO" WALL EASEMENT'( WE).     C     
i

I     
i iTi i t    i i i ii{     DATED THIS DAY OF 2019,

3. A NON- EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT TOGETHER N7TH THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT,   i  ` i i i i i 1. aN0

RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR ANO MAINTAIN CABlES, PIPES, AND CONOUITS AND THEIR l  '    ' ' '      SI/TE ppHlE q q`
APPURTENANCES UPON, OVER AND UNOER THE SiRIPS OF LANO SHOWN UPON SAID

I L___  . WAY---    __ 1U   

z     
o

MAP MARKED' PUBLIC U7ILITY EASEMENT'( PUE).
I   

SQpRt
a,   /'   ANNE- SOPHIE TRUONG, LS N0. 8998

H,. evse

cA
J

Q   '      ACTING qTY SURYEYOR
THE UNDERSIGNEO DOES HEREBY RELEASE, E% IINGUISH, OIIITCLAIM, AND REMOVE THE PRIVATE S"      j (    
ACCE55 AN U71LIN EASEMENT OVER lOT 5 AS SHOWN ON TRACT 3789 AS RECOROEO IN BOOK q,\    Q       

tl

42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PACE 99, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.  l Q
a-_, 

h„    

0 A fOa
C'"

a tif   CITY CLERK S STATEMENT:
TO ENSURE MUNICIPAL WATER SERVICES TO ALL LOTS SHOWN UPON THIS MAP, ALL WATER

y ,'   '-,, ti/ RIGHTS THAT 1HE UNDERSIGNED MAY HAVE NITHIN THE OISTINCTIVE BOROER UPON THIS MAP,      L-- 1     / SSTry        t    I, lERESA VARGAS, CITY CLERK AND CLERK OF THE CITY COUNGL OF 1HE CITY OF LATHROP,
HEREBY ARE EOICATED TO 7HE CITY OF LATHROP.  

C I Q==,
yy J- 

y._ f 7'"'     STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DO HEREBY STATE THAT 7HE HEREIN EMBODIEO MAP ENTITLED' RACT ND.

3872 SUB IVI90N5 OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, STANFORD CROSSING- PHASE 3' CONSIS11NC OF
THIS MAP SHOWS AlL EASEMENTS OF RECORD ON THE PREMISES a

1_       

SI%( 6) SHEETS, THIS STATEMENT WAS PRESENTED TO SAID CITY COUNCIL, AS PROVI ED BY LAW,

OWNER; LATHROP LAND ACOl11SIPON LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIA8ILITY COMPANY
o--__      '   AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, HELD ON THE    _     DAY OF__________,

f  `       ' „

B lf-    2019, ANO THAT SPID CITY COl1NCIL OID THEREUPON BY RESOLU110N N0.____________

ftHL I) I     OULY PASSED AN A DPTED AT SAID MEETING, APPROVE SAID MAP, AND AURIORIZED ITS
PRINTED NAME:      y'   1  ,    -    { j u u

i   .  rr 

u

g   
RECORDATON AND DO HEREBY ACCEPT ON 6EHALF OF THE CITY OF IAMROP, FOR PUBLIC USE,

THE OEOICATION OF ALL EASEMENTS, PARCEL A, ABUTTEftS RIGHTS OF ACCESS AND WATER
SIGNATl1RE:      

VICINITY MAP RIGHTS, AN ACCEPTE THE OFFER OF OEDICATION OF ALL S7REET5 AS SH H7V ON SAID A/ AP

nnE:  NOTTOSCALE
SUBJECT TO 7HE IMPROVEMENTS BEINC COMPLETEO, IN ACCORDANCE W17H LHAPTER 16, TITLE

16. 16 OF THE CITY OF IATHROP MUNICIPAI COOE.

o" TE' 
SURVEYOR S STATEMENT:      I FURTHER STATE THAT All BONDS AS REOUIRED BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE WITHIN MAP HAVE

OWNER S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      
BEEN APPROVED BY TNE CIN COUNCIL OF THE CIN OF LATHROP ANO FILED IN MY OFFICE.

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UN ER MY DIRECTION AND IS BASEO UPON A FIEL SURVEY
DATED THIS DAY OF 2019,

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPIETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENPTY
MAOE IN CONFORMANCE WITH TNE RE UIREMENTS OF 1HE SUB IVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL

OF THE INOIVIOUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFlCATE IS ATTACHED, AND
OR INANCE AT THE REOl1EST OF LA1HRaP LAN ACOUISITION, LLC, IN NOVEMBER, 201}, HERE6Y

NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VAIJDITY OF THAT OOCUMENT. 
STATE 7HAT THIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE APPROVED OR CONOIPONALIY

APPROVED VES7INC TENTATIVE MAP. 1 FURTHER STATE THAT ALL 7HE MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON

N7LL BE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED BEFORE SAIO FlNAL MAP
STATE OF CAUFORNIA 3 SS IMPROVEMENTS ARE ACCEPTEO BY 1HE QTY OF ATHROP, AND THAT SAID MONUMENTS VNLL BE

TERESA VARGAS

COUNTY OF SUFFlCIENT TO ENA6LE THIS SURVEY TO BE REiRACED.  CITY CLERK AND CLERH OF 1HE QTY COUNCIL OF

THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN,

ON 2019, BEFORE! AE A NOTARY PUBLIC,       DATED THIS DAY Of 2019. o 
A  STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PERSONAILY APPEARED WHO PROVEO TO ME ON THE Zp`
E MA

Oti"o SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT:BASIS OF SA115FACTORY EVIDENCE TO 6E THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBEO TO THE 0

WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS No. Be17 
AUTHORIZED CAPACITY, AND BY HIS SIGNATURE ON THE INSTRUMENT 7HE PERSON, OR ENPT7 THIS MAP CONFORMS TO THE VESTING TENTA7IVE TRACT MAP N0. 3789 APPROVED BY THE
UPON BEHALF OF WfiICH THE PERSON ACTED, EXECUIED THE INSTRUMENT.       IAN BRUCE MAC ONALD PLANNING COMMISSION ON THE 18TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2013.

LS N0, BBI7
I CERTIFY IINDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER 7HE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT e.

p
f       DATED THIS DAY OF 2019

THE FOREGOINC PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

WITNE55 1AY HAND:

SIGNAIURE: MARK MEISSNER

SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

RIGHT TO FARM STATEMENT'   COMMUNITY EVELOPMENT OIRECTOR

PRINTED NAME, NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY ANO STATE

PER CITY OF LATHROP CO E OF ORDINANCES. 71TLE 15 CHAPTER 15. 48. 04, THE CITY OF LA7HROP COUNTY RECORDER' S STATEMENT:
PRINCIPAL COUNTY OF BUSINE55:

PERMITS OPERATION OF PROPERLY CONOUCTEO ACRICULNRAL OPERATIONS WiTHIN THE CITY

COMMISSION E% PIRES:       
LIlAITS, INCLU ING THOSE TNAT UTIIJZE CHEMICAL FERTILIZERS AN PES7ICIDES. YOU ARE HEREBY FILED THIS DAY OF 2019, AT M. IN BOOK

NOTIFlED 1HAT THE PROPERTY YOU ARE PURCHASING MAY BE LOCATED CLOSE TO AGRICULNRAI. OF

COMMISSION OF NOTARY:    
LANDS AND OPERATIONS. YOU MAY BE SUBJECT TO INCONVENIENCE OR DISCOMFORT ARISINC MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE AT 1HE REOUEST OF

FROM THE LAWFUL AND PROPER USE OF AGRICULTURAI CHEMICAIS AND PESIICIDES AND FROM
OiHER AGRICULNRAL ACTINTIES, INCIU ING WITHOUT IIMITATION, CULTIVATIONS, PLOWING, FEE: E

STATEMENT OF SOILS REPORT: SPRAYING, IRRICAl10N, PRUNING, HARVESTING, BURNINC OF ACRICULNRAL WASTE PRODUCTS,
PROTECTION OF CROPS AND ANIMALS FROM DEPFEDATION, AND OTHER AC7IVITIES WHICH MAY

A SOILS REPORT EN7IRED, STANFORD CROSSING, LAIHROP, CALIFORNIA, GEOTECHNICAL GENERATE OUST, SMONE, NOISE, OOOR, RODENTS AND PESTS. BE AWARE AL50, THAT THIS

E% PLORA710N, PROJECT N0. 5747. 003. 003 AND DATED OCTOBER 27, 2017, HAS BEEN PREPARED PROPERTY MAY BE LOCAIED ADJACENT TO AGRICI1lTURAL OPERATIONS OUTSIDE THE CITY$     BY:

FOR 1HI5 PROJECT BY ENCEO INCORPORATEO, S7EVE HARRIS, P. E., G. E., AND IS ON FlLE WI7H JURISDICTION. CONSEQUENTLY, OEPENDING ON THE LOCATION OF YOUR PROPERTY, IT MAY BE STEVE J. BESTOLARIDES ASSISTANT/ OEPUTY RECOROER

THE CITY Of' LATHROP.      NECESSARY 7HAT YOU BE PREPARED TO ACLEPT SUCH INCONVENIENCES OR ISCOMFORT AS ASSESSOR- RECORDER- COUNTY CLERK
NORMAL AN NECESSARY ASPECTS OF LIVING IN AN AGRICULNRAILY AC11VE RECION. SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

OB— R2- 3019 9: O6am Jell UR P:\ 25213\ SRV\ MAPPIN6 FM\ PHASE 3 TR 3812 rrn- ai.

pWD. D. SHEET N0. 48J
SHEEf 1 OF 6 2521J- 01

FkFBtENCE4 ifilk

6U. C. 6:

172



REFERENCES

R- 1 TRACT N0. 3573 MAPS& PIATS BK. 40, PC. I00, S. J. C. R.

I I TAA R- 2 TRACT N0. 3789 lAAPS AND PlAiS BK. 42, PG. 99. S. J. C. R.
7'       ROMULO&' PURITA 7RUST R- S TRACT N0. 3009 MAPS AND PIAiS BK._ PG._, S. J. C. R.

I ROMULO PURITA TRUST        OOCUMEN! NUMBfR 2007- 111644 I L_ _   R- a TRACT N0. 3810 MAPS AND PlAiS BK._ PG._. S. J. C. R.

DocUM£M NUMB£R 2007- 11164       

R= t82. 00' 6= 9° 22' 00' L= 46. 70' BNDY BASIS OF BEARINGS
N89' 4979W BASISOF9EpRING R= 318. 00' A= 9° 22' 00' L= 51. 99' BNDY

THE BFARINC NORTH 89' 49' 29' WEST BEfYlEEN FOUN IAONIIMENTS

R= 3500. 00' C= 78' 59' 00_ L= 7158. 63' M- M 130. 30' M- M NB9' 49'29W590. 43_M M___ ___
N00' 1097' E( R)     _    

NB9_49'29' W195. 28 M- M N89' 49' P9' W307. TB M M ON SPARTAN WAY( FORMERLY IATHROP ROAD) h5 SHOWN ON

Y SPARTAN WAY ( FORMERLY LATHROP ROAD) 
sz. 00•;     

89, 49, Z9, wZB54, B Y
TRACT 15} 3, IN BOOK 40 F IAAPS AND P1A15, AT PAGE 100,

SAN JOAOUM COUMY RELORDS, W/ S USEO AS 1HE BASIS OF

N47° 09' 01' E 37. 63' BNDY NB9° 49' 29' W 517. 91' BNDY 9EPRINGS SHOWN HEREON.

PMCEL A O6° 48' 3TE 93. 63' BNDY

t r NOT S

I 29 ZB 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 89° 49K9" W 59. 40' BNDY
I

I. ALL OISTANCES SHOWN ARE CROIINO IEVEL ISTANCES.

LOT 29 TRACT 3533
y g 2. TRACi 38 8, SiANFORD CROSSING PHASE J COMNNS 89

40 MNP 100 m NO6° 48' 37' E 41. fi0' BNDY J
RESI EMIAL IOTS, ANo I LEfTEREO PARCEL, LONiAINING 16. 45

I I i     
I ALRES, NORE OR LE55, INCLUOWG 7HE ROADWFYS RIAT ARE BEING

N83y123' W\    
O1

30
R) foP. 00'     `

NOs° 48' 37' E

O TGHEEAREA SIIMFIARY TABL E BELOW)

OWN HEREIN.( PLFlSE REFEF

I N
MERCANTILE STREET B p0. 49' M- Mi w 30. 00.  r- zoa-

C? Y OF LITHROP I 3       L0 30 TRACT 3812 AREA SUMM.M'

DOCUMEM NUMBER 2013- 038108

I I o
76 77 7B 79 80 87 82 I

i
TRACT 3533

89 RESIOEMIAL LOTS AN 51REEf I5. 773 AC

32
40 M{YP 100 OEOICATIONS

I I
Z

5 4; 6                I
PARLEL A O. 4Bt AC

N89' 49' 29W( Rf 45. ar'       33 B9 88 87 B6 85 84 83,

R= 67. 00' A= 29' 40' 2B' L= 31. 59' BNUY-      g I j      j iOinL i6.253 AC

R= s. 00 isi° 39' 53° = ne. si' BN Y i   SENATOR STREET I Ixso• ao_ o3_ ey'
o       LEGEND

13 w    o'         oimnctrv eaRo a

34        63 64 65 6fi 67
6B 3 FICM OF WAY 11NEN48° 09_ 55_ E R:   y

R= 50. 00' 4= 43° 59' 12° L= 3B. 39' BNOY
2   ' LOT LINE/ PARCEL LINE

35        sy r,Fy I    ' 
C% ISiWC PROPERtt L1NE

FASEMINf LME

LOT 6 Z 75 74  3
72 7   F       LOT 39 MONUMEM LME

7RACT 3789 36     , Qj Cq o I 7RAGT 3533 FOUND 2 I/ 2' BR/ 55 OISK IN CONLREfE

lR- 21 F,     pG 10 N I      '

2,   '  

40 McYP I00 MONUMEM BOX UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOTED

W O
o

OO SEf 2 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK STAMPED' l5 8817' IN

F37 pANqMq 
EET a

9
AIONIIIAEM BOX PER Cltt OF fATHROP SfANDPR05

c I I F'-     110NUAIEM OF RECORD TO BE SET PER TRACT} 7g9
R= 9fi8. 00' 4= 15° 35' 39' L= 263. 46' BNDY

nOMIUEM oF aECORO TO aE S i as NO7E0
38

49
50

51

j
8

o/     
ANGLE POINT

Cy 52 54 I I     '       BNDY 9011N ARY

N17° 44' 46° E 122. 21' BNDY v 39 6     53;
31 m      Q C       CENTER NE

7   /    

o/   /
E%       EXISiINC

R= 20. 00' L= 90° 00' 00' L= 31. 42' BNDY 62 `  
55 u uONuuEM 70 MONuu

67 Q  / M- PL MONt1MEM TO PR PERtt IJNE

72° 75' 14' W 5. 00' BN Y 40 60
59

6
q M- TIE uONUMEM TO nE

R3)  \      SB
56

TIE- Pl PE i0 PROPERN LINE

g\      (

R3)' ry,
S

5 Cy  /  PUE PU9LIC I117Uh' EASEMEM

a= uw. on    ° uarA;.PQw . P/       e  
r MAP NAPS ANO PlATS

d= 3• OT53'     R 7 41 C WE WAII FASEMENi

iL= 35.53' M M1( RJ) /   

G
1

42

0

REET 4 0/ '  I R)      Rl OIAL BFARING

N77° 46E32. 00' NOY 43
44 w  /    PULLBACK iSiANCE

gb    45 3 Q j RELORO DISTANCE

fTRALT 3a09t 46 S. J. C. ft.    SnN JOAOUIN COUPM RECORDS

lR- 31  '\ fRdl
47

48 2     
V LOY 38 Z

95      
23

2d T
L('

Q
l            TRACT 3533

J, i INOICATES SHEET NIlA1BFR

i

ZZ      

I     
25  l o 

a

o

N.
S,

M
TIVg S R

40 MNP 100
z  <       

rEl
p

0
2'   4g05•g  

T    ,
y    72° 15' 14' W 4. 30' BNDY

o
R

N; TRACT 3310 a^'/ ?  /\ 

N y z as' 75} y         /     /2'

T\,   /  
2e  

25/

30 /  `     

l'__  

17° 44' 46' E45. 99' BNDY TRA.CT NO. 3 812
3/ M2' 14' 56W'   

CERTIFICATE OF DEOICATION: 
o(

R-0)
g7. g N72' I514W( R)     SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

Nh
S  l 32 o. F STANFOHD CPOSSING- PWVSE 3

66477. 5 OHATT EESAIAE PU UCCPR0EEFOR WHCHRIHENPRO ERtt WASED CCATED 0

CSN      \
7sB.

1\

R)   /// °' y' "
l

NPO T N OIF SE TITN

27E
B SIPJOASUI N CO GE BCaEAST BMOUNTA

NOT IXIST, OR iHE PROPERtt OR ANY PORiION THFREOF IS NOT NEEOEO FOR PUBIIC UiILITIES. y 1
po      /   V O/ DIABLO BASE 6 NENIOLW

CITY OF UTHROP

AS OWNER:    IATHROP IFND ACOUISIPON, LLC SnN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFOPNIA

501 SANiA MONICA BWD SUITE 607
0 50 100 200

O eSANTA MONICA, C4 9040I r
SCALE: 1'= 100

s. xx rvuxw m nrui:a c e se lr:sl= s o¢ sMo
oa- n- zo s 9 den u      v:\ xs2i. l\ sM P xe\ iu ekasE\ 33ix u- oz. o-ae SHEET 2 OF 6 APRIL 2019 2521}- 01

173



66
SEE SHEET 4

67 REFER NCES:
NB7• i9'39' NSO. OT NW1999W71, q6'     

H- I TRACT ND. 3573 AIAPS h PfATS BH. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2 TRACT N0. 3789 MAPS PND PIATS BK. 42, PC. 99, S. J. C. R.

ry

1        R- 3 TRACT N0. 7009 MAPS AND PlATS BK.= PG,_, S. J. C. R,

a 69
0       '

R- 4 TRACT N0. 3810 NAPS AND PIATS 6K.  PG.   , S. J. C. R.

73   w f
72

71 Ma f              I

Q 20    m 42B925F
fi11835F?^    w( Rf B0,88' ' 

y
I^             I      '     BA515 OF BEARINGS:

j.i i m i i N?  ^ Wg•37 g TNE BEARING NORiH 89' 49 29' WEST 9E7{ VEEN FOUNO MONUMENTS
SCALE: 1"= 40' 

y    

a ry  , o a_ 
n e( R) 85. 070 0' P ON SPAflTAN WAY( FORMERLY IAIHROP ROAD) AS SHOWN ON

Q_ p. 4, 37_

z        '_''

S390SSF     a I-.     e 1      /      1RACT 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF AfAPS AND PlATS, AT PACE 100,

L= 5o, 7           o
p°

j

70 S4N JOAOUW COUNIY RECORDS, W0.5 USED AS iHE 84515 OF
R= f029. 00' d= 11' 05  _     

d= 0° 15' 45'      
79•

q.    4 72, al"   
42732 SF           '       BFARINGS SHOWN HEREON,

P
9 

7 8.  
58. 5 R- 70. 00' 

J

ANAM  [.    
9os   e= si° az ao• I s,'a w

A
U N!.    

L= 31. 95' i R) 85.00'      I N ES:

ti—  R„ 000-oo;_—  
TR T

ov
I OTALL OISTANCES SHOWN ARE CROUND LEVEL DISTANCES.

e=„ os, o9, 

EE+      
mv''   

6 74
54. 80'      J WE 2. TRACT 3fi08, STANFORD CROSSING PFNSE 3 COMAWS B9

193. 4B'M_M-``       
iS

a     T     9   -      I ACRES, N REo0RLE55, INCLLUOINCDTHERROADWASaTWiTARE 9EING
4P7325FR' 971. 00 d: 

N).      i 
o"    I UEOICATED BY THIS FINAL MAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFASE REFER

se47ow_' o;so.4= 2• 57' 38••
05' 08• L 7B7.8j'  `"       , y  

TO THE ARFA SUMMARY TABLE BELN7773
Sw

i'      
I

OW)

L' S0. 1B'- ` d' z. 57' 9•   
98. 42 29. 0•   R) 85. 00' v

1= 50. 04-,;   

N)

sy470Wse. 4r!
N) T

217, W

1

I I iRACT 7812 PREA SUMMARY

o'oi       .    a e=o• zo az•_,       ''-_
fR'       

I EOCAlIOR

LOTS PND STREEf IS. 77t AC

L= 5. 85'    -   I
o a

4273 SF I51 W i: i,       $   oi         R=20. 00' v

d= B9' 75' 37'i;       w o I   ; X I JN s.  
Lo7 30

o i$     54 L= 31. 2)'      29'      49p4' yy     „     PARCEL A 0. 483 AC

52 h i;   ,     aaas: sF I I       ( R/ as. po.`   7RACT 3533

5179t5F •'  
szwisF        4o M YP

looi
TOTAL 1625t AC

w2 0   ' V7c' 74       m

u' a

m

3p

O(
R, v          

v

y

4473x SF

I

N

w
55 cv weysN SO. Oy 50. pY 41422SF

0'
p

73w(R1e$. pp.
a/

A

I
LEGEND

E DISTNCTIVE BOROER

60     $       

N75^
g19,

WlRJB2. fe•

v
J

N/   

6       
I I

I

l
LOT LI E/ AARCEI UNE

o'
C  p q273xSF o    /      

E% ISPNC PROPERIY LINE
59

W 56 p y

v 

M5•  

o-_    / 

FASEIAEM UNE
m Fo Q

a 404725F
58

S
p

4716tSF l.        41q2W( R) 85.    „      
ONUTAENT UNE

2

4 0 5094s SF 1''       o I o    /     p.     FOUND 2 1/ 2' BRA55 DISK IN CONCREfE

2           S, pq y   /    p N S
MONUMENT 90% UNLESS OiHERWISE NOIED

W beyy R1 e
y       ^ 

5
m    /          /      OO SEf 2 I/ 2' 6RASS OISK STAIAPED' LS 8817' IN

g i   57     < 7,  „  
o

v as7atSF GY, MONUMEM BO% PER Cltt OF LFTHROP SLwDMDS
1'      

476u5F y   /      ' 5

o    /     ' C;      :/       IT'-     MONUAIENT OF RECORD TO BE SEf PER TRACT 3709
O 

N'. \ R p,  
o

065 1 ryy R
o

a.
J„('o M O N U M E N T O F R E C O R D TO B E S E f A S N D T E D

z15
q 

z'      
A= 92° 22' 51'    Bsoa

o yN p-     ANCLE POINi

w303. 70,     '  L= 32. 25' 
NJ      /       

v o/       

BNDY BOUNDPR'!

N7yy 5, 4

59. Zy;`      79'
o      v CL CENIEFl1NE

pl ( 
n ss•,N, M

a/"    4273SSF

o    /    '       
u/       

M- N MONUMENT TO MDNUMEM
SO,

pO.       

U
f EE1'    N)

4y1qp h m

I

M- PL MONUMENT TO PROPERtt UNE

NhY5y4 i @N)
q

zs'   /       (      
1'Y(

RJgSp, v-.    /     .`{,       o/ M- TIE MONUTAENTTOTIE@

itE- PL TIE TO PROPER7Y LINE

44

SO. p• ' W
1. 27•     

i   (

SO. B2'J

1      

o P
r

a   /     Q Pl1E PI1811C I1TMY FASEMENT

45  ¢  $       ` 
O. Po  

d
h)     79. pp.         3      ,_ !/    Q       /       M& P MAPS AND PlATS

4250t5F W       $     \  g
4273xSF WE WALL ElSEMENi

2 46      
1g•    

v,/

N 3•  
R)      M L1L BEARINC

oa 4250tSF ; Bh'(
Rfgs             

PULlH4CN DISTANCE

R=20.00'  
y

PU[     J RECORD DISTANCE
Y 4     A= BB' 45' 27'

Sp      415 tSF    _
30. 98'      

o- 

N m
3'_`,- /

J            

S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUIN C UNN RECORUS

PER( R- 4)    48        `/ / o
0

2       

p
Sp,,     2 4724tSF   

J

p

d274tSF 3 i IN IGTES SHEET NI1MBER

R=20.00' /  .`  ' s /       YN)
3 q,      

LDN so,      a= so• as>>   rca
R           

C       n•
sy9, w

a,. sr Nd 0p, 

o     /

eZ 3 s.
Z., s,

MO f E S''
EET    ` O     /     /`'-`` 

v/
JA- B9oo4 55

839t5F   ,             

i  TRACT NO. 3 812M.,y N72• 5875' W( ft)    . 
S 0^ N7746' SYi R

2g, ar i.,^.,      -
3• 5  Sf1BDIVI5I0N5 OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY

N) 2. o-^o

STANFOPO CHOSSING- PHASE 3
15' 4. W

O     r v/ y.       
N j.i' 4? J:` /

u

i/ 72° 15' 14' WA. 30' BNDY    /       

MppS AND PLATS AT PAGE 99? SANTJOAUIII N COIINTY PECOP SOBEING A7qg s

28 rp       SBNOy 
4g' 39%           N73' 00' 19W( R)  

6g'
u'  POHTION OF SECTION 27 TOWNSHIP 1 SOIITN RANGE 6 EAST 110111f

29. 00'      UTABLO BASE d NEPIDIAN

Zy       ! R 3a1p cin oF unieoe

l      
z'1

1epg'
N' P 17° 44' 46" E45. 99' BNDY

JOAUIIIN C011h' IY CAI. IFORNIA

30    /   

3\    

5'',
IR           iACKAY c SOI PS

i i 3 e.,, oa P n, U 9.; , s= z;,' s
09- 21- i019 9. OSam Jell V.      P:\] 5113\ SM IFPPit: C\ ill\ PHASE 3\! H] 813 N- O.. nG HEET} OF 6 APRIL 2019 2$ 2 3- 01

174



REFERENCES:

R- I) TRACi N0. 35}, 7 pp5 k PlAiS BN. 40. PC. 100. S. J. C. R.
N99° 49' 29W590. 43' M- M N89' 49'29W285.16' M- M

R- 2) TRACT N0. 3799 MAPS AND PIATS BK. 42, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.

SPARTAN WAY ( FORMERLY LATHROP ROAD)     

I
R- 3) TRACT ND. 3809 MAPS PND PNTS BK._ PG._, S. J. C. R.

R- 4) TRACT N0. 3810 MAPS AND PlATS 9K._ PG._, S. J. C. R.

N89° 49' 29' YJ

I BASIS OF BEARINGS:
N89° 49' 29° W 517. 91' BNDY 28. 54' BNDY

7HE BEAFiING NORR1 B9' 49' 29' WEST BE7WEEN FOl1ND IAONUMENfS

R= 282. 00' A= 9' 22' 00' L= 46. 10' BNDY
ON SPARTAN WAY( FORMERLY LATHROP ROAD) AS SHOWN ON

TRACT 3533, IN BO H 40 OF NAPS AN PIA75, Ai PAGE 100,

NB9' 4929W65929'    
R= 318. 00' d= 9" 22' 00' L= 51. 99' BNDY rv p CurveTable

ss SAN JOAONN COI1NiY RECORDS, W0.5 USEO AS THE BASIS OF

50. 00'---    54. 00'       S0. 00'--  -- 50. 00'---  -' S0. 00'--  ---. T7---  ---' 71. 32'---  

BFARINGS SHOWN HEREON.

i       I
CurveN Retlius elha Lengih

n      
g

I
NOTES

0 0 w Ct 90. 00' 12' S8' 40' 2a. 39'        1, ALL OISiANCES SHOWN ARE CROVND LEVEI DISTANCES.
0 0

C2 90. 00' 13YORS 20.fi9' 
2. TRACT JB08, S ANFORD CROSSINC PWSE 3 CONTAINS 89

W 25 24 P'     23   : w 20 e
a RESIOEML1l LOTS, AND I LEfTERED PARCEL, COMaNING 1625

zs e 4250t5F 425025F 22    -    21 in 4632SSF 19     ; nl ACRES, MORE OR tESS, INCWOINC THE ROAOWAYS THAT ARE BEINC
o w

4250SSF c`
o+  qp50t5F 5 4YSO25F fiB14lSF           i

DE IGITED BY THIS FINAL MAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEASE REFER

Z A= 25' 03' 1B'   
z

WE I= N89° 49' 29' 4V I
TO iHE MEA SUMMARY TABLE BELO' N)

Z•     1
59. 40' BNDY

TRACT3612AREASUTAN. AR
50. 00' W.07 50. 00' W.00'       W. 00'     C2

a41.
ul  ,      

Y

NB9• 4929' N3C5. fi0'
R- fiZ' DO'  qo J p.\    m=   I I 89 RESIOEN1l4L LOiS AND STREET 75. 77t AC

io
d SO. p  

Sc$
w m OEOICATIONS

N89' 4929W427_65M- M  _____      (- )

3 .\

v 18       '

Z,   I I
55. 49')    ,    797225F      

3. 00'     
N83• 7173W( R)

PARCEL A 0. 403 ACii r
MERCANTILE STREET     '  b TOTAL 16. 252 AC

e;  
N83' 02' 27Vl R i

72'o
w i." v --------   '    w @

N89' 49' 29' W37216' m -:

53. 00' 53.00' S3. 00' fi7. 1fi'
I^  m  

o m        N92• 30• OB' fl pm
R=20. 00''    N77' IY' 4a•-' J- t v      

I I
e- a° zs ao•  NerSr'  LEGEND

ij

W  '  

bo o L= 34. 01' I S W82Z1'  `.      I
I6

m m I    "  /   a= 1' S5' 7T
OISTINCTNE BORDER

78 79 -       80     :   81     : L 82 T       L= 2Q9'       I I RIGHT OF WAY IJNE

45052SF 4505sSF o 450525F o 7050SSF IJBP° 1fi' O6' W( R P9. 00'   

I I LOi IINE/ PARCEI IJNE
G= 0° 79' 01'

422y15F     LOT 3O E%ISTINC PROPERtt IJNEN

E I      L= 27. 74' v i

EASEMEM LINE
w N97' STOSW( R) 85. 00'

J TRAC7 3533

I ONl1MENTUNE

N89' 49'29W
N81' 40_ I7' W( R I

J 

lo             I   4 M P     
p.     FOUND 2 1/ 2' 6FA55 OISK IN CONCRETE

53. 00' S3. 00' S3. 00'  79. d5'       I
MONUMEM BO% UNLE55 OTHERWISE N01E0

Iry     ^      
16 I O SEf 2 1/ 2' BRASS ISK SiAA1PED YS 8817° IN

o N 4273* SF MONVlAEM 80% PER CIIY OF LATHROP STANDARDS

e
o

p

J- I'     MONUMEM OF RECORO TO BE SE1 PER iRACT S7B9

86 o d p NBPu gy
I fI

MONUMEN OF RECORD TO BE SET AS NOTE

87 4505f5F 85 84 83    e  I`
10' PUE

w(R). 00'
v

J

I     y„      

m  
ANGLE POINTw m

o

o      ? 0 4505tSF o 4505xSF ,
no'     

6071SSF    3•- E,    BL
Y

BENT R

LY
z o z i z R= Y0. 00' I y?       I INTI G NE

n .   fn
e

o,      
c

d= 81° 03' 01'       Im o n'   4274s5F   '^    i      , I A- IA 0 Il EN TO MOm

g'___  _______________      
L= 28_ 29' e

a''     m

I

A- PL AIONUMEM TO PROPERiY IJNE
53. 00' S3. 00' S3. 00'       4B. 4fi'      N60• qg 42• K,      -+     I           al AI- T E MaNIIAIEM TO PE

NB9' 4979' W353. 96'     i N9V23' 35YlR I
R''

o

oL TIE- PL TIE TO PROPERtt UNE
io___"_ I

ooI
PUE PUBLIC U Lltt FASEMENi

N89' 49'29W4d4. iBM- M 41. 71')    
29. pp'       14 7

MdrP IAAPS AND PlATS

58. 16)  -
i

4274t5F
WE WALL FASEMENII 9 R)      FAOW. BFARINGN

SENATOR STREET I o I
r JNeOyqg in I PULLBACKDISTANCE

NB9' 69' 29W337. 01' myl
w(RfBS. pp•;+    '     w           RELORD OISTANCEi o       

50. 12'   B326'   S7. 39'    o S. J. C. R.    54N JOAOUIN COUMY RECORDS

m__-_     

W     _______   

o

R>20.00'      . a      
o o m a

A= 100' OB' 13' 
I       '   y        

13 I O I 3    INOICATES SHEEf NIIMBER

ol
L= 34. 94'     /'   4273z5F o ZJ

N79° 43Y6RN( ft) 79. 00'J  "~^    vlpN   I
007065

4375sSF   _     697225F

W
m

gg J            
w(RJe5. p4' h 1 I

57B3t5F          '

o'    
Z       '     '       TRACT NO. 3 812z

m

g 376 1

J

4Y73i5F

I
W•  

o

N87• is'35' N5u, 02

w R'
es m     `

p

SUBOIVISIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY
N87' 19' 39' W71. q5 N) g. pe,             /       STANFOPO CPOSSING- PHASE 3

oo

w R1B5. 00       A SI19 IVISION OF LOT 5 OF TPACT 3789 AS PECOflDEU IN BOOK 42 OF
s9 NAPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SFN JOAUUIN COUNTV PECOflOS BEING A

73
d909t5F

o
I POPTION OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTN, flANGE 6 EAST, NOUNT

72 77 a       '     

J     
i      '       DIABLO BASE A NEHIOIAN

N78'
1

o-   c

p

42732SF    ^    JO'       
CITY OF LATHROP

21y0W( RIgp. B
I

J¢    

II

1'     
y

SAN JOAQIIIN COIINTV CALIFONNIA

6I       ' Me' af• I      Z
1 0 20 40 80

mACIU Y C 50mPS70

79.W'   
29.

0.   I     
w)

85. 0' I      /      

YI 10 SCALE: 1'= 40'
e. e ru,.,  nw, ru' G a.  „ si:is-°m

oa- zz- zm9 s: oxm     eu w v:\ szn sav waP+ c ru wuE ix. uiz ru- oa. owe
SEE SHEET 3 SHEEi 4 OF 6

APRIL42019tl
25217- 01

175



REFERENCES:

R- 3500. 00' A= 18' S9' 00' L= 1759. 63' M- M
r

NB9' 4979W 130_30' M- M N89' 49791V590. 43' M- M

R- I TFACT N0, 35J3 MMS k PIATS BK. 4U, PC. 100, S. J. C. R.

R- 2 TFACTN0. 3799MFPSaNDPIAT58K. 42. PG. 99, S. J. C. R.

vV BASIS OF BEARING V" R- 3 TRACT N0.} 809 MAPS ANO PlATS BK._ P4_, S. J. C. R.

R- 4 TW1CT N0. SB10 MAPS AND PlATS BK.  PG.   . S. J. C. R,

SPARTAN WAY
BA515 OF BEARINGS:

I
47° 09' 01° E 37. 63' BNDV THE BFARINC NORTH B9' 49' 29' WEST BEiWEEN FOUNO AfONUMEMS

N89° 49' 29' W 517. 91' BNDY ON SPARTAN WAY( FORIAERIY IATHROP ROAD) AS SNOWN ON

LOT 29 TR.QCT 3533     

I
TFACT J573, IN BOOK 40 OF IAAPS AN PL1T5, AT PACE 100,

4O M: P I OO PARCELA SRN JOAONN COIIMY RECOROS, W75 USED AS THE BfSiS OF

20877z5F 6EPRINCS SHOWN HEREON.

j--- I--     
NB9' 49' 29' W65929'    

15. 89'---
10429'---  -  -- fi8. 85'---  -- 50. 00'-  --' W.00'-'  -- 50. 00'-- NQTES:

I
i q

I. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE GftOUND LEVEL DISTANCES.

Z 2. TRACT 1808, STANFORD CROSSING PH45E 3 CONTAINS 89

I 29       
RESIDENML LOTS, AND I I.EfTEREO PARCEL, COMPIMNG 16. 25

7478z5FM  "     
z8     m ACRES, MORE OR LE55, INCLUOING THE ROPDWAYS iHAT PRE BEING

I I
4766i5F       p]   w y6 25 24 OE ICAiED BY THIS FIWJ. MAP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLFlSE REFER

o I
H

i A 425 t SF    4250x5F 4250t SF TO THE AREA SUMMARY TABLE BELOW)

m
y z

I I       _                6= 2° 48' 07'       

I ry 2y p' 28' 19' 07•   
L= 4_ 40__ ______  _'__- _  -__     

TRACT J812 PRFA SUTAMARY

I N N 32.      
A,. gS =

70. 64'         
45. 60'      S0.00'       SO. OP

89 RESI ENTNL LOTS AND STREEf 15. 77i AC

I w     e''
95' ,=

5' 90
C6 NB9° 49' 29' W345. 60'

E ICATIONS

I
i

30 O NB9° 4929W i ry00' 1091' E( R) 29. 00' PARCEL A O. 4Bf AC

0 20 40 80 I I              7078t SF
y          i 1I o o . 0 14. 64'-__

NB9' 4Y29' NIP.fiSM-M'_______-
1,(      TOTAL 16254 AC

CALE: 1"= 40'      I I           
7 WE t./}

1

Y_

I
a N

r+oo• o3• E R x9.ao    MERCANTILE STREET
6'/

I
o N69' 4929W3T2. 16'

I K       '. 40.W_ 53. 00'_     _ 53. 00'_
a  N89' 7B' 03' E R B1. 07 

N 5,/  LEGEND

I wI
m

m
1 Z9          OISTINCTIVE 60ROER

31 I R= 2o. 0a' 
o

oQ i   
4729iSF     '  

Zy       i
6= 90' 00' 00'    RICHi OF WAY LINE

ol

L= 31. 42'      m Oi LINE/ PARCEL UNE

I
i I i

F
10 PUE

d5052SF   .',  450535F b
o79

pSp, EMPL1NE

UNE

ZI N89' 4930' W85. 00'   w s      
MONI1MENi LINE

10' PIIE I z] . 
f° I W142SF z

I OO FOUND 2 I/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCREiEI
3p g    [--         lAONUMENT BOx UNLESS OTHERWISE NOiED

I I 4Z'` iSF C w I N89' 4929' W OO SET 2 I/ 2' BRl55 UISK STAIAPED YS 081Y IN

I
I N o

8 I 60. 00' S3. 0' S3. 00' aNUMENi BO% PER Cltt OF lA7HROP 5?ANDPRDS
CITY OF LATHROP q oI I I Y'-     IAONUMEM OF RECORO TO 6E SEf PER TRACT 3789

DOCUM'cNT NUMBER I o MONUMENi OF RECOR i0 BE SET AS NOTEDN89' 49' 30' WB5. 00'  
2013- 038102 I

i g o
z m'   e I w ANGLE POINT

33             = Li7   I m m 88 i BNDY BOUNDaRY

I n 0.503t5F          o a      89 88     !'   B7 P'
N

CL CFMERLME

I
5014t5F 4505t5F w

I
R= L0. 00'   29' I e

450.53SF o „   E%       EIISTING
I C= 90° 00' 00'    

R 0. 00'    

z

o
N M- M MONUMENT TO MONUMFM

R= 61. 00' A= 29° 40' 2B° L= 31. 59' BNDY   ' \   
42 I

I Z9 d= 90° 00' 00'      M- PL MONUMENT TO PROPERtt 11NE
2828'  -- 45. 00'.-       R= 20.00' L= 31 42' 

z o

w"°^
s p     I NB9' 49' 29' W73.28'   •    6= 90° 00' 00'             

M- TIE MONUMENTTOTIE

3 WE TIE- PL TIE TO PROPERIY LINE
N76° 31' 20' Elj L= 31. 42'     40. Otl 53. 00' S3. 00'

o I'     

n

NB9' 4929W353. 4fi' 
PUE PUBLIC UIIUIY E0.5EMENi

A= 2S54' S9' L= 17. 59'    MkP AIAPS AND PlATS

g_ _,   o0•, o 3,• E R, Z9. 00• SENATOR STREET
WE WALL FASElAEM

4. 00'    '

o

R WNIAL BEARING60. 07' TIE- PL N89' 49' 29' W189. 00' M M I
M-TIE   ,     q-       -      i PIILLBACK DISTANCEI 1 1 59. 03')       ( 49.10')      ( 49.00')   N89' 49' 29NV444. 7fi' M- M

1
1      ,'•

i~ ,    
o y 0 NOOY091' E( R)          '" F

RECOflD ISTANCE

w        .
mm 42. 00'       ''

oE
NOOY077' E( R) 49A0'

SAN JOAOUIN COUNIY RECORDS

I
1

y       i      :
N89' 49' 29W337. 01' 

1  '
O\ Q'. b1 a N89 4929 z     46. 00'       S0. 17 50. 12' INDICATES SHEEf NUMBER

i

w  

0e. e.... a r'"     

S      ',' ---
s. sa'--    

a_ so. on

3;

N4B' 09' S5' E RZ: R= 20.00'      
29

L= 31. 38'

z9•       

eR40.Od       
o

p

Id= B9° 10' 13' p= 90' 4fi' S7'    29'        
L 1. 13'     L= 31. fi9'

I
63 w

R= 50. 00' A= 43° 59' 12' L= 38. 39' BNDV o 5036= SF a 65       66
A= 0' 17'24'       5593fSF In 4158xSF

m qp5515F m
390^ m m

TRACT NO. 3 812LOT 6 I i
TRA. CT 3789

Nes• 5s3eW( R) s7.g3'  a o-   IJ     SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOADUIN COUNTY

R- 21 oeHl Lz7 0 v     _
Ne6' 53' 15' W)

z

Ne6° 58_ 56_W1p:       ^      ` 
fi7. 98'       

STPNFOpD CNOSSING- PHASE 3
N87• 7999' W

A SIIBOIVISION OF lOT 5 OF TPACT 37B9 AS qECONOEU IN BOOK 42 OF

a u  [ L' o'     
a I''             Z       50. 02'     MAPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOFUIIIN COUMY fiECOHOS BEING A

0 PUE PONTION OF SECTION 27 TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH RANGE 6 EAST 110UNT

R= 968. 00' 8= 15° 35' 39' L= 263. 46' BNDY JI p a-'  35 "     

J

lo           OIABLO BASE 8 NEfiIDIAN

75 q 73 72
CITY OF LATIflOP

w i iQ   ''      SAN JOADIIIN COUMY, CALIFOANiA
I

mAc r somPs
j SEE SHEET 6      n r. n   szs:n-°±

h- 31- 3015 9: OSam Jall tl.      F:\] 521)\ SRv LV'PPir.L\ fu\ GWSE 1\ 1F ldll FW- 0S. xL
SHEET 5 OF 6 APRIL 2019 75j13- 01

176



REFERENCES:

I
R- I) TRACT ND. 7533 MAPS k PIAiS BK. 40, PG. 100, S. J. C. R.

SEE SHEET 5 R- 2) TRACT ND. 7789 lAAPS AND PlATS BK. 4Y, PG. 99, S. J. C. R.

N9fi' S8' 3qryy( R) 97. 93'        

i
R-}) 7(7qCT ND. 3609 MAPS AND PlAiS BK.  PG.   , S. J. C. R.

I.'      1 N86' S3' ISW( R      gq
fi5

66
a- a TRACT N0. 7010 MAPS AND PlATS BN,_ PC._, S. J. C. R.

N86' S8' S6" W( RJ. I m N87• i9' 39W 67
m m

m

I 61. 96' S0. 0Y
50. 02

Z fi    _    
35            

mi 
m

so. oz     
BASIS OF BEARINGS:

m E 5071lSF      '  ^-       Q m iHE BEARINC NORTH 89' 49' 29° WEST 6EIWEEN FOUNO MONUMEWIS

Ni m      a   5 ON SPARTAN WAY( FOftMERLY IATHROP ROAD) AS SHOWN ON

N84' 7525M/(q g gy,  a   
a

JI

N  

4671iSF W          iftACT 3533, IN BOOK 40 OF lMPS ANO PlATS, AT GAGE IOq

NB4• 04• 2, W R 9aQ,
ioWo 74

73 SAN JOAQUIN COIIMY RECOROS, WAS USEO AS THE BASIS OF
4009t5F    

q093x5F` Wi o 72 i BEPRINGS SHOWN HEREON.
N 84' 15' S6" W R):'    -''_  I

R= 2 0. 00' m 4299SSF o
7 1

d= 93' 14' S1°  15. 4Y
CurveTable

I
as Im sz. ss       NoiES:

507125F
a BS-   -

A= 1' S5' 33' 
1_ d_ Z. 47, 

I o   q DISiANCES SHOWN AHE CROUND LEVEL ISiANCES.

CurveM ReElus eila Leng[ h pl 74. 59'  .      - d= p• q   I

z_    

2. TRACT SBOB, STANFORD CROSSINC PHASE 3 CONTAINS 89
NB7' 19' 39' W57. 47'   

L= 50. 03       37'_
NB• 31yfi

m' I`'      _   R= 702g, 00'       ' S0. 77 RESI ENPAL LOTS, AND 1 LEfTERED PARCEL, COMAININC 16. 25
C7 90. 00' 14' 0512' 22. 13' 

al
R 9• 95'  j

J    

L; 
N

m-
NO2' 40' 24' E( R)    

ry
5' O9• ACRES, MORE OR LE55, INCLUDING THE ROADWAYS THAi ARE BEING

N97° 79' 39' W 199. Og
C2 6200'  1° Oi' S5' 7. 17 N87' 32' S

5302)  ri PA[ yA A p
OEOICATED BY THIS FINAL MPP, ALL SHOWN HEREIN.( PLEASE REFERm Z9. 00'      ,      17o29' M- M ST EET TO iHE AREA SUMMARY TABLE BELOW)

F 61VjR.' 1  43.46_
i__-'_.'__ 

L
C3 62. 00' 23° 42'28' PS. fiS m     I  [     37 R= 000. 00' d-,SW425F

I NO2° 40' 27' E1irv ry
17° OS' 09• L_ f93. 4H' M:-      

TRACT 3912 ARFA SUTAMARY

N87° 79' 39W66. 83' M
89 RESI ENTIAL LOiS AND STREEf 15. 772 AC10' p E 

y         

4732'      R= 871. U0' d= 71' OS•NJB°49' O7' yy      ^'     

79_ 57' G= 1° 50' S9•   
d_ Z• SB,   

09• L= 18 OEOICATIONS

Rf 87.      o
R= 20A0'        - L= 31.35'

40• `    7. 87•

N78'    
96

d= B2° O6' S7.      
L= 50. 47'     4' Ze57' 38•

0

3899'
S6'} y R.-." N' a  ^' 1 L= 2B. 66'   m

L= 50. 18'- PARCEL A 0. 482 AC

5072t5F p             49     o /       o TOTAL 1625i AC

Lo7 6
U

rc 

p

N7.   ry
W    51aexSF

50 w o o n       ,    _ a
TrzAc7 3789 6pS etiy R s                a asas: sF     '  e   ; g^;      g o

R- Z)     o y
N76• ps' S6' 7vfR

98'  I         

ry

Z a

Z

497Bk5F
52   , W Zi'     LEGEND

J

5179t SF

N la
o'I Q p 53

OISTINCTNE BOROER
39 d= 1' 33' 34' 

M
RIGHT OF WAY LINE5052tSF L= 31. 06 6p, 73,

N74° 33' 72' W( R) 29. 00'    /    vo) s•32' 7o1yR 50 N

z

W LOT IJNE/ PARCEL lME

3z. pp, s 1_J       os      n•
ssy4,,       2 E% ISTINC PROPERtt IINE

47p0, N73z249q. y C   /      V ^;v„'  5a. 02 FASEMENi IINE

m      / 
N6j' 5'!'

I?
6  "

y g•

v  

4920tSF W 61

SO. Oz•      H
Q.     

FOUNDEZT
ZEBRA55 OISK IN CONCREIE

6= 1° 07' 35' ' RL-'%       
o-/ ryti

z    
R=20. U0' q35125F   ' lA NUMENT BO% UNlESS O7HERWISE NOIED

N            49
b i 0= BB° 32' 04'   j W p Qo SEf 2 I/ 2° BRASS DISK STAMPE' LS Bfi17' IN

ry      /$      :.     L= 30. 90'       a fi0     z M NUMENT BO% PER Cltt OF LATHROP STANOAR S

V             9BSB SF m     `/^, 4599t5F d'
M NIIMENT OF RECORO TO BE SEf PER TRACT 7789

a u o i 93.3T\      _ 59 W M NIIMENT OF RECORO TO 9E SET/ S NOiEO

S 4B47t5F
ANGLE POIM

R= 20. 00' A= 90° 00' 00' L= 31. 42' BNDY         

tr     $       

p3
6E L'  

41 Sp7y \ aQ

58
BNDY 6011N ARY

NbT,-      

p•      -

B7
n      

2
y 0.1 o.      

z\'

v

N z
Sy4 50   

Cl CEMERUNE

N72° 15' 14' W5. 00' BNDV
NlT

5 4-2 g
E131''

T

s+96"' Z

30$
7p'

z   \      

MXM MOINIIMENf TO MONIIMEM

RJ)  Op•  •-, qZ      '    

N'
0

9' 4j3     ' i      \`\,     Z'\     M- PL M NUA7ENTTOPROPERttLINE

f l_, N77° 44' 4fi° E 32. OD' BN Y Pl    
5j4}' 1'<

0,   
M- PE MONUMENT i0 TIE

R= 20. o0'     ti    R= 90. 00' 
0 S  ' y M1f      $    

TIE- PL TIE TO PROPERII' LINE
d= 90° 00' 00' 

41      ` i'  e= a• m zr    
S.

00,  "• s.     TR' E  '  `    
PUE PUBLIC UiWtt EASEMEM

N77• jy.
4 

L= 37. 42'  94191 SF m  $  L= 20. fi9'       \   4w 91.z.     M@P MAPS AND PIATS

o?
gs,      n'    Sp, pO, WE wALL EASEMENT

M S
pp,   zi/    42

4. 02' $      R)      RADIAL BEARING
P<

12a.
61, .  

4143t5F    

43
S            . 00•    PULLBACK 01STANCE

BZ, 425Dt5F          T \`  RECORD OISTANCE

T      R      yf o/ ,$  S. J. C. R.    SAN JOAOUM COUNtt RECORDS

96 425USSF         

j- 3)       \          
5p       

2 45     $    \\ 3    INDICATES SHEEI NUMBER

N LO/ N  
Sa.

p,       y$ 425Ut5F     

0 23      \ 7RACT 3810     

z 7s
q,, i,?

se M     `,

O O
E

zjs'
a"

46zsr so. 
g'   

4s

R_
T\   

TI v

STREET              So.     _

24

TRACT NO. 3 81225

N 2. 
o zo ao ao

Z6
T   

M

o

N 2 15 14
s

QwZBB,      '" SCAL   
SUB IVISIONS OF SAN JOADUIN COUNTV

27    p o. E
4g'OS'

NDy p S119DIVISION OF LOTASF OF TPACTI3789 AS HECOP EO IN BOOK 42 OF

oy/  
6iAPS ANO PLATS AT PAGE 99 SAN JOA UIN COIINTY PECONOS OEING A

POfiTION OF SECTION 27, TOwNSHIP 1 SOUTN, RANGE 8 EAST, NO( INT

OIABLO BASE& NENIOIAN

SAN JOA UIN COII CALIPoRNIA

RIACKl Y& SOI PS
e,..    zs a

os- sz- zo s r:o am a n u.      P:] 521J\ SRV M4PPING\ f1A\ PMJSE:\ iR] d12 FN- Ofi. OWG SHEE( 6 OF 6

op

APRIL 2019 25213- 01

177



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 10

EXHIBI'T B

TRACT AREA M P

178



EXHIBIT " B"

Future

Mixed Use&

Commercial
F

Existing
Future High Schoof

Community
Park

v» 3-
p

LathroP r T. r.J'J          
s„''' r  --~

1 Community y,'  

J         Center rt,      : M 3 J A-   i
vY          l         t

ACT 381
J       r°"Yi     , • ` 

Park       '    

T

J-'    pN"
y

w

TRACT 3808   #  .•.''      „_   
a,    -,";,.,}

E,

j

c' C ,:.-    --.`' r,   
J  `        

r
3—'+ t r. l,.,. + rl.;

4
l

w
1     . 1`'     '.

yJ. 
L7

Proposed

K         

r,_    
J  

v 

i r  '`J RetaiUOffice
S t I,,.    .     :   +-   d;

d        a
f.2,, J TRACT 3809         ;    

z  w TRACT 3810      ,      ,

ep i
y

C`.. r 9  "  
a

a,    ,.   '      ., f`     3/ J

x    ,,;
a       / ..,   .  ",` v, ,      

s

ROa,'

a
J
J '.s?    j J r+r `   ., 2  •,:, /    .    Q

a    ,  :/    J     r,      . 

os
t  .,  . .

1         ,
S'

A. 
y,     .;

i`+.

r      " 

w,:   `"      "
R

Iy"' 

Variable Density G       C

Residential TRACT 3811         
a

X,,   - ..,;. p /
a          ,       „. aa,i,      _ ( 9 r

s - .  a..a ,     

Proposed   n

High

Density
Residentiai

o,

w,;-  
s ; 1`  w'

TRACT AREA MAP

STANFORD CROSSING PHASE 1A

179



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 11

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURA1010E REQUIREMENTS

1.       The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to

do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no

less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and$ 2,000,000 in the

aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy
endorsements, executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision

Improvement Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be

attached to the certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and

members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability

arising out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or
the equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary insurance as

respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in excess

of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty (30) days prior
notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be included on

the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least

five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.

180



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( Saybrook CLSP, LLC/ Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC)
Tracts 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811 & 3812

Page 12

EXHIBIT D

TABLE OF TOTAL COSTS, UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST, AND BOND

VALUES FOR NEIGHBORHOOD PARK, WATER TANK AND BOOSTER PUMP,

BACKBONE STREET FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS, AND TRACTS 3808, 3809, 3810,

3811 AND 3812

181



i

David Hall- Sound Walls 2, 509, 670 $      107, 288 96% Stanford Crossing- retums at Barbara Terry( 2) and Madrone( 1), Golden Valley-  S 111, 417 $      55, 708

Entry and Wall from Locomotive to Stanford Crossing, and Stanford Crossing
E try, Install Pilasters and complete wall changes mostly at GVP enlries

Odyssey- Landscaping 3, 05, 023 $     1, 396, 042           54% Spartan Way- landscaping needs to be completed once PGBE lie- ins are       $       1, 535, 646 $     767, 823

completed; Stanford Crossing- still needs irrigation runs, controller, planting, DE
and Bark; GVP- needs 2l3 irtigation runs, conlroller, planting, DE and Bark

TeicheA- Backbone Ph1 8 2 S 1, 334, 829 $      291, 662 78% Need to pave, reise iron, sign and stripe. Miscellaneous concrele repairs on GVP:$ 320, 828 $     160, 414

Need lo complele 6% of Misc concrete and sidewalks, 30% of eleclrical trench

Teichert- Miscellaneous Civil Work
88z' 9 Z

5 145, 178 84% patching, and 100% of Spartan Way exlension sidewalks, bertns and wattle     $ 159, 695 5 79, 848

Smith Denison- Barbara Terry Joinl T2nch S 532, 169 $ 100% Completed- gas tie- in is paid for and PG& E to complete S
Smith Denison-- Golden Valley Pkwy Joint Trench     $     765, 413 $ 100% Completed- gas tie- in is paid for and PG& E to complete

Smith Denison- Land Park Drive Joinl Trench 5 932 178 $       100% Com leted- as tie- in is aid tor and PGBE to com lete S
TOTALS- BACKBONE $   10, 027, 193 $     1, 934, 170 81% 2, 127, 587 $    1, 063, 793

i:

Teichert 3, 792, 231 $       72, 268 98% Need to raise iron, sign, stripe and miscellaneous concrete repair 79, 495 $      39, 748

Smiih Denison 5 828. 423 $      350, 873 58% Install street li hts S 385, 960 $     192, 980

TOTALS- NEIGHBORHOOD 1A $    4, 620, 654 $      423, 141 91% 465, 455 $     232, 727

Teichert 5 2, 430, 625 3 83, 400 97% Need to raise iron, sign, stnpe and miscellaneous concrete repair 91, 739 $      45, 870

Smith Denison 945 700 5 384, 243 59% Install street li hts S 422 667 S 271, 334

TOTALS- NEIGHBORHOOD 10 $    3, 376, 325 $      467, 643 8fi% 514,407 $     257, 203

i

Teichert 1, 858, 544 $      374, 346 80% Complete paving, raise iron, sign, stripe, miscellaneous concrete repair 477, 781 $     205, 690

Smith Denison 3 573 657 S 299, 607 48% Transfortners Cable, Set boxes and Install Streetli hts 329, 568 S 164 784
TOTALS- NEIGHBORHOOD2A $    2, 432, 201 $      673, 953 72%  741, 348 $     370, 674

o- •      

I

Teichert- Neighborhood 2B 1, 360, 996 5 57, 050 96% Complete paving, raise iron, sign, slripe, miscellaneous concrete repair 62, 755 $      31, 378

Smith Denison- Nei hborhood 2B S 423 289 $      202, 305 52% Cable, Set boxes and Install Streetli hts 222 536 5 111, 268

TOTALS- NEIGHBORHOOD2B $    1, 784, 285 $      259, 355 85% 285, 291 $     142, 645

Teichert- Neighborhood 3 2, 106, 330 $      595, 133 72% Complete paving, 2ise iron, sign, stripe, miscellaneous concrefe repair 654, 647 $     327, 323
Smilh Denison- Nei hborhood 3 651, 479 5 324, 907 50% Transformers Cable, Set 6oxes and Install Streetli hts 357, 398 S 178 699

TOTALS- NEIGHBORHOOD 3 $    2, 757, 809 $      920, 040 67% 1, 012, 044 $     506, 022

m     .
x

Estimale 1, 400467 $     1, 400, 467 0% 1, 540, 514 $     770,257
TOTALS- NEIGHBORHOOD PARK $    1, 400, 467 $     1, 400, 467 0%  g       , 540, 514 $     770, 257 W

Estimate S 4, 924 099 S 4, 924, 099 0%  S 5, 416 509 $    2 708, 254

I

TOTALS- WATER TANK $    4, 924, 099 $     4, 924, 099 0%  5, 416, 509 $    2, 708, 254

GRAND. TOTAL' S ';` T:;:'."     .. 1,,, : ' 37:323, 033. $;..:..1' 1, 002, 868 . : i.'      ..... ; ..       '-:.         ' :: •.. .      ". '      <.'.  .  S.'.     12;' 103, 154 $. ';  . "  .. 6. 05i. 57:

182



ATTACHMENT D

Doc q:  2017- 108 414
09/ 19/ 2017 01: 16: 30 PM

iPage:  1 of 22 Fee: $ 0
5teve J. Bestolarides
San Joaquin County Recorders
Paid $ y: SHOWN OR! DOCUI7ENT

After recording, return to II y°`' 8+
f' I II I       ;City of Lathrop i'    !

City Clerk
39Q' owne Centre Drive        

Lathrop, CA 95330

I FIA 17- 01

DEFERRED FROI' AGE MMPitOVEN. E AGItEE1V1E1 I"I"FOR S' REET

R VE1V l d' d.'S ( Iot OLIIEN VALLE' PARK VAY, SPA TAN WAY ANID LAI' D

PA1 K IDR E ( A.PN 191- 210- 13, 19- 210- 16, 191- 210- 24, 191- 210- 25, 19- 210- 37)

THI AG tEEMENT, dated this 18 h_ day of Septerriber, 2017, by and between the

CITY OF LATHROP, a political subdivision o#' the State of California, hereinafter referred to as

CITY," and LATHROP LAND ACQUSITION, LLC, hereinafter referred to as " OWNER" or

APPLICANT'.

i VIT'N SS]E

W 1tEA. S, application for Vesting Tentative Map # 3789 ( Stanford Crossing) was

approved by the Planning Commission on December 18, 2013 ( Resolution No.  13- 17) and

affirmed by the City Council on January 13, 2014 ( Resolution No.  14- 3707) with certain

Conditions of Approval dated December i 8, 2( 113 ( Attachment " B") that required OWNER to

construct street frontage improvemenis along Golden Valley Parkway, Spartan Way and Land

Fark Drive; and

Ft A, OWNER intends t record the large lot final map for the Tract 3789

Stanford Crossing}, and tl erefore wishes to identify street frontage construction requirements of

the OWNEIZ which result from approval of the applications noted above; and

R.EA5, Condition of Approval Number lA requires that:

l.       The applicant shall comply with all conditions of approval adopted by the City

Council in approving this Smali Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision iviap as well as alf applicable

conditions of approval for Large Lot Vesting Map 3533

A. Completian af street frontage improvements adjacent to VTM 3789 including:

i.  Golden Valley Parkway: West side only from Land Park Dive to Spartan Way:
e Sidewalk and curb returns

Landscape and irrigation

d Joint Trench

183



DFiA 1?- O!

Centrn! Lothrap 5pecific Plen Lnrge Lot Map 37 9, Stanford Crossing

si.  Spartan W y: South side only frocn Golden Valley Parkway to d and Park Drive
excludi g Cammunity Center frontage

a Sidewalk and curb retums

o Landscape end irrigation

Joint Trench

iii.  Land Par: Drive; iVorth side only from Golden Va6ley Parkway io Sgart n Wuy
Sidewal and curb recurns

Lar dscape and irrigation

4 Joint Trench

m   treet Li hts( both sides of st eet) ; and

W R AS, ehe parties hereto mutumlly desire to de#'er the construction of Golden

Valley P rkway, Spartan lay arad Land Park Drive frontage improve ents to a later date as

determined by the CITY; and

N DVd,       ', it is agreecf by and b tween the parties hereto as #'ollows:

1.       OVJNER r presents and warranEs chat they are the fee title owners of the re l progerty

describ d in Attachmer t" A" attached h elo and herein incorporated by this reference. OV ER

acknowled es hat the dcvelopment of Tract 37 9 is subject to  condi ian of constructin

frontage impraverrA nts.   Vesting Tentative Map 37$ 9 ( StnnFord Crosssng) approved by lhe

Plannin Commission on December 1, 2013 { Resa ution No. 13- IS) and af irmed by t e City

Council on danuary 13, 2014 ( Resolution No. t4- 3707) are exgressly incorporaY d by reFer nce

nd made a part of ihis Agreem nt togeEher tvith their Conditions of Approval( Attachment" B").

Thc parties nereto agree ihat qhe actual construction of the r quired improvements may t e

de0ayed as provided herein.  Failur to provide for the canstruction of tiaese impravements shall

constit te not only a failure of condition as to OWNER' s app3ication5 fos Vesting Ter tative Map

37E9 ( Stnnford Crossing) approved by the Planning Commission on December i8, 2013

Resolution No. 13- 15} and affirmed by the City Council on January 13, 2014 { Resoiutian I to.

14- 3747), but ls a breach oi' this Agreement for which additiona) leg l remedies may be
pursu d.

2.       OWI bER grees to provide for the sonsiruction of certain frontage improvernents along

the frontag on s id real property at the solc cost and expense of fJW1 JER.

Said fronta e ianprovements shall 6e cansistent vith th standards s t forth by the Coradition of

Approval Nurr ber IA.

Pogc 2 of 10

184



DFIA l7-pl

Ccnlral Lnthrop SpeciCc plun Lurge Lot Map 37& 9, Stanfnrd Cross3ng

Said ronta e improvernen. s shall is clude but not be Iimited to ti os listed in Attachment " C"

Engin er' s Estir ate ' ar Improvements), and are estim# d as 2, 93A, 000 ( i20% oP 2, 445, 040).

Detertnination of wh a th requir+ed improvement are to be cans8ruct d sha#1 be within the sale

discretion of 4he City Engineer for the C TY( hereinafter" Ci y Engineer" j, subject to the terr s of

this A reement.   However, it is understood th c the reasons to defer constructiot o#' th se

amproveme ts inclutle:

Street impravements svere required per previous Large Lot map, but DevelopmenE

Agreement and VTM conditians allowed deferrin the improvements until a F' ina! Map is

filed.

3.       Upon writte notification by the CI' 3' 1' to roceed, WAIER shall e ga e a Civi)

Er gineer, licerased in Ehe State af Caiifornia, to design a d preparc constructior drawings for the

required improvements. The design o' said irnprovements shul! be in uccordance with t latest

City aF Lathrop Design and CoaasYruction S4andards in effect at the time o#' ag rovai of the

improvemer t pl ns. ' fhe improvera ent plans shall be submitted to the Ciry En ineer for approval

within ninsty { 90} days of writte noti cation from CI'I'Y arad construation sl all commence

w'sthin ninety ( 94) days after approv) of the construction dra vings.  Conditions of when the

CiTY would call for t e fronta e improvement to be bvitt are noteci in Chapt r 12. 1 A5Q ofthe

Lathrop MunicipaI Cocie. 

4.       The CiEy Er gine r may choose to have the CITY or other interesied panies perform the

design engineer ng mnd construction of these improvements as an alternate to paragraph 3 above.

lf the C1TY or ogher inte s4eci parties perform the design and constructiora wor C, OWNER wilf

r imburse the CITY wi hin 3fl days of wratcen notification of' th  CITY' s request for

reittibt rsement foa all cosfs of the design and construction of thgse i nprovements.  The cost of

these irnpravemengs shail be the actvml d sign and construction casts. The construction casts are

estimat d in Attachments  " C"  and  " D"  { Engineer' s Estimate Por improvements).    ' I' he

construction casts shall b adjusted by the Engineerfin Construction Cost Inde, as published by

the Engrneerittg Neivs Recvrd.

5. In any event, if there is a defuult af Para raph 2 or 3 above by WNER, the C1TY may

proceed to caus said c nstruetion to be performed and ch rge the entire cost and expense to the

Page 3 of 10

185



DF1A 17- 01

Central Lathrop Speciftc Plc r Largc Lo Map 3789, Stnnf rd Gossing

QWRIER, including at terest therean at the ma tirn stn legal rate rom the daie of written notice of

said cost and exp nsa, unti( paid.

6,       ' i' his agree ent is int nded ta n with Ihe lar d described in Attachmenc " A" and is

binding on the heirs, successors and assignees of() WNER and the beneft is to run to d e

successors and assig es of CI7Y. OWNER hereby expressly agrees that any casts incurr d by

CITY yn its performance under Paragraphs 2, 3, 4 or 5 of ehis agreement shaIl conse'stute a lien

upon the praper y described in Attachment " A". OWhJER consents ta said lien and agrees the

such lien is collect bl by the C1TY in ihe same manner as ur paid secured taxes, together vith

cost of col lection.

7.       OW JER shall include in any safes agreement or transfer of any interest in any part or the

w ole of the property which is covered by this Deferred Improvement Agreer aent  the

requircment thai the Buyer/ Transferee assume the responsibilities set forth in chis f#greement, as

to the praperty and wgrees ta be 5ubject to the tecrns and c4nditions herein, as an heir, successor

ar assignee of oWNER.  OWNER shall require the Buyerl' ransferee to sigr an ackn wledged

and not rized scate eni subslantially in the following form:

uyerll'ransferee hereby ac{crio vledges and assumes all responsibility fQr the

construciion of Frontnge improvements rela4ed to th property 6'or vhich Buyer T'ransE'eree

is acquiring an inierest, in accordance with the terms nd conditia s af Agreement DF1A

17- 01 befiween the City of Lathrop and OWNEf{ recorded as part of t te Official Records

of San Joaquin County.

Miscell neous Provisions:

a. oasent. Uhenever in this A reemeni the approval ur consent of a party is

r quired, such approval or consent shald be in writing and shall be executed by a

perso a having the expr ss author ty to rant such appraval or consen.

b.      Controllina Lativ. ' fhe parties agree that this Agreement shaI3 be gaverned and

constr ed by and in accaedanee with the l. aws of the Staie of C lifornia.

c.       Definitions. The defsnitions and terms are as defined in this Agr emcnt.

d.      Force Ma'Lure. Neither party shall be deera ed to be in default on account of any

d lay or failure co perform its obligatiorts under this Agreement that directly

results from an Act ofGod or an act of a superior govemmental authority.

Pagc 4 of! 0

186



DFfA 17- 01

C ntral Lathrop 5pecific Plnn Lorgc Lot Mnp 37B9, Stnnford Crossin

eadin s. The paragraph headin s are not a part of his Agreement and shall have

no effeci upon the constructian or interpretation oFany part of this Agreemant.

f.       Inco oraEion f Docu ents.  A 1 dacurnents conscitutin  the Agreement

documents as described hcsein and Di documents which may, frorn tsma to time,

be referred to n Any duly e ecuted atnendment hereta are by sueh reference

incorparaYed in the Ag eemant and shall be d med o be part of this Ag eement.

g.      InEesration. 7'his Agreament and any afnendments hereto between the parties

constitute the ntire agreement behv en the parties concem' sng qhe deferra{ of the

frantage improvements, There are no ot er prior aral or wri ten agreements

between the parties tl ai are not incarporated in this Agreement regarding the

iming of such frontage imgrover ents.

h.      Modification Qf A reement.' this Agreement shall a ot b modifaed oe be bindin

upon he parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and siga ed by the

parties.

i.       AroviSion. Any a, reement, covenent, cond'stion, clnuse, qualification, !' 85tCiCtlQI1,

r servation, term oe other stipulation ' sn the Agr e nent sha11 define or od erwise

con ro9, estab ish or timit th performance required or permitted ar to be required

of or permitted by eifher pariy. ADI provisions, wh ther covenants or eondikians,

shal! be deemed Eo be bolh covea a ts Etnd conditi ns.

j.       Time is of the EsSen e. Tirne is of the essence of this Agreemen# and each of its

provisions, in the calculation of time hereunder, the tirne i vhich an act iS to be

pecforra ed shafl be computed by e cluding the ftrs Day and including the [ asY. 1f

the time in which n act is to be performed faIls on u Satusday, Sunday or any Day

observed as a ega1 holiday by C[' t' Y, the time for perfo ance shali be extended

to the followang Business Day.

k.       V nue. In the event that suii is braught by either party heeeunder, the parties a ree

that triaf of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of Cafifornia

in ths County of Ssn Joaquin or in the Unit d Statgs Districc ourt for the Eastem

istrict of Califarnia.

Pnge 5 of[ 0

187



DFiA 17- 01

Centrnl l,nthrop Specific Plan Large I. at Map 3789, Stan( ord Crossing

4.      In the ev att that ther are aty chAr ges to the law thut m kc any part of this Agreem nt

invalid, that porcion of the Agre m nt shall be severed from the A reement and the remaining

partions of the Agrcement shall rem i in fuli force and effect.

10,     In the evertt of any controversy, claim or dispute relating to this instrument or the br ach

thereof, ti e prevailing pasty shali be cntided to recov r from the Iasing party reasonable

expenses, attorn y' s fees and costs.

A' H" TACFI] N' I":

A.      Le al D scripiion ofTract 37 9, dated August 1$, 2017

B.      City Coun i! Resolution AIo. 14- 37U? & Planning Comrnassion Resalutian No. 93- t5
wid Conditions of Approva!

C.      Tcacc 3' 1 9 Engineer' s Estimate for Improvemer ts

Pagc 5 of 10

188



I) FiA 17- OE

Cent a! Lathro Specific Plcan l.nrg Lot? viap 37 9, Stan1' atci Crossing

II WI 1E 5 iArEiE   {? F, the parii s h reto hav ex cu€ed thi A re r t n

the date firsY e trittsn bave.

T''"": Teresa Var as I'Y 3 I'    ', a

ity Clerk of nd for the Ciiy political subdivisi+ r of

of Laihrap, Sta e afCalifora is the SB te ofCal#' omia

Z. Drz' -' r

eresa Vargas, Ciry CI 5onny Dh li val,   ayar

P t I A5' F     .

c.,'--".'

Salvador Iavarrete, City Attomey

R' T fl 1E; L. T lR IP LANi AC UdSIT14} N, L. 0

y: Saybrao C Fund I uesiors, L, C,
lt rtaanagin m r tber

y:         

f.. Y M .  U. 1L on1

t e-

1

Natary Ackno led m t Far n A4¢ cher3

Page 7 oF 0

189



1-,   JN. 3§ 1° i89

r o4 y ublic nr ot4 er otficer cca np eiing this oertificate ve ifies anIy fhe identity of th individual vh slgn ri 9hs
docum nt to wrhiah ti ts cerlifrcate€ s attached, and nok tha iruthfulness, accuracy, or vals ity af that dpcumen

Sfat of Ca11€aml  

County af - 9$  

on.'` tore r, ach l M. VVri h, hJa a Pu6l3c

Date er insart lame and rtl of the O cer

persosrally appe rsd e a

N me( sJ oiSign r(s)

v hn pr ved to r e on the basis of saiisfac4ory videnoe 90 be # he p rsont) vvhos name{) € s/
subs rib d to the wa4thin Ins#rurn nt and ackn vledged ta me tha# hel y ex cut d the sam in
hfs ir auYhoriz d capac6ty), snd that by hf      '  elr slgn ture(s} on th Instsum nQ the person( j,
or the nt'siy upon beh it of+ hlch ihe ps son(s) ac sd, ettecuted 9he instrurr ent.

cer4"siy undsr PEFl, 4LTf OF PERJURY asnder 6h laws
af h State of Califc tfa 9hat 1he# oregaing paragraph
is true and correct,

VVi 1 SS ny nd and offi' sal seal.
R CWEL P. 1GHT

Pdotaey A sbdic- CalEfarnl
Eos Ang l s Counly x S gnature

Cammi ian e 24653@4   8i,gnatu ry P'' c

C mr. Ea ires Dct 2, 2DPQ

Place IUatary 5ea1 Abov
rac.

Thaugh this ssctiora fs optional, corrtpJeting this rr farrn ion can det r lteraFion of ihe docum nt or
fraudulanY raattachmenf af thls farm io an unintended document.

s rip i r o A   ec c r eearo4 `
i
Q 4  C L`. 1,¢ i"        

Ti&le or Z' yy oF C3ocument:  E} ocum nt Daie:
PVurn r af Pages:    5ignar{ sy Other ? an rrsed At ovs:

ct#y{i} Cta9ras d i r ig r{ sj
Slgn r' s AJarne:    Sign r' s Narrse:

orpora e Of icer— Ti4Ie( s):   C3 tarpor e O icer— Ti te( s):
Par ner-- Llmiied   General Ci R @ner L Umotecd i1 Gensra!  `

G Individual Atio ey in ace p I di du l Cl Att mey 1n Fact
C17rustes Guardiae or Cor s rvator nasfea Guardian or Consen a#ar

Oth r.   t1#her.
Sign r is epresentir g:   Signar! s l9s r s n4ing:

20# 4 6Vatfiaraaf i otary Associaifon w a°,. National o6ary. o g•- 00- US N TA Y( 1- QO- 78- 6827}  Item 59Q7

190



c. i a .- s c a. oc a c i co g

A notary public or other officer completing thfs certifscate verifies only lhe idertity of the indi 6duaf wha signed dh
document 4o which th cettii cate is attachad, and not the trulhhsiness, accuracy, ar validity a4 i7 aB documeni.

State of Cal' ornia +       

County af I VI

On. tx t. 7before me,    ' e'  #" t. l

Date 1- e Insert Nama d Ti e of ihe Officer

personally appeared I/  N f .
N me(s} of igner(s)

who prov d to me on the # asis of satisfactory evid nc to be ! he person{s) whose name(s) 3 Jare

subscribe 3 Y the within Ins4rument nd acknowledgad to me that hslshelihey exe utec3 ihe same in
hislher/ ths r autha iz d capacity( ies), and that by his/ herlthe3r signatur( s) on the ins4n ment the person(s),
or the entity upon bahalf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

1 cettify under P lAL1Y OF PERJURY under the a+nrs

af th Sta4e af Caliic mla that the foregoing paragraph
is trua and correct.

A

r Es   
WIT ESS my hand and o cial seaf.

cornmission 21fl2692
s 1atary Pub{ Is- C iltotni

Signatura
san JamquJ Cn n4y

p ,    eS a g, p q g Signature of htota       ! ic

Place Notary Seal Above
OPTIDIVAL

Though this section is optianal, completing this information can deter alteratfon af ihe document or
fraudulenf reattachmerrt of this form to an unintended document.

Descripd3 n of Attachec9 Da uQ» ent

Title ar Type of DocucnenG     ,' Dt Document Date:   C   

T

Numbet- of Pages:  Signer{s) Othe Than PVarned Above:

Capac3ty( ies) Claamed hy S6gner( s)
Signer' s Narr e:      Signer' s Name:

Corpora4e Officer — Title(s};    1 CorporaRe OfFicer — Title( s4:
rJ Partner—  Limited C; General r 1 Fartner — I ; Limited    i General
J Individual i ? At3omey in Fact Ondivldual i 

Attorriey in Fact
r Trustee r C3 dian or Conservaior 1 Trustee l Guardian ur Consenrator
i CRher: - -- l      i I Other.

S(gner, 8¢,  eprese, ng:    S3gner Is Fiepresenting:
yt tf

2014 National Notary Assaciatlon • www. NationalNotary.arg• 1- 800- US NOTARY{ i- AQO• 87fi- 6827)   ii„ so7

191



25213. 000

5 18l2017

Fng i of Q
EXH1B T" A"

L, CCAL SCRfl'' t IV
AN 35 OF„ 9""I' IR' LAND A UlSiT901 f, E, LC

REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CiTY OF LATHi2UP, COUNTY OF SAN JpAQUiN, STATE C} P
CALiFORN1A, f3EiNG MORE PARTI iJLAfZLY DESCitl ED AS FfJLL, oWS:

PARCEL NE:

LO' I' S.,? 1, 22, 23, 24, 2S AND 26, S SHOWN 1 1 TRACT NUMBER 3533, R CC R D I d TH

r iCIAL RECORC35 Or 5AN JOAQUl3V COUNTY, STATE OT' CAI, iFORNiA, OAt OCTOBER 5, 2006,
tN BOOK 40 Or M PS AND PLA' S PAGB IOD.

EXClEPT1AIG TH REFROM A P RTiON OF Lt3T 26, $ EIPJ ALL THAT CG. 7' AIi+J PORTION Or
Lt ND QUtTCLA1MED TO THE CITY OF LATHROP, A M1U lICIPAL CORPClRATIOT, MOftE
PARTICULARLY D SCRIBED AS PARCEL A [N THE DOC IMENT RECOR GD MARCH 32, 2013,
DOCUMENT itlt3. 2413- 03810$, SAN JOAQU[ N COUNTY EiECORDS.

CONTA1NiNG 9437 ACfiES, iYtOl2E OR LESS

PARC ffi 3W0•

A NON- EXCLl3SEVE EASEMENT FOR CONS' fR41CTlON, IiECONSTRUCTIOhi, INSTALl. ATIOFd,
PLACEMENT, INSPEC' FIaN, aPERATtQN, USE, MA[ NTENANCE, REPAIR AND REPLACEMEAIT OF
i) POL S, WIRES, CABLES, P1PES, COtJDU1TS APfD APPUR' ENA CES THEE ETO 4A1D( ii) A

S' ORM DRAIN DETENTIOi 1 BASiN AND ALL APPUR. TENANCES'[' HERE' S' O AS GRAYVTED TO SCL
LATHROP lNVESTMENTS, LLC, A DELAWARE i.iMITED L1ABILITY COMPANY BY DOCUMEiVT
ENTITLEI7 GRANT OP EASEMEIdT ANU R1GH3' OF ENTRY AGREEMENT RECORDED AUGUST 1 I,

U06, INST UMCNT NO. 200b- 172190 F OFFICIAL RECO tDS DESCRFHED AS FOLLOWS:

A PORTIQN OF SECTION TtiVENTY- T O( 22), 4ND A PORT[ QN OF SECT[ O 1 TIVENTY- SEVEN ( 37)
TOWNSHIP flNE( l) SOUTH, RANGE SiX( 6) EAST, MCDUAlT DIABLQ 6ASE Ah1D MERIDIAN,
B ING A PORTION C? F TI- LANDS GRANTED TO RO1 LA7HROP INV ST( 3R5, LLC, Y DEE
RECqRDED OCTf3BEft 28,? OQS [ N DOCUML7VT iVUMBER 2U05- 271 l90 OFF[ C[ AL RECORDS,
COUNTY OF SAid JC?AQUIN, A1. S0 HEING A P( RT10N C? F THE LANDS GRflNTED T RICHLAi ID
PLANNED COMMUAiIT4ES, II C., BY DEED RECQRDED JUNE i4, 2006 IN DQCUMEIrIT AIUtvSBER

OOb- 133l92, OFFICIAL[ tECOltDS, C4tl3 i7' Y C?F SAN. tC) f l, U6N, SEiidG 1 YORE PA[ t'i' 1C4JLARLY
DESCRI ED AS FOE, LOWS:

COMMENCING AT A P( INT QN TH SOU' HERLY E. fNE OF DOS RE15 ROA( COUN' fY ROAD

1127)( 50: 00 FEET W1DE) SA1D P INT BElNG AT' THE NOR' CHWES' I` CORNElZ OF THE
A80V IviEN' 1' IOtdED LANpS GRANTGD TO RICHLAND PLANNED COMMYUNITl65;

THENCE FROM[ SAID PQI lT OF COMMENCElv1EN1' ALfaidG SAID SOUTHEFtLY LINE QF DQ5 R6IS
ROAD C 13' lCIDE1 dT 1' 1TFi Tf IE NOR' I' t-tERLY L[ NE OF SAtD 1, AR3DS OF F iCHLAND PLANNGD
CflMMUN1TlE5, SOUTH 89°49'? 9" EAST$ 6. 15 FEET;

THENCE ENTERING SAf l. ANDS f€ZlCHLAYVL? PLAT+diVED COMiviUNITlES AT RIGI-i3' ANGLE5
FR M SAID SOUTHERLY LI1 E OF OS RElS ROAD AND CONTINUiNG THROUGH 5A1D LANDS
OF RO[ LATHROP INV STORS, SOUTEI 00' 10' 3I" WEST, 1917, 23 f ETl' 0 THE TRUE I' OI1VT OF

EG IMNI iG;    

THENCE ROM SAiD POIP T OF SELiiPJNiNG, THE FOLl. OWIi+lG ELEVEi ( 11) COUftS S:

1.  NL7RTH 64° S6' 1?" EAS' I', 60, 44 6' ET;

P, 125213 SRV1 inppinglpc.act25213 C1SP OVERALL DESC. docx

192



252E3. 040

8F18f3017

Page? oCQ
Z.  NORTH 25° 03' 48" WEST, IOQ. l6 FEET;

3.  SOUTH 8° 45' 4" EAST, 41. 73 FEET;

NORTH 7° I7' 12" LAST,$ 4. 72' EE'!"•.

5.  NORTH UO° 00' 00" EAST, 188. 76 F E'';

5.  NORTf-! 49° 47' 13" WEST, 95. 77 FEET;

7.  NfJR' H 00' QO' 00" EAST, 72. 59 FEET;

8.  NORTH 18e26' D6" WEST, 79. 06 FEET;

9.  NORTH 00° 00' DO" EAST', 234. 5 FEET;

10. NORTH 90° Qp' 0" WES' F, f9. 3 FEET;

i l_ SOUTH 00° I4' 31" VEST, 08. 53 FBET TO TNE P IN' C O I3 G[ NI I.

PARCEL.' i' HIt:

A NON- 6XCLUSIVE ASEh iENT FOR CONSTRU TIOAI, RECONSTitUCTION, iNSTALLATiON,
PLACEMEAIT, it ISPECTION, OP RATION, USE, f tAIN" ENANCE, f EPA R AND REPLACEMEN7" 0'

i) PaLES, WIRES, CA[ 3LES, PlPES, CONDUITS AND APPUR' EtVANCE T} fER TO AND( ii) CCESS
FACiL1T] ES, INGRESS ARID EGRESS, TRAii. S, LAIVD5CAPlRI i AND ALL RELAT@D
APPUitTEAIANT FAC[ LITIES AS GR.AT!' EQ TO SC. LATHROP INVESTMENTS, LLC, A DELAWARE
LIMITE[ 7 L#ABILITY C MPAIVY Y DOCUA 9EN'€' ENT[ TLEi GRA IT OF EASEMEN' f AND R[ GHT
OF ENTRY AGREEMENT R.ECORDED AUGUST 11,? OOb, INSTE E3MENT NO.? U06- 172191 Of
OFFICIAL R CDdtDS DESCRiBED AS FOLLOWS:

ALL THAT CERTA4N REAi. PROPERTY SiTUATE [ N ThtE CITY OF LATHROP, CQUNTY OF SAN
JOAQUDN. STA' i' E OF CALIFCIRNIA, BEING A i OSZTI N OF SECTION TWENTY- SEVEN ( 27)
TO VNSHIP ONE( 1) SOUTH, RANGE SIX( 5} EAST, MOUNT D[ ABLQ BASE AI D MERtD[ AN,
BEiNG A PORTlON OF THE LANDS GRANTED T ROI I A' FHROP iNVESTORS, LLC SY DEE
RECORDED OCTOBER 28, 2005 iN DOCUIV9 ST NUM ER 20qS- 271190, OFFiCtAL RECQRDS,
COUNTY OF 3AAt 3CDAQLIIN, BEING MORE PAR' f1CULARLY DESCRIBE AS FOLLCIWS:

COMMETdC1NG AT t1 PO1NT ON THB SOUTHERLY L1NE OF DOS REIS ROAa{ CpUNTY ROAD
1127}( 50. 00 FEET W1DE) SAiD i' OINT F3E1? dG AT' I' H NbRTHlVES1" CORN R F THE LA3 fd7S
GRAAfTED TO RICHLAND PLANNED COMMIfNlT[ ES BY DEED RECORDCI3 JiJiVE f 9, 2006 [ N
DOCUMENT N0. 20ab- I33192, O f ICtAL RECORDS, COLf 17' Y OF SAN JOAQUIN;

THERICE FROM SAID POIAIT QF COMI YCNCEMEitlT AL4NC, SA1 SOUTHERLY LII IE OF D05 tGIS
ROAD COINCIl3EtdT tiVIT' H' f' HE IORTHER, Y LlNE OF SAID LANDS OF RICHLAND PLANNED
COMMUNlTiES, SOUTH 84$ 49'? 9" EAST 86. 15 FEET;

THENC£ LEAVING S. lD L1iVG AND ENTEitING SAID LAtJDS OF 1tICHLAND PLANNED
COMMU3V1T1ES 1ND , LSO ENTERiNG A90VE MENTIONE LANDS OF ROl LATFIROP

lNV STORS, LLC AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM 5A4D SDUTHERLY I, tNB OF DOS RE15 RQAD, SOLITI
00° 10' 3I" tiVEST i9i7? 3 FE' f' T(3TFI T 2 JC PQ[ N1' I3E tNiV i;

TH NCC rROi I S 4lD POtNT OP BEGlNN1NG NOR' fH 6A' S6' IZ" AS' F 524.? 7 ' EET;

T13ENCE t LO1dG Tl ARC OF A TANGENT CURVE TU THE R1GHT, HAViNG f1 RADIUS OF
353d. 00 EET A CEiVTRA[, ANGLE OF i9' S5' 3" AND AA1 ARC LENGTH CDF 921. 1G FEET' CO A

P, k5713 S R V1Pd epp i sgl0csc 5213_ CLS P Q V KA I. L_ DESC. d oc c

193



25213. 00U

8/ 18/ 3017

Page 3 of A

POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY PROLUNGA' i' 1{? N OF Tf-IE EASTERLI' L1NE OF Ti-iE LANDS
GRAt TED' O vARM SPR1tvG5 tNVESTn EivTS, l.T DY DEED RECORpE DECEMB6R ! 4, 2op4

lN OCUMENT ASUMBER zpD t-?8502g, OFFDCIAL REC RDS, COITNTY OF SAN J AQUiN;

THENCE ALONG 5A1D LINE f)F PROLONGATION, o r t oo i7'29" ` VES'' 8. 1? FEETTO A PO[ NT
f3F CUSP;

THENCE LEAVI? tG SAip i.1NE OF PROLONGATION AI. ONG THE ARC(} F A NON- TANGENT

CURVE T THE LEF' P, SA1D CCIRVE ElNG PARALC. EL W1TH AND AIORTHERLY 8. 00 FEET
RADIALLY FROIvI THE LAST SA1D TANGENT CURVE, A IiAD1AL LINE TO 1VHICH CUftVE[ 3EAR5
SOUTH 10° U6' S3" EAST AT SAdD P01N" F OF CUSP, SAID CURVE HAVING A RAL7IUS ( 3F 3544. Q0

T, A CEIVTRA. ANGI..0 Or 02° 36' 26°' ANi) A hl ARC LE1dGTH OF 161. 6 FBE' i";

THENCE ALpNG A RADIAL Li1VE' O LA53' SAiD CURVE, NORTH i3° 43' 69" WEST,?. 4U FEET;

I' HENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A NC?I t- TANG NT CURVE TO TH LEF'!', A RAL3lAL LfNE TO

W}-11CH CURVE BEAR SOlJTN i2°43' 19" EAST AT POINT QP CURVE, SAID CU. VE HAVING A
RAi7IL1S OF 3SA6. 00 FEET, A CEAlTRA[. ANGE. E F D3° 51 ' S3" AN[} AN ARC L NGTH QF? 39. 39
FE T;

T IENCE AC. C>NG A RADIAL LINE TD LAST SA1D CllRVE, SOlf1 i t5° 3' I?" EAST. 2, Q0 FEET;

THENCE ALONG THE ARC Or A NOA3- TANGEPJT CURVE TO TEIE LEF3', A FtAD1AL L1NE TO
WHICH CURVE BEARS SOUTH 16° 3S' 12" EAST AT 6' O1NT OF CURVE, SAiD CURVE HAVING A
RAF iLJ5 QF 35aa. OR E T, A CENTRAE. ANGLE OF O8? 8' 36" AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 524. 3 i
FE ET;

T dENCE, SOUTH 64° 56' 12" V6S7 5? 5. 50 FEET;

l-IENCE S{ J' CH 00° 10' 31" WE6T. 84 EE" i` T TH ' Olid' T OP GIPlN tWC.

A PC.DRTI( 3N OF AE' N l41-? 10- 370, APT' S 191- 2[ Q- 134, 191- 210- lSO, 191- 214- 164, ! 9l- 2i0- 2 d0, ANQ
19i- 2f0- 250

A P1 AT, E 3 iIIB17'` B", 15 ATTACFi D HERETO, AND Y TW1S REr R i CE MADE A PART HEftEOF.

E I C SC'' I i I

PREPARED f3Y:    
y C

Sì

d

4 No. 88i7
c  j / 7

tAN D UC      DONALD DAT
L[ C SEd Ni7 SURVEYORN. 8617

EX . ( 21  / 17)       TF Of' CAL F
ST C CALlFORI[ A

CML E4GiNEEf NG• UIND FLPSvNGVC, U1N0 SIf V+'S'11YG
51a2 Frcnknn pitva Ss te 9, Fl asrnt CA. 9a58g. 335°
IC2 1 25•[ 359p

1'. 1252t31SftVihlnppinglDcsc1252f3^ CI, SP_ OVEf2ALL DGSC, Latx

194



XH      

gac' a'

o      ' 

v

3.,
Q

o       
j lQa 'n

U, o 1 jSCHdOL D1STR1C7 a?., ! j a I

2006- D75798 I g rn    g g
P 4RCEL 2 a a k..' a. l-- 

a. cu

PAACEL 3 F' OH1 E ROP ROAD
LOl' PD

11
CCI' Y f F

LA' fHROP

Lai' 29 Ea13- 038108 LaT 26
I

LOT 39

tR- 1f R- 11
R.- 4)

Lo7 Zt

R- D)   
LOT 30 a.      '`  --

PAACEL 1
R-- f)    

l.Di' 38
94. 37 AC

L4T 4 4   1 R- 1 l

Ty}  q  LOT 22        4T_ 25
IR- 11       

t R- l) R 1)       
a.       .,,`

W
01' 37

I a tR-   

LOT 14       \      
LOT z     LOT 31

tR- 01 IR- I) R- 3l

W v 
LOT 36

LO7 4 .       .        
IR- 1}

tR- 11

l    

0 3Q0 600 1200
PlAT TO ACCOklPAMf DESCRIPTI N

SCALE:  1"= 600'  

LEGEND  .  .    LANDS OF LATFlROP IAND
ACQUISITIQN LLC

BOUNDARY OF pESCRIPTION u  '     r. ar» u

EXISTIidG PARCEL
R- 1 j TRACT 3533, BK a0, PG 100,       a

SAN J4AQUIN COUNTY RECQRD Er cwF s au,Hr s sur roRs
5142H iRAt( KLIN Oft. FIFJSANT0 1, U 4456'd    ( 925} 2I3- 0690

DRAWN DATE SCALE JOB P1,

U. AUGUS7 2017 1'• 600 25213.01
o8- ta• IOtt tt79 m bn uxD« w! d P: 2S21] 1911+1UN' PWG1 A 6 Ur lLDwG

195



9 fo 1 Nd

up++vt a7 Wteta.rn N+nw w e tou uaweaN' qroiwav± u: awa a apJ un n itnasaiuq++ atrwnt) I
Ai+ a+it M W Ida» e uaaq Apxa ie a. e4 s14! I laaAs y ur paw' N atwnrJ ti w+ hnurcwu arald++w7 m nm capnrrn a evmrJ( 4

Zwlnuaua. nWuq r a n4i1 1501Mc, nmuryuoqawCuaunvwRa cnrs t+ia    ..

opc. roo Ac{ papp id sxeaFai uat7 U
cro) x ivo n i kq P 9 aFew slvauslyd( a

swavuaaarawt W4tMJ+ 11 4 101cm p tt+unsa ay 1° I OS] w iad+Vp) 7ousuasarbai atwu5( P
slwwsnwetwlP^° iiP°.Ntia4lWltWpai[ tuilEaa4lLo SIIIUa7laclp7ipEsrrya q ttjtuaiatdd) AAaWS(

sd axap woi rnd n y;w+ mtNds R liMnsuc s ls1) xn M P W^ o+d eV os a a{ tl am a7nwuad( 9

TwiCdY N wo11 W v7 691F UY1! wai{ wlt7 aqwtlu uJall

005" 4t S • OOS' ZLZ' 1 5 00[ S" SssZ  $ U6' tib' L S 000 4Yt' Z S iRwl

005'02t S W5' t07 S ' SOd' t 5 9 1    % tl WO' 9FS' t S 9S6L   ' S02' E S     , A M V S Ae'" i edAi' 1KA' iR' o7i 4RS' I N1?'! tli}gdp l f!!YI

WS'BY S WS' LYt 5 OCO' S40 S # WI    % D D 0' lY5 5 W1T   SYD S 4+ O9mdA 6o A+ i* d+ A Fi I+Ptf4tna;) naMvq Mt RU[

WS SL S US L1E   $ W SSL S % OOI 9L0     [ k70   $   % AC   0551 S      AfMU Ut 75ai+ yla iPdpu[ 7(+ pr5{{ aM eryled(} eryuapp j q[

xawN C R' "                   G°      $' auswawaaau     wU

rws

j 9 S g       ) a                         

CC 
rf

4 Q D

Lr 0.  T R       0.     p ]       C.

p I ri O 0.  n           xP       ' +      c'' d       
i'

r a X a
w n 2

satewps37uaw  . uauur,a   aua an

t# y+ aa te7 ai 3ul cnp

6scE a

LS02' Q AtVt. i L

0fll'  >

W 5U1t6L

Ct SSz O b....d

196



Tract 3789 Bond Esttmates 252t3. 000
2017. 05. 08

CWG• JDB
a a s-      o

s  .  

A, Streat end Concrala Woak

Rou h radi 6ahlnd cwb CY •  58 UO 7, 041 512,2aB 0 5ee Mote 3
nish radi behirtd cuth SF 50 50 55. 113 S27. 556 SD

Sidewalk SF 55 00 21, 517 107, 585. Q0 6" on Native

Curtr Retum 1 Narsdicap Ramp EA SS, a40 OU 4 .       S2Q. UU0 00

Si ain . 5tripin artd Monumenls- Cdlectnr LF 55A0 z, a2s s a, 125 OD See Wota d

Suhtodal Slraet end C4AcrQte UYcrk S179, 513

B. Slorm Droin lNork

Suhtatat Storm draln Work p

C. WaterS tem Work

5uhlotal Watar S atam', taric 5p,pq

0. Re cled Water S slem Wark

2" I " atlan 5enrice EA 52. Q00 04 .      " 1 52.UOD.00 5ee P ote 8

Svbtot f Rec. Watsr 5 stem Work SZ, O[ i{i.00

E. Sahlta Sawar Wtlf     

Suhto4al Sanita Sew r YHork ap, pp

F. ewaletl Wotk

SQ, 00

SuBtotalOowaUrin 1Pdork  .       0. 00

G. @AbCalianoous Work

SO 00

SubtotallAlscellaneaus Work p, pp

H. Eroelon Conlrol Wor&

Erosian Conttat• Straw WaiUes 8 inlet Proteciian F 53. Ofl 2, 425  .       57, 275 DO See Nale 7

Sub1oWlErosionCcntrelWork     ST,27b. 00

1. Eletirieai Work

Sltte4 Lf hlin EA 55.00D.00 SO p See Mate 8

J nI 7reneh' excludin condailS LF 5S60. U0 Z, 425 5386, 000 DO See Nole 9
SuhlcNal Electilca3 Work 59a8. 00fl. 00

J. Landeta Work

Landsca e Irci a! ion SF 55. 00 33. 596 5167, 96000
5treet Fumiiure j LS S10, OOO: Ot3 1 S1O, OQU 00 See Nole iQ

Subtat t Lands apo iMork 5177, 480. 00

iTEBAA tA. 1= COP7STRUGIipN 7QTAL:      5754, 768

S7i5,40G( itcorsded up to Sik}

Page 2 of 9

197



Tract 3789 Bond Estimates 25213. 0 0

2017. 5. 08

CWG- JDS
a a a -      n-      s

item SA, i Nates:

1. Improvemen s assumcd to be Ilmited to the western ri ht• of•way between back a curb and right- f-way, co5 s for
improvements to lats 3D& 31 ars includd ln the Open Space and Landscaping setcion af this estimate. No irrtprovements
are antatipated to the east side of the raad( landscaping ar Sidewalkf as part oF this estimate.

Inten4ianaliy left blank,

3. Rough Grading is assumed to be 2 cubit yard for every 2 square feet f development( 1' of depth).

4. Althaugh Golden Vatley Parkway Is currently striped and opeto to tE e publir, a budget has bQen in vded far striping 4a
atcommodate revisions tfl the striping{ addltinnal turn lanes) signage( street si ns, na parking signs) and other signage.
S. It is anticipated that some r habi itation will be requfred within each sUeek section o cl an and maintain ehe existing
structures and pipe systems. These costs are included within the Underground Plpefine Inspection, Test(ng and Repai
sectlon of this estimate.

6. 7he proposed lrrigation services were anticipated with ihe master eleccrtcal design and cievelopment and tt is
therefore assumed that by campleting the electrlcal system, the electrica0 5ervice ai each 3rrigatian meter will be
cornple2ed anti be avallable or use.

7. The erasion Conttol budget assumes that the scape of work is flmited to the summer manths evhen rainfall is not
expected. Shoufd constractlon otcur qver the u inter, ihis cost shou0d be revised actordingly.
8. Street lights were insealled for thls sect6on of street by the City of Lathrap.
9. PG& E, Cab( e a d Telephone per estimace by Gkacalone Design 5enrices dated 11/ 7/ 2011.
S0. Street Fur tfiure{ incl Ben hes, Architectura6 Elements, Bus S elters, e e,) has been included as a b dget item undQr
each roadway.

Page 3 oP 9

198



Traci 3789 Bond Esttmates 25213_000

2b17; 05. 48

CVII;- J 8
a o      o a •      •

a s

A. Streot and Concrete 4filorh

Rou h radin behfnd curb CY 35 OD 2 462 514. 7b9. 33 5ea Nate 3

Finesh radir behtrrd curb F SD 50 68. 482 5 3, 23i: 00

Sfd watk 5F SS 00 10. 275 51, 375 Oft S' on NaGve

Curb Retum! Handicap Ramp EA 55. Ofl0 00 a 52D. 000 00

SI n1n , 5lripin and Monuments- CoSteclor  "      LF S5 OE3 3: i50 515. T5D QD See Note 4

3u6toWl SUreat and Cv crate Wark  :    51 8, 185

B, storm Dra[n Wark

5ublotal Stornt Drain Vark SO

C. Wa1er 5 stam YVorh

SuhtWal Watar 5 stem V+lork 0.04

D. Re cted Water S a6em YVo k

2" I " aCron Service A 52.000 00 1 52. 006 D4 See Nole fi

Subtolai Rec. WaWr S tam 1A orh'      S2, OOD. DO

E. S ni4a Sawar Wark

Subtot l5anlia 5ewerV' loaM 50. 00

F, pavraterin WarM

SD UO

SubtaYaf Aewaterin V4ork EO. pp

G. Miscallanaous JVork

so oa

Subla al Mlscetla aous Waek t0. 00  '

N. Erarlon Conlrol Wor

ErosEon ConUnl- Strew Wattles S lnte! ProleCtion LF S3 00 3. i5o 59. 45D 00 See Note 7

Sublotal Erosion Canbal Wark 59, 450. 00

I. Eleetrieal Wurk

SUC41 Li h6n EA 55,000 00 SO. Ofl See Nole @

Joint Trench( euciudln conduiq LF 515 00 3. 15o Sd7. 250. 00 See Nate 9

Subtatal Eletlrical Work 5q7, 230. a0

J. Landsea Work

Landscape 8 I ' ation SF 55 40 55. t67       ` 529a: 435 04

5trcei Fumitura LS St0A0Q00 1 510,Oo0OQ See PJote 70
Subtotal Landscs 4Rtork 5290, 938A0

ITEM191A. i1• CONSTRUCTIOM TOYAL:      54 4, 76Q

SA65, 000{ Raur ded up! 0 51k)

Page 4 of 8

199



i'ract 3789 6ond Estimates 25213 000

4i7.05, 08

C1NG• JD8

o a o e      •       -  ^    •       •  a  • -  ' s-

14em 1A. il Notes:

Improvements assumed to 6e limited to the medfan, souYhern right- of•way b 4ween hack of curb and ri ht• of-way,
The fmpravements the tot 29 open space area are included in the park and oper space se tions of this estimate. iVa

irnprovement5 are anticipated to the nosth sid oF the road( landscapi ag or sldeuvalk as part f this estimate.
2.' fhe landscaping and sidewalk frontage to the City oP Lathrop' s" Generat+ ons Center" is assumed to be consRructed as

part af 4hat deaelopment. lVQ cosks are incladed{ or the Bandscaping fronia e and the sidewalk frorn the L throp
enera[ ions Center ta the high school eros5ing.

3. Rou h Grading ls assumed to bg 1 cubic yard for every 27 square feet of development( 1' of depth).
4. Althaugh the roadway is eneral6y strlped, ft was feft in an interim conf uration without p destrian crassings, street
si ns, no parking signs, ett.

5. it fs anticfpat d that sa ae rehabilitation wi1) be required within ach street section fo clean and rnalntain the existing
structures an i pipe systems. These tasts are inc(uded withln ih2 Underground Pipelins lnspestion, 7esting and Repair
s ctkon of this estimate.

6. The proposed irrigation services were previausly designed in canjunction with the master elertritat design and
develapment and it is therefore assumed that by completing ihe etectrical system within the oint lrench line ftems the
electrical service at the irri a4ion meter wifl be completed and be avaflable for use.

7,' i'he erosion contral budg t assumes Yt at t3 e setipe of work is li riced to 4he summer monYhs wh n rainfall is not

expected, Should construction occur over the winter, thls cost should be revised accordingly.
8. Stree lights were instal9ed for this seccion of street by the City of lathrop.
9. Alth ugh di5cussion5 with the previous contractor, joint trench designer and City have Indicated that khs joine trench
along th( s seceion of Lath op R ad has 6 en installed, only PG E Installed thelr facilities ir the trench, it is assumed that
conduit was installed ln ihe trench to accommodat Cable N and Telephone, these costs pravide a budget ko install wire,

vaults and splice boxes as needed.

10. Streat Furnitur( incl Benches, Arthitectura6 Elements, Bus Shefters, etc. y has been 6ncluded as a budget itern under
each roadway..

Page 5 oi 9

200



Tract 3789 Bond EstimatQs 29213. 00D

aoi. o. os

CWG- JDB

p •      s` i'       i 0 p

A i

A. 9treot end Concrele Wotk .

Rou raBin behlnd arb CY 58. 00 3: 65a 527, 924. 89 See Nate 3

Finish radf bahind cur       5F 30. SQ 98, 652 SA9, 331. 00

Sfdevralk 5F 55. D0 22. 416 5112. D80 OD 6' an Nalive

Curb Relum! Nand' tcaa Ram EA 55. 0 0 00 6 S3D, 60U 00

5iqn1  . 5tri ing and Manuments• CopeclDr LF 512 50 2.84D 536; i 25 00 See Note 4

Subtalal 5treol and Cancreta 4 urk 5249, 4fi9

9. SWrm Drain YVork

Subtotal Storm Draln 6Vork 54

C. Wator 5 slam Waik

5u4iotal Wato S stem Work 50. 04

D. Ree clad Wnter S siam Work

5ubtotal Ree, Water S starn 4Yak 50. 00

E. Sanita Sewer Work

Su6tof l5anita Sexrer ork SU. 00

E. Detralutin Watk

Subtotal Devrslerin WarA 50. 0

Mlseeqsneous Work

Subta4 l Mlsc lla ons If drk Sd. OR

H. Erosion Control Work

Erosion Canhol- 5traw WaHles 8 Inlei Prolection LF S3 00 2. 690 58. 670 00 5ee Nole 7

Su6total Erostan Control Work 58 670A0

I. Electrical Work

Streef Li htin EA 5-0. t100. 00 23 582. 480. Li0 See Note 8

Jant Trench( excludin condult!    LF 5160 00 2. 690 5462. 40U 00 See Ncte 9

Sabtotal Elecirical Wook 553, 880.0$

J. Laed capm Wock

CandsuFe 8 IrtI tian SF SS 00      6. 246 S381. 23U C1

5troat Eumiture LS 5i0. f} OU QD 1 510,006 00 5ee PJote 10

SuStotal L ndsca  { R ork S391. 230. 00

Il' E{1A 1A. Ili- GOHSiRUC710N TOT/ lt,: S1. 204, 241

i1, 205, 000( Raunded up tp Slk)

Page 6 aE 8

201



Tract 3789 Bond Estimates 25? 13- 004

2017. Ob. 08

CWGJDB
a =•-   e- s-       o     • .-  ,     ,    s o s      •       -•-     •      a   ,

e¢ em IA. lii Nctes:

1. Improvemenu assumed co he fimtted to the northern i ht-of-way between back of curh and right• of-way and the t o
seundahouts lacated along Land Park Dr3ve. No improvements are antitipated to the sauth side oF che raad{ landscapin
or sidewdlk} as part f this estimaie.

Intentionally left b9an[ c.

3. Rough Grading is assumed to he 1 cu6ic yard for every 27 square feet of development( 1' of dep4h).

4. PJo sEriping has been inst lled a date on Lar d Park Drive and f2 is turrently cinsed eff with no public access.
5.( t is anticipated that some rahahilltation wili foe req ired tivithJn eaeh street s ction to clean and rrialnca3n the existing
structures and pipe systems. These costs are intluded withln the Underground Pipeline{ nspection, 7estin and Repair
se tlan vt' th6s estimate.

6. Intentianally I Ft talank.
7. The erosion contrel bud e; assumes that the scope o4 work is pmited to the summes months when rainfall is not

expetted. Should ccsnseruccion oecur over the ainter, 4his cost should be revised accordingly.
8. Assumes one street light every 125 fe t, alternating sides of the street.
9. PG& E, Cabl and 7elephone per estimate by Gtacalane Qesign Services dated 11/ 7/ Zall.
lU. Street urniture{ incl 6enches, Architectural Elements, Bus Shelters, e9t.) has been included as a budget Itern under
each roadway.

Page 7 of S

202



Bond Estimata 2520i, U40
Recyd d Water pi3posal, 51age1 2017. U5A8

Say6mak ClSi, LLC GJ-JDB
Based on R yr.lec Waler Ulspasal Repart 5tago 1, Rated Oec. 6, 2013

ITEM     { 1UAM' i3TY Utddi'       DEStR1PT10,* 1 UN1T PR10E APJtOUNS

p AiiT A- LdND APPB. I AT10N 5lTE5

1. 35 AC Site Clearing 87D. p0 S30,450

2.     17, 65U CY Rongh Grade 8, 75 66, f90

3.  2 fA Standpipe tncl. Vatves and Afr Gdp 7, 500. 00 15, 6U0

4,      3, 106 LF 1" Irclg tion Pipe incl Bu6ble• Up lrrigailon Risers Z5. 6U 77, SQ0

5.      2, 500 LF 6" Tallwater Return Plpe ESee noie 5)       5. U0 537,5 0

6.      3, 025 LF Earth V- Oltch 3. 75 511, 34D

7,    1ZF, 50fl SF Ftnish Grade Road( Perimeter Access Aoads}  0 20 4, 300

8.  0 SF    inish Grade Fleid 5e Noie 6      0. 20 5D

9.  2 EA Paved Oriveway Appraach and Stagi g Area 8, 006.0p 516,000

6.      B, A00 Lf 8' Chalnl' snk fente& Gates tGavanized S; eel) 16.{}0 13A, ADD

il.  1    ! S SWPPPJErostan/ pu5t Cantrol Assume Cor+structlon 25, 4{ l0.00 525, 400

occurs during Summer}
ESTiMA7Ed 5U- 7DTAL- I.A lD APPLICAilbtd 517E5:  43' 7, G84

PART- RW BASIPd( SITE 9NORKJ Per cost estimate provided by PACE iZ/ 20/ 2013)
1.     g0, 660 CY Rough Grade 3. 75 5337, 500

2. 13 AC 5ite Clrating 87Q. 40 511, 310

3.    575, 000 SF Finlsh Grade Q, 20 5115, UOfl
4.     50,60U 5F 6" Thick AB Actess Road 1, 20 Sfi0, 00fl

5,   l EA Paved DrivewayAppraach 5, 04t1. U0 55, 000

5.      3, 200 tF B' Chainiink Fance& Gates 8. 00 557,& pp
7.    41, 000 5F 9 sln Lin2r Material tq0 mit) 0, 55 225, 50D

e.  3 LS Trenching{ 8asin llner anchor trenth ac top of slope)     25, Oa0. 00 525, 000
9. 23 EA Bas3n 5aPety Es uipm nt 840, 40 518, 400

30.  1 LS SdVPPP/ Erasfan/ Dusi Control( Assume Construttfoo 25, U00 W SZS, ODfl

accurs during Summer)

ESTIM TED SU8• SdTAL- RW B 51N( 51TE WaRK]: 89d, 31U

PART C- RW PUMP S1' ATI h! AT BASIN G Per cost estimate provided by PACE 12/ ZO/ 2013)
1.  i lS B1ack Wa1B, Gaces, Daars 66, Dff0, U0 S& O, OQD

Z.  1 LS N9echantcal Piping and Valv Sets 135, Ofl0. Up 135, Oi} 0

3.  1 LS Pumps 155, D U.UO 5165, QU0

A.  1 l5 A ratlon 25, ULO. D4 25, OQ0

5.  1 L5 fiaw Mater 15, t3f} 0. 00 515, 60D
6.  1 l5 Levef 5ensar l0,ppp, p0 Si9, 04Q

7.  1 i5 CQntrol VaEve w/ Solenold 35,[ 7ff0. aU 535, OU0

8.  1 i5 RrtCCContro) Panel 70, pff0, 00 57p, qp0
4.  1 L5 Service 5ntrence Seccion SO, OOD. flO 550, 4U0
lU.  i    5 Meterin and Gonttol Wir    3U, OfJ0. 40 53D, 000
11.  1 l5 Service Elcetrical Wire AS, OfiD. 00 5d5,60p

12.  1 LS Radlo Control Equfpment 65, 0{ 10. 4a 65, OOQ

ESTIEVIAT£ a 5U8• TOTAL- RW pLlElfi? STA IOIV AT 8A51PJ G: 5905, OUfl

P, 125293WdminlestlmateslSlA• Estimates( 2097. 05. 08} p

203



Bond EsSimate 2520t. 000

Rccycled l/Uater D"+sposal, Stagel 2U17. 45. 06
Sayhrook CLSP, LLC GJ- JQB

9ased on Recyded WalerDls posal R pan Slage 1, Dated Oec. 6. 2053
ITEM qUAIdTi7Y UP IT OESCRIP7I N UfdITPRICE A 90UNT

PAR7 D- RW FIFE• GOlDEiV VAiLEY PARK1r1F Y

1.  1 FA Remove 8lawoff and Connect 3, Qpt1, Ofl 1, 000

2. a 0    ! F iZ' Retycled Water Mafn inciuding fittings 52. 0   13, OU0

3.      1, 6 0 L4 ZO" Recyeied V'Jater Main Ineludin 6tdngs 310. 00 S1H2, GOD

3 EA 12" Valves 1, 900. Dp 5, 440

5.  b EA 20" Valves 5, 0OO. OU 530, OOD

S•  1 fA 2" 9lowoffAss mbly 1, 500. 00 51, 500
7•  2 EA 2" Air Re} lef Valve 2, Oa0, On 54, OU0

fSflidIATED SUff 7DT 4L• fl4N PiPE- CsVP: Z37, 500

PAAT E- RW ptpE INTEAI'! E

1.  2 EA Cut Into Existing RW PAain and Connect 7, 5( 30.(} 0 15, OUD

2. 35 LF 18" Recycled Water N9ain incl.( ietings 200, 00 7, D00

3.   1 EA 24" Tee d, 500AU 4, 500

4.  1 EA 1B" T e 2, 50tJ. 00 2, 500

5,  2 EA iB" x12" Reduser 750A0 51, 50D
b,  1 EA 2A" x16" Redueer 1, OQ0. 00 1, OU0

7,  3 EA 18" Butterfly Valves 3, SOU. 00 i0,500

8.  3 EA 24'' Butterily Valves 6, 5tiC1. 00 519, 5UA
r 1 BQGT Pavement Repair 2, 540. 00 52, 5QD

FSTIMATE SU8- TQTSL- RW P1PE 1RI' fE$ i'IE:  5d, QOD

5tli+ A'.QRY

pART A< LArlD APi' LICAYiON SITES 437, fi80

PAAT B• RW 8 51 d{ 51TE WORK} gSp, 3 p

PAAT• RW AU iP Sf TJON AT 8A5lF,1 G 57fl5, 0 0

PART D- RW P1PE- GOLDEN VAILEY PARKWAY 5237, 540

PART E- FiW FIPE IPYTEA7iE 64, 000

ESTIPAATEb GpWSTRUC7iQNT TAI:      52, 324, 490

MQTFS

1.   This esdmate is prepared as a gufde only and is subject to possihle change. It has been prepared to a standard af accuracy,
whith[ o ehe best ot our knowledge a d Judgment is sufticient cn satisFy our uaderstandtng a( the purpo5es al this estim te.
MacS{ a

2.   Thls estfmate ts based on the 3095 drawings provided in[ he Recycled Water Disposal Repart S age i, Dated pec. 6, 2013

3,    Cnsu presented hereln represent an op( nion based on historical Enformation fram ather projecis in Sa Joaquia tounry and
the San Francisco Bay Area. No provision has been made far Inflatton. lt is recammended that the users of thSs estimata
review the un

Cosu for the SwPPp Eeos3on Conera! and Dust Controt are baaed o summer tonsiruction ln one consuuction seasan.
5.   The pump for tail water return is anticipated to be provided by the farm2r via a trailer maunAed unit.
5.   It! s anticipated that nish gradfn within the irrlgatfon field art Is not requ( red as the farmer wil! plaw and shape the fietd

to hls needs.

7,   Cost to bring e4ettrltiry to the pump st tlon is not Induded.
8.   Earthwork quantities do not include factprs for shrinkage or walf.

Prepared by

MACKAY& 54 JP5

P. 5252131Admin5eslirnate 151A• Estimale( 21317. 05. 08) g{ g

204



ATTACHMENT E
1 CORDIII TTG Q JES'I'ED ', AND

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

CITY OF LATHROP

ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

Exemptfi om peryment ofrecording fees ( GC 27383)

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER' S USE

e r vocab e Offe o' Dedoc$ o

for Pub9 c V la$er` Tank Ss e

Centr i Lathrop Specific Psan)

THIS INSTRUMENT BENEFITS THE CITY ONLY. NO FEE REQUIRED.

THE UNDERSIGNED GRANTOR( S) DECLARE( S):    DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX IS$ 0. 00 R& TC Transfer to Government Agencv

computed on full value of property conveyed, or

computed on full value less liens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale.
Unincorporated area      ( X) City of Lathrop

For a valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,      

LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION, LLC, a Delaware limited liability, legal landowner" Grantor( s)",

hereby grants to CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation " Grantee",

real property in City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County, State of California, described as:

ee attached Exhibit" A" and Exhibit" B" attached herPto and made a part hereofi **

In witness whereof the undersigned have executed this instrument on this day of p E    20

Grantor( s):    LATHROP LAND ACQUISITIOIV, LLC,

a Delaware limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC

Its: Managing Member

s

By:

Jeffrey M. Wilson, Officer

65134. 00001\ 32519989. 2

205



CALIFORNIA AC NOWLE G iIEN`   CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signetl the document
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that tlocument.

State of California

County of  (  

On   e. v°Z{ o Q before me,  
Rachel M.  Wright,  Notary Public

Date Here Insert Na e and Title of the Officer

personally appeared

ame(s) of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( g) whose name( isf xecsubscribed

to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that hedsi# 4 a executed the same in his# a

authorized capacity i, and that by his/ ic signature( on the instrument the person(s), or the entity
upon behalf of which the person( acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the

RACi L C7. IPJRIGHT
laws of the State of California that the foregoing

U& a P biic- Calitornia
paragraph is true and correct.

o   °     L A gales CounYy D WITNESS my hand and official seal.
Commis fon# 2166324

PJiy Cortom. Expires Oc4 2, 2020

Signature

Ploce Notary Seal and/or Stamp Above Signatu e of tary Public

OP' IO IA,L

Completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reaftachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of.Qttached Document

Title or Type of Document:

Document Date:   Number of Pages:

Signer( s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity( ies) Claimed by Signer( s)
Signer' s Name:    Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer— Title( s):   Corporate Officer— Title(s):

Partner—  Limited  General Partner—  Limited  General

Individual Attorney in Fact Individual Attorney in Fact
Trustee Guardian or Conservator     Trustee Guardian or Conservator

Other:    Other:

Signer is Representing:   Signer is Representing:

02018 National Notary Association

206



EXHIBIT" A„

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

W, 4TER TANK SITE

L" H' eT`
r::: T° ti:, E,i' i':+ F1.' i` iT°d? F+;" T' 3 I` T F: 1' T'" d: f r`'1' 7 fi( F,;.].;_ 1 ti

s[: 3!" 5t',' 1 s°r' f: C73 . a, E' L i, v+ IJ.
fi

3-.: i T 3'''[ i': i' 1..!'. L: 1;. C1' 3 h`; a I'1L a" C.

I F l tv` t. C;i. If+ t7' t 1 4E a:, y` l::i``;,'' 3. Cr I. il,`, P. f r'[, l J1; i:'ii,J"'.°,: 9c I
r

I G E Pr. 1': C' 1f•'}" C f 13 3T l r T t. I, k r:

P is Ti+[ 3,. oti 3 i I" t+i,`"' f C IE, I; l l t4 la, i'', ' L l; 11`. f

77= fF: F.dti"'. 1" t'' lfi,'F.). F .[!'. 1' t I T?,.' L; t7 t€'r; t' 7 1 7d—1.'..,. d r+ T' 2:: J{.' it'` f' Ci' t-l... FFfi ITI

t 12. T1t114'; JII , i:„. C," l 1' I: 7 a1 '. 451 ICCyI[ C 1 f[: fd+' i1:3 C_ J, i t l. ., h,.lt i f..,,. N: i i'' S? 4Jfi" f.a' 4`:`,

F3,'+ 1" d' c;" C., i'' C' 1,. x,"` 1., F?".'= 1" r'4'€ C.. r'.T•J r". f.. 3:. T'[ d_ f Gi.1. S F f.'

f71' Ca t i, 1,. C:: I%l4 zr`.t A E, v1: l. f." 3"'' l.,i 1; ` x l IS' J F C":' 1, C 7 L["',''" 1`IL I" 47, 1..'' kx' lia."+

C' r r; I;

CSrJ"' I-1, a° 35` i'°''' Tz 1..'; ET.;:

i'". M:.:', J'
n;` i

lE" i.
a

a'.; 3' . a'
a j"':, C' 4'._.

r'!"

r_:;"("

5. 1' i.,, 1 _ t} i

ia..I t..+ 1t, S,'S, t' Pr" I F1.;1,:.° r lia L-Ir.rQl l>}' a''P i u r l, i;? L

1,   i t1} T I a' 1" r"'. I",.'. S. FFF"C;

f4fl..' r. 11: F',;' E''; h T7-3L P aHT S tT'N," s I.; il il: a' T i. aal, t El;' F;T;. 3.'' i_
1':. fh t. f'..:.!' ii' S t',.: 4.. 2' .. L' yL J'!_II 11t. Y44J f5 u 

ct'

4,_,."' 1' Y:{. I 4:" 1,, f' ,` 4  _"..'

4F}
i i6. j C i- ili. i.f il J' h•., 1 .}`...: G:, r

C.. C' a;. r. i e]'.++.:` JE, I: T"". I. i. 111. W(._-:[' i7. 1.:` 4[:" I.:.,' l, I. 1- t, r,. iCrC' J 4i' Isf l i
l i r` f-t[ i ` L-s`: I e' tJ; E' i i°," I'' i s a f' C' H:''" 5:" 1- 1°;.]' b'.f.;` i J' t

t:l':' l; t'4;1a. s;: i laL. I ' j:tCl' L) l". 1! L t"*'. f' f, L l i,'[ 7: L Cl l' 3'. I l::L: l",'l'` I t::f.t;

i+ft;. l l tt' T:] iL' s {., UG Y Ik: 1i r. 1_ C'=' 1;,

I`-]: 1. aati[_: t i;.[ F.:` F. I F:C 1.'
sr

3:, 1i°!,'F F' WSTC. 7: T' A'. 4 T}:?• I' 7" F;r'4'
a;

7'_: F''',

rli s a l° r, i!;    

itti r t, f ,:;:

ra r ca rc r r. t t- f

1 L 1", [: I t I'i"`.L"",._.!' Y`t 4: i T.? k. l.`,.' t l:" T[]' E E' I i E Fc' 1#. L t..:'.

t' i^".

N. i'' 1 R'k 9'"' u' l

65134. 00001\ 32519989. 2 Ex. A-1

207



i-.,.,

t ti Hl 3 "   n•—.-

t

r= r s̀,- ta

4m
f C"`'    4k

f,-     

t3:  '''}

R 1F3R. E, 14°   t{ 1sL;   t; s t' t:

1 L[ I?;f' t_rC:, t,] S TLL' F'' L t lC: i::R t'.T skt   r

5T`' s' r, 4L1H{} E'`. 1, t">

t ,,
ti

rY; tg th![ 3VfF1" f,( I" 1t' a` J i' Lhtw J FIJy P, t' lF?=[ i
I 1. @35£.i 2 Ui\' 3` dEa": S. P5,+33'JI iY  ' 4 4: C4R' 1. i: a

49i:?': TL'As; t°S

65134.00001\ 32519989. 2 EX. f- 2

208



EXHIBIT" B"

DEPICTION OF WATER TANK SITE

I   _     
I

X: ; l'   

IPxGt';fi a" J

jf

4

l
J 1r7 Y r' C l il.      t

r!,'Gr' jr,' l° J°a u" k̀,f, R L' .

r-

eC i—'

J6 2` 4",'       
Q. , ,. 7.( 3,-    

da'' 7' R'
i      

x h

c3
a` ''- f`'° ai i}  

5,       4

qMj k..,..,...._.,_ L._  

Q, 4

I TfR Tr I K TTE
4

t: a. 0
x

3 1 t fi0'  ;

2' 7' J 3" d       ,

s d, t,..

L n77'       '     

a'`'

r  

y       

ae- ,, 4' Z1                

rJ°, w_

1

7` '  .--.--,    

Lt!  f r7 `      
r'        

Sr         
r;   

at     -    a1

r>       
2.,.:——— 

r           

tti

a        

i;nLE: 1'° 1}`

1., 1     
Pl, r` 10 AC`' C 9P 5i YY lE f. lF 3 t5N

B Uhd[ 5 h"' {} DE. a; IRT''      

E: iSTI, dG T';, GEL

P, t,.   P IC a  EiGIN 11 i G 4 ', 41' f # T

1hiWA07 lLiP8. 4 '
r rc,t Et  

R- t  l` C. :, t K +  tr"A 5 . AN 
PL 4Ts PA i f7, ' aAf+! J r l1i C i[ JFaTY
RE t7RC 5

rs;    rF nr.;   4 a
I cL iPlN:%31 G; v

iF( l:n5 h 7Yi, P..l{!^: i   { ll ri 11.*?' J

p+ t1' t¢ 6A7 C C LC omE Pi[ 7_   '
dBkE    _ OCT6$ cf. C1 9  _ 1"= t f4"___:  t2t} 1. Ci0ti  :

S,' J.- 1. 9 Iq«, ica      ` s t llv! mrs V:' i7,35 5jiAf3-{ f+SalSi flAlS tidtl1 E+ 141kUW.; 

651 34. 00001\ 32519989. 2 Ex. B- 1

209



i

I ATTACHMENT F
I2 COI2DI1 G 1 QiTESTEd Y, AI D

WHEN RECORDEI MAIL TO:      

CITY OF LATHROP

ATTN: CITY CLERK
c '

39 0 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

Exlmptfrom payment of recordingfees( GC 27383)

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER' S USE

9 revoc b9 O e off ed'scation

oa P biic IVeigh orhood Park9and

Ce atra9 La#h op p ci ic Plar

THIS INISTRUMENT BENEFITS THE CITY ONLY. NO FEE REQUIRED.

I
THE UNDERSIGNED GRANTOR( S) DECLARE( S):    DOCUIUIENTARY TRANSFER TAX IS$ 0. 00 R& TC Transfer to Government Aaencv

computed on full value of property conveyed, or

computed on full value less liens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale.

O Unincorporated area      ( X) City of Lathrop

For a valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, legal landowner" Grantor( s)",

hereby grants to CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation " Grantee",

real property in City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County, State of California, described as:

Se I attache Exhibit" A" and Exhibit" B" attached hereto and made a p rt hereof***
y

Ec+    2In witness whereof the undersigned have executed this instrument on this       day of p

Grantor( s):    LATHROP LAIVD ACQUISITION, LLC,

a Delaware limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC

Its: Managing Member

BY: 

Jeffrey M. Wilson, Officer

65134. 00001\ 32519879. 2

210



GALIFORtVI#. CKP101IVLEDGf0 1T CIVIL CODE § 1189

I

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document

I to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

1
State of California

County of  (

On GL Zj  g before me,  
Rachel M.  Wright,  Notary Public

Date Here In

rto
IVpme and Title of the Officer

personally appeared 1\ I

Name(s) of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) whose name( isf ecsubscribed

to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that hef t ycexecuted the same in his br dre

authorized capacity, and that by his/[ x signature( j on the instrument the person( s), or the entity
upon behalf of which the person( acted, executed the, instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the
laws of the State of California that the foregoing

b:.-

RACHEL M. WRIGHT paragraph is true and correct.

Mo4ary Puhlic - California    -
Los Angales County D WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Commission t 2166324

y Comm. Expires Oct 28, 2020

Signature

Place Notary Seal and/ or Stamp Above Sig atur of N ary Public

OPT909V, L

Completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Desc iption of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document:

Document Date:   Number of Pages:

Signer( s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity( ies) Claimed by Signer( s)
Signer' s Name:    Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer— Title(s):   Corporate Officer— Title( s):

Partner—  Limited  General Partner—  Limited  General

I    
Individual Attorney in Fact Individual Attorney in Fact
Trustee Guardian or Conservator     Trustee Guardian or Conservator

Other:    Other:

Signer is Representing:   Signer is Representing:

02018 National Notary Association

211



i
EXHIBIT" A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC NEIGHBORHOOD PARKLAND

l .T,'- i, l'C: 12` 1' A.1N Ct 4' I'{ I? It' 1" Y€' 1' L,11'; I3I' I"I f: I'['' l`=1 TI-IftC3P, S tI, tC? AC UIN
f] f. 1WTY, ST' Ct. LIi 3 T* 1I. A, B IItiG L 3' G c7<' i t:' l'. i7 9, FILET3 Fa,7 t. RECOIt 3 3

sc or z c r rn: i tz r.r., r.st, T a' nc:,,. rt c 4 rrt: t t r s

t13 O' IIE Cl' I i'iCllti

ttr nr.. r. r:

u

h4,
S

s

I p c1 
4

t, aa 1 i       

f' tN' 3ItUC`.  a . r'% 0-' s. T>r'i l̀' i:

r rc::€. t.:t t: z_ri u v rae. r 7

StAT; F' IF' 1it; ft1

CA,-

i:  ,    .

tt{L' VCNGf t Nts IItI O Flh l i'+' lAh[?3lR'î.';'r1Nfi
5T' rr! itlii Qia+s 5a11e+a, r; ris:- si6:an, CA. 44` J3il•;::' 4HS
i; a:: e. s=.. a. or

6513 I.00001\ 32519879. 2 EX. A- 1

212



Fa - q i
OWNER' S STATEMENT:     CITY ENGINEER STt fEMENT:T-RAGT3789
7HE UNDERSIGNED, 0 HEREBY STqTE THAT WE ARE THE OWNGRS OF ALL iHE LMI DELINEp7E SUODIVISIONS OF SAN JOAOUIM COUM' Y

1, GLENN CEBHARDT, EIERE Y STATE hIAT I HAVt. E% AMMED TIilS MAP OF ' lRACT N0. 3789,
WD EI, f RACED 1NTHIN ME CISTINCTIVE UURDER LINE OF hIE HEREM EM60UiED FINAL MAP

STANFotio Cqo55ING
SUBDIVISIONS OF SAN JOAqUIN COl1NTY, STANFOND CROSSMG' AND THi\ T THE SUBUIVISION SHUWN

ENTITLE ' R2ACT N4 3789 SUBI7IVISIUNS OF SAN JOAUUIN COUNiY, 51' ANFORD CflU551NG'  
A SU60IVISION OF LOTS Y7 TNIIOUGH 25 aNU A YOft17oN aF LOT 2s,   -       

HEREON IS SUBSTANDALLY THE SpME AS ff AF' PEMED ON THE VESTING TENTA 4E MAP, AND

CONSISTINC OF SI% ( 6) SHEfTS; THAT WE HAVE CAUSEU SAN MAP TO BE PREF' ARE FOR F TPACT 35J3 AS flECOp E IN 000K 90 OF I. W' S ANU PLATS A7 PAaE
ANY APPROVED ALfLRAilONS 7HENEUF. I FURTHER STATE THAT THIS FlNAL MAP COMPLIES R1TH

N RECOR P.ND CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND RECOROA ON OF SAI MM, THAT SAI MM
700, SnN JOAaUtN COUNTY BECOP09 BEINO A. POP7IUN OF SECT[ UN 27,  

ALL APPLJCAdLE ORUINANCHS OF TH@ CITY OF LAhiRaP, ANU ANY Al.1HN MENTS hIERETO,

PARTICULARLY SETS FORTH AN OESCRI ES ALL THE LOTS INTEN ED FOR SALE Y NW. IOER VeTli APPLICA LE AT THE 11ME OF APPROVAL OF THE TENfA' i1VE lAAP.

THEIR PRECISE lENG7H ANO' MDTH.
TaxxSHi 1 SOUTH, wv ce c ensi, IAOUNT OIAOLO[ NSE d I: EPIOSAN Jj, J  

V   CITY UF LAiHROP DATED THIS_// l   AY Uf 1V 2 77. oi[547a'
TNE REAL' PROPERTY c5CRI8F BEL014IS DE ICATED TO THE CITY OF LATHROP IN FEE FOR

SAN JunaUIN CWNTY, CALtFOflNIA

NI' QEDQ,
GCpytN'!l,y

N PIIBLIC RICHT OF WAY PURPOSES:     V` r4f1 y.,, L G7     i

1. THE REAC. PROPFRTY DESICNATED ON SAID MAP AS' LOT Al
MCMY` SO PS GLENN GEBHANUT, R. GE. 3iti81 No. 34681  ^`"'

nes;:; Te iu CITY ENGINEEH, Oh' 1HE

iFiE REAL PROPERTY fSCRI8E0' BELOW IS UEUICA7EU TO THE CITY OF LAiHROP AS

ofwvU. a

ULY, 2017
CI7Y OF LqiHROP, L'ALIfORNIA f

EASEMEN7S FOR PU LIC PURPOSES: feF tA peS
1. A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASEMENT TUGETHER WITH THE ftICHT TO consmucr,      CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT:       

RECUN57RUCT,- REPAIR AND MAINTnIN POLES, YIIRES, CABLES, PIPES, AN CONOUITS TDE LIMA ROAU--=-.--r.=;=---=

77J
T; rs

AND THEIR APPURTENANCES. UPON, OVER ANU UNDER THE STRIPS OF LANU SHOWN u I I   1, ANNE- 5( WHIE 1RUONC, HEREBY STATE TFIAT I HAVE EXnMINED 7HI5 FINAL MM OF 9RAL`T

IJPON SAID MAP MARKED' PUBIJC UTILITY EASEMENT'( PUE).   
LLTL---"---`--`-- y-    

NU. 3789,- SUODIVISIUNS OF SAN JOAUUIN COUNTY, STANFORD CROSSINC' AND iHAT 1NE

i FT_i SUF3DIVISIUN SHOWN HEREON COMPLIES., YlITH ALL 7HE PROVI51( NIS OF. CHAPTER 2 OF 1HE

1HE UNDEfl51L' NED. DDES HEREOY RELEASE, EXTINGUISH, pl1ITCLAIM AND REMOVE hIE 20' PHIVATE CALIFORNIA SUBDI` ASION MAP ACT, AS AMENDEU, AN THAT THIS FINAL MM IS TECHNICALLY

ACCE55 AND UTILITY EASEMENT 04liR LUT 2'L FUR THE BENff1T UF LUT 25 AS SHOWN ON 1  . ,   i      i J Fy CORRECT.

iRACT 3533 AS RECOROE M BOUK 40 OF MAPS ANU PLATS, AT FAGE 70U, SAN JOA UIN C
OS RGIS RUnD•====--- rU rd l ANO

N DA' iED 1HI5  ^.  DAY OF    / k G S1S   . 2017,   q\^ SG•
CWNfY RHCORDS. 1LYi i OPfI'e t

vi='  

i I  i      .
S T, 1 i

n  
Q, F`'   R Fo d

7HE AREAS ESICNA7ED! 3' PRIVATE ACCFSS AND UTILITY EASFMENT'( PAUE) AS SHOWIJ UPON i I-y' 
f  ',:_..--. •      

a Q       , y

SND MAP ARE NOT HEREOY DE ICAIED FOR USE DY hIE GENERAI PU LIC, AUT ARE RESEBVED LJ4 y
yVAY.'_._=, U Uu1 ro

FOR THE PURPOSE OP PRIVATE MGRE55 AND ECRE55 AND ALL PRIVATE I/ PLITIES, MCLUUING. ALL SP .    i E kr NE- SO HIE TRUONG, LS N0. 8998
No, 8998 r

pf          I

J         

AC71NG CITY SURYEYOR
RELAIED APPURTENANCES THERETO FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE ADJACEtJT LOTS. SAI" PRIYATE I  5

y,   "   
C7

ACL' E55 AND UTI N EASEMENT' ( PAUE) SrIALL AUTO AA CALLY iERMINATE UPON THE S-'   '   e"--- J J' T     H
ACCFPTANCE BY T11E CITY OF IATMROP- 0F A FUTURE OEOICATION OF PUBLIC STREET OVER ThIAT Y   -    Y'    

y f   a'     

AREA COWCI ENT' MTH THE PRIVA7H ACCE55 AND UTILITY EASEMEN7'( PAUE).      t  //  A.  (   4
c ' i tyL     

l

OF CA      
O

T0 ENSURE Ml1NICIPAL WATER SERVICES TO AIL. LOTS SFIOWN UPON THIS MAP, ALL WA' IER         J/, j'
4[   

CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT:  Z
RIGH75 ARE UE ICATED TO TNE CYTY Of LA7HROP, 1HAT IHE UNUERSIGNEU MAY HA4f, WITHIN iti-( j    Q
THE 61STINCTIVE BCR ER UNE UPUN THIS dAF.   u     }- '

F>y==,T=, m-- ,[.{  I, iERESA VARGAS, CffY CLERK ANU CLERK OF TIIE CITY WUNQL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP,
Yli; NPi 1° E'' f';; A  ; I      f-''

tJ 

i# j STATE OF L'ALIFURNIA, 0 HERF Y STAIE 111AT 7HE HEREIN EMBODIED MM EN111LEU' TRACi N0.       
THIS MAP SHOVlS ALL EASEMENTS OF RECOfi ON THE PREMISES E

i y;;.` \ i;     f " -. y"A'r--- 6'; iTSFJ   J7B9 SUBOIVISIONS UF SAN JOAWIN COUNTY, STANFORD CROSSING' CGNSISTINC OF SI%( 6)  
J i4;`.,,

py,    ./)
z     =    kIVN, n,   SHEETS, WAS PRESENTED TO ID CITY CUUNCIL, S PROYIDE BY LAW, AT A NECUW2 M eTING

OSYNER: LAhIROP V,ND ACqUISITION LLC, A DELhWN2E LIMITED LIABWtt COMPANY n:' t C,_J-),Io-_ i^
p....   

7HEREOF, HF1D- ON 7ME_ I1"_— DAY OF 2 r 11LF-—. 2017, AND iHAT SAID H tyy
k       

PftINTED NA64E   F+ ti t l. y1+ su, J fll,.\)
4'

r''- j0;,;    +      1 E` 1 [   CIiY CUUNCIL DID THEREUPON OY RESO4UTION N0._ LL-'f_e-' 1 r  _ DULY PASSEO ANU

y
d, yy?-°'   c,`.-..       _     < LIh, II,   AUOPTED AT SAI MEETING, APNROVEU SAI MAP, MIO AUTtIORIZED ITS RECORDATI N AN  

L.       , rjT3,;.' ,
I "/     ''- W6    ACCEPTED OtJ 13EHALf Uf 1HE CIfY OF LAIFIRUP, ALL WATER RIGHTS, ANU REJEC7ED THE OFFER

SICNANRE:_, A. t\ N—  r t r r^,  , n t OF E ICATION OF ALL PP,GPFRTY AS SHOWN ON SAI MAP UNTIL THEIR IMPNOVEMENT4 HAVE         r

VICINITY MAP
BEEN COIAPLETED IN ACCORDANCE t517H CHAPTER I6, TITLE 16. iti OF THE LA7HROV L'ODE OF

T1.  O i'f`CL-+- UR INANCES.  Q yNOT TO SC LE

pq7;.   e- 1\-' I SURVEYOR S STATEMENT:   SAID COUNCIL M1ISU,. PURSUANT TO SECTION GG434( g) UF TFIE SUODIVISION MAP AC7 111E CITY
OF LATHROP WES HFREBY AI3MIDON AN VACATE IN IT' S ENTIREtt THE FOLLOWYNC:

TI{ S MAP' NAS PRFPMED E3Y; dE UR UNOEfi AIY UIRECTION AIJD L ASED UPON A FIELD SURVEY Q 
OWNER S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:       MAOE IN CONFORIdANCE WI1H THE RLUUIREMENTS OF 1HE SUDOIl1SI0N MAP ACT AND LUCAL 1, THE ACCESS EASEMENT DESCRIBED AS PARCEL IN OOCUMENT Nl1MBER 2013- 038100, SAN Q

ORDINANCE AT THE RfWEST OF LATHROP LANU ACQUI51 ON, LLC, IN NOVEM9ER, 2013. I HEREOY
JOAWIN COUNTY RECORDS

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHEft OFPICER COMPLE INL`" fHIS CERTIFlCATE VERIFIfS ONLY THE STA7E TI1AT 7HIS FINAL MAP SU STANTIALLY WNFUNMS TO 1HH APPROVED OR CONOITIONALLY
IDENTIN OF THE INDIVIUUAL WHO 51GNED THE DOCUMENI' TD WHICH hIIS CERTIFICATE IS qPPROVEU YESIING iENTATI4E MAP. I FURiHER STATE RiAT ALL 1HE MaNUTAENTS SHOWN HEREON

I FURTHEN STATE 7HAT ALL DONDS AS RE UIRED BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE WITIIIN MAP NAVE      
b

ATfACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY UF il1AT DO: UMENL riILL EiE OF ME CHARAC7ER AN OCCUPY TFIE POSITIONS INOIL'hTED dEFORE SAID FlNAL AfAP BEEN. APPROVED BY 7HE GfY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AN Fl ED IN MY OfFICE,
IMPROVEAfENTS ARE ACCEPTEO OY TH[ CITY UI' LATHROP, AND THAi SRID MONUMENTS VNLL DE

STATE OF CALIFQRNIA j SS SUfFlrIENT TO ENhBLE' tH15 51lN.VEY TO BE RHTRnC.. D.  UATED iHIS_!    DAY OF EP C. udGX    2D17,

COUMY OF I, IIf o„ r-- N r„ u-,.     
on o n{is lo onr oF A us-•- zon.  

1 I n o o c E ti ' Ea.
ON . AQIllST .  " 2017, BEFORE_ ME  141 "• ti.( j A NOTARY Cno:  LG,) G G(/ J'     
Pl1dLIC,• ERSONALLY APPFNIEU  " PdEr•? i  ! vl!. dl 9nri       

WHO PROVED TO ME ON TH 6ASI5- OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE Nu.& 817  '      lERESA VARGAS

THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE 4riTHIN INSTRUMENT AND
g      '       CITY CLEftK ANU CLERN UF THE CITY COUNGL OF

ACKNOYlLE GE0. T0 ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SNdE IN HIS. AUIHOf: ILEU CAPACITY, AND IA JCE MACUUNALU f
1HE CITY UF LATrIROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,   d

BY HIS SIGNATURE ON THE INSTPUMENT THE. PERSON, OR ENTITY UFON BENALF OF L 0. BBI7 STAIE OF CALIFORNIA

NHICH THE PERSON ACTED, EXECUTE THE INSTRUMENL REGISTHAiION EYPIRES: 12- 11- 2017 S".e` qt%'
SECRETARY OF TFIE PLANNING CUMMISSION' S STATEMENT:_

I CERTIFY UN LR PEIJAI. Tf OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CPlIFORNIA
TI1AT THE FOREGUINL` PARACRAPH IS TRUE ANU coeRecr.     RIGHT TO FARM STP. TEMENT:   THis MM CONFORMS TO TI1[ VESTIfIG TENTATIVE TRACT MAP N0. 3789 APPROVED BY THE

PLANNING COAfA11SSI0N ON THE 18TH UAY OF OECEM ER, 20U.
WITNESS MY HANU:    

I1 0.    
PER CIPf OF LA7HRGP COIIE OF ORUWhqCES. 11TLE 15 CHAPTER 1S4F3. 04, 7HE CITY OF LphIROP C I  

SIGNATURE:       .{ AI4., f uNr
PEItMITS OPERp710N OF PRGPERLY CONDl1CTED ACNICULTURAL UPERA710N5 ri1THW, THE CIiY DATED IYI'    THISDAYOF= P, vPrvi- Pr  . 2017

LIMITS, I CLUOING THOSE 7HAT IJTiL12E CHEMICAL FERTILIZERS AND PES7ICIOES. YOU ARf HERE Y
0

Ip,, rl 2S        
NOtIFIED 7NAT TNE WHOPERTY YOU ARE PURCHASING MAY OE LOCATE CLOSE TO AGRICt1LTURAL 1     r I ove q 2ai7- ieuesa

PRINTEU N AA£E, NOTA PUELIC IN ANU FUR SAIU CUUMY ANU STATE
LANOS AN UPERATI NS. YOU MAY E SUOJLCT TO INCONVENIENCE OR ISCOMFORT ARISWG I S V     09/ 20, 201u Fe l sxi Na
FR M THE LAWFUT AN PRONQ2 USC UF AGNICULNRhL CNEMICALS ANU PESTIL' NES AND FR01A y,,, lularlJ s

1'  1. 1 OhIER ACRICULNHAL ACIIVITIES, INCIUDiNC WITHWT LIMITA' fIUN, CULTIVATIONS, PLOWING,  in aq{ n caunsy x. cord. ro
PRINCIPAf. PLACE OF BUSINESS: JrI' I'a rrun llh PJ PI AS(: n791rCq' NI'S     

SPRAYING, IRRIGATIUN, PRUNINC, HARYESIINC, DURNING OF AGRICULTURAL WAS7E PftODUCTS, SECRETARYAF THE PLNJNINC COMMI5510Y       +   
r iwun ux uucur¢ nr

Air iJ rJ,   L41{ f µ 1,

r „COMMISSION E%PIRES:   UGI Orv IIO) o^'OI
I CENfRATEN0U57, C5 OKEANN015E. MWOR, RRU0EN75EANDPE5T5. DE WAIETIALISU, THIAT

TtIIS IytiI 9r L'ILIlLOhYfL K
IIII PROPERTY MAY 0E LOCATEU ADJACENT TO hGRICUL7URAL OPERATIUNS OUTSI E THE

CITYS COUNTY RECORDE. R'S
STATEMENT: COMMISSION OF NOTARY:   I 7"! I JURISDICTION. CONSEQUEN7LY, DFPENUINC N THE LOCATIUN QF YOUR PROPERTY, Ir MAY BE FILED Th115 a   DAY OF P 201% AT    M. IN BUOK.-l,b

OF ECESSARY hIAT 70U BE PREPARED TO ACCEPT SUCH INCONVENIENL' ES GR OISCOMFOItT
AS MAPS ANU PLAfS, Al" PAGE EUUEST

OFa NORMh AND NECESSARY ASPECTS OF VING IN AN AGRICULTURALLY AC VE

REGION. FEE: 
fr.! co Fv yr Av..¢ c..,.,i;

FluCo, STATEMENT OF SOILS

REPORT: A SUILS REPORT ENTI7LED,' GEOTECHNICAL SERwCES REPORT, CENTRAL LATHROP PECIFIC PLAN U,.,

n„ f,.}Cvftria eCtCt„       g•/;, 1 q,u tl<.L Y.
CBn. PtIASE 1 INFRASIRUCNRE LAIHROP, CALIFORNIA PROJECi N0. 5747. 5.

003,
02V ANO

DATEU gTEVE J. DESTOLARIDES RSSt9F. 4Ni/ DFPl1TY
RECORDER OCfOBER 24, 2U05, HAS BEEN PREPARED FUR 7HI5 PRUJECT BY ENGEO INCORPURAIEU, MN2K

M.ASSESSUR- RECORDER- CWNTY
CLERK CILBERT, P: E.,G. E.,AND IS 0! FlLE' Mlhl iHE CPfY OF

LAIHROP.     SAN JOApUIN COUNTY,

CALIFORNIA p. r..=,.+r n.;.-»
v„--,.„     U. SHEEf N0. 48)  SHEEf 1 OF A zssta.

ato a- 

213



a

ggA

w
N'.:

p.NfON10 A iY GLORA A T ROMULO dc
R- t TRnCi N 7573 AfMS- k PIATS" BN.- o;- PG- t00, S; J. CR------

o CAS7R0 FAMILY TRU9T PURRA 7RU3T pA, ROMULD ! c PURffA TRUST
0ltSIS OF BEARINGS•

DOCUMENi NUMBEA DOCUMENT NUMHER DOCUMCN! NUMBER P007- 111644

n+    i 1994- 1P4030 2007- 171644 I L TIIE GUtINC NORiH 89' 49' 29' WESi BEIYlEEN FOUNU MONIIMENTS

I
I ON SPARLW WAY( fORMFRLY IATtIKOP ROhO)! u SfIOWN ON

NB9' 49' 2B' w I TRAC 3533, W BOOK 40 OF AW' S ANI)% A74, AT PAGC tOD,

130. 30 IJ Af       
ppSIS OF CEAfl1N( i5 --- Ndn' a9' 29' 17 H09' 49" CJ' Y! 

SNd d0A0UIN CWNfY RECONUS, WAS USED AS THE dA175 UF

HEARINGS StIOWN HE2EON.

N NB9' 49' 29' W 6! 1U. 43' Af 61 295. 2d' N- M 3 7. 76' I. I- q

MAN7ECA UNIFIED SCHODL DISTRIGT so• i1559.
67' ia',    -    >-- --'---'---''-'-'{!},  0

DOCUMENT NUM ER 2006- 175790 4: 1 bB Sr'       ( FURl ERLY LKft n P RaADI
L12

l073p' JI_ ELR. , NOTES•

N\ Y48 i 950 i gTAN
YIAY  -__--    

N89" n9' 29` W

J
a

N   SPA.     C3 I r 1, Au. UI5iANCES SIIOIYN ARE CRWND LE4EL UISIANCEs.

0 517. 91' BNDY         o°' 2. STREEi MONUI. 1fNiS ESICNAtED ON TN S 6NY TU DE SET ALONC

0'/,% _   
l    

di   _ o       IM' PARK DRNE ANU CULIIEN Vi1LLEY PMNWAY WENE NEVEN

by6'

5           
pY CRY OF lA7HROP N41" 09' 01" E L9    I,      IN9fqLLED PE2 TMCT No. 1533 FlLEO W OOOK 40 aF AW' S PAGE

LOT 29
00 o'j' f g8•

2.
N

w    DDCUMENY NUMBER    ' N 37. 63' 6N Y 7 -     100. IIONUNENIS TU 5E SET WRII RASS UISH S A4PE LS BB17.

L OY 2 0 I
7 HA CT 3533 P`

j5

a3 i

Q a,S
p• ' o      2013- 03 IU0      °'-   3. T116 SUfi MSION CONiNNS A TUiN./ JtFh OF 9i. 37 dCR6 MOPE OR

AO MkP 100       /    4 a 
o          or 39

S

TRACT 353       
c1

0 ,     a
AO MkP 100       A2A

u

3074. 00' NGV09_OI_ PI R
C4 1i N 7RACf 3533 1 NQQf MENT NO' fE:

9 ft'     i---- LOT AO MttP 100 WNSIIAlIi TO ARIICIE?, SEC 9N 4G4? 4( g) UF THE Sl! wNS: INd I.1P
U'    

P  
m 10° 25' 26'       

CS.  p lCT. THIS IMP SHALL CONSIIfUIE THE d& WDDNMENT IN Ii5 EMIREiY,

M1f

lll
zE

4

j 0
y

n

L13       N  '

N

WRHIN THE 0011N MIES OF TNIS AW':
4 552. 02` BNOY lo, j

5
j0j bb/ 

0

1A N t7' I I_ 59 f[ft'    
I

r`

I I   1. 1HE P CESS FASEMENT AS OESCRIDED tS PARCEL B, I2ECORI7Etl IN
I 1 LWCUNEM NUAIOER 2013- 07tl10d, SAN JOAONN COUNtt RECOROS

1,y F.  I j  +)     Lo7 3o
TIitE NOTES:

66 LOT 6 P    

o_ 

7R/ tCI' 3533
NI FASEkENT FOR PI1. NWC PUNT AN IRRICATION eW INCI EMAL64

q  LOT 5 w I•g'  40 M d c P

1

1 0 0 PURPOSES, HfCOR fD W BOON 913, NACE 397 OF OffICNL

N5549' lU' EQi)  
RECORDS. IN FdWR UF M. WUFl U7S ROS, M17 NIIEL 005 RFJS SR.,

LOT 1 a

WD EOLINUA OOS REIS. THE IOCAl10N OF IHf FASEMEN ChN.NO
4,/       BE U lFJiMME F7i0M 2EWRD INFORNh UN.

o
l, a, ' 1 2. AN FASEMENi FOR PIIMPINC PlMlT ANU IRRIQ4TION MID INCIDENiAL

r\    v w I`°s PURPOSES, RECOI; ED IN dWY, 173E, PACE M177 OF UFFICNL

o   ! "     a RECONOS. IN FAVOR OF LN ROOINSON JR., JOFUJ J. DOMINCO, ANO
O•`  \

J O. 4 ' /    LUT 38
FUCIIST COA! 6. RfE LOGTNIN OF 1HE E6EMENI G NNUi dE

o   ?      T.
Io m. UEIERMINED FROM RECORD INFORIUIICN.

S p   I TRACI' 3533
y W 3. N! EASEA! ENT FOR NIPELINES AND INCIOENTAL PURPOSES, RECOROFD

k S\  ey
iS     cC1

q F    N7? 4G• 15)
HJ/

40 MhP 100

FAYOR FIBENYYANOYYh EfCN..

IkCLUCAIIONFOFTHENEFASENENTV
LOT 7   \ \`

y{;%'  

CANHOT 6E EIEP.UWm FROIA REWkD WFORAIAlION.

7RACT 3533   b%      n   6          LEGEND

40 MdcP l00       '\   . ( 14 i•• 

L' 7q'     \
Y 6       11I1' Y' eaunoarr uNE

rj„
G   /

Qr       v L0T LINE/ PN2C0. IJNE

2• Q' roi o,= I EXISpNC PIiUPERtt LINE

J,_" -- 2 y, v m Kv /    fASEMENT UNE

Y'- N45' 5G' IYE( N   z/         NONII1AFNf LIN!

9`  9
T z

LOT 3 u vo /}/" o/  FOI1NU 2 I/ 2' ERASS OISK IN CONCREfE

Q Q
o 10NUTAENT 0% UNLESS OTHERHISE NOTED

s000, yp80o p /' u/ pp SEf' 1 1/ 2" ORASS DISK SiM1PEU' LS 9817' IN
i y  IlONl1L1ENT 00% PER CIIY OF IAiHRUP 5iM7DM05

O
A  '       

R= 5200. U0' 6= 0' IO' 1G' L= I5. 57' k N
yyy  ¢     

CLE POINT

p f BN Y BOUNUMY

hJ y 
a. O

OY2J LOT 31- 
i l'RAC7 3533 IX eFN1ERC

NE

9•  rJ.., 7RACT 353    

Line Table s', c,  /  no Ma r 100 u MONUNENf TO L10N MFNT
F(R;= t     "?$•   QQJ

J'.

40 M7[ P 100   /  
U- pL l.tONUMEN 7U PROPERIY IiNE

Llne U Benr1n0 LenOth

1    '.
72yB

B
f
J O    PAUE PRNATE ACCFSS AN UIILM Fh: EMENT

9'
r,

y:.
y i OVQ"i,     / /    af  / o /      PUE PUel1C UtILIIY FASEMINI

L  1 4A' 2f' te' N 1to. 0o'   oap ji  '•'•           MkP     A+MS ANO PU15

3   R     /        N R)      RMNL UFARING
l2 p95" 28' 05'. E 10. 00'     p7 h p x\: Y. i i

TRACY 3533   ai, So• PUIIAM1L' K ISfiNCE

L3 N. 2" 52' 32' E C9. 00'      NJ 4    /     . NJ,   lOT 4 m         
RECORD DISTAhCE

AO M YP oo r,,,            ;- ..

L4 NW' 07' 26'{ 7 99. 00'       yU._  F
J p ry  /`    S. J. GR.    YV! JOAQUIN COUNtt RECORDS

L5  d172• 15' 14' P!  A. 7o' 

E(
Rl.

Q=`

qBE
d'

J.

q`(

y4B pp'''+ B'       n        INDICFTES SHEEf NUSIOER

L6 N17' A4' 4B' E 92. 00'     Q+' y ysa oEC1 R
63J,6 4•

B, N   /

r a\
g   BY OB7 a  

l`       ETNL NE

L7 n7T15' 14• Vi A. 9o'    T' s' 

2s• s'
S`     Y 2    

LB NB' 4B' 97' E 41. fi0  

Curve Table zi` J4Y•,

y9
B•`\

Ns y TRACT 3789LDT 36

Curvu X P¢ ius ocltu   ncn k1_:,.   zse 07,?
y      / 

7RACT 3533

Ls t e9• 4y' 2• f7 58. a0'  3 ly  (     /,   40 MLtP 100 SUB IVISIOfJS OF SAN JOA IIIN COUNTY
C7 81. OD'  109' 20' 9B' 119. 67'   fl=450U. U0'     '

6•
0.  @rJOY

V
rrv

STANFOflfI CNOSSINU
LIO Nti' AB' S7' E 03. 67'       

d= 2" 05' 57'   ".
B

Y A SUBOIV15IOtl OF LOTS 21 TIIPOUGII 25 fd U A POflTION OF L0T 26

L11 NtlU' d9' 29' PI py, SJ'     
C2 31tl. UQ'  9" 22' 00'  S1. 99' 

L= 18A. Btl' A Id y. j,        OF THACT 3539 h5 HECONUGU IN 600K 9D UF MnP: i N D PLAT9 AT PAGE

C9 2B2. U0'  9" 22' 00'  46. 1U'       1'(       100 SAN JUM1QUIN COUPiY IIECOIi05 BEiNU A POHTIOY OF SECT[ ON 27

L12 N89• 49' 2 J' PI 90. 00.'       LOT V U U0 00 4U0
TUPINSNIP 1 SOIITH PANOE 0 EAST, 110UNT DIAOLO MSE& 6! EFIDI. 4N

C4 G1. o0'  29` a0" 2B' 71. 59' 
7 C7 3533

CITY OF IATNNOP

117 t 89° 49' 29` Y! 84. 25'       r N JOAWIN C uNTY CnLIF00HIA

cs ai. 00  7o• s9• oa• 7e. sz 40 MhP foo
scaLE: 1'= zoa'

pyAyua t aa° 2c o9• E to. 00       
LOT 5 mA1j F11 & ljmps

TRACI' 3533 siii iiK:.+ui u. Kc; iu:a nsn   ?

wiO` c:

AO Mc4P 100
i: s; r,-w,u

oa- ia- sov i: sro     t i      P:\ 15] I]\ 4M' U+ Fi.+ c ru- na ni- az- n a. oem
5HEET 2 OF 6 JULY,' 2017 2Z21J. alU

ya -   9q

214



a- 49
IJ      F FR NCES

J  — R- I INACf 110. 3533 AUPS k PNIS OK. 10, VC- 1W; S.J. C. R.    

u       _ ie.-t-
ase.

no''  
4 V

G3' 
G'' p=lo' 2'       f3AS1S OF BFARINCS,J'

a' L 9    ''
0 7NE BFARINC NOR7H 8549' 29' YlESI B6lWEEN FOUNO NONUkENIS

00' i
B'

S 

N SPMTAN WAY( FORIdEHLY N7NHOP R( ND) AS SHOWN ON
V

p!`' i n 3'     
NIO' l4' E' YIfP) i

l       

11tACf J53}. IN EOOK 40 OF A S ANO PlATS. AT PAGE 1,
o 2'    7 

L5    

2e. uo'     SW JOA l11N ClIUYiY RECOR S, WAS USE AS TIIE H; SIS Of

o
l Y:' ltl..=' y"'33  OGWINGS SiIOWN HEIilUN.

nwrrrF. cA uN r' e scHooL s7R cr
a_-- ,-      

DOCUNENf NUMUER 2006- 175798 i     =  oa  '       
z

i i'     o   i NOTFS:

Q.
U,"/ FRyY

4' 
r     Zy    

1. PiL CIST? NCES SHOYIN ME GftOUNU LFVEL OISIPNCES.

g90?`

P

ltOR // 

O 
L.

BB" 2. SIREEI MONIIAIENIS UESICt7ATE0 04 1HI5 A4 P TO BE SEf ALONG

ie;            
ryy'      CI7Y OF 1h7HROP     ' D PMK DRNE AND COIDEN VAl1EY PAftKWAY 44ERE NEVER

D`%   ` E N /
p°` DOCUlACM NUMUEP     

NS ALLED PFJt fHACE Nu. J577 FIIEU It! DUOK 4U UF hW' S PACE

r,
00 l  -j4

R     
q2A      

y 2 13- 03010f3
W0. MONUMENiS IU fiL' SEi Wlill LI+AS, UISK STPMPE LS 8817.

9 3. THIS SU DNISION CONTAINS A TtifAL NtfA OF 94. 37 ACRES MORE OR

o, P=      /       P`   
w

LESS.

f'd.     i   LLN.DONMENT NOTE:
LDT 29 PURSU. Wi 70 ARIICLC 2, SECIION 66434( 9) Of THE SUBDMSION L

7RAC( 9533       / /
yp5• 07' AB' N( qj

a. GO Fli, TIIIS M? 1' S} U ll. COYSiITUIE TNE NNNWNA1fNi IN If5 ENIIHEIY,

I
AO MdcP 100    

ri71H1, 4 INE BOI NCARIES OF TMIS MnP:

r: n• si' o+^ a a

i N= 30JM1'       1. THE dCCESS FlSt" 6 CNi AS UESCRII3EU AS PMCEL B, HECURUED IN

I
p_ 20 Qo      ' 

a_
g034• 9      

CUMENT NUMUEIt 201J- 038108, SAN JOAOUIN COUNIY NECOR S

LQ7' 2o

I       / yj-    n= a• za sa•      1 p- 10" 25 BNOY
TRALT 3533 Gn._ L= 25. 62   ; L 552. 02'

0 DLP 00 y fi 56/'    /  

0
0 

N4 3tl' 12' E( P

II• 2995. 00'   C N 2= 51B`--

p0

a
n„-, s a     9,

2
6 L= 92. I I 1N1  a-'. e s

µ1  /
06 a, o.  SHEET 6

p° Y!)_ 110_}q R):
p14:          6

H= 07'J. UO' ' 6,`'s.
l 5'        N2B` 40' 28' W_- d= U° 22' S2'   

LOT 6
li       106.' l.Y'  L= 4. 51

ll
k

NTt^
M12

9,

E

f15549' I" E( P.]  
B       

LEGENU
W

tlUI1GMItY L1NE

5ry
T      

L01 L1nEJPMCEL LINE

e2. acsAC E% IS YC PROPEHiY L1NE

FASFlAFM L1NE

IdOHUMEN LME

9
r;° w FOUN 2 1/ 2' HRA55 UISN IN CONC2EfE

s          j Sh7 Y% 2 AA55` US'K. OSTA

PEIDe"
l5 B817 IN

so    NONUl ENT BO% VEH CIIY Of IATIIfOP STMl0ARD5
o O.

oo            
nnc rowr

a 9„    II' 477. 00'   
6NDY OOUN IARY

I     .       a= d" a0' ae•   
CL CENiEIiLWE

y;    . N79" 14' tl4'[ L. 5ti. 14
E%      E% ISI 4C

d  ,.    ,   59. 78'-\      U- FI MOYUMFNT TO NONUMf: Ni

0   ` C C       SEE SHEET 4 A- PL IAUNUNENT TO PPUPEIttt L1NE

9.Fi  
y    ?,    32•

E PAUE PHNATE nCCLSS ANU UiIl11Y EASEA! ENi

f   ,
a    ? p    PUE PUBl1C UiILI1Y FASEhIJIT

v.      t
hG

O  F! NP AAYS VlD PIATS

py
2

pGTYI' 4i E( R'     R)      RMNL dEMING

LOT 7 O H7J' d9' UBIY( N) 
E2 NuuwcK ur rnuce

TRAC7 8533                   1i= 1! iUU
1

N• I 7• t' SG' E li

40 MdP lOD 2= i20i--(?  
p46

59

p3 IiECORD DISTANL` E

S. J. C. R.    S W JOAQUIN COUN7Y HEWRDS

E Line Table

9y
01 INDICATES SHEEf NUIdHER

J.
1/  

J i6 go;

yry '

C     /  GF,      e.   F,, t.    LL e—  X i LeliUtli

i a.: o,    ' L UClM t1F.

s;
9•     L1 N44' 21' 1' YI 11U. OU'

L3
SSo           L2 N01"± 3' Iv' E 01. 00'

N45" SB' u• 1' E 62. 8 C .       N13' S726' E(.R)       LOT 2
l3 1L15" 28' 09' E  o. o   TRACT 3789

J       \ ,'     
o

a r a,• zc os• e  u. ao    SUBUIVISIONS Of- SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY

sr,wFano ceossuro

y es 9
4 S[ E SHEET 4 A SUOOIVISION OF LOTS 21 TNNWGH 25 A! A A POPTION OF LOT 26

iY\!' S 9 Curve Table OF TMCT 9599 A9 HECUP FO IH 1300K 4U OF FIMS MN PLATS AT PAGE

Y ap  n
O Y9 100, SAN JOA UIN COUNfY ItECUH S OC1N0 A POIlTION OF SECI' 10N 27,

y S O.  
9 2. Yy TOYlNSIIIP 1 SOUiII, fL1NUE ti EAST, 610UNT DIABLO BASE fl: IENIOIAN

0 5  1 0 200
l  `

j    ? yBOy O.   
C I' Ve N flJdlus Oul[ a LenOtli

CITY OF LATHflOP

q B`      Cl 907A. 1111' 0`. 3' 56•  1. U9'  
SAN JOAOUIN CWIITY L' AIIFONY[ A

St: ALE: 1'= 700'       LOY 14 v y

TftAC( 3533           "      C2 I tl10. 00' 8' n' 5T I IO. AA' ACICAX& SOmPS
9D 1r k P lOD     .    U w:,. Fs     • ucntt,:

vua ita emi Ix. ru. as: uvi r: s+[ ei p, r.)::;- mv;

ca- io- am i zk,     m ie r.\x, si]\ 5rw\: u' rua:\ f!.- nsa\ n.. u- 3r. iGa. c
SHEET J UF n JULY, 2017 25213. 010

f  - qq3

215



9 
N6Y02' 399' i( R)- ft= J96P-----= r.—.  

N3'L'h% 4Ut(I, @= 3799       /     
F CES: 

R= 1- TRSCT- N0: 35J7- MAf' S- Le PfATS OK: 40; PC.- IW; 5. J. C. R.—

a fl= 37A9, 00'= 0` 35' S0' L= 90. 10    N52' i6' U7' E( R
d" o 1 11' UBh71_; R p

K62' S7 2A' W( RZ R= 9UU0'   r  ' ; o,N3TI7' SPE( fi) R= 3749' j  ^  K`,,, L P       BASIS OF BEARINGS:

N P= 97qY. 06' A= 0' 95' 63' L= 99, 14   `
O•

v 

2% C               iHE dEARINC NORRf 9749' 29' WEST IlE1WEFN FOUNO MONUMENTS

ti a  
NIT54_IU°PI 1L%        p= ct9. 00'     ON SFAH NI WAY( FOftME12 Y L4HROP RWD) AS SHOWN ON

R= 3761. 00'     /  ' o   . Z e= 0• 22• 52'    IWICT 3537, IN f300K 10 OF l:APS M! D P( A15, AT PACf 100,

A= 3' 3v• 2tl  ' " 
4+ n e'• L•. t. 57'      SM JMpUIN COUNIY NECORUS, WAS USEU/ S THE OAS6 OF

oL=24B. 28'   o

N
y^;/

h% "    

a,       
a>,\ LOT 6

DEARINCS SHOWN HEREON.

r 2 w LOT 3 oU  

SEE SHEET fi

LOT 2 i^ / o
Gnb

J Fl= 40 9. 00'       
Zy8•

M19 vy,\.`  NQTE$,

o'   / p= 9' 9I' 2B'.

y'/   

v     

L= 24B.- 0v' M4`
42'•

E
y

y,       

r
2 SiREEI' ONUAIENISWIIES'',I CNA EU UN iHIS`MAPSTO 8E SET ALONG

ary /"'   

70TAL
SEE SHEET 3 I WJD PAkK DPoVE aN0 C7LDEN Y.LLLEY PARNYfAY WEPE NEVEft

E.  

Q=' 

b• y jn`   INSTNIED ER TRACi No. 3577 FlIED IN BOOK 40 OF MAPS PACE
4y^ y%    
e ryF. 

100. pUNUMENTS IO OE SEf WITII OfN55 UISK S7MIPE LS BB17.

y    y J. TIIIS SI18 M510Y CONTPJNS A TOTPL ARFA OF 94.37 ACRES IIURE OR

m°      p =!    

d  

LOT 5
1E55.

y;
y/       /

o+.
LOT 7 N a'.•,- J A lDONMENT NOTE:

0 u    a • W, FURSUANf TO PRTICLE 2, SECTION 6G474( g) OP THf SUBOMSION hIAP
y`+    /„ yw Loi a

as'  ACL THIS AfW SNA1L CONSIIIUIE 1HE NWIWNMENT IN IIS ENMEIY,

2'/
r+      g,     N77• a4' 4s' E—       W1tHIN THE 90UNOAfl1E5 OF lhl6 IMI:y ^   /  

7M1. 00'     !
3

o/   '/ /      
4•  1. 111E ACCESS FASEUENT AS DESCRIOED AS PN2CEL B, RECOR ED IN

4

j 0
f% 7

N

Sy
7aE    /  

L 5U.

749U•   OOCUMFM NUMOER 2013- 03HI08, SAH JOAWIN C0114IY RECONOS

i /  ,
y^    

I/ ryh iu'

A,       ry  N

Ai io;' Nes•zi'a gra      
i

R 71. 00' 37" 17' ld' L= 4 J. 57'  2j9 3
fl= 91. 00' d= 31' 12' tiB' L= 40. 58' 

UETAIL

32E

o

NG3' 11' OS' EfR      I•= 10o'     NGe. pi

N35' 4'I' 09 19QQ N95' 39' 5G" E( R     12' E
H= 15lAP' l      : fi=42& i`_'    ge' a3 3

k
L 9 O

u 1   '   Gg

LEGEND
y.    b•ry 5

Q a
1'

a1  >.   %

t9S      ' t'
E

2     

r'\  . J
9       V  

y\   
a'j 0,  qCi yA,  ^ wi BOU4 Jt,HYLINE

N' pB; so u:
9' 

a50

U ` Y,      

LOT LINE/ PPRCEL L1NE

s oa,  EXISTINC PROPF. Rtt L1NE
i,

2• f Sv Na5• 3e' A2' e sa. o9' LOT 3
fEN ONE

y .   • 9y;,      v74T52'[ 0" E( R1 MONUMFNL UNE
yp    `,

N45" 26' 09' E FOUND 2 1/ 7." 9R/ i5S OISK IN CONCREfE

i       10. 00' BNUY RP3 h10NUAlENT 00% U lLESS OTHERWISE NOTm

l Y..\ 

1\'

t'
y,     

OT 2 p=: 1749. U0' YU' 95' SC' L= 99. 10'
l%   `b Ca y039 0.    , yi Ef 2 1/ 2' BRASS OISK SINAPEU' lS 9817' IN

y.   `, T6,   2e. 72sAC

y. /     ys
MONUNEM BO% PER CfIY OF LUHROP STAN Wt175

z,° :    r  ,  
i

y,'     
F     ANCLE POINT

j ' roo`(  ENOY WUNOMY
p= 7A9. 00' d= 0` 35' 59' L= 97. 14'  

Yv /      
SEE SHECT 5

CL CENfF12UNE

a h        UI E% ISiING

so     IA- M MOIJUMENI TO IAONUTAENT

s   

4 v 
N- PL NOt7UMENT TO PROPENIY LINE

s
PAUE PRNAIE ACCESS ANO IIPUIY FASEMENi

3o q PUE PUDLIC UI1LIlY FASEMENf

vy SEE OETAIL TtIIS SHEEt        o     Mkp I,+,WS AND PUTS

vv QB o' 
i a)      w au o u c

a, i
e

Line Table

a\       Q;   
FLILLMCK DISLWCE

p: J2„   y°   llne N Bunrinq Lenqth NECORD DISTM1NCE

1S• O S, I. C. p.    SAN JDAqUIN CWN1Y RECORUS
F(

PI Y2      LI N44' 21' I6' W 110. 00'

Q \`    INOICRTES SfIEEf NUM9ER

p t)    g3
L2 N61° 59' 15' E 81. 00'

ve,     
i a   ne• is ia iv aa. sc o ra uwe

T 1Cl 3$ 3a
tr•/, ayOr pY a  L4 1l45" 90' 51' E 82. 34'   

AO MhP 1W T   TRACT 3789s, N i
o          

Curve Table

Soe       + 1.,      e SUBOIVISIONS OF 9AN JOAaUiN COUNTY

0•  :`

S  
Jy Curue C 11aGius Uelta Length STAt7f01iD CIIUSSING

J

SO g
f

R `

P`
9.  ^^/       j CI 91. ou'  109' 20' 9U' 773. tl7'     

A SlNOIVISION OF LOTS 21 TNflWCH 25 AID A POflTION OF lDT 2fi

OF TflACT 3597 AS qECOPUm I11 OOOK AO OF VJ85 hY0 PLATS AT PAOE
oe  a C•         100, SAN JOADIIIt! COUNTY IIEWP S BCINO A POflLON OF SECTION 27

y.. py  
l' Btl. eq      /       

C2 20. 00'  79' 24' 83' 25. 82'_

0 50 1 0 200 C     C3 2995. u0'  7• 45' 4<'  gz,      

TRINSIIII' 1 5011T11 WWGE e FAST LIWNT u[ ABLO BASE d AIEHID7AN

o,'--`   CITY OF IATHBOP

U           % 
SNJ JOA UIN COUNTY CALIFOIII IA

SCALE: 1= 100    

1
4r31° e' 70• E fl) 9..     mac Y s somps

y:  .   `      c+ a w:      swx u«.nas

en rw xiu ix ir.•auai. o aix. is: er r u-a

u- m-: mi rc-r:     «,.
te w.\. 7u\-'+ P\ ruai a ru- oi- ae r:F

SNEEf a aF s JULY, 2017 25213. U10

a- gg 

216



ya- G9 .D
SEE SHEET G-      --      _—_   _   _

t gFFlLOT 5 n= s2oo. o0'   1DZ. 6._ J 117'[' lA' 5G' 1Y( P)       .-  R- I) INaL' f N0. 35J3 MMS N PIAiS IC. S0, PG. 106, S: J. C. R.      -    -   '
o C=' 9L40'U7. J1
o cao. 00 N- M

N77' 44' 4G• E,
J

15' ld' tY 799. 05'  
ry77151a1' I( R] E3/\$ IS F11R NGS'

w 4. u0 PAUE dc. alti
N 0 50 700 200

Z' 
N72' 1' 14' l9 SB7, 57'     N77" A4' 4G" E iHE BEARINC NOH( H tl9' 4723' IYESf tiEIV/ EEN FOUNU 610NU. UEIIiS

u       _`    J---------  
92 OD BND LOT 38 0 5 1 WAY FORAIERL tATHRU 0 AS 5 OW ON

O

SCALE: I'= 100'   
rNG9• 6q',• u•; f

Y N PNt M'   (    Y P H AU)   H N

4        /,    TRAL7 3533 1RACT 353J, Iq BOOK 0 OF 11APS NIU PLVS, Ai PACE 100,

e d72" 15' 14' P!    

90              I
AO hlc' cP 100

UIN CUUNIY RECOROS,' NAS USEU AS THE ftAS15 OF

N 4tl. i5'   

2° 4° W d3. 23    r N72" 75' 14° L' d EAHINGS ShIOWN NF.REON.

N71_; A_ I2 Y ft):    (' y- I  .
30

i
NOY

I   _ _I—

I el I 1. u 1 DISTN CES SHOY N RfiE CROUND LF4EL OISTR7CE5.

N I J      I
2• STREE HONIIlAENIS UESICNA7ED ON ifIIS MM IO 0[ SET AIONC

V ND PARK DRNE ANU Gt4UEN YMLEY PARKIYTY 41ERE NNER

INSTALLN PER TRACT No. 35: 13 FlLEU IN OOY, 10 OF I: A.' S Pl CE

o

I    i I
100. 61UYUMENiS 70 OE SEf WI1H tlRA55 1715K. STAMPE LS 88 7.

J, TIIIS SUBDMSION CONINNS A TOTAL ARFA OF 94. 3% ACRES IAOPE OR

a I
LFSS.

LOT 2

N o I oI K

fI
f3M1 NDONIAFIJI NOTF.:

I    I r   \     PURSUhNi TO M11CLE Y, SECTIOIJ 4G131( g) OF 1HE SUO MSION MM
rrc LOT 9 j'   

J
ACf, iHIS FLW SIIALL CONSfIfUIE IIIE AWWDONMEMT 1N IiS ENTWEf4

F^'   15. 27sAC
4 I I N7THIN TIIE BOU;; J21E5 OF THIS 5! AP:

3. 00'-
J '  

p= 20. UO'
I 

Z• oo"': d`  1. THE ACCFSS FA; EAICNT AS OESCHIBEU Ati PAHCEL 0, RECnN EO IN
m

L= 15. 53' ll. lJi   K'   I            
DOCUMENi NUAfU, R 2 13- 03tl109, SAN JOAODUJ CUUNtt REWfiDS

SEE SHEET 4 Ne7• 07' 28' VY( R) LOT 37

4, z:'• Oo,  h!   1 J TRAC7 3593
r

1'   

1
9, 95

x   

I
I 1 AO h1kP 00

i i      
1 I

I Jr r

I
I LEGEND

I

m

1

I  ,.  I 90UNOMY LINE

1

V 

I

aP'"
1 LOf 11NE/ PMCEL L1NE

r -  ,  I c•
j2'

Y
307,,      I    ' ol 0.  I E% ISIINC PHUPERIY IINf

I

I
SE9ENT LWE

6f777' S5_ R     ti9• 5'      
m    

V       _    
OINMENf IJNE

M' 26G,   
r'

2' 19 fOUN 2 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK IN CONCREIE

I
p

NCtl° 7 z. y. z2fi 0

B'     
N

I y   AIONUMENT 0% UNLE55 UTHERW6E N iEO
Y /       

m

41?70?

32 E    °

I
VI W I MU UMENT• OOX PER L' IIYSOF LAiHROP SiANUN2D5

1 p-     NJCLE POINT

m l 9N Y     OUHMRY
4'

l SEE DEfxL SHEEf 4 I I Oc.o          CL CENiERI1NE

I N      
N I

E%      E7( IS11NG

y ,
I

1.{-     IAONUMENT TO AIONUTAE T

I I
N- PL A! UNUMEN7 10 PRQPERIY LINE

I      

PAUf PRNpTE ACCESS NJD UTILIIY FASEFIENi

1 I
PUE PUl3lIC UIWIY EASE6' ENT

I M3P 11APS AND I' IATS

LOT 4

L07 31 R)      w ou, L ornniNc

I2. 39enC
7RAGT 3533 PULLU; CK ISiMICE

o J AO MkP 100 NECORO OISiP1KE

I           I
S. J. C. R.    SN JUAOUIN COUN7Y RECORUS

Ll ICAIES SHEEi NUIfBEN

As/     I I THAG7 3533
EiA1L L1NE

os o.   

I
no btuN too

N91' Sa' 10' E( H) d

Tl ACT 3789
9i. 0U' 1'     '_"N9fige'

JIER
Nfi7° 07' 20" 14       

fl>` 1_              '.'-_ fi-' 91'    33. 00' BNOY

E>
5p•

uo p    y1• 
I N' I I

SUBDIVISlONS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY
N22" 52' 32' E

g3

oo7Q.      fl= 9t. 00'

o 4
t1JR__9_

Rg94aB. 00' d' g" OB' 1•      J    I
I srnxr- oeucnoss Nc

69. Oo' eNov
a suoorvcsror+ or ors zi nmoucn za, a+u n eonnox aF oi zs,

G= 109° 20 48   
I{

JSO 

2 -
s,{ 6 

dr OY I
tOo, aSAN JOMUIN CO NTY FECOp05 OEO U

Ai
ORffON UF6?CTI N P7EL= 173 G7' [ 3NDY O.

1vD_ P'

e•`
LS'.

z•
ra.,r-_

N2••••
E rt)  ,   

N67' 07' 2&' N 298. 73' BhDY    .  I TCi'iNSH! P 1 SOUTII,

aViGC T OF

LAiHPOPDINiLU
0lSE 6 AfEflI IAN

K bR(/   N' 450Uq0''-°-_ JG, 7• 0, 2B' tl 4 J 73'!,.   

SNl JOA UIH COUMY, CALIFOPN[ A

LO 4
d.• p• 5, 57'

Tencr ssas c, cs_ aa,. n mACKAV& SOmPS
ao Mua too w,

SilO fu. tla[ l IIbi: V 4 L u tl:w 1': Sr2' s- cbw

w- mn i. eN     . y r r: zizu\=':\- vs. ine\ ru- va\ r:- c,- neatr,: c
SHEE! 5 Of 6 JULY, 2017 25213. 010

9D

217



9g
RFFFRFNCES:

a- .       R- 1_ TWtCT_ t10,_ 3533 61M5_& PlhiS K_ 50 PG_ IO, S. J. C. R.     _. ..

o         
I

ANYONIO A. h cLOR1A A.      
I

TAA DASIS OF BFARIN(';

o w G'` ro CASTRO FAMILY 7RU57 ROMULO '. 0 PURRA TRUST TAA f L 7HE BFiViING NORlH 09' A9' 29' WGSi BEIWEEN FOUNU TAUNUMENIS

D CUMENT NUMB@R 1994-] 24038 DOCUMEPR NUM EK 2007-] 116d4 RUMULO h PURffA 7RU57
z r'.^ I I I ON SP RiAN 41AY( FURIAERLY 1A41ROP ROAO) AS SHOWN ON

rn z u      DCCUMEM NUAIDER 2007- 1116A4 TRFCT 3533, IN BOOK 4a oF MAf' 5 lJJO FlAiS, AT P GE I00,

A r, 
I I I I S4N JOAQUW CUUMY RECOR S, WAS USFD AS TIIE H4SI5 OF

o    
IiFiVtINCS SHOWN HEREON.

b L S O J ua° a' ze' tv

N    N O
n       so7. s: a- a NOTFS:

q      -     
Nf19" 49" L9" W 0.4"uI5 OF BEA41t G5 1. AI. L I715( NICES SHO' 4N ARE GRUUNU IEVEL OISTANCCS.

19U. 3U' M- hl t: N9" 49' 29' l9 590. 47' 61- U N69• A9' z9' N' 95? 6' hl- 6; 2. SiREET MONUM1IF7lIS. CESIGNATE ON THIS IbV' 10 BF SEf P10tJG

IAND PMK DRNEAND GUIllEN VALLEY PNINWAY WERE NEVER

g ppl'
pC'`-, 65'`'' a• p5'29" `

g3. u0'      SPANTAN 1' AY ( FOR!( F; RLY LATHROP ROAU)     NUY"52 31" E( R       INSfN.LE PER TRACT Na. 5535 FILED IN It00K 4o OF AIAPS PAGE

p pJ 
E'

B`'-   -      d'    1p0. MONOMCNiS TO BE SET WITH NNASS ISK STAAIPEU LS Btll7.
p-

s5o
I"       L2 f 3. fH15 SIIBDI' ASION l'0` IfNNS A TaTAL NtFA OF 94. 37 ACRES AIOftE OR

fae. o'    -       _- Ntl9" 4y' 29" W 517. 91' B J Y
LE55.

r as. uu• as. eo N47" 09' 01" E R= 282. 00'

I,

1-
1

2i.
0o'    -`- LOT 29 I 37. 63' BN Y d= 9" 22' UO"   I

7RAGT 3533 m  _       L= A&. 70' 91JDY
R= 3420.. 00'       40 MdcP 100 m

L4

4= 14" 48' 50°   I fl' 310. 00'      I r R= 61. 00' = 70" 39' 00'

L= 885. 28' BN Y il=9" 22' 00°       1L=75. 22' HN Y
L= 51. 99' BNDY I/ IY. oO'

I I
N89° 49' 29" VY 84. 25' BNDYIn 90. 00    / N39' I1' 59ESR'

J c;'u     NB3" 11' 23
m C1TY OF IA' I' HROP

oi  -    j             LOT 1  =      OCUMEM NUMBER 2013- 038108
R= p     

l11tl_09_ 55" EH

d= 29" 4' 28"       '   
V y,  LOT A

o
L= 31. 59' 9NDY

45. U0o  ` I    ` J6. 00'

I    !             a. s:o Ncua' ui' tv( kZ n= ei. 00       Lor 30 f d, o.

fo R= G1. 00'   d=: e° a0' 28"   TRACI' 3533

Nj I6= 70" 39' 00• I;  
L= 31. 59'     40 M CY ! 00

m L= 76. 22' BtJOY LUT B
N09" 49' 29° l4 IJGU' IU' U7' C( ft     

P       'SEE SHEET 3 " 

U' W` R
8 4. 25' BNOY LOT A y Loi 5

hy NOy' S_ --- 1
Zg L= 552. 02' BN Y o. ea: nC u^

h`  10" 2   f..,r'       
It=5

R_
3034. 0 p tU' UI' 35' l' 590. 9' N49' 1Y59' E( Ri   / 3" LU' 13W( fl ir-Ei'  of yy r

L07 39
ErNLA

C2J     d I NtliAM1 31Y it= 1u1'L' q i;     C   !  YRACY 3533 NTS
CC

Nyg' 3y 12" E( R)    I!^&' 09' S E( N}:   I  ;
I        

4U MlcP 1 0
Cid fl;u.Uu           ,    seE o ra a Tnis sHe r I LFG[ ND

a=as° es iz.-            o i'    ` ti'   \       F10UIIDA2Y LltlE
L= 38. 39'

i    w N'
Q"    1

oi    ;,       
J'

1 LOi LIN[/ PPRCEL LINE

E% IS NC PROPERtt ONE
a

o,       

I+       
i I FASEI EN LINE

v LOT G

L'   !

v n ld Nt1MFN lWE

s 13tAC I`^       h f     // FOUN 2 1/ 2' I11 p55 DLK IN CONCREtE

2
6.    

o T      
ry       W I-_     

A! ONUAfEN f30% UIiLESS OIHERµ SE NOTED

r q U SET 2 1/ 2' IiPo1 5S OISK S iAMP ED" L S tltl 1 7' I N

o   
lo I4. 25tAC

p  '    S70NUAIEN dU% PER Citt Of IATHROP STANDARDS
d'

Sby L P``       
1
0

oJ
I      C9 IT-     ANGIE POINT

o'      I
L'N Y     OU JMIiY

20. 00'     
v.

m I lI'   CL CENIEFl1NE

90" 00' 00'      "      N 1 EX F]( ISlING

Line Table L= 31. A2'    `{ ry      :
u ti+- ti l.IONUFIEM TO IAONUMENi

p
v ro I

I A- PL MONU IEN TO PROPER7Y IJNE

Linu Y Bearin9 Leng[ h LOT 2
2

S'
iq•   cV I

N-     

PAUE PRNATE dCCE55 AND U111. I1Y F'SEMENT
15p•

85 
w         

H.    pUE POBIJC UIILIIY EASEMENT
L7 N89" 49' 29"'. 4' 90. 0'  

4'`.
BS•  '`       L07 30N27" 15' th' C MkP IAMS AND PtAiS

N17" 49' 4E" E
5. 00'   `.  32. 53'    I RACI 3533

L2 N89' 99' 29' YI 28. 54'     74. Ca''
32,   \     40 MkP 100

R f+l bLL DEARING

L9 N6" 4B' 37' E 9. 8'    

PULLdACK ISTANCE

RECORO OISLANCE

t4 Ntl9' 49' 2Y' Yf 59. 40'   
SEE SHEET 4

I 1, ru s

S. J. C. It.    S N JOAOIIIN COUNtt REr, ON S

a` li 15}.

LS NC° 4B' 37" E 41. 00' N);.      5g 5•    M2" t5' 1' w     I    I     /  
14DICATES$ HEEf NUM9ER

Lti N72° 15' 1e• CI 4. 30' pA e '
fV 7. g      `! l7

9B 5
3Z"

3      /

L   /      /   
EI'NL I1NE

L7 NI7" AA' Afi' E 92. 00' 0` p

Curve Table

1    '    

i     !  TRACT 3789
i N72" 74' Sti' Yi

SUBOIViSIONS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNN
Cu ve tt Patlius Uelta Len9[ h

LOT 3

4

v- 97'       
STP11FOfiD CpUSSING

N7'lt. ìli N̂( t)    
A SU DIVISION OF LOT9' 21 TfiNUUCH 25, PNO A YOIiTIUt1 dF LOT 2ti

C7 ti7. 00' tfi" 41' 5fi' 179. 61    
QANOONMENT N

OF 1HAC1'; 15 AS flEC017UC0 IIV OOK 40 OF 11AP5 AN PLAT9 AT I' AGE
PURSIIaN! TO AHTICLE 2, SEC7IIltJ tifi434( g) OF THE SU ONISION MA!'     

c   /         
7pU, SPN J AUUIN CUIIYTY PECUfl S BEINC A POf1 I0N OF SECTION 27,

C2 G7. 00'  7° a2' a3•  1. fa'      ACi, IIIIS MAP SNAd1 CONSIITUIE TfIE N3ANDONMENf 6N ITS ENT12E7Y,      
7UR" i 511 t P 1 S OU T H I i AN C E 0 FA S T 61W N T O IA I 3 L 0 C A S E tl Af E P ID I M'

WITffIN THE OOUNOMIES OF THIS! AAP:      SEE SNE[ T 5
C3 G7. 00'  BI° 90' 09' 87. A2' y y^o Ci Y UF LATHPOP

1. iHE ACCE55 FASEkEN( AS OESCRIBEO AS P, lRCEL 9, RECOROED L'     0 50 100 Zpp
SAN JOhUUIN COUNTY CALIFO( INIA

q ti1. 00'  7B` 09' 9A• 07. 09'       ppCUfAENT NUk2ER 2017- 0) 81Gtl, 5VV JQAOIIN COUNIY RECOItUS Q'' ''           o C
scue: i'= oo'      a

SiGu 4V.[ uivi LI+.
IaEul.i'w i C: i'_! I nf s[ a u

ue- m-, un rs     c n N: zsru; rt u Fvuk r.i- 17r vu- cs- na c.; u
SIIEET 6 OF ti JULY, ZOl%      25211010

a'  E

218



IIATTACHMENT G

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS-----
T------

RECORDATION OF 5 FINAL MAPS
STANFORD CROSSING)

December 9, 2019

Via Email and First Class Mail

First American Title Company
4750 Willow Road, Suite 100

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Attn: Tammi Buna

Re:  Recordation of 5 Final Maps:

Tract 3808; Escrow No. 3808MAP

Tract 3809; Escrow No. 3809MAP

Tract 3810; Escrowr No. 3810MAP

Tract 3811 Escrow No. 3811 MAP

Tract 3812 Escrow No. 3812MAP

Dear Tammi:     

This letter constitutes the joint escrow, instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of Lathrop
Land Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and Saybrook CLSP, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company ( collectively `` Developer"), and the City of Lathrop

Cit') in connection with the above- referenced escrow( the" Escrov'): The Escrow was

opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final maps ( the " Final
Maps").  Recordation of the Final Maps is subject to the conditions set forth below.  The
transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the " Transaction."

First American Title Company is referred to as "you" or" FATCo."   

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Maps will be recorded at the time designated by Developer as set forth below.
The Final Maps can onlybe recorded after the City has approved the maps in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is infended to occur by January 31, 2020, at the time
designated in writing by Developer, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each, a " Closing"). If the Final Maps have not been recorded by January 31, 2020,

FATCo will return the Final Maps to the City.

B.       Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following document from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California ( the "Official Records").

B1. Five original Final Maps for Tract 3808, 3809, 3810, 3811, and 3812,

executed and acknowledged by# he City.

B2.  Development Agreement Partial Termination Notice for each Final Map

1

219



I

I

J INT ESCR W INSTRUCTI NS

j RECORDATION OF 5 FINAL MAPS

STANFORD CROSSING)

I B3.  Termination Notice of DFIA 17- 01:  Deferred Frontage Improvement

IAgreement for Street Improvements on Golden Valley Parkw y, Spartan Way, and Land
Park Drive ( APN 191- 210- 13, 191- 210- 16, 191- 210- 24, 191- 210- 25, 191- 210- 37)

64. Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Public Neighborhood Parkland Central

Lathrop Specific Plan

B5. Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Public Water Tank Site( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan)

The documents listed in Item B above are referred to as the " Recordation' Documents."
The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official Records is
the Recordation Date.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from Developer, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Documents,  in immediately available funds,  the following amounts,  in

accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both Developer and City ( the " Settlemenf Sfatemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees,

and other amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees, and other

amounts are the sole responsibility of Developer.

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
j immediately upon recordation of the Final Maps, in accordance with the wire transfer   
iinstructions for each entity attached hereto:

i a.       The amount payable to the City pursuant to that certain Agreement
to Settle Threatened Litigation Regarding the Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( as amended,
the " Sierra Club Agreement"), outlined in the table below, is to be transferred to the City
upon recordation of the Final Maps. The City' s wire instructions are attached.

Tract Acrea e Cost/Acre Total Fee

3808 22. 86 4, 342. 00 99,258. 12

3809 22. 72 4, 342. 00 98,650.24

3810 15. 21 4,342. 00 66, 041. 82

3811 12. 33 4, 342. 00 53, 536. 86

j 3812 16. 25 4,342. 00 70, 557. 50

ITotals 388, 044. 54

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds." 

D.       Closinp Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time(s)
and in accordance with. the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to ( a) Jeff Wilson ( jwilson@saybrookfundadvisors. com); ( b) Scott Bayliss

sbayliss@saybrookfundadvisors. com); ( c) Seth Merewitz ( seth. merewitz@bbklaw. com)

2

220



i

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF 5 FINAL MAPS
STANFORD CROSSING)

d) Stephen Salvatore     ( ssalvatore@ci. lathrop. ca. us);     ( e) Salvador Navarrete

snavarrete@ci. lathrop. ca. us; ( f) Cari James ( cjames@ci. lathrop. ca. us); and ( g) Glenn
Gebhardt ( ggebhardt@ci. lathrop.ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email)
from Jeff Wilson and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement
is accurate and acceptable;

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions;

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

I herein as being held. by you or delivered to you have been received by you, and have been
fully executed and,  where applicable,  acknowledged,  you have attached all legal

i

descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D. 4. You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents,  as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement, and complete the
Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions;

D. 5. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of FATCo with authority to bind FATCo, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Jeff Wilson, Seth
Merewitz and Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from Jeff
Wilson and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation Documents
and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E. 2.  Record the 5 Final Maps in the Official Records.

E. 3.  Record the Development Agreement Partial Termination Notice for

j all 5 Final Maps.

E. 4.  Record the Termination Notice of DFIA 17- 01: Deferred Frontage

Improvement Agreement for Street Improvements on Golden Valley Parkway, Spartan
Way, and Land Park Drive (APN 191- 210- 13, 191- 210- 16, 191- 210- 24, 191- 210- 25, 191-
210- 37)

i

E. 5.  Record the Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Public Neighborhood

Parkland Central Lathrop Specific Plan

E. 6.  Record the Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Public Water Tank

Site ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan)

E. 7.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

3

221



i
I JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

I

I RECORDATION OF 5 FINAL MAPS

STANFORD CROSSING)

IE.8.  Refund any funds delivered to you by Developer that are not
disbursed at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the
following entity and address:

Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC
303 Twin Dolphin Dr., Suite 600

Redwood Shores, CA 94065

Attn:  Jeff Wilson

E. 9.  Notify Jeff Wilson,  Scott Bayliss,  Seth Merewitz,  and Stephen

Salvatore and Glenn Gebhardt of the completion of the Transaction;

I E. 10. Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier, to( 1) Jeff Wilson,
Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, 303 Twin Dolphin Dr., Suite 600, Redwood Shores, CA

94065; and ( 2) Sal Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
f Lathrop, CA 95330

j A)   a certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents and an electronic copy of the
Recordation Documents; and

i B)   a certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

I
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

I

I
i

I

I4
i

i
222



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF 5 FINAL MAPS

STANFORD CROSSING)

Owner: LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION, LLC

By: SAYBROOK FUND INVESTORS, LLC
Its: MANAGING MEMBER

I

i Jeffrey M. Wilson
Officer

Owner: SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC

By: SAYBROOK FUND INVESTORS, LLC
Its: MANAGING MEMBER

I

i

Jeffrey M. Wilson
Officer

CITY OF LATHROP APPROVED AS TO FORM:

I
I

Stephen J. Salvatore Salvador V. Navarrete

City Manager City Attorney

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from Developer and the City is hereby
acknowledged. The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of FATCo, to proceed

in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and

warrants to Developer and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of FATCo.

First American Title Company

By:
its:

Date:
I

5

i 223



224



I

ITEM 4. 17       '

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR LOUISE

AVENUE AND MCKINLEY AVENUE FROM SUKHCHAIN

GILL,  OWNER OF A& A INTERMODAL LOCATED AT

1850 E. LOUISE AVENUE

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for
Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue from Sukhchain
Gill,  Owner of A& A Intermodal Located at 1850 E.

Louise Avenue

SUMMARY:

Sukhchain Gill,  owner of A& A Intermodal located at 1850 E.  Louise Avenue,  has

completed construction of the offsite improvements in accordance with approved

improvement plans. The offsite improvements have been inspected by City staff and
have been deemed complete and ready for acceptance. The cost to maintain these
facilities will be covered through the street maintenance fund.

Staff requests that City Council accept the offsite improvements from Sukhchain Gill,
owner of A&A Intermodal.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop Planning Commission approved Site Plan Review 17- 134 ( SPR

17- 134) by Resolution 18- 17 on May 30, 2018 for a truck parking facility located at
1850 East Louise Avenue,  as shown in Attachment B.  The A& A Intermodal truck

parking facility development consist of a 400 sq. ft. guard shack on a 10. 04- acre site
and provides 185 truck parking spaces and 50 off- street automobile parking spaces.
The development includes other onsite improvements including security fencing,
lighting,  paving,  and a storm water retention basin.  Offsite improvements include

sidewalk, curb, gutter, storm water drainage, street lights, fire hydrants, paving, and
striping along both East Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue.

Sukhchain Gill, owner of A& A Intermodal, has completed construction of the offsite
improvements in accordance with approved improvement plans.   The offsite

improvements liave been inspected by City staff and have been deemed complete
and ready for acceptance. The cost to maintain these facilities will be covered through
the street maintenance fund.  Offer of dedication of right- of-way and public utility
easement was accepted by the City by Resolution No. 19- 4563, dated May 13, 2019.

The approximate value of the improvements is $ 1, 236, 351 as shown in Attachment

C, for this project,  GASB 34 Report for A&A Intermodal Offsite Improvements.
Sukhchain Gill has provided Maintenance Bond no.  681303M in the amount of

66, 910  ( 10% of the Performance Bond value) to guarantee replacement and/ or

repair of the improvements as a result of defective materials, equipment or defective

workmanship for a period of one year from the date of acceptance.

225



CITY f l/ NAGER' S IZEPORT pp(; E 

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITl( COUIVCIL 12EGULAR R lEETI119C;
ACCEPT PU LIC YMPRO\/ EMENTS F012 LOl1ISE  VENUE AIVD MCKIIVLEY

Al EIVIJE FROM SUICHCFiAEN GILL, OVUIVER OF A A IIVTEIZMODAL LOCe4TED AT
1 50 E. LOUISE A\/ ENIJE

REA OM FOR ItECOMMENDATION:

The offsite improvements for A&A Intermodal have been inspected by City staff and
have been deemed complete and ready for acceptance. Staff has received the record
drawings,  which reflect how the project was built,  and lien releases for the

improvements constructed by Sukhchain Gill. Staff recommends accepting the offsite
improvements from Sukhchain Gill.

FISCAL IMP CT:

The City' s maintenance costs will increase due to the additional improvements that
will have to be maintained. The cost to maintain these facilities will be paid through
the street maintenance fund.

ATT 1C H IM E R1T:

A.       Resolution Accepting Public Improvements for Louise Avenue and McKinley
Avenue from Sukhchain Gill, Owner of A& A Intermodal Located at 1850 E.
Louise Avenue

B.       Location Map for A& A Intermodal - 1850 E. Louise Avenue

C.       Project GASB 34 Report Reflecting Approximate Value of Improvements
D.       Unconditional Waiver and Release on Final Payment

226



CITY MANAGER' S REPOI T PAGE 3

DECEM ER 9, 2013, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIIVG

ACCEPT PU LIC INIPROVEMENTS FOIt LQUISE AVENUE AI iID MCKINLEY

AVENUE FROM SUKFiCHAIN GILL, OVI/ NER OF A& A INTERMODAL LOCATED AT

1850 E. LOUISE AVEIVUE

4PPROVALS:

lI 5 1
Brad aylor Date

Associate Engineer

l- tiS--
IG[

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

1

Glenn Gebhardt Date

Cit Engin er

I r Ill
Cari J-    es Date

Finance Ad inistrative

Services ir ctor

1  - 
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

ll l-!

St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

227



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY AVENUE FROM

SUKHCHAIN GILL, OWNER OF A& A INTERMODAL LOCATED AT 1850 E. LOUISE

AVENUE

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission approved Site Plan
Review 17- 134 ( SPR 17- 134) by Resolution 18- 17 on May 30, 2018 for a truck
parking facility located at 1850 East Louise Avenue; and

WHEREAS, offsite improvements associated with the project include

sidewalk, curb, gutter, storm water drainage, street lights, fire hydrants, paving,
and striping along both East Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue; and

WHEREAS, Sukhchain Gill, owner of A& A Intermodal, has completed

construction of the offsite improvements in accordance with approved improvement

plans; and

WHEREAS, the offsite improvements have been inspected by City staff and
have been deemed complete and ready for acceptance; and

WHEREAS, the cost to maintain these facilities will be covered through the

street maintenance fund; and

WHEREAS, offer of dedication of right-of-way and public utility easement
was accepted by the City by Resolution No. 19- 4563, dated May 13, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the approximate value of the improvements is $ 1, 236, 351 as

shown in the GASB 34 Report for A& A Intermodal Offsite Improvements; and

WHEREAS, Sukhchain Gill has provided Maintenance Bond no. 681303M in

the amount of $66, 910 ( 10% of the Performance Bond value) to guarantee

replacement and/ or repair of the improvements as a result of defective materials,

equipment or defective workmanship for a period of one year from the date of
acceptance; and

WHEREAS, staff has received the record drawings, which reflect how the

project was built, and lien releases for the improvements constructed by Sukhchain
Gill; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends accepting the offsite improvements from
Sukhchain Gill.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that the completed offsite improvements are hereby accepted from
Sukhchain Gill.

228



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9t'' 

day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAI IV:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTE T:  APPI OVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

229



230



i
Attachment C

CITY OF LATHROP

PFiOJECT A CEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)     

Submitted by: Date: 10/ 31/ 2019

A& A Intermodal PH tl

Item Units Qty Unit Price Total

Fire Hydrant '    EA 3    $ 8,000.00 24,000. 0

Relomte Fire Hydrant EA 2    $ 3, 500. 00 7, 000. 00

4" Sanitary Sewer EA 1   $ 16, 500.00 16, 500. 00

2" Water Senrice w/ Meter EA 1    $ 4, 500.00 4,500.00

SDCB EA 4    $ 2, 925. 00 11, 700. 00

Inlet EA 1    $ 2, 500. OD 2, 500. 00

12" Pipe LF SOl       $ 42.50 4,292.50

Asphalt( Grading, AB, AC)   SF 41242 7. 27 299, 829. 34

Curb& Gutter LF 1260       $ 22. 00 27, 720.00

Sidewalks SF 5257 6. 25 32, 856. 25

Driveways SF 1372 9. 00 12, 348.00

Striping LS 1    $ 8, 269. Oq 8, 269. 00

Total 1,?36,351.09

231



i_.----       

j ATTACHMENT D
J

U(VCONDITIOI AL IflIA IVEGa e I D GZELEASIE ON FI l aL P 4Y iE T

NOTICE TO CL. IMAfdT: THYS DOCUPiflENT lHi I ES AP1D RELEASES LIE 1, STOP
PAYMENT NOTICE, / R1D PAYMENY ORID RIGHTS IDNCONDITlO I Ll.Y Ai D
STATES THAT YOU HAVE BEIEN PAID FOR GINI dC UP YHOSE RIGHTS. THOS
DOCUMENT IS ENFOiZCEABLE AGAIMST YOU IE YOU SIG d ! T, EVEId 1 YOU ! i N
NOT EEN P 41D. IF vOU HA!! E R10T BEE 1 PAID, USE CO lDIYIONAL! R!AlVER
AIVD IRELEASE FORNl1.

Identifying Information

Name of Claimant: United Paving

Name of Customer: Herb Preszler

Job Location: A&A Intermodal Terminal II 1850 E Louise Ave., Lathrop, CA

Owner Sam Gill

Uncondit6onal lfYaiveP anrl Releas

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant
has for all labor and.service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this
job. Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a

written change order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is
signed by the ciaimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception
below. The claimant has been paid in full.

Exc rtions

This document does not affect any of the following:
Disputed claims for extras in the am unt of:$

Signature

Claimant' s Signature:   

ClaimanYs Title: Project M nager

Date of Signature: 11/ 13/ 2019

7/ 1/ 12

232



UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE ON FINAL PAYM lY''
Californ a Civil Code Section 8138

NOTICE TO CLAIMANT:      THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES AND

RELEASES LIEN, STOP PAYMENT NOTICE, AND PAYMENT BOND
RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES THAT YOU HAVC       
BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS.  THIS DOCUMENT IS

ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN  [ T, EVEN IF YOU

HAVE NOT BEEN PAID.  IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A
CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM.

Identifying Information

Name of Claimant:  A Teichert & Son. Inc.

Name of Customer: United Paving Co.
Job Location:     Intermodal Terminal II, 1850 E. Louise Avenue, Lathroa, CA
Job 18091)

Owner:  Sam Gill

LTnconditianal Waiver and Release

This document waives and relesses lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the
claimant has for all labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to
the customer on this job.  Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or

material delivered, pursuant to a written change order that has been fully executed by the
parties priar to the date that this document is signed by the claimant, are waived and
released by this document, unless listed as an Fxception below.  The claimant has been

paid in full.

Exceptions

This document does not afFect the following:
Disputed claims for extras in the amount of: $ 0. 00

Signature

Claimant' s Signature:

Claimant' s Title:     Vivian Fon Credit Re resentat` 

Date of Signature:   November 9, 2019   --

233



UNCOND1TlONAL UAIVER A( D RELEA E ON FINQ L PAl( IIflLfVT

NOTICE TO CLRII iA 9T: THIS DOCIJfViENT 1i lVES / ND RELEASES LI@N, STOP
PAYiVIEi T OTiCE, AND Pa4Yf iEiVT OND RIGWTS U 9CONDITION LLY AP1D
STATES TH iT YOU HQ VE EEN PAlD FOR GI tPVC UP THOSE RIGWT. THIS

DOCUMEWT IS E lFORCEABLE A GA INST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IF YOlJ Mp VE
NOT EE S PAID. IF YOU HAVE NOT' EEBd PAID, USE A CONDITlOMi L VVAI!/ R

APdD RELEASE FORA.

Identifying information

Name of Claimant: R& B Company

Name of Customer: United Paving

Job Location: A A ntermodai Terminal II 1850 E Louise Ave., Lathrop, CA

Owner: Sam Gill

Uncondi4ional Waiver and Release

This document waives and reteases iien, stop peyment notice. and payment bond rights the ciaimant
has for ali fahor and service provided, and equipment and materia delivered, to the customer on this
job. Rights based upon labor or senrice provided, or equipment or materiai delivered, pursuant to a

written change arder that has been fuUy executed by the parties prior to the dete that this document is
signed by the claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception
below. The claimant has been paid in full.

Excep4lons

This document does not affect any of the following:
D sputed claims for extras in the amount of; S

Signature

Claimant' s Signature:         
fi

Cla: mant' s Tikie: A/ R

Date of 5ignature: 11/ 13 20'

7/ 1112

234



UNCON ITIONAL WAIVER AN RELEAS ON

FINAL PAYMEN7
CA CiVll. CODE§ 8138)

NOTiCE TO CLAIMANT: THIS DOCUNiENT WAI ES AND RELEa4SE LIEN, STOP PA1fMENT NOTICE, AND
PAYMENT OND RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATE THAT YOU HAVE EEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE
RIGHTS. THIS DOCUMENT 13 EIVFORCEA LE AGAINST YOU IF YOU 51GN IT, 1lEN IF 1( OU HAVE NOT 9EEN PAID.

IF YOU HAVE NOT EEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL 11AIVER AND RELEASE FORM.

Identifying Information:

Name otCau ant
Mii' aeek Construction Group Inc.

Name of Customer United Paving

ob locat on
A Intermodel- Lethrop 1850 E. Louise Ave. Lathrop, CA

Owner Sem Gi1I

Unconditlonal Waiver and Release

Thi dowment waves and re'eases Len, st p payment not ce, and payme it bond nghts the cla+manl has for al1' abor and serv ce prov!ded. and equipment and matenal deivered, lo Ihe
customer on this oh Poghts based upan! abo or serv ce p ovided, or eqwpment or matenal de4'vered. p ursuant to a wr tten change order lhal has 6een fufiy executed by Ihe parnes pnor
W ihe date ital ths document s sigr d by Ihe cia mant, are wa•aed and reteased by ihis doc ment, unless listed as an ExcepUon be ow. The cla mant has been paid, n tu l.

Excepttons

Th5 doa:ment does nol affecl lhe fo awmg

Disputed Geirro far extras: n Ihe amount of 3

51GNATURE

Claenant' s Signeture: Ovl! 7GtG f'Dyl

Cle ment'S Tille:      
Office Manager

Date of Signeture:   11• 06 9

Porter Law Group. Inc. 20i9

235



UNCONDITIO AL WAiVER AND RELEI48E ON FIN/4L PAYMENT

NOTiCE TO CLAIMANT: THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES AND RELEASES LIEN, STOP
PAYMENT NOTICE, AND PAYMEA9T BOND RIGHTS UNCONDITIONi4LLY AND
STATES THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS. THIS
DOCUMENT IS ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGRI IT, EVEN I YOU HAV

NOT BEEN PAID. 1F YOU HI4VE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL JVAIVER
AND RELEASE FORM.

Identifying lnformation

Name of Claimant: HD SUPPLY WHITE CAP

Name of Customer: MILLCREEK CONSTRUCTION GROUP INC

Job Location: A&A Intermodal Terminal II 1850 E Louise Ave., Lathrop, CA

Owner. Sam Gill

Unconditional Waiver and Release

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant
has for all labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this

job. Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a

written change order that has been fully executed by the parties prtor to the date that this document is
signed by the claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception
below. The claimant has been paid in fuli,

Exceptions

This document does not affect any of the following:
Disputed claims for ext as in the amount of:$ 0. 00

Signature

Claimant' s Signature:--      Q

ClsimanYs Title: MGR., ACCOUNT SERVICES

Date of Signature: 1 111 3/ 201 9

7/ 1/ 12

236



Unconcfition l l iaiver and Release on inal Payment

NOTICE TO CLAIM NT: THIS DOCUMENT IA/ANES AND RELEASES LIEN, STOP PAYMENT
NOTICE, AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS UNCONDtTIONALLY AND STATES THAT YOU HAVE
BEEN PAID FOR GIVI IG UP THOSE RIGHTS. THI DOCUiNENT IS ENFORCEA LE AGAINST

YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, E1/ EN IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEfd PAID. IF YOU HAV NOT BEEN PAID,

USE A CONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM.

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION

Name of Claimant:  Holt of California, Inc.

Name of Customer: United Paving
Job Location:  Intermodal Terminal II,   1850 E. Louise Ave., Lathrop, CA
Owner: Sam GiN

Job Name ( if any): Intermodal Terminal i

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the
claimant has for labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer

on this job. Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered,

pursuant to a written change order that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that
this document is signed by the claimant, are waived and released by this document, unless listed as
an Exception below. The claimant has been paid in full.

EXCEPTIONS

This document does not affect any of the following:
Disputed claims for extras in the amount of:  $0. 00

Signature

1? t C£ S'Ct   Gt QI'"

Francesca Taylor

Credit Specialist

Holt of California, Inc.
November 11, 2019

237



111 C ND TIO 9AL t lAl!! ER qNp REL ASE pfV FI AL PAlff1{ i
iVOTICE TO C Ii1 1iA 4T: THIS DOCIJ fiENT 4 lIA@VES 14i D R L SES LIER, ST'OPY 1' I OTICE, AND PAYMEi T RID RIC HTS llNCOfdDITIQ ALLY ARJDSTA' TES TFIAT YOIJ WAVE EN P 11D FOR GliIIfVG UP THOSE RIGIiTS. 7' hilDOCIIilflEi T I ENFORC a, LE AGAINST YOU IF YOl1 ICtd IT', EVEIV IF YOtJ WAfVOT' E@ 9 PAIb, IF YOU HA!! lOT E N pAID, USE A COR DITION L 1 lqIVERARID RELEASE F R.

Id ntifying Infcrmaffon
Name of Claimant:       f     `
Name of Customer:      

f . d._.  
Job Loaation: AB A Intermodal Terminal IJ 1850 E Lou e Ave., Lathrop, CA
Owner: Sam GiA

o...——

Uncondttfonal Uaiver and Release
This document wafves and r leases Ilen, stap peyment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant
has for all labor and service provided, end equipment and meterial delivered, to the cuatomer on this
job. Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equlpment or materiel delfvered, pursuant to a
wrltten change order that has been tully executed by the partles prlor to the dete that th s document is
signed by the claimant, are walved and released by this document, unless listed as an Exceptionbe!ow. TNe claimant hae been pald in full.

Exceptfons

This documern does not affect any of the following: 
Disputed clalms for extras ( n the amount of:$ ,

Signature

Claiment' s Siengturg,       

ClaimanYs 7itle:    '      ,      
Y.: l._- rr ,____-,_,._„           

1

Date of Signature:       J,       
f-I

7/ 1/ 9 2

238



LJNCOiVDITBONAL V11A[ VEFt A h l L ASE Oi FiiUAL f AYNiE di'

IVOTICE TO C P f11 ANT: THIS DOCUIlIi N'P WAN S AND RELEASES i l fll, STOP
P YMER9T hf01' OC, AR1D PA YME IT OND RIGMTS U6 CO dD9TIfJ fAL.LY Ai D
STA TEa^ Ta- 9AT YOU H IV EPI PA81 FC1R GIVIPVCC Uf'" TMOS FaOGHT.' HIS

DOCUf1fiENT ! S EfVFORCEa L AGAIi ST YQU iF YOl1 SIGN IT, EVEiV iF YOU HA1 E
NOT EEiV P'AID. IF YOU HAV€ NOT B EiV PAID, USE M CONDITIOIVAL!! lIAIVE6d
AP D RELEsASE FORM.

IdentifyMg Information

Neme af Clair ant: Caiifarnia Mater+als, Inc.

Name af Customer: McMillen Enterprises dba United Paving

Jqb LOCation: Intermodai JOb# 18091 1850 E. Louise Ave. Lathrop, CA

Owner: Sam Gill

Unconditivnaf Waiver and Release

Th s document waives and re eases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant
has for all labor end service provided, and equipment and material delfvered, to the customer an this

job. Rights based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or materlal delivered. pursuant to a

written change order that has been fully executed by the part' es prior to the date that this document is
signed by khe claimant, are wa ved and released by this document, unless I s ed as an Exception
below. The ciaimant has been paid in full.

Exceptions_

This document does not affect any of the following:
D sputed cla:ms for extras In the amount of.$ 0. 00

S Ig natu re

ClaimanYs Signature:

ClaimanYs Tifle•.   R

Date of Signature: 11( 06r2099

711l12

239



u co vo r r. v iv, n . s r i v a pe vnn T

f lOi' IC IT CL 41SUfeAh T:` TH} 5 DC GIJ i 1' ldiloAiV S 1 FZ L. EA E LI PV, STt7P

PAYRVi` T P OTIC, APd PAl' flliEt i" ONf f IGHTS lJ 1Cf7f ITI0i, 4Ll.Y J

S' fATES 1' HAT YOLJ HAVE fV PAID FOR lVIiVG UP THO RIG iTS. TM1S

DQCUIlti i T I idFORC A E. GAIfV T Y i I YOl! SAG! 9T, EI/ N I YOU M 4VE

f 3 E 9 PAID. IF YOU h9AV iVOT 3 N PA D, US A CCt 1D9' i N,AL 1 1, 61l R
AiVD REI f S FOR li.

Identifyfng Informa2lon

Name of Cla mant CMAT Mobile Crushing, Inc.      `   

Name of Customer: McMillen Enterprises dba United Paving

Job Location: Intermodal JOb# 18091 1850 E. Louise Ave. Lathrop, CA       

Owner Sam Giil

Unconditiona VIlaiv r anc9 Remease

Th s document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and paymenf bond rights the claimani
has for ali labor and service provided, and equipment and meterial delivered, to the customer on th!s

ob. Righis based upon labor or service provlded, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a

rvritten change order that has been fully executed by the partles priar to the date that this document is
s gned by the cleimant, are waived and released by thls document, unless listed as an Exception
below. The claimant has 6een pa id in full.

Euce ptio ns

This document does not affect any of the following
Disputed claims for extrss in the amount of:$ O. 00'

T__....___.__....___..____ 

Slgnature

C: a mant' s Signature.   

C aimant' s Title. AR

Date of S gnatu e. 11i06/2019

i/1/ i2

240



ITEM 4. 18

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( SIA) ' FOR 52 LOTS IN

TRACT 3995 VILLAGE T" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3995
Village T" within the Lakeside East District, Totaling
52 Single Family Lots and a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694  ( VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop that revised conditions of
approval for new development within Phase 1.  On August 25,  2016,  the City
Community Development Department.   approved a Finding of Substantial    .

Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area. This action allowed
minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at the request of River Islands

Development, LLC ( RID").

This proposed Final Map Tract 3995 for Richmond American Homes will be the second
and last tract map within the Village " T" area. The homebuilder, Richmond American
Homes, is proposing fifty- two  ( 52) 47' x 100' single- family lots. A Vicinity Map is
included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3995,
Village ` T" and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( Attachment C) with River

Islands Development, LLC.

BACKGROUND:

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3995 as proposed by River
Islands Development, LLC (" RID"), as the subdivider, complies with the most current

conditions of approval.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain ofF- site and on- site

improvements. The SIA_for Tract 3995  ( tfie second tract map within Village ` T")

required security  ( bonds,  cash or equivalent)  to guarantee completion of all

unfinished infrastructure within Village T",  which includes thermoplastic striping,
signing, and landscaping.

241



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3995 VILLAGE T" TOTALING 52 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND AN SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

As a resUlt, a performance bond in the amount of $ 514, 162 was posted, along with
a labor and materials bond in the amount of $ 257, 081.  The SIA for Tract 3995

reaffirms these bonds as security for all unfinished improvements within Village " T".
The SIA is included as Attachment A to this report.       

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (" Off- site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off- site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements.  Tract 3995 will not trigger any additional off- site
improvements and the Off- site Agreement will apply to Tract 3995 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off-site
improvements. Acceptance of all public improvements will be processed by staff at a
later date when the unfinished improvements are complete. At that time, RID will be

required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds as a warranty for the completed
infrastructure.

Before the Final Map Tract 3995 is recorded,  RID must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required fees are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has completed the street and utility improvements within the entirety
of Village  " T"  with the exception of the thermoplastic striping,  signing and

landscaping.  RID shall provide a 10%  maintenance bond to guarantee the full

improvements ( completed and uncompleted) for one year once the improvements

are completed.  Prior to acceptance of these improvements,  RID has provided the

tract map, the tract improvement plans, all required documents and all fees for Tract
3995.

Following is a summary of documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Documents Status

1.       Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.       Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Miscellaneous Improvements associated with Tract Completed

3995

4.       Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements Completed

associated with Tract 3995

5.       Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.      Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.       Geotechnical Report Completed

242



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3995 VILLAGE T" TOTALING 52 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND AN SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

8.       Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

9.       Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
maintenance

10.     Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.     Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.     Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.     Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.     Escrow Instructions Completed

15.     Tract 3995 Village T" - City of Lathrop Community Annexed with FM

Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public 3994 on

Services and Facilities annexed with FM 3994 11/ 2/ 2018

Fees Status

1. Final Map plan check fee Paid

2. Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3. Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off- site improvements to serve Tract 3995 have already been completed
including construction of levees,  participation in construction of a Wastewater

Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility)  and related storage ponds and

sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility infrastructure
to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off-site improvements that are required to

serve this Final Map are detailed in the OfF- site Agreement approved by the City
Council in 2014.

Before the Final Map is recorded,  RID must also satisfy the Escrow Instructions
Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club are made

under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

243



CITY NIARlAGER' REPORT Page 4

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAIZ MEEYING

FINAL N1AP FOR Tft CT 3995 VILL. AGE ` T" TOTALIIVCa 52 SINGLE- F lN1ILY

LOTS AND IV SIi4 VI/ ITH RYVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENY, LLC

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance.  RID is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

ATTACFi M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3995 Village " T" within the Lakeside
East District, Totaling 52 Single- Family Lots and a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B. Village " T" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company,  for Tract

3995, Village " T"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3995 Village " T"

244



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

DECEMBER 9, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3995 VILLAGE T" TOTALING 52 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND AN SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

APPROVALS

Glenn Gebhardt Date

Cit Engineer

l I lq
Cari Ja Date

Finance &   dministrative Services Director

1- 2- g
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

2- Z' 6

Step n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

245



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3995 TOTALING 52 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RIVER

ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS,. on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS,   on August 25,   2016,   the City Community Development

Department approved a Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the
Stage 2A sub- planning area that allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for
VTM 3694 and the approval of final maps within Stage 2A; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3995, the proposed subdivision, is part of the Lakeside East

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 52 lots covered by VTM
3694,  located on the west side of the San Joaquin River,  north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

WHEREAS, in its review of Tract 3995 as part of Village T", the Stewart Tract

Design Review Committee recommended approval of Tract 3995 on September 12,
2018; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC (" RID"), has completed or has

guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3994 and Tract 3995,
as identified on the approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed
completion of all required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID
and provision of security by RID for unfinished and deferred improvements are
required prior to final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section

16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by River
Islands Development, LLC, and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure RID obligation to maintain all
improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

246



WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS, off-site improvements necessary for access to Village T" were

guaranteed with Letters of Guarantee provided by River Islands Financing Authority
on March 4, 2017, and June 26, 2018; and

WHEREAS, City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of VTM
3694 required for approval of Final Map 3995 have been met,  including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off- Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3995
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM 3694,  is technically correct, and
complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act. and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy the escrow requirements to fund the Settlement
Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for Tract 3995; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the
builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.  The City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute Final Map Tract
3995 Village " T" and is hereby approved as submitted as part of the public
record with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office.
The recorded executed copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

2.  That the City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC, in substantially
the form as attached to the December 9, 2019 staff report, the file executed

copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

247



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this
9th

day
of December 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas Salvador Navarrete

City Clerk City Attorney

248



I o

zzac
GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

V LLAG CC p

o     > 
o     ¢  

PROPOSED COMMUNITY PARK o     
J W

W
Y    .

y? 
y.} t

9 4.`, V d

SOLANO DRIVE

VILLAGE T
TqE,  RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

w '

BUCyANA z
NCOUAT

z GRINNELL COURT GRINNELL STREET WATER LILY DRIVE

w

TRACT 3995I TRACT 3994d

F U

F      '     
Z

f w
a

o

O

MIDDLEBURY DRIVE w

yw

TRACT 3994
U

W TRACT 3995
m

Q 3       . V.
MARINA DRIVE

U
U

TR    '
E S BALSAM COl1RT

C  `

j
C `\

R

couaT

ARTFORD

r r

ATTACHMENT B

VILLAGE T

VICNITY MAP
SEPTEMBER 2018

249



i

Attachment C

CITY OF LATHROP

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

River Islands (Lakeside East District) - Tract 3995 ( Village T)

River Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
9th

day of December 2019, by and between
the CTTY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")
and River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company,  ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").      

B.       At its meeting on May 15, 2017, CTTY approved the temporary closure of Cohen and
Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to construct a paved public roadway to connect any
remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston

Parkway/ River Islands Parkway intersection by August l, 2020. As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of
bond proceeds( Exhibit" G") in the amount of$ 543, 600, that is available to CTTY if SUBDIVIDER

does not meet the deadline of August l, 2020. Further, the amount of set aside bond proceeds shall

be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to replace these removed
roadways. The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be replaced, but it remains for

now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road and as emergency access. The security
referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with
this access until it is no longer necessary.

C.       At its meeting on July 9, 2018, City Council approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map
which includes the Village T area within Stage 2A of River Islands.  The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously provided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
the River Islands Public Financing Authority (" RIPFA") has guaranteed the construction of River

Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary with a set aside of bond proceeds
Exhibit" H") in the amount of$ 450, 000, that is available to CTTY if SUBDIVIDER does not meet

a September 30, 2020, deadline or as may be extended by CTTY. The security referenced in this
recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with it until River
Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted
into use by CTTY.

250



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 2

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations   ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3994 and Tract 3995. However,

SUBDIVIDER has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements

associated with Tract 3994 and Tract 3995 ( Village" T") located within the Lakeside East District

of River Islands Phase 1, which also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The
unfinished portion of improvements total $ 467, 420 and both performance and labor and materials

security is required by the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act will be
posted as outlined in this Tract 3995 ( Village" T") Subdivision Improvement Agreement. Detailed

security amounts listed below:

Unfinished Improvement Total 17, 500 ( Imp) +$ 449, 920 ( Landscape) _ $ 467,420

Performance Guarantee 467,420 x 10° Io = $ 514, 162

Labor & Materials Guarantee 514, 162 x 50°Io = $ 257,081

E.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 3994

and Tract 3995 and as noted in Recital D, security shall be required for the unfinished portion of
these improvements, along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 3994 and Tract
3995 ( Village T).  Improvement plans, and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design,
Inc., have already been approved by CITY. The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm
drainage, street light and j oint trench improvements ( hereinafter" Improvements") are substantially

completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required infrastructure for

Tract 3994 and Tract 3995 are required security as outlined in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFOI E, in consideration of CITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CTTY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,

to the limits identified on Exhibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the

CITY' s Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the
California Subdivision Map Act.       

251



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 3

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the last home constructed in Tract 3995 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 3995 associated with the filing of
Tract 3995 ( homebuilder) or prior to the completion and occupancy of the last production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 3995, or by December, 1, 2020, whichever comes first. Such occupancy
shall be documented by CTTY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most slcillful and durable manner.

5. CTTY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDNIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDNIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a
Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 232,500, equal to 10°Io of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the Village T entire area ($ 2, 325, 000) as included in the Engineer' s estimate

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F, to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the

Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be

released at the end of the one- year guarantee period provided no claims against it are then

outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recitals B and C are required

to provide access and to Tract 3995 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described

in this Agreement, as well as the " Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public

Streets and Improvements (" 2013 Agreement"), approved by CITY on September 30, 2013, the
security required by the 2013 Agreement shall remain in place for the following:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit " D" are now open to the public, and

rehabilitation is guaranteed by a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of
these streets shall be completed prior to release of security previously posted by
SUBDIVIDER.

252



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 4

8. If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or

unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CTTY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CTTY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete,  repair,  replace,  and/ or reconstruct the

Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CTTY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CTTY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security (including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair

and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499. 4, incurred by CTTY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post security to guarantee the unfinished improvements associated with Tract 3994 and Tract 3995
as included and described in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The amount of the security shall be
equal to 120% of the amount of unfinished improvements as shown in Exhibit E ($ 467,420 X

120% _ $ 560, 904 — performance security amount) as indicated in Recital D.  The corresponding
labor and materials security amount shall be 50°Io of the performance security amount ($ 560,904

X 50°Io =$ 280, 452) also as indicated in Recital D. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with
CITY' s insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above- referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising
out of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

253



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 5

13.      SUBDNIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
comtnissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDNIDER andlor SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors; agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors.  SUBDNIDER shall, at its own cost and

expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CTTY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non- performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the

negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters.  CTTY does not, and

shall not, waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER.   The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of GITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site.  SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement

have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete.   CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve the ability
to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the Improvements,

which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the provisions of an

acquisition agreement to be entered into by CTTY and SUBDIVIDER providing that CITY expects
to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes. SUBDIVIDER shall
cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

254



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 6

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvemerits are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of the SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable
hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall,  at SUBDIVIDER' s expense,  obtain and maintain all necessary
permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements.   Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction, SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3994 and Tract 3995.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed

by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.      

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents.  All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.
f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain
in full force and effect.

255



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 7

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to be performed

falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue.  In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

EXHIBITS:    
3

EXHIBIT A:  FINAL MAP - TRACT 3995 VII.LAGE" T"

EXHIBIT B:   TRACT 3995 AND VILLAGE " T" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHABII. ITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   VILLAGE " T" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT G:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE- INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA DATED MAY 4, 2017
EXHIBIT H:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE— RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA DATED JUNE 26, 2018

256



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 8

IN WTTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto' have executed this Agreement on this
9th

day of

December 2019, at,Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CTTY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:     BY:

Teresa Vargas Stephen J. Salvatore

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FO

BY:

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso

President

SUBDIVIDER"

257



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 9

EXHIBIT A

FIlO1AI MAP - TRACT 3995 ILLAGE " T"

258



TRACT 3995 R R

5,

ROP Ro

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A He PROJECTSITEN

VILLAGE T RO
y.AN

oo SE A

PP

A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, 6E NG r  z
A SUBOINSION OF PARCElS 1 THROUGH 5 OF TRACT 3994( 43 M& P 6D),   

p
9       

Cltt OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA qRqO R i
NOVEM6ER 2079 SE-      

J
720

Rp
IP

P.. 9 P
NG7N fZ7NG y 

c' a

OWNER' S STATEMENT

205  ;

5     

GRANT LINE RD

7HE UN ERSIGNE, DOES HEREBY STATE THAT 1HEY ARE 7HE OWNERS OF ALL 7HE LANO OELINEATE AND CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT
5

OEMBRACEO WITHIN 7HE EXTERIOR BOUN ARY UNE OF IHE HEREIN EMBO IEU FINAL MAP ENTITLED TRACT 3995,

RIVER ISLANUS, STACE 2A. NLLAGE T", CITY OF LATHROP, CAUFORNIA, CONSISPNG OF IEN( 10) SHEETS, 0.ND
7ERESA VARGAS, CITY 0.ERK AND CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CIiY OF LATHROP, STATE OF VICINITY MAP

WE HEREBY CONSENT TO THE PREPARAPON AN FIUNC OF 7HIS FINAL MAP IN THE OFFlCE OF 7HE COUNTY

CALIFORNIA, 00 HEREBY STAiE 1HAT THE HEREM EMBODIED MAP EN117LED' TRACT 3995, RIVEft ISLANOS,
RECORUQi OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNN, CALIFORNIA.    NOi TO SCALE

STAGE 2A, VILIAGE Y, CITY OF LATHROP, CAUFORNIA, CONSSPNC Of TEN( 10) SHEEiS, THIS STATEMENT

THE UN ERSIGNED OES HEREBY DEOICA7E TO 1HE Cltt OF LATHROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASEIAENT FOR 1HE WAS PRESENTED TO SAID CIiV COUNQL, AS PROV DED BY LAW, AT A REGUtAR MEE7INC THEREOF, HELD ON

PURPOSES OF REPAIR AND MAINIENANCE OF THE SOUND WALL FOR 7HE AREAS DES GNATED AS' WALL THE_ DAY OF 201 ANO IHAT SAID CITY COUNCIL 01 1HEREUPON 6Y

EASEMENT' AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP.    
pP, LqND Al1THORRE ITS RECOR APON, ANDUACCEPIE ONNBE LF OF7HE CITY OFELA7HROPPFOR PU6 lIC

SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT
THE UN FRSIGNED OES HEREBY RELIN UISH TO 1HE CITY OF LA7HROP ALL ABUTIERS RICHT OF ACCESS TO USE. WALL EASEMENTS, AND 7HE REUNpUISHIAENT OF ACCE55 RIGHTS TO LOTS 6, 11, 12, 17. 18, 29, 30

n{IS IAAP CONFORlAS TO TENTATIVE MAP N0. 3694 APPROVEO BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION.
L0T5 6, 11, 12, 17, 18, 29, 30 AND 45, ALONG THE LOT LWES AS INDICAIED BY 7HE SYMBOL//////// AS AND 45, ALONC THE LOT 11NE5 AS INDICATED BY THE SYMBOL///////.

SHOWN ON iHIS FINAL MAP.    
I FIIRTHER STAIE 7HAT ALL BON S AS REOUIRED BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE W77HIN MAP, IF APPIJCABLE,       

ATEO THIS     AY OF 201_.

OWNER: RNER ISLANDS EVELOPMENT, LLC, A CALIFORNIA IIMIIED IIABNTY COMPANY.     HAVE BEEN APPROVEO BY THE CITY COUNCII OF I. ATHROP ANO FlLED IN MY OFGICE.   

BY:  TERESA VARCAS
MARK MEISSNER, COMMUNIN DEVELOPMENT OIRECTOft

NFl E:   SUSAN DELL' OSSO ATE CITY CLERK AND CLERK OF 1HE CITY COUNQL OF THE CITY OF tA7HROP, COIINTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, SiAiE
CITY OF LATNROP

I7S:     PftE51 ENT OF CALIFORNIA

on o nns_ oav oF zm_   
CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT
I, GIENN GEBHAR T, HEREBY STATE iHAT I AM THE CITY ENGMEFR OF THE CITY OF LATHROP,

OL REPUBLIC TI1LE COMPANY, AS 1RUS7EE, UNOER 1HE DEED OF 1RUSi RECORDED OECEMBER 24, 2016,    CAL60RNIA AND 7HAT I HAVE E% AMWE THIS FlNAI IAAP OF iRACT 3995, RIVER ISLANDS, STACE 2A,

AS OOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- I60B86, ANU AS AMENOEU IN OOCUMENT RECOR ED DECEIABER 26, 2017 AS NLLAGE Y, CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA, AN 1HAT THE SUBOMSION SHOWN HFREON IS
DOG 2017- 150771 OFFlGAL RECOROS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY.  SUBSTANTIALLY 7HE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE YES7ING IENTAiNE MAP N0. 3694, AND ANY

APPROVED AL7ERAPONS 7HEREOF. I FUR7HFR STA7E 1HAT iH15 FlNAL MAP COMPIJES W17H ALL

BY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)     APPLICABLE OR INANCES OF hIE CITY OF LATHROP, AND ANY AMEN MENTS THFRETO, APPLICABtE AT

NAME THE 11ME OF APPftOVAL OF VfSTINC IENTAPVE MAP.

In:

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OiHER OFFlCER COMPLETING THIS CFRPFlCATE VERIFIES ONIY THE IOENTITY DAIED 1HIS DAY OF 201_

OF THE INDINOUAL WHO SIGNEO THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH 7H15 CER7IFlCATE IS AT( ACHED, AND yROfESs oN

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER' S)  
NOi 7HE IRUTHNWESS, ACCURACY, OR VAlI01TY OF 7HAT DOCUMENT Qvo, c ev4,;

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFlCER COMPLEPNG THIS CERPfICATE YQtIFlES ONLY 7HE IDEN71iY

SiATE OF CALIFORNIA     GLENN GEBHARDT, R. GE. J4681 U No. 34681 m
COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN Cltt ENGINEEft OF THE Cltt OF LATHftOP, CALIFORNIA

OF 7HE INDIVIDUAL WNO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CER71FlCAlE IS ATTACHED, AND k

NOT THE 1RUTHFULNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALI ITY OF 7HAT DOCUMENT ON 201_ BEFORE ME,      r F Of C paA NOiARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,       WHD PROYED TO

STAIE OF CALIFORNIA ME ON THE BA515 OF SAPSFACTORY EVIOENCE TO BE 7HE PERSON( S) WHOSE NAME( 5) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBm TO

COUNtt OF. SAN JOA UIN     
UTHO ZIEOICAP CM7YQE5) NAND THAB YCHS/ HER/ RIEIRTSIG AS1U E(5ONx7HE NSTRUAIENT THE P RSON( 5), OR RECORDER' S STATEMENT

ON 201_ BEFORE ME,   THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON( 5) ACiED, E% ECIITEO 7HE INS7RUMENT.

A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,    WHO PROVED TO FlLm THIS DAY OF 201 AT_ IA.

ME ON 7HE BA515 OF SATISFACTORY ENOENCE TO BE 7HE PERSON( S) WHOSE NAME( S) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO I CERPFY UNOER PENALtt OF PFAJURY UN ER 1HE LAWS OF THE STAIE OF CALIFORNIA THAT 7HE FORECOING     IN BOOK OF AIAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE AT TNE REOUES7 OF OID REPUBLIC

THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOlSLE GED TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ THEY E%ECUTED 1HE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THEIR PARA APH IS TftUE AND CORRECT.      TI7LE COMPANY.

AU7HORIZED CAPACITYQES), AND 7HAT BY HIS/ HER/ 1HEIR SIGNANRE( 5) ON hlE INSIRUAIENT iHE PERSON( 5), OR
µq7ryE5S MY HAND:       FEE:. E

THE EN11TY UPON BEHALF OF'{' MICH THE PERSON( S) ACTED, E% ECUTEO iHE INSTRUAIENT.

I CERTIFY IINDER PENALtt OF PERJIIRY UN ER 7HE IAWS Of 1HE STATE OF CALJFORNIA iHAT THE FORECOING
SIGNANRE:

PARAGRAPH IS 7RUE ANO CORRECT.
NAME( PRINT):  BY

W17NE55 MY HAND: 
PRMCIPAL COUNTY OF BUSINE55:       S7EVE BESTOlARIOES ASSISTANT/ EPUtt RECOR ER

MY COMMISSION NUMBER:    ASSESSOR- RECOROER- COUNtt 0.ERK       

MY COMMISSION E% PIRES:     SAN JOAQUIN CWNT/, CALIFORNIA

SICNANRE:    

NAME( PRINT):

PRINCIPAL COUNtt OF BUSINESS:     EXEMPT FROIA FEE PER GOVERNMENT CWE 27388. 1; DOCUMENT

MY COMMISSION NUTABER: RECOftOE IN CONNECPON W1TH A CONCURRENT iRANSFER SIIB, IECT TO

MY COIAMISSION EXPIRES: THE IIAPOSITION 0. OOCUMENTARY 1RANSFFR TA%

SHEET 1 oF 10

259



TRACT 3995
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE T

A POR710N OF RANCND EL PESCADERO, BEINC

A SUB IN90N OF PARCELS 1 THROUCH 5 OF 7RACT 3994( 43 M& P 60),    

CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNN, CALIFORNIA

NOYElA6ER 2019

SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT REFERENCES
EN GINE fZ7NG

1HIS MAP WAS PRFPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY IRECPON AND IS BASED UPON A FlELD SUR EY IN
R  

RECORD OF SIIRVEY FlLED AUGUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, PACE, 142, AS CORRECIED BY CERI1FlCAlE

CONFORMANCE' MTH THE REWIREMENTS OF THE SI18 IVISION IAAP ACT AN LOCAL OROINANCE AT 7HE            OF CORRECPON RECORDED JULY 15, 2005 AS DOCUAIENT NUMBER 2005- 171264, S. J. C. R.( 35 SURVEYS 142)

REOUEST OF RIVQ2 ISLANOS DEVELOPMENT, LLC, ON 201 I HEREBY STATE ALL 7HE
TftACT 3908, S7AGE 2A, LARGE LOT FlNAL NAP; FlLED SEPTEMBFR 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF F1AP ANU PLATS,

IAONUMENTS ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSRIONS INDICA7ED OR 7HAT 7NEY W1LL BE
RZ  PAGE 52, S. J. C. R.( 43 M& P 52)SET IN THOSE POSI710N5 BEFORE OECEMBER 31, 2023, AN THAT 7HE MONl1AlENTS ARE, OR 1HAT THEY

MLL 6E, SIIFFlGENT TO ENABLE 1HI5 SIIRVEY TO BE RETRACEO, AND THAT THIS FlNAL MAP
R7)  1RACT 3989, FlLED. NOVEMBER 2, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 54, S, J. C. R.( 47 MdrP 54)

311BSTAN7IALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONOITIONALLY APPROYED TENTATIVE MAP.    "

R4)  TRACT. 3994, FlLEO OECENBER 13, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 60, S. J.C. R.( 47 M& P 60)

DATED IHIS DAY OF 201_  

o
ANQ

RS)  1RACT. 3834, FILED DECEMBER 9, 2016, IN BOON 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 72, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 72)  .

yq{

ypN
R+,

o L
R6)  iRACT 3838, FlLED NOVFMBER 30, 2017, IN 600K 43 OF MAPS AND PIATS, PAGE 12, S. J. C. R.( 43 MhP 12)     '

o°      o n R])  TRACT 3895, FlLE JUNE 20, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF I APS AND PL1TS, PAGE 09, S. J. C. R.( 42 NhP 89)

DYIAN CRAWFORO, P. I.S. NO 7788 No.)] 08

9Tf
OF

CAUFOp
P

CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
I, LAWAQJCE GOSSETf, HER Y STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMMED THIS FlNAL MAP OF' 7RACT 3995, RIVER SIGNATURE OMISSIONS
IAANDS, STAGE 2A, NLLAGE Y, qTY Of LATHROP, CAl1FORNIA, ANO iHAT 7HE SUBDINSION SHOWN
HEREON COMPLIES W1TH ALL 7HE PRONSIONS Of CHAPIER 2 OF THE CALIFORNIA SU6DINSIQ4 IAAP ACT,    ' PURSUANT TO SEC710N 66436 F THE CALIFORNIA SUB IVISION MAP ACT, THE SIGNAlURES OF THE FOLLOYANG PARIIES
AS AIAENOED, AND 7HAT 1HIS FINAL MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.   HAYE BEEN OAIITfEU.

OATED 7HI5. DAY OF 201_ I.  RECWMED ISIANDS LWD COMPANY, RESERVAPON FOR 014 GAS, MMERALS, AND OTHER

o

epa s
a  HIDROCARBON SUBSTANCES LYING BELOW A DEPTH OF 500 FEET, PFR DOCUMENT NUMBER Z001- 046177, S. J. C. R.

e
LAWRENCE GOSSETT, P. E. 31695

No. 31fi95

f'CAU( OQa

NOTES
1.  RIGHT TO FARM STAIEMENT:

PER CITY OF LAIHROP MUNICIPAL CODE Of ORDINANCES, TIRE 15, CHAPTER 15. 48. 04, THE CITY OF LAIHROP PERMITS

OPERATION OF PROPERLY CONDUCTED AGRICULNRAL OPERA710N5 VNTHIN THE qtt LIMITS, INCLUOING iHOSE 7HAT UTIIJZE

CHEMICAL FERTILIZERS ANO PESTIGOES. YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFlEO 7HAT iHE PROPERTY YOU ARE PURCHASINC MAY BE

LOCATED CLOSE TO ACRICULNRAL LANDS AND OPERATIONS. YOU MAY BE SUBJECT TO INCONVENIENCE OR DISCOMFORT

ARISING FROM 1NE LAWfUL AN PROPER USE OF AGRICUWRAI CHEl ICALS AND PESPCIDES AND fftOM OTHER

ACRICULNRAL AC NTIES, INCW ING WI7HOUT LIMITA ONS, CUL VA710N, PLOYANG, SPRAYiNG, IRRIGA71Q4, PRUNING,  

HARVESIING, BURNING OF ACRICULNRAL WAS7E PRODUCTS, PROTECPON OF CROPS ANO ANIMALS FRON DEPREOAl10N, AND

OTHER AC11N71E5 WHICH MAY GENERAIE OUST, SMOKE, NOISE, ODOR, ROOENTS AND PESiS. BE AWARE ALSO, 7HAT 7HI5

PROPERtt MAY BE LOCAlEO A JACQJT TO AGRIWLNRAL OPERATI NS WTSIOE 7HE qTYS JURISOIC710N. CONSE011EN1LY,             

DEPENOING ON IHE LOCA710N OF YOUR PROPERTY, IT MAY BE NECESSARY THAT YW BE PRFPARED TO ACCEPT SUCH

INCONVENIENLES OR OISCOMFORT AS NORMAL ANO NECESSARY ASPECT OF LINNC IN AN AGRILIlL7URALLY ACP1 E REGION.     .

2.  A SOILS REPORT EN71TlED' GEOIECHNICAL E% PLORATION, RIYER ISLANDS PHASE 1, LA7HROP, CAl1FORNIA', REFERENCED AS

PRQIECT N0. 5044. 5. 001. 01 AND OA7ED JULY 29, 2005, HAS BEEN PREPAftE FOR THIS PROJECT BY ENCEO,

INCORPORATED, JOSEF d TOOTLE, C. E. N0. 2677, AN IS ON FlLE W11H 7HE. QiY OF LATHROP.

3.  7RAC7 3995, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, NLLACE T, CONTNNS 52 RE9 ENPAI LOTS, CONTAINING 5. 97 ACRES, lAORE OR

LE55, AS SHOYM ON 7HIS FINAL MAP.    

TRACT 3995 ApEA SUMMARY

LOTS 1 THROUGH 52 5. 97 AC2

TOTAI 5. 97 ACi

4.  BASED ON INFORMA710N CONTAMED IN 7HE PREIJMINARY PRE REPORT, OR ER NUMBER 1614021771- KB,

OATE SEPTEM6ER 19, 2U19, PRONOED BY OLO REPU9lIC 71RE COMPANY

SHEET Z OF 1 O

260



TRACT 3995
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

W

VILLAGE T

A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BE1NC

I O TRAC7 3B12 A SUBOINSION OF PARCELS 1 1HROl1GH 5 OF TRACT 3994( 43 MkP 60),
Z CITY OF LAiHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COIINiY, CAl1FORNlA

I Y NOVEMBER 2019

PAqcEL 13 PAFCEL 3

TAAC7 3800 IR21 7flAC7 3808 IA21

I SOLANO DRIVE

a= 2ioo.00'    I N--G T N E E fZ 1 N G-

e= s•oi' 3s•

i=iezsz'( n- M)( Rz) I N

O
a'   so'  ioo'      zoo'

I SCALE: 1'= 100'

R
RIVERISLANDSPARKWAY

FAST 104731'( M- M)( FI)_   I   .

I
f----------------------   -   -   -----------------------------     BOUNDARY SHEET

uo u  uz u3 i

I   / L8( R)  PARCEL 1
30

cs
C5

TRACT3994( R4)   
i

17  e ie zo zi zz aa z  zs ze z  xe ze 45 I
P I     

Rio o. ea ac Q__      7aqcT aeea wai i
NOTES

J
I    I `. 2 1'  C4----- L7--     

1. SEE SHEET 2 FOR MAP ANU EASEMENT REFERENCES AND

1     YC3(M- M)( R4)    FAS 240. 31'( M- MJ( R4)    EAST 3520tl( M- M)( R4)     ElST 260. 00'( M- M)( R4)     L3( M- M)
14

AO IPONAL NOTES.

W      
OO

oO'--  O--    OO--      O- OO
WATER LILY DRIVE 2. SEE SHEET 4 FOR LINE AN CURVE TABLES FOR SHEETS 3

GRINNELLCOURT

I I
GRINNELLSTREET      ( Ra)    I

pND 4 ONLY.

w.   ° jO_=_
l    

CI1----    L45----

Q m L44 98 47 I.    
TAAG7398B zl<      SEE DETAIL A          I , j 18 15 14 13 72 ii  "  

31 I

iA3i

i¢ n n
ON SHEET 4 I  

o Z       
IdB 96

11 Pm PARCEL5
y~    

7Flac7 ass4 S H E E T S 3 A N D 4 O N L Y)
p n o

Q
7AACT 388- 0( pAl o     U .

J

I TRACT 3994( R4) I I w IH51

I
N F e     SO       - 76

38 g>             MONUMENT PER R2
I

30
1. 82 AC

5 6 7 8 B 10 s O I¢      
a-

i I
I

1 I o I  I S
51 a, y ,         

MONUMENT PER( R4)

R4

l

T-- C9-------- L41---- e      

U      -  

o    
ad

t  J MONUMENTPER( R3)

C1( M- M)( R4)    •       Ep57

z

I F/S7 352.00'( M- M)( R4) I I
L18

I 48?   w
35 yl O MONUMENT PER( RS)

Iz I
R6

OO--

rO—

e  --
OO

I— Qi c w HOLBORN DRIVE
240. 31'( M- M)( R4)       M I D D L EB U F Y D R I V E n

Z   +-  o ¢    Z I O M O N U M E N T P E R( R 7)

37----
l2  I  ,       -- 5'     --  ' I I I 42 a

a

m 3E      ¢

I
2- I/ 2° BRASS DISK STAMPED PLS 7780' TO BE SEf PER( R3)

I'   C i ti--
s• r,    PARCEL2      ,=  U I   I 1 p 3 q           ', I I I I I  TRACT I 41           31 p' 

3/ 4` IRON PIPE WI1H CAP STAMPED' PLS 7789' PER( R4),

TRACT 3BeB lo
y I TAAC7 3e94 Ifl-01 a         3994 I

NLESS 07HFRW15E NOTES

IR31 i I      PARCEL3             2 yo

In I    2 l33 L34 L35'    PARCEL 4   `
V    `     

o     ( R4) I m

I i i TRACT 3994( R4)   
o. ei ac

z TRACT3994( R4)  i p I 3ZA      i       3a            EASEMENTS
1. 38 AC      z    

I           3B     
5 iR9 L16 PUBLIC U7ILITY EASEFIENT M FAVOR OF THE CI77 OF LATHROP

R7 Cg_'    
Z_____.

1' 30' 30'    LI5 PER 7RACT 3994, RIVER ISIANDS, STACE 2A, NL( ACE T,C7---- --- L30----  30 70  2------      

FlLE DECEMBER 13, 2018, IN BOOK 43- OF MAPS AND PlATS,
C2( M- M)       • EAST

I FAST 352.00'( M- M)( R4) I  •  EAST 455. 00'( M- M)( R4)    

rI(       
PAGE 60, SJ. C. R.

R0_,
Zq0. 31'( M- MJ( R4) r   MARINA DRIVE     —     i O OENOTES 1. 17 BRASS DISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788' ON 1 FOOT

OFFSET PFR( R4)      

I Q2 ENOTES 5/ 8' RE9AR W17H CAP' Pl5 7788" PER( R4)

I

PARGeL 5
I

7FACT 3808 IR21

I 7i
ACT 32

BASIS OF BEARINGS

7HE BEARING OF NOR1H BE7l4EEN FOIIND MONUMENTS ALONC OELL' OS50 DRIVE AS SHOWN ON

7RACT 3908( R2), STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP, flLEO SEPIEMBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43

OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 52, OFFlCIAI RECORDS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt, WAS TAKEN

AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS MAP( ZONE 3, NADB1). ALL OISTANCES SHOWN

HEREON ARE GROUNO DISTANCES.

SHEET 3 oF 1 0

261



RZ TRACT 3995
I RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

LINETABLESFORCOURSESSHOWNONSHEET53AN 40NLY I

VAb,       
VILLAGE T

11NE TABIE L1NE 7ABLE LINE iABLF LINE TABLE
37    ,

A      A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCAOQiO, BEING
PAflCEL1

A SUB IVISION OF PARCEl5 1 1HROIlGH 5 OF TRACT 3994( 43 MkP 60),
LINE OIRECTION LENGIH LINE OIREC710N LENG7H LME  IRECiION LENGTH LME DIREC710N LENCTH       .  I TRACT3994( R4)       GTY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY, CALIFORNIA

NOVEMBER 2019
L1 N2' 41' 43' E 20. 00'  L17 NORiH 245. 00'  L77 NB7' 47' 26' W 48. 82'  L49 N40' 29' S9° W 35. 74'     

L2 N6B' 09' 35' E 50. 00'  L18 EAST 100. 00'  L34 N88' 49' 17' W 48. 82'  L50 N40'29' S9' W 5, 60'      

I
P

L3 EAST 70. 00'   L19 NORM 151. 00'  L35 N89' 47' 25' W 4& 15 L51 N4931' 35' E 34. 98'

ENG1N EiZ1NG
L4 NORTH 2O. U0  L20 N45' 0 00' E 35.36'  LJ6 NOR1H 100. 50'  L52 N4931' JS' E 74. 29  

PppCEL 6 

5 EAST 20. 00'  L21 EAST 242. 00'  l37 EAST 168. 00'  I
7AACT 3ee4 IRd)

L6 NORTH 101. 00'  L22 N45' 00 00' W 35. 36'  L38 N45U0' 00' W 35. J6'

V EAST 240. 31'  L23 NORTH 151. 00'  L39 NORiH 152.00'

o I H

L8 N39' 3B' OI W 25. 21'  L24 N45U0' 00' E 35.36'  L40 N45' 00' OO E 35.76'   W R3

U

R1I

I 
L9 N}• 59' 46' E 44. 91'  L25 EAST 242: 00' ' L41 EA57 185. J1'     W o- \

OUO N49' IS' 07' E 15. 75'  L26 N45' 0' 00' W 35. 76'  L42 N40Z9' S9' W 30. 14'  

p Z
Lfl N8795' 59' W 98. 81'  L27 N45' 0' 00' W . 35. J6'  L43 NS' W' 78' E 180. 50'  

L12 N99' 30' S1' W 47. 00'  L28 NORTH 151. 00'  L44 N40' 22' S5" E 33. 58'       

z 

W
o NOTESL13 EAST 235. 00'  L29 N45' 00' 00' E 3536'  L45 EAST 185. 31'

I    "' 
w

N i. SEE SHEET 2 FOR MAP ANO EASEMENT REFERENCES AND
L14 NORIH 266. 00'  L30 EAST 185. 31'  L46 N4975' 07' E 41. 77'  PARCELS

O
A ITIONAL NOTES. '

h Q TflACT3994 fl4)       2 SEE SHEET 4 FOR LINE ANO WRVE TABLES FOR SHFETS 3L15 EAST 79. 00'   L31 NS' 07' 78" E 77.27'  L47 N4975' OYE 8. 84' AND 4 ONLY.       '

LI6 N45' 00' 00' W 29J0'  L32 N86' 41' S6' W 73. 01'  L4B N49 5' 07' E 17. 19'  
30' 

z

CURVETABLESFORCOl1RSE55HONM RADIALTABLESFOflCAURSESSHOWN

ONSHEETS3AND40NLY ONSHEETS3pND40NLY 9/J 2     -       
CURVE TABLE CURVE TABLE RADIAL L1NE TABLE

5

CURVE RADIUS DELTA LENGIH CURVE RAOIUS OELTA LENGTH LINE DIRECPON I R4
C7( M_ M)C1 2569.00 5' 07' 38  229. 81'  C13 87. 00 1572' 13'  23. 09'    R1 N5' OY39' E

I
C2 2829. 00 SU7' 38'  253. 15'  C14 50.00 24527' S2° 214. 2I'    R2 N32P 35' E MIDDLEBURY
C3 2306. 00 2' q1' 43'  108. 49'  . C15 50. 00 74' 30' 30'  65. 02'    R3 N69' 40' 09' W

DRIVE

C4 2276. 00 1" OB' S7  45. 65'  C16 53.00 91' 43' S6  84. 85'    R4 NSV7' 38' E
5.

11 R6

C5 17. 00 67' 00'36'  19. 88'  CI7 53. 00 35'46' 29'  33. 09'    R5 N3' SP' 23' E

z I
1

5`  YqAC7 3684
C6 50. 00 107' 47' 36' 94. 07'   R6 N3' S5' 33' E Iq41

C7 2799. 00 323' 42'  165. 85'  R7 N59' 21' 09' E N PARCEL D

CB 53. 00 55' S7' 27'  S1. 76'   RB NS' 07' 38' E 7aAc7 3894 labl

o y m
C9 2538. 00 332' 23'  171. 56'  R9 N3' 23' 42' E

P
C10 50. 00 63' 09 46'  S5. 12' R10 N1V8' S7' E Z

C11 2336. 00 2' q1' 43'  109. 89'  R11 N6551k9" E o N30' z „ P, ^.  

Cl2 11J. 00 151T' 13'  29. 99'          R12 N2' 41' 43' E

I
PARCEL4

TRACT3994( R4)
p^

I R7

piy.(

JCB___-   
C2( M- M) 

Re

MqRINA DRIVE

DETAIL A
NOT TO SCAIE   

FROM SHEET 3)     
f{EET 4 oF 10       ..

262



TRACT 3995
PA C6L 13 I RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

AFc L 3 VILLAGE T
YRAGY 39- 12

A PORTI N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

A SUBOINSION OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 5 OF 7RACT 3994( 43 MkP fi0),

CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAOIIIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

NOVEMBER 2019

RIVER ISLANDS PAflKWAY

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
N

E N G 1 N E+ Z 7 N G

PARCEL F PARCEL?.    

O o'   so'  too'      200'

scue: i'= ioo'

52

51
7

48 47 46 ' 17 15 19 20  ` L1 22 23 24 25 26  ' l7 28  ` LO     °     
a     -

SHEET INDEX
w     

50 49
YAAGT 3804

LLl
i

UR'  GRINNELLCOURT GRINNELLSTREET r
ti           y aaFc i s

LEGEND

38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45      

d      7 3i

o i5 15 i  io 12 i1        
9 BOUN ARY

7RAG7 u869 Z' YRAG7 8884
6 2

LOTIJNE

w 7RAc7 3334{

W ui a           5 u3 o O SHEET NUMBER

o - 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30 '    b 6 7 a 9   10        o
U    __   

y}   ¢     3 O           i/ ii// i RESTRICTED ACCESS

m V o          SHEET LIMIT LME

O     '     MIDDLEBURYDRIVE 4 *'  
m 3uU

i        1 R  

2           us
7RAc7 SBB4   '       i  

3     '  j  37
I

g   =   ' 26 27 28 29 '  '  11 10 9 8 7 6  '  '     L

TRAC7 39B9         

t  '    
4

V     $

0

a         24 23 22 21 20 19 18    12 13 14/ s ie n        5

ug

1  
j  -- - - - -+      

MARINAORIVE PARCEL C MARINAOflIVE

I         

1   

7RAC7 38u2

PARGEL u

l       '      
1

SHEET 5 oF 1 0

263



E/5T260. OU( M- M)( R4)      s

TRACT 3995 ss.00'   iso. 00' ss.00'      ss. 00' T  `'° >`R° 6
GRINNELL STREET            oi.  i o

D
j,a`

k00
i    Mi ri i  :    

i RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
F" 5', s°.° n

VILLAGE Ts. 00'    s. ao•      ' 

e             , '—

0 30. 00'   30. 00'   
A POR110N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

4 B 97 31 A SUBDIVISI N Of PARCE45 1 THROUCH 5 OF TRACT 3994( 43 M& P fi0),

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COIlN7Y, CALIFORNIA

I NOVEMBER 2019

EASI 100.OU EASi 100. OU

49 4E 32 r,      
I

N
ENG7N E EiZ1NG

EAS7 100.07 FAS 100. 00'

o      
I

N     ..       

o O 0'   20'  40'       80'     

50 6 33
r'    

sca. e i'= ao'

z"    

easr, 00. ao'      easr, 00. ao'     I LEGEND
o

MONUMENT PER( RS)

0
6' 1 4     ' 3 34

I

z

0 MONUMENT PER( R4)     
z    

m S I m
MONUMENT PER( RS)

FAST 100. 00'      FAST t00.Od

F,           r, MONOMENT PER( R7)    

10' P. U. E. Q1 c     c 
w .

MIDDLEBURY I a a 2- 1/ 2 6RA55 DISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SEf PER( R3)
1 43 F r-    

3       
I   DRIVE 4, 700 S. F.      a,     

z

O
FOUND 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PIASTIC PLUG° PLS 7788' PER( R4),

FAST 100. 00'      FAST 100. 00'     CA
UNLE55 OTHERWiSE NOTED

Q p SET 3. 00' WIME55 CORNER( W. C.), UNLE55 OTHERYASE NOIED, MEASURED

J ALONG LOT LINE, RA IAL LINE OR PERPENOICULAR TO STREET CENTERLINE

W o I O
iy,     

AS NOTED. 3/ 4° x 24' IRON PIPE W/ PLASPC PWC' Pl5 7788'
W I 2 V

I      I 4,700 S. F. 
S2 36 I 0

R1)    DENOlES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE IJST ON SHEET 2
N

W   '  I

p•    

W I M- M)   MIXJUMENT i0 MONUMENT
W__

EAST 100. OU FAST 100. 00'  O

Q B).     BOUNDARY

W o i m     m T)     TOTAL

W
I-      d I 4, 700 S. F. 41 u7

I
P. U. E.   PUBl1C U7ILITY EASElAENT

I I W. C.    WIINESS CORNER
ElST 100. Oa            FAST 100. 00'       

LOT LINE
30. 00

v o i
RIGHT- OF- WAY 11NE

U I      I
4 9 eouNoaRr

I
4, 700 S. F.   

I n   . W/  EASEMENT IJNE

I EAST 100. 00'      FASI 100. 00'  h'f  ,.'$  

CENTERLINE

I
2.

I 30. 00'     
RESTRICiEO ACCESS

I o
OO

3
8 I           TRAC7

EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE SHEEi 3
u^+ I u6'}

5
n

DENOTE5 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788'       -

1       
7, 580 S. F. B o b     

OO '    
ON 1 FOOT OFFSET PER( R4J

30. 00  
I!       

r

ryL, 

R
DO'    1d

6       5     
OO OEN07ES 5/ B' R AR IN1H CAP" PLS 7788' PER( R4)

C
s

J`   

FA4 79. OU     I
EA51 100. OU      `

ry
deg3./ e' 48? L=

2  
I

NOTES
rfst a3o. 00'       i

ol        ol 1. 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCRETE
N

o SEE ETAIL e o       

n

SI EWALI( 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONC PROLIXJCAPON OF
ON SHEET 10 SIDE LOT LMES, OR AS NOTEO.ss. 00' __ 3 0. 00'  o. ao•     y-(       _

EfST 455. 00( M- M)( R4)  M 2. 5/ B' ftEBAR WITH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

CORNFRS, UNlESS OTHERWISE NOTEO.

MARINA DRIVE 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOITIONAL NOlES AND REFERENCES.

4. SEE SHEET 3( OR BASIS OF BEAftINCS.

5. SEE SHEET 10 FOR IJNE AND CURVE TABLES.

I
PAaCEL 5

I
7FAC7 9D8.  

I I SHEET 6 oF 10

264



o
T35zoo M_ M> R<,   _

o TRACT 3995
GRINNELLSTREET RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE T

I A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

A SU9 NISION OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 5 OF TRACT 3994( 43 AI& P 60),

Cltt OF LATHROP, SAN JDAOUIN COIINTY, CALIFORNIA

NOVEMBER 2019

I 16 15 14 13 i2 ii

N ENG1NE i 1NG

ol lo

O
o.   2a..

scw. E: t.= ao.

raacr ee-,     LEGEND

I MONIIMENT PER( R3)

b 5 7 B 8 10
MONUMENT PER( R4)

MONUMENT PER( RS)

J IAONl1MENT PER( R])

m 2- I/ 2' BRA55 DISK STAIAPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET PER( R3)

W j FOUND 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLAS7IC PLI1C' PLS 7788 PER( ft4),
W w        UNLESS O7HERWISE NOiEDEAST J52. 00'( M- M)( R4)

55. 00'    242. 00'   55. 00'        SET 7. 00' W171JES5 CORNER( W. CJ, I1NLE55 OTHERWISE NOIED, IAEASURED
w

ol I o w ALONG LOT LINE, RAOIAL LINE OR PERPENDICULAR TO S7REET CENTERtINE

oi
MIDDLEBURY DRIVE AS NOTE. 3/ 4° v 24' IRON PIPE W/ PLASTIC PWG' PLS 7788"

I EqST 242. OU I R7)    OENOTES REFERENCE( R1)-$ EE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

0

o

avi
27. 00'    47. 40'      47. 00'      47. 00'      47. 00'    27. 00'   

r ---------'  
2 I M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

30. 00 i J0. 00'       B)     BOUNDARY
y    

T)     TOTAL

I s    `          
P. U. E.   PUBLIC UPLITY EASEMENT

I          Q 9 4. 9145. F.

o A, 914 SF.  q, 7pq S. F.   4,724 S. F.      B     4, 724 S. F.    
r           W. C.    1577NE55 CORNER

W^     
0 4, 724 S. F.    

LOT LME
n

5' P. LLE. 00 W RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE

0 i Q
BOUN ARY

EAST EA51 EAST EAST EAST EAST    _     

W
I

52. 00'       47. OD'      47. 00'      47. 00'      47. 00'       S2. 00'  I F   
I

F
EASEMQJi UNE

o I Q CEN7ERLINE
Q   O

o

z/

1
13 z U RESTRIC7ED ACCE55

q 4, 724 SF.       OI EASEMENT ftEFFRENCE NOMBER- SEE SHEET 3

I
Z          O     ' I4      5      6

I
OENOTES 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPEU" Pl5 7788

4, 914 S. F,   p p 4, 724 S. F.  4, 724 S. F.  4, 724£ F.  z 4, 914 S. F.^    O ON 1 FOOi OFfSET PER( R4)
w

o

r<

z

o 0

a  O QQ     ENOlES 5/ 8' REBAR WI7H CAP' PLS 7788' PER R41 5' P. LLE    .    
o

ao. 00'   o. 00'

i x  ---------— ----- ----- ---------- `       i NOTES
zzoo•    azoo'      azoo•      azoo'      azoo'    szoo'

I EAST 242. OU i 1. 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPE' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCRETE

ol I o SIOEWALN 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF-
o   

n

SIDE LOT LINES, OR AS NOTEO.

O
55. 00'_ _  242. 00'       _ L_ 55. 00'   

OO—       z CORNERS, AUNLE 5 O7HERW15E7NOTED. O 6E SET AT ALL REAR LOT
EASi J52. 00'( M-! A)( R4)    

SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDIiIONAL NOTES AND RFFERENCES.

MARINA DRIVE 4. SEE SHEET 3 fOR BASIS OF BEARINGS.

5. SEE SHEET 10 FOft 11NE ANO NRVE TABLES.

aFc i s

raacr aeos

SHEET 7 OF 1 O

265



NO2' 41' 43' ER   ; SEESHEET9 TRACT 3995N65' S1' 29' E( R)

s1,; Po' rs= zaoa. 00•   asT z'°. 3,'"'-" p R"    

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A2,
Y Sz•  n=s• araa'= roe. ae•(M= M) a 0-- ias. ar I- se.00-

I       ' \
c,   i NO2' 41' 43' ER

lo GRINNELLCOURT io VILLAGET
s i

R= 2336- 0' G= 2' 41' 43' L= fa9. 89' T) I"'      FAST 185. 31'( T)       

C6   7 C8 C9  •      
A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

0

AFGEL E
17_} I'__ 47. 00'__ _ 47. 00'__ _ 47_00__  27. 00'          

I A SUBDIVISION OF PARCELS 1 7HROUCH S. Of TRACT 3994( 43 MhP 60),

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNN, CALIfORNIA

g
o

W 30. 00' I   NOVEMBER 2019

N
o o

n

1o_ 
o

0 0

Z    
a. esa9s. v.  "  

41 42      43      44   45

j  a 3B p v 4. 846 S. F.   a 4,B09 S. F.   4, 747 S. F.   4,747 S. F.  4,747 S. F. p 4,940 iF. b            
Q

V'    

n 5, 9BOS. F. i u'     
ENGIN EEf{1NG

W       N
7, AC7 3flB9 o z

n N87' 32' 74" W zN88' 41' 44' W.   N89' 45' S9'

Wz
Z,Fi3)          

m li     - N86' 23' 23' Y! _ qg, p       49. 0J'       48. 28'       EAST EASi EAST EAST O scus: i'= ao'O I 55. 04' g,gg• `    qg p• ~    azoo'      azoo'      azoo'      azao'       s2. ao'  I      5. 35'       
3 32•

I
1. 28'

LEGEND

4, 747 S. F. o A10N MENT PER( R3)

I      ^  
6, 06975. F.       

3fi w 35 34       33      32 3   
I

IAONIIMENT PEft( R4) .

30.       N 4, B49 S. F.  - 4, 849 S. F.  ,' 4, 812 SF.   4. 747 S. F.   4,747 S. F. O         4, 940 S. F.

n

I
7       

a MONUMENT PER( RS)

05' P. U. E.
30. 00' 70NUMENT PER( RI)

L_--
I       ( J___ C73

z

Cl2    ------  ----- ------------   2- 1/ 2' BRA55 DISK STAIAPEO° PLS 77BB' TO BE SET PER( R3)
QI C10 17. 31'   47. 00'      47. 00'      47. 00'    27. 00'

R= 25J8. 00 p= 3' S2' 23" L= 17156' T I EAST 185. 31( T)       I FOUND 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLASPC PWG° PLS 7788 PER( R4),I N0352' 23' E R ol I o UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOiED

i
MIDDLEBURYDRIVE

I
FASi 240. 31'( M- M)( R4)       

I' W SET 3. 00' YAME55 CORNER( W. CJ, UNlE55 O7HERWISE NOIED, MEASURED

NS' 07' 38° E( R)   
R= 2568. 00' 4= 5' 07' 38" L= 229. 81'( M- IE R4     - 55. 00'-     

A ONG LOT LINE, RA IAL LME OR PERPEN ICULIR TO SiREET CQJTERIJNE
185. 31'       

AS NOTED. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE W/ PLASTIC PWC' PLS 7788"
N0355' 33' E R o       

W
1    ol    ( In R1)    ENOTES REFERFNCE( RI)- SEE RffERENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

R= p59B. 00' d= 3' S5' S3' L= DB. Of T)       " I . r--'
EAST 1fi8. 00'( B) 185. 31'( n iy hI     `

9'}

p6A
C25

Zfi C28  L21 47.00      47. 00'      47. 00'    27. OD'   
M- M).  MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

I       
ry

7A/ aGY u60( R$)    

E _   

NI --' 
B)     BOUNUARY

14.29'  
i 30. 00

T)     TOTAL

I

n

o
OO 5' P. U. P. U. E.   PUBLIC U7NTY EASEMENT

r
j 2 3

O   2]    
f

28 29
W.C.    WI7NE55 CORNER

N     26    
4, 724 S. F.  4, 724 S. F.   4, g14 SF,            LOT L1NE

YP,ACT o988
4J24 S. F.

W           RIGHT-0E- WAY 11NE

1A3    I 2     •   .  eouNoaev

NB7' 47'26 W N89' 49' 37' W N69' 4Y25' W 0
EASEIAENT L1NE

0 1n ry ^ N86' 41' S6' W 7J. 01' . _ 48. 82'( n , - 48. 82'(»     48. 15'( T) ,.    EAST       EAST EAST EAST         `   

zIN   
P 2   44.03' O CENTERIJNE1 45.85' y   47. 00'   O 47. 00'      47. 00"      47. 00'       52. 00'           W

4. 79'       2. 97'     SEE ETAIL D
i

N iii// i//////
ON SHEET 10 r Q

RESiRIC7ED ACCE55

2 1
z   QI EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE SHEET 3       .

I
0 9, 724 S. F.  o o DENOlES 1. 17' BRA55 ISK STAIAPEU" PLS 7788°

Q5 24 20 19       18        
I OO

ON I FOOT OFFSET PER( R4)

I 7J34 S. E.      ,? 4, 815 S. F.  4, 915 S. F.   a 4, 782 SE 4, 724 S. E  4, 724 S. F.   4, 914 S. F.     02 OENOTES 5/ 8' REBAR YATH CAP' PLS 7788' PER( R4)     C24 N5921' 09' E R n on
c

z z

0 0 o
a

z

z

i  `
z

e      
I

o. 00• NOTESof

1 1 17" BRA55 DISK STAlAPm' PLS 7788' TO BE 5 T ONCi6 CIS C14 17. 31'   47. 00'

1

47. 00'      47. 00'    27. 00'   
I E CONCRETE

NO3' 23bYE R R- Z199. 00 A- 3' 23' 42" L= 165. 85' T I EAST 195. 31'( T)       I SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO 7HE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF

oI I o
SIDE LOT lINES, OR AS N01EU.

I 0
2 5/ B' REBAR INTH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

CORNERS, UNLE55 O7HERR SE NOIED.    

O__
185.31'   _ 55. 00_

O_        3_ SEE SHEET 2 FOR AO ITIONAL NOIES AND REFERQJCES.N05V7' 38' E R R= p829. 00' d= 5' 07' 39' L= 253. 15' M-T CL N7%)   E0.5T 240. 3f( M- M)( R4)   4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BA95 OF BEARINGS.

5. SEE SHEET 10 FOR LINE AND LURVE TABLES.

MARINA DRIVE

PAF, C L 5

7RAC7 3808

SHEET  OF 1 O

266



TRACT 3995
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE T

A PORTION OF ftANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

A SUBOINSION OF PARCELS 1 THftOUGH 5 OF TRACT 3994( 43 MAP 6),
CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOA UIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

NOVEMBER 2019

N
ENG7N Ei 1NG

I

O a'   zo'  ao'       eo'R= 2100. 00' 6= 5' 0I' 38' L= 187_ 92'( IA- M) R2)    FAST 1047. 31'( M- M)( R2)
SCOlE: I'= 40'

I NOS' 07' 38' E( R)       

i
LEGEND

I
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY 7 MONubErvT aea( ea)

N0322' 35' E R PARC"cL A OO MONUAIENT PER( R4)

04, MONUMENT PER( RS)

p. h     '
19 N87' 75' S9' W N89' 3' 51' W•  FJST 2J5. 00'( B) 971. 00'( T)

akq ,-----------  -- --_ ____—      

20. 00.     
IAONUMENT PER( R7)

77. 00' 3' BY 3' W. G 98. BI       47. 00'      47. 00'      47. 40'      47. 00'      47. 00'      47A0'
7RAC7 SBBB 15. 75'      

3' WALL 3' BY 3' I 2-/ 2 BRASS DISK STAIAPED' PLS 77BB' TO BE SET PER( R3J
IR31 J' BY 3' W. C.    

EASQAENT W. C.
3 WALL B. B4' 52 FOUND 3/ 4' IR N PIPE W/ PLASPC PWG PLS 7788 PER( R4),
EASEMENT  

LIS
7. 997 S. F.   '

o SO    
o I

iti UNLESS OTHERKISE NOTED

4. 747 SF.      
3' BY 3' W_G H i o 0 0 w SEi 3. 00' W17NE55 COftNER( W. C.), UNLE55 OIHERK1SE NOIED, MEPSIIREO

51  .-   49    —  48    _  47      46     ;      17 13

oI
107' 47'  

z

O I c.       
ALONC LOT LINE, RA IAL LME OR PERPENOICULAR TO SIREET CENiERLiNEm  

K  p=   J6'
L`      N 4. 872 S. F. a x 4. 747 S. F.  x 4. 747 S. F.    4. 747 S. F.    4. 747 S. F.

1,   y2
L= 21, Z

90\    I Q AS NOTED. 3/ 4' K 24' IRON PIPE W/ PLASnC PLUG' PLS 7788'

J  ' L
4 

T        SEE OETAII C
m     '

L°
5

z

ON SHEET 10              TRACT v004 IFl4J R1)    ENOTES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE UST ON SHEEf 2
n     ..

w
0 3' WALL_„ J

m      N       
hElft     __ 

531.   ____ 

z

EASEIAENT M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUIdENT

zl
o

N68p9 /  `—     
e BOUNDARYCIB 47. 00'       47. 00'      47. 00'       47. 00'      47. 00'    20. 00'      

5     
o 

C3( p io FASi 24 31'( B) 860. 99'( T)

r GRINNELL STREET T)     TOTAL

w
N6531' 29' E R

I  ol I n P. U. E.   PUBLIC U7NIY EASEUENT

C3P EpST P40. 31'( M- MJ( R4)      
O

FAST 352. OU( M- M)( R4)I
i d- 2' 41' 43' L= M- IA) R

O—— T—     
W. C.    YATNE55 CORNER

C        23 6. OU' I I
3    ` GRINNELL COURT w o    

o E

I q '       \         NO2' 41' 4TER I z RIGHT-0E- WAY UNE

SEE SHEET 8 a o BOIIN ARY

I EASEMENTLJNE

LFNiERLINE

RESiRIC1ED ACCE55

QI EASEMENT REFFRENCE NUNBER- SEE SHEET 3

O
DENOTES 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788'

ON 1 FOOi OFFSEf PER( R4)

02 OENOTES 5/ 8' REBAR YA7H CAP' PLS 7788' PER( R4)

NOTES

7. I. 17' BRA55 ISN STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

9DE4lALN 1. 00' INTO 7HE RIGHT- 0E- WAY, ALONC PROLONGA710N OF

SI E LOT LINES, OR AS NOIED.

2. 5/ B' RFBAR ri11H CAP' PLS 7) 88 TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

CORNERS, UNLE55 O7HERYnSE NOTED.

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AD IPONAL NOIES AND REFERENCES.

4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR 8ASI5 OF BEARINGS.

5. SEE SHEET 10 FOR lME AN CURVE TABLES.

SHEET 9 oF 10

267



o u G o m
g

z z   _           o
a a a a _  

e o 0 0 o e o 0 0 0 0 0 9

E    F g f f E f    ' s    ` f D

y

SnO

r

O

g

m o i. i r.di           m n m m e o d o m e t r

9

GC]
2

OZ

CHOATE STREET

NORm a, a. 00'( n

yqa  •

CA

a'

4°°
6t

1.

ao. 00' 

N

a

a
0 0   ----   N o 0

o
NORn e. 00'

N
n            

A

b

n      

m n Z N01' 21' 42° E 101. 00' 0°  mv

c   0
o s
3

o'
v

E i

00
OZy N0039' 17' E( R) 100. 50'

r
P

a

N0037' 49' E( R) 100. 51'- f 5      J

o a C
m

z        g    ° 7
9No  <_

Z       __  on .
fi
fi

m

Z

e

n  DCO

mUl
R,. n 9    D

O

0T
L

0

268



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 10

EXHIBIT B

TRACT 3995 AND VILLAGE " T" AREA

269



I
I

ZZQC7
GARDENFARMSAVENUE

o 

6

V LLAG CC
W

o     >  o     ¢
PROPOSED COMMUNITY PARK o z

a`  i J 1

SOLANO DRIVE

lqF,  RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
VI LLAG E T

BUCHqNqNCOURT TRACT_3995'    TRACT 3994

Z GRINNELL COURT GRINNELL STREET WATER LILY DRIVE

w
p w. T

TRACT 3995      ,.    }     
TRACT 39940

w

MIDDLEBURYDRIVE
u

TRACT 3994  '      ;     o ir f TRACT 3995  =        A ' T „
m

w.           .  

MARINA DRIVE

OU
U
2

ES
R   '

BALSAM COURT

T
Q        W

y          
r       

COURT r

aJ

L

fY
ARTFORD  ' 1Q

bJ.)

EXHIBIT "B"

VILLAGE T

VICNITY MAP
NOVEMBER 2019

270



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 11

EX IIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1.       The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to

do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no

less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage

liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and $ 2,000,000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement

Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that  " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary

insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or

self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 30)
days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be

included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d.       The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.      

271



Page 1 0£ 2

DATE( MM/ DD/ YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIe4BILITI( INSURANCE i i2o 9

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AMD CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURAIVCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUIPIG INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT      -
NAME:

Willis Towers Watson Insurance Services West, Inc. fka Willis PHONE
1- 677- 945- 7378

FAX 1- 888- 467- 2378
Insurance Services of California, Inc.    AIC No Ext:      A/ C No:

E- MAIL
c/ o 26 Century Blvd qDDRESS: certificates@willis. com

P. O. Box 305191
INSURER( S AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA
INSURERA: United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED
INSURERB: Starr Surplus Lines Insurance Company 13604

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330 INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: wis9see 9 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITSLTR INSD WVD POLICYNUMBER MMlDDIWYY MM/ DD/ YYYY

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE  OCCUR
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES Ea occurrence    $

p'     
MED EXP( Any one person)    $

ATN—SF1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021
pER50NAL& ADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER:   GENERALAGGREGATE      $ Z 000, 000

POLICY jE   LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OPAGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANYAUTO BODILYINJURY( Perperson)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED
BODILY INJURY( Pe accident) $

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLALIAB X OCCUR EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000
A

X EXCESSLIAB
CLAIMS- MADE

BTN1814514W 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021
AGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTIVE E. L. EACH ACCIDENT S
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N A

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE 5
If yes, describe under

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

B Excess Liability 1000024047 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 Each Occ/ Agg:  7, 000, 000. 00

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

RE: RIVER ISLANDS - Tract 3995 Village " T"

The City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents
as Additional Insureds as respects the General Liability policy.   The insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall
be primary insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self- insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in excess of the

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION . DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City' of Lathrop
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

O 1988- 2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sR I: 18855763 saTce: 1466914

272



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

A!       ADDITIONA L REMARKS SCFIEDUL. E Page 2 of z

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED

uis x n w, c, ee: d e so, v o. we , o. n. a wissis: o. a: orn e, oe vievaa., m.
River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd

POLICY NUMBER Lathrop, CA 95330

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     2`'      FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any loss as respects the insureds

operations.

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)   O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 18855763 BATCH: 1466914 CERT: W13938879

273



POLICY NLJMBER: ATN- SF 1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CG 2010 07 04

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEIES OR

CONTIZACTORS - SCHEDUL D PEIZSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Or anization s :  Location s Of Covered O erations

City of Lathrop As Required By Written Contract, Fully Executed Prior To
its officers, City Council, boards and commissions The Named Insured' s Work

and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or " property
additional insured the person( s) or organization( s) shown in damage" occurring after:
the Schedule, but only with respect to liability for " bodily 1 All work, including materials, parts or equipment
injury",  " property damage"  or  " personal and advertising    rnished in connection with such work, on the project( other than

injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:       service, maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or on behalf
1 Your acts or omissions; or ofthe additional in- sured( s) atthe location ofthe covered

2 The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf; 
operations has been completed; or

2 That portion of" your work" out of which the injury or      __
in the performance of your ongoing operations for the damage arises has been put to its intended use by any person or
additional insured( s) at the location( s) designated above.   organization other than another contractor or subcontractor

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional engaged in performing operations for a principal as a part of the
insureds, the following additional exclusions apply: same project.

CG 2010 07 04 O ISO Properties, Inc., 2004 Page 1 of 1

274



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party' s Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the . Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional. insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 1.0 07 Page 1 of 1

275



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in

SECTION III = LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than. nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Oraanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

276



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 12

EXHIBIT D

COHEN/ PARAI) ISE/5TEWART REHABILITATION 1VIAP

277



of

r   x i tf     
t,   ,    :. r. .     

t t"  .   a^ a ,
x '  ,>

ad r         .      

j       .  -    —.     e

4

r

a
r

H

7,   
v

r

c-
x"

j

6

f,. 
R     ,   '.          

t
s   

r t   `     t

a

r

4  _      .     _  

rornr, wr+ m

f
nisounierv aeEHu    .a

PROJF. GTFNEA

n`     

1--` 

i x.<-,        ''   . e- v._.:    d
t'     :  1- 

i

ti        

t              

e,-          ,    

h

w

i      ;      
s

e  

t„     '.    t    r _ r_  .      
t.    t

t. ,...,     .   

E,     x. a_ 

4_  

r..:.. ._      „

e

LEGEND

ROADWAY TO BE FULL REPAIRED, PAVED AND OPEN TO GENERAL PUBLIC
L"X H I B I T D

1 ROADWAYTOBEREPAIREDASALL- WEATHEREMERGENCYVEHICLEACCESSONLY
R f UWAY RL'HABILITATION EXHIBIT

COMMUNITYATSOUTH RIVERBENDPROJECTAREA
I/// '

11,\     nl V 1%R ISLtllVLS

J- 1 

TY' OF L41} fAOP SA. V 101QCIC COIT' TY GU. 60R\ 7A

e nnn    ...  _.

278



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 13

EXHIBIT E

UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

279



ENGINE£ ft1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE November. 18, 2018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25502- 94

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2A

VILLAGE T( 103 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description uantity Unit Unit Price Amount

LANDSCAPE

1 Gnnnell Court( Lot 38- 52) 4, 100 SF    $ 8. 00  $   32, 800. 00

2 Middlebury Drive( Lot 6- 11& Lot 26- 37)    5, 970 SF    $ 8. 00  $,  47, 760. 00

3 Marina Drive( Lot 5& Lot 12- 25)   5, 320 SF    $ 8. 00  $   42, 560. 00

4 Choate Street( Lot 1- 6& 17)      3, 350 .  SF    $ 8. 00  $   26,800.00

5 Masters Drive( Lot 18, 29, 30, & 45)       4, 450 SF    $ 8. 00  $   35,600.00

6 Parce/ A 11, 440 SF    $ 8. 00  $   91, 520. 00

7 Parcel8  ,     13, 340 SF    $ 8. 00  $  106, 720. 00

8 Parce/ C .       2, 310 SF .  $ 8. 00  $   18, 480. 00

9 Parcel D 1, 490 SF    $ 8. 00  $   11, 920. 00

10 Parcel E 2, 450 SF    $ 8. 00  $   19, 600. 00

11 Parcel F 2, 020 SF    $ 8. 00  $   16, 160. 00

Subtotal Landscape $  449, 920. 00

STREETIMPROVEMENTS

1 Signing and Striping( o% Completion)     1 LS    $   17, 500. 00  $   17, 500. 00

Subtotal Streets  $   17, 500. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE  $  467, 420. 00

Notes

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractors cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents for Village T.

6200 STONERiDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE"330,' PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925.223. 8346 • F: 209: 5712466

T:125502- River Islands\ Phase 94- Village TIEXCEL1Cost Estimate\ Cost To Complete 2078- 09- 04 Village T Bond Estimate. xis\ Improvements

280



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3995

Page 14.

EXHIBIT F

VILLAGE" T" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

281



C7  - LL

NG1 N{{ 1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE March 7, 2018

VILLAGE T( 103 LOTS)    Job No.: 25502- 94

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 277, 800 SF    $    0. 45  $ 125, 010. 00

2 3" AC Paving 30, 100 SF    $    1. 50  $  45, 150. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 119, 500 SF    $    2. 25  $ 268, 875. 00

4 6" Aggregate Base 30, 100 SF    $    0. 90  $  27, 090. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 119, 500 SF    $    1. 20  $ 143, 400. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       3, 930 LF    $  15. 00  $  58, 950. 00

7 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion) 4, 840 LF    $   15. 00  $  72, 600. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 43, 500 SF    $    5. 00  $ 217, 500. 00

9 Driveway Approach 103 EA    $ 600. 00  $  61, 800. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 19 EA    $       2, 500. 00  $  47, 500.00

11 Survey Monuments 13 EA    $ 300. 00  $   3, 900. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 5, 320 LF    $    5. 00  $  26, 600. 00

13 Dewatering ( budget)     5, 320 LF    $  40. 00  $ 212, 800. 00

Subtotal Street Work 1, 311, 175. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins( type A inlet)    26 EA    $       2,400. 00  $  62,400. 00

15 Catch Basins( type A inlet overtype I manhole base)   7 EA    $       2, 800. 00  $  19, 600. 00

16 Catch Basins ( type A inlet over type ll manhole base)   7 EA    $       5, 000. 00  $  35, 000. 00

17 Field Inlet 2 EA    $       1, 200. 00  $   2, 400. 00

18 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 330 LF    $  34. 00  $  45, 220. 00

19 18" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 120 LF    $  46. 00  $  51, 520.00

20 24" Storm Drain Pipe 640 LF    $  65. 00  $  41, 600. 00

21 30" Storm Drain Pipe 260 LF    $  80. 00  $  20, 800. 00

22 36" Storm Drain Pipe 520 LF    $  95. 00  $  49, 400. 00

23 42" Storm Drain Pipe 240 LF    $ 120. 00  $  28, 800. 00

24 Manholes ( type I)      4 EA    $       3, 000.00  $  12, 000. 00

25 ConnecttoExisting 3 EA    $       1, 700. 00  $   5, 100. 00

26 Stub& Plug 2 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 375, 840. 00

SANITARY SEWER

27 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 3, 600 LF    $  28. 00  $ 100, 800. 00

28 Manholes 15 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  60, 000. 00

29 Sewer Service 103 EA    $ 600. 00  $  61, 800. 00

30 Plug& Stub 2 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

31 Connect to Existing 3 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $   9, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 233, 600. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 9d568 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F.209.571. 2466

T: 125502- River Islands\ Phase 94- Vllage T\ EXCEL\ Cost Estimate 2018- 03- 07 Stage 2B Vllage T Engineer' s Estimate.xlsx\VILLAGE T

282



NG7NE{{ 1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

32 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) 4,640 LF    $  32. 00  $ 148, 480. 00

33 Water Plug& Stub 2 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

34 Water Service 103 EA    $       2, 000. 00  $ 206, 000. 00

35 Fire Hydrants 9 EA   $       4, 000. 00  $  36, 000. 00

36 Connect to Existing 3 EA   $       4, 000. 00  $  12, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 404, 480. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $       2, 325, 000. 00

COST PER LOT $  22, 573. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANT N, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209. 571. 2466

T:\ 25502- River Islands\ Phase 94- Vllage TIEXCEL\ Cost Estimate12 01 8-03- 07 Stage 2B Village T Engineer' s Estimate. xlsx\ VILLAGE T

283



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 15

EXIiIBIT G

RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE - INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN THE

STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA DATED MAY 4, 2017

284



RIVER ISLAND5 PUBLIC FiNANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CAUFORNIA 95330

TEL: ( 209} 87g-7 0

May 4, 20I7

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
Ciry of Lathrop
39U Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, Califomia 95330

Subject: Letter of Gnarantce- Construction of Interim Public Access within the River

Islancis at Lathrop Stagc 2A Devclopmcnt Arca

This Letter of Guarantee is bein madc in lieu of a performance bond for the construction of an

interim public access( public right of way} within the Stage 2A development area of the River
Islands development project. River Islands Development, LLC{" RID") has reyuested the

permanent closure of Cohen Road from Stage I to Paradise Road and Paradise Road from
Stewart Road to the Stage 2A levee ( see Exhibit" A" attached to this Letter of Guarantee}. This

closure wouid aElow the construction of the Stage 2B levee system. The closure wilI not allow

public traffic ta utilize Paradise Road to access the Ri er Islands development area while the

construction of the Stage 2B levee is occurring, but still allow emergency vehicles access to the
area via all- weati er access roads.

RID pians to conswct River Islands Parkway from its eurrent terminus in Stage 1, through the
Stage 2A developmen area and into Stage 28 and reconstruct Paradise Road within Stage 2B to

restore public access to the project from the Tracy/ Banta area Until these roads are constructed
and dedicated to the City.for public. use, the City is requiring security to restore public access to
Paradise Road should RID fail to perform. We are pmviding you this Letter of Guerantee for
this purpose.

The engineer' s estimate as provided by Q' Dell Engineering for a 28- foot-wide paved roadway,
equivalent to existing Cohen Road, in the eneral alignment of proposed River Islands Parkway
from Stage 1 to Paradise Road through Stage 2B is$ 453, 000( See fixhibit" B"). The total length

of this" guarantee roadway" is 6, 1501inear feet. As a result, the Authority hereby agrees to set-
aside funds in the amount of 543, 604, which amount is equal to 120% of the engineer' s

estimate, in- lieu of a performance bond. The funds are currently held, and wiU be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December I,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmin ton Trust, National Association, as fiscal agent. The
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16,? 015, between the Autharity
and the City ailows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, including roadways,

Under the terms of this Letter of GuaranEee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until August 1, 2020, or until such time that permanent roadways are

285



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
Ciry of Lathrop
May 4, 2Q17
Page 2 of 3

constructed and dedicated to the City to restore permanent public access to Paradise Road,
whichever comes first. If the permanent roadways are not constructed, insgected and accepted

by the City by August 1, 2020 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no later
than Augvst 2, 2020, the Authority will cause one of the following to oceur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Irnprovement Fund to construct a 28-
foot-wide paved roadway in a new alignment, equivalent to the existing Cohen Road or,
to reconstruct the existing 28- foot-wide paved Cohen and Paradise roadways in the
original ali nment at the City' s direction. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadways necessary to restore access are constructed, inspected
and operational, not to excced Decemher 31, 2020-.

2.       The Authariry shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies tv the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used soleEy for construction or reconstruction of the applicable
roadways. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to complete the
construction of the roadways. Once permanent access has been constructed to the

satisfaction of the City Engineer, and all costs related thereta have been paid, the City
shall return any of the unspent funds and any investment earnin s thereon to the
Authority for redeposit to the Improvement Fund. Until the completion of the roadways
and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain records as to the
reinvestment of the funds provided to it, and will provide the Authority with its secords as
to any such investment earnings upon written request of the Authority. Additionally, in
the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds provided to the Ciry
aze nat sufficient to pay all of the costs associated with the roadways necessary to restore
public access, and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the Authority
will advancc funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of the shortfall.
In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the Ciry will pravide to the
Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction of the remaining roadway
work necessary to restore public access.

3.       Since the construction of roadways within Stages 2A and 2B are phased and will continue

to be constructed by RID, RD 2062 or the Authority over time, the Authority may request
a reduction in the amount of funds necessary to be held & om the Impravement Fund as

segments of permanent public roadways are constructed and dedieated to the City. For
instance, segments af River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A should be completed in
late 2017/ early 2018 and dedicatian of this segment would reduce the amount of security
described herein. As a result, a reduction of$ 88. 40 per I,P($ 43, 600/6, i 50 LF) shall be

ranted for each linear foot permanently constructed and dedicated to the City.

The Authoriry shall reiain the discretion to choose between the two options outlined above as the
applicable security and to request reduction of the security as described in section 3 bove. As
confirtnation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the

286



Glenn Gebhardt, Ciry Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 20l 7
Aage 3 of 3

C ty, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page. Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at( 209) 879- 79Q0.

5incerely,

By: 
Herb Moniz, Execut v Director

River Islands PubEic Fi ncing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Locetion of Applicable Roadways— Cohen/ Paradise

Exhibit" B": O' Dell Engineering-- En ineer' s Estimates

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC

John Zhang, O' Dell Engineering, Inc.

I Accept on Behalf of the City af Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

By:
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

7 GU

Date

287



Y

r        

t

A"::

e
ti y+

e I        
a a..,    

s n,
I

p.           .     t    t.
an,. ,.    1"  "   .      

M. a k IJ

j

l}°M
y t x.

f I; I f-:.:,     
s

a-  aiy p,    +.
ib'.,

r
C` Y

l

C'  .,

w,     ,

yiy

i      " f,,  '''    J      '-, r

tt'.`        _
y,` _ 

F ',   

1;-'
V

f,      ,`      
t y-,,i

w+..      
T

S7AQE 28   e  8   ".,       ..     
y    ,:

ry    
x  ,    .;„    '°,

AREA   "       ' '    ". W:" S i    s!   ".      -   t ti; r
x     ti

oe 
1 s6.;

1   F G.

i   .  t r"/  '_.       t t. yU.'

1BEGIN PERMANENT., f 1     
t 2 LANE' GUA     t'.,     a  µ              fi. "ROAD

CLOSURE   -       ROADWAY( 28' WI E t       «.
m       c   a. .         a""+# 

t:"`-  ,     
K   ., C,"     ti,   ,   

m  .

W'„ tm°""   .       c i„   Y"     

k   .
Q  w   .       ,

w^      
r' e.       
q

y

s ,
w

r:      1   ,.       '  i!+ 1...,

r"  `     : 4 1,' r     

i        

0    `.   .    :  aa...u rar       .
r.I r!

1 `  lI t)
i' F    > 4 4

5 F W'

1    `   

A   ?_.
it T•

j r   \,`     .'+y;,      
j

1
i       -           3    

r C'.          `_       
V,°*,

a'*"' ` ENOPERMNAENT ,  .{ ';."''. A 
i

c STAQE2A-             TRANSITION 
R °.     '       w' '     ROAD

CLOSURE

a. .    
ARF TO IEVEE

ROAD y j

ft       .7 C.
1

w 1 t r-..-. 1 1 Ry+  
j...`+ 1r 1 x.   -    .         

q f       .  , .,__;..     ti

w  [PROVIOE' LOCAL
l.. 

r ,TRAFFIC ONLY'     i"  

t SION( R11- 3} y
e,          

m,

1      ..    STAQE

1 I   :,`       TRANSiT10N+    
r      

m,   TO IEYEE

ROA01        _. ,. .``_^     
F';

f '  DEII' OSSO ORIVE   {
m-   TM.,    

4,      , t°  ; ".' ti    ,...» 

a

a°   `      ,    ,.'      

I           i      
I

y r-._...-=--    ,;  ' 
a`

r       

r ayi..      _  ..  .__+    

x

r ,    .         

a` 

y 

w    ,       
f

y t

A

9   
t .      f.,     

1{', f
i' r  

f    `

t     I'   , .r1    ..''    

v

r
LEGENO 5 .   ,,. r r      . 

S

F           PH lE i OIO i1RV t     l

p   RETAN Pt LIC NIIMIfl1Y IIOAD l,
r

r        ii ,      

y__._..-STAuE 21NTFRIM
ACCESS B' r"°"°«n w o

m k         RIVER
ISLANDS wre. w,auc e rr ow w.. w w UIND USE

MAP 1 rAV ROAdWAY( MR NT Mf In t' w v vn. crcr., Mn

ws aworw lliMo fur

288



EXHlBIT " B" 

EN[ 31Nf ii1N6

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST May 4, 2017

NTERIM ROAD CONNECTION- STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF lATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUN7Y, CALIFORNIA

Unit

Item DeacripUon Guanttty Unit PNce Amount

sITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization      1 LS    $     25,QOO. OD  $ 22, 50.d0

2 Erosian Control 1 LS    $      2, 500. 00  $  2, 500.00

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 250. Q0

SBAL l LS's
3

Earthwork2 1, 600 CY S 5. 00  $  8, 000. 00

5ubtatal Grading 8, 000. 00

t sr. i eN ni s'

4 3" AC( 6f501F)     1T2, 200 SF    $   1. 50  $       258, 300. 00

5 6" AB( erso tF)     172, 200 SF    $   0. 90  $       154. 980. 00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS    $      3,000.00   $  6, 000. 00

Subtatal Miscellaneous 419, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $       452, 530.00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearestS1, 000) $       453, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Mabilizalion assumed lo be 5°,f, oi lotal cosL

2) Earthwork quantily includes 35% shcinkage.

6^_00 STONEnIpGE b1ALL ROAD SU1TE 334, PLEASANTON CA 9a508 • P 9_ 5 23. B3- i0 • F G9. 57 t._ a66

289



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3995

Page 16

EXHIBIT H

1 IPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE— RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN THE

STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AI EA DATED JUNE 26, 2018

290



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CAI. IFORNIA 95330

7e; ( zas) s s- 7soo

June 26, 2018

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Tawne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Letter of Guarantee- Construction of River Islands Parkway from Deli' Osso
Drive to the Stage B Boundary( Lakeside East District)—Tract.3908

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the canstruction of
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary
within the Sta e 2A development area of tl e River Islands developmsnt project( also known as
the Lakeside East District). River Islands Public Financing Authority( Authority) is providing
the funding for public improvements in the Stage 2A development area, including improvements
to River Islands Parkway( Improvements). It is our understanding that a guarantee for
constructian of the River Islands Parkway Improvements through Stage 2A is required as a
condition precedent to City Council approval of the Tract 39081arge lot subdivision map
proposed by River Islands Development, LLC. Since the Authority is already setting aside funds
for the full constcuction of River Islands Parkway, we are providing you this Letter of Guarantee
as the required subdivision guarantee necessary for the Tract 39081arge lot final map.

The engineer' s estimates as provided by O' Dell Engineering for the full cost of the of River
islands Parkway Improvements from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 5, 264, 000,
and for the unfinished portions( as of June 15, 20I8) of River Islands Parkway from Deil' Osso
Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 338, 004( attached as Exhibit" A"). The Authority hereby
agrees to set- aside funds in the amount of$450, 000, which amount is equal ta 180°/a of this
en,gineer' s estimate of the unfinished itnprovements, in-Iieu of a 100°lo performance bond and
50% labor and materials bond. The funds are currently held, and will be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of Deceniber i,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as fiscal agent. TI e
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2415, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in.the Irnprovement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastruchue
improvements for the River Islands development, including River Islands Parkway. Also
attached to this Letter of Guarantee is an exhibit showing the portion of River Islands Paricway
being guaranteed by this Ietter for your reference( Exhibit" B").

291



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop- Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 2 of 3

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until July$, 2019, ar until such time River Islands Parkway through
Stage 2A is fully constructed, inspected and accepted into service by the City, whichever comes
first.  If this portion of River Islands Parkway is not constnicted, inspected and accepted into
service by the City by July 8, 2019 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no
later than September 30, 2019, the Authority will cause one of the following to occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct the
River Islands Parkway Improvements. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadway will be canstructed, inspected and operational, no later
than one year from the deadIine noted above.

2.       The Authority shalI withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, ta be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for construction or reconstruction of the applicable portion
of River Islands Parkway. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to
complete the construction of the River Islands Parkway. Until the c mpletion of the River
Islands Park, vay and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain
recards as ta the reinvestment of the funds provided to it and will provide the Authority
with its records as to any such investment eamings upon written request of the Authority.
Additionally, in the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds
provided to the City are not sufficient to pay all of the costs of the construction of the
River Islands Parkway and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the
Authority will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amaunt of
the shortfall. In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will
provide to the Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction of the
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options outlined above.
However, if any River Islands Parkway improvements remain incomplete on Sepeember 30,
2020, the Authority shall immediately resort to Option 2, and shall provide set aside moneis in
the Improvement Fund as requested by the City to allow the City to cocnplete the uncompleted
improvements.

In addition, the commitment for the Authority to set aside these funds shall continue until the
Improvements are constructed and accepted by the City Council, and the developer provides a
one year maintenance bond in the amaunt of 526,400 ( 10% of the full cast of the

Improvements), or until the Authority provides an acceptable replacement letter of guarantee in
that same amount of$ 526, 400 to guarantee the quality and condition of the futl Improvements
for one year from the date of acceptance by the City Council.

292



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letqer of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 3 of 3

As confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditians of this Letter of Guarantee by the
City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page. Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact dn at{ 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb oniz, Exe tiv irector

River Islands Pu ic in cing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Engineer' s Estimate of full improvements from O' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimate of unfinished impr vements from O' Dell

Engineering
Exhibit" B": Location of guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Developrrdent, LLC

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

B .    Y
Glenr R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

7 9  /
Date

293



NG1NE£ i 1NG

ENGINEER' S OPIPIION OF PROBABLE COS"f March 6, 2018

RIVER CSLAP1bS- STAGE 2A Job No.: 25503-01

RIVER ISLAMDS PARKWAY

ClTY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

6tem Descrip4lon Quantity Unit Unit Pric  Amocant

S3REE lfl10RiC

1 Fine Grading 621, 7 0 SF   $  0. 45  $      279, 765. 00

2 7" AC Paving 316,80    SF   $  3. 50  $    1, 108, 800, 00

3 11" Aggregate Base 316,800 SF   $  1. 65  $      522, 720. 00

4 12" Lime Treatment 316, 8 0 SF   $  1. 10  $      348,480.00

5 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( wfth AB cushFon)       9,fi00 LF    $ t5,00  $      144, OOQ. 00

6 Type F Median Curb( wJth A8 cushion)    9, 100 LF    $ i8. 00  $      1fi3, 800, 00

7 Roundabout Concrete 2, 40    5F   $ 5.00  $ 12, Q00. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 77,400 SF   $ 5_00  $      387, 000. 00

9 Handic p Ramps 20 EA   $     2, 500. 00  $ 50, 040.00

10 Survey PAonuments 7 EA   $       300. 00 S 2, 160. OQ

11 Barricades I EA   $     1, 500. 00  $ 1, 500. 04

12 Traffic Signing& Striping 4, T10 LF    $ 5.00  $       23, 550. 00

i3 Dewatering( eudget)     4, 71U LF    $ 75.00  $      353, 250.00

Subtotal 5treet Work 3, 39fi, 965.00

STORM DF AIP7

14 Catch Basins{ type A tnlet)   2a EA   $     2,400. 00  $ 57, 600. 00

15 15" StoRn Drain Pipe 1, 11d LF    $ 34.40  $ 37, 740. 00

16 18" Sto rn Drain Pipe 220 LF    $ 46.40  $ 10, 120.OQ

17 24" Storm Orain Pipe 780 LF    $ 65.00  $ 50, 700. 00

18 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 9 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 9, 000.00

Suhtotal Storm Drain i65, 160. 00

SANITARY SEWER

19 24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 5Q LF    $       150. 00  $ 7, 500.Q0

2   Nlanhofes 24 LF    $     4,0 0.00  $ 96, 000, 00

21 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer 2 EA   $     3, 000.00  $ 6, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 109, 500, 00

WAl' ER SUPPLY

22 8" Water Line( includrng a!! appurtenances}  7A4 LF    32. 00  $ 23, 6$ 0. 00

23 10" Water Line ( including ei! appudenances) 280 LF    $ 40. 00  $ 11, 200, 00

24 20" Water Une ( includtng a11 appurtenances)       4,630 LF    $       1 Q0. 00  $      463, 000. 00

25 Fire Hydrants 16 EA   $     4,000. 00  $ 64, 000. 00

26 Water Service 6 EP   $     2, 000. 00  $ 12, 0OO. OQ

27 Water Plug, Stub 9 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 9, OQ0, 00

28 Connect ta Existing Water 1 E4   $     4,000. 00  $ 4, 000. 04

Subtotal Water Supply 586, 880. 00

62D0 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 33Q, PLEASANTON, CA9 S5& 8 • P 925 2 3. 8340 • F249.571. 2466

T 125503. RIver IslundslPhase 61- Rlver letands PerkwaylWard d EzeePGosi Eshmelo12a18- 0- 08 River Islande Pa kwey- Stafle 2A Coet Ettlm teVmprouaneM

294



I

ENG1N Efi7NG

Item Description Qua atity Uasit Unft Price Amount

RECYCLED 1t1/ A3ER

29 8" Recycled Water Flushing Line ( includ; ng a1! appudenances)       84 LF    $ 45.00  $ 3, 600. 00

30 12" Recycled V4later Drain Line ( including a1 appurienancss) 150 LF    $ 55. 00  $ 8, 250. OQ

31 16" Recycled Water Line ( including a11 appurtenances)    4,650 LF    $ fi5.00  $      302, 250. 00

32 Recycled Water Plug 8 Stub 4 EA   $     1, QOQ. 00  $ 4, OOD. 00

33 Connect to Existing Recycled Water 1 EA   $     5, OOO. UO  $ 5, OOD, OQ

Subtotal Recyclsd Water 323, 400. OU

MOV- PO ABLE YV,a TER

34 8" Non- Potable Water Line ( incrudin8 arl aPp nenances)    650 LF    $ 35. 00  $       22, 750. 00

35 16" Non- Potable Water Li e ( lncfudfng aJ! appurienances) 4,660 LF    $ 80. Op  $      372, 800. 00

36 Plon- Potable Water Service 6 LF    $     2, OQ0. 00  $ 12, U00, 00

37 Flon- Pateble Water Piug 8 Stub 7 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 7,000. 00

38 Connect to Existing Non- Potahle Wate      1 EA   $     3, 000. 00 5 3, 0OO. Ofl

Subtotal Irrigation Water A17, 550. 00

LA6C IL LON

39 16" Lake Fill Line ( TncludingaUappurtenances)    4, 820 LF    $ 50, 00  $      2a1, fl00. 0U

40 3" Aeration Line( lnGuding a! 1 appurienances)      4,820 LF    $ 4. 00  $ 19, 280. OQ

41 Lake Fill Stub& Plug 3 EA   $     1, 000. 00   3, 000. 00

42 Conneci to Existing Lake Fill Line 1 EA   $     1, 000. 00   1, OOQ. 00

Subtotal Lake Fil! Line 264, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRU TION COST S 5, 263, 435. 00

TOTAi. COtVSTRUCTIOPI C05T( neaeest S7, OD8) $    5, 264, 000. 0

Notes:

i) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joln4 trench, landscaping,
irrigaGon, or street trees.

2) Uni# prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 570NERIDGE h1ALL ROAD, SUITE 330, PLEASA4TON CA94586 • P 925. 223. 8340 • F 249. 571 d66

T:125501RIuer IslandslPhaae Ot• River lalend ParkwaylVNord 8 EzcellCost£ Gmale1Z01& 03A8 Rluar Istands Paikway- Styqe 2A Cott EfArnateVmpmvemeMa

295



ENG1N fi1NCa

ENGINFER' S BON ES7IMATE June 13. 2018

COST TO COAAPLETE JOb No.: 25503- Di

RIVER ISLAPJDS• SYAGE 2A

RIVER ISlAPdDS PARMNdY

CIN OF l..ATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUMTY, CALIFORNIA

Item DescrtpGon quantiry Unit Unit Prf e Amount-

1 Sanitary Sewer& Water Raising Iron{ 95% Completion)  S LS S 54, 4Q0. 00 S 54, A00. 0

2 Final AC Lift( so4b Complerian) 7 LS   $   2d6, 66A, 00 5 246, 644. 00

3 Final Signing, Striping 8 Monument( o% Compfa6'on)     1 LS 5 37, 040, 00 5 37, OU0_p0

TOTAL COS7 TO COMPLETE $       338, 004. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate! or oBt to complete based on contraetar' s cost to CCmplete summery sheet and beckup documents! ar Stage 2A River Islands Parkway
Oell' Osso Driva to Stege 2Al2B Levee) daied June 12, 201 B,

6. 00 SiONEAIDGE AfALL ROi. SUI7E 330. PLE 5AN7C1! C 9a58=  P 9 5, 233, 63JG • F 2G9 571' 46'a

T; ssosaNer eu, a wn,.. o+• aro. r i. u as aa a, a. rwo e a E. one: m c e xaie oe• u suao za aia eo„ a n rnevm a w

296



4 1 V S.1r      ^   

yy

r'

P x 

o

R
r- 

SCHOOL

r  

y  `.:    

y

yy
Rl/ El 1SLANDS PARKVVAY

hy

v    ,,       ,
p    

J

o j
a

J

Qa

PARK
W0

c  

t
tt

IJL' 201

297



i

Attachment D

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

December 9, 2019

Via Email and Hand Delivery

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3995; Escrow No. 1614021455

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company (" RID") and the City of
Lathrop (" Cit') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrovd').  The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as "you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2019, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a" C/ osin'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by December 31, 2020,

ORTC will return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Document

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

One original Final Map for Tract 3995, executed and acknowledged by
the City.

The documents listed above is referred to as the " Recordation Document" The

Recordation Document shall be recorded in the order referred to above. The date on

which the Recordation Document is recorded in the Official Records is the Recordation

Date.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Document, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City (" Settlement Stafemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

1

298



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are as follows: The amount of $ 19, 008. 48, payable to the

City pursuant to that certain Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at
Lathrop ( as amended " Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of $ 3, 184. 00
multiplied by 5. 97 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be
transferred to the City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions
are set forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: ( a) Susan Dell' Osso.( sdellosso@riverslands. com); ( b) Debbie Belmar

dbelmar@riverislands. com); ( c) Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatore@ci. lathrop. ca. us);

d) Salvador Navarrete ( snavarrete@ci. lathrop. ca. us; ( e) Cari James

ciames@ci. lathrop. ca. us) and ( f) Glenn Gebhardt ( g,qebhardt@ci. lathrop. ca. us), and

have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore
or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is accurate and acceptable;

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions;

D. 3. The Recordation Document and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D. 4. You are prepared to record the Recordation Document, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete

the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions;

D. 5. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above; and .

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation

Document and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Document to be recorded;

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Document in the Official Records;

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction;

2

299



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction;

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   a certified copy of the Recordation Document, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Document; and

B)   a certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow

agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development, LLC

3

300



JOIIVT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL nIIAPS

RIVER ISLANDS i4T LATHROP)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed

in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

301



302



i
ITEM 5. 1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER CERTIFICATION OF THE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND ADOPTION

OF THE IWRMP PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

RECOMMENDATION:     City Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Adopt Resolution Certifying the Environmental

Impact Report  ( SCH#  2019029106),  Including
the Adoption of Findings of Fact and Statement of

Overriding Considerations and Adoption of the
Integrated Water Resources Master Plan PW 10-

10 and WW 15- 08

SUMMARY:

The Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP), is a comprehensive update to

the City' s Water,  Wastewater and Recycled Water System master documents.

Implementation of the draft IWRMP is a discretionary project for the City,  and is

therefore subject to environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act  ( CEQA).    An Environmental Impact Report  ( EIR)  for this project has been

completed in accordance with CEQA requirements. Following tonight' s public hearing,
the City Council of the City of Lathrop is requested to certify the Environmental
Impact Report and adoption of the City of Lathrop IWRMP to be used to support the
General Plan and as the basis for regulatory compliance documents, to support utility
operations, budget, rate studies, land use planning and development fees.

BACKGROUND:

A comprehensive update to the City' s water, wastewater and recycled water master
plan documents is needed to forecast and update water and sewer demand

projections,  address changes in regulatory requirements,  population and growth

projections, proposed land use, climate change and other factors.  Collectively, these
documents known as the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP), are a

component of the City' s General Plan and are used as the basis for regulatory
compliance documents, and are also used to support utility operations, budget, rate
studies, land use planning and development fees.   In May 2016, the City approved
an agreement with EKI Environment & Water, Inc. to prepare the IWRMP. The draft

IWRMP documents were completed in early March 2018 and subsequently revised in
December 2018, and July 2019.

Implementation of the draft IWRMP is a discretionary project for the City, and is

therefore subject to environmental review under CEQA.  The completion of CEQA is

required prior to formal adoption by the City.   In May 2018, the City approved an
agreement with De Novo Planning Group to prepare a Programmatic Environmental

303



CITY M NAGE1' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL ItEGUL/ AR MEETING

CERTIFICATION OF THE Ef 1V%RONMENTAL IMPACT FtEPORT AND ADOPTIOIlI

OF IWRMP PW 10- 10 AND 1n/ VI! 15- 08

A DEIR reflecting input received in response to the NOP was prepared and released
for public and agency review on August 15, 2019 with a 45- day public review period
ending on September 30, 2019.   A Final Environmental Impact Report ( FEIR) that

incorporates by reference the DEIR and also responds to the comments received by
the public and agencies on the DEIR was prepared and a notice of this public hearing
was given pursuant to Government Code section 65091.

RECOMMENDATIOIV:

The City Council of the City of Lathrop is requested to certify the Final Environmental
Impact Report and adopt the Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan.  The

Environmental Impact Report has been completed in accordance with the California

Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA)  and the State CEQA Guidelines.   The EIR was

prepared, published, circulated, and reviewed in accordance with the requirements

of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines,  and constitutes an adequate,  accurate,

objective and complete Final Environmental Impact Report in full compliance with the

requirements of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines.  The EIR has been presented

to the City Council, and the City Council has considered the information contained in
the EIR prior to acting on the proposed project, and that the EIR reflects the City
Council' s independent judgement and analysis.

FISCAL IMPi4CT:

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with the recommended action. The IWRMP

will be used to support CIP planning, budget and rate studies for water, wastewater
and recycled water improvement projects.

ATTACH M ENT:

A.  Resolution Certifying the Environmental Impact Report, Including the Adoption
of Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations  ( SCH#

2019029106) and Adoption of the Integrated Water Resources Master Plan PW

10- 10 and WW 15- 08

B.  Final Environmental Impact Report for the City of Lathrop Integrated Water
Resources Master Plan

C.  Findings of Fact for the Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

D.  Integrated Water Resources Master Plan, updated December 2018

304



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CERTIFICATION OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND ADOPTION

OF IWRMP PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

APPROVALS:

i!''"  

Greg' Gibson Date     "

Senior Civil Engineer
i

Ir    --       I!—/3- 1` I

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

y       
e Date

Finance & A ministrative

Services ir ctor

r

11- s-

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D(

St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

305



RESOLUTION NO. 19 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

CERTIFYING THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT,   INCLUDING THE

ADOPTION OF FINDINGS OF FACT AND A STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING

CONSIDERATIONS    ( SCH#    2019029106)    AND ADOPTION OF THE

INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER PLAN PW 10- 10 AND WW 15- 08

WHEREAS, a comprehensive update to the City' s water, sewer and recycled
water master plan documents is needed to forecast and update water and sewer

demand projections,  address changes in regulatory requirements,  population and

growth projections, proposed land use, climate change and other factors; and

WHEREAS,  collectively,  these documents known as the Integrated Water

Resources Master Plan  ( IWRMP), are a component of the City' s General Plan and
are used as the basis for regulatory compliance documents,  and are used to

support utility operations, budget, rate studies, land use planning and development
fees; and

WHEREAS,   in May 2016,   the City approved an agreement with EKI

Environment & Water, Inc.,  ( EKI) to prepare the IWRMP, and in March 2018 EKI

completed the draft IWRMP documents that were subsequently revised in December
2018, and July 2019; and

WHEREAS, implementation of the Draft IWRMP is a discretionary project for
the City,  and is therefore subject to environmental review under the California

Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA),  and completion of CEQA is required prior to

formal adoption of the IWRMP by the City; and

WHEREAS,  in May 2018,  the City approved an agreement with De Novo
Planning Group to prepare a Programmatic Environmental Impact Report for the
IWRMP; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report

DEIR) and Scoping Meeting was issued on February 20, 2019 soliciting public input
and a public scoping meeting was conducted on March 13, 2019; and

WHEREAS,  a DEIR reflecting input received in response to the NOP was
prepared and released for public and agency review on August 15, 2019 with a 45-
day public review period ending on September 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, a Final Environmental Impact Report ( FEIR) that incorporates by
reference the DEIR and also responds to the comments received by the public and
agencies on the DEIR was prepared; and

WHEREAS, notice of this public hearing was given pursuant to Government
Code section 65091.

306



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT faESOLVED, that:

1.  The City Council of the City of Lathrop hereby certifies the Final
Environmental Impact Report for the Lathrop Integrated Water

Resources Master Plan.   The Environmental Impact Report has been

completed in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA)  and the State CEQA Guidelines.    The EIR was prepared,

published,    circulated,    and reviewed in accordance with the

requirements of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, and constitutes

an adequate,  accurate,  objective and complete Final Environmental

Impact Report in full compliance with the requirements of CEQA and

the State CEQA Guidelines.   The EIR has been presented to the City
Council,   and the City Council has considered the information

contained in the EIR prior to acting on the proposed project, and that
the EIR reflects the City Council' s independent judgement and

analysis.

2. The City Council of the City of Lathrop adopts the Integrated Water
Resources Master Plan to be used to support the General Plan and as

the basis for regulatory compliance documents,  to support utility
operations, budget, rate studies, land use planning and development
fees.

307



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9th day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO ORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

308



j 

i
ATTACHMENT B

L 0   ;

i

i

FINAL
i

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPI CT REPORT
a   ,  

rf i, : ,,,
s  I

FOR THE

X   ft  , 1,„     k
4...   

x. .._...._._,,.?     ,.:...  i '   ,...

1

LATHROP INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES i
d kt'        

MAS TER PLAN

SCH: 2019029106)   

y       NovEMBER 20 9

i
Prepared for:      

I
i

City of Lathrop, Public Works Department
3'90 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330 i

209) 941.- 7430
I

Prepared' by:       

I

i
De Novo Planning Group
1020 Suncast Lane, Suite 106

El Dorado Hills, CA 95762
E
I

916) 5'80- 4818 j
I

i
i

i

D e N o v o P l    iz n i n g G r o u p
j

i.. f  

R Land Use Planning, Design, and Enviranmental Fii• m i
L__      

I
I
i

309



FINAL

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

FOR THE

LATHROP INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES

MASTER PLAN
SCH: 2019029106)

NOVEMBER 2019

Prepared for:

City of Lathrop, Public Works Department
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
209) 941- 7430

Prepared by:

De Novo Planning Group
1020 Suncast Lane, Suite 106

El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

916) 580- 9818

310



TABLE OF CONTENTS TO.0

FINaL EIR

Chapter Page Number

ExecutiveSummary..................................................................................................................... ES- 1

1. 0 Introduction......................................................................................................................... 1. 0- 1

1. 1 Purpose and Intended Uses of the EIR................................................................... 1. 0- 1-

1. 2 Environmental Review Process............................................................................... 1. 0- 2

1. 3 Organization ofthe Final EIR .................................................................................. 1. 0- 3

2. 0 Comments on Draft EIR and Responses .............................................................................. 2. 0- 1

2. 1 Introduction............................................................................................................ 2. 0- 1

2. 2 List of Commenters................................................................................................. 2. 0- 1

2. 3 Comments and Responses...................................................................................... 2. 0- 1

3. 0 Revisions.............................................................................................................................. 3. 0- 1

3. 1 Revisions to the Draft EIR ....................................................................................... 3. 0- 1

4. 0 Final Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program .......................................................... 4. 0- 1

4. 1 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program...................................................... 4. 0- 1

Tables Page Nuanber

Table 2. 0- 1: List of Commenters on Draft EIR ........................................................................... 2. 0- 1

Table 4. 0- 1: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program..................................................... 4. 0- 2

Figures Page Number

Figure 2. 0- 7: Phase 2A Recycled Water System Infrastructure Projects................................... 3. 0- 3

Figure 2. 0- 8: Phase 2B Recycled WaterSystem Infrastructure Projects................................... 3. 0- 4

Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP jTOC- 1

311



TOG      TABLE OF CONTENTS

This page left intentionally blank.

TOC- 2,  Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMPd.

312



t  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY        ES   `   

INTRODUCTION

The City of Lathrop ( City) determined that a program- level environmental impact report ( EIR) was
required for the proposed Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP) Project

project) pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA).

The program- level analysis considers the broad environmental effects of the IWRMP. CEQA

Guidelines Section 15168 states that a Program EIR is an EIR which may be prepared on a series of

actions that can be characterized as one large project and are related either:

1)  Geographically;

2)  As logical parts in the chain of contemplated actions;

3)  In connection with issuance of rules, regulations, plans or other general criteria to govern

the conduct of a continuing program; or

4)  As individual activities carried out under the same authorizing statutory or regulatory

authority and having generally similar environmental effects which can be mitigated in
similar ways.

A program- level analysis may be prepared for a long- term program before the details of each
phase or project have been developed. For the IWRMP, facilities will be implemented in the near-

term and long-term. The long-term components do not currently have specific construction and  .
operational details provided. This Program EIR serves as a first- tier environmental document that

focuses on the overall effects of implementing the IWRMP.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The following provides a brief summary and overview of the proposed project. Section 2. 0 of the
Draft EIR includes a detailed description of the proposed project, including maps and graphics. The

reader is referred to Section 2. 0 of the Draft EIR for a more complete and thorough description of

the components of the proposed project.

The project site is located throughout Lathrop, California. The IWRMP includes the improvement

projects summarized in the proposed Water System Master Plan, Wastewater System Master Plan,

and Recycled Water System Master Plan.

The City of Lathrop is located in San Joaquin County, approximately 10 miles south of the City of

Stockton and directly west of the City of Manteca. The City lies east of the Coastal Range that
separates California' s Central Valley from the San Francisco Bay Area. Interstate 5 ( I- 5), a major

north- south interstate corridor, bisects the City. The City is also connected by State Route ( SR) 120

which runs east- west through the southeastern- most part of the City, and by Interstate 205, which

connects Interstate 580 to I- 5. The City is also served by the Altamont Commuter Express ( ACE)

train, which travels along the southern and eastern border of the City. The community was

originally developed primarily east of I- 5. However, most major new developments have recently

Final Environmenta, l Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP   X  ` ES 1    

313



v    

ES „    _ EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

been constructed west of I- 5 and others are currently planned or under construction in this area.

See Figure 2. 0- 3 for the aerial view of the City. _

The City is relatively flat with natural gentle slope from east to west. The City' s topography has an
average elevation of approximately 20 feet above sea level.

The City' s water service area is generally contiguous with the City limits and includes the railroad

cargo container commercial enterprise that is outside of the City limits. The City' s wastewater
collection system service area is generally contiguous with the City limits. The City' s existing

recycled water distribution system is generally contiguous with the City limits, and some future
facilities are planned for north ofthe City limits.

The proposed project includes adoption and implementation of the IWRMP, which includes the

improvement projects summarized in the proposed Water System Master Plan, Wastewater

System Master Plan, and Recycled Water System Master Plan:

The Water System Master Plan focuses on development of water demand unit factors and

projections, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing water infrastructure and key planned
improvements, and development of recommended water system capital improvement projects

CIPs). The Wastewater System Master Plan focuses on development of wastewater flow unit

factors and projections, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing infrastructure and key planned

conveyances, and development of recommended wastewater CIPs. The Recycled Water System

Master Plan focuses on an evaluation of recycled water use and disposal alternatives, recycled

water balance analyses, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing recycled water infrastructure

and key planned improvements, and development of recommended recycled water system
improvements and operational recommendations.

Generators would be provided in conjunction with the proposed water pump station

improvements. The generators will be added as the new essential facilities are constructed and

brought on- line, such as the Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP) water tank, River Islands water

tank/ SSJID turnout,  and sewer pump stations. The generators would all be for emergency
operations in the event of a power outage, and would only be run for maintenance and air quality

permit testing requirements.

Additionally, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition ( SCADA) communication towers would also

be provided. Currently, SCADA towers are located at the City of Lathrop Corporation Yard ( 2112 E.

Louise Avenue), the City of Lathrop City Hall ( 390 Town Centre Drive), the Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility ( LCTF) ( 18800 Christopher Way), and at a few other locations in the River

Islands and CLSP development areas. The proposed SCADA towers are required in order to provide

a line- of-sight for radio communications between the facilities. The towers would be 50- to 100-

feet in height, or taller.

Refer to Section 2. 0, Project Description, in the Draft EIR for a more complete description of the

details of the proposed project.

S 2;    Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP

314



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  ES  ` "•

ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED PROJECT

Section 15126. 6 of the CEQA Guidelines requires an EIR to describe a reasonable range of

alternatives to the project or to the location of the project which would reduce or avoid significant

impacts, and which could feasibly accomplish the basic objectives of the proposed project. The

alternatives analyzed in this EIR include the following two alternatives in addition to the proposed

Lathrop IWRMP Project:

No Project( No Build) Alternative

s Near- Term Improvements Alternative

These alternatives are described in detail in Section 5. 0, Alternatives to the Proposed Project, in

the Draft EIR. The No Project ( No Build) Alternative is the environmentally superior alternative.

However, as required by CEQA, when the No Project ( No Build) Alternative is the environmentally
superior alternative,  the environmentally superior alternative among the others must be

identified. The environmentally superior alternative was determined using a numerical scoring
system, which assigns a score of " 2," " 3," or " 4" to the proposed project and each of the

alternatives with respect to how each alternative compares to the proposed project in terms of

the severity of the environmental topics addressed in the Draft EIR. A score of " 2" indicates that
the alternative would have a better( or lessened) impact when compared to the proposed project.

A score of" 3" indicates that the alternative would have the same ( or equal) level of impact when

compared to the proposed project. A score of " 4" indicates that the alternative would have a

worse ( or greater) impact when compared to the proposed project. The project alternative with

the lowest total score is considered the environmentally superior alternative.

The No Project ( No Build) Alternative is the environmentally superior alternative. However, as

required by. CEQA, when the No Project ( No Build) Alternative is the environmentally superior

alternative, the environmentally superior alternative among the others must be identified.

Therefore, the Near- Term Improvements Alternative ranks higher than the proposed project.

However, the Near-Term Improvements Alternative would not fully meet all of the project
objectives.

COMMENTS RECEIVED

The Draft EIR addressed environmental impacts associated with the proposed project that are

I< nown to the City, were raised during the Notice of Preparation ( NOP) process, or raised during

preparation of the Draft EIR.  The Draft EIR discussed potentially significant impacts associated

with cultural and tribal resources and land use.

During the NOP process, several comments were received related to the analysis that should be
included in the Draft EIR. These comments are included as Appendix A of the Draft EIR, and were

considered during preparation ofthe Draft EIR.

ES- 3.      I Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP

315



f

r ; `   ES ,    ;; EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City of Lathrop received four comment letters regarding the Draft EIR from public agencies
and a private development group. These comment letters on the Draft EIR are identified in Table

2. 0- 1 of this Final EIR. The comments received during the Draft EIR review processes are addressed

within this Final EIR.

S 4:;     = Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

316



INTRODUCTION     -., 1: 0     

This Final Environmental Impact Report ( Final EIR) was prepared in accordance with the California

Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) and the State CEQA Guidelines ( Section 15132). The City of

Lathrop ( Lathrop, or City)  is the lead agency for the environmental review of the Lathrop
Integrated Water Resources Master Plan  ( IWRMP)  Project  ( project)  and has the principal

responsibility for approving the project. This Final EIR assesses the expected environmental

impacts resulting from approval of the project and associated impacts from subsequent
development and operation of the project, as well as responds to comments received on the Draft

Environmental Impact Report( Draft EIR).

1. 1 PURPOSE AND INTENDED USES OF THE EIR

CEQA REQUIREMENTS FOR A FINAL EIR

This Final EIR for the proposed project has been prepared in accordance with the California

Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) and State CEQA Guidelines. State CEQA Guidelines Section

15132 requires that a Final EIR consist of the following:

the Draft EIR or a revision of the draft;

comments and recommendations received on the Draft EIR,  either verbatim or in

summary;

a list of persons, organizations, and public agencies commenting on the Draft EIR;

the responses of the lead agency to significant environmental concerns raised in the
review and consultation process; and

any other information added by the lead agency.

In accordance with State CEQA Guidelines Section 15132( a), the Draft EIR is incorporated by
reference into this Final EIR.

An EIR must disclose the expected environmental impacts, including impacts that cannot be

avoided, growth- inducing effects, impacts found not to be significant, and significant cumulative

impacts, as well as identify mitigation measures and alternatives to the proposed project that
could reduce or avoid its adverse environmental impacts. CEQA requires government agencies to

consider and, where feasible, minimize environmental impacts of proposed development, and an

obligation to balance a variety of public objectives, including economic, environmental, and social
fa cto rs.

PURPOSE AND USE

The City of Lathrop, as the lead agency, has prepared this Final EIR to provide the public and
responsible and trustee agencies with an objective analysis of the potential environmental impacts

resulting from approval, construction, and operation of the proposed Lathrop IWRMP Project.

Responsible and trustee agencies that may use the EIR are identified in Sections 1. 0 and 2. 0 of the

Draft EIR.

Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP ;   . ; 1,.0= 1      #

317



i:__

1 Q.   :{ INTRODUCTION

The environmental review process enables interested parties to evaluate the proposed project in

terms of its environmental consequences, to examine and recommend methods to eliminate or

reduce potential adverse impacts, and to consider a reasonable range of alternatives to the

project. While CEQA requires that consideration be given to avoiding adverse environmental

effects,  the lead agency must balance adverse environmental effects against other public

objectives, including the economic and social benefits of a project, in determining whether a
project should be approved.

This EIR will be used as the primary environmental document to evaluate all aspects of

construction and operation of the proposed project. The details and operational characteristics of

the proposed project are identified in Chapter 2. 0, Project Description, of the Draft EIR ( December

2017).

1. 2 ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW PROCESS

The review and certification process for the EIR has involved, or will involve, the following general
procedural steps:

NOTICE OF PREPARATION AND INITIAL STUDY

The City circulated an Initial Study and NOP of an EIR for the proposed project on February 20,

2019 to trustee agencies, the State Clearinghouse, and the public.  A public scoping meeting was

held on March 13, 2019 to present the project description to the public and interested agencies,

and to receive comments from the public and interested agencies regarding the scope of the

environmental analysis to be included in the Draft EIR.  Concerns raised in response to the NOP

were considered during preparation of the Draft EIR.  The NOP and responses to the NOP by
interested parties are presented in Appendix A of the Draft EIR.

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY AND DRAFT EIR

The City of Lathrop published a public Notice of Availability ( NOA) for the Draft EIR on August 15,

2019 inviting comment from the general public, agencies, organizations, and other interested
parties. The NOA was filed with the State Clearinghouse ( SCH # 2019029106) and the County Clerk,

and was published in a local newspaper pursuant to the public noticing requirements of CEQA.
The Draft EIR was available for public review and comment from August 15, 2019 through

September 30, 2019.

The Draft EIR contains a description of the project, description of the environmental setting,
identification of project impacts, and mitigation measures for impacts found to be significant, as

well as an analysis of project alternatives, identification of significant irreversible environmental

changes,  growth- inducing impacts,  and cumulative impacts.  The Draft EIR identifies issues

determined to have no impact or a less- than- significant impact, and provides detailed analysis of

potentially significant and significant impacts.  Comments received in response to the NOP were

considered in preparing the analysis in the Draft EIR.

1 0 2`     Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP

318



1

INTRODUCTION '. -   1;:0;      i

RESPONSE TO COMMENTS FINAL EIR

The City of Lathrop received four comment letters regarding the Draft EIR from public agencies

and a private development group. These comment letters on the Draft EIR are identified in Table
2. 0- 1, and are found in Section 2. 0 of this Final EIR.

In accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15088, this Final EIR responds to the written

comments received on the Draft EIR, as required by CEQA. This Final EIR also contains minor edits
to the Draft EIR, which are included in Chapter 3. 0, Revisions. This document, as well as the Draft

EIR as amended herein, constitute the Final EIR.

CERTIFICATION OF THE EIR PROJECT CONSIDERATION

The City of Lathrop will review and consider the Final EIR.  If the City finds that the Final EIR is
adequate and complete," the Lathrop City Council may certify the Final EIR in accordance with

CEQA and City of Lathrop environmental review procedures and codes.  The rule of adequacy

generally holds that an EIR can be certified if:

1)  The EIR shows a good faith effort at full disclosure of environmental information; and

2)  The EIR provides sufficient analysis to allow decisions to be made regarding the proposed

project which intelligently take account of environmental consequences.

Upon review and consideration of the Final EIR, the Lathrop City Council may take action to

approve, revise, or reject the project. A decision to approve the Lathrop IWRMP Project, for which

this EIR identifies significant environmental effects, must be accompanied by written findings in
accordance with State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15091 and 15093.  A Mitigation Monitoring and

Reporting Program,  as described below, would also be adopted in accordance with Public
Resources Code Section 21081. 6( a) and CEQA Guidelines Section 15097 for mitigation measures

that have been incorporated into or imposed upon the project to reduce or avoid significant

effects on the environment. This Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program has been designed

to ensure that these measures are carried out during project implementation, in a manner that is
consistent with the EIR.

1. 3 ORGANIZATION OF THE FINAL EIR

This Final EIR has been prepared consistent with Section 15132 of the State CEQA Guidelines,

which identifies the content requirements for Final EIRs. This Final EIR is organized in the following
manner:

CHAPTER 1. 0 — INTRODUCTION

Chapter 1. 0 briefly describes the purpose of the environmental evaluation, identifies the lead,

agency, summarizes the process associated with preparation and certification of an EIR, and

identifies the content requirements and organization of the Final EIR.

Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP       1. 0- 3  .   
u.____.__

319



1 O r INTRODUCTION

CHAPTER 2. 0 — COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

Chapter 2. 0 provides a list of commenters, copies of written and electronic comments made on

the Draft EIR ( coded for reference), and responses to those written comments.

CHAPTER 3. 0 — REVISIONS

Chapter 3. 0 consists of minor revisions to the Draft EIR in response to comments received on the

Draft EIR.

CHAPTER 4. 0 - F vAL MMRP

Chapter 4. 0 consists of a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MMRP). The MMRP is

presented in a tabular format that presents the impacts, mitigation measure, and responsibility,

timing, and verification of monitoring.

1 0=4,   ,: ; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

320



I

COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES `      2. 0       

2. 1 INTRODUCTION

No new significant environmental impacts or issues, beyond those already covered in the Draft EIR for

the Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP) Project, were raised during the comment

period. Responses to comments received during the comment period do not involve any new significant
impacts or add " significant new information" that would require recirculation of the Draft EIR pursuant

to CEQA Guidelines Section 15088. 5.

CEQA Guidelines Section 15088. 5 states that: New information added to an EIR is not" significant" unless

the EIR is changed in a way that deprives the public of a meaningful opportunity to comment upon a

substantial adverse environmental effect of the project or a feasible way to mitigate or avoid such an

effect( including a feasible project a/ ternative) that the project' s proponents have declined to implement.

Sections 2. 0 and 3. 0 of this Final EIR include information that has been added to the EIR since the close

of the public review period in the form of responses to comments and revisions.

2. 2 LIST OF COMMENTERS

Table 2. 0- 1 lists the comments on the Draft EIR that were submitted to the City of Lathrop during the

45- day public review period for the Draft EIR. The assigned comment letter or number, letter date, letter

author, and affiliation, if presented in the comment letter or if representing a public agency, are also
listed. Letters received are coded with letters ( A, B, etc.).

TABLE Z. O- I LIST OF COMMENTERS ON DRAFT EIR

RESPONSE,..      

LETTER    INDIVIDUAL' OR' S/ GNATORY AFFILIATION DATE

NUMBER

A Scott Morgan
Governor' s Office of Planning and Research,   

10- 1- 2019
State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit

B Plan Review Team Pacific Gas and Electric Company 8- 13- 2019

C Susan Dell' Osso River[ slands 9- 30- 2019

D Laurel Boyd San Joaquin Council of Governments 9- 25- 2019

2. 3 COMMENTS AND RESPONSES

REQUIREMENTS FOR RESPONDING TO COMMENTS ON A DRAFT EIR

CEQA Guidelines Section 15088 requires that lead agencies evaluate and respond to all comments on

the Draft EIR that regard an environmental issue.  The written response must address the significant

environmental issue raised and provide a detailed response, especially when specific comments or
suggestions ( e. g., additional mitigation measures) are not accepted.  In addition, the written response

must be a good faith and reasoned analysis. However, lead agencies need only to respond to significant
environmental issues associated with the project and do not need to provide all the information

Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP ;.      2. 0- 1

321



2. 0      ; COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

requested by the commenter, as long as a good faith effort at full disclosure is made in the EIR ( CEQA
Guidelines Section 15204).

CEQA Guidelines Section 15204 recommends that commenters provide detailed comments that focus

on the sufficiency of the Draft EIR in identifying and analyzing the possible environmental impacts of the
project and ways to avoid or mitigate the significant effects of the project, and that commenters provide

evidence supporting their comments. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064, an effect shall not be
considered significant in the absence of substantial evidence.

CEQA Guidelines Section 15088 also recommends that revisions to the Draft EIR be noted as a revision in

the Draft EIR or as a separate section of the Final EIR. Chapter 3. 0 of this Final EIR identifies all revisions

to the Lathrop IWRMP Project Draft EIR.

RESPONSES TO COMMENT LETTERS

Written comments on the Draft EIR are reproduced on the following pages, along with responses to

those comments. To assist in referencing comments and responses, the following coding system is used:

Each letter is lettered or numbered ( i. e., Letter A) and each comment within each letter is

numbered ( i. e., comment A- 1, comment A- 2).

2. 0;- 2   • .! Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP

322



r.... __.__.___...._._.__._.,

COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES        2. 0       

ot.,
oR IW y4e

uq•'' 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

y   ' 8 Governor' s Of ce of Planning and Research

State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit a''

Gavin Newsam Kute Gordon

Govemor a      

Dir ctor

r

Ucr a s z t

CfTY OF LAi-HROP

Octoher 1, 2019
PIJBLiC UVORK

Greg Gibson
Lathrop, City of
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lativop, CA 95330

Subjecr. Lathrop Integrated\ Vater Resources Master Plan
SCH. 20190291 6

Deaz Gres Gibson

fhe State Clearinghoase submitted the above named EIR lo salected state agencies for revie v. The review

period closed on 9i30t2019, and no state agencies submitted comments by that date. This letter
acknowiedges that you huve complied with the State Clcaringhouse reviaw requirements for draft

environmentnl documents, pursuant to the Califomia Environmental Quality Act,   
A 1

https:r%ceqanet.opr.ca.gov.-2019Q2910612.

Please cai( the State Clearinghouse nt( 916) 445- 0613 if you have any questions resarding the
environmental re• iew process. If you liave a question about the above- named projecy please refer to the
en-digit State Clearinghouse number when contacting this ottice.

Sincerely,

Scott Morgan

Directar, 3tate Clearinghoase

140U 7ENTH STREEI' P, O. BOX 3041 SACRAMEivTO, CALIFORNIA 95813- 3044

TELI- 916-0d5- 0613 sm e.clpringhousc copccagov www. opr. m. gov

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP ;      2. 0- 3.      !

323



s'

2 O _ ,  t COMMENTS ON DRAFT EI1 AND RESPONSES

Response to Letter A: Governor' s Office of Planning and Research,   State

Clearinghouse and Planning Unit

Response A- 1:   The comment acknowledges that the City has complied with the State Clearinghouse review

requirements, pursuant to CEQA. No further response is necessary.

2 0 4     ; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP
u._.____.._     

324



COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES     ° `- Z O  :'   ,

a, C
p+      Plan ReviewTemn PGEPIanReNeu @pge. com

ti$      Land Managemerit

Elecfric C mpany       
61118ofbigarCanyonRoed 3370A

San Ramon, CA 94583

August 13, 2019

Rosemary Martinez
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330

Ref: Gas and Electric Transmission and Distribution

Dear Ms. Martinez,

Thank you for submitting the IWRMP plans for our review. PG& E will review the submitted
plans in relationship to any existing Gas and Electric facilities within the project area. If the
proposed project is adjacenbor within PG& E owned property and/ or easements; we will be

working with you to ensure compatible uses and activities near our facilities. B- 1

Attached you will find information and requirements as it relates to Gas facilities( Attachment 1)
and Electric facilities( Attachment 2). Please review these in detail, as it is critical to ensure

your safety and to protect PG& E's facilities and its existing rights.

Below is additional information for your review.

1.  This plan review process does not replace the application process for PG& E gas or

electric service your project may require. For these requests, please continue to work
with PG& E Service Planning: https:// www. pqe. cam/ en USlbusiness/ servicesJbaildinq-
a nd- renovationloverview/overview.paqe.

2.  If the project being submitted is part of a larger project, please inclutle the entire scope
B z

of your project, and not just a portion of it. PG& E' s facilities are to be incorporated within

any CEQA document. PG& E needs to verify that the CEQA document will identify any
required future PG& E services.    

3. An engineering deposit may be required to review plans for a project depending on the
size, scope, a d location of the project and as it relates to any rearrangement or new
installation of PG& E facilities.

Any proposed uses within the PG& E fee strip and/ or easement, may include a Galffornia Public
Utility Commission( CPUC) Section 851 filing. This requires the CPUC to render approval fora
conveyance of rights for specffic uses on RG& E' s fee strip or easement. PG& E will advise if the
nece. ssity to incorporate a CPUC Section 851filing is required.      

B 3

This letter does not constitute PG& E' s consent to use any portion of its easement for any
purpose not previously conveyed, PG& E will provide a project specific response as required.

Sincerely,

Plan Review Team

Land Management

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 1

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP   : 2 0 5<,

325



2; 0``°   j COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

Pacific Gas and

Electric Company'

Attachment 1— Ga"s Facilities

There could be gas transmission pipelines in this area which would be considered critical

facilities for PG& E and a high priority subsurtace installation under California law. Care must be
taken to ensure safety and accessibility. So, please ensure that if PG& E approves work near
gas transmission pipelines it is done in adherence with the below stipulations. Additionally, the
following link provides additional information regarding legal requirements under California
excavation laws: http:// usanorth819. orp/ wp- contentluploads/ 2017/ 05/ CA- LAW=Enqlish. pdf

1.     Standby Inspection: A PG& E Gas Transmission Standby Inspector must be present
during any demolition or construction activity that comes within 10 feet of the gas pipeline. This
includes all grading, trenching, substructure depth verifications( potholes), asphalt or concrete
demolition/ removal, removal of trees, signs, light poles, etc. This inspection can be coordinated

through the Underground Service Alert( U8A) service at 811. A minimum notice of 48 hours is

required. Ensure the USA markings and notifications are maintained throughout the duration of

your work.

2.     Access: At any time, PG& E may need to access, excavate, and perform work on the gas
pipeline. Any construction equipment, materials, or spoils may need to be removed upon notice.
Any temporary construction fencing installed within PG& E' s easement would also need to be
capable of being removed at any time upon notice. Any plans to cut temporary slopes
exceeding a 1: 4 grade within 10 feet of a gas transmission pipeline need to be approved by
PG& E Pipeline Services in writing PRIOR to performing the work.

3.     Wheel Loads: To prevent damage to the buried gas pipeline, there are weight limits that

must be enforced whenever any equipment gets within 10 feet of traversing the pipe.  .

Ensure a list of the axle weights of all equipment being used is available for PG& E' s Standby
Inspector. To confirm the depth of cover, the pipeline may need to be potholed by hand in a few
areas.

Due to the complex variability of tracked equipment, vibratory compaction equipment, and
cranes, PG& E must evaluate those items on a case- by- case basis prior to use over the gas
pipeline ( provide a list of any proposed equipment of this type noting model numbers and
spec' rfic attachments).

No equipment may be set up over the gas pipeline while operating. Ensure crane outriggers are
at least 10 feet from the centerline of the gas pipeline. Transport t ucks must not be parked over

the gas pipeline while being loaded or unloaded.

4.     Grading: PG& E requires a minimum of 36 inches of cover over gas pipelines( or existing
grade if less) and a maximum of 7 feet of cover at all locations. The graded surface cannot

exceed a cross slope of 1: 4.

5.     Excavating: Any digging within 2 feet of a gas pipeline must be dug by hand. Note that
while the minimum clearance is only 12 inches, any excavation work within 24 inches of the
edge of a pipeline must be done with hand tools. So to avoid having to dig a trench entirely with
hand tools, the edge of the trench must be over 24 inches away.( Doing the math for a 24 inch
wide trench being dug along a 36 inch pipeline, the centerline of the trench would need to be at
least 54 inches[ 24/ 2+ 24+ 36/ 2= 54] away, or be entirely dug by hand.)

PG& E Gas and Electric Faciliries Page 2

2. 0- 6`      ; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

326



COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES     ` 2. 0    '

Pacific Gas and

Electric Company'

Water jetting to assist vacuum excavating must be limited to 1000 psig and directed at a 40°
angle to the pipe. All pile driving must be kept a minimum of 3 feet away.

Any plans to expose and support a PG& E gas transmission pipeline across an open excavation
need to be approved by PG& E Pipeline Services in writing PRIOR to performing the work.

6.     BoringlTrenchless Installations: PG& E Pipeline Services must review and approve all

plans to bore across or parallel to( within 10 feet) a gas transmission pipeline. There are

stringent criteria to pothole the gas transmission facility at regular intervals for all parallel bore
installations.

For bore paths that cross gas transmission pipelines perpendicularly, the pipeline must be
potholed a minimum of 2 feet in the horizontal direction of the bore path and a minimum of 12

inches in the vertical direction from the bottom of the pipe with minimum clearances measured

from the edge of the pipe in both directions. Standby personnel must watch the locator trace
and every ream pass) the path of the bore as it approaches the pipeline and visually monitor

the pothole( with the exposed transmission pipe) as the bore traverses the pipeline to ensure

adequate clearance with the pipeline. The pothole width must account for the inaccuracy of the
locating equipment.

7.     Substructures: All utility crossings of a gas pipeline should be made as close to
perpendicular as feasible( 90°+/- 15°). All utility lines crossing the gas pipeline must have a
minimum of 12 inches of separation from the gas pipeline. Parallel utilities, pole bases, water

line' kicker blacks', storm drain inlets, water meters, valves, back pressure devices or other

utility substructures are not allowed in the PG& E gas pipeline easement.

If previously retired PG& E facilities are in conflict with proposed substructures, PG& E must
verify they are safe prior to removal. This includes verification testing of the contents of the
facilities, as well as environmental testing of the coating and internal surfaces. Timelines for
PG& E completion of this verification will vary depending on the type and location of facilities in
conflict.

8.     Structures: No structures are to be built within the PG& E gas pipeline easement. This

includes buildings, retaining walls, fences, decks, patios, carports, septic tanks, storage sheds,
tanks, loading ramps, or any structure that could limit PG& E' s ability to access its facilities.

9.     Fencing: Permanent fencing is not allowed within PG& E easements except for
perpendicular crossings which must include a 16 foot wide gate for vehicular access. Gates will

be secured with PG& E corporation locks.

10.    Landscaping: Landscaping must be designed to allow PG& E to access the pipeline for
maintenance and not interfere with pipeline coatings or other cathodic protection systems. No

trees, shrubs, brush, yines, and other vegetation may be planted within the easement area.
Only those plants, ground covers, grasses, flowers, and low-growing plants that grow
unsupported to a maximum of four feet( 4') in height at maturity may be planted within the
easement area.

11.    Cathodic Protection: PG& E pipelines are protected from corrosion with an" Impressed

CurrenY' cathodic protection system. Any proposed facilities, such as metal conduit, pipes,

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 3

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP ,  : _ 2 0` 7 V___i

327



2: 0 ;    , COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

Aacific Gas and

Electric Company'

service lines, ground rods, anodes, wires, etc. that might affect the pipeline cathodic protection

system must be reviewed and approved by PG& E Corrosion Engineering.

12.    Pipeline Marker Signs: PG& E needs to maintain pipeline marker signs for gas

transmission pipelines in order to ensure public awareness of the presence of the pipelines.

Wdh prior written approval from PG& E Pipeline Services, an existing PG& E pipeline marker sign
that is in direct conflict with proposed developments may be temporarily relocated to
accommodate construction work. The pipeline marker must be moved back once construction is

complete.

13.    PG& E is also the provider of distribution facilities throughout rr ny of the areas within
the state of California. Therefore, any plans that impact PG& E' s facilities must be reviewed and
approved by PG& E to ensure that no impact occurs which may endanger the safe operation of
its facilities.

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 4

2. 0- 8      ' Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

328



i

COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES       2. 0

Response to Letter B: Pacific Gas &. Electric Company

Response B- 1:   This comment is noted. This comment serves as an introduction to the comment letter. The

attachments provided in this comment letter have been forwarded to the City for their

information. No further response is necessary.

Response B- 2:   The commenter notes that: the Pacific Gas & Electric ( PG& E) plan review process does not

replace the application process for PG& E gas or electric service that maybe required for the

project; if a project is being submitted as part of a larger project, the entire scope and PG& E

facilities should be included in the CEQA document; and, an engineering deposit may be required
to review plans for a project. This comment is noted. This comment letter and the associated

attachments have been forwarded to the City for their information. No further response is

necessary.

Response B- 3:   The commenter notes that any proposed uses within the PG& E fee strip and/ or easement, may

include a California Public Utility Commission ( CPUC) Section 851 filing. This requires the CPUC to

render approval for a conveyance of rights for specific uses on PG& E' s fee strip or easement.

PG& E will advise if the necessity to incorporate a CPUC Section 851 filing is required. Any
proposed uses within a PG& E easement associated with the project would include a Section 851

filing. This comment letter and the associated attachments have been forwarded to the City for

their information. No further response is necessary.

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP ;      2:0- 9. . ' .  

329



2. 0 `    ' COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

w..::.,..__,.,.-_

September30, 2019

Mr. Greg Gibsan. Senior GYvil En neer
Gl'ty of Iatla op
340 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, Califomia 95330

Re:    Comments on Qty of Iattn-op Integrated WaterResou es Master Plan Upd e DEIR

Dear Gre

On biarch Z1, 2D19, we providedthe City comments on ti e Notice of Prepaz ion( NOP) for e
proposedDraftEIRfarthelnte atedWa6erResourcesMasterPlan( IWRMP) Update. Inthatlett r C- 1

attachedJ, we noted a number of issues for inclusion in the DEIR We found that some of ti ese issues
werg includedin the document however, others were nak In spedfiC

1.      River Islands andflie C'ity entered into a Ifth Amenchnent to the Riaertslands D evelopment
A ement( 5+h Amendm ent) by( ty Counal action in Fabruary 2 Q19( effective date April i l,
2019) that darifies the process sewer andwater allocations az e madefor the River Islands

proJect; acopy ofthe 5 h Arnendmentis: tachedforyoureference. The 5thAmendment
requiresthatbothpartiesmonitoradualusageandresultingdatasegaz ngpotablewateran C- z

sewer allo cations. The DEIRproJ ect description for wastewater and patable wdter should nobe
the prouisions ofthe 52h Amendment, inrludingthe ability ofthe City Manager to
adnilnisti- atively adjustfuture aliocations, Additlonaily, the proj ect descriptlon for die DEIR

shouldnote this adjustrnentprocess a eedto byti e Oty and River Islands andits effect on
resultant wastewater demands,

rther, we continue to analyze( 1ty water consumption d afor residenital uses. We continue
to findthatwaterdemandfor River Islands residential customers appears to be much lower

than the 430 gallons per dayperunitcurrently assumedin the IWRMP andthe Ut an Water C- 3

Management P1. The DEIRshouldnobe that ac ushnents to demand assianptions for

residential waterusage may o ccurwith future updates of the IWRMP.

2.      Wec dnotfindintheDEIRinformationregardingthecurxentstatusofSSJID' sfiledlegal

action against the State of California reg ding any possible infringement on its waterrights.
While the DEIR does an adequate job ofproviding a summ y of e cun entwater
developmentag ementprovisionsforthepossiblecurtailmentofwaterdeliveries, theDEIR   
should also mention changes in deliveries that couldo ccur as aresult of State and/ or Federal

actions andthe possibility of legal actions, Additionally, SSJID has ad itonaltre xnent of
pota} le water availahle with implementation of Phase 2 of the South County Surface Water
Prof ectandthe PtVRMP and DEIR should also inrlude thepotential for addit{ onalpotable water
capacity as a: esult

3,      Page 3. 6- 10 states ata second SSJID turnoutis" ptanned' forthe River Isl ds area These

I C- 5
faalities are currentlyunderconstructionand- e antldpatedforimplemmtationin 2020.
This desa- ipHon shouldbe updated as a result

73 WetSteiwrtItmd 4.     The DEIR stabes thatthe potential for discharge ofrecycledwaterinm the 5an Joaquin Riveris
apossihleaz eaofcontsuversy, TheDEIRdoesnothoweverincludemuchinthawayof G6

Iailvcry, Califmx a95330 prog amrnaticbaclt vundinformation regarc ngthe potential year- roimd discharge of

za. sr3.;soo

Riverlsl L.<wn

r

2. 0- 10   ° I Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

330



1

COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIRAND RESPONSES . " _' r2: 0     ;

recycled waCer into the San Joaquin River system. The effort for a possible year- round I conYd
discharge is on- going and the DEIR should at least mention this effort

5.      The DEIR figures do not include recycled water s[ orage ponds Sll, 512, and S13 within River

Islands. While these ponds maynot be necessary if a seasonal or year- round discharge of     '
recycled water becomes available, they should still be included in the figures and descripbon
as possible infrastructure during buildout conditions.

Thankyou For the oppoitunity to comment on the DE[ R Please provide us wltli notice of future
documents and mectings regarding thc IWRMP and the DEIR. Should you have any questions I C- 8

or concenis regarding[ his] e[ ter, please con lacC me at( 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely, 

usan Dell' Oss

President

cc:     Mark Meissner, Community Development Dt eckor
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager
Glenn Ge6hardt, City Gngineer

I

i
i

73WestStewarttioad   (

I
L thmp, Calitornia 95330 j

209. f179. 7900

liive• islands. com

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP      2 0 11     ,

331



2. 0.      COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

a:: _--     

March 21, 2019

Mr. Greg Gi6son, Senior Civil Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centrc Drivc

Lathrop, California 95330

Re:    Comments on Notice of Preparation- Ciry oF Lathrop integrated Water Resources
Master Plan Update DEIR

Dear Greg:

We have reviewed the Notice of Prepara[ ion for[ he proposed Draft EIR for tlte Integrated Water
Resources Master Plan( IWRMP) Update and have the followingcomments:

1.      River Islands and the City entered into a Fif[ h Amendment to the River Islands Development

Agreement[ 5 h Amendment) by City Council action in February 2019( effective date April 11,
2019) that clariFies[ he process sewer and water altocations are made for the River lslands

project; a copy of the S h Amendment is attached for you reference. The Sw Amendment

requires that both parties monitor actual usage and resul[ ing data regarding potable water and
sewer allocations. The proposed i WRMP should reFlect the provisions of the S h Amendment,

including the ability of the City Manager to administratively adjust future alIocations.

Additlonally, River Islands staff has been analyzing recent water consumption data for ics
residents( from 2014 to FeUruaty 2019) and have found that the vater demand for River
Islands residencial customers appears to 6e much lower than the 430 gallons per day per unit
currently assumed in the 1 WRMP and the Urban Water Management Pian. We look forward to

working with you and your consultants on continuing to address this issue in the near ftiture.

2.      The NOP states that the DEIR will analyze potential reducdons in pocable water resources due t

curtailment of South San Joaquin Irrigation District surface water rights." It should 6e noted

that SSJID has Filed legal action against[ he State of CaliFornia regarding any possible
infringement ou its water rights. The IWRMP and[ he DGIR needs to monitor this legal action

and potential Court action or potentlal settlement. Additionally, SSJID has additional
treatment of potable water available with implementation oF Phase 2 of the South County
Surface Water Project and the iWRMP and DELR should also include the potential for

addi[ ional potable water capaci[ y as a result.

3.      Tables i and 2 oFfhe NOP lis[ s currentand planned Capital Improvement Program( CIP)     

projects within the City for sewer and water Facilities. The[ a61es do not cover River Islands

related improvements, including L- 2 SSjID turnout For water, booster pump station and
storage, permanent sewer pump station and other Facilities already under cons[ ruction and
others planned for the River] slands planning area. The 1 WRMP should include River Islands j
facilities; we can provide additlonal information on these projects to you and your consultan[ s.       

4.      The NOP states that," the Plan also recommends[ hat the City iniriate discussion with the
Regional Water Quality Control Board( RWQCD] to Betterassess the potential for a river

discharge permit" This discussion has already 6egun and the City' s consultant, Robertson-
3w csc t, nao, a aryan, Inc. has been actively collecting data towards this effort. The IWRMP needs to indude

background information and relative data regarding the potential year- round discharge of
LaHirop, Gilifornia 95330

09. 879J9D0

Ei
Rivcrlslands. mm

I

2: 0- 12'     Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP

332



r-.__..._------ ---:-'

COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES `      2. 0       ,

4
i

f

recycled water into the San Joaquin River system and the DEIR should at leas[ analyze the
potential effects on a programmatic 6asis.      

5.      The draft IWRMP includes storage ponds 511, S12, and S13 within River Islands. The City 4should note that these ponds and possibly o[ hers may not need to be constructed if either a
seasonal or year- round discharge of recycled water becomes availaUle.    

Thank you for the oppor[ unity to comment on[ he NOP. Please provide us with notice of fucure

documents and meetings regarding the( WRMP and tite DEIR. Should you have any questions
or concerns regarding this le[ ter, please contact me a[( 209) 879- 7900.    

Sincerely,

c''-      
Susan Dell' Osso

l"    

Project Director

cc:     Mark Meissner, Community Development Director

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer

i

i

i

73 4Vrst Slcwnrt Road

W chrop. CaBfornia 95330

I

209. A19. 79( 10 1i
I

Itiverisl: mds. com
I
i

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP .     2. 0- 13      '
r_._.__.,

333



Z. O '    ' COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

WHEN RECORDED MA1L TO:

Teresa Vargas

City Clerk

CiEy of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
Above Space for 12ecorder' s Use Only)

FIFTH AMENDMENT

TO 2003 AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BYAND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND

CALIFfA, LLC

THIS FIFTH ANI NDMENT TO 2003 A1vIENDED AND RESTATED

DEVELOPNIENT AGREEMENT( the" Fifth Amendment") is entered into this 14' day

of January, 2019 by and betcveen the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation( the
Cit}`), CALIFIA, LLC, a California limited liability company(" Califia') and RIVER

ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a California limited liabilify company(" RID"),

successor in interest to The Cambay Group, Inc., a California corporation(" Cambay").
Califia and RID are collectively refened to hereinafter as" Califia."    

RECITALS

A.     The City, Cambay and Califia entered inEo that certain 2003 Amended and
Restated Development Agreement( the" Original Agreement") dated as of Februaiy 4,

2003 and recorded on March 31, 2003 in the Official Records of San Joaquin County( the
Official Records') as Document No. 2003-069319, as amended by that certain First

Amendment to 2003 Amended and Itesteted DevelopznenE Agreement By and Between

the City of Lathrop and Califia, LLC dated as of July 12, 2005 and recorded on October
19, 200b in the Official Records as Document No. 2005- 26 575( the" First Amendment"),

and as further amended by that certain Second Amendment- to 2003 Amended and
Restated Development Ab eement By and Behveen the City of Lathrop and Califia, LLC
the" Second Amendment") dated as of November 5, 2012 and recorded on November

6, 2022 in the Official Records as Document No. 2012- 145503, and as further amended

by that certain Third Amendment to the 2003 Amended and ResEated Development

2A=14`  '  Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

334



COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES .°_`  :=2':_O ° . `.'

Agreement By and'Beitiveen the City of Lathrop and Califia, LLC, jthe" Third
Amendment') dated October 7; 20I3 and recorded on December 20, 2013 in the Official

Records as DocumenE No. 2013- 156622, and as htrther amendment by that Fourth
Amendment to the 2003 Amended and Restared Deve2opment Agreement By and

eEween the City of Lafllrop and Califia, LLC( the" Faurth Amendment") dated as of
March 16, 2015 and recorded on Apri1. 15, 2015 iri the Official Recozds as Document No.
2015- 042142.

B:     The.Original Agreement, the First Annendment, the Second Amendment,

the Third Amendment, the Fourth Amendment and this Fifth Amendment. collectively
constitute the" DevelopmentAgreement." The Developmerit Agreement establislles the

terms providing foz tkle development of the Project at the Project Site.

G The City and Califia desire to further amend the Developinent Agreement

to make the changes as more partieularly set forth herein.

IVOW THEREFORE, FOR GUOD AiVD VALUABT E CONSIDERATION,
THE REC IPT AND SUFFICIENCY OF WHICH IS ACKNOWLEDGED, THE' CITY

AI TD CALIFIA AGREE' AS POtiLOWS:

AGREEMENT

1.     INcoRPot; ATioN oF REc1TAts. The,f regoing recitals are correct and are
incorporated into this Fifth Amendment by tliis reference.

2.     DEF tvE T 1s. All capitalized. terms not defined hexein shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in the Development Agreement, the First tl,mendment, or

the Second Amendinent, as the case may be.

3.     EFFEcrtv DAT tuw Or6xa. TtvEDA1 E. Tlus Fifth AmendmenE shall be

effective upon its recordation pursuant to California Government Code sec6an 65868, 5

the recordation date is the" EffecHve Date" of Ehis Bifth Amendment), which daEe in no

event shall be earlier than the effective date of Ordinance No. 19-_ approving this
Fifth Amendment. Seclion 65868. 5 of the Government Code re_quires this Fifth

Amendment be xecorded in the Official Records no later than 10 days after the City
enters into this. Fifth flmendment, and that the burdens of this Fifth Amendmeiit sha11

be binding izpon, and t11e beziefits of tlus Fifth Arnendmentshall inure Eo; all successors
in interesf to the parties to tYus Fifth EYinendment and/ or to the land depicted in Exhibit
A.

4,     OwtvsD Lfitva. Exhibit A to this Fifth Amendment clepicts the properEies

which constitute the" Owned Land" and the" dptioned Land" tuhich are benefitted and

burden.ed by the Development Agreement.

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP  2 0 15°; u

335



rm     _,  ;.

3

Z Q .   `  COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

5.     WASTEWATGR TREATMENT CAPAC ITY ALLOCATION. SecEion 6. 05. 03 is hereby
added to the Development Agreement as foIlows:

Section 6.05.03. Wast water Treatment Ca acit Allocation. The.City
hereby acknowledges that the Projec s development and infrasEructure,
including the City' s sanitary. sewer puinp stations and sanitary sewer collecrion
system, that serves the Project Site are isolated from the balance,of the City' s
planning areas and that the Pioject' s sewer flows that enter. into the City' s
sanitary sewer collection' systerri and into flle sanitary secver pump" staEion that
sexves. the Project can be measured preciselp and separately from.the rest of the
Ciry befare such flows reach the City' s LaEhrop Consolidated Treatment Faciiity

LC' F"). As a result, actuaJ sewer fiows fronn flle ProjecE' s sewer pump station

faczliEies can be utilized to estimate residential and non- residential( e. g.
commeraal) wastewater treatment capaciry allocations for the ProjecNs.

development. As such, as described below, the City shaIl utilize the
measurement of the actual flows as generated from the Project to ailocate

wastewater treatment capacity Eor the Project.

Forresidential tlses, the City allocaEes wastewater treatment capaaty in
EquivaIenE Capacity Units or" ECU' s", wifi11 each ECU being equivalent to the
capacity of bne single family residenrial dwelling: As of the Operative Date oE
t us Agreement, the City sha l allocate ECUs for the Project based upon the actual
measiuement of wastewaEer flows generated from occupied homes wikhin fl1e

Praject over time, pIus a reasonable buffer at fl1e discretion of the City, to account
for variations in data, and adjust the number of gallons per day(" ggd") of each

ECU accordingly. As af Auguse.2018, Ehe City has adjusted the alIocaEion per
ECU to 200 gpd for all areas uti.Lizing the LCTF; this shall be the starting
allocation for ttie Project, as of the Operative Date. Further, the City shaIl
retroactively adjust aIl prior allocakions of ECU' s to 200 gpd for the Pioject

starting with the first dwelling constructed in fhe project in 2014. Wittiin 30 days
of the Operative.Date, the City shall provide a summary.of this reallocation in
w"riting to RID. 

Keeping sewage strength as a conEributing factor as noted below, the City shall
base Euhzre ECU allocafions beyoz d the initial allocation upon the actual

measuxement o# wastewater flows:from occupied homes in the Project into: the

City sewer' system, plus a reasonable buffer•at the discretion of the City, Eo
account far variafions in data. As of the Operative Date, th,e Parties sYiall
continue to monitor the amount of actual flows from the ProjecE and reyiew data

for variaEions in flow over time. This tivxll include the use of separate meEers for

z on- residential uses unless an, alternative.: inethodology is agreed upan to

2 0 1`6     Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

336



COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES i   ` 2 O

s

a

deteririine non-residenHal inflows versus' residenEial. At any time thereafter,

either Parry shall have the right toYecjuest an adjustment to fl1e ECU allocation
for the Projece, subjecE to verification by Ehe other Party,. limited to only one such
request within two calendar years. Any resulting adjustments are exclusive to
this Project and shall not affect any other development area of' the City. Any
resuIting adjustments shall be made administratively by the City Manager under
recomniendation 6y' Ehe Director of Public Works. Any costs associated with the
adjustment shall be borne by the requesting Party. Unless agreed to by the
Pardes,: Euture adjustments will not be retroactively applied, but shall only ba
applied Yo new residential subdivisio.n6 Ehat are approved after the adjustment
has been made.

With respect to sewer strezigth, Ciry staff reviewed the strength( BODa' br 5 Day
Biological Oxygen Demand) of the current sewer effluent versus the strength

when the gallons per day per ECU was 260. The most recent City observed
strength.has: increased 50%, due to khe reduction in potable waferin the waste

stream due to the tivater conserving fixtures used in the newer buildings. These,
results indicate that the amount of waste needing treatment in the existing
wastewater ftow per day zs effectively tiie same as there was when the vohune of   "

flow was substantially higher. Tlie LCTT' was recently reconstructed with a
dQsign thaE anticipated an increase in sewer strength as measured by BOD5. The
LTCF inay not be able to proce5s a higher BOD5 concentrafion than currently
anticipaEed, so any additional concentrations of.sewage strength may trigger
dilutiori, or changes to the treatment. process Eo liandle t11at sEronger fiow. For

this reason, any future analy§is of lower sewer flows per unit,(ECU} will zteed to
include a review o! setvage concentration( BOD5) or other constiluents that;may
create a problem for the treatment of sewage or the disposal of treated sewage

due to' increased concentration{ eg.' electro conductivity) to determine if it will
result in issues in the effective treatznent oE inEluent at_the LCTF, in the Gity' s

collection systemipumping systems, or in the City' s ability to dispose of the
treated effluent before any future reductions can be appraved. .

6.      PCQTABLE WATER ALLOCATIQN. Section 6.05. 04 is hereby addecl ta the DeveIopment
Agreement as follows:

Section 6.05. 04. Potable Water Allocation. The Parties hereby. acknowledge that
the Project depends on a consistent and reliable potable Fvatei supply as required

by,Applicable Law. In.accordance with adopted conditions of approval for the
Vesting TenEative N1ap TracE No. 3694(" V'TNI 3694") the City shall develop a
River Islarids Water Conservation Plan.(" Conservation Plan") that. shall inctude,

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP     2 0 17 °,
L.  `    ._..:._.

337



t   

2 O,    z COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIRAND RESPONSES

but not Ue limited to: recycled rvater restricted' landscaping plant palettes,
suppleniental non- potable vater saurces( such as water from ProjecE lakes),

irrigation saving designs for residential and non- residenEial private
development, water saving fixtiires for both re's,idential and non-residential uses,
and use of energy efficient" smar' controllers utilized when patabl'e water is the
pzimary source of irrigation water. The Conservation Plan shall be required to be
adopLed by the City Council prior to the filing of the first,final map outside the
VTIvi 369, Further, the Plan shall have determined the actual vater usage witluii

River Islands based on annual moniEoring of water usage in the VTi 13694 area
ancl voluntarily impleinented conservation rxieasures. After this determination is
made and pxiar ta the_first final map outside VTM 3694, the:City" shall
retroacrively adjust all prior allocations of ECU' s to the actual usage for the
Project starting with the frrst dwelling consiructed in the project in 201. Califia

shail be responsible for its fair s are contsibution towards funding of rkie
Conservation Plan. As a resixlt of the Conservation Plan, the City shall re-all.ocate
potable tivater for the Project and determine rhe esHmated amount of potable

water necessary for build out of' the Project afrer Phase 1. The Pazties may wish to
update the Conservation Plan for Phase 2 development ta,ensure adec uate
supplies for the Project' s build out.

The intent of the Con.servation Plan is ho reduce the volume of water used per
ECU. Implementation of that ConservaEion Plan shvuld result in lowered K ater

usage, and that lower usage w'ill be ref(ected in the required potable waEer to be
provided for each future ECU, as' ezpiained' below.

For residential uses, the City allvcates.potable watei capacity iri Equivalenr
Capacity UniEs or" ECU' S", wiEh each ECU being eqttivalenE to the capacity of
one singie family residential dwelling. As oE the Operative Date of this
Agreement, the City shall alIocate HCUs for the Project based upon the ach al
measurement of water flows( as measured from water.meEers) geneiated from

the Project over time and adjust fl1e number of gallons per day(" gpd") of each

ECU accordingly. As of AugttsE2018, the City has adjusted the water allocation

per ECU to 430 gpd for all areas o# the City this shall be the starting allocatzon
fo.r Ehe.Project as of the.Operative. Date. Further, the City shall xetroactively
acijust all.prior allocations of ECU' s to 30 gpd for th.e,Praject starting wifll the
first dwelling constructed in tkie:pioject in 2014. Withiii SO days of the OperaEive
Date, the C'ity shall proyide a summary of tlus reaIlocation in writing to RID_

2 0- 1'S     Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

338



COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES  `. 2 0:= .

The City shall base future ECU vater allocations b yond the.initial allocation
upon the actual measurement of water flows. As of the Operakive Date, the

Parties shali continue to monitor the' amount of actual flows from the Project and

review data for variations in flow over time, This will include the segarate

review of ineters for residential uses. At any time thereafEer, either. Party shall
have the right to request an adjustinent to the ECTJ allocation for the Projeet,

subject to verification by the other Party, limited to only one such request in hvo     •
calendar years. Any resulting adjustments are exclusive to this Project and shall
nat' affect any oEher development area of the City. Any resulting adjustments
shall be made adniinishalively iiy the City Manager under recommendation b"y
the Director of Public Works. Any costs associated with the adjustment sha.11 be
borne by the requesting Party: FuEure adjusEments wiU not be retroactively
applied, but shalt only be applied to new residen ial subdivisions that are
approved after the adjustment has been made.

7:     EFFECT OF THIS FIFfH t1NIENDMENT. Except as expressly modified by this
Fifth Amendment, the Development Agreement shall continue in full force an i effect

according to its teims as amended_to date, and hhe City and Califia ratify ancl affirm aIl
of their respective rights and obligations under the Development tlgreeinent. In the

event.of any confiict between this Fifth Amendment and the Development Agreement,
the provisioits of this FifEh Amendment shaIl govern.

8.     COUI?Ts tutTs. Tlus Fifth Amendment may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall consliEufie an ariginal and atl of which constitute the same

document.

TN 4Vi'TNESS WHEREOF, the City and Califia have signed tlus Pifth Amendment
efEective as of:the Effective Date.

CITY OF LATHI20P CAI: IFIA, LLC

a California limited liability company

By:   By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Ivlayor.    Name:

Its:

ATTEST.    RNER ISLANDS I3EVELOPVIENT;

By:
LLC

Teresa Vargas, Cily Cierk a California' lunited liability company

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP       2 0 19 .  
Q

339



i

2. 0,    ` COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

Ivlunici al Seal}    By:
Name:

Its:

taPPRO'VED AS TC POIZv1•_t.--

ay:   r=   ^.    `'-
Salvador V. Navanete, CityAttorney

INSERT NOTARY ACKNO NL DGviENTS]

2:0- Z0    ' ':. Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

340



COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES . .'   : 2. 0;"     ;

EXHIBIT A

N

0'    2250' . 4500

SCALE:  1" = h500

F

e1

T { r
h

r
I   ...

Y w     '     t.       "   L 

4 y.ri

i(  f I       

2 5.4      f 1     ¢' s
w         .  - r    , r   

sw,   -       ;     %' --,    ,  
r ,    r

q    -. t r'•      12"

a    . t.       
r

17
F  `'           j

3 K    `   e v.

3     '     

Y'
t        z' ;    ,        t.$     ..'       ' 

p

t.:       ^      .+,    4  ;

i
3 trex vuas }_, tl

t   '  C
y Gan.  $

a
i,'   

ip'     ,"
o, 

i   
Y•'

t x' s      ?
r,    

h`  ,,. .
F a5 '    '   y°   

r   
iri.       l. t ig,       .

i       o-     

s:' ,,
j,+

i   ..   

t xlr

I n •   '^- 1
4  . y r'  '.',

f4           '  

r. n,

s;? st,r<•:'.,
R1VER ISLANDS

r.`s'-`=   PROJECTAREA

r

d 5.'

RIVER 1SLANDS r'     

PROJECTAREA
N , N-, " 

6200 Stoneridge Mell Road, Suits 330
CfTY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CAUF. ORAJfA       Pleasamm, CA 94588

DATE: DEGEMBER 7, 2018 Ph 925.Y23. 8340 adeQengineering. cam

7125501-RNEEilSlANDS D4VCilE) Wifi1T5ViPN F.( WB(T125501 RI_PftOJEGTAREAEXF98R.D4Y6

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP   .:  2 0 21 `"   {

341



Z. O`      COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND 1 ESPONSES

Response to Letter C: River Islands

Response C- 1:   This comment is noted. This comment serves as an introduction to the comment letter. The

attachments provided ' in this comment letter have been forwarded to the City for their
information. See Responses C- 2 through C- 7 for further explanations regarding the Draft EIR. No

further response is necessary.

Response C- 2:   The commenter provides details regarding the Fifth Amendment to the River Islands

Development Agreement ( 5th Amendment) which was adopted by City Council action in

February 2019 ( effective date April 11, 2019) that clarifies the process sewer and water

allocations are made for the River Islands project. The commenter also requests that the Project

Description chapter of the Draft EIR note the provisions of the Fifth Amendment and the

adjustment process agreed to by the City and River Islands and its effect on resultant wastewater
demands.

This comment is noted. See Chapter 3. 0, Revisions, of this Final EIR for the requested revisions to

the Project Description.

Response C- 3:   The commenter notes that the water demand for River Islands' residential customers appears to

be much lower than the 430 gallons per day per unit currently assumed in the IWRMP and the

City' s Urban Water Management Plan. The commenter concludes that the Draft EIR should note

that adjustments to demand assumptions for residential water usage may occur with future
updates of the IWRMP.

This comment is noted. See Chapter 3. 0, Revisions, of this Final EIR for the requested revisions to

the Project Description.

Response C- 4:   The comment notes that information regarding the current status of SSJID' s filed legal action

against the State of California regarding any possible infringement on its water rights is not

included in the Draft EIR. The commenter also notes that while the Draft EIR does an adequate

job of providing a summary of the current water development agreement provisions for the

possible curtailment of water deliveries, the Draft EIR should also mention changes in deliveries

that could occur as a result of State and/ or Federal actions and the possibility of legal actions.

Additionally, the commenter concludes that SSJID has additional treatment of potable water

available with implementation of Phase 2 of the South County Surface Water Project and the
IWRMP, and notes that the Draft EIR should also include the potential for additional potable

water capacity as a result.

This comment is noted. See Chapter 3. 0, Revisions, of this Final EIR for the requested revisions to

the Project Description.

Response C- 5:   The comment notes that the planned SSJID turnout for the River Islands area is currently under
construction and are anticipated for implementation in 2020. The commenter also requests that

this information on page 3. 6- 10 of the Draft EIR be updated as a result.

This comment is noted. See Chapter 3. 0, Revisions, of this Final EIR for the requested revisions to

the Project Description.

Response C- 6:   The comment notes that the Draft EIR does not include much information regarding the potential
year- round discharge of recycled water into the San Joaquin River, which is identified in the Draft

2. 0- Z2     ; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

342



COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES  . . - Z. O .    ;

EIR as a possible area of controversy. The comment also notes that the effort for a possible year-

round discharge is on- going and the Draft EIR should mention this effort.

As discussed on pages 2. 0- 7 and 2. 0- 8 of Chapter 2. 0, Project Description, of the Draft EIR,

alternative uses of recycled water were evaluated in Phase 2B and beyond, including increased
percolation and river discharge of CTF effluent to the San Joaquin River. These alternatives have

the potential to provide increased water supply benefits and reduce the areas required for

recycled water storage and disposal. The City has initiated discussions with Central Valley

Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) staff regarding obtaining a National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit for a surface water discharge as a means of

disposing of CTF effluent in the future and is currently preparing a report for the RWQCB

regarding regionalization, reclamation, recycling, and conservation to support the permitting

effort. The Recycled Water System Master Plan recommends that the City initiate a percolation

study to assess locations in the City which have suitable soils for a percolation.

This section of Chapter 2. 0 of the Draft EIR has been revised as requested. See Chapter 3. 0,

Revisions, of this Final EIR.

Response C- 7:   The comment notes that the Draft EIR figures do not included recycled water storage ponds 511,

512, and 513. The commenter also requests that the figures and descriptions be included in the

Draft EIR figures.

This comment is noted. Storage pond S13 is included in Figure 2. 0- 8 on page 2. 0- 23 of Chapter

2. 0, Project Description, of the Draft EIR. This storage pond is included in Phase 26 of the

proposed recycled water system infrastructure improvements.  Storage pond S13 is also

discussed on page 2. 0- 7 of Chapter 2. 0. See Chapter 3. 0, Revisions, of this Final EIR for the

requested revisions to the Project Description regarding storage ponds S11 and 512.

Response C- 8:   This comment is noted. This comment serves as a conclusion to the comment letter. The City will

provide River Islands with notice of future documents and meetings regarding the IWRMP and

Draft EIR. No further response is necessary.

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP I 2'.0=23'     

343



2. 0 .     ; COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

5 JCOG, Inc.

555EaztWeberAvem e . StocktoMCA9520?.( 209) 2350600 . FAX{ 209J235- 6t38

San] oaquin CountyNlulti- Species Habitat Conservation f Ope l Space Plan( SJMSCP)

SJ1biSCP RESPONSE TO LOCAL JUItISDICTTON( RTLn
ADVISORY AGINCY NOTICE TO SJCOG, Inc.

To:      Greg Gibson, Cily of Lathrop, Community Developmerrt Departmer

From:    Laurel Boyd, BJCOG, inc.

Date:    September 25, 2019

Local Jurisdiction Project Title: Notice of Availabiliry forthe Lathrop Irrtegrated Water Resources Master Pian Draft EIR

Assessor Parcel Number( s):   MuRiple

Local Jurisdiction Project Number:    WA

Total Acres to 6e converted from Open Space Use: Unknown

Habitat Types to be Disturbed: Agricultural, Multi- Purpose, Natural and Urban Habitat Land

Species Impact Findings:     Findings to be determined by SJMSCP biologist.

Dear Mr. Gibson:

SJCOG, Inc. has reviewed the Notice of Availability for the Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Pian Draft
Environmental Impact Report.  The proposed project includes the adoption and implementation of the IWRMP, which

includes the improvement projects summarized in the proposed Water System Master Plan, Wastewater System Master

Plan, and Recycled Water System Master Plan. The Water System Master Plan focuses on the development of water

demand unit factors and projections, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing water infrastructure and key planned
improvements, and development of recommended water system capital improvement projects ( CIPs). The Wastewater

System Master Plan focuses on development of wastewater flow unit factors and projections, hydraulic assessment of the

City' s existing infrastructure and key planned conveyances, and development of recommended wastewater CIPs. The
Recycled Water System Master Plan focuses on an evaluation of recycled water use and disposal alternatives, recycled

water balance analyses, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing recycled water infrastructure and key planned
improvements,  and development of recommended recycled water system improvements and operational

recommendations. Generators would be provided in conjunction with the proposed water pump station improvements.
Additionaliy, Supervjsory Control and Data Acquisition communication towers would also be provided. The IWRMP is
located throughout the City of Lathrop. D- i

The City of Lathrop is a signatory to San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space P an
SJMSCP). Participation in the SJMSCP satisfies requirements of both the state and federal endangered species acts,

and ensures that the impacts are mitigated below a level of significance. in compliance with the California Environmentai

Qualiry Act( CEQA). The LOCAL JURISDICTION retains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriate Incidental Take
Minimization Measure are properly implemented and monitored and that appropriate fees are paid in compliance with the
SJMSCP. Although participation in the SJMSCP is voluntary, Local JurisdictioNLead Agencies should be aware that if
project applicants choose against participating in the SJMSCP, they will be required to provide aiternative mitigation in an
amount and kind equal to that provided in the SJMSCP.

This Project is subject to the SJMSCP. This can be up to a 30 day process and it is recommended that the project
applicant contact SJMSCP staff as early as possible. It is also recommended that the project applicant obtain an
information package. hcm: f www. s; coa. ora

Please contact SJMSCP staff regarding completing the following steps to satisfy SJMSCP requirements:

Schedule a SJMSCP Biologist to perform a pre- construction survey prior to any ground disturbance

SJMSCP Incidental take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:   D- z

1.  Incidentat Take Minimiiation Meuvres( ITA IIvIs) will be igued[ o the pmject acid must be signed by[ he project appli nt prior to any
ground disturbance bu[ no later han six( months from receipt of the 1TMMs. If ITMMs are not si ed within six monlhs, tho applican[

must reapply for SJMSCP Coverage. Upon receipt of signed ITMMs from projat applicant, SJCOG, Inc. 4sffwill sign the ITMMs.' Ihis
is the effective da[ e of Ihe ITNIMs.

2. 0- 24     ; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

344



v_.---_>..___ .,

COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES r "  `` 2..0 j

2 SJCOG,  Inc.

2.  Under no cira rtinance phall ground diswrbancc uccurNithoul cumpliance and sausfaction of Ihe I'f L is:

3.  ' ISpan Issuance of i'ully executed ITti111ts and p ior tu any ground disturbance, tlie project applicant must:
a.  Posl a bond for paymenl of t}ie applicable S.ID,ISCP fee covering d e en irely of[ he projetl acreage eing covetecl( the bond

shouldbe valid for oo longer tha a 6 manlh periad}; or

b.  PayJhe appropriate S.IMSCP fce for• tlie entirety of the projecl acreage beiny covered;. or.
c.  Dedicate la id' u- liai offces, eithcr as conscrvation easnnrnts orfee tiUe; or
d.  Purchase epproved mitigatlon 6ank credits.

4.  WiWin6mcntlisfromtl eeffectivedatcoftheI7TvT11 fsor isaiu eeofabnildingpttmit, whicheveroceursfirst, ttieprojectapplican[ must:
a.  Pay Uu appropriate S.ID4SCP for he entiroty of the project aQea, e tieing co ered; or p_z
b.  Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservalion easanen ls or fce tiHe; or

eont. tl

c.  Purchase approved miligadon 6nnk' credits.

Failure to satisfy Ihe obligations of the rt itigation fee shall subjed Uie bond[ n be called.

Receive your Certificate of Payment and release the required pe mit

t shouid be noted thaf if fhis projecf has any potential impacts to waters of fhe Unifed States( pursuant fo Sectron 404 Clean WaterAcC], it would require
the proJect to seek vofunfary coverage through the unrttapped process undeP the SJILISCP which could take up fo 90 days. ! f may be prudent to obfain a
preliminary Nretlands map bom e quelified consu/ tenf: lf waters of fhe United Stafes are confi med on fhe proJecf site,' tFie Corps an'd the Regiona! Water'
Quality Control Boerd( RWQCB) would have regulafory authority over fhose mapped areas( pursuanf to Section 404 ertd 40Y of the Clean Water Act
respectiveyj and petmifs would 6e required from each of these resource egertcies prior fo greding fhe pro%ecf site.

If you have any questions, please call( 209} 235- 0600.

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP ?"., ' 2°0=25 ' `

345



2: 0       COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

3 S. 1COG,  Inc.

S j C O G, Inc.

San Joaqufn Coz rrty MNlti-Sj ecies Habitat Conseruah' on d^ Open Sfiace Plan

555 East Weber Avenue.. Stockton, CA 95202•( 209) 235- 0600• FAX( 209) 235- 0, 38

r, 76i fl

a TO:      Local Jurisdiction: Communitv Development Department, Planninq Department, Buildinq

Department. Enqineerina DeGrartment. Survev Department. TransAortation Department.

Other:

FROM:   Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.

D T AUTH RaZ SHTE 65TUF Ai CE

DQ fOT lSSUE A t1tLDIf G PERNiiT

D IV T I+ S JE FOR T i15 9' ROJECT

The landowneddeveloper for this site has requested coverage pursuant to the San Joaquin Courrty Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Pian( SJMSCP). In accordance with that agreemerrt, the

Applicar t has agreed to:

1)    SJMSCP Incidental Take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:

1.  Incidental Take Minimization Measures( ITMMs) will be issued to the projecf and must be sigtted by the
project applicant prior to azryground dishubance but no later than six( 6) menths from receipt ofthe 1TbiMs.

If ITMI Is aze not signed willun six months, the applicant must reapply for SJMSCP Coverage. Upon receipt
of signed ITbIMs& om project applicant, S] COG, Inc. staEt' will sign the TI' MMs. This is the et' ective date

of the ITMivIs.

2.  Under no circumstance shall ground disturbance oca¢ without compliance and satisFaction of the IT'MMs•.
t 3.  Upon issuance of fully executed ITMMs and prior to any ground dishubance, the project applicant musL

j  . '     

a. Post a boncl for payment of the applicable S] MSCP fee covering the entuety ofthe project acreage

being covered( the bond shovld lx valid for no longer than a 6 month period); or
b. Pay ihe appropriate SJMSCP fee for the entirzty oftl e project acreage being coveced; or
c. Dedicate land in-lieu of fees, eittter as consecvation easements or fee title; or

d Purchase approved figation banl: credits.

4.  Within 6 motdhs from the effective date of the ITIvfMs or issuance of a building peimit, whichever occurs
j        f'     l' first, the ptoject applicant must:

y    
Y a. Pay the appropriate SJMSCP for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or

b. Dedicate land in-lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fea fiUe; or

c. Purct ve approved miflgation bazik credits.

Failure to satisfy the obligations of the tigation fee shall subject the bcmd to be called.
p.AL

Project Title: Notice of Availabilitv for the Citv of Lathrop Inteqrated Water Resources Master Pian DEIR

Assessor Parcel# s: Multinle

T R Section( s):

Local Jurisdiction Contact: Greq Gibson

The LOCAL JURISDICTI N refains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriafe
Incidental Take Minimization Measures are properly implemented and monitored and that
appropria4e fees are paid iri comPliance with the SJMSCP.

2. 0- 26    '; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

346



i
COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES       2. 0 ii

Response to Letter D: San Joaquin Council of Governrnents

Response D- 1:   The commenter indicates that SJCOG, Inc. has reviewed the project and states that the City of

Lathrop is a signatory to San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space
Plan ( SJMSCP) and participation in the SJMSCP requirements satisfies both the state and federal

endangered species acts, and ensures that the impacts are mitigated below a level of significance

in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA). The commenter states that

the " LOCAL JURISDICTION" retains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriate Incidental

Take Minimization Measure are properly implemented and monitored and that appropriate fees
are paid in compliance with the SJMSCP. The commenter indicates that the project is subject to

the SJMSCP.

This comment is noted. These comments are largely intended to be informative and are

adequately addressed in the Draft EIR Section 3. 1, Biological Resources. These comments do not

warrant a response. No further response is necessary.

Response D- 2:   The commenter provides some information regarding the process and requirements. The

commenter requests that the City and/ or applicant contact SJMSCP staff regarding completing

the steps to satisfy SJMSCP requirements. The commenter also notes that if the project has any
potential impacts to waters of the United States ( pursuant to Section 404 Clean Water Act), it

would require the project to seek voluntary coverage through the unmapped process under the

SJMSCP which could take up to 90 days.

The SJMSCP is discussed in Section 3. 1, Biological Resources, of the Draft EIR. Tables 3. 1- 1 and

3. 1- 2 on pages 3. 15 through 3. 1- 12 of Section 3. 1 include columns that show whether each

potential plant or animal species is covered by the SJMSCP. Background information and

implementation strategies associated with the SJMSCP are also discussed on pages 3. 1- 17

through 3. 1- 19 the Draft EIR. Mitigation Measure 3. 1- 1 on page 3. 1- 28 of the Draft EIR requires

the Project proponent to seek coverage under the SJMSCP to mitigate for habitat impacts to

covered special- status species. Coverage involves compensation for habitat impacts on covered

species through implementation of incidental take and minimization Measures ( ITMMs) and

payment of fees for conversion of lands that may provide habitat for covered special- status
species. These fees are used to preserve and/ or create habitat in preserves to be managed in

perpetuity. Obtaining coverage for a project includes incidental take authorization ( permits)
under the Endangered Species Act Section 10( a), California Fish and Game Code Section 2081,

and the Migratory Bird Treaty Act. Coverage under the SJMSCP would fully mitigate all habitat
impacts on covered special- status species.

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP '   '; 2 0 27__   

347



2. 0       COMMENTS ON DRAFT EIR AND RESPONSES

This page left intentionally blank.

2. 0- 28  __  ; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

348



r-.____.-------- i

REVISIONS ;, `    3. 0      

This section includes minor edits and changes to the Draft EIR. These modifications resulted from

responses to comments received during the public review period for the Draft EIR, as well as City

staff initiated edits to clarify the details of the project.

Revisions herein do not result in new significant environmental impacts,  do not constitute

significant new information, nor do they alter the conclusions of the environmental analysis that

would warrant recirculation of the Draft EIR pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15088. 5.

Other minor changes to various sections of the Draft EIR are also shown below. These changes are

provided in revision marks with underline for new text and *;^ ^+
f,,. a o+,,,+,,.,+

3. 1 REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR

ES EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

No changes were made to Chapter ES of the Draft EIR.

1. 0 INTRODUCTION

No changes were made to Section 1. 0 of the Draft EIR.

2. 0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The following change was made to page 2. 0- 2 of Chapter 2. 0 of the Draft EIR:

The IWRMP has identified significant changes from previously approved master plan documents.
Some of these changes include:

Changes in demand factors for water, sewer and associated recycled water storage and

disposal capacity.

Changes in land use and growth projections from the General Plan.

Closure of the Sharpe Army Depot and need for City to provide water and sewer service to

the Army & Air Force Exchange Services ( AAFES) and other organizations at the military
base.

Potential reductions to the City' s water supply due to Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act implementation, and curtailment of South San Joaquin Irrigation District

surface water rights.

Consolidation of existing proposed wastewater treatment facilities into a single facility and
associated recycled water system used for land disposal of effluent.

Need for additional treatment of groundwater for arsenic, manganese, uranium and other

constituents of concern.

The proiect site includes the River Islands development in southwestern Lathrop. River Islands and

the City of Lathrop entered into a Fifth Amendment to the River Islands Development A reement

5th Amendment) bv Citv Council action in Februarv 2019 ( effective date April 11, 2019) that clarifies

the process sewer and water allocations are made for the River Islands proiect. The 5th Amendment

requires that both parties monitor actual usa e and resultin data resardin potable water and

sewer allocations. Under the 5th Amendment provisions, the Citv Manager has the abilitv to

I" _ ''
a,-,   °

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP iV _. 3: 0= 1.    

349



r.,___..,___.__.__.. 5

3. Q °:  `; REVISIONS

administrativelv adiust future allocations. This adiustment process was a reed to bv the Citv and

River Islands.

It is noted that the River Islands development roup continues to analvze Citv water consumption

data for residential uses. Water demand for River Islands' residential customers appears to be

significantiv lower than the 430 allons per dav per unit currentiv assumed in the IWRMP and Citv' s

the Urban Water Mana ement Plan.  In accordance with the 5th Amendment provisions,

adiustments to the demand assumptions for residential water usa e mav occur with future updates

of the IWRMP.

The following change was made to pages 2. 0- 6 and 2. 0- 7 of Chapter 2. 0 of the Draft EIR:

During 2017 and 2018, the Phase 2A improvements were implemented, with the exception that LAA

A34 was not constructed. This resulted in an interim disposal capacity of approximately 1. 55 MGD.

In late 2018, LAA A34 was constructed, but as of December 2018, the permitting has not yet been

performed to increase the disposal capacity to approximately 1. 9 MGD.

In late 2018, there were some developments that may affect the phasing of the recycled water
capacity as well as the configuration of Phase 26. These developments include the possible removal

or replacement of selected storage ponds and/ or LAAs. These removals and/ or replacements were

not anticipated at the time of the original drafting of the Recycled Water System Master Plan and

are therefore not considered in the analysis included in the Master Plan. Additional stora e ponds

or LAAs have also been identified in the Recvcled Water Master Plan beyond the 2. 5 MGD capacitv

in case they are needed in the future. Further, in late 2019, the RWQCB improved an increase in

capacity from 1. 55 MGD to 1. 69 MGD, including the addition of LAA A34 and increases in capacitv at

PB- 1( percolation basin).

The following change was made to pages 2. 0- 7 and 2. 0- 8 of Chapter 2. 0 ofthe Draft EIR:

Alternative uses of recycled water were evaluated in Phase 2B and beyond, including increased

percolation and river discharge of CTF effluent to the San Joaquin River. The possibilitv of a vear-

round dischar e of recvcled water to the San Joaauin River is onsoin. These alternatives have the

potential to provide increased water supply benefits and reduce the areas required for recycled

water storage and disposal. The City has initiated discussions with Central Valley Regional Water

Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) staff regarding obtaining a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

System ( NPDES) permit for a surface water discharge as a means of disposing of CTF effluent in the
future. The Citv recentiv submitted the report on re ionalization, reclamation, recvclin, and

conservation to support the permittin  effort.  The Recycled Water System Master Plan

recommends that the City initiate a percolation study to assess locations in the City which have
suitable soils for a percolation.

Figures 2. 0- 7 and 2. 0- 8 on pages 2. 0- 21 and 2. 023 of Chapter 2. 0 of the Draft EIR have been

replaced with the images on the following pages:

3. 0- 2      ; Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

350



LATHROP

INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES

i
MASTER PLAN

Figure 2. 0- 7

Phase 2A Recycled Water System

Infrastructure Projects

PMP12 eqend

rA36      1 Sphere of Influence
S2a.'       

i
Pipe Diameter, Inches

s'`."' c   
6  -  16 - Inactive Pipe

J
A, Nk_,   s e

i o za

1... PMPJ

Z -  ZM1

r•  ss Recycled Water Distribution Infrestructure

I           

i
Storage Pond

P

Percolation Basin

y ,    

Land Application Area
S A.

q3o
a     

i
Landscape Irrigation Area

nai

FuWre Permitted
A54

4

N

Crossraads PMP
a Pump Station

PMP2

as pB      Other lnfrastructuresi  , 
sz

s'   

n, rs Ps s m ClosedValve

e c
Qi Isolation Plate

1 RI- PS PS
PMP7      ,'

S12

511" ..      

To River Island Non- Potable Water Distribution System)
AZB

i

M` 

A35b
A35c N

PMP10 P5. A35

t g g 4. 000 8, 000

ScaleinFeet)

A

i,   „ u :   , i,     r

A u.. PL,,. un,,. hn_ u. n,. Fn, n.. 0 n. n,.,,, 

351



LATHROP

INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES

r„^  i
MASTER PLAN

r...'.

Figure 2. 0- 8.

Phase 26 Recycled Water System

Infrastructure Projects

Leqend

CLSP 2\
1 Sphere of Influence

PMP12

CLSP 1 i
Pipe Diameter, Inches

529   

6  —  16s2s

i
8 t 8

10 20oos eeis eo

PMP4      '    
2   24

PS 57
o nLpJ F Pa

Recycled Water Distribution Infrastructure

1...• s`.    

r,. 
vMv3

i
Storage Pond

ss

Percolation Basin
CLSP 4

t
CLSP 3

Land Application Area

J r a Landscape Irrigation Area

pMpg Future Permitted

A30    .       
f.

s

y....., r.•    ,  nsi sis r°: 0 Pump Station
n3a

e'' Other Infrastructure
u     f.  Crossroads PMP

a

PB
0 Closed Valve

sx
r F,•:     m Isolation Plate

A PS PS 55

B`• C
RI- PS PS

PMP1      , I
j S72

571    

To River Island Non- Potable Water Distribution System)   q2g

j` 

N
A356

A35c

I•'/'

A
PMP70 P5:  A75

516
0 4, 000 8, 000

5 I F il, ...   ..,.,..,

i. i i_ _., i_,. .., i

ri,.,.,...._ ila

U     Pia uin  ,   p    --  .
I.. i: lil. ei' I i R. li. . . i. 11i i... r.` Il i.  

352



REVISIONS       3. 0      

3. 1 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

No changes were made to Section 3. 1 of the Draft EIR.

3. 2 CULTURAL AND TRIBAL RESOURCES

No changes were made to Section 3. 2 ofthe Draft EIR.

3. 3 GEOLOGY AND SOILS

No changes were made to Section 3. 3 of the Draft EIR.

3. 4 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

The following changes were made to pages 3. 4- 15 and 3. 4- 16 of Chapter 3. 4 of the Draft EIR:

Chapter 11. 34, Stormwater Mana ement and Dischar e Control, of the Citv' s Municipal Code

outlines appropriate design standards and best mana ement practices for new development and

redevelopment prolects. According to Section 11. 34. 120 of Chapter 11. 34, anv person performin

construction in the Citv shall prevent pollutants from enterin the stormwater convevance svstem

and comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances or re ulations includina but

not limited to the State Construction Activitv Stormwater Permit and the Citv grading, erosion and

sediment control policies. Additionallv, anv person performin construction work on a Citv proiect

shall_ prevent pollutants from enterin the stormwater conveVance sVstem and comply with all

applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances or re ulations includin but not limited to the

State Construction Activity Stormwater Permit and the Citv radin, erosion and sediment control

policies. Further, each person applvin for a radin or buildins permit for any proiect which does

no_t_require compliance with re ulations overnin State Construction Activitv Stormwater Permits

shall submit to the Citv, and implement, an erosion and sediment control plan adequate to

accomplish all of the following:

1)  Retain on site the sediments generated on or brou ht to the proiect site, usin treatment

control or structural best mana ement practices;

2)  Retain construction- related materials and wastes, spills and residues at the proiect site and

prevent dischar es to streets, draina e facilities, and the stormwater convevance svstem,

receivin waters or adlacent properties;

3)  Contain non- stormwater runoff from equipment and vehicle washin at the proiect site•

and

4)  Control erosion from slopes and channels throu h use of effective best mana ement

practices, such as limitation of radin durin the wet season, inspection of graded areas

durin rain events; planting and maintenance of ve etation on slopes if any and coverin

a_ny slopes susceptible to erosion.

difb tin. i_4a cur_o- 31L_1 r_   ntod- 6olo_ — oqaiic 2 v91 5 Managemen aFl— u j--+co-- oc

i i i

s ea e s, sel4e ts tf., '      + }'. Compliance with Chapter 11. 34 of the Citv' s Municipal

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP ^    _ 3. Oti 5.  _  I

353



3. 0      ` REVISIONS

Codelmplemen a ien ef PdFi ig t+e„; s- i will ensure that this e e ia impact is .

e- a less than significant e.

OPERATIONAL PHASE IMPACTS

The operational phase of the project will . occur after construction is completed and the water,

wastewater and recycled water improvements have been brought on- line. The proposed pump
stations, pipelines, agriculture irrigation areas, storage ponds, and related improvements would not

involve the handling of hazardous materials.

The proposed emergency generators would use diesel fuel, although the generators would only be

run for maintenance and air quality permit testing requirements. Diesel fuel may also be stored on-

site, such as within a building. If handled appropriately, diesel fuel would not pose a significant risk.

There will be a risk of release of these materials into the environment if they are not stored and

handled in accordance with best management practices approved by San Joaquin County
Environmental Health Division and the Lathrop Fire Department. Implementation of Mitigation
Measure 3. 4- 1 will ensure that this potential impact is reduced to a less than significant level.

MITIGATION MEASURE S

Mitigation Measure 3.4- 1: Prior to bringing hazardous marerials onsite, the applicant shall submit

a Hazardous Materials Business Plan ( HMBPJ to San Joaquin County Environmental Health Division

CUPAJ for review and approval.  If during the construction process the contractors or the
subcontractors generates hazardous waste, the applicant must register with the CUPA as a

generator of hazardous waste, obtain an EPA ID# and accumulate, ship and dispose of the

hazardous waste per Health and Safety Code Ch. 6.5. ( California Hazardous Waste Control LawJ.

3. S ITYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

No changes were made to Section 3. 5 of the Draft EIR.

3. 6 UTILITIES

The following changes were made to pages 3. 6- 9 and 3. 6- 10 of Chapter 3. 6 of the Draft EIR:

Surface Water Facilities

In 2005, SSJID began providing treated surface water from the Stanislaus River to the Cities of

Lathrop, Manteca, and Tracy, as part of the SCWSP. SSJID' s supply is the Stanislaus River and is

based on pre- 1914 water rights and post- 1914 appropriative water rights for direct diversion to

storage. SSJID' s surface water rights are subject to a 1988 Agreement and Stipulation with the

United States Bureau of Reclamation regarding the New Melones Reservoir operation. Phase I of

3. 0- 6-      Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP
w....____.........

354



REVISIONs t     ' 3: 0 i

the SCWSP construction was completed in July 2005. Phase II, including delivery to the City of

Escalon, will be initiated when the participants notify SSJID of an impending need.

The SCWSP provides treated surface water from the Stanislaus River via Woodward Reservoir under

a 300, 000 acre- foot per year ( AFY) entitlement. The supply is treated at SSJID' s Nick C. DeGroot
Water Treatment Plant which includes air floatation clarification and a submerged membrane

filtration system. There are three large storage tanks and four pump stations that deliver the water

over 20 miles to the City via SSJID' s Drinking Water Pipeline.

SSJID has additional treatment of potable water available with implementation of Phase 2 of the

South Countv Surface Water Proiect and the proposed IWRMP, which could result in additional

potable water capacitV.

On January 10, 2019, Oakdale Irrigation District and SSJID ioined with other members of the San

Joaquin Tributaries Authoritv( SJTA) in a lawsuit challengin the state' s ri ht to arbitrarilV increase

flows in the Stanislaus and two other rivers. The iniunction request was filed in Tuolumne Countv

Superior Court a ainst the State Water Resources Control Board over its proposed Bav- Delta Phase

1_ unimpaired flow proposal, adopted Dec. 12, 2018. The plaintiffs are OID, SSJID, the Turlock

Irri ation District, and the Citv and Countv of San Francisco.

The lawsuit contends that the water board' s plan to require 40% in unimpaired flows, with a ran e

of 30% to 50% between Februarv and June," directiv and irreparablv" harms the SJTA members. The

plan " will cause substantial losses to the surface water supplv relied upon bv the SJTA member

agencies for agricultural production, municipal supply, recreational use, hydropower seneration,

amon other thin s. Implementation will also cause direct impacts to roundwater resources relied

upon by the SJTA member agencies."

Dependin on the ultimate outcome of the lawsuit, changes in deliveries could occur as a result of

State and/ or Federal actions and the possibilitv of legal actions.

The following changes were made to page 3. 6- 10 of Chapter 3. 6 of the Draft EIR:

The City' s water distribution system consists of a single pressure zone and approximately 142 miles

of distribution pipelines ranging from 2 inches to 30 inches in diameter. The following list describes

the major components of the City' s water distribution system facilities; these facilities include

City- owned or City- operated infrastructure required to serve groundwater, surface water, and

recycled water supplies:

The City of Lathrop has an emergency intertie with the City of Stockton for potable supply.

The City receives SSJID treated surface water at SSJID Turnout 1, which includes a 1. 0 MG

tank and 7. 5 mgd peak capacity. Turnout 1 is not owned by the City, and is therefore not

included in the City' s water storage. A second SSJID turnout is currentiv under construction
la e in the River Islands area with a 1 million- gallon treated storage. Turnout 1 is

anticipated for implementation in 2020.

4.0 OTHER CEQA- REQUIRED TOPICS

No changes were made to Chapter 4. 0 of the Draft EIR.

Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP .      3. 0'- 7,     j

355



3 0 .     ; REVISIONS

S. O ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED PROJECT

No changes were made to Chapter 5. 0 of the Draft EIR.

6. 0 REPORT PREPARERS

No changes were made to Chapter 6. 0 of the Draft EIR.

7. 0 REFERENCES

No changes were made to Chapter 7. 0 of the Draft EIR.

3 0= 8;      Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

356



FINAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING

PROGRAM
4 O      :

3

This document is the Final Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ( FMMRP) for the Lathrop
Integrated Water Resources Master Plan  ( IWRMP)  Project ( project). This FMMRP has been

prepared pursuant to Section 21081. 6 of the California Public Resources Code, which requires

public agencies to " adopt a reporting and monitoring program for the changes made to the project
or conditions of project approval, adopted in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the

environment."  A FMMRP is required for the proposed project because the EIR has identified

significant adverse impacts, and measures have been identified to mitigate those i,mpacts.

The numbering of the individual mitigation measures follows the numbering sequence as found in
the Draft EIR.

4. 1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

The FMMRP,  as outlined in the following table,  describes mitigation timing,  monitoring

responsibilities, and. compliance verification responsibility for all mitigation measures identified in

this Final EIR.

The City of Lathrop will be the primary agency responsible for implementing the mitigation
measures and will continue to monitor mitigation measures that are required to be implemented

during the operation of the project.

The FMMRP is presented in tabular form on the following pages. The components of the FMMRP

are described briefly below:

Mitigation Measures: The mitigation measures are taken from the Draft EIR in the same

order that they appear in that document.

Mitigation Timing: Identifies at which stage of the project mitigation must be completed.

Monitoring Responsibility:   Identifies the agency that is responsible for mitigation

monitoring.       

Compliance Verification: This is a space that is available for the monitor to date and initial

when the monitoring or mitigation implementation took place.

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP +   ; 4 0 1     
4 ..,., . LL. 

357



4:0 FINAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

TABLE 4. 0- 1: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT MITIGATION MEASURE TIbIING
MONITORING VERIFICATION

RESPONSIB/ LITY DATE INITIALS•":,
wa

r..   ,
x r.'

BIOLOGICALR6SOURCCS    ,.'         .         •.  

Impact 3. 1- 1: The proposed Mitigation Measure 3. 1- 1: Prior to commencement of any grading San Joaquin Prior to

project has the potential to result activities, the project proponent shall seek coverage under the SJMSCP to Council of commence-

in direct or indirect effects on mitigate for ha6itat impocts to covered special status species. Coverage Governments ment of any

special- status species involves compensation for hobitat impacts on covered species through grading

implementation of incidental tahe and minimization Measures( lTMMs) and activities

payment offees for conversion of lands that may provide habitat for covered
special status species. These fees are used to preserve and/ or create habitat

in preserves to be managed in perpetuity. Obtaining coverage for a Project
includes incidental take authorization ( permits) under the Endangered

Species Act Section 10( a), California Fish and Game Code Section 2081, and

the MBTA. Coverage under the SJMSCP would fully mitigate all habitat
impacts on covered special- statusspecies.

CULTURALANDTRIBALRESOURCES, ..  : 

Im act 3. 2- 1: Th

e.

p e proposed Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1: All construction workers shall receive a City of Lathrop Prior to and

project has the potential to cause sensitivity training session before they begin site woric The sensitivity Community during site
a substantial adverse change to a training shall inform the workers of their responsibiliry to identify ond Development work

significant historical resource, as protect any cultural resources, including prehistoric or historic artifacts, or Department

defined in CEQA Guidelines other indications of archdeological resources, within the project site. The
15064. 5, or a significant tribal sensitivity training shall cover laws pertaining to cultural resources,   Native

cultural resource, as defined in examples of cultural resources that may be discovered in the projectsite, and American

Public Resources Code§ 21074 what to do if a cultural resource, or anything that may be a cultural resource,   Heritage

is discovered.     Commission

f any subsurface historic remains,  prehistoric or historic artifacts,
paleontological resources, other indications of archaeological resources, or

cultural and/ or tribal resources are found during grading and construction

activities, all work within 100 feet of the find shall cease, the City of Lathrop
Community Development Department shall be notified, and the applicant
shall retain an archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interior' s
Professional Qualifications Standards in prehistoric or historical

archaeology, as appropriate, to evaluate the find( s). If tribal resources are

4: 0 2        - Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

358



FIIVAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ;      -    4.:Q.  

MONITORING VERlFICAT/ ON
ENVIRONMENTAL. IMPACT MITIGATlON MEASURE TIMING

RESPONSIBILITY DATE INITIALS,

found during grading and construction activities, the applicant shall notify

the Native American Heritage Commission. / f paleontological resources are

found during grading and construction activities, a qualified paleontologist
shall be retained to determine the significance of the discovery.

The archaeologist and/ or paleontologist shall define the physical extent and

the nature of any built features or artifact-bearing deposits.  The
investigation shall proceed immediately into a formal evaluation to

determine the eligibility of the feature( s) for inclusion in the California
Register of Historical Resources. The formal evaluation shall include, at a

minimum, additional exposure of the feature( s), photo- documentation and
recordation, and analysis of the artifact assem6lage( s). / f the evaluation

determines that the feature( sJ and artifact( sJ do not have sufficient data
potential to be efigible for the California Register, additional worlc shall not

be required. However, if data potential exists ( e.g., an intact feature is
identified with a large and varied artifact assemblage), further mitigation

would be necessary, which might include avoidance offurther disturbance to

the resource( s) through project redesign. ! f avoidance is determined to be
infeasible, additional data recovery excavations shall be conducted for the
resource( s), to collect enough information to exhaust the data potential of
those resources.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15126. 4( b)( 3)( C), a data recovery plan,

which ma) ces provisions for adequately recovering the scientifically
consequential information from and about the resource, shall be prepared

and adopted prior to any excavation being undertaken. Such studies sha11 be
deposited with the California Historical Resources Regional / nformation

Center.  Data recovery efforts can range from rapid photographic

documentation to extensive excavation depending upon the physical nature

of the resource. The degree of effort shall be determined at the discretion of a
qualified archaeologist and should be sufficient to recover data considered

important to the area' s history and/ or prehistory.     Significance

determinations for tribal cultural resources shall be measured in terms of
criteria for inclusion on the California Register of Historical Resources( Title
14 CCR,§ 4852( a]), and the definition of tribal cultural resources set forth in

Public Resources Code Section 21074 and 5020. 1 ( k). The evaluation of the

tri6al cultural resource( s) shall include culturally appropriate temporary

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP '  .       4. 0= 3

359



0  =  
o.  FINAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

MONITORING ,'  `       '     VERIFICATION" ,"
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT            ,.       

f      '    

MITIGATION MEAS( IRE TIMING  

y     „ .v,     

RESPONSIBIL/ TY<< "       ; DA,TE INITIALS. :

and permanent treatment, which may indude avoidance of tribal cultural

resources, in- place preservation, and/ or re- burial on project properry so the

resource( s) are not subject to further disturbance in perpetuity. Any re- burial
shall occur at a location predetermined between the landowner and the

Native American Heritage Commission. The landowner shall relinquish

ownership of all sacred items, burial goods, and all archaeological artifacts
that are found on the project area to the Native American Heritage

Commission for proper treatment and disposition. / f an artifact must be
removed during project excavation or testing,  curation may be an
appropriate mitigation.

The language of this mitigation measure sha be included on any future

grading plans, utility plans, and subdivision improvement drawings approved

by the Ciry for the development of the project.

Impact 3. 2- 2: The proposed ImplementMitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 See Mitigation See Mitigation

project has the potential to cause Measure 3. 2- 1 Measure 3. 2- 1

a substantial adverse change to a

significant archaeological

resource, as defined in CEQA

Guidelines§ 15064. 5

Impact 3. 2- 3: The proposed ImplementMitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 See Mitigation See Mitigation

project has the potential to Measure 3. 2- 1 Measure 3. 2- 1

directly or indirectly destroy a
unique paleontological resource

or sit or unique geologic feature

Impact 3. 2- 4: The proposed Mitigation Measure 3.2- 2: If human remains are discovered during the City of Lathrop If human

project has the potential to course of construction during any phase of the project, worlc shall be halted Community remains are

disturb human remains,     at the site and at any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent Development discovered

including those interred outside human remains until the San Joaquin County Coroner has been informed and Department during the
of formal cemeteries has determined that no investigation of the cause of death is required. !f the course of

remains are of Native American origin, either of the following steps will be San Joaquin construction

taken:    County Coroner during any
phase of the

o The coroner sha  contact the Native American Heritage

4 0 4         Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP

360



a

FINAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ;   .'    4 Q F '

t    ,:    4   '   i f     : 

MONITORlNG UERIFICATION
ENC/ If ONMENTAL IMPACT     MITIGAT ON MBASUR&  q            TIMING

w. .:.+.. ,.    m. F..,._   :     . _ 

RE6PONSIBILITY      DA7' E INTl1ALS) `
w .  , ..  _.., . , s e._ ._.   . .,,. . .:. _.   , • v   ., _ e ,_  . ..,  .      ti  . ,,      .. _ .-

Commission in order to ascertain the proper descendants from the project

deceased individual The coroner shal] make a recommendation to

the landowner or the person responsible for the excavation work,

for means of treating or disposing of,with appropriate dignity, the
hurnan remains and any associated grave goods, which may include

obtaining a qualified archaeologist or team of archaeologists to

properly excavate the human remains.

The landowner shall retain a Native American monitor, and an

archaeologist, if recommended by the Native American monitor,

and rebury the Native American human remains and any
associated grave goods, with appropriate dignity, on the property
and in a location that is not subject to further subsurface

disturbance when any of the following conditions occurs:

o The Native American Heritage Commission is unable to

identify a descendent.

o The descendant identified fails to make a recommendation.

The Ciry of Lathrop or its authorized representative rejects the

recommendation of the descendant, and the mediation by the Native
American Heritage Commission fails to provide measures acceptable to the

landowner.

GEOLOGYANp SOTLS
t

L

ti.

Impact 3. 3- 2: The proposed Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1: Prior to dearir,, grading, and disturbances to State Water Prior to

project may result in substantial the ground such as stocicpilrng, or excavation for each phase of the project Resources clearing,
soil erosion or the loss of topsoil the project proponent shall submit n Notice of Intent( NOI) and Storm Water Control Board grading, and

Po( lutron Prevention Plan( SWPPP) to tlie SWRCB to obtain coverage under disturbances to

the Genera! Permit for Discharc es of Storrn Woter Associated with City of Lathrop the ground

Construction Activity ( Constrc ction Gelaernl Permit Order 2009- 0009- DWQ Community such as

amendec by 2010- 0014- DWQ & 2012- 0006- DWQ). The SWPPP shall be Development
stockpiling, or

designed with Best Managernent Practices ( BMPs) that the SWRCB has Department excavation for

deemed as effective nt reducing erosion, controlling sediment, ancl managing each phase of

rta off. These include: covering disturbed areas with mu] ch, temporary

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP    4 0= 5       

361



s

r. `

4 O  :     ' FINAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

MONITORING  •     VERIFICATION .
N,VIRONMEN, TAL IMPACT MI,TIGATION MEAS( IRE,  .   TIMING

RESPONSIBILITY   DATE INITIALS'`

seeding, soil stabilizers, bir ders, fiber rolls or blanlcets, temporary vegetation,       the project

c nd permanent seeding. Sediment control BMPs, i stalling silt fences or

placing straw wattles below slopes, installir g berms nnd other temporary
r- un- on and runoff cliversions. These BMPs are only exam les of what shocild
be considered crnd should not preclude new or innovative approaches

currently c vailable or being developed. Final selection of73MPs will be subject

to approval by City of Gathrop and the SWRCB . T1te SWPPP will be lcept on

site during construction activity and will be mnc e available upon request to

representatives of the SWRCB .

Impact 3. 3- 3: The proposed Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 2: Prior to earthmoving activities for each phase of City of Lathrop Prior to

project has the potential to be the project a certified geotechnical engineer, or equivalent, shall be retained Communiry earthmoving
located on a geologic unit or soil to perform a final geotechnical evaluation of the soils at a design- level as Development activities for

that is unstable, or that would required by the requirements of the California Building Code Title 24, Part 2,   Department each phase of

become unstable as a result of Chapter I8, Section 1803. 1. 1. 2 related to expansive soi/ s and other soil the project

project implementation, and conditions.  The evaluation shall be prepared in accordance with the Certified

potentially result in landslide,      standards and requirements outlined in California Building Code, Tit/ e 24,   geotechnical

lateral spreading, subsidence,       Part 2, Chapter 16, Chapter 17, and Chapter 18, which addresses structural engineer

liquefaction or collapse design, tests and inspections, and soils and foundation standards. The final

geotechnical evaluation shall include design recommendations to ensure that

soil conditions do not pose a threat to the health and safety of people or
structures, including threats from liquefaction or lateral spreading. The
grading and improvement plans for each phase of the project shall be
designed in accordance with the recommendations provided in the final

geotechnical evaluation.   

Impact 3. 3- 4: The proposed lmplementMitigation Measure 3. 3-2.  See Mitigation See Mitigation

project has the potential to be Measure 3. 3- 2 Measure 3. 3- 2

located on expansive soils which

may create substantial risks to

life or property

s       ..

HAZARDS QN,D HAZARDOUS MATERIALS      =,,   

Impact 3. 4- 1: The proposed Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 1: Prior to bringing hazardous materials onsite, the San Joaquin Prior to

project has the potential to applicant shall submit a Hazardous Materials Business Plan ( HMBP) to San County bringing
create a significant hazard Joaquin County Environmental Health Division ( CUPAJ for review and Environmental hazardous

a~     4 0 6. .:      ; Final Environmental Impact Report— Lathrop IWRMP
s_._._..__. a_..._...._.,.. a.__<

362



FINAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM   , ;   4 O  ,    ` 

MONITORING T ERIFICATION'  "
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT MITIGATION MEASURE      TlMING      

DATE INITIAL` S RESPONSI$ ILITY
v       r,

a   , ., ri   . ..-,.       M._.     a a..,...,  ..   x       w             M_      .

through the routine transport,      approval If during the construction process the contractors or the Health Division materials

use, or disposal of hazardous subcontractors generates hazardous waste, the applicant must register with onsite

materials or through the the CUPA as a generator of hazardous waste, obtain an EPA ! D# and

reasonably foreseeable upset accumulate, ship and dispose of the hazardous waste per Health and Safety
and accident conditions Code Ch. 6.5.( California Hazardous Waste Control Gaw).

involving the release of
hazardous materials into the

environment

HYDROLQGI AND 11A' ER QUAL ÌTY      
i,  t sv.. a ..... . ,   ,   ...  ,: ....,,.   .,,_. _,,  , . ,-, .,_   .

Impact 3. 5- 1: The proposed Implement Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1.  See Mitigation See Mitigation

project has the potential to Measure 3. 3- 1 Measure 3. 3- 1

violate water quality standards

or waste discharge requirements

or otherwise substantially

degrade surface or ground water

quality during construction

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP     4 0, 7      

363



i

FINAL MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING
4.     ;

PROGRAM

This page left intentionally blank.

Final Environmental Impact Report- Lathrop IWRMP `   4 0 8    ;

364



Attachment C
ij

r       ,,.,         -___._______._.     ____ _ ..____  _ __. __ _ ____ ______.___ ___ __ - 

S      

r
F

L_-_    j
I

i
i
i

u

r ,. .   n.         

4t

a,"..

FINDINGS OF FACT
3

f i

A       x y  ,   
t  °     FOR THE

i
r       a,,    I

1 i,

yb TM' i 
3h

p ,
i

5 n s" ct ' ii D      
r  

h     

r `      , ,,    a LATHROP INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES
u,.. 

a

@  ';,
q,'`

t+r^s; 8' u r a Ft,    
MASTER PLANfk `    

I
i ``     

E r`;         ( SCH; 2019029106)   
a,

a ,; 13 x` s ra 6;     
E     5       :

u. Rs' s` 4 t ..  

4? d6  "` n`„ s""   
l°   .

x_ '  .__'  _      

fi'" 
s   .      

d T r

H'    NOVEMB R2018
x

x     I
y ,;    ;,'  I4ety  yy f `' r ir°;,     .

f f ¢    S
o   

I

L      ...      ,,.'
z"',`  

d"'(: i'j'
y r,

Wl Af.. 9 I
kr b.'. 0 Pud L 41

r; a:              a x y u ,. r, z

Prepared for:r;

r   r  
3;,    1

r```,     jr,       .     

r' y f r.a ° t 9.',       
E a r,,    I

9       City of Lathrop, Public Works Department
90 Towne Gentre Driv_e i

Lathrop, CA 95330 I

209) 941- 7430
i

Y I
Prepared by:

i

De Novo Planning' Group
1020 Suncast Lane, Suite 106

El Doraclo Hills, CA 95762 I
916) 580- 9818

i
I

i

i
D e N a v a F l a n n i n g G r o u p

i
A Land Use Planning, Design, and Environmental Fi,rm I

i
g 

365



I

FINDINGS OF FACT

FOR THE

LATHROP INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES

MASTER PLAN
SCH: 2019029106)

NOVEMBER 2018

Prepared for:

City of Lathrop, Public Works Department
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
209) 941- 7430

Prepared by:

De Novo Planning Group
1020 Suncast Lane, Suite 106

El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

916) 580- 9818

366



TABLE OF CONTENTS TOC

FINDINGS OF FACT

Section Page Number

I. Introduction........................................................................................................................ 1

II.       General Findings and Overview.......................................................................................... 2

III.       Findings and Recommendations Regarding Significant Impacts Which Are Mitigated to

aLess than Significant Level ............................................................................................... 6

IV.       Findings and Recommendations Regarding Those Impacts Which are Less Than

Significant or Less Than Cumulatively Considerable ........................................................ 16

V.       Project Alternatives.......................................................................................................... 18

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan TOC- 1  .

367



T OC_   TABLE OF CONTENTS

This page left intentionally b/ ank.

i TOC- 2°„  CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

368



i

CEQA FINDINGS     '-     
i

FINDINGS FORTHE

LATHROP INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER PLAN

REQUIRED UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT

Public Resources Code, § 21000 et seq.)

I.       INTRODUCTION

The California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) ( Public Resources Code, § 21000 et seq.) requires

the City of Lathrop ( City), as the CEQA lead agency, to: 1) make written findings when it approves a

project for which an environmental impact report ( EIR) was certified, and 2) identify overriding

considerations for significant and unavoidable impacts identified in the EIR.

This document explains the City' s findings regarding the significant and potentially significant

impacts identified in the environmental impact report ( EIR) prepared for the Lathrop Integrated

Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP). These findings do not include the statement of overriding
considerations because significant and unavoidable environmental impacts would not result from

the project.

As required under CEQA, the Final EIR describes the project, adverse environmental impacts of the

project, and mitigation measures and alternatives that would substantially reduce or avoid those

impacts. The information and conclusions contained in the EIR reflect the City' s independent
judgment.

The Final EIR ( which includes the Draft EIR, comments, responses to comments, and revisions to

the Draft EIR) for the project, examined the proposed project and several alternatives to the

project including: No Project ( No Build) Alternative and IVear-Term Improvements Alternative.

The Findings are presented for adoption by the City Council, as the City' s findings under CEQA and
the CEQA Guidelines ( Cal. Code Regs., title 14, § 15000 et seq.) relating to the project. The Findings

provide the written analysis and conclusions of this City Council regarding the project' s

environmental impacts, mitigation measures, and alternatives to the project.

II.      GENERAL FINDINGS AND OVERVIEW

Project Overview

The project site is located throughout Lathrop, California. The City of Lathrop is located in San

Joaquin County, approximately 10 miles south of the City of Stockton and directly west of the City

of Manteca. The City lies east of the Coastal Range that separates California' s Central Valley from
the San Francisco Bay Area. Interstate 5 ( I- 5), a major north- south interstate corridor, bisects the

City. The City is also connected by State Route ( SR) 120 which runs east- west through the

southeastern- most part of the City, and by Interstate 205, which connects Interstate 580 to I- 5.

The City is also served by the Altamont Commuter Express ( ACE) train, which travels along the

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan       ' 1 ,

369



CEQA FINDINGS

southern and eastern border of the City. The community was originally developed primarily east of
I- 5. However, most major new developments have recently been constructed west of I- 5 and

others are currently planned or under construction in this area.

The City is relatively flat with natural gentle slope from east to west. The City' s topography has an
average elevation of approximately 20 feet above sea level.`

The City' s water service area is generally contiguous with the City limits and includes the railroad

cargo container commercial enterprise that is outside of the City limits. The City' s wastewater

collection system service area is generally contiguous with the City limits. The City' s existing
recycled water distribution system is generally contiguous with the City limits, and some of the

future facilities are planned for north of the City limits.

The proposed project includes adoption and implementation of the IWRMP, which includes the

improvement projects summarized in the proposed Water System Master Plan, Wastewater

System Master Plan, and Recycled Water System Master Plan.

The Water System Master Plan focuses on development of water demand unit factors and

projections, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing water infrastructure and key planned
improvements, and development of recommended water system capital improvement projects

CIPs). The Wastewater System Master Plan focuses on development of wastewater flow unit

factors and projections, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing infrastructure and key planned
conveyances, and development of recommended wastewater CIPs. The Recycled Water System

Master Plan focuses on an evaluation of recycled water use and disposal alternatives, recycled

water balance analyses, hydraulic assessment of the City' s existing recycled water infrastructure
and key planned improvements, and development of recommended recycled water system
improvements and operational recommendations.

Generators would be provided in conjunction with the proposed water pump station
improvements. The generators will be added as the new essential facilities are constructed and

brought on- line, such as the Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP) water tank, River Islands water

tank/ SSJID turnout, and sewer pump stations. The generators would all be for emergency
operations in the event of a power outage, and would only be run for maintenance and air quality
permit testing requirements.

Additionally, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition ( SCADA) communication towers would also

be provided. Currently, SCADA towers are located at the City of Lathrop Corporafion Yard ( 2112 E.
Louise Avenue), the City of Lathrop City Hall ( 390 Town Centre Drive), the Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility ( LCTF) ( 18800 Christopher Way), and at a few other locations in the River

Islands and CLSP development areas. The proposed SCADA towers are required in order to provide

a line-of-sight for radio communications between the facilities. The towers would be 50- to 100-

feet in height, or taller.

The principal objective of the proposed project is the approval and subsequent implementation of

the Lathrop IWRMP.

a    

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan
w...'`# ;

9

370



CEQA FINDINGS    ;;       ,_  

PROCEDURALBACKGROUND

Notice of Preparation Public Circulation: The City circulated an Initial Study and NOP of an EIR for

the proposed project on February 20, 2019 to trustee agencies, the State Clearinghouse, and the

public. A public scoping meeting was held on March 13, 2019 to present the project description to
the public and interested agencies, and to receive comments from the public and interested

agencies regarding the scope of fhe environmental analysis to be included in the Draft EIR.

Concerns raised in response to the NOP were considered during preparation of the Draft EIR. The

IS and NOP comments are presented in Appendix A of the Draft EIR. The commenting agencies are
provided below.

1.  Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( March 14, 2019);

2.   Pacific Gas and Electric( February 20, 2019);

3.   River Islands ( March 21, 2019);

4.  San Joaquin County Department of Public Works( March 22, 2019);

5.  San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District( March 19, 2019);

6.  Terra Land Group ( March 18, 2019).

Notice of Availability and Draft EIR: The City of Lathrop published a public Notice of Availability

NOA) for the Draft EIR on August 15, 2019, inviting comment from the general public, agencies,
organizations, and other interested parties. The NOA was filed with the State Clearinghouse ( SCH#

2019029106) the County Clerk, and a newspaper of regional circulation pursuant to the public

noticing requirements of CEQA. The public review period was from August 15, 2019 through
September 30, 2019 ( 45 days).

The Draft EIR contains a description of the project, description of the environmental setting,
identification of project impacts, and mitigation measures for impacts found to be significant, as

well as an analysis of project alternatives, identification of significant irreversible environmental

changes,  growth- inducing impacts,  and cumulative impacts.  The Draft EIR identifies issues
determined to have no impact or a less than significant impact, and provides detailed analysis of

potentially significant and significant impacts. Comments received in response to the NOP were

considered in preparing the analysis in the Draft EIR.

Final EIR: The City of Lathrop received four comment letters on the Draft EIR during the public
review period. In accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15088, this Final EIR responds to the

comments received during the public review period. This Final EIR also responds to all comments
received after the public review period had ended. The Final EIR also contains minor edits to the

Draft EIR, which are included in Section 3. 0, Errata. This document and the Draft EIR, as amended

herein, constitute the Final EIR.

Responses to comments do not involve any new significant impacts or  " significant new

information" that would require recirculation of the Draft EIR pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section

15088. 5. Each response is provided in the Final EIR.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan  =  3   

371



CEQA FINDINGS

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND CUSTODIAN OF RECORD

For purposes of CEQA and the findings set forth herein, the record of proceedings for the City' s

findings and determinations consists of the following documents and testimony, at a minimum:

The NOP, comments received on the NOP, and all other public notices issued by the City in

relation to the project( e. g., NOA).

The Draft EIR and Final EIR, including comment letters, and technical materials cited in the
documents.    

All non- draft and/ or non- confidential reports and memoranda prepared by the City and
consultants in relation to the EIR.

Minutes and transcripts of the discussions regarding the project and/ or project

components at public hearings held by the City.

Staff reports associated with City Council meetings on the project.

Those categories of materials identified in Public Resources Code § 21167. 6.

The City Clerk is the custodian of the administrative record. The documents and materials that

constitute the administrative record are available for review at the City of Lathrop at 390 Towne

Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330.

FINDINGS REQUIRED UNDER CEQA

Public Resources Code § 21002 provides that " public agencies should not approve projects as

proposed if there are feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation measures available which would

substantially lessen the significant environmental effects of such projects[.]"  Further,  the

procedures required by CEQA " are intended to assist public agencies in systematically identifying
both the significant effects of proposed projects and the feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation

measures which will avoid or substantially lessen such significant effects." ( Id.) Section 21002 also

provides that " in the event specific economic, social, or other conditions make infeasible such

project alternatives or such mitigation measures, individual projects may be approved in spite of
one or more significant effects thereof."

The mandate and principles established by the Legislature in Public Resources Code § 21002 are

implemented, in part, through the requirement in Public Resources Code § 21081 that agencies

must adopt findings before approving projects for which an EIR is required.

CEQA Guidelines§ 15091 provides the following direction regarding findings:

a)  No public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an EIR has been

certified which identifies one or more significant environmental effects of the project

unless the public agency makes one or more written findings for each of those

significant effects, accompanied by a brief explanation of the rationale for each

finding. The possible findings are:

4 CEQA Findings — Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan
a___._____.__,

372



i
CEQA FINDINGS ;       

1) Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project

which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as

identified in the final EIR.

2) Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of

another public agency and not the agency making the finding. Such changes

have been adopted by such other agency or can and should be adopted by

such other agency.

3) Specific economic,  legal,  social,  technological,  or other considerations,

including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers,

make infeasible the mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in

the final EIR.

See also Public Resources Code, § 21081, subd. ( a)( 1)-( 3).)

As defined by CEQA, " feasible" means capable of being accomplished in a successful manner

within a reasonable period of time, tal<ing into account economic, environmental, social, legal, and

technological factors. ( Pub. Resources Code, § 21061. 1; see also CEQA Guidelines, § 15126. 6( f)(1)

determining the feasibility of alternatives].) The concept of " feasibility" also encompasses the

question of whether a particular alternative or mitigation measure promotes the underlying goals

and objectives of a project. ( See Association of Irritated Residents v. County of Madera ( 2003) 107

Cal. App. 4th 1383,  1400 [ court upholds findings rejecting a  " reduced herd" alternative to a

proposed dairy as infeasible because the alternative failed to meet the " fundamental objective" of
the project to produce milk]; Sierra C/ub v. County of Napa ( 2004) 121 Cal. App.4th 1490, 1506-

1508 [ agency decision- makers, in rejecting alternatives as infeasible, appropriately relied on
project objective articulated by project applicant].)  Moreover,  "` feasibility'  under CEQA

encompasses ' desirability' to the extent that desirability is based on a reasonable balancing of the
relevant economic, environmental, social, legal, and technological factors." ( City of Del Mar v. City

of San Diego ( 1982) 133 Cal. App. 3d 410, 417; see also California Native Plant Society v. City of

Santa Cruz( 2009) 177 Cal. App. 4th 957, 1001- 1002.

MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM

A Mitigation Monitoring Program has been prepared for the project and has been adopted

concurrently with these Findings. ( See Pub. Resources Code, § 21081. 6, subd. ( a)( 1).) The City will

use the Mitigation Monitoring Program to track compliance with project mitigation measures.

CONSIDERATION OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

In adopting these Findings, this City Council finds that the Final EIR was presented to this City

Council, the decision- making body of the lead agency,  which reviewed and considered the

information in the Final EIR prior to approving the project. By these findings, this City Council
ratifies, adopts, and incorporates the analysis, explanation, findings, responses to comments, and

conclusions of the Final EIR. The City Council finds that the Final EIR was completed in compliance

with CEQA. The Final EIR represents the independent judgment of the City.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan 5  .     ,

373



M.

f       . .` 

CEQA FINDINGS

SEVERABILITY

If any term, provision, or portion of these Findings or the application of these Findings to a

particular situation is held by a court to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining
provisions of these Findings, or their application to other actions related to the project, shall

continue in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the City.

III.     FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING SIGNIFICANT

IMPACTS WHICH ARE MITIGATED TO A LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT

LEVEL

A.      AIR QUALITY

1.  IMPACTS A- C: CONFLICT WITH OR OBSTRUCT IMPLEMENTATION OF THE APPLICABLE AIR

QUALITY PLAN; RESULT IN A CUMULATNELY CONSiDERABLE NET INCREASE OF ANY CRITERIA

POLLUTANT FOR WHICH THE PROJECT REGION IS NON- ATTAINMENT UNDER AN APPLICABLE

FEDERAL OR STATE AMBIENT AIR QUALITY STANDARD; AND, EXPOSE SENSITIVE RECEPTORS TO

SUBSTANTIAL POLLUTANT CONCENTRATIONS.

a)  Potential Impact.  The potential for the project to conflict with or obstruct

implementation of the applicable air quality plan, result in a cumulatively considerable
net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non- attainment

under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard, and expose sensitive
receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations is discussed on pages 32 and 33 of

the Initial Study.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measures are hereby adopted and will
be implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program:  Mitigation

Measures 1 and 2.       

c)  Findings.  Air quality emissions would be generated during construction of the
proposed project.  Operational emissions would be negligible as the project does not

propose any new structures or uses that would increase trip generation or vehicle-

miles- travelled ( VMT). The proposed project is not a traffic generator and would not

cause an intersection to decline to level of service ( LOS) D, E, or F.  Additionally, the

proposed project would not increase traffic volumes on nearby roadways by 10

percent or more. Therefore, localized carbon monoxide modeling is not warranted for
this project.

Construction would result in numerous activities that would generate dust. Fine, silty

soils and often strong afternoon winds exacerbate the potential for dust, particularly

during the summer months.  Grading, leveling, earthmoving and excavation are the
activities that generate the most particulate emissions.  Impacts would be localized

and variable. The initial phase of project construction would involve grading and

6        CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan
4....,

374



CEQA FINDINGS !  j

leveling the various project site areas and associated improvements such as
underground infrastructure.

Construction activities that could generate dust and vehicle emissions are primarily

related to grading and other ground- preparation activities in order to prepare the

various project site areas for paving.  All construction activities shall comply with all

applicable measures from SJVAPCD Rule VIII which limits construction related

emissions and particulates.

Mitigation Measure 1 requires compliance with San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution

Control District ( SJVAPCD) Rule VIII. Mitigation Measure 2 requires additional fugitive

dust emission reduction measures to be implemented during construction.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measures 1 and 2 are

appropriate changes or alterations that have been required in, or incorporated into,

the project which avoids or substantially lessens the significant environmental effect

as identified in the Initial Study. Based upon the Initial Study and the entire record

before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for the project to

conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan, result in a

cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project

region is non- attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard, and expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations will be

mitigated to a less than significant level.

B.      BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

1.  IMPACT 3. 1- 1: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO RESULT IN DIRECT OR

INDIRECT EFFECTS ON SPECIAL- STATUS SPECIES.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the project to result in direct or indirect effects on

special- status species is discussed on pages 3. 1- 23 through 3. 1- 28 ofthe Draft EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 1- 1.

c)  Findings. According to the CNDDB, there are 11 special- status invertebrates that are

documented within the 9- quad region for the project site. Six of these invertebrate

species are covered species under the SJMSCP. All of the amphibian species are

covered species under the SJMSCP, and 17 of the 18 documented bird species are

covered. The least Bell' s vireo ( Vireo bellii pusillus) ( FE/ CE) is not covered by the

SJMSCP, but this bird species is not a resident of the regional vicinity. Additionally, two
of the five documented fish species are covered species under the SJMSCP, and six of

the eight mammal species are covered under the SJMSCP. Further, three of the seven

documented reptile species are covered under the SJMSCP,  and 17 of the 33

documented plant species are covered.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan 7
a _:_ _,

375



CEQA FINDINGS

The improvement projects included in the IWRMP are all designed to be within areas

that are either existing roadway, existing urban areas, existing vacant fields, or existing

agricultural lands. Any CIP projects constructed in the road right- of-way or urban areas

would have minimal, if any, disturbance to special status species and/ or their habitats

given that this area is already disturbed and provides little to no habitat value. The CIP

projects that would be constructed in the agricultural areas would also be considered

low impact on special status species for several reasons. First, any pipe installation

would be underground such that the impact would be temporary and the surface
would be restored after construction. The installation of pump stations, meters,
control valves, and a SCADA system would have minimal footprint. Any new LAA would
remain as an agricultural field or vacant field, but the irrigation system would change

from surface water well water to recycled water in some cases. The proposed LAAs

near the River Islands development have surface water available as a supplemental

water source, and the surrounding fields currently use surface water instead of well

water. The net impact from a new LAA would be negligible because the agricultural

field would remain as foraging habitat for a variety of species that use the fields.

The Recycled Water Master Plan includes development of new storage ponds during
Phase 2A and 26. The construction of proposed storage ponds would be located near

existing and proposed LAAs in vacant fields or agricultural areas. The new and existing
ponds provide some habitat value for water fowl and other wildlife.

Powerlines and trees located in the region represent potentially suitable nesting

habitat for a variety of special- status birds.  Additionally,  the agricultural land
represents potentially suitable nesting habitat for the ground- nesting birds, as well as

foraging habitat for many species. In general, most nesting occurs from late February
and early March through late July and early August,  depending on various

environmental conditions. New sources of noise and light during the construction and

operational phases of the project could adversely affect nesters if they located

adjacent to the project site in any given year. Additionally, the proposed project would

temporarily disturb some agricultural areas, which serve as potential foraging habitat
for birds throughout the year.

Mitigation Measure 3. 1- 1 requires participation in the SJMSCP. As part of the SJMSCP,

SJCOG requires preconstruction surveys for projects that occur during the avian
breeding season  ( March 1 — August 31). When active nests are identified,  the

biologists develop buffer zones around the active nests as deemed appropriate until

the young have fledged. SJCOG also uses the fees to purchase habitat as compensation

for the loss of foraging habitat.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines

15065( b)( 2), Mitigation Measure 3. 1- 1 is an appropriate change or alteration that

has been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoids or substantially
lessens the significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR

8 CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan
L.__._..................,__.,,......_. ea

376



CEQA FINDINGS ;  

and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential
for adverse effects on special- status species will be mitigated to a less than significant

level.

2.  IMPACT 3. 1- 5: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO CONFLICT WITH AN ADOPTED

HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the project to conflict with an adopted habitat

conservation plan is discussed on pages 3. 1- 31 and 3. 1- 32 of the Draft EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measures is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 1- 1.

c)  Findings. The proposed project is subject to the SJMSCP, which is an adopted Habitat

Conservation Plan ( USFWS) and Natural Community Conservation Plan ( CDFW). The

key purpose of the SJMSCP, is to provide a strategy for balancing the need to conserve
Open Space and the need to Convert Open Space to non- Open Space uses while

protecting the region' s agricultural economy; preserving landowner property rights;

providing for the long- term management of plant, fish and wildlife species, especially

those that are currently listed, or may be listed in the future, under the Federal
Endangered Species Act ( FESA) or the California Endangered Species Act ( CESA);

providing and maintaining multiple- use Open Spaces which contribute to the quality of

life of the residents of San Joaquin County; and accommodating a growing population

while minimizing costs to Project Proponents and society at large.

The proposed project is subject to the SJMSCP. Mitigation Measure 3. 1- 1 requires

participation in the SJMSCP.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 1- 1 is an

appropriate change or alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the

project which avoids or substantially lessens the significant environmental effect as

identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council,

this City Council finds that the potential to conflict with an adopted habitat
conservation plan will be mitigated to a less than significant level.

C.       CULTURAL AND TRIBAL RESOURCES

1.  IMPACT 3. 2- 1: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO CAUSE A SUBSTANTIAL

ADVERSE CHANGE TO A SIGNIFICANT HISTORICAL RESOURCE,  AS DEFINED IN CEQA

GUIDELINES § 15064. 5, OR A SIGNIFICANT TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCE, AS DEFINED IN

PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE§ 21074.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the project to cause a substantial adverse change

to a significant historical resource ortribal cultural resources is discussed on pages 3. 2-

11 and 3. 2- 12 ofthe Draft EIR.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ;      ,  9

377



y

CEQA FINDINGS

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 2- 1.

c)  Findings. As noted in Chapter 3. 2, 172 cultural resources have been identified within

the City of Lathrop General Plan Study Area, according to files maintained by the
Central California lnformation Center ( CCIC) of the California Historical Resources

Information System ( CHRIS).   The 172 recorded cultural resources span both the

prehistoric and historic periods and range from a Native American village site to

historic period railroads, a school, buildings and single- family homes. The recorded
resources include a Point of Historical Interest and two California Historical Landmarks.

The greatest number of recorded cultural resources are buildings at the Sharpe facility.

There are no properties or districts currently listed on the National Register of Historic

Places( NRHP) or California Register of Historic Places( CRHR) for the City of Lathrop.

As with most projects in the region that involve ground- disturbing activities, there is

the potential for discovery of a previously unknown historical resource or tribal
cultural resource.  Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 would require

construction to halt in the event that a buried and previously undiscovered cultural or

historical resource is encountered during construction activities so that it can be

appropriately evaluated by a qualified professional.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 is an

appropriate change or alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the

project which avoids or substantially lessens the significant environmental effect as

identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council,

this City Council finds that the potential to cause a substantial adverse change to a

significant historical resource or tribal cultural resources will be mitigated to a less

than significant level.

2.  IMPACT 3. 2- 3: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY

DESTROY A UNIQUE PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCE OR SITE OR UNIQUE GEOLOGIC FEATURE.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the project to directly or indirectly destroy a unique
paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature is discussed on page 3. 2- 13

ofthe Draft EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 2- 1.

c)  Findings. The project site is not expected to contain subsurface paleontological

resources, although it is possible. The majority of the proposed improvements would

be developed in previously- disturbed areas, such as within roadway rights- of-way.

Some of the proposed improvements, particularly those related to recycled water,

10        CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

378



t   

CEQA FINDINGS       

would be located on agricultural areas near the San Joaquin River. There will be a

temporary impact to agricultural lands during construction of the water and recycled
water pipes, land application areas for recycled water, and storage ponds for recycled

water. Paleontological resources are not likely to be found in the urban areas of the

City, and would be more likely to occur in areas near the San Joaquin River.

Damage to or destruction of a paleontological resource would be considered a

potentially significant impact under local, state, or federal criteria. Implementation of

Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 would require construction to halt in the event that a

paleontological resource is encountered during construction activities so that it can be

appropriately evaluated by a qualified professional.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 is an

appropriate change or alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the

project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as

identified in the EIR.. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council,

this City Council finds that the potential to directly or indirectly destroy a unique
paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature will be mitigated to a less

than significant level.

3.  IMPAGT 3. 2- 4: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO DISTURB HUMAN REMAINS,

INCLUDING THOSE INTERRED OUTSIDE OF FORMAL CEMETERIES.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the project to disturb human remains, including
those interred outside of formal cemeteries, is discussed on page 3. 2- 14 of the Draft

EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 2- 2

c)  Findings. Indications suggest that humans have occupied San Joaquin County for over

10, 000 years and it is not always possible to predict where human remains may occur

outside of formal burials. Therefore, excavation and construction activities, regardless

of depth, may yield human remains that may not be interred in marked, formal
burials.

Under CEQA, human remains are protected under the definition of archaeological

materials as being " any evidence of human activity." Additionally, Public Resources

Code Section 5097 has specific stop- work and notification procedures to follow in the
event that human remains are inadvertently discovered during project

implementation..

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 2 would require construction to halt in the

event that human remains are encountered during construction activities.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan 11  -:,

379



CEQA FINDINGS

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 2 is an

appropriate change or alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the

project which avoids or substantially lessens the significant environmental effect as

identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council,

this City Council finds that the potential to disturb human remains, including those
interred outside of formal cemeteries, will be mitigated to a less than significant level.

D.      GEOLOGY AND SOILS

1.  IMPACT 3. 3- 2: THE PROPOSED PROJECT MAY RESULT IN SUBSTANTIAL SOIL EROSION OR THE

LOSS OF TOPSOIL.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the project to result in substantial soil erosion or

the loss oftopsoil is discussed on pages 3. 3- 14 through 3. 3- 17 ofthe Draft EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 3- 1.

c)  Findings. To ensure that construction activities are covered under General Permit

2009- 0009- DWQ  ( amended by 2010- 0014- DWQ &  2012- 0006- DWQ),  projects in

California must prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan ( SWPPP) containing

Best Management Practices ( BMPs) to reduce erosion and sediments to meet water

quality standards. Such BMPs may include: temporary erosion control measures such

as silt fences, staked straw bales/ wattles, silt/ sediment basins and traps, check dams,

geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary revegetation or other ground cover. The

BMPs and overall SWPPP is reviewed by the State Water Resources Control Board

SWRCB) as part of the permitting process. The SWPPP, once approved, is kept on site

and implemented during construction activities and must be made available upon

request to representatives of the SWRCB and/ or the lead agency.

In accordance with the NPDES Stormwater Program,  Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1

requires an approved SWPPP designed to control erosion and the loss of topsoil to the

extent practicable using BMPs that the SWRCB has deemed effective in controlling

erosion, sedimentation, runoff during construction activities. In accordance with Public
Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1 is an appropriate change or

alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoids or

substantially lessens the significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based

upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that
the potential to result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil will be mitigated

to a less than significant level.

12        CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

380



I
CEQA FINDINGS '  

2.  IMPACT 3. 3- 3: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO BE LOCATED ON A GEOLOGIC

UNIT OR SOIL THAT IS UNSTABLE, OR THAT WOULD BECOME UNSTABLE AS A RESULT OF PROJECT

IMPLEMENTATION,  AND POTENTIALLY RESULT  [ N LANDSLIDE,  LATERAL SPREADING,

SUBSIDENCE, LIQUEFACTION OR COLLAPSE.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the project to be located on a geologic unit or soil

that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of project implementation,

and potentially result in landslide,  lateral spreading,  subsidence,  liquefaction or

collapse, is discussed on pages 33- 17 and 3. 3- 18 of the Draft EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 3- 2.

c)  Findings. The project site does not have a significant risk of becoming unstable as a
result landslide, subsidence, or soil collapse. There is a potential for liquefaction,

liquefaction induced settlement, and lateral spreading. Implementation of Mitigation
Measure 3. 3- 2 requires a final geotechnical evaluation ofthe soils at a design- level.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 2 is an

appropriate change or alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the

project which avoids or substantially lessens the significant environmental effect as

identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council,

this City Council finds that the potential for the project to be located on a geologic unit
or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of project

implementation, and potentially result in landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,

liquefaction or collapse, will be mitigated to a less than significant level.

3.  IMPACT 3. 3- 4: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO BE LOCATED ON EXPANSIVE

SOILS WHICH MAY CREATE SUBSTANTIAL RISKS TO LIFE OR PROPERTY.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential for the proposed project to be located on expansive

soils which may create substantial rislcs to life or property is discussed on page 3. 3- 19

ofthe Draft EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 3- 2.

c)  Findings. According to the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the soils in the project area vary
from a low shrinl<- swell potential to a moderate shrink- swell potential. Figure 3. 3- 3

provides a map of the shrink- swell potential of the soils at the project site and in the

vicinity.

The California Building Code Title 24, Part 2, Chapter 18, Section 1803. 1. 1. 2 requires

specific geotechnical evaluation when a preliminary geotechnical evaluation

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ; 13
w_._._..__.___

381



p   

i = ° CEQA FINDINGS

determines that expansive or other special soil conditions are present, which, if not

corrected, would lead to structural defects. Implementation of Mitigation Measure

3. 3- 2 requires a final geotechnical evaluation of the soils at a design- level.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 2 is an

appropriate change or alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the

project which avoids or substantially lessens the significant environmental effect as

identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council,

this City Council finds that the potential for expansive soils to create substantial risks to

life or property will be mitigated to a less than significant level.

E.      HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

1.  IMPACT 3. 4- 1: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO CREATE A SIGNIFICANT

HAZARD THROUGH THE ROUTINE TRANSPORT, USE, OR DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

OR THROUGH THE REASONABLY FORESEEABLE UPSET AND ACCIDENT CONDITIONS INVOLVING

THE RELEASE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INTO THE ENVIRONMENT.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential to create a significant hazard through the routine

transport,  use,  or disposal of hazardous materials or through the reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials
into the environment is discussed on pages 3. 4- 15 and 3. 4- 16 of the Draft EIR.

b) Mitiga.tion Measures. The following mitigation measures are hereby adopted and will
be implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program:  Mitigation

Measures 3. 4- 1 and 3. 4-2.

c)  Findings. Construction activities would occur in phases through the development of

the proposed improvements.  Construction equipment and materials would likely
require the use of petroleum- based products ( oil, gasoline, diesel fuel), and a variety

of chemicals including paints, cleaners, and solvents. The use of these materials at a

construction site will pose a reasonable risk of release into the environment if not

properly handled, stored, and transported. A release into the environment could pose

significant impacts to the health and welfare of people and/ or wildlife, and could

result in contamination of water  (groundwater or surface water),  habitat,  and

countless important resources. Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 1 requires a Soils Management

Plan ( SMF) to be submitted and approved by the San Joaquin County Department of

Environmental Health. The SMP will establish management practices for handling
hazardous materials,   including fuels,   paints,   cleaners,  solvents,  etc.,  during
construction.

The operational phase of the project will occur after construction is completed and the

water, wastewater and recycled water improvements have been brought on- line. The

proposed pump stations, pipelines, agriculture irrigation areas, storage ponds, and

related improvements would not involve the handling of hazardous materials.

14  CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

382



CEQA FINDINGS   

The proposed emergency generators would use diesel fuel, although the generators

would only be run for maintenance and air quality permit testing requirements. Diesel

fuel may also be stored on- site, such as within a building. If handled appropriately,
diesel fuel would not pose a significant risk. There will be a risk of release of these

materials into the environment if they are not stored and handled in accordance with

best management practices approved by San Joaquin County Environmental Health

Division and the Lathrop Fire Department.  Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 2 requires a

Hazardous Materials Business Plan to be submitted to the Joaquin County

Environmental Health Division prior to bringing hazardous materials onsite.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measures 3. 4- 1 and

3. 4- 2 are appropriate changes or alterations that have been required in,  or

incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant
environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record

before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential to create a significant
hazard through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials or

through the reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the
release of hazardous materials into the environment will be mitigated to a less than

significant level.

F.       HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

1.  IMPACT 3. 5- 1: THE PROPOSED PROJECT HAS THE POTENTIAL TO VIOLATE WATER QUALITY

STANDARDS OR WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS OR OTHERWISE SUBSTANTIALLY DEGRADE

SURFACE OR GROUND WATER QUALITY DURING CONSTRUCTION.

a)  Potential Impact. The potential to violate water quality standards or waste discharge

requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality

during construction is discussed on pages 3. 5- 17 through 3. 5- 19 of the Draft EIR.

b) Mitigation Measures. The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be

implemented as provided by the Mitigation Monitoring Program: Mitigation Measure
3. 3- 1.

c)  Findings. Grading, excavation,  removal of vegetation cover, and loading activities

associated with construction activities could temporarily increase runoff, erosion, and

sedimentation. Construction activities also could result in soil compaction and wind

erosion effects that could adversely affect soils and reduce the revegetation potential

at construction sites and staging areas. To ensure that construction activities are

covered under General Permit 2009- 0009- DWQ ( amended by 2010- 0014- DWQ &
2012- 0006- DWQ),  projects in California must prepare a Stormwater Pollution

Prevention Plan ( SWPPP) containing Best Management Practices ( BMPs) to reduce

erosion and sediments to meet water quality standards. Such BMPs may include:

temporary erosion control measures such as silt fences, staked straw bales/ wattles,

silt/ sediment basins and traps, check dams, geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary

CEQA Findings- Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan 15

383



CEQA FINDINGS

revegetation or other ground cover. The BMPs and overall SWPPP is reviewed by the

Regional Water Quality Control Board as part of the permitting process. The SWPPP,

once approved, is kept on site and implemented during construction activities and
must be made available upon request to representatives of the RWQCB and/ or the

lead agency.

In accordance with the NPDES Stormwater Program,  Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1

contained in Section 3. 3 Geology and Soils,  ensures compliance with existing

regulatory requirements to prepare a SWPPP designed to control erosion and the loss

of topsoil to the extent practicable using BMPs that the RWQCB has deemed effective
in controlling erosion,  sedimentation,  runoff during construction activities.  The

RWQCB has stated that these erosion control measures are only examples of what

should be considered and should not preclude new or innovative approaches currently

available or being developed. The specific controls are subject to the review and

approval by the RWQCB and are an existing regulatory requirement.

In accordance with Public Resources Code, § 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1 is an

appropriate change or alteration that has been required in, or incorporated into, the

project which avoids or substantially lessens the significant environmental effect as

identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council,

this City Council finds that the potential to violate water quality standards or waste

discharge requirements during construction will be mitigated to a less than significant
level.

IV.     FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING THOSE IMPACTS

WHICH ARE LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT OR LESS THAN

CUMULATIVELY CONSIDERABLE

Specific impacts within the following categories of environmental effects were found to be less
than significant as set forth in more detail in the Draft EIR.

Aesthetics and Visual Resources: The following were found to be less than significant or
were found to have no impact: ( A), ( B), ( C), and ( D).

Agricultural Resources: The following were found to have no impact: ( A), ( B), ( C), ( D), and

E).

Air Quality: The following specific impact was found to be less than significant: ( D).

Biological Resources: The following specific impacts were found to be less than significant:
3. 1- 2, 3. 1- 3, and 3. 1- 4.

Energy: The following specific impacts were found to be less than significant: ( A) and ( B).

Geology and Soils: The following specific impact was found to be less than significant: ( E).

16        CEQA Findings — Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

384



CEQA FINDINGS  _       

Greenhouse Gas Emissions: The following specific impacts were found to be less than
significant: ( A) and ( B).

Hazards and Hazardous Materials: The following specific impacts were found to be less
than significant: 3. 4- 2, 3. 4- 3, 3: 4- 4, 3. 4- 5, and 3. 4- 6.

Hydrology and Water Quality: The following specific impacts were found to be less than
significant: 3. 5- 2, 3. 5- 3, 3. 5- 4, 3. 5- 5, and 3. 5- 6.

Land Use, Population, and Housing: The following were found to be less than significant
or were found to have no impact: ( A) and ( B).

Mineral Resources: The following were found to have no impact: ( A) and ( B).

Noise: The following were found to be less than significant or were found to have no
impact: ( A), ( B), and ( C).

Population and Housing: The following were found to be less than significant or were
found to have no impact: ( A) and ( B).

Public Services: The following was found to have no impact: ( A).

Recreation: The following were found to have no impact: ( A) and ( B).

Transportation and Circulation: The following specific impacts were found to be less than
significant: (A), ( B), ( C), and ( D).

Utilities: The following specific impacts were found to be less than significant: 3. 6- 1, 3. 6- 2,
3. 6- 3, 3. 6- 4, 3. 6- 5, 3. 6- 6, 3. 6- 7, a n d 3. 6- 8.

Wildfire: The following specific impacts were found to be less than significant: (A), ( B), ( C),

and ( D).

The project was found to have a less than cumulatively considerable contribution to specific

impacts within the following categories of environmental effects as set forth in more detail in the

Draft EIR.

Biological Resources: The following specific impact was found to be less than cumulatively
considerable: 4. 1.

Cultural and Tribal Resources: The following specific impact was found to be less than

cumulatively considerable: 4. 2.

Geology and Soils: The following specific impact was found to be less than cumulatively
considerable: 4. 3.

Hazards and Hazardous Materials: The following specific impact was found to be less than

cumulatively considerable: 4. 4.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan   „    17  ., 
Y  

385



CEQA FINDINGS

Hydrology and Water Quality: The following specific impacts were found to be less than

cumulatively considerable: 4. 5, 4. 6, 4. 7, and 4. 8.

Utilities:  The following specific impacts were found to be less than cumulatively
considerable: 4. 9, 4. 10, 4. 11, 4. 12, and 4. 13.

The above impacts are less than significant or less than cumulatively considerable for one of the

following reasons:

The EIR determined that the impact is less than significant for the project;

The EIR determined that the project would have a less than cumulatively considerable

contribution to the cumulative impact; or

The EIR determined that the impact is beneficial ( would be reduced) for the project.

V.      PROJECT ALTERNATIVES

A.      IDENTIFICATION OF PROJECT OBJECTIVES

An EIR is required to identify a range of reasonable alternatives to the project. The " range of

potential alternatives to the project shall include those that could feasibly accomplish most of the

basic purposes of the project and could avoid or substantially lessen one of more of the significant

effects." ( CEQA Guidelines Section 15126. 6( c).) " Among the factors that may be taken into account

when addressing the feasibility of alternatives are site suitability, economic viability, availability of

infrastructure,  general plan consistency,  other plans or regulatory limitations, jurisdictional

boundaries ( projects with a regionally significant impact should consider the regional context), and
whether the proponent can reasonably acquire,  control or otherwise have access to the

alternative site ( or the site is already owned by the proponent)." ( CEQA Guidelines Section

15126. 6( f)(1).)

The principal objective of the proposed project is the approval and subsequent implementation of

the Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP).

The proposed project identifies the following objectives:

Construct improvements that are integrated with the City' s infrastructure geographic

information system ( GIS) and allow for automatic synchronization between the model and

infrastructure GIS to limit future maintenance efforts;

Provide cost-effective and fiscally responsible water, wastewater, and recycled water

services that meet the water quantity, water quality, system pressure, and reliability

requirements ofthe City' s customers;

Improve or replace existing City water,  wastewater,  and recycled water system

infrastructure;

Provide future water, wastewater, and recycled water system infrastructure necessary to

meet projected growth of the City' s service area.

18  .     I CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

386



3

CEQA FINDINGS   

B.      ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS IN EIR

The alternatives analysis provides a summary of the relative impact levels of signi'ficance

associated with each alternative for each of the environmental issue areas analyzed in the Draft

EIR. The environmental analysis for each of the alternatives is included at the project- level within

each impact statement following the analysis for the proposed project within Sections 3. 1 through

3. 6. The cumulative analysis for each alternative is included in Chapter 4. 0.

1.       NO PROJECT( NO BUILD ALTERNATIVE:

The No Project ( No Build) Alternative is discussed on pages 5. 0- 3 through 5. 0- 7 the Draft EIR.

Under the No Project ( No Build) Alternative development of the project site would not occur, and

the project site would remain in its current existing condition. The water, wastewater, and
recycled water infrastructure improvements would not occur. It is noted that the No Project ( No

Build) Alternative would fail to meet the project objectives identified by the City of Lathrop.

Findings: Environmental benefits of this alternative over the proposed project include the

reduction of impacts to biological resources, cultural and tribal resources, geology and

soils, hazards and. hazardous materials, and hydrology and water quality.

While the City recognizes the environmental benefits of the No Project ( No Build)

Alternative,  this alternative would not achieve any of the project objectives.

Specifically, this alternative would not: construct improvements that are integrated

with the City' s infrastructure GIS and allow for automatic synchronization between the
model and infrastructure GIS to limit future maintenance efforts;  provide cost-

effective and fiscally responsible water, wastewater, and recycled water services that

meet the water quantity, water quality, system pressure, and reliability requirements

of the City' s customers; improve or replace existing City water, wastewater, and
recycled water system infrastructure;  or provide future water, wastewater,  and

recycled water system infrastructure necessary to meet projected growth of the City' s
service area.

For these reasons, this alternative is rejected.

2.       NEAR- TERM IMPROVEMENTS ALTERNATIVE:

The Near- Term Improvements Alternative is discussed on pages 5. 0- 3, 5. 0- 4, and 5. 0- 7 through

5. 0- 9 of the Draft EIR. Under the Near- Term Improvements Alternative, only the improvements

proposed to be completed in the near-term would be constructed. The long-term water and
recycled water improvements would not be constructed. The long- term water improvements

include the South San Joaquin Irrigation District ( SSJID) Turnout 2 Expansion, the Sadler Oak

Transmission Improvement Project, and the SSJID Transmission Improvement Project. Table 5. 0- 1

in Chapter 5. 0 summarizes all the water system improvement projects and their estimated

planning level opinion of probable costs( OPCs) that would occur under this alternative.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan ,      19

387



1

CEQA FINDINGS

Because all of the wastewater improvements would be completed in the near- term, this

alternative would include development of all of the proposed wastewater improvements. The

long- term recycled water improvements include the Phase 2B improvements, which would expand

the disposal capacity to the full 2. 5 million- gallons- per day( MGD) Lathrop Consolidated Treatment

Facility ( CTF) Phase 2 treatment capacity. The Phase 2B improvements would not be constructed
under this alternative, which include:

Increase the capacity of the PMP- 1 pump station in conjunction with the installation of

Pond S- X( located directly north of S5).

Install a new pond and pump station in the western portion of the City, potentially at

locations S13 storage pond and PMP- 6 pump station, to meet storage requirements and to
meet system pressure criteria in Phase 2B.

The recycled water Phase 2A improvements were based on the planned initial infrastructure

improvements as of October 2017, which were planned to provide a disposal capacity of 1. 9 MGD.

The Phase 2A improvements would be constructed under this alternative. The SCADA towers and

generators would also be constructed under this alternative.

Findings: Environmental benefits of this alternative over the proposed project include the

reduction of impacts to biological resources and cultural and tribal resources. Impacts

to geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, and hydrology and water

quality would be the same as the proposed project.

The Near-Term Improvements Alternative would not fully meet the project objectives

identified by the City of Lathrop. Specifically, this alternative would not: provide cost-

effective and fiscally responsible water, wastewater, and recycled water services that

meet the water quantity, water quality, system pressure, and reliability requirements

of the City' s customers; improve or replace existing City water, wastewater, and
recycled water system infrastructure; or provide future water, wastewater,  and

recycled water system infrastructure necessary to meet projected growth of the City' s
service area.

For these reasons, this alternative is rejected.

3.       ENVIRONMENTALLY SUPERIORALTERNATIVE:

CEQA requires that an environmentally superior alternative be identified among the alternatives

that are analyzed in the EIR. If the No Project Alternative is the environmentally superior

alternative, an EIR must also identify an environmentally superior alternative among the other
alternatives ( CEQA Guidelines Section 15126. 6( e)( 2)). The environmentally superior alternative is
that alternative with the least adverse environmental impacts when compared to the proposed

project.

As shown on Table 5. 0- 2 of the Draft EIR ( on page 5. 0- 9), a comparison of alternatives is

presented. The No Project ( No Build) Alternative is the environmentally superior alternative.

However, as required by CEQA, when the No Project ( No Build) Alternative is the environmentally

i 20   ,. ; i CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

388



CEQA FINDINGS        

superior alternative,  the environmentally superior alternative among the others must be
identified. Therefore, the Near- Term Improvements Alternative ranks higher than the proposed

project.

It should be noted that the Near- Term Improvements Alternative does not meet all of the project

objectives. This alternative would construct improvements that are integrated with the City' s

infrastructure GIS and allow for automatic synchronization between the model and infrastructure

GIS to limit future maintenance efforts. However, as noted above, this alternative would not:

provide cost-effective and fiscally responsible water, wastewater, and recycled water services that

meet the water quantity, water quality, system pressure, and reliability requirements of the City' s

customers;  improve or replace existing City water, wastewater,  and recycled water system

infrastructure; or provide future water, wastewater, and recycled water system infrastructure

necessary to meet projected growth of the City' s service area.

For the reasons provided above, this alternative is rejected.

CEQA Findings— Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan 21

389



CEQA FINDINGS

This page left intentionally blank.

22 f CEQA Findings - Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master Plan

390



ATTACHMENT " D"

CITY OF L THROP IIVTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES MASTER PLAN

UPDATE ( IVURfiiIP)

Dated December 2018

Due to the size of this document, it is not included with the staff

report.  Copies are available for public inspection at the City
Clerk' s Office at Lathrop City Hall, located at

390 Towne Centre Dr. Lathrop, CA 95330
209) 941- 7220

This document is also available on the City' s website at:
http:// www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ com- dev/ paqe/ public- review- documents

391



392



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT GPA- 19- 140

TO UPDATE THE CITY' S HOUSING ELEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Consider Adoption of a Resolution recommending

the City Council amend the General Plan to

replace the Adopted Housing Element with the
2019 Housing Element Update.

Project Summary and Recommendation:

State law mandates that each city and county update their Housing Element
regularly,  with specific deadlines being established by the State Department of
Housing and Community Development ( HCD). The Housing Element is one of seven
mandatory elements that comprise a local agency' s General Plan according to Section
65302( c)  of the Government Code. The Housing Element is considered to be the
primary policy document to guide the development, rehabilitation and preservation
of housing for all economic segments of the local population.

The City' s current Housing Element was adopted on September 19,  2016.    The

attached Draft 2019 Housing Element addresses the
5t"   

planning cycle and

demonstrates how the City will accommodate the 2014- 2023 Regional Housing Needs
Allocation ( RHNA) adopted by the San Joaquin Council of Governments.

Project Background and Proposed Housing Element:

The proposed 2019 Housing Element Update has been prepared to address the State-
mandated requirements to accommodate housing, including affordable housing. The
Housing Element includes a Housing Plan that establishes goals,  policies,  and

programs to ensure that the City has adequate sites to accommodate its housing
needs, including the 2014- 2023 RHNA, to remove constraints to the development of
housing,  including housing for lower income groups and special needs groups, to

maintain the City' s existing housing stock, to further fair housing, and to encourage
energy efficiency and conservation in residential development.       -

393



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE NO. GPA- 19- 140

The 2019 Housing Element consists of two components:     

2019 Housing Element- Policy Document; The 2019 Housing Element Policy Document
addresses the purpose. of the Housing Element and efforts to ensure  public

participation in the development of the Housing Element and establishes the City' s
housing plan, including the goals,. policies, and implementation p.rogr.ams to address
the- City' s housing needs.

Housing Element BackQround Report: The Background Report addresses the City' s
accomplishments and progress under the previous Housing Element,  addresses

demographic, housing, and socioeconomic characteristics of the City, quantifies the
City' s housing needs, including needs of special populations, addresses constraints

to housing, and identifies resources, including vacant and underdeveloped residential
sites, for the production and maintenance of housing.

The Draft Housing Element was submitted to HCD for a 60- day review period in
September 2019 and was also made available for public review from September 19,

2019 through October 21, 2019.

During the 60- day review period,  HCD provided verbal comments on the Draft

Housing Element.  City staff and the Housing Element consultant drafted revisions in
response to HCD' s comments related to public participation,  Housing Element
implementation,   potential housing constraints,  affordability levels of approved
housing projects, density levels assumed for Residential Multifamily and mixed. use
developments,  and the capacity of the City' s inventory of sites for residential
development.    These revisions have been incorporated into the Draft Housing
Element provided as Attachment # 2.

During the public review period, the City did not receive any public comments on the
Housing Element.    One public comment was made to the Planning Commission
regarding streamlining of accessory dwelling units; this issue is addressed on page

61 of the 2019 Housing Element Background Report.

HCD completed its review of the draft Housing Element on November 12, 2019 and
provided a formal review letter to the City,  identifying that the Housing Element,
incorporating the revisions provided to HCD,  meets the statutory requirements of
state Housing Element law ( Attachment # 3),

Environmental:

The Housing Element would not result in any significant environmental impacts.
Adoption and implementation of the Housing Element has been determined to be
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act as it meets with the criteria
established in Section 15061( b)( 3) of the CEQA Guidelines because there will be no

physical changes to the environment.

394



CITY MAN 4GERS REPORT

DECEM ER 9, 2019 CITY COUlVCIL REGULAR NIEETING

HOUSI6V( a ELEMENT UPDATE I iO. GPA-. 9- 140

The Housing Element is consistent with the development capacities and intensities
envisioned by the General Plan and would not change the density,  location,  or

intensity of development allowed under the General Plan.

Public Notice

A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the Manteca Bulletin on November 27,
2019.    Staff also mailed the public hearing notice to all individuals that have
requested to receive notice of actions taken by the City relative to the General Plan.
In addition, the meeting agenda was posted at our designated posting locations in
the City.   As of the writing of this report,  no comments were received in favor or

against the proposed project.

At their regular meeting of November 20,  2019, the Planning Commission voted
unanimously ( 4- 0), one absent, to recommend the City Council amend the General
Plan to adopt the 2019 Housing Element, including any revisions made in response
to HCD comments,  to address the requirements of California Government Code

Sections 65580 through 65589. 8.   Attached is the Planning Commission Resolution
No. 19- 11 for reference. ( Attachment # 4)

F ECONiMENDATION:

The Planning Commission and staff recommends that the City Council consider all
information presented at the public hearing,  and if determined to be appropriate,

adopt a resolution amending the General Plan to adopt the 2019 Housing Element
Attachment # 2),  including any revisions made in response to HCD comments, to

address the requirements of California Government Code Sections 65580 through

65589. 8.

TTAC H M E IVTS:

1.  Resolution approving General Plan Amendment GPA- 19- 140.

2.  City Council Review Draft Housing Element ( November 2019)

3.  HCD Review Letter to Mark Meissner, Director, Community Development
Department ( November 12, 2019)

4.  Planning Commission Resolution No. 19- 11

395



CITY MANACEItS 13EPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE NO. GPA- 19- 140

APPROVALS:

r Iq
Ma k M  ' ss r Date

Commu ty Deve opment Director

Z`

Salva avarrete Date

City Attorney

lZ' 3' 6
Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

396



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING
THE GENERAL PLAN TO REPLACE THE ADOPTED HOUSING ELEMENT WITH

THE 2019 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE

WHEREAS,  Sections 65580 through 65589. 8 of the California Government

Code require each jurisdiction to regularly update its Housing Element in accordance
with deadlines established by the State; and

WHEREAS, the City has held visioning and outreach workshops in 2018 and
2019 for the General Plan Update and on August 14, 2019, the City held a public
workshop to provide the community and interested agencies with an opportunity to
identify priorities and concerns related to the provision of housing; and

WHEREAS,  the City submitted the Draft Housing Element Update to the
California Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) for HCD for

state- mandated review; and

WHEREAS, the City made the Draft 2019 Housing Element available for public
review from September 19, 2019 through October 21, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the City held a public workshop on October 8, 2019 to provide the
community and interested parties with an opportunity to learn about the Draft 2019
Housing Element and comment on the Draft Housing Element and no public

comments were received; and

WHEREAS, HCD identified revisions to the Draft Housing Element that were
necessary to comply with state law through oral comments to the City' s consultant;
and

WHEREAS, proposed revisions were made to the Draft Housing Element and
submitted to HCD for review; and

WHEREAS, the City has analyzed the Draft Housing Element and proposed
revisions and determin ed that the Housing Element does not have the potential to
result in a significant adverse environmental effect and is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061( b)( 3) of the State CEQA

Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on
November 20, 2019 regarding the Housing Element Update, including the changes
requested by HCD, at which time all interested persons were given an opportunity to
be heard, and the Planning Commission voted unanimously ( 4- 0) to adopt the 2019
Housing Element; and

Resolution 19-

397



WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hear.ing on December
9, 2019 regarding the Housing Element Update, at which time all interested persons
were given an opporturiity to be heard; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has reviewed and considered all evidence

submitted in connection with the Housing Element Update, including the staff report,
public testimony, and all other documents and evidence that are part of the City
administrative record for these actions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby make the following findings:

1.     The goals, policies, programs, and objectives contained in the Housing Element
Update, considered individually and cumulatively, do not adversely affect the
internal consistency of the City of Lathrop General Plan.

2.    The above recitals are true and correct and constitute the facts supporting the
findings made by the City Council in approving this Resolution.

3.    The City Council has utilized its independent judgment in considering the
information contained in this resolution, in the staff report and attachments and

other exhibits, and in written and oral testimony during the public hearing.
4.    The Housing Element does not have the potential to result in a significant

adverse environmental effect and is exempt from the California Environmental

Quality Act  ( CEQA)  pursuant to Section 15061( b)( 3)  of the State CEQA

Guidelines.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that based on the Findings included herein,

substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, including the staff
report, attachments to the staff report, attachments to this resolution and documents

listed or referenced herein, and input provided during the public hearing; the City
Council of the City of Lathrop hereby amends the General Plan to adopt the City
Council Review Draft Housing Element ( November 2019) provided as Attachment

2 to the Staff Report, including any revisions made in response to HCD comments,
to address the requirements of California Government Code Sections 65580 through

65589. 8.

Resolution 19-

398



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at this regular
meeting on the 9th day of December, 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

w

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution 19-

399



j.      i!

s;    ;    „: i;,'
Id      p     '.,. F

a'`&

tm i 

ai     
j

a

t

e 

i 4--, V  ,,,.,,,s

r,

3  _ y.

Fye*-
S4        '  ,

r"   

t  ., Y

4y {`*''

r'" 4,`!    , l r:.      >.:`""":  
µ .  .    '     _. +

r

t   _+-     . ..   "-
A aab

v           

J. 4.   . yat:     , i  .aaei.     ,i' 4 -" 

y',   

Y ,      
r

s  '_
an,  + , a,. ._ t     ._

g-     ba

v+,+ a'+. d,          k
e''
a"

p=_ 5' lq
Iz           -"n. w', y,

wr    ','(

T   ``''     "`_      
an ' z"""

y`   '+ y"       I `       sr. P'^(
i        

ae•. `      

1
f?      '  i,

t `      . °'-   -"""`"' '       ..

T 4   '
se..  

q  '      .. 

a m   .      R
i' p,     - o'          d+      '_ w.  '     '      

o . _..      
v_;

w„ °.

a
v R'     j

l     .   

Aa
e     x<. *-..*   "      

s.:              v. qv', ' r 9' i      "

i,::  .     a' 1    {" a     

1`? r+    s  '..'  
i

T,

r-'''"°"

i e.r
y' L,  f,-. ,      r  ,-      

k
gr.   .,:  

d
x-  .'-.r

t   ' 

Y

I*.{

w

a», W.-
r      `    ..' & i

y. ..

n. y r
k s ..  pk: y

Y

e 

p

a*       ' i
f        `

j ,. f 

3        t,     
r

v

y

a
w-       ')     

d,   
y,      '

P

ny       t    ¢

g

r w

tt

m^....    ,      •°    

9    ,

r E        T       ",¢~     
a, 1`   •i t ,' i'     i+y,"'+

a       
3. f" dr'

r/' ;'    a'       r:stt'

Y.    1 .  ' 1

1 1        

1

1 -         '   i:   

r           _

y.}.    

a' I(I
I' `

y
o w

400



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TABLEOFCONTENTS   

POLICY DOCUMENT

1.    INTRODUCTION..........................:.....:..............:.......................................................................:...........................

2.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION......................................................................................................................................... 3

3.    HOUSING PLAN.........................................................................................................:.............:........................ 1 O

HousingNeeds.....................:............................................................................................................................ 10

QuantifiedObjectives..........................:..............................................................................................:...........:..10

Goals, Policies, and Programs.................................:........................................:................................................ 13

Implementation Plan.:....................................   19

BACKGROUND REPORT

1.    INTRODUCTION................................................................................................................................................... 1

2.    ACCOMPLISHMENTS UNDER 5TH CYCLE HOUSING ELEMENT........:..:.................................:.....:..................................... 3

Reviewof 2015 Housing Element.............................................................................................................................. 3

Housing Production During 5th Cycle RHNA Period ..................................:............................................................... 3

Appropriateness and Effectiveness of 2015 Housing Element................................................................................... 4

3.    HOUSING NEEDSASSESSMENT............................................................................................................................ 22

Introductionand Background................................................................................:.................................................. 22

Population Trends and Characteristics...................................................................................................................... 22

EmploymentCharacteristics..................................................................................................................................... 24

ExistingHousing Needs.....................................................................................................:...................................... 26

HousingCharacteristics.............................................................................................:.............................................. 30

FutureHousing Needs.............................................................................................................................................. 36

UnitsAt- Risk of Conversion.................................................:..................................................................................... 52

4.    CONSTRAINTS.................:....................................................................:............................................................ 53

GovernmentalConstraints........................................................................................................................................ 53

Potential Non- Governmental Constraints................................................................................................................. 81

S.    RESOURCES..................................................................................................................................................... BH

Inventoryof Housing Sites........................................................................................................................................ 88

Adequacy of Public Facilities and Infrastructure......................:.:..................................:........................................... 97

EnvironmentalIssues.............................................................................................................................................. 101

Financial/ Other Resources:..................................................................................................................................... 104

6.    OTHER REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................................................... 09

Consistencywith General Plan................................................................................................................................ 109

Relationship to Other City Plans and Policies......................................................................................................... 109

Priorityfor Water and Sewer......................................................................:............................................................ 109

EnergyConservation..................................................................:..................................:......................................... 109

REFERENCES............................................................................................................................................................

I

401



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURES located following Section 4) 
Figure 1: General Plan Sub- Plan Areas

Figure- 2: Inventory of Residential Sites
Figure 3: River Islands VTM 3694

Figure 4: Flood Hazard Areas

APPENDIX A: INVENTORY OF RESIDENTIAL SITES

AppendixA1: Inventory of Single Family Lots in River Island

ii

402



u   

2019 Housin  Elernent
n,, 7, n     -    

S  .-:..":::
J

1.     Introduction
The City of Lathrop recognizes the vital role local governments play in the
supply and affordability of housing. Each local government in California is
required to adopt a comprehensive,  long- term general plan for the

physical development of the city or county. The Housing Element is one
of the seven mandated elements of the local general plan. State law

requires that local governments address the existing and projected

housing needs of all economic segments of the community through their

housing -elements.  The law acknowledges that, in order for the private

market to adequately address housing needs and demand,  local

governments must adopt land use plans and regulatory systems that
provide opportunities for,  and do not unduly constrain,  housing
development.  As a result, housing policy in the state rests largely upon
the effective implementation of local general plans and, in particular, local

housing elements.

Consistent with State law, the purposes of this Housing Element are to

identify the community' s housing needs; to state the community' s goals
and objectives with regard to housing production, rehabilitation, and
conservation to meet those needs;  and to define- the policies and

programs that the community will implement to achieve the stated goals
and objectives.

State law requires that the City accommodate its " fair share" of regional

housing needs, which are assigned by the San Joaquin Area Council of
Governments (SJCOG) for all jurisdictions in San Joaquin County. SJCOG

established the Regiohal Housing Needs Plan ( RHNP) to each city and
unincorporated county its share of the regional housing need based on
population growth and projections ( Government Code 65584). Beyond

these income- based housing needs, the Housing Element must also
address special needs groups; such as seniors, persons with disabilities

including developmental disabilities, single female parents, large families,
farm workers, and homeless persons.

The City of Lathrop Housing Element consists of two documents: the 2019
Housing Element Background Report and the 2019 Housing Element
policy document).     The Background Report provides information

regarding the City' s population, household, and housing characteristics,.
quantifies housing needs, addresses special needs populations, describes
potential constraints to housing,  and identifies resources available,

including land and financial resources, for the production, rehabilitation,

403



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMEIVT

and preservation of housing.  The Housing Element Background Report
provides documentation and analysis in support of the goals, polices

programs,  and quantified objectives in this Housing Element policy

document. This Housing Element policy document is divided into the
following sections:

1. Introduction

The Introduction provides a brief summary of the purpose of the Housing
Element and describes the components of the Housing Element.

2. Public Participation

This section describes._.the outreach efforts that were taken to achieve

community input from all segments of the population and representatives

from traditionally under-represented or disadvantaged populations in the
development of the General Plan Update, including this Housing Element
Update.

3: Housing Plan

The Housing Plan identifies the City' s housing goals and establishes a
framework to address each goal. The policies and programs address

specific needs or constraints identified in the Background Report as well

as the requirements of State law. The Housing Plan provides direction for

future housing development, rehabilitation of existing housing, removal of
constraints to housing production,   fair housing,   and increasing

opportunities for energy conservation. Each topic includes an overarching
goal with supporting policies and implementation programs to provide

direction to decision- makers and assist in achieving the stated goal.

The following definitions describe the nature of the statements of goals,

policies, implementation programs, and quantified objectives as they are

used in the Housing Element Policy Document:

Goal:   Is the guiding intent and purpose for current and future
housing stock. A Goal is general in nature and represents a central
City issue by outlining the ultimate purpose for an effort stated in
a way that is general in nature and immeasurable.

Policv:     Specific statement of action that defines a clear

commitment to achieve the Goal in which it was intended.

Implementation Program:   An action,  procedure,  program,  or

technique that carries out the policy.  Implementation programs

also specify primary responsibility for carrying out the action and
an estimated timeframe for its accomplishment.  The timeframe

indicates the calendar year in which the activity is scheduled to be
completed.  These timeframes are general guidelines and may be
adjusted based on City staffing and budgetary considerations.

2

404



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT

Quantified Objective: The number of housing units that the City
expects to be constructed, conserved, or rehabilitated; or the

number of households the City expects will be assisted through
Housing Element programs and based on general market

conditions during the timeframe of the Housing Element

Affordable Housinq" means housing affordable to extremely low, 
very low, and low income households.

2.     Public Participation
During the preparation of the Lathrop Housing Element, a number of
public outreach methods were employed. City officials, the Department of

Housing and Community Development ( HCD), and various housing and

social services providers were contacted and consulted. The following
meetings were held to garner public input associated with the

community' s vision and priorities,   land use  ( including residential)

preferences, environmental justice and housing concerns:

Visioning Workshop # 1 - Monday, April 16, 2018

Council Chambers, Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre Drive
Visioning Workshop # 2- Wednesday, May 2, 2018
Senior Center, 15707 5th Street

Environmental Justice Workshop- June 27th, 2019

Council Chambers, Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre Dr.
Housing Workshop—Wednesday, August 14, 2019

Council Chambers, Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre Dr.
Housing Element Workshop— Tuesday, October 8, 2019

Lathrop Senior Center, 15707 5th Street

Planning Commission Hearing
Hearing will be held following the public and agency review
period—details to be added to Final Housing Element.

City Council public hearing
Hearing will be held following the public and agency review
period—details to be added to Final Housing Element.

Publ c Outreach

The City conducted public outreach for each meeting through a formal
notice in the local newspaper, the Manteca Bulletin, notices posted on the

notice or community boards at City Hall, the Lathrop Manteca Fire District,

Lathrop Senior Center, and Lathrop parks and recreation facilities, notices
and announcements were mailed to interested individuals, and housing
developers and service providers were notified.   It is noted that while

translation services were not offered at the meetings, staff and others who

are multi- lingual attended the meetings and were available to translate if

3

405



2019 HousiNs E E nE T

necessary.  No translation services were requested for or at any of the
meetings.

For the workshop focusing on housing needs, local apartment complexes,
mobile home parks, and service provides were mailed notices and invited

to attend the meeting and were also asked to post each notice in a visible
location so their residents and client base could learn about the meetings.

Organizations notified throughout this process included:

s Housing Authority of the County of San Joaquin
San Joaquin Fair Housing
First 5 San Joaquin

Human Services Agency of San Joaquin County
San Joaquin Department of Aging
Habitat for Humanity of San Joaquin County
Manteca Unified School District

Second Harvest Food Bank of San Joaquin and Stanislaus Counties

Catholic Charities,  Diocese of Stockton,  Environmental Justice

Program

Lathrop Chamber of Commerce
HOPE Family Shelter
911 H Street Apartments

Lathrop Sands Mobile Home Park
Walnut Grove Mobile Home Park

Camino Real Mobile Estates

Housing developers for the West Lathrop Specific Plan and Central
Lathrop Specific Plan
Raymus House

Head Start Child Development

Lathrop Senior Center
Lathrop Branch Library
Blue Mountain Construction Services

The Schussing Company, Inc.

Visioning Workshops
Three General Plan Visioning Workshops were held in April and May, 2018
to obtain input from the community on the General Plan Update.

The intent of Workshop # 1 was to begin a dialogue with the community

regarding its priorities for the next 20 years. Following a brief presentation
and Q& A period on the General Plan Update,  the consultant team

conducted two activities to help facilitate this conversation. Additionally,
during the workshop the topic of Environmental Justice was raised, and
the consultant team provided a brief overview of State requirements, and

how this topic will be addressed in the General Plan.

The second Visioning Workshop was held on Wednesday, May 2, 2018 @

4

406



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMEN P

6: 00 pm at the Senior Center. The focus of the Workshop # 2 was the

establishment and refinement of guiding principles, development of a
comprehensive and cohesive community vision statement,   and

identification of community design and land use assets through the
exploration of opportunities to enhance placemaking -. throughout the

community.

The third Visioning Workshop was held on Thursday, May 17, 2018 @ 6: 00
p. m. at River Islands Welcome Center. The intent of this workshop was to
focus on circulation mobility issues and priorities.

Input from the workshops is available in the Lathrop Outreach Report on
the General Plan Update website: lathrop. generalplan. org.  Community

input related to housing, services for special needs populations, and issues
associated with development included the following priorities and
challenges:

Need for growth without loss of community character
Maintaining the small- town feel

Ensuring access to healthy food and fresh produce
Ensuing fair and equal treatment

Addressing opposition to infill development

Attracting more condominium/ townhome apartments
Encourage infill investment and development

Desire to promote higher density housing and mixed- use

development along key transportation corridors
Ensure residents have access to affordable housing, education,

opportunity, and economic advancement

Ensure access to affordable healthcare,    nutrition,    and

transportation

Develop a high quality community with high quality housing
standards and high quality transit, public safety, and services

Environmental Justice Wol-kshop
Due to the importance of local environmental justice issues, the City held

a workshop focusing on June 27, 2019 focusing on environmental justice
issues facing the community, including:

Pollution Exposure and Air Quality
Public Facilities

Food Access

Safe and Sanitary Homes

Physical Activity

Civil" or Community Engagement

5

407



ZO' 9 HOUSING ELEMENT

The City invited residents, service providers, the air district, farm bureau,
and organizations that work with lower income populations and local

community groups. Workshop participants were provided an overview of
environmental justice issues, including ensuring access to safe, sanitary,
and affordable housing, and then worked in small groups on several
activities.  The small groups were asked to prioritize a number of topics

and provide potential policy solutions to each topic. Input received related
to housing and special needs groups is summarized below:

Availability of Safe and Sanitary Housing:   On average, small groups

identified this topic as moderately important, with votes ranging from
very important" ( 2 groups) to " somewhat important" ( 1 group) to " not

important" ( 1 group).  Policy recommendations included:

Ensuring protections are in place for existing residents.

Increase the supply of affordable housing opportunities and

housing for all residents.

Civil orCommunityEngagement. On average small groups identified this

topic as very important and somewhat important.  Recommendations to

encourage equitable community engagement included:

Ensure residents are noticed for any type of development that has
impacts caused by development.

Adopt notification policies for residents affected by projects

including STAA routes and transportation improvement projects.

Notifications should be mailed to residents prior to public hearing
and provide residents adequate time for review.

Enhance public participation through community outreach.

Enhance community participation by having meetings at more

accessible times for working people. Later times could

accommodate those who commute home from the bay area.

Include community members in committees formed from long

range planning efforts.

leeds of Disadvantaged Communities:   The needs of disadvantaged

communities were identified as very important by most of the small
groups.      Recommendations to address needs of disadvantaged

communities included:

Pursue funding sources and grant opportunities that benefit
disadvantaged communities.

Enhance and pursue community programs related to counselling,

advocacy, veteran and senior services.

6

408



O 9 NOUSING ELENIENT

Irnprovements for family activities including opportunities for      

indoor recreational facilities, parks, community centers:
Ensure nonprofits and programs such as WIC, Cal- Fresh, and

Veterans etc. have affordable palaces to build or operate.

Housing Workshop
The City held a housing- focused workshop on Wednesday, August 14,   
2019 at City Hall. The businesses and organizations invited by the City
included public service providers, churches, mobile home park owners and

managers,  developers,  apartment managers,  and non- profit housing

advocates, as previously described.

The workshop included discussion of the requirements of State housing
law for housing elements, Lathrop' s housing needs by income group and
associated requirement to designate adequate sites, and the need for

housing for seniors, large households, persons with a disability, homeless
both emergency shelter and transitional housing), extremely low, very
low,  and low income households,  and other special needs or at- risk

groups.  Residents and stakeholders attended the workshop.

Workshop attendees were asked to identify housing needs and priorities
in Lathrop.  The following needs and priorities were identified:

Very low and low income housing
More affordable homes for lower income

Build affordable duplex

Green housing communities
Need affordable senior apartment

Water and sewer allocations— are there enough available?

Where will the spray fields be constructed to accommodate

g rowth?

More affordable housing for seniors

Affordable senior housing

Inclusionary housing
Safe housing = appropriate areas

Police fire and schools to accommodate growth prior to

approving any development

Transitional housing

Workshops attendees were asked to identify any barriers to housing
production,  particularly affordable housing,  multifamily housing,  and

housing serving special needs groups.     Participants identified the

following barriers:

7

409



2419 Housin E E En r      _    

More incentive for low income fiousing

Need focus on attracting afFordable housing with redevelopments

Sufficient emergency response

How will growth with traffic affect one environment

Getting grants etc. for seniors, restricted, low income, transitional
housing
Police, fire, schools should be planned and funded prior to

approval

Are there efficient roads for the upcoming large population?

Are the roads going to be repaved prior to new construction —

Yosemite and McKinley are terrible
Adequate resources— sewer, water

Is natural gas and propane utilities going to be available for all
this growth?

All housing must have safe routes to school
Not enough schools

Circulation element need to go hand and hand with housing

zoning

Following the public workshop and stakeholder interviews, City staff and
the consultant team reviewed the Draft Housing Element including the

available residential sites inventory, sites for multifamily housing, and sites

for emergency shelters and transitional/ supportive housing, as well as the
City' s infrastructure plans and capacities to ensure that comments and

input received in the workshop were fully addressed. The City staff and
the consultantteam also discussed the City' s accomplishments, goals and
programs,  new programs required in light of new legislation,  and

constraints facing the Lathrop community to ensure that the Housing
Element addresses the needs identified through the public participation

process.

Public Reviev Draft Housing Element
The Draft Housing Element was provided to the public for a review period
from September 19 to October 21, 2019. During the same time period,

the Draft Housing Element was submitted to HCD for the state- required
60- day review period.

No comments were provided at the Draft Housing Element Workshop held
by the City on October 8, 2019.

The Housing Element was posted to the City' s website and made available
for public review at the City Community Development Department,

Lathrop Library,  and Lathrop Senior Center for public review from

8

410



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT

September 19, 2019 through October 21, 2019.  

The City prepared a Notice ofAvailabilityforthe Housing Element, inviting
the public to review and comment on the Housing Element.  The Notice

of Availability identified locations where the Housing Element was
available for review and provided directions on how to comment. Written

comments were requested to be provided to the City by October 21,
2019.  In addition to the opportunity for written comments, a community
meeting was held on October 8, 2019 to provide the public and interested

parties an overview of the Housing Element, including the Housing Plan
and Background Report, and will be provided an opportunity to comment

on the Housing Element.

Planning Co n nission
Prior to adoption of the Housing Element, the Planning Commission held
a noticed public hearing on November 20, 2019. Notice of the public

hearing was published in the Manteca Bulletin, posted at City Hall, posted
on the City' s website, and sent to the housing stakeholder organizations
identified above.   The Planning Commission held a public hearing,
considered public input,   discussed the Housing Element,   and

recommended that the City Council adopt of the Housing Element.

City Council
Prior to adoption of the Housing Element, the City Council will hold a
noticed public hearing on December 9, 2019. Notice of the public hearing
was published in the Manteca Bulletin, posted at City Hall, posted on the

City' s website,  and sent to the housing stakeholder organizations
identified above.   Following the public hearing, the City Council will
consider public input, discuss the Housing Element, and consider the

Planning Commission' s recommendation to adopt the Housing Element.

9

411



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT

3.     Housing 1' lan
T{ie Background Report of the Housing Element examines Lathrop' s

housing needs, opportunities, and constraints. l'o how to refine the goals,
policies,  and programs from the 2016 Housing Element, an examination

of tfie previous housing element was done. A complete summary of the

2016 Housing Element' s Policies can be found in Section 6 of the
Background Report.

Housing Need
Table 1 summarizes the City' s housing needs by income level, including
the City' s fair share of the 2014- 2023 RHNA, the City' s progress to. date,
the amount of units that can be accommodate on residential sites, the total

units accommodated, and the surplus of units that can be accommodated.

TABLE 1: LATHROP REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION
s     

Extremel Logw   '   Moderate Aboue`,`     Totat`
9, ad. y,;; . r k.,,

y , rµv
k:? s. n4,_,

S
a,

1ys 4y, 1A'`

P"¢
3 3 rw x. ra-€` j

p*'+
p', k

w,'%'`,•;3''''' C.,^}'  ''ya

N. 4 ,! ;

txtJar
f:

Y a' h
r^ r'

4 W` l'l :"s,

k t, lncome

n QUFral 4,I' 1' ';-. 4

r' f i`    '    n v ;r`«»'  ,d f" kru a'' ad R f
y     a f, y, 

k,:` a;. k. r-
ow l ncame,;;w. :    „   

Income    .     
RHNAAIIocation:

2014-2023 J
1`;

778 957 2, 421  -;"      5, 156 ;=  ..Progress

to Date 0 29 1, 571 1, 600 Background

Report Table 32)Under

Construction/ Permitted 0 0 197 197 a,  
o ,. RHNi4

Allocation not yet, .    -:    *   1, 778       '  tl . 
928     '        ':

b53 ;°   ,    ' 3, 359,  . constructecl, 

under   `  ,    .. .       o

construction, or permitEed     ,       ,:       -   Housing

Sites 2, 121 2, 715 8, 742 13, 578 Background

Report Table 62)Surplus (

Allocation less 362 1, 787 8, 089 10, 219 Frogress

less F-lousing Sites)SOURCE:
SANJOAQU/ NCOUNCIL OFGOVERNMENTS,2024;CITYOF LATHROP,2019;ZILLOW, 2O2 S,AND 2O29;DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP, 2019

Quantif

edObje. ctivesState

law requires that the Housing Element contains quantified objectives for
the maintenance, preservation; improvement,, and development of housing (

Government Code Section 65583b).  State law recognizes that the

total housing needs identified by a community may excee,davailable resources
and the community's ability to satisfy this need.  Under these circumstances,

the quantified objectives need not be identical to the total liousi,
n,g needs.  Table 2 identifies the City' s quantified objectives; it is noted
that Table 2 assumes that there is interest in housing developers in providing

lower income and moderate income housing and that the developers
and/or City are successful with funding applications for lower 10

412



2019 Housin s E EMENr

income housing.   The quantified objectives establish the number of

housing units by income category anticipated to be constructed,
rehabilitated, and conserveel during the planning period.

Through the San Joaquin Urban County consortium, the City of Lathrop-
provides a prograrri to income eligible families to assist. in rehabilitation of

existing residential uriits.  Funds are allocated each year from the

Community Development Block Grant( CDBG) and the HOME Investment

Partnership Program. Table 2 anticipates that these funds will continue to
be available to the City.   While there is no assisted multifamily rental

housing in the City, Table 2 anticipates conversion of existing afFordable
units that have been made afFordable through homebuyer assistance or

housing rehabilitation programs.

Table 2 provides a summary of income group breakdown in Lathrop
during the previous.  Housing Element planning period for new

construction,  rehabilitation,  conservation,  and preservation.   Table 3

summarizes the City' s quantified objectives for the programs included in

the Housing Plan

TABLE Z: SUMMARY OF QUANTIFIED OBJECTIVES BY INCOME - ZO15- ZO23
e ,  * x k

z
X ' M     a S,' i7 R" * a.'• v t aa»"' suy,' 7

Neuu         ConseNatio, n and
IncomeGroups,  

7q Rehab;l tation F b *

R Construct, on._._ __ ,_  Preserluation; 

Extremely Low 8 6 0

Very Low 33 8 4

Low 32 20 6

Moderate 462 10 10

Above
2, 500 0 0

Moderate

TOTAL 3, 035 61 20

The City does not have any su6sidized multifamily housing that is required to be
affordable to lower and moderate income households.  The City' s conservation
and preservation objectives are to encourage the continued presePvation of

market- rate housing that is affordable to lower and moderate income households.

TABLE 3; SUMMARY OF QUANTIfIED. OBJECTIVES BY PROGRAM- ZO' I 5- ZO23 ,  _

xtremely Ue y Abaue
I ncame Gr.iaups ow Mod.erate

I.a,w Lo loderate

New C*onstruction

Program 1 a, 1 b,    
0 20 20 450 2, 500

1c, 1f, 1k, 1n, 2a

Program 1d, 1e,    
6 10 10 0 0

1 g, 1 I, 2b, 20, 2q

11

413



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT

4 R   .-        4  &      g: I

Extremely r llerye     .;       pt Above ;
Income Groups   ; 3        -;  Low"    Matlerate,: .: ;

Low;       Law Moderate'-

Pr.ogram 1 m 2 1 0 0 0

Program 2f 0 2 2 12 0

ubtotal New
8 33     _   32 462 500

Construction

Reh"a6il tation

Programs 3a, 3c,   
6 8 10 0 0

3e

Programs 3b 0 0 10 10 0

Subtotal

Rehabilitation
6 8 20 10 0

Conservation. and Preservation* ' 

Programs 3a, 3c,   
0 4 6 10 0

3d, 3e       _ .

Subtotal
0 4 6 10 0

Conservation

TOTAL 19 36 50 462 2, 500

The City does not have any subsidized multifamily housing that is required to be
affordable to lower and moderate income households.  The City's conservation
and preservation objectives. are to encourage the continued preservation of

market- rate Fiousing fhat is affordable to lower and moderate income households.

12

414



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT

Goals, Policies, and Pro rams

The following presents the housing policies and implementation programs

for the City of Lathrop, Tfiis is a description of the appropriateness of the
housing goals, objectives, and policies in contributing to the attainment of
the state housirig goal, the effectiveness of the previous housing element

and the progress ofthe City' s implementation ofthe housing element. The
updated Housing Element will incorporate what has been learned from
the results of the previous element, ( Government Code Section 65588).

The Community Development Department is responsible for

implementing the programs,  with the City Council having the final
responsibility to regularly review staff' s efForts to ensure implementation.

Goa11 Housin, OpportunitiesAnd Accessibilitv

Promote the availability and qcrality of hottsing affordable to all income
levels and households types, including extremely low, very low, and low
income households and special needs groups, through maintaining an
inventory of adequerte housing sites and supporting fi nding
opportunities.

Policy 1- 1:   Facilitate the construction of a variety of housing types
affordable to all income levels.

Policy 1- 2:   Monitor the amount of land zoned for all types of housing,
including multifamily,  large group housing,  single room

occupancy,  and emergency shelters,  and initiate zone

changes, if necessary to accommodate housing needs.

Policy 1- 3:   Preserve and protect residentially zoned sites needed to
accommodate residential development consistent with the

City of Lathrop RHNA throu.gh implementing the provisions
of the Government Code by preventing the down zoning of

a residential property without a commitment for up- zoning of
a comparable property.

Policy 1- 4:   Seek assistance under federal, state, and other programs for

eligible activities that address the City' s affordable housing
needs.

Policy 1- 5:   Encourage development of housing that has, to the extent:

possible, a support structure of shopping, services, and jobs

within easy access.

Policy 1- 6:   Provide home ownership opportunities whenever possible.

Policy 1- 7:   Seek funding and programs that assist First Time

Homebuyers in purchasing their first home.

13

415



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT

Policy 1- 8:   Encourage mixed- use developments that provide a high_

density residential component.

Policy 1- 9:   Encourage the development of housing and programs to
assist special needs persons.

Policy 1-. 10:  Support housing for the homeless,  including emergency

shelters, transitional housing, and supportive housing.

Policy 1- 11:  Support projects that provide accessible and mobility-

enhancing development and services for persons with
disabilities.

Policy 1- 12:  Support projects that acldress the City' s need for farmworker

housing, including permanent and migrant housing.

Policy 1- 13:  Support the efForts of the San Joaquin Housing Authority in
its administration of Housing Choice vouchers,  public

housing, and farmworker housing.

See Table 4 for the implementation measures developed to support Goal 1 and

associated policies.

Goa12 Remove Constraints to Housin_A

Remove Constraints that hinder the development of housing, including
housing for extremely low,  very low,  low,  and moderate income

households,  and hocrsing for special needs groups,  including senior,
disabled,   developmentally disabled,   sinc le parent,   large family,
farmworker, and homeless populations.

Policy 2- 1:   Ensure that Gity codes, regulations, and policies encourage a

var'iety of housing types and do not place undue constraints
on the development of housing, including affordable and
special needs housing.

Policy 2- 2:   Provide streamlined application processing, including filing
concurrent/" piggyback" applications as a single application,

and project incentives to encourage new affordable and

special needs housing.

Policy 2- 3:   The Community Development Department is designated
lead reviewer and shall continue to promote a coordinated

review process among afFected city departments to reduce

delays and processing time.

Policy 2- 3:   Consider the impact on housing affordability of all regulatory
and fee changes ( e. g., development impact fee updates and

14

416



ZO I9 HOUSING ELE{ ENT

permit/ application fee updates), General Plan amendments,

Zoning Code updates,  and other land use policies and

regulations.

Policy 2- 4:   Encourage the development of second dwelling units to

provide additional affordable housing opportunities.

Policy 2- 5:   Encourage developers to employ innovative or alternative
construction methods to reduce housing costs and increase

housing supply.

Policy 2- 6:   Provide technical assistance to developers,   nonprofit

organizations, or other qualified private sector interests in the

application and development of projects forfederal and state

housing programs and grants.

Policy 2- 7:   Provide the Housing Element to developers to ensure that

the development community ( both non- profit and for profit)
is aware of the City' s housing programs and incentives as well
as technical assistance available through the San Joaquin

Urban County consortium and other local, state, and federal
sources.

Policy 2- 8:   The City shall continue to review all housing projects in a
quick and efficient manner. There shall be a coordinated

process for City Departments to review and comment on all

housing projects.

See Table 4 for the implementation measures developed to support Goal 2 and

associated policies.

Goa13: Presei ve,   Rehabilitate,   and Enhance Existin.q

Housinc and Neiqhborhoods

Preserve the availability of existing housing opportunities and to
conserve as well as enhance the quality of existing dwelling units and
residential neighborhoods.

See Table 4 for the implementation measures developed to support Goal 3 and

associated policies.

Policy 3- 1:   Preserve and enhance existing neighborhoods.

Policy 3- 2:   Protect existing stabilized residential neighborhoods from
the encroachment of incompatible or potentially disruptive
land uses and/ or activities.

Policy 3- 3:   Establish code enforcement as a high priority and continue to

provide adequate funding and staffing to support code

15

417



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT

enforcement programs.

Policy 3- 4:   Maintain,  preserve,  and rehabilitate the existing housing
stock.

Policy 3- 5:   Encourage the rehabilitation of multifamily units. 

Policy 3- b:-   P,rocure housing rehabilitation funds to assist affordable .

single and multifamily housing, when available. To the extent

possible, housing rehabilitation funds should be used first to

correct health and safety code violations.

Policy 3- 7.:   Prioritize rehabi.litation and infrastructure improvements in

disadvantaged areas and areas that are underserved in terms

of high quality housing, complete streets,  and access to
services.

Goa14: Provide HousinbA Free from Discrimination

Ensirre that all existing and future hoirsing opportunities are open and
available to all members of the community without discrimination on the
basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin or ancestry, marital
status, age, household com position or size, or any other arbitrary factors.

Policy 4- 1:   Ensure availability of information on state and federal fair
housing laws and encourage the enforcement of federal and

state fair housing standards.

Policy 4- 2:   Support the letter and spirit of equal housing opportunity
laws.

See Table 4 for the implementation measures developed to support Goal 4 and

associated policies.

Goal S: Encourac e and Enhance Housing Coordination
Coordinate local housing efforts with appropriate federal, state, regional,
and local governments and/ or agencies and to cooperate in the

implementation of intergovernrnental hoirsing programs to ensure
rnaximum effectiveness in solving locc l and regional housing problems.

See Table 4 for the implementation measures developed to support Goal 5 and

associated policies.

Policy 5- 1:   Maximize the City' s coordination and cooperation among

regional housing providers and program managers.

Policy 5- 2:   Continue to support the San Joaquin Urban County

consortium and the Housing Authority of the County of San
Joaquin in their respective efforts to provide housing

16

418



ZO19 HOUSING LEMENT

assistance to extremely low, very low, low and moderate-
income households.

Policy 5- 3:   Support non- profit development of affordable housing and
encourage coordination between non- profits, the City, and

regional housing assistance programs. 

Goa16: Ener, v Conservation

Encourage energy conservation measures in new and existing housing.

See Table 4 for the implementation measures developed to support Goal b and

associated policies.

Policy b- 1:   Promote the use of energy conservation features in the
design of new residential development.

Policy 6- 2:   Ensure that development projects meet or exceed state

standards,   including the California Energy Code and

CalGreen, regarding energy conservation.

Policy b- 3:   Promote energy conservation activities in all residential
neighborhoods and encourage improved energy

conservation in residential uses.

Policy 6- 4:   Promote weatherization and retrofit activities for existing

housing units that fall below current state performance

standards for energy efficiency.

For the Housing Element to serve as an effective guide to achieving the

City' s vision, it must be implemented and administered.   The Housing
Element includes a number of programs that serve as " action" items to

provide direction regarding how the City will implement the goals and
policies of the Housing Element.

The Community Development Department,  Planning Division is also

required to provide an annual report to the City Council, the State Office of

Planning and Research ( State Clearinghouse), and the State Department of

Housing and Community Development that includes the status of the
General Plan, the City' s progress in the implementation of the General Plan,

and the Gity' s progress in meeting its allocation of regional housing needs

and removing governmental constraints to the maintenance, improvement,
and development of housing. Table 4, Housing Element Implementation

Plan, is intended to serve as a tool for tracking implementation of the

Housing Element.

17

419



2O 9 HOUSING ELE( ENT

Imple entat on Plan

Table 4 identifies the general timing for the implementation of each
action, the Department responsible for the action' s implementation, and

the status of the action.    The Planning division of the Community

Development Department is responsible for coordinating with other

departments regarding implementation of the individual measures.

Ongoing means that the measure is ongoing and should be
implemented for every applicable action.  All ongoing measures
will be reviewed and addressed in the Annual Report, which will be

prepared annually in compliance, with State law.

Annual means that the measure is an annual measure and should

be addressed every year.  Implementation of annual measures will
be reviewed and addressed in the Annual Report.

In other cases, the reader may notice the use of the term " ongoing" which

refers to actions already being undertaken by the City or those that are
expected to continue on either a periodic br perpetual basis. The party or

parties that are primarily responsible for implementing each action,

whether a specific City department or, in some cases, an outside agency,
are also indicated where applicable.

The reader should keep in mind that many of these programs require both
staff and financial resources to implement. Programs that require outside

financial resources to achieve housing production, rehabilitation, or other

measures addressed at the extremely low, very low, and low income
groups as well as special needs populations are subject to the availability

of outside funds, the City' s eligibility to receive funds, and the interest and
commitment of the affordable housing development community and
special needs service providers in providing housing.

18

420



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT

TABLE 4:. HOUSING ELEMENT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

x ,,
x :.       

ons bl ior 
i  a    Y

f Itesp      e Pr   ty k.  
t     ;      ,'  y, 

Measure Funtling Status,n* x  3a
r

y Party,-       t nimgF r s  ,     
r . ,      

u.

t. 

s ,.     .-

Goal l: Housing Opportunities and Accessibili y  ,°`  :'     ,;
J

Program 1a:     To ensure adequate sites for extremely low, very low, '  Community General Fund

1

Update Complete

low, and moderate income fiousing are available throughout the Development inventory on a           In progress

planning period to meet tlie City' s RHNA, the City will continue Department,       biennial basis
Comments:

to biennially update the inventory of lower and moderate Planning and make

income srtes ( Appendix A).  The update shall removesites that Commission,       inventory
have been developed and add any replacement or new sites.     City Council available at City

The update: shall ensure that iMe inventory of residential sites
Hall and on the

continues to include sites appropriate for a variety of single
Citywebsite.

family and multifamily housing types as well as sites to
accommodate single room occupancies and emergency

shelters.

Program 1h:;- :-, Continue to monitor. the amount of,'fan,d. zoned for;.' Community '      ' General Fund.'..    Ongoing.   '    : 0 -   ;Complete

g        y nd multifamily developm, ent and ensure# ha't:.  Development,,      :,. .. through;..  the         In pr,ogr.ess ' both sin le.famil a; 

land use, and, zoning; decisions do, not redUce sites a iaiiab1e fo'r-  D'epartment,,'  development
mCo ments  

affordable housing.  In : order to en§ ure that'' adequate" sites P, la`nning     :'`     " • :" `  reviewproces' s -

continue to be provided; for afforda, ble. housmg,', the City;shall:     Commission,:  .  .  

CityCouncil   
Require dev"elopment to: meet. the•:min mum . develo.pment

densities_establishedforeach=residentia' 1• zoning; district.   '"   ° -      '   
n

e each rezon:e, change, in allowed density,, or otherEvaluat

action  ' that woulel- reduce: resrdential. densities:. or the:
i ,':_

r,esidentfal; capacity o: site- and ensure ade.quate actions    -    

and/ or: j'finding;'s are; provided ; to; ensure. consistency` with
Gove`rnment Gode Section 65863:: ' .       . .' 

As,`part..of' any entitlements. for,or amendmenfs..asso'ciated.:             "'   
with Riv,er",Islands/,W'est Lathrop Specifi,c Plan,_development;.:,  "      
ensure that the"Specific Plan: and associated maps.maintain. -.  

a mini'rrium of 45. 67. acres of high derisity. residential,` sites in: .:
River lslands"that allow developme'nt„at 20 to' 40 du/ ac.  ' .  

1g

421



201. 9 HOUSING ELEMENT

d"". tP-, TJ.'. "[`     . x<",      ',`        W w.r.az;' -   
3 N?,  $- 

h 45f,s<
y.*.      t- -

s

Y. x'M"!    M'      e; y..      4'.       h= u h      '
k,°       / uC`  '  "'„,a  4 :   . Res Ionsible,     `      .  Pr ori  /,        ;   f:

X
r ,,   _':

u'     k,
x,. s-s" r

t3 ^ a,..   "_' k 
a   ... i!' ^    s  ..'}.. a.   .-.;     

Yi,;.

r

Measure ,° 
Yr   

a     r        Funding  :    `°      S _ tus; 
Party         4 Tim ng., k ,    a -_ ,           

s.   .. i."te:. s   , sr.:, .     `-..  Kf- u. , .. : ,     .  ^ `  =    .'+'.: f*.A,+.!?:. z=. rs:      a..   < LKis.  ,... 5,e.  

i:As parf: of any entitlements or amendments associated wiffi 

Gentral; Lathrop;;Specific, Plan; development'; ensure, thatthe.;;   ...      ,   
Specific' Plan anc7- a'ssociatec iriaps main:tain a m riimum of43: ':       

acres of high density, residentia. l, s.rtes'( mixed use sites. that'   
allow high:.derrsity residential usesare not°credited for the r     ..    

full.,site and. are only' co,unted a:t. 50% of the, site sizej.:that     .,:.."..     .. :. .:. 

aI'low development at.2b to 40 du7ac:    

As part ' of tl%e, development rev.iew process.'' for any.   , 
amendment to existing specific.plans-tliat include 'residential    . 
land use designations,  - en'courage  re- des gna# ion of: ;,  .  ,        

additional.' s tes to Hi h " Densit Residential: 15- 40; du/ ac)       ` 5 Y' _

land uses br: to: mixed use designations that; 50% of the site

to be developed with, residential: uses at a' rrrin;imum density       --- 
of 20 du/ ac and encourage increasing ' Medium Density 1

Resideritial densities to a minimum of.l0 to 1'2 du/ ac:       ;, .    •  

Program 1c: 

I

Continue. , to encourage development of well-   Community General Fund Ongoing Complete

designed and innovative projects that provide for the Development In progress

development of compatible residential, commercral, industrial,   Department,  
Comments:   

institutional,  and/or public uses within a single project or Planning
neighborhood by continuing to impfement the West Lathrop Commission,

and Central Lathrop Specific Pfans, which encourage mixed use  _ City Council

development as well as a range of uses through allowing higher

building intensities, reducedparking requirements, reduced set-
back and yard requirements, allow for a higher building height,

and greater floor area ratios. In addition, the City. will continue

to work closely with the developers of each Specific Plan to

expedite processing and pecmit procedures.     

Program, 1d: ' Support affordable ' or specia'F needs ( ineluding Comm, unify;' ,       - General Fund `'  ,  Ongoing on a  -  '  ,    Complete

senior,   disabled, ; developmentally disable' d,   far'mworke'"r, ' Development project- by-     In progress0
homefess,  la:rge farn` ify,  and single female head: of, family); epartment; '. projecCbasis

mCo ments   .     

housing projects applications for federaf, 'stafe,. andlor regionaf Pla:nning 
programs;;. in.clu,ding CDBG;  HOIVI, ' project- ba'sed  $ ecti6n Comtrlission,  ;

20

s422



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT

v, ..,;._-      ...     ,  . R   :--;.. .  ,       -:;      .. .

yr .,_ y
c a-  . a i".`$" t

7

h  «      ::, 

1 a s' * rn"''  , i.        
i:,..     ''

t' 

a.  

w  , t       Y Responsible        ,.  :     ,    rior ty/          rt s  _   _           ;

Measure t''  `
4,

z       _ ,*`+;      a,
b

4 

Fund ng. 3 '.,         :,:" i
s   ,$ ti1tUS  a:     

f  .-. Party     4;       F   r  Trm ng  , r f          x;       

x..       :,     t  , : x   ,:; _          

t

Y  _ a-.-,, .   _.       _ .    ...    .._     ...     .   W  . ,      _ e.    .     

8f291, , Gow Income  , Howsing; Tax Credit,  and ; HGD granf'• City' Council 
ro rams,° fhat ma ; be used for the develo' ment;' an,d';on- oinP 9 y P 9 9

affordability: of low'er': income: and special needs. housmg::: ':   

Support for'. ap.plication.s..: shall be ; provided:. th r̀ough.,:staff'    ,.:., 
technical. assistance with : the, applicati;on ( e. g.;,,assisting; with
corri letin  a lieation o..m onerits; r,elated : to, devefo,pm.entA 9 PP,     f?      

reuiew;, and environmental complianee)'. where„ appropria; te:-and i

a,.    Crty Coun,cil considerafion of. r.esolufions indicating loc
support foi- each project.      ..  . 

Program 1 e:     Evaluate State- administered funding programs on a . Community HOME, CDBG, and Bieniall. y( by            Complete

biennial basis to determine if there are additional programs Development variousState- December31st          In progress :

appropriate to encourage affordable housing development or Department,  administered of2021 and
Comments:  

for the City to use to augment First Time Homebuyer program Pla.nning programs 2023); SB 2

for lower income housefiolds and request funds when Commission,       funding to be
appropriate and available. City Council requested

As soon as. possible, request SB. 2 funds to develop additional
concurrently

housing incentives, such as reduced fee structures for senior,      
with Housing

disabled, and other special needs housing where a nexus can
Element Update

o

be demonstrated thatservice demands forsuch housing are less
2019)

than typical single family or multifamily housing, pre- approved

plans for small- scale infill housing projects that include an
affordable component, and a plan for use of future SB 2 funds.     

Program 1 F    „ C.ontmueto; consider.:regional; development; tlirough;" Community  ; GeneralFund,      Ongo'ing ;. Q;.    Com`plete

working with. SJCOG an:d: local' jurisdictions. to. pl'an for. h,ig'fi  Development  ...,.,   SB2funds,    In progress", 

quality regronal developrn. ent, including adeqwate affordable Department . ;- ;   
Comments .

housing, by reviewing SJCOG data and online resou' rces to track
regional development,.:' and- by : providing  nput info the     ...  . i   :

deyelopment' of the method' ology for allocating the: region' s "      
Regional. Housing' NeedsAllocation.   i: .     i

Program 1g:    Gontinue to address' and encourage lower income Community County-     Annual Complete

housing, special populations, and homeless needs on an annual Development administered outreach•  In progress '

basis through developer and service provider outreach and Department,  CDBG, HOME, and coordinated

21

423



201.9 HOUSING ELEMENT

T Respons ble Prioriiy/ 
Measure ti    Funding 4 Sta'tus

Party    _ r
aY  .   Timing b       ,

z._,,  ¢ Sf, n          ;  : x z  ..... ._ _

through. participation in the Urban County/ County Continuum City Council ESG funds with Anhual Comments:  

of Care. As part of the development of the Annual Action Plan Action Rl.an

for CDBG%HOME funding, contact potential housing developers public iiearing
and servrce providers and encourage their submrttal of funding notices

applications and housing proposals that use the City' s allocation

as well. as the Countywide. a.11ocation of funds for extremely low
income housing, very low income housing, . and low income

housing as well as housing: for disabled, seniors, veterans,      

homeless, and other special needs populations. The following

shall be provided as links via the Annual Action Plan. hearing
notice:       

A table of lower income housing sites, including the parcel

size, zoning; land use designation, and realistic capacity and

associated map identifying the location of each site.

A list of City incentives to encourage housing development.  .

Identification of the City' s interest in actively supporting :
efforts to esta6lish housing and facilities. to serve Iower

income and special needs populations. Request that any
developers seeking  . support . under Housing Element

Program 1d respond to request assistance through the Urban

County funding as part ofAnnualAction Plan. 

Pro.'gram' 1fi:    , Mamtain;, in.fo matipn,, regarding, homele,$;, shelte, rs,,:. Commurlixy;.;      .; Ge;neraf Fund ,, ;,,  . Ongo„ ing;;,       Q',     Gom,p ete.- ;     ,-,
and' serv ces• availabl' e to Cit residents . This. information shalF:- Devel' o rrient;       '      distri6ute:    , Y P Q    Jn. progress ,     , . :       ... . .

be;:a'vailable af City HaU; fMe. Lath: rop Gommunity Center, the Department,   ; ' :        :    b ochureson' a  
Gomments;

Ltbra' r.y, andon the Citys;website. ;,  Plann: ing       , monthlybasis

Com' mission,_ . .   _ '   or as- needed .  ;       

City Council,  `

Program 1i:  The City shall participate with San Joaquin County' s Community General Fund As needed Complete

efforts to acJdress farmworker housing needs. Participation with . Development In progress

the County may include identification of potential sites and Department,  
Comments:

funding sources available for farm labor housing.     Planning

22

424



2019 HousiNc E E E r  

r r̀': L      f t 1 ' S. s#'n FF" s =        
s

fi ', i` a' k'^ j,  
4 a Respons ble Pnority/=  

x,  Measure ` r  '      

r•   _ Funding _    1 Status          ;,{S- t h r  '     a 5 ,

t

T      Pa ,         Timin9n, g    ,    
g x

Commission,    

City Council

Progr m 1jc  • ' Continue" to work iivi#h the San Joaquin Housing.' - Commun ty   .       GeneralFund•  '  Ongoing; Q`    Complete'     •. -

Authority by providing liousing information requested by" the Devefopment„ ,      including  :'    In progress = .

Housrng Auth`orit ; in. a timel , manner Encoura e, tlie Housin. g.  Department, •      Housing t
ents:"  

4.   Aut horit to issue more, vo;uchers' to Ci "ry resi dents` in need and P lanning u thor.i ty in  '  

Y Y 9

Y

Comm

to make, effor- ts to : in:crease the,. use of vo;uchers for: rental of :.Commission, .,'    : '   annual mailing    :  L

single family homes due to :. th e City's limrted; supply of City Council. '        ;         :` ;     under : Rrogram   '   

multifamfl, y:Mbusing,;,:.. g  ,  .     .       .   

Program 1k:  ,  Continue to . permit Planned.    

1.  . .       .   .

Development District Community General Fund Ongoing Complete

zoning that promotes a variety of housing types in the City Development In progress

through the utilization of innovative. development techniques Department,  
Comments:

and flexible standards, such as: zero lot: lines, clustering of Planning
dwelling. units, narrower streets, increased. densities, and fewer Commission,    

dedication requirements.  City Council

Program. 11:     Facili; tate the develo ment of market rate ; rental Communi            General- Fund On oin    •=     Com lete; -:.'  P. Y   .     g g   .       .' '      P   .

housing and ; afFor`dable: for-sale ancJs, rental h'ousing, ineluding Deyelopment ; =    Q  .; ::In progress ;.

g y      .  rY groups; and Department,       ,   

special needs;  o ulatioris, throu  ''

land low mcomehousin ' for extremel low;. ve low

h the followin`    ' Plannin       '    `P P 9 ',       ..      9. g
Comments:

Re ulato incentive" s,. such as ex editin    ermit. rocessin , ;  
Commission;-:   

9 rY P    .  9 A P. g
City Council  . deferred; fees and% r. reducedparking, requirements based ;.,     r';'

on; the. becJroom";'r7iiz; of the. p r̀oj,ect; arid   

Enc,ou,ra e. develo erg '  p s to utili'ze, the densi;ty bonus. a'neJ
iri.centive provisions r quired by'.State law a d;       '  .;         ,'.,..    

Pukilicize  ' th'ese,: incentives for market cate-. ho,using" to,    •  ''
developers and/or other interested;. parties _b:y, :providing.    
informational flyers at tfie ' Community. " Developrnent:'  .     
Department' s c'ounter and;  , in development :. pro ect,;  '     

a'PPlications::.

23

425



ZO1.9 HOUSING ELEMENT

x   '   a
k  .;      

N` 3. 4`   ,,    r. y       '     : r° i^'..' Y"' Y A  
t'   '   :    ., eb Y,' F,` r

t  Res ons b'le    Pr ori  /     j          

fi       .
F Funtl ng             .''

r '`  ",` .    Status             ``Measure r  a 
b  < s r s            t       r        .       _  

t           Party h    , rt   , Timing" -,   ,- fiu,    „,      . 
ti   

r.   ,.. 3,._.         .  ,.., r..:,._. F. ,.  . .. „  , ..  .:     __,;.. .,.      ..       };    
r* fi_.,.

rt. n._,

Program 1m:.   Encourage a range of housing types for the Communify General Fund Ongoing Q Complete

developme. ntally disabled through coordination with the Valley Development In progress

1lilountain Regional Center to identify needed housing types,   Department;  
Comments:

such as independent living opportunities and group homes and City Council
other facilities that provide assistance to residents. Projects that

provi.de housing. for developmentally disabled p.ersons will be
assisted through priority/ expedited processing, assistance with

funding applications, and assistance with any density bonus
requests for a density bonus, reduced development standards
e. g.,  minimum lot. size,  setbacks,  parking,  etc)  or other

incentives.

Continue to refer households with a developmentally disabled
member to the Valley Mountain Regional Center. for assistance.      

Pco rarn 9n:   • Revise the Zon n   Code" to re uir ••  in s enal Communi G eral Fund •      N I ter than         `  Com I e  "g g . .       q e m i t ty en o a  . P et
I ,

approval; ; which may. include - site plan,; review, for. 'liousing•? Development ; Decem, ber`   1,,   Q _    I n progress- :  i  . 
deve 1opments that in,clude a minimum o,f;20 percent. bf unrts : Department,  ' due to         2022

affordabl. e' to lower, iricome housefiolds ori the follovvrng site's Gity Council- _ statuto` ry  .-
somment

consi5tent witii Government Code 655832 requirement' to

1 21331033: ;. , `    .". , .-      s.  .       mp ebe co ted

i within` 3 years of:
2., 21' 321006:..    • '   :,: , 

i..
3r 1912;1017       :  

Housing:,
Element  ' r

5: 19122032 adoption::     j
6: ' 19122039       ''  ,.

7:. 19122040   .,

8: 1:.9922059: ..: .

11. 196.0.8029    '  :,    :: .'       ::;  . :

12: 19608026

13: 19608072     ..:,::_, 

24

426



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT'

Responsib:le n '  "  Pr ori#y/       , ,        .    
Measure x Funtling   -  S#atus    ';_    

i.       p8•" 1  - Tlming u     r .' ic a : r=  

r     i
4*. ,,.     ,.>.'_, t.. r s_.

Goa12: Remove Constraints

Program 2a:     . Continu, e.. to offer: pre- applicafion meetings to aI.I., : Communi, ty;,. GeneralFund  , ,,  Ongoin' g._.       Q..    Com,pl.ete
d'evelopers ' with various Citystaff represenfing numerous Gity_  DeVelopment:_'       ,           , .  ,      , .,    Q':    Inp'r:ogress      .  .  
departments ;( e: g.- plan;nirig,  building,  engineering,  etc:) to Depaltment,  :   :     

Comrrl nts._,: 
diseuss " project design, : city`  standards,  neces' sary .' public Planning
improv. em'ents and' funding' strategies.:  Comi7iission,      a

City Council.
I

Program 2b:    Provide incentives to encourage the development of Community General Fund Ongoing Complete   

special needs and affordable housing.    This program is : Development In progress

anticipated to assist at least four projects, in coordination with Department,  
Comments:

other applicable. programs. Iricentives shall include:  Planning

Allowing developers to submit concurrent/" piggyback"   
Commission,    

applications ( e. g., rezones, tentative tract maps, conditional
City Council

use permits, variance requests, etc.) to streamline processing.

of development projects that require multiple City approvals
or entitlements;,      

Provide technical assistance with the entitlement process for

projects that propose extremely low-, very low-, and low-       

income housing or that include a significant portion of units
for special needs househol. ds.

Consideration of fee. waivers or. fee deferrals, where deemed

appropriate, projects providing housing for extremely low-,
very low-, and low income households or special needs

households.

Prior.itizing projects which include units set aside for

extremely low-, very low-, and/ or low income households;

Through the density bonus provisions of the Zoning Code,     
provide for a reduction in development standards ( e.g.,  

allowing narrower streets,  variable setbacks,  increased

heights,  etc.) for eligible projects providing housing for

25

427



201. 9 HOUSING ELEMENT

rn S i,;"      s k..     f t  

t t u r! rr
x   -     k'   Resn:.ons ble     t  °  Pr.ori  ,/,y F ,  

i,;
4.  . a'       f  ','.'    .. y_,..     ' ' 

aw,:? . 
r.     

G 1 '. s .., s.       .. tat   A,
j,° E

r, F..    

x   F:: 
Measure Eundmg A      ,;    

S us ,
o-  -  

v      ?&*
s   f     "`'-g r       . s v

1 k       . f r, Yi f s".
a  .

As    
F      =`     

h ; Party;}    T m ngr        F

1
f'` fi

b w   _ _._ .  

extremely low-,. very low-, and low income households.   

Program 2c: ,,,;` Continue to. montfi? r a.verage. processing, times for,:_ Community;,,-       General Fund  ,..,;  Biennial; review  ; Q,.    C̀omplete

discrefiona, ry'  development.. pe' r.mits on. a.• biennial basis and:  Developmeht;   2021,: 2023)     .::    In p:r.ogress
regularly, review fhe Zonrng; Code and the Gi,ty' s develqpment Depa, finent, •      

m

project processing procedures to: identify ch,anges to further Pla:nning    •   ..           ;           :.    
Co ments;.

reduce; housin costs and; avera e; . ermit ', rocessin time.   Commission,  .',; ;9 .    9:  P P 9     

1/ Vfiere. changes a're feasib' le' to im:plement, update, the. Zoning. CityCouncil. ' i
Code and'.amend th'e City's processing; p.rocedures;'to reduce.  .       ;         
housin costs and " rocessin tim8s.      9.    P, 9.    . 

Program 2d:    Review affordable housing and in- fill projects for!  Community  . General Fund    .   Ongoing for             Complete

eligible. CEQA exemptions and exempt those projects that are Development review of     .         In progress

eligible from further CEQA review.  In order to encourage use Department,       development
Comments:

of CEQA exemptions and the advance CEQA work that has Planning applications;

been completed for the majority of the City' s lower income sites, . Commission,       Concurrent with

ensure that the inventory maintained under Program 1a CityCouncil thisHoasing
identifies the required approvals, including CEQA review, so Element update

that developers understand that the City has minimal processing information

requirements for its lower income sites.    provided to

developers to

identify sites
eligibie for

CEQA

exemptions or

CEQA review

has been

completed    '             

Program' 2e: ...: Revie' w' . all updates.  a"nd revision' s: ' to.,. the"' City.'s._. Community   "'    . General' Fund',,,   Ongoin. g.   "    . Q  "' Complete"        r

ordinances,' codes,<policies; and proceduces to ensure thatthey:,• De,velopment'"`  .  Q In progress

do not con'strain  ':. r.easonable.. accomm: o.dation'` for.'.disable'd.':. Department; .
Comments:  . . 

persons arrd; to ensare that, they do not_ reduce;; the City's , Planning; :  .,
ca ' acit _ for a; ran e of housrn t es',and densifies.      :."       Com'mission;: Cip Y,  5.     5 YP

26

428



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT

a.r

s'; e onsi ble   i`   '. ds9 i

F 

r0!     
t.

n,Gc. SF:
t ,   "{+     

MQ a" iX  }   

Measure p'      ;', Funding,          r Satus.   

4

h.
a e    

r .Pa       n        r    tTim np              
Er  .

K .       

x.., Y'.,.--".-' t?,. a..?. 3,4>' Yr. e._, . e..'-       +     . a.:." 2!# ', 3.%''.   -    St

OUf1Cl

Program 2 F Continue,,:  to encourage developers to include Community:  General Fund Ongoing Q Complete

accessory dwellrng units as an • integral part of their project Development In progress

through maintaining provisions in the Zoning Code that provide Department,  
Comments: 

for accessory dwelling units( ADUs) in all zones that allow single Planning

family ' homes and by continuing to- provide a reduced. fee Commission,   City
structure for accessory dwelling units, including exemption from Council

water and sewer connection fees and capacity charges, and by
modifying the ADU standards in the Zoning Code as- needed to

be consistent with requirements of State law,  as may be
amended from tim.e to time. It is anficipated at least 6 ADUs will

be incentivized through the City' s provisions to accommodate
and encourage. ADUs.

i.
Progra,m 2g:  .  Encourage' developers to take advantage of,density',' Community General Fund'  '    Ongoing" ,     Complete

bonuses and mcenfives for affordable, housin and senior  , Deu.elo ment  ,,g P In progress 0. .
housing pr'ojects that',are provided by the: City' consistent with`' D.epartment, ;-.       .   .    

Comments. :::  . .
the; r.equirements . of Sta. te, law and. provide. informatron. thet Planning     `'     
identr. fies. the maximum densities that. can be achieved tMrough Commission,,.; City

1

a den' sitybonus. .'     :. .  Counci, l„ 3  ,
i

Program 2h: Address the special housing needs of large families to Community General Fund Ongoing Complete

alleviate overcrowding in the City by facilitating the construction Development In progress
of housing that includes 3- and 4- bedroom units affordable to Department; 

Comments:    

extremely low-, very low-, and low- income families.  Planning

The City will publicize financial and regulatory incentive
Commission,   City

opportunities to developers and/ or other parties interested in
Council

the construction of housing that includes 3- and 4- bedroom

affordable units by providing information on the City' s website

and through flyers at the Community Development Department
and in all specific plan and subdivision application packets.    

Program 2L•,    Continue fo supp,ort female,-headed' households in Community       '   General Fund       ' Ongoing      '        ` Complete  '' .    

the Gitywith the' permitting: of child`daycare faciFities as outlined Development  ::  . 

27

429



201.9 HOUSINGEI:EMENT

ic     7   5      i i `"-`',+ 2'
E'

3 if          ra, , r       L:..' ''
o,

ts`' rl
t      .   ' hT•  y    .

k,ti   r, "     .

Respons ble,     r;     Prror tyJ   . t " ,,'  :    ' a    " .,   u,°.

Meas re pa      :      Fundmg  
Ti min   _ I  '`'.}  atus

v
assC

1,:, a'=£'     '  _,`, a'.:. i rrr e a`:"  . 3f",   a
h.., v. ti: a° 71.;..      ,.. L. F, r,! s'. d , j V

i. 
a,;.  3'r r e  .,... s

in Chapfer' 9 7 of th'e' IVlunrcipa: l Code.    .'   Department;  Q In progtess

Planni'n  .  9,  : iComments

ityCommission;:  C     ,.  :  

Council.       

Program 2n:     Require developers of new housing to use the HCD Community General Fund Ongoing Complete

New Home Universal Design Option Checklist to disclose to Development In progress

buyers accessible features that are available.   The City shall Department,  
Comments:

encourage_ developers to make accessible features- available as Planning
standard features to the extent feasible and to provide.  Commission,   City

remaining` accessible features as optional features or features Council

available in a limited nurriber. of units.

Rrogram 20:   ,. In compliance: w'rth State,, law ( Government; Code Community   .   , ,  General: Furrd.  .    ' Jan; uary 2020 _,  0 C.omplete ; , ,

Sectiori 6558, 9J), "the City_:will esfablish wntten. poficies; and'  Deve, lopment In progress" .  

procedures' that gra'n.t'priority or' water and' sewer to p'roposed',' Department;' ,    
ments

C0
development that includes housing affor.dable to. lower- incom:e: Planning:: .    i

householdS. Gommission,   City
E:

Coun' cil      :-       ,. .. .,    

Program 2p:    Support multifamily housing on sites that Community General Fund January 2020           Complete

accommodate lower income households by revising the Zoning Development In. progress

Ordinance to limit development- of single' family units on sites Department,  
Comments:

designated for high density residential vses.  Single family Planning
development shall only be allowed if the single family unit(s) are:   Commission,   

1)   replacing an existing single famrly unit on a one for one
CityCouncil

basis, 

2)  on an existing lot of 8; 000 square feet or less, or

3)  are part of a housing development with the majority of unrts
affordable to extremely low, very low, and/ or low income
housefiolds.

Program2q:    Revise the Za,ning Code' to permrf: manufactured Gommunity   ,   ..  General. Fund      = January2020   '.   .. Complete_    

hoines m the same manner as: single family hoines, as. required De'velopment, :;        

28

430



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT

5,.;:,: ,.€. r,ei,',:' s d '° 7  ,.-.... tt.       s   a   .:

t Res"`o nsible         °"      d;`   Pr or  /    ",;`: `        '     i';

Measur:e z'   p;, R ,  ix  ; : Funtlin        -:;  4  , d, , t `,     . *

s   
a x,     ;

Party R  '}     3       

g       "
T riing'.   .        

S s
c    ,t

r c, ir r'# : r n! f: r, TW4'.. 1U2       .

t    .',#

r...«ro»., fe. w. a,. ..: Nsiw` 2,,.,t.       e
r,    .    ''

u  .._, . .      1   ...  . a`,  s   x.   

In" ro ress        by Goverriinent Co'd"e Sectio: n' 65852. 3.; THe following re ision" Department;• 0 ,       p g

shall, be made to Section 17. 68. 010:    Planning_;  _ Comments.  '  .           

The rovisions of. this cha ter- shall a   I: o ail single- family: 
Commisston;; 

P ..:  .  P ., P,PY
City,Council- , .  .   ..:    

wre it manufactured.  housina ':' and mob'ilehomes on

perti- ianent: fo;undations whieh: shall b'e allowed_subject` to the

r

same. permit requirements` and standards as, a•- sinale• fa milX
home in all: di§tricts that allow sinqle family homes and shalG..also          ;  . : ''  '   -         

f  .. ,       kie' subject, to the" standards identified in" Section. 17. b'8: 020 e,

Program 2r.     Revise . the Zoning Code to remove inconsistencies Community General Fund January 2020 Complete

regarding the densities allowed in the RM zone and to ensure Development In• progress

that the densities allowed are consistent with . the densities Department,  
Comments: 

identified in the General Plan Land Use Element. The following Planning
revision shall be made to Section 17. 36. 050. D.:       Commission,    

Density.  The allowable density for the RM multifamily
City Council

residential districts shall be:

RM- MH8:  1- 8 units per acre

RM- 3:      8- 15 units per acre

RM- 2:       16- 25 units er. acre

RM- 1. 5:    16- 25. units pec acre

2 9

431



ZO19 HOUSINGELEMENT

5:" a  ;``§„  n'     `         R'"    ' n i " I    Prior  /   
T' '., M sure,  ,:       espo s b e      ; 

Funtlin Status    
Q

t  -

A    .     .    Pariy g T ming    -      1t  ; h: rv.,,.,..,.'` n     , ,

Prog'ram 2s:   "'; Revise : the Zonmg Code: " fo imple"riient the . Community' General F.und:",   August2020 Q     ,Complete   .   "     _

requi ements of Governmen; t.`:Code 5ections° 65913. 4  ( as`. Devel' opment .:       ,      Q Inp'rogress
amended by SB 35); : G5660', 656`62; 65664;: 65666; and 6566' 8: ' Depa tment,';,       

Com ments. .  : :   
as. established and/ or amended byAB T 0.1), and.:65650 throug' h'' Pla,nn,ing'  

65656 ( as esfiablished and/ or' amended by AB. 2162), ineluding Commission,..:  ,

the followingc;   „ Gfy,Council . : I

1)  Identify fhe SB 35 sfreamlining ` approval° ;process and,  
s'tandarc s for  ' eligible.'`; projects, .      

t    ; E

as set' - fortfi under.       

Goverriment Cod'e S.ection 6'59.93. 4, ' ', . 

2).° Define low barrier navrgafion center as a use allowed' by right       ''      ' '`'   
and develop standards` and requi"rèments for processing. a
low , barner navigation.;, cente' r  ; consistent with' ' the         

require iments ; of State law,  including Government Code
Sections, 65660# hr,ough b566 8;: and .:..; .  .  '    ..

3)   Establish standa' rds  and  : requiremerits for processing.  t "      i..  !

supportivehousi, ng byrightconsisfent. wifhthereq;ui,rements;  :,,;  
of State law;, in'cludi.n.g,,Goverriment" Code:. Sections. 65650'           "  '"    
through 65656:         .:     ,

Goa13; Preserve, Rehabilitate, and Enhance Existing Housing and Neighborhoods
Program 3a:  `: Cont nue" to participate in• the' San , Joaquin Urban" Community- Generel. Fund; -   Annualreview    ; .       Compl, ete       `     

Count, consortium. to receive and, use HOME and CDBG fwnds:  Devefo rrient  .    ' CDBG/ HOME  :     ofho.usin     Y      r..      P 9 In progress.; 

to provide housmg„ rehabilitation; loans a;nd, eme`rgency repair: Department, 3 needs nd  .      
p e     .  

loans: or grants,; administered tlirough tiie San Joaquin County Planning  -'_.       commitmentof         

C m`m nts'

Rehabilita,tion;. Program,,, for lower i.ncome h'ouseMolds and to Commission,  .. .  fund"s: through,.   .  

proy,ide secvices,.. for lowe: income,_ populations,  including`  City„Council    .'„ ;,, Urban.County.; „
extrem. ely _ low irrcome,:.; homeless/ at=risk of h"omelessness, process;   

seniors, andyouth._ °';. 

1    . '  .

ongo:ing efforts '  •  .    
I

On an annual basis; determine' wh.ether` funds are adeq,uate to;
to ensure pub' ic

aware: ness.      
set aside fun:ds speci.fi'cally for assistance( liousing rehabilitation;:   :   
emergency repair, or weafh,erization) for extreme,ly low ineome
households and whether ' funds, are adequafe to , aJlow

30

432



2019 HOUSING EiEMENT

a°..:-... .----  ,    _;;.-:--
lr   ..,  ...     .:    f  ... e,      7`     - w:  r    „ t ne: xE.  sS ha.`,   7   .    S     i;,"    

y„,   `:

i i     t`Res`n:tionsible Priori I'   µa

3:       
1

q, r
aSax is

P  f:
r,.,  z      '      h-.+  . 

z   , t'       5. sy k̀, s d.ti; 2,;;
R   ..     '  .  ..   '     

P ..  

IYl as r,       .. w fi   ki -  9     '
h     

p-' '.
i'>.   h

a r     '." d-  
r'

qt      

iLf  .. ?     Funding Status ,       .
C  ,.    f:-           # e.. w r   -,"., fa' V,    T m ng ?.  $    .

r r

i*,.   " .

n: d.    d: rx t. Y. Fs.:      L.    i..n-<ds.      e       , s ,... .    ,. .  a .. .

bedroorrilbathroorri`   eddition' s wlie' re    nece"ssary fo:' '

accoinmodate large families.   '` ,

To ensure public awareness of and. participation n housrng:; : .       ', ' 
assistance,pr.ograms, continue to provide informationafpackets

and : handouts; at City'; iHall,  community :` gathering:, areas r  ' 

Community Center and:•'Libra 'ry'), and;`on the::Eity' s website.   
These handouts , shall include speaf c contact mformation,      '   

programs a;vailable;, and how to. apply fo,r,fun'ds.,      f

Program 3b:   : Review the Zoning Code and potential funding Community General Fund Ongoing; Complete

sources to identify methods to provide incentives for Development 201912020    -         In progress

rehabilitation of existing residential' units and to encourage re-   Department,       incorporate
Comments:

investment in the Historie Lathrop Overlay District. and in older Planning incentives into

neighborhoods east of f- 5. Commission,       SB 2 funding

City Council opportunities

Program 3c:   ': Confinu, e: ' to ernpfo. y: a full tim;e. code_ compliance,.::'Gommuni# y..-       : General Fund-      Ongoing,.  '       Com.plete

officer who, will vigorously en,for.ce the. building and zoning;':°; DevelopmenT°;      ;;, , ,    bienniahreview lnprogress      .   .      •   

code' s in locafionswhere; dilapidation; blight, and/ orhealt{ i"and bepartment, . ""  - ofaceas       -      
Comrrients:     

safety violatio. ns may be occurring,..   :    Plann: ing appropriate for

Coordinate  - code comp' liance efforts̀ with  '. the housing
Commission,   targefed

Gt ' Council: assistance . .
rehabilitation program with  • code compliance e orts to'     y

encoura e  ro ert  `owner. s to maintain`; dwellin unrts. in safe:     
and/ or

9 .. P P Y, ., ,  9 I   .

and habifable cond: itions.  Re ular' I revi,ew housin
enfor,cernent  

g .   y g co'nditions.' '; '
to determin' e if specific locations or neighborhoods' require'    `         -'

I

targeted code. enforcement and work to provide; when fur ding    :    
is available, targeted reha6ilifation orreplacement. assistan;ce.•

Pro ram 3d:-    Continue to artici ate in the San. Joa uin Urban Communit     ,      General Fund

On1
I      .   `   

g p p q y going; Complete

County consortium to provide funding and support for the Development Mobilehome            In progress

rehabilitation of mobile horries,  when adequate funds are Department,       outreach in
Comments:

available: .    Planning 2020 and 2021

ln 2020/ 2021, conduct outreach to mobilehome park residents
Commission,

and qualified non- profits to determine if there is interest iri the

31

433



2019 HOUSING EI: EMENT

4'  
E 

Res ` on s ble , Prior ty)   r ,

4,     ,

Measure x    p'     Y   ` Funding Status        f   

Party T m ng
x '.«     `

s r,  . a,,' u..,_.
E..,._    k      ., A,.:. .       -..,.  ,      .,       

State' s IVlobilehome Park Rehabilitation and Resident City Council

Ownership Program and any:_of the City' s mobilehome parks
would be efigible for tfiis type of program..  '

Re ularl. review, th'e Cit seli ibrlit for Federal and Communi Gene al' Fund;_      0',n oin     '  `       "'-' Com lete: ':Program: 3e: g y Y    9    Y ...  y"         9;  .    p

State- liome : r.e:pair,  renovation,  and. replacement programs Development' .;  annuaP, In; progress _

ann' ually. and apply for programs, as appropnate:: ff multi:fainily Department,   out,reach to
o

owners- or, other entities express interest in available f'dn`ding.  Planning   .  :'    . ;,,   •   developers and =      
mments'

programs for hou;sirig rehab litatiori o,r. ,repair., .sj pport th:e;  Commission,`-    ` '' _  •       property  •    

applicat on forfundingand, ifappropriafe, andfeasrkile,. provide°:. GityCouncil ,. ownersthrough '   :  .

technical assistance: to; the project appl.ican: t. with th'e' funding.:    theAnn:ual.      
t.

aPPlication ,,, .  .. Action'; Plan:  .      

process    ..  .  

Goa14: Provide Housing,Free From Discrimination
Program 4a: : _. Continue to encourage the enforcemenf of federa!:: Community. . General Fund _.  '  Ongoing  '       ; Q     ;Complete,  

and state fair housing standards:  The. City will pr.ovide fair.-. Deyelopment  Q,"    In progress •  

housing.: information, to. infere. stecl afizens and' will rriake fair.,- .Department,,":       ';  ".
omC ments.    

j: .  

housing materials from` the Califomia Department of'` Fair  Plari`ifing       •    
Ho'using and Employmen t.and the fed'eralOffice of Fair H.ousing Commission;  ';  .    

and' Equaf' Opportunity a vailabfe at; Cify Hall,,, the Library,: the City; Council
i

Comrriuni,ty Center.,,.and' on the. Citys website' in ' b,oth English..   '`     .      "      "    "        
and $ panisi.' All requests for fai.'r treatment on housing' will be,:.  `   `      4 '
referred to.'fhe fair'.:housing pro.uider fund'ed througli.;tfie San,,.  .   '  '     
Joaquin. Urkian County; consor.t um ( currently San' J'oaquin Fair.  , `._-   

Hous ng,. lne.);:,.  

Program 4b:    Require all recipients of locally administered housing C.     ommunity General fund Ongoing Complete

funds to acknowledge their understanding of fair housing law,   Development In progress

affirm their commitment to the law, and to provide fair housing Department,  
Comments:

opportunities for all persons.     Planning
Commission,

City Council

32

434



2019 HflUSING ELEMENT

m      ._ 

Res onsrble    
a t         .     r N ,.  

r   ,F p     5

tPrority/       :       ws 1 ' ,  `
Measure

S   ; ,,; ,       -„      ,      

1 ,.      ;

F
a    ' , 

a;

r  T .,Fund ng St tus
Pa    °`} y            <  * Timin               F         

4,     

x
s!..:      g...:           F;   n};,   °'.,. ., _ s

Goa1 5: Encourage' an'd-Enliance; Hous'ing.Coord;ination.  -    R

Program 5a:     Continue to participate in the San Joaquin Housing. Community General Fund

5

Ongoing; Complete

Authority and encourage the Housing Authority to increase Development annual In progress     '

assistance to the City, through allocating more Housing Choice Department,       coordination
Comments:

Vouchers and. working with housing developers to provide Planning and outreach to

Project- Based Vouchers,   as well as ofher assistance Commission,       Housing
administered by the Housing Authority.  The City shall provide , City Council Authority to
informafion on the availability of Housing Authority programs to encourage

interested residents.   increased

assistance

P ogram 5bc   ` Provide` housing'  information. to :. all interested Community   ;  :    General Fun' d.     ; Ongoing   :: ;. Gomplete   ..  '       .  :.      ',   .

agen ies; developers, residents; and. non profi,t, groups:.: City Devel. opment z   : ,    :      ,:,'    In pPogress ' ':     
staff wi11 a,ssist;with Zoning' and=Generaf: Plan in.'quiries as. uuell` as,  Department,.  :    •  '      ,    .       

ents  ..  Comm
provide contact mforination befw,een th'e` San Joaquin Urba ri  ' Planning
County Consortiurrr, San Joaquin, Housing AutF%or.ity, housing Commission, :. 

d'evelopers,; and non-profit groups: Ci,ty,Council'  

Goa16: Energy Conservation
Program' 6a: :  Prom,'ote energy; : efficient ; land use': planning_ ?by Com; m,Gnity     ,  (  General Fund..    ' Ongoing       ';• Q Gomplete, , ''.

incorporating ene' rgy conseriration as a' major cciterion for future,.  Development       In progress  " ....0  .    
decision making. This shall include innovative site designs and,  Department,       

Comments: ;: :   
o,rientatiorr. techniques,-.which , incorporate;, passive and active,,, Pla:nning,,,.  `,   ,    ;,,., •       , ,  ,;.
solardesign§ and na tur.'al cool ng techniques.   ; Commission, ;

CityCouncil

z.  

Program 6b:     Encourage pre-application meetings to address site Community  - General_ Funtl Ongoing Complete

layout . and design components that encourage energy Development In progress
conservation prior to any formal submittal that is to be Department,  

Comments:
considered by the Planning Commission and/ or City Council.   Planning
The City shall continue to rely on project input from all Commission,

departments to assess design and layout foc all residential City Council
projects.      

33

435



2019' HOUSING ELEMENT

F':,}   
sa   :

3t b   .:
u{,;`' y T'

xF   

a3:      
s^.;s  , T1 S g   . 

v v';; -     .:.:       :,; r 5    n d       _ >
3 x.       Re' ons tile Pr or  / s       

h.

l a.     • F X,  : r"   ,  
m   `"   j Rz    C5 P r      k 7 S z   t• 4          p    ;;§ Measure:,,.       ,.           4Funtl ng Status

F       ..        Pa      Timin    `      `'       
F° :    

a..      :      ._.           9
Program 6c:  ""`• Continu"e' fo support energ,y coriservation' 7n existin' g"' Coinmuni+ General Fund "'     Ongoing Q Complete   ' .      

and new housing,; through participating in prograrris: such' as th:e  . D"evelopment '       Q`     In' progress     .        ;      '  `
Open PACE: clean ene'r'g,y prograr i and ensur.'ing the community',: ,Department,     

Coin: ments: =
has„ acce'ss to„ current,,,energy' ` cotlseivation,,: methods,,. an' d  Planning     .`,          
practices as viiell as informatrpn on:,programs, available to..fund Commission;., ,      - .     

ene'r,gy,  conservation irr provements. . Ensure _` information'.. is Gty. Council    '   '       
availab7e a't City Hall and;on: the Gity's:website     

Program bd:    Encourage new residential development or Community General fund Ongoing Co mplete

significant rehabilitation projects to meet or exceed CalGreen Development In progress

Tier 1 and/ or to achieve LEED certification.    Department,
Comments:

Planning
Commission,

City Council

34

436



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT.

TABLB OF CONTENTS

POLICY DOCUMENT

1.    INTRODUCTION...............:...:.: 1

2.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION.............................................:........................................................................................... 3

3.    HOUSING PLAN................................................................................................................................................ 1 O

HousingNeeds.................................................................................................................................................. 10

QuantifiedObjectives........................................................................................................................................ 10

Goals, Policies, and Programs........................................................................................................................... 13

ImplementationPlan........................................................................................................................................ 19

BACKGROUND REPORT

1.    INTRODUCTION................................................................................................................................................... 1

Z.    ACCOMPLISHMENTS UNDER 5TH CYCLE HOUSING ELEMENT......................................................................................... 3

Reviewof 2015 Housing Element.............................................................................................................................. 3

Housing Production During 5tli Cycle RHNA Period ...........:...... 3

Appropriateness and Effectiveness of 2015 Housing Element.........................::........................................................ 4

3.    HOUSING NEEDSASSESSMENT............................................................................................................................ 22

Introduction and Background................................................................................................................................... 22

Population Trends and Characteristics...................................................................................................................... 22

EmploymentCharacteristics ..................................................................................................................................... 24

ExistingHousing Needs............................................................................................................................................ 2b

Housing. Characteristics............................................................................................................................................ 30

FutureHousing Needs.............................................................................................................................................. 36

UnitsAt- Risk of Conversion....................................................................................................................................... 52

4.    ONSTRAINTS................................................................................................................................................... 53

Governmental Constraints..........................................:............................................................................................. 53

Potential Non- Governmental Constraints................................................................................................................. 81

5.    RESOURCES..................................................................................................................................................... 88

Inventoryof Housing Sites...............................................................:........................................................................ 88

Adequacy of Public Facilities and Infrastructure....................................................................................................... 97

EnvironmentalIssues.............................................................................................................................................. 101

Financial/ Other Resources...................................................................................................................................... 104

b.    OTHER REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................................:.................. 09

Consistencywith General Plan................................................................................................................................ 109

Relationship to Other City Plans and Policies......................................................................................................... 109

Priorityfor Water and Sewer.....................................................:.......................:..........:.......................................... 109

EnergyConservation............................................................................................................................................... 109

REFERENCES......................................................................................:.....................................................................

Ft uREs located following Section 4)
Figure 1: General Plan Sub- Plan Areas

Figure 2: Inventory of Residential Sites
Figure 3: River Islands VTM 3694

i

437



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Figure 4: Flood Hazard Areas

APPENDIXA: INVENTORYOFRESIDENTIALSITES

Appendix A1: Inventory of Single Family Lots in River Island

ii

438



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

1.     Introcluction

The City of Lathrop was incorporated in 1989 and is a part ofthe Stockton- Lodi metropolitan area located in San Joaquin
County. Lathrop is located approximately 58 miles south of Sacramento and 47 miles northeast of San Jose along
Interstate Highway 5. The City is within a 50- minute of Tracy, Manteca, Stockton,. Lodi, Modesto, Livermore, and
Pleasanton. Lathrop has a population of approximately 24, 936.

Lathrop is experiencing a unique opportunity to plan and manage its future development in a way that is seldom
available to other communities throughouf the State. The City is one of Northern California' s fastest growing master
planned communities.  Three of the City' s largest developments include River Islands ( up to 12, 700 units, under
construction), Mossdale Village Master Planned Community( upto 3, 200 units, underconstruction), and Central Lathrop
Specific Plan( approximately 6, 790 dwelling units).

The community is known for its central location to major transportation nodes and has become a desirable place to live
due to its housing availability and affordability. The area has four elementary schools that include Joseph Widmer Jr.
Elementary, Lathrop Elementary, Mossdale Elementary, STEAM Academy at River Islands, and River Islands Technology
Academy. The City' s first high school, Lathrop High, was completed in 2008. Lathrop' s family- oriented atmosphere is
especially appealing to those with younger children.

State Housing Law( Government Code Section 65583) requires that a" housing elementshall corisist of an identification
and analysis of existing and projected housing needs and a statement of goals, policies, quantified objectives, financial
resources, and scheduled programs for the preservation, improvement, and development of housing. The housing
element shall identify adequate sites for housing, including rental housing, factory- buiit housing, and mobile homes,
and shall make adequate provision forthe existing and projected needs of all economic segments of the community."
This report is an update ofthe Housing Element adopted bythe City in 2016.

The assessment and inventory must include all of the following:

Analysis of population and employment trends, documentation of projections, and a quantification of the

locality' s existing and projected housing needs for all income levels. Such existing and projected needs shall
include the localiry' s share ofthe regional housing need in accordance with Section 65584 ofthe Government
Code.

Analysis and documentation of household characteristics, including level of payment compared to ability to
pay, housing characteristics, including overcrowding, and housing stock condition.

An inventory of land suitable for residential development, including vacant sites and sites having potential for
redevelopment, and an analysis of the relationship between zoning, public facilities, and city services to these
sites.

Analysis of potential and actual governmental constraints upon the maintenance,  improvement,  or

development of housing for all income levels and for persons with disabilities, including land use controls,
building codes and their enforcement, site improvements, fees and other exactions required of developers,
local processing and permit procedures, and any locally adopted ordinances that directly impact the cost and
supply of residential development.

Analysis of potential and actual non- governmental constraints upon the maintenance, improvement, or

development of housing for all income levels, including the availability of financing, the price of land, the cost
ofconstruction, requeststo develop housing atdensities belowthe minimum densities in the inventoryofsites,
and the length of time between receiving approval for a housing development and submittal of an appl.ication
for building permits that hinder the construction of a locality' s share of the regional housing need.

Analysis of any special housing needs, such as those of the elderly, disabled, including developmentally
disabled, large families, farmworkers, families with female heads of households, and families and persons in

need of emergency shelter.

1

439



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Analysis of opportunities for energy conservation with respect to residential development.

Analysis of existing assisted multifamily rental housing developments that are eligible to change from low-
income housing to market- rate during the next 10 years:

The Background Report of this housing element identifies the nature and extent of Lathrop' s housing needs, including    :
those ofspecial populations, potential housing resources( land and funds), potential constraints to housing production,
and energy conservation opportunities. By examining the City' s housings, resources, and constraints, the City can then
determine a plan of action for providing adequate housing. This plan is presented in the Housing Plan, which is the  .
policy component of the Housing Element. In addition to identifying housing needs, the Background_ Report also
presents information regarding the setting in which these needs occur. This information is instrumental in providing a
better understanding ofthe community, which in turn is essential forthe planning offuture housing needs.

Since the update ofthe City' s last Housing Element in 2016, statutory changes have occurred that must be included in
the 2015- 2023 Lathrop Housing Element. These laws haye been incorporated in the appropriate sections throughout
this Background Report as well as in its accompanying Policy Document.       

2

440



ZO 9 HOUSINGELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

2.     Accomplishme ts under 5th Cycle Hou ing
Element

The following section reviews and evaluates the" City' s progress in implementing the 2015 Housing Element. It reviews
fhe results and effectiveness of programs, policies, and objectives from the previous Fiousing Element planning period,
which covered 2014through 2023. Review ofthe 4th Cycle Housing Element is provided in the 2015 Housing Element.
This section also analyzes the difference between projected housing need and actual housing production.

REVIE V OF ZOZS HOUSING ELEMENT

The 2015 Housing Element program strategy focused on the accomplishment of policies and implementation of
programs to ensure adequate sites, encourage the production of new housing, including affordable and special needs
housing, toencouragethe rehabilitationlretrofitofexisting housing, to removevariousconstraintsto housing, including
housing for special needs populat' ions, and to encourage fair housing and non- discrimination.  The 2015 Housing-
Element identified the following goals:

Goa11 HDUSINGOPPORTUNITIESANDACCESSIBILITY

Promote the availability and quality of housing affordable to all income levels and household types, including extremely
low, very low, and low income households and special needs groups, through maintaining an inventory of adequate
housing sites and supporting funding opportunities.      

Goal 2 REMOVE CONSTRAINTS

Remove Constraints that hinder the development of housing, including hou,sing for extremely low, very low, low, and
moderate income households, and housing for special needs groups, including senior, disabled, developmentally
disabled, single parent, large family, farmworker, and homeless populations.

Goal 3:  PRESERVE, REHABILITATE, AND ENHANCE EXISTING HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOODS

Preserve the availability of existing housing opportunities and to conserve as well as enhance the quality of existing
dwelling units and residential neighborhoods

Goa14:  PROVIDE HOUSING FREE FROM DISCRIMINATION

Ensure that all existing and future housing opportunities are open and available to all members of the community
without discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin orancestry, marital status, age, household
composition or size, or any other arbitrary factors.

Goa15:  ENCOURAGEAND ENHANCE HOUSING COORDINATION

Coordinate local housing efforts with appropriate federal, state, regional, and local governments and/ or agencies and
to cooperate in the implementation of intergovernmental housing programs to ensure maximum effectiveness in
solving local and regional housing problems

Goal6:  ENERGYCONSERVATION

Encourage energy conservation measures in new and existing housing

The 2015 Housing Element included policies and programs to assist the City in achieving the identified goals. Table bb
analyzes each implementation program provided in the 2015 Housing Element, describes the results of the program
and recommends whether each policy or implementation program should be kept, modified, or removed in this update
to the Housing Element.

HOiJSI1VG PROI) UCTION DURING TH CYCLE RHNA PERIOD

The City' s
5th

Cycle Housing Elementspecificallyaddressed housing needsforthe Cityfrom 2014through 2023. This 5
h

Cycle Housing Element began to be implemented in 2016 and will continue to be implemented, underthis revised
5tn

Cycle Housing Element, through 2023.

3

441



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Table 1 shows the total`number of housing units built in the City during the 5th RHNA cycle to date and compares these
units with the units required to be accommodated unde the Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA) provided b r
the San Joaquin Council of Governments. Housing development in the City has increased significantly since the 4
rycle, with the City reaching almost 42% of its overall RHNA.   _ 

During the 2014-2023 RFiNA period, 1, 606 units were constructed in the City, including 1; 571 above moderate market-
rate single family homes and 29 moderate income units( 27 homes sold at market rate prices affordable to moderate
income households and 2 accessory dwelling units) as shown in Table 1. While no multifamily units were constructed,
the City approved three multifamily projects, representing a total of 350 multifamily units, and anticipates that alf three
projects will be constructed in this planning period. While none ofthe multifamily projects propose affordable housing,
it is anticipated that the developments will provitle rentals affordable to moderate income households based on the

market rates of multifamily rentals in the City:

Mossdale Landing Apartments( formerly Fairfield Apartments)- This project was initially approved the Fairfield
Apartments in 2007 for 208 units. On June 28, 201 b, the City approved a Minor Site Plan Review to reduce the
project size to 204 units and replace the garages with carports. The project has not requested issuance of

building permits yet. The City extended the Development Agreement for the Mossdale Landing Apartments
project and the Towne Centre Apartment projects to March 16, 2029 to provide sufficient time to complete

these projects.

Towne Centre Apartments Phase I- The City approved the Site Plan Review for this 62- unit multifamily project
on a 2. 46-acre site( two separate parcels) in 2017. The project has not requested issuance of building permits
yet. Building permit plan check has been completed and issuance of building permits is pending payment of
fees.

Towne Centre Apartments Phase II- The City approved the Site Plan Review forthis 84-unit multifamily project
on a 3. 4-acre site( two separate parcels) project on September 19, 2018. Building permit plan check has been
completed and issuance of building permits is pending payment offees.

The 2014- 2023 RHNA time period saw less variety in housing types than earlier cycles due to economic conditions that
support single family housing and limited sources of funding to encourage multifamily housing. Overall, the 2009-
2014 Housing Element continued many of the City' s programs that were effective in housing production despite the
economic downturn.

TABLE' I: REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION( ZO' I4-ZO23 PROGRE55

Stat s - 
fxtrem ely.  '  

Very`-Law Covu       ''  Mbd'erate  :      ;
AboVe  .°.      `^

IOTA L''  .;
Low  '     Motlerate ' f 

RHNAAIIocation 526 493 759 957 2, 421 5, 156

Built 0 0 0 29'      1, 571 1, 600

Under Constructionl
0 0 0

OZ

197 197
Permitted

Remaining Allocation 526 493 759 928 653 3, 359

1INCL UDES 1 H HOMES BUILT IN ZOI¢ AND 9 HOhI ES BUILT IN 2OI$ SOLD AT MARKET- R.4TE PR( CES AF!•'ORDABLE TO MODER. 4TE INCOME HOUSEHOLDS

AND INCLUDES 2 AD US BU/ LT W 2017 AND 2018

Z1 O¢ BUNGALOW UNlTS ARE UNDER CONSTRUCTION IN RNER ISLANDS,' THESE UNITS WILL BE MONITORED AS TNE DENSITYAND SIZE OF THE UNITS MAY

YIEGD MARKET- RATE SALES PRlCES AFFORDABLE TO MODERATE INCOME HOUSENOLDS.

3THERE IS THE POTENTIAL FOR SOME OR ALL OF THE APPROVED 3$ O MULTIFAMlLY UNITS TO BE DEVELOPED AS AFFORDABLE UN( TS, IF THE DEVELOPER

SEEKS ADDITIONAL FUNDING OR SELLS ONE OR MORE OF THE PROJECTS TO AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPER.

SOURCE: SANJOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, 201 F; Z(LGOW.COM,' CITYOFLATHROP, Z019

APPIZOPRIATENESS A1VD EFFECTIVEIVESS OF 2OZS HOUSING LEMENT

The overarching goals and policies of the 2015 Housing Element continue to be appropriate to encourage the City' s
housing goals. While the majority of goals, policies, and programs included in the 2015 Housing Element continue to
be appropciate to address the City' s housing needs, the Housing Plan will be updated to provide clearer guidance, to
remove redundancies, and to provide more specific direction to encourage affordable and speciai needs housing. The

4

442



2019 HOUSINGECEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Housing Plan will also be updated to streamline programs so thatthey are easierfor staff to implement and to include
a matrix of programs hat includes timing to make it easierto identify the applicability and timing ofprograms. In order
to im prove the ease of use ofthe Housing Plan, the housing programs will be presented as a user- friendly table. While
this change is visual, it is anticipated to simplify the implementation and tracking ofthe programs.

As discussed in Table 2, the majority of housing programs have been_effective or are necessary. The intent of these
programs will be kept in the Housing Plan, with revisions to• address identified specific housing needs, constraints, or
otherconcerns identified as part ofthis update. The City implemented many ofthe housing programs in the lastseveral
years and anticipates that these changes will encourage affordable and special needs housing, particularly when
combined with the strengthened= outreach the City has begun to conduct to encourage interest from the af ordable
housing development community in the City' s sites identified for lower income housing.

The City has made significant progress towards its overall RHNA and has approved multiple projects that would increase
the variety of housing stock, including three multifamily projects. In 2019, to ensure the long- term viability of the three
approved multifamily projects, the City extended the Development Agreement for the Mossdale Landing Apartments
project and theTowne Centre Apartment projectsto March 1 b, 2029 to provide sufficienttime to complete these projects

and to encourage the implementation ofthe projects.

Since adoption of the Housing Element in 2016, the City has dedicated portions of its CDBG and HOME funds for
homebuyer assistance and housing rehabilitation programs. During the planning period, the City provided one housing
rehabilitation loan to a very low income household through the Urban County.  Due to the limited amount of funds
available on an annual basis, it can require several years of accrued funds to assist a single project. The City also used
CDBG and HOME funds to provide fair housing services as well as services to special needs and at- risk populations
homeless, persons at- risk of homelessness, seniors, and low income youth).

New lower income housing and special needs housing development did not occur due primarily to a lack of available
local and State funds to encourage or incentivize the development of such housing. State and federal funds for lower
income housing are very limited and extremely competitive to receive.

The Housing Plan included in this 2015- 2023 Housing Element includes modifications to make programs more
effective, clarify objectives, and ensure that the programs are implementable. See the Housing Plan provided in the
Housing Element policy document forthe goals, policies, and programs ofthis Housing Element.

The City implemented programs to ensure that high density residential opportunities would not be lost due to
downzoning. The City is in the process of implementing three remaining programs to remove housing constraints.
Those updates will be adopted concurrently or by January 2020, as described in the Housing Element Background
Report. Programs that encourage use of regional funds, such as HOME and CDBG funds administered by the Urban
County, to adtlress the City' s housing needs continue to be appropriate. However, such funds are extremely limited.

While the City took a number of significant sfeps to promote housing, the experience of Lathrop and other small
communities throughout the State demonstrates that it is very difficult for local governments to meet their fair share
housing goals for lower and moderate income housing working alone.  Small cities, such as Lathrop, have limited
financial and staffing resourcesand requiresubstantial state andlorfederal assistance, which is notavailable atthe levels
necessary to support the City' s housing needs, as well as the technical assistance of area non- profit housing developers
and agencies. As discussed below, the City has strengthened its outreach programs in the updated HouSing Plan to
provide additional information to affordable housing developers to demonstrate the readiness ofthe City' s lower income
sites and also to demonstrate the minimal permitting requirements.

5

443



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TABLE 2: EVALUATION OF THE 2015 LATHROP HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS •

P'rogr:am'.      Ac`complish; ments  '

Program 1a_ To ensure adequate sites for extremely low,   Result/ Evaluation:   The City has maintained the inventory of
very low, low, moderate, and above moderate income residential sites on a regular basis. The City has maintained adequate       
housing are available throughout the planning period to capacity to accommodate its RHNA and to accommodate housing for
meet the Ciry's RHNA, the City will continue to biennially special needs populations.

update the inventory of residential sites( Appendix A). The
update shall remove sites that have been developed and  Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Modify. This program provides re(evant
add any newly designated residential sites. The biennial information to ensure that the City is able to accommodate its RHNA
update shall identify the amount of extremely low, very and to inform developers of potential sites appropriatefor multifamily
low, low, moderate, and above moderate income units and special needs housing. As part of this update, an additional
developed during the planning period and shall identify supporting figure was prepared to make it easier for developers and
the remaining need.   interested parties to identify high density opportunity sites

The update shall ensure that the inventory of residential
appropriate for lower income housing.  The figure includes a table

sites continues to include sites appropriate for a variety of
identifying existing and required approvals so that developers

single family and multifamily housing types as well as sites
understand thatthe the majority ofsites are entitled and approved for

to accommodate single room occupancies and emergency
housing through specific plans and subsequent review requirements

shelters.  It is noted that group quarters for 6 or fewer are minimal, in terms of CEQA review and necessary approvals. This

persons, transitional housing, and supportive housing are program will be modified to include updating the figure focusing on
allowed by right in residential zones and that farmworker multifamily housing sites so that the information is meaningful and

housing is considered an agricultural use that is allowed by easy to understand.
right in zones that allow agricultural uses.

If the inventory indicates a shortage of available sites, the
City shall rezone sufficient sites to accommodate the City' s
RHNA.

Program 1 b: Continue to monitor the amount of land ResuOtlEvaluation: The Ciry has monitored land availableforsingle
zoned for both single family and multifamily development family and multifamily development and City staff reviews
and ensure that land use and zoning decisions do not development applications to ensure that land use and zoning
reduce sites available for affordable housing. In order to decisions have not reduced sites available for affordable housing. As
ensure that adequate sites continue to be provided for River Islands develops, the City has ensured thatthe minimum mixed
affordable housing, the City shall:     use/ high density residential acreage is maintained  ( there are

Continue to require development to meet the currently 17. 7 acres designated R- MU- RI planned for multifamily
minimumdevelopmentdensitiesestablishedforeach units and 34. 7 acres designated RH- RI).  While the potential site

residential zoning district. identified at Manthey Road and Brockhurst Blvd was developed with
To ensure sufficient residential capacity is maintained a detention basin, the City approved two multifamily residential
toaccommodatetheRHNAneed, theCitywillevaluate projects during the planning period ( Towne Centre Apartments
each development project consistent with Phases 1 and 2) and these sites have been added to the inventory of
Government Code Section 56863. Should an approval sites entitled for multifamily development. The City is also working
of development result in a reduction of capacity below with the River Islands developer to potentially identify sites
the residential capacity needed to accommodate the appropriate for higherdensities within the approved specific plan and

remaining need for lower or moderate income to require the higher density sites to be divided into multiple smaller
households, the City will identify and zone sufficient sites, through the current General Plan Update process. No land use
sites to accommodate the shortfall. Any replacement decisions have resulted in a determination that the City would not
sites identified and rezoned as part of this program have available capacityto accommodate its RHNA.

shall not be sites that already allow mixed use or high
density residential at 15- 40 tlulac. Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Modify. This program ensures that the
The City shall provide flexibility on the identification of City is able to accommodate its RHNA, but is overly lengthy and should
sites for accommodating its Regional Housing Needs be revised to specifically address potential changes in West Lathrop
Plan ( RHNP) Allocation. A rezone request of a site Specific PIanlRiver Islands antl Central Lathrop Specific Plan This
counted towards meeting the City' s RHNP Allocation program will be revised to remove the BrockhursdManthey site, to
shall include findings that justify the rezone and increase the viability of existing high density and mixed use sites by
identi an ade uate re lacement site( s) that will 1) ensuring that the any changes to the West Lathrop and Central

b

444



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Pro' ram,   '    Accomplishments

provide the minimum number of units by income Lathrop Specific Plans do not reduce the multifamily capacity and
level for accommodating the City' s RHNP Allocation ensure that the City continues to accommodate its lower income
and is developable during the term of the Housing RHNA.

Element planning period.

As part of any new entitlements for River Islands/ West
Lathrop Specific Plan or amendments to River Islands
projects entitlements, ensure that the amendments

maintain a minimum of 45. 2 acres of mixed use

and/ or high density residential sites in River Islands
that allow development at 15 to 40 du/ ac and will

accommodate from 1, 025 to 1, 200 multifamily units.

As part ofthe development review process for any new
specific plans and for any amendment to existing
specific plans or the General Flan that address
residential land use designations,  enrourage re-      

designation of additional sites to High Density
Residential ( 15- 40 dulac) land uses or to mixed use

d.esignations that require a minimum percentage of
development at 20 dulac.

Encourage the redesignation of the approximately
6. 89- acre parcel atthe southwest corner of Brookhurst

Boulevard and Manthey Road from Service

Commercial to High Density Residential to

accommodate and support multifamily housing
opportunities.

Program 1t: Continueto encourage developmentofwell-   Result/ Evaluation: The City continuesto encourage well- designed
designed and innovative projects that provide for the and innovative projects within the West Lathrop and Central Lathrop
development of compatible residential,  commercial,   Specific Plans.   The West Lathrop Specific Plan has resulted in
industrial, institutional, antllor public uses within a single significant development and continues to progress toward build out
project or neighborhood by continuing to implement the and continues to provide a variety of single family housing products
West Lathrop and Central Lathrop Specific Plans, which and has maintained its medium and high density sites. The River
encourage mixed use development as well as a range of Islands town center area has begun developing and the City
usesthrough allowing higher building intensities, reduced

anticipates that higher density units will begin to be constructed as
parking requirements;  reduced set- back and yard

the mixed uselmultifamily area has begun to develop.   Three
requirements, allow for a higher building height, and

multifamily projects within the Mossdale Village component of the
greater floor area ratios. In addition, the City will continue

West Lathrop Specific Plan have been approvetl.
to work closely with the developers of each Specific Plan to
expedite processing and permit procedures.  

During the current cycle, 1, 795 single family units and 2 ADUs have
been constructed. An additional 197 single family units have building
permits. Three multifamily projects, totaling 350 units, have been
approved and are ready for building permits to be requested. As
discussed in Appendix A, the City has approved Vesting Tentative
Maps in each of its specific plan areas that include additional single

family, inclutling attached single family townhomes and cluster
housing, and multifamilyapartments.

Continue/ Modify/Delete: Continue. This program supports the
implementation of the City' s specific plans and encourages the plans
to be implemented to provide a range of housing types and uses.

Program 1d:    Support affordable or special needs R sultlEvaluation: The City has not had any requests forassistance
including senior, disabled, developmentally disabled,   with securing funding for affordable housing. The City has discussed

farmworker, homeless, large family, and single female the otential for affordable housin with its active develo ers, but

7

445



2019 HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Progra.m _    Accomplishmen' ts

head of family) housing projects applications for federal,   developerstypically indicatethatfunding beyond thatassociated with
state, and/ or regional programs, inc uding CDBG, HOME,   standard CDBG, HOME, and tax credit programs. is necessary for an
project- based Section 8/ 211, Low Income Housing Tax affordable housing development project to show positive cash flow
Credit, and HCD grant programs, that may be used for the and be financiallyfeasible. The City has contacted multiple affordable
development and on- going affordability of lower income housing developers, providing_the City' s inventory ofsites and noting
and special needs housing. Support for applications shall the City' s interest in encouraging housing affordable to moderate and
be provided through staff technical assistance with the lower income groups and to serve special needs groups, but has not
application ( e. g., assisting . with completing application

yet had interest expressed by affordable housing developers: It is
components related to development review and

anticipated thatthe revision to Program 1a to update the inventory of
environmental compliance) where appropriate and City sites suitable multifamily housing may be of more interest to
Council consideration of resolutions indicating local

affordable housing developers, rather than the City' s full inventory of
supportforeach project.       

residential sites which includes all residential sites and may be
difficultfor a developerto narrow down which sites are designated for

multifamily development.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: While this program has not
resulted in affordable or special needs housing, this program
continues to be appropriate to encourage developers to consider

Lathrop as an opportunity area and to demonstrate the City' s support
for available affordable housing assistance program applications,
including CDBG, HOME, and tax credits.

Prograrn 1e:     Retain available County-administered Result/ Evaluation: This program has been considered annuallyfor

HOME and CDBG funds to operate a FirstTime Homebuyer each round of CDBGIHOME funding( 2015I16 through 2019120) that
program for lower income households. is administered through the Urban County. The City allocated funds

for first Time Homebuyer assistance in 2016117. However, the City' s
Evaluate State- administered funding programs on a HOME and CDBG funds are limited and not adequate to fund a
biennial basis to determine if there are additional

meaningful First Time Homebuyer program.  No units have been
programs appropriate for the City to use to augment First

asSisted, despite the City' s action to allocate funds The City reviewed
Time Homebuyer program for lower income households. If

State programs available for assisting homebuyers - the CalHome
funds are identified, request funding to develop a First

program was considered,  but has limited funding to disaster
Time Horriebuyer program.    

assistance programs in recent years. While the City has not identified
any State programs to provide additional assistance, the City is
optimistic that the increased attention to affordable housing needs at
the State level will result in an increase in State- funded programs to

assist jurisdictions in providing homebuyer assistance for low- and
moderate- income households, so the City will continue to review
available funding sources with the long- term goal of developing a
local homebuyer assistance program.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Modify: This program will be revisetl to
remove the review of CDBG/ HOME funds for a FirstTime Homebuyer

program as the City is not anticipated to have an appreciable increase
in the limited CDBG/ HOME funds available to the City and, thus,
adequate funds are not anticipated to be available to support this

program. This program will be retained to continue to evaluate State

funding programs on a biennial basis to seekfunds to develop a First
Time Homebuyer program.   These changes streamline Housing
Element implementation and better reflect availability of funds and
anticipated uses.

8

446



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Progxam Accomplish, ments

Program 1f: _   Continue to consider regional Result/ Evaluation: The Ciry has coordinated with SJCOG and local
development through working with SJCOG and local jurisdictionsthroughtheSJCOG' svariousplanningprocess, including
jurisdictions to plan for high quality regional development,   the current effort to update the Sustainable Communities Strategy,
including adequate affordable housing, and by reviewi' ng and Regional Transportation Plan.  5ince adoption of the 5ih cycle
SJCOG data and online resources to track regional Housing Element in 2016, the' City has participated with regional
development.  governments in planning for housing needs as well as neetls of the

lower income population through the Urban County' s planning
process as discussed under Program 1g. This- continues to be an
important program to ensure the City is eng aged in regional effortsto
address affordable housing..

Continue/ Modi4y/ Delete: Continue: Revise program to include
participation in the develo ment of SJCOG' s planned methodology
forthe distribution ofthe

bt

Housing Elementcycle regional housing
needs.

Program 1g:    Continue to address housing and Resul4/ Evaluation: The City participates on an annual basis in the
services for homeless persons on a regional level through review of housing needs, including homeless needs, through the
participation in the County Continuum of Care.       Annual Action Plan and Continuum of Care project selection process

coordinated through San Joaquin County on behalf of the Urban
County. Each yearthe City reviews the Countywide housing programs
and priorities, including activities and funds allocated to address
regional homeless needs. In addition to participating at the regional
level, the City holds an annual hearing to discuss housing needs,
community services needs, and potential programs and facilities
needed to serve the Ciry' s lower income and special needs
populations, including services for homeless persons and individuals
and households at risk of homelessness.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program is appropriate
to ensure that homeless needs are considered on a regular basis.

Combine with Program 1 h.

Program 1h:    Actively support efforts of homeless Result/ Evaluation: The City continues to participate in the County
service providers in establishing a short- term bed facility Continuum of Care wit.h surrounding cities and the county to support
for segments of the homeless population, including the provision of horrieless shelters. The City has coordinated with
specialized groups such asthe mentally ill, and chronically homeless service providers through the Urban CountylContinuum of
disabled,  and work with homeless housing/ service Care efforts, which include determining funding for shelters antl
providers to apply for Emergency Shelter Grant funtls,   Programs serving the homeless. To date, no homeless providers have
administered through the County Continuum of Care.   expressed interest in developing a shelter in the City.
Continue to make information regartling Continuum of
Care funds and the process available to homeless service Con4inue/ Modify/ Delete:  Modify:     This program will be

providers.      consolidated with other Program 1g and other to address homeless
antl lower income housing needs. The program will be modified to
specifically solicit interest in developing affordable housing and
hoineless facilities to meet the needs of the City and to provide
developers and service providers with a figure and associated table

that identifies sites suitable for lower income housing and homeless
shelters and identifies the entitlemendpermitting requirements for
each site.

9

447



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Pro ram .      - Accomplish'ments
Program 1i:     Maintain information regarding Result/ Evaluation:  The City provides information on a range of
homeless shelters and services available to City residents.   housing programs, including services. available to the homeless
This information shall be available at City Hall, the Lathrop population and at- risk individuals and households. The information is

Community Center, the Library, and on the City' s website.    available through the City' s website as well as at City Hall, the library,
the senior center, and the community center.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program continues to be
appropriate.

Program 1j:     Continue to address regional housing Resu9t/ Evaivation:  Each year the City reviews the Countywide
issues, including lower income and special needs housing,   housing programs and priorities, including activities and funds
in coordination with San Joaquin County and neighboring allocated to address regional homeless needs.  In addition to
jurisdictions. The City shall participate with San Joaquin participating atthe regional level, the City holds an annual hearing to
County' s efforts to establish a task force or committee to discuss housing needs, community services needs, and potential
oversee the development of a County Farmworker Housing programs and facilities needed to serve the City' s lower income and
Plan.  Participation with the County may include special needs populations.

identification of potential sites and funding sources
available forfarm labor housing.      While the County has not yet prepared the County Farmworker

Housing Plan, the City continues to participate in Countywide
planning efforts for affordable and special needs housing, including
farmworker, through the Consolidated Plan and Action Plans

developed through the Urban County program. While the County' s
efforts have notyet moved forward, the City' s participation in regional
planning efforts forfarmworker housing continuesto be appropriate.

ContinuelModify/ Delete: Motlify: This program will be revised to
focus on farmworker housing coordination with the County.  The

component addressing regional coordination will be incorporated
into the updated Program 1g.

Program 1k:     Continue to work with the San Joaquin Result/ E aluation: 18 housing vouchers from the San Joaquin
Housing Authority by providing housing information Housing Authority are in use in Lathrop.  The City has very few
requested by the Housing Authority in a timely manner.   apartment units for rent. When rental units become available, the City
EncouragetheHousingAuthoritytoissuemorevouchersto through County services will work diligently toward obtaining
City residents in need and to make efforts to increase the housing vouchers for those in need of rental assistance. Due to the
useofvouchersforrentalofsinglefamilyhomesduetothe limited amount of multifamily housing in Lathrop, the Ciry should
City' s limited supply of multifamily housing.  continue to encourage the use of vouchers in single- family homes,

working with the County on how to best administer this program.

Continue/ Modify/Delete: Continue.

Program 11:     Continue to permit Planned Result/ Evaluation:    The City continues to permit Planned
Development District zoning that promotes a variety of Developmentzoning to promote a variety of housing types. Whilethe
housing types in the City through the utiliza#ion of City has not had many PD applications recently, this program
innovative development techniques and flexible continues to be appropriate and may be used more in the future if
standards, such as: zero lot lines, clustering of dwelling develo.pment outside of the Specific Plan areas increases.
units, narrower streets, increased densities, and fewer
dedication requirements.      Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue.

Program 1 m:    facilitate the development of market Result/ Evaluation: Lathrop has a very short processing time for all
rate rental housing and affordable for-sale and rental.   projects. The City continually endeavors to process applications as
housing, including housing for extremely low, very low,   quickly as possible and still comply with time frames for CEQA and
and low income groups and special needs populations,   legal noticing. The City encourages concurrent applications as a time
through thefollowing: saving program as part of the entitlement process. While the City

Regulatory incentives, such as expediting permit rioritizes affortlable housin a lications, the Ci has not received

10

448



ZO19 HOUSING ECEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Program. Accomplishments    ,   .  ,      

processing, deferred fees, andlor reduced parking any duririg the 2015- 2023 planning period. All housing projects are
requirements basetl on the bedroom mix of the fast-tracked.  The City has approved the Central Lathrop and West
project; and Lathrop Specific Plans and has approved large vesting tentative maps
En ourage developersto utilizethe density bonus and Within these specific plans that include several multifamily sites.

incentive provisions required byState law; and Through Program 1d, theCityencouragesdevelopmentto meetlower

Publicize these incentives for market rate housing to
income and other special housing needs. As identified by this

developers andlor other interested parties by
Program, the City providesfor density bonus, parking reductions; and

providing informational flyers at the Community
other incentives for affordable and special needs housing

Development Department' s counter and in development. While the City has had 3 multifamily projects approved

development project applications.
but not yet developed, these incentives continue to be appropriate to

encourage affordable and special needs housing development. This is
particularly important as development of the West Lathrop Specific    
PIanlRiver Islands and Central Lathrop Specific Plan progresses a d
the multifamily sites in these areas become increasingly IiKely to be
constructed as the demand for housing in tfie region remains strong
and a need for a range of housing types and options continues to be
desirable.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue. This program continues to be
relevantand appropriatetofacilitating housing development.

Program 1n:    Through the San Joaquin Urban County Result/ Evaluation: The City has continued to coordinate with the
consortium,  continue to coordinate in contacting County to document Countywide housing needs and priorities
developers on a regular basis and provide the Urban through the Urban County consortium. The City provides housing
County consortium with a list of available sites that are information and inputduring development ofthe Consolidated Plan
readyfordevelopment. and holds an annual hearing to receive community input on the

housing, services, and other programs to benefit lower income
households and individuals through the Annual Action Plan process.

As part of this process, the City coordinates with developers and
service providers to address housing and community development
priorities each fiscal jrear.

Continue/ NEodify/ Delete: Modify. This program will be combined
with Program 1 g to simplify Housirig Element implementation.

Program 10:     Encourage a range of housing types for Result/ Evaluation:   The City has coordinated with the Valley
the developmentally disabled through coordination with Mountain Regional Center to identify needed housing rypes to serve
the Valley Mountain Regional Center to identify needed the developmentally disabled population.  The Valley Mountain
housing types, such as independent living opportunities Regional Center has indicatetl that independent living, group home,
and group homes and other facilities that provide and supportive IiVing situations continue to be appropriate to serve
assistance to residents. Projects that provide housing for developmentally disabled persons.  However, the Valley Mountain
developmentally disabled persons will be assisted through Regional Centerdoes notdevelop housing. The City has added several
priority/ expedited processing, assistance with funding housing providers that serve the developmentally disabled
applications,  and assistance with any densiry bonus population to its outreach list in an effort to increase interest in
requests for a density bonus,  reduced development

developing housing specifically targeted to the disabled and
standards( e. g., minimum lot size, setbacks, parking, etc)   

developmentally disabled population.
or other incentives.

Continue to refer households with a developmentally
Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program continues to be

disabled member to the Valley Mountain Regional Center
relevant and appropriate to assist in addressing needs of the

for assistance.  
developmentally disabled population.

Program 1 p:    Encourage development of affordable Resul#/ Evaluation: The City continues to parficipate in the County-
and multifamily housing, including housing for special administered Urban County program for CDBG, HOME, and ESG
needs and/ or extremely low, very low, andlor low income fundin . Fundsfrom these ro rams that are available to Lathro are

11

449



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Rrogra: m  '    Accomp' lish'ments;
households through outreach to affordable housing used primarily for housing rehabilitation as the City' s funding
developers.       _      allocation is too small to be a significant source of funding for new

housing construction, Whilethe City has included affordable housin,g
The City shall contact affordable housing develflpers on an.   

developers as part of its outreach for CDBG and HOME funding -
annual basis to solicit interest in developing affordable

opportunities, the City-does not have significant funding available to
andlor special housing.   The outreach materials shall

attractaffordable housing.
include a list of incentives for affordable housing, a
summary of the City' s housing needs, including the City' s   ontinue/ Modify/ Delete: Modify. This program will be combined
RHNA, the City' s inventory of housing sites, and the map of

With Program 1g to streamline Housing Element implementation.
the City' s housing sites.  Affordable housing developers
contacted should include Bridge Housing, Mercy Housing,
St.  Anton Partners,  Domus Development,  and Eden

Housing.
Prograrn 2a:     Continue to offer pre- application Result/ Evaluation:  The Gity continues to offer pre-application
meetings to all developers with various City staff meetings to assist developers with submitting applications that meet
representing numerous City departments ( e. g. planning,   the City' s requirements and to reduce the length of time for the
building, engineering, etc.) to discuss project design, city application review and approval process. Planning staff provides and
standards, necessary public improvements, and funding discusses applicable city codes and development standards.
strategies.      Additional permits that may be required for unique projects( such as

a variance or use permit) can also be determined at this time.

Applicants are also strongly encouraged to meetwith members ofthe
Public Works and Fire Departments during pre- application process to
identify pertinent issues.  The Planning Departm. ent staff will woCk
with applicants to set up joint meetings between the various
departments involved in site plan review. Developers have indicated

that pre-application meetings are a useful tool and the majority of
developers take advantage of the pre- application meeting.
Developers are encouraged to meet with pertinent staff to discuss

funding strategies, project design, etc. The applicant may go through
a pre-application process to receive feedback on a prospective project.

Continue/ iNodify/ Delete: Continue: This project streamlines the
housing application review process and assists in removing
constraints by ensuring that developers have the opportunity to
understand City requirements in advance of submitting an
application and can thus craft their application to address City
requirements and reduce the neetl for revisions to application

materials.

Program 2b:    Provide incentives to encourage the Result/ Evaluation:  The City makes these programs available to
development of special needs and affordable housing.   affordable housing developers. While the City has contacted multiple
Incentives shall include:       affordable housing developers to encourage construction of new

Allowing developers to submit affordable and special needs housing,  developers have not

concurrentl" piggyback" applications ( e. g., rezones,   demonstrated any interest in developing in Lathrop. Developers have
tentative tract maps, conditional use permits, variance indicated that direct funding or land is desirable to pursue a project.
requests,   etc.)   to streamline processing of The City does not own sites designated for multifamily housing and
development projects that require multiple City the does not have affordable housing funds available to subsidize
approvals or entitlements; affordable projects ( the City' s annual allocation of HOME funds is
Provide technical assistance with the entitlement approximately $ 20, 000).  It is anticipated that the modification to

process for projects that propose extremely low-, very Program 1 b may result in multifamily sites that are more suitably
low-, and low- income housing or that include a sized( less than 10 acres) that may be of interestto affordable housing
significant portion of units for special needs developers.  This program will be retained in order to continue to

households.       provide mechanisms to prioritize and encourage affordable and

12

450



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Prog:ram  `      Accomplishments .". 

Consideration of fee waivers- or fee deferrals, where  special needs housing development
deemed appropriate, projects providing hbusing for       -       
extremely low-, very low-, and low income households Continue/ N odify/ Delete: Continue. This program continues to be
orspecial needs households.     applicable to encourage lower income housing. 

Prioritizing projeds which include units set aside for
extremely - low-,  very low-,  andlor low income
households; 

Thraugh the density bonus provisions of the Zoning
Code,  provide for a reduction in development

standards( e. g., allowing narrowerstreets, variable set
backs, increased heights, etc.) for eligible projects

providing housing for extremely low-, very low-, and
low income households.    

Program 2c:     Continueto monitoraverage processing Result/ Evaluation:  The City continues to monitor its processing
times for discretionary development permits on a biennial time for discretionary permits as well as ministerial permits. The City
basis and regularly review the Zoning Code and the City' s is extremely responsive and does not have any significant delays in
development project processing procedures to identify the permitting process that would constrain development.  When

changes to further reduce housing costs and average necessary, the City works with outside consultants to augment City
permit processing time.  Where changes are feasible to staff in order to ensure that review times are reasonable.

implement, update the Zoning Code and amend the City' s
processing procedures to reduce housing costs and Continue/ Modify/Delete: Continue: This program continues to be
processing times.      applicable to ensuring timely processing of housing projects.

Program 2d:    Review affordable housing and in- fill Result/ Evaluation: The City provides for streamlined CEQA review.
projects for eligible CEQA exemptions and exempt those The City' s infill housing has resulted in several single family units in
projects that are eligible from further CEQA review.   the core area of Lathrop; these units have received ministerial

approvals which do not require CEQA documentation. It is noted that

the majority of affordable housing sites are within specific plan areas
and that CEQA review for these areas has been conducted, so

additional CEQA review would not be required for such projects.

Where allowed, the City will exempt any affordable housing project
from CEQA if the specific criteria are met under the CEQA guidelines.

This will be determined during the staff review process. To date, there
have been no affordable housing projects requested.

Contiraue/ Modi$y/ Delete: Modify: Revise this program to update
the inventory of sites maintained by Program 1a to itlentify the
required approvals and CEQA review for the lower income housing
sites. This will assist affordable and special needs housing developers
in understanding that the majority of sites in Lathrop can be
developed with a Site Plan Review and do not require public hearings

or costly CEQA analys.is.

Program 2e:     Review all updates and revisions to the Result/Evaluation: In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to
City's ordinances, codes, policies, and proceduresto ensure include reasonable accommodation procedures. The City continuesto
thattheydonotconstrain" reasonableaccommodation" for review updates and revisions to the City' s code, policies, and
disabled persons.      procedures to ensure that there would not be constraints to

reasonable accommodation:

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue:

Program 2f:     Amend Title 17 to allow for the location Resul/ Evalwation: In 201 b, the City updated the Zoning Code to
of Single Room Occupancy( SRO) uses as a conditional use implement this program. The Zoning Code now provides clear
in Multi le Famil Residential ( RM) distrid and atlo t

13

451



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Progra in Accomp lis,l%ments".;     
development standards that allow and accommodate the requirements for SRO uses.    

inclusion of new SRO' s. Development standards may
include: Continue/ Modify/ Delete:  Delete:  This program has been

Ensure development standards do not constrain the implemented and no further action is necessary.
development of SROs,   the City will adopt

developmentstandardswhich mayinclude:       

Reguirements for a management plan outlining
policies and procedures.

24- hour on- site management

Room limitation to single occupancy, with allowance
for overnight guests

Requirements for monthly tenancies

Units must be 250- 300 square feet in size and include
kitchen or bathroom

Parking ratio of one space per unit and bicycle rack
storage of one rack per 5 units

Program 2g:    Continue to encourage developers to Result/Evaluation: Since adoption ofthe 2015 Housing Element, 2
include second dwelling units as an integral part of their ADUs have been constructed. In 2019, the City updated the Zoning
project and to plan for second dwelling units in the design Code to modify standards for ADUs to be consistent with the
of their projects. requirements of State law. ADUs are allowed in all zoning districtsthat

permit residential uses and are allowed to be up to 1, 200 s. f. in size.
In 2019, the City further encouraged ADUs through adopting policy
guidance that exempts ADUs from utility connection fees and limits
any applicablefeestothe multifamily rate in orderto ensurethatrates
for ADUs do not constrain their development:

Contina e/ Modify/ Delete:  Modify: The City shall continue this
program and revise it to include language that ADUs will continue to

be permitted in all residential zones and thatthe City will continue to
provide a reduced fee structure for ADUs. The City' s efforts to
encourage ADU- type units have been successful, with recent homes

including second master suites, casitas, and similar options that
expand the potential to accommodate additional households. The

City' s effort to reduce fees for ADUs, through exempting ADUs from
water and sewer fees and ensuring any applicable fees are collected
atthe reduced multifamily rate, is anticipatetl to increase the demand
for ADUs. Continuation of this program and the City' s efforts to
encourage ADUs should yield additional stand- alone ADUs or

attached ADUs.

Program 2h:    Encourage developers to take Result/ Evaluation: At this time, developers have not requested to
advantage ofdensity bonuses and incentivesforaffordable utilizethe density bonus program provided underState law. In 2016,
housing and senior housing projects that are provided by the City updated the Zoning Code to provide for density bonuses and
the City consistent with the requirements of State law. T incentives for affordable and senior housing program in compliance

with State law.

Continue/ Niodi#y/ Delete:  Modify: The City shall continue to
encourage developers to utilize available density bonuses and
incentives for affordable, senior, and special needs housing. The
program will be revised to remove the language to update the Zoning
Code since that effort was com leted in 201 b. The ro ram will also

14

452



ZO19 HOUSINGECEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Program   _   .     . Accomplisfiments

be updated to indude information on the maximum densities

allowed with density bonuses in the City' s zoning districts, which will
be distributed to housing developers as part of the information
provided through Programs 1a and 1g.

Program 2i:     Amend the Zoning Code to allow Result/ Evaluation: In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to
emergency shelters by right in the City' s Multiple Family identify emergency shelters as a permitted use in the RM and PS
Residential( RM) and Professional Office( PO) zone districts districts. No discretionary approvals are required and the City' s
without any discretionary action. Standards for emergency standards for emergency shelters are consistent with the standards
shelters shall be consistent with standards permitted by allowed under State law.
Government Code Section 65583( a)( 4)(A).

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Delete: This program has been fully
implemented and will be removed from the Housing Element.

Program 2j:     Amend the Zoning Code to allow ResultlEvaluation: In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to   _.
transitional and supportive housing as a residential use define transitional and supportive housing and related terms
and only subject to those requirements that apply to other consistent with the definitions in Government Code Section 65582
residential uses of the same type in the same zone as and to identify that requirements for transitional and supportive
required by State law and to define supportive housing,   housing are the same as would apply to other residential uses of the
supportive services, target population, and transitional same type in the same zone ( e. g., single family transitional or
housing consistent with Government Code Section 65582.   

supportive housing developments are treated in the same manner as
a standard single family development; multifamily transitional or
supportive housing developments are treated in the same manner as
a standard multifamily housing project).

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Delete: This program has been fully
implemented and will be removed from the Housing Element.

Program 2k:    Adtlress the special housing needs of Result/ Evaluation:   The City has encouraged development of
large families to alleviate overcrowding in the City by affordable housing, including housing with 3 or more bedrooms.
facilitating the construction of housing that includes 3-   While no developers have demonstrated interest in affordable
and4- bedroom units affordable to extremely low-, very low,   housing, the City has worked with developers to provide a range of
and low- income families.      housing types including large units with 6 or more bedrooms to

The City will publicize financial and regulatory incentive
accommodate large households and units with second master suites

opportunitiestodevelopersandlorotherpartiesinterested
to accommodate large households an,d combined familylhousehold

in the construction of housing that includes 3- and 4-   living situations. While not a recognized affordable housing produck,
bedroom affordable units by providing informational flyers

large homes that allow multiple generations or multiple families to

at the Community Development Department and in all reside together provide for sharing of housing costs and increase the

specific plan and subdivision application packets,     affordability of a unit while avoiding overcrowded situations.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete:  Continue: The need for affordable

housing for all special needs groups including large households,
continues to be of vital importance.

Program 21:     Support female- headed households in Result/ Evaluation:  The City continues to permit child day care
the City with the permitting of child day care facilities as facilities, including small family day cares and large family day cares,
outlined in Chapter 17 of the Municipal Code. in its residential zoning districts. This program providesfor a variety of

in- home care options for families.

Continue/ Modify/Delete: Continue: This program continues to be
appropriate to support households with children, including female-
headed households.

Program 2m:   Amend the Municipal Code to develop Result/ Evaluation: In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to
formal procedures for reasonable accommodation for include reasonable accommodation procedures as described by
housin for ersons with disabilities in accordance with fair

15

453



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Program      `   Accomplishments  ;-      _

housing and disability laws. Include provisions for clear Program 2m.

rules,   policies,   and procedures,   for reasonable

accommodation in order to promote equal access to Continue/ Modify/ Delete:   Delete:  This program has been

housing. Policies and procedures should be ministerial and implemented: Program 2e will continue to address reasonable

include but not be limited to identifying who may request accommodation for persons with disabilities.

a reasonable accommodation   ( i. e.,   persons with

disabilities, family-members, landlords, etc.), timeframes   ,

for decision- making, and provision for relief from the  -
various land- use, zoning, or building regulations that may
constrain the housing for persons of disabilities.       -

Program 2n:    Require developers of new housing to Result/ Evaluation:  The City requires new development to offer
usethe HCD New Home Universal Design Option Checklist universal design measures to ensure new homes include accessible

to disclose to buyers accessible features that are available.   features.

The City shall encourage developers to rriake accessible
features available as standard features to the extent Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program continu es to be    
feasible and to provide remaining accessible features as appropriate to ensure accessible housing.
optional features orfeatures available in a limited number

of units.

Program 20:     Revise the Zoning Code to allow Result/ Evaluation: This program was implemented by the City in
manufactured housing to be constructed on a permanent 2019. The standards for manufactured housing are consistent with
foundation in all zoning districtsthat allow residential uses State law. This program was successful in removing constraints to
and to remove the minimum floor area and minimum manufactured housing and ensuring that manufactured housing is
width requirements from Sectiori 17. 68. 020, permitted in the same manner as conventional residential

construction in all districts that allow resitlential uses.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete:  Delete:  This program has been

implemented and will be removed from the Housing Element.

Program 2p:    Revise the Zoning Code to ResuEt/ Evaluation: This program was implemented by the Gity in
accommodate employee housing, including housing for 2016, revising the Zoning Code to permit employee housing and
agricultu al employees consistentwith State law.     agricultural employee housing consistent with State law. This

program ensures that employee housing for b or fewer employees is
The Zoning Code shall be revised to: 1) permit employee

treated as a single family residential use and that agricultural housing
housing providing accommodations for six or fewer

consisting of up to 36 beds in group quarters or 12 units is considered
employees as a single- family structure, and 2) identify that

an agricultural use and permitted subject to the same standards and
employee housing serving six or fewer employees shall be

permit requirements as an agricultural use.
subject to the same standards and requirements for a

family dwelling ( residential unit) of the same type in the continue/ Modify/ Delete:   Delete:  This program has been
same zone.     

implemented and will be removed from the Housing Element.

The Zoning Code shall define housing for agricultural
employeesthat is no morethan 36 beds in a group quarters
or 12 single family units as an agricultural use subject to
the same standards and permit requirements as a

permitted agricultural use.   As required by Health and
Safety Code Section 17021. 6, no conditional use permit,
zoning variance,  or other zoning clearance shall be
required of this employee housing that is not required of
any other agricultural activity in the same zone. The
permitted occupancy in employee housing in a zone
allowing agricultural uses shall include agricultural
employees who do not work on the property where the
employee housing is located.

Pro ram 2 :    Revise the Zonin Code to aliow the Result/ EValuation: In 2016, the Cit u dated the Zonin Code to

16

454



2019 HOUSING ECEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Pro` r,am,  LL       Accomplishmerits`•

approving party ( Community Development Director for provide for reduced parking requirements as provided by this
permitted uses, Planning Commissionforconditional uses)   program. This change removes potential constraints to housing by
to reduce parking requirements for projects serving reducing development costs and providing the potential for
disabled persons where there is a demonstrated reduction additional units, depending on project design.
in parking need.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: . Delete:  This program has been

implemented and no further changes to the Zoning Code are
necessary.

Prograna 2r:_    Revise the Zoning Code to define Result/ Evaluation: The City updated the Zoning Code to define
family' and ' household' as two or more related persons family and household as described by this program.  This change

living in a dwelling unit or a group of individuals living removes potential constraints for non- family households and
together in a dwelling unit as the functional equivalent of implements fair housing best practices.
a fam ily where the residents may share living expenses and
responsibilities.  A family includes,  for example,  the Continue/ Modify/ Delete:  Delete:  This program has been

residents ofsmall group homesforseniors or persons with implemented and no further changes to the Zoning Code are
disabilities. A family does not include larger institutional necessary.

group living situations such as large residential care
facilities, dormitories, fraternities, sororities, monasteries,
or convents. " Household" has the same definition as

fa m i ly".

Program 2s:     In compliance with State law ResultlEvaluation: The City did not implement this program. The
Government Code Section 65589. 7), the Citywill establish City has not experienced a shortage of water or sewer capacify and

written policies and procetluresthat grant priorityforwater availability of water and sewer service has not been a constraint on
and sewerto proposed developmentthat includes housing new development, including housing affordable to lower- income
affordable to lower- income households.       households. However, to comply with State law, the City is preparing

written policies and procedures to ensure that housing affordable to
lower income households, including extremely low, very low, and low
income housing, is granted priority when seeking water and sewer
commitments and connections. These policies and procedures are

anticipated to be adopted concurrently with the Housing Element or
within one month of Housing Element adoption.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program continues to be
necessary.

Prograen 2t:     Update the West Lathrop Specific Plan Result/ Evaluation: The City did not implement this program. The
to permit heights of up to 40 feet in the RM- MV zone. revision to the West Lathrop Specific Plan was identified in error and

the height increase is not necessaryto accommodatethe 8 to 15 units

per acre densities allowed in the RM- MVzone. The RH- MVzone, which

was not addressed in the previous analysis, allows 15 to 40 units per

acre with maximum heights up to 50 feet.

ContinuelModify/ Delete: Delete: This program is not necessary.

Prograrro 2u:    Support multifamily housing on sites Result/ Evaluation: The City did not implement this program. The
that accommodate lower income households by revising revision to the Zoning Ordinance is being drafted and is anticipated to
theZoningOrdinancetoonlypermitdevelopmentofsingle be adopted concurrently with the Housing Element or within one
family units on lower income sites, including all ofthe sites month of Housing Element adoption.
identified in Table 62, if the single family unit(s) are:
1) replacing an existing single family unit on a one for one Continue/ Modify/Delete: Modify: This program continues to be
basis,   necessary, but will be modified to address detached single family

2) on an existing lot of 8, 000 square feet or less, or
housing rather than all single family housing and to revise the 3` d
exception to allow single family housing when part of a housing

3) are part of a housing development with the majority of develo ment with a minimum of 20% of the units affordable to

17

455



ZO 9 HOUSiNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Prog am       Accomp. lisfiments      , 4

units affordable to. extremely low, very low; and/ or low extremely low, very low, andlor low income households.
income households:

Programn 3a:     Continue to . participate in the San Result/ Evaluation: The Ciry continues to receive an allocation of
Joaquin Urban County conSortium to receive and use funds ea.ch fiscal year und_er the Urban County with San Joaquin       `
HOME and CDBG funds to provide housing rehabilitation County and the Cities of Escalon, Manteca, and Ripon. With the
loans and emergency repair loans or grants, administered exception of one fiscal year, all HOME funds have been allocated to
througli the San Joaquin County Rehabilitation Program,   the Housing Rehabilitation Program that is run by San Joaquin
for lower incom. e households and to provide services for County on behalf ofthe City of Lathr.op. A portion of CDBG funds have
lower income populations,  including extremely low been allocated to housing rehabilitation.   Although funds. are
income, horrieless/ at- risk of homelessness, seniors, and exfremely limited, the Rehabilitation Assistance Program provided
youth. On an annual basis, determine whether funds are

housing rehabilitation assistance to one single family, very low
adequate to set aside funds specifically for assistance

income household since adoption of the 2015 Housing Element. The
housing rehabilitation,    emergency repair,    or

City allocated additional funds for housing rehabilitation and
weatherization) for extremely low income households and homebuyer assistance that have not yet been expended. The City has
whether funds are adequate to allow bedroomlbathroom also allocated funds to provide fair housing services, food services for
additions where necessary to accommodate large families.   

lower incomeyouth, senior.s, and households at- risk of homelessness,

To ensure public awareness of and participation in housing and various other supportive services targeted to lower income and

assistance programs, continue to provide informationa: l special needs populations. The City makes information regar,ding
packets and handouts at City Hall, commun. ity gathering housing programs available at City Hall at the Community
areas ( Community Center and Library), and on the City' s Development public counter, in the City' s newsletter, and in handouts
website.  These handouts shall include specific contact at the Community C.enter and Library.  This program has been

iriforma. tion, programs available, and how to apply for effective.

funds.
ContB oue/ i lodify/Delete:   Continue: This program has been

successful in providing services to lower income arid special needs
populations and assisting lower income households with housing
ehabilitation. The City will continue to partner with the San Joaquin

County Gonsortium.

Prograret3b:    Review the Zoning Code and potential Result/ Evaluation: The City reviewed the Historic Lathrop Overlay
funding sources to identify methods to provide incentives District boundaries, permitted uses, and development standards and
for rehabilitation of existing residential units and to determined they were appropriate,  as they provide extensive
encourage re- investment in the Historic Lathrop Overlay opportunities for reinvestment and new development in the core
District and in older neighborhoods east of I- 5. Historic Lathrop area. Standards and incentives for new residential

development are available in Historic Lathrop as well as other areas of
theCity. DuetotheCity' slimitedfundingforhousingprograms; there
were not funds available during the planning period for a targeted
rehabilitation program in this area.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: Continue this program.

Progra 3c:     Continue to employ a full time code Result/ Evaluation: The City continues to. actively enforce building
corripliance officerwho will vigorously enforce the building and safety codes. The City' s code enforcement taCgets specific areas
and zoning codes in locations where dilapidation, blight,   based on complaints received and also strives to address city-wide
andlor healtli arid safety violations may be occurring. code compliance. This program is effective:

Continue/ Mqdify/ Delete:  Continue: Tlie City shall continue this.
program.

Progran 3d:    Continue to coordinate the housing Result/ Evaluation:    The City continues to coordinate code
rehabilitation program with code compliance efforts to enforcement with its housing rehabilitation program. The need for
encourage property owners to maintain dwelling units in code enforcement has been highest in the Lathrop core area, due to
safe and habitabie conditions.  Regularly review housing the age of housing stock in the core area and east of I- 5 in general. As
conditions and update the housing stock condition data described reviousl , the Ci has limited amounts of fundin

18

456



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Pro ram. f pccomplishments .::

gathered for the Housing Element Update to determine if available for a housing rehabilitation program which limits the ability
specific locations or neighborhoods require targeted code for this program to result in significant rehabilitation activities. The

enforcement antl work to provide, when funding is City is optimistic that the increased attention to affordable housing
available,   targeted rehabilitation or replacement needs at the State level_ will result in an increase in State- funded
assistance. programs to assistjurisdictions in addressing housing rehabilitation

and other needs, so tlie Ciry will continue to review available funding
sources with the long- term goal of increasing funds for housing
rehabilitation as well as emergency and minor repairs.

ontin ae/ I lodify/Delete: Modify. This program will be combined    -
with Program 3c.

Program 3e:     Continue to participate in the San ResultlEvaluation: The City has continued to participate in the San
Joaquin Urban County consortium to provide funding and Joaquin Urban County consortium. In 2017, 2108, and 2019, the City
support for the rehabilitation of mobile homes, when designated a portion of its available funds for housing rehabilitation.
adequate funds are available. These funds are available to lower income homeowners, including

owners of mobile homes, for housing rehabilitation.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Modify: Continue this program and
expand to review the potential use of the State' s Mobilehome Park

Rehabilitation and Resident Ownership Program to encourage long-
term affordability ofthe City' s existing mobilehome parks.

Program 3f:     Support the application of multifamily Result/ Evaluation:  The City has not received any requests for
housing owners for federal or state funds to rehabilitate assistance from multifamily housing owners or other entities for
existing dwelling units.  When appropriate and feasible,   housing rehabilitation programs.  During the planning period, the
provide technical assistance to the project applicant with City did support the application for a rezone and site plan review in
the funding application.       order to facilitate the conformance of a multifamily use and

subsequent substantial rehabilitation of 6 dilapidated fourplexes( 24

multifamily units) in the City' s core area.

Continue/ Modify/Delete: Modify: Continue this program and
expand to review the potential use of the State' s Mobilehome Park

Rehabilitation and Resident Ownership Program to encourage long-
term affordability of the City' s existing mobilehome parks.

Program 3g:    Regularly review the City' s eligibility for Result/ Evaluation:  The City has participated in multiple clean
Federal and State home repair,  renovation,  and energy financing programs, including CSCDA Open PACE, Figtree
replacementprogramsannuallyandapplyforprograms, as PACE, and Golden State Finance Authority, and the California
appropriate.    Municipal Finance Authority Open PACE program to ensure that loans

and financing are available for residential and commercial property
owners to make clean- energy and energy-efficient improvements to
their homes.  The City did not identify any additional funding
programs, apart from the CDBG and HOME funds, for housing repair,
renovation, and replacement. The City is optimisticthatthe increased
atteritiori to affordable ho.using needs at the State level will result in
an increase in State- funded programs to assist jurisdictions in

addressing housing rehabilitation and other needs, so the City will
continue to review available funding sources with the long-term goal
of increasing funds for housing rehabilitation as well as emergency
and minor repairs.

Continue/ Modify/Delete:    Continue.  This program will be

consolidated with Pro ram 3e to continue to encoura e and su ort

19

457



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Prograrn Accor lish men s;  
Y

rehabilitation and repair of the Cify' s existing housing stock.

Prograrti 4a:     Continue to encourage the enforcement Result/ Evaluation: The City funds fair housing services for Lathrop
of federal and state fair housing standards. The City will residents and tenants through an annual al.location of its CDBG funds
provide fair housing information to interested citizens and to San Joaquin Fair Housing, through the Urban County. San Joaquin
will make fair housing materials from the California Fair Housing provides information regarding fair housing that
Department of Fair Housing and Employment and the addresses disability, familial status, and tenants rights in both English
federal Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity and Spanish.  The City also provides DFEH brochures which also
available at City Hall, the Library, the Community Center,   

addressfamilialstatusanddisability, among otherfairhousingtopics.
and on the City' s website in both English and Spanish. All

The City ensures that fair housing brochures are available at City Hall
requests for fair treatment on housing will be referred to

as well as other community locations.
the fair housing providerfunded through the San Joaquin
Urban County consortium ( currently San Joaquin Fair   ontinue/ Ntodify/ Delete: Continue: This program- is importantto
Housing, Inc.).   ensure that access to fair housing information antl fair housing

services is available fo the City' s residents as well as property owners.

Program 4b:    Require all recipients of locally Result/ EValuation: The City did not have any locally- administered
administered housing funds to acknowledge their housing funds during the reporting period.
understanding of fair housing law,   affirm their

commitment to the law, and to provide fair housing Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program is important to
opportunities for all persons.  ensure that housing projects comply with fair housing laws.

Program 5a:     Continue to maintain membership in Result/ Evaluation: The City continues to support use of Housing
the San Joaquin Housing Authorityto qualify City residents Choice Vouchers in the City. While there are a limited number of
forSection 8 Housing ChoiceVouchersand otherassistance Housing Choice vouchers provided by the San Joaquin Housing
administered by the Housing Authority.  The City shall Authority to City residents, this program continues to be an important
provide information on the availability of Housing source ofassistance, particularlyto extremely low and very low income
Authority programs to interested residents.   households.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete:  Continue:  This program provides

essential supportfor lower income households.

Program 5b:    Provide housing information to all Result/Evaluation: The City makes its housing funding( CDBG and
interested agencies, developers, residents, and non- profit HOME) information readily available through annual outreach to
groups. City staff will assist with Zoning and General Plan developers and service providers regarding funding availability and
inquiries as well as provide contact information between annual public hearings to determine the allocation of such funds. The
the San Joaquin Urban County Cbnsortium, San Joaquin City provides information on its development requirements( General
Housing Authoriry, housing developers, and non- profit plan, Zoning, and Specific Plans) on- line and provides in- person
groups. assistance afthe Planning counter. As described previously, the City

also offers pre- application meetings to tlevelopers to ensure the

development community understands the City' s requirements and to
facilitate housing applications. The City is currently updating its
outreach list and supporting materials to ensure that the annual
outreach is meaningful and offers up- to- date information on the City' s
housing sites and opportunities.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete:   Continue:  This program ensures

information is available regarding the City' s housing programs.

Program 6a:     Promote energy efficient land use Result/ Evaluation:  The Ciry encourages energy- efficiency in all
planning by incorporating energy conservation as a major activities, including land use planning. The City requires projects to
criterion for future decision making. This shall include comply with CalGreen and encourages projects to exceed CalGreen
innovative site designs and orientation techniques, which requirements.  CalGreen requirements for single family and
incorporate passive and active solar designs and natural multifamily housing are discussed in Chapter 5, Energy Conservation.
cooling techniques.

In 2018, the Cit  ' oined the California Munici al Finance Authori

20

458



2019 HOUSING ELENIENT BACKGROUND REPORT

P ogram .  :.    Aeco. plishments: .

CMFA) joint powers authority to provide a streamlined approach
through the Open PropertyAssessment Clean Energy( PACE) program
to funding clean- energy improvementsto commercial and residential
projects. In . 2016 and 2017, the City in multiple clean energy
financing programs, including GSCDA Open PACE, Figtree PACE, and
Golden State Finance Authority. The CMFA program ensures that
property owners can apply for financing are available for residential
and commercial property owners to make clean- energy and energy-
efficient improvements,   including renewable energy,  water

conservation, and electric vehicle charging. Property owners who
participate in the CMFA Open PACE program can defer the upfront

costs of the improvements and repay the loans through a voluntary
contractual assessment that is collected together with the property
taxes. The loan is attached to the property, which reflects the benefits
ofthe improvementsto the future owners ofthe property.

Continue/ Modify/Delete:   Continue:  This program ensures

information is available regarding the City' s housing programs.

Pr gram bb:    Encourage pre- application meetings to Result/ Evaluation: The City encourages pre- application meetings
addresssite layoutand design priorto anyformal submittal as discussed under Program 2a. All projects are r.equired to comply
that is to be considered by the Planning Commission with CalGreen, which includes mandatory standards for energy-
and/ or City Council. The City shall continue to rely on efficiency and water conservation and the approach to compliance
project input from all departments to assess design and with these standards can be discussed atthe pre-application meeting.
layout for all residential projects.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program encourages
addressing energy- efficient design as part of the pre- application
process.

Program 6c:     Continue to provide the community Result/ Evaluation: The City provides information on methods to
energy conservation information, including information on conserve energy, including CalGreen requirements and opportunities
programs available to fund energy conservation to retrofit existing properties through the Open PACE program at City
improvements and information on CalGreen standards,   Hall and via the City' s website.
available at City Hall and on the City' s website.

Continue/ Mlodify/ Delete: Continue: This program encourages
energy- efficiency.

Prograrn bd:     Encourage new residential Result/Evaluation: The City provides information on methods to
development or significant rehabilitation projects to meet conserve energy, including CalGreen requirements and opportunities
or exceed CalGreen Tier 1 and/ or to achieve LEED to retrofit existing properties through the Open PACE program at City
certification.    Hall and is developing information forthe City' s website to encourage

green and energy- efficient development. Subdivisions at River
Islands have incorporated water- conservation measures, energy-
efficient lighting and appliances, and solar and electric vehicle
charging options. The City works with each developer to ensure that
optional energy-saving measures are implemented to the extent
appropriate and feasible, while recognizing thatthese initial costs are
passed on to the homebuyer or renter and can result in an increase in

monthly housing costs while also providing cost-savings in energy
and wafer costs.

Continue/ Modify/ Delete: Continue: This program encourages
energy- efficiency.

21

459



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

3:     Housing Needs Assessment      

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

The purpose of the Housing Needs Assessment is to deseribe housing, economic, and demographic conditions in
Lathrop, assess the demand for housing for households at all income levels, and document the tlemand for housing to
serve various special needs populations. The Housing Needs Assessment also addresses whether assisted housing
projects are at- risk of converting to market rate projects. The Housing Needs Assessment is intended to assist Lathrop in
developing housing goals and formulating policies and programs that address local housing needs.

Several sources of data were used to describe existing demographic and housing conditions, including the following:

Data from the 2000 and 2010 U. S. Census, 2103- 2017 U. S. Census American Community Survey ( ACS),
California Department of Finance ( DOF), California Employee Development Department ( EDD), and U. S.

Department of Housing and Urban Development ( HUD) is included to provide information on population,
household, housing, income, employment, and other demographic characteristics.

Regional information from the San Joaquin Fair Housing and Equity Assessment( California Coalition for Rural
Housing, 2014).

Other sources of economic data such as information from the website rental listings; multiple listing service,
and other published data are used where current Census, ACS, DOF, HUD, and otherstandard data sources do
not provide relevant data.

Interviews with key agencies and organizations were conducted to obtain information on housing needs and,
in particular, needs of populations with special housing needs.

POPULATION TRENDS AND CHARACTERISTICS

Table 3 shows population growth for Lathrop and San Joaquin County from 1990 through 2019. According to data
prepared by the California DOF, the population of Lathrop in 2019 was 24, 936 persons, an increase of approximately
38% since 2010. During# he previous decade( 2000 to 2010), the City' s population increased 81. 2°/ a to total 18, 023 in
2010. Lathrop' s growth has outpaced Countywide growth, with San Joaquin County experienced significantly lower
population growth rates during both the 2000 to 2010 and 2010 to 2019 periods, as shown in Table 3. The City' s
population is anticipated to increase to approximately 85, 292 persons upon buildout of lands within the City limits.

TABLE 3 POPULATION GROWTH

1948 : ..     : 2,000 . :.     _ 2014  _;-   ,. 2 1`9   '
t 

S        

Lathrop

Population 6, 841 10, 445 18, 023 24, 936

Percent Change 52. 7% 81. 2% 38. 4%

AnnualPercentChange 5. 3%  8. 1%   4. 7%

5an Joaquin' County
Population 480, 628 563, 598 685, 306 723, 761

Percent Change 17, 3% 21. 6%  5. 6%

Annual PercentChange 1. 7%  2. 1%   0. 6%

SOURCE: U.S. CENSUS, 1990, ZOOO, AND 2010; DOF, 2019       

22

460



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Table 4 compares the growth rate of Lathrop to other cities in San Joaquin County from 2000 to 2019. While Stockton       
had the greatest numeric change in population ( 72, 639 persons), Lathrop had the largest percentage change in
population( 138. 7%).

TABLE 4: POPULATION TRENDS- NEIGHBORING. JURISDICTIONS

Ju risdiction 2040   -       2019 Change     °/ a Change.     

Escalon 5, 963 7, 765 1, 802 30. 2%

Lathrop 10, 445 24, 936 14, 490 138. 7%

Lodi 57, 011 68, 272 11, 261 19. 8%

Manteca 49, 255 83, 781 34, 526 70. 1%    

Ripon 10, 158 16, 613 6, 455 63. 5°/ a

Stockton 243, 771 316, 410 72, 639 29. 8%

Tracy 56, 929  '       92, 800 35, 871 63. 0%

SOURCE: US CENSUS, 2000; DOF,2019

Changes in the age groups can indicate future housing needs. Table 5 compares age group sizes in 2000 and 2017 for
Lathrop. Children under fifteen comprise 24. 3% of the City` s population, teens and young adults( 15 to 24) represent
13. 7%, and adults in family-forming age groups( 25- 44) comprise 29. 4%. Adults aged 45 to 64 represent 24. 2% of

the population and seniors( 65 and over) comprise 8. 5°/ o. In 2017, the median age in Lathrop ( 33. 0 years) is slightly
lower than that of San Joaquin County, 33. 9 years, and 3 years less than the Statewide median age of 36. 1 years. The
median age of City residents has increased from the 2010 median age of 30. 1 years.

TAs E 5: POPULATION BY AGE

Ag'e
2017   .

Number Percent

Under 5 Years 1, 487 7. 1%

5 to 9 1, 954 9. 3%

10 to 14 1, 663 7. 9%

15 to 19 1, 588 7. 5%

20 to 24 1, 315 6. 2%

25 to 34 3, 126 14. 9%

3S to 44 3, 044 14. 5%

45 to 54 2, 615 12. 4°/a

55 to 64 2, 478 11. 8%

65 to 74 1, 149 5. 5%

75 to 84 511 2. 4%

85 and Over 120 0. 6%

TOTAL 21, 050 100%
OURCE: US CENSUs, 2013- 2017ACS

Table b shows the ethnic composition of Lathrop' s population. The slight majority of the City' s population are White
44. 9%). The next largest racial group is Asian( 26%), followed by' other race'( 12. 9%),' two or more races'( 9. 1%), Black

and African American( 6. 4°/o), and American Indian and Alaskan Native and Native Hawaiian and Pacific Islander( 0. 4%).
Just overtwo- fifths ofthe population( 40. 7%) is of Hispanic origin.

23

461



2019 HOUSiNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TABLE 6: RACEAND ETHNICITY

i' Race/ EtnhTicy' ,  . Nu be Percen 
White 9, 449 44. 9%

Black and African American 1, 339 6. 4%

American Indian and Alaskan Native 90 0. 4%     

Asian 5, 463 26%

Native Hawaiian and Pacifit Islander 75 0. 4%

Some Other Race 2, 720 12. 9%

Two or More Races 1, 914 9. 1%

TOTAL 21, 050 100%

Hispanic Origin( of any race).    8, 560 40. 7%      _      

SOURCE: US CENSUSACS, 2013-2017

EMPLOYMENT CHARACTERISTICS

One ofthe factors that can contribute to an increase in demand for housing is expansion of the employment base. Table
7 shows the employment and unemployment rates for persons 16 years and older that were in the Iabor force in 2000
and 2017. The number of employed. residents has more than tripled since 2000, increasing from 4, 622 in 2000 to
15, 624 in 2017. In 2017, ACS data indicated that the unemployment rate in Lathrop :was approximately 8. 9%, an

increasefrom7. 2% in 2000. Accordingtothe laborreportdatacompiled bytheCalifornia EDD, Lathrop' saverageanniaal
unemployment rate in 2018 was estimated at 5. 2%, while San Joaquin County' s rate was 6. 0%, and California' s was

4. 2°/ a.

TABLE:. IOB GROIMH AND EMPLOYMENT$ TATUS
r

2040 2097r        . a'-      

4
x     

i

r"      ; Nu,m:ber 
y Pe,rten t.,:  - Num,ber    y,_, Pe„ecent a

Total Persons in Labor Force 4, 622 100°/a 15, 624 100%

Employed 4, 291 92. 8% 14, 233 91. 1%

Unem lo ed 331 7. 2%   1, 391 8. 9%

SOURCE: USCENSUs, 2000; USCENSUSACS, 2013-20I7

Industry and Occupation
The 2013= 2017 ACS data identified 8, 813 employed persons in the Lathrop labor_force.  Table 8 shows 2017

employmentbyindustryfortheCityandSanJoaquin County. OfLathrop' semployed residents, the" Educational, Health
and Social Services" industry employed the most people at 17. 5%. The second largest employment sector was the

Professional, scientific, and management, and administrative and waste management services" industry, which had
13. 8% of fhe tofal employed persons in Lathrop. The top employment category in 5an Joaquin County was also the
Educational, Health and Social Services" industry at 20. 6% with" Refail Trade" at 12% asthe second largest employment

industry. The City' s workforce holds a variety of types of jobs as shown in Table 9, with the largestsector( 24. 4%) working

in management, business, science, and arts occupations, followed by 22. 7% in the production, transportation, and

material moving occupations.

TABLE 8: OBS BY INDUSTRY( ZO17 .

Ind ustry N u rnb. r      ' P e, n,   .

AgriNlture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining 198 2. 2%

Construction 640 7. 3%

Manufacturing 965 10. 9%

Wholesale trade 169 1. 9%

Retail trade 1, 031 11. 7%

24

462



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

y

l . , v .` 1`"'
r+°.-3..M'+' . 9_u     .

n F       C"'` -'. C+'   4` s3'" L. O Y.`'£'     X o-   '
m5' i.qF" 2'  '.` h

i4''

S
A'0.  '

f    ,,     Ild:llSt(ay_   ' °„ rx,t a x s UITI b@FG   =.  Percent;;

Transportation, warehousing, and utilities 986 11. 2%

Information, fi:nance, insurance, real estate, rental and leasing 523 5: 8%

Professional; scientific, management, administration 1, 215 13. 8%

Educational, health and social services 1, 439 17. 5%

Arts, entertainment, recreation, and services 819 9. 3%

Other services 393 4. 5%

Public administration 435 4. 9%

TOTAL- ---- 8, 813---------- 100%----

SOURCE: US CENSUs, 2013-2017ACS

TABLE 9: . JOBS BY OCCUPATION( ZO1  .

Num, er Percent" uv F,
vManagement, business, science, and arts occupations 2, 153 24: 4%

Service occupations 1, 590 18. 0%

Sales and office occupations 1, 934 21. 9%

Natural resources, construction, and maintenance occupations 1, 133 12. 9%

Production, trans ortation, and material movin 2, 003. 22: 7%

SOURCE: USCENSUs, 2013- 2017ACS

Travel to Work

Just over half of Lathrop residents, 50. 4%; fravelled less than 30 minutes to work. Over 32. 5% of esidents drive more

than 60 minutes to work. Most Lathrop workers, 76. 7%, drive alone to work and 15. 3% carpool. Table 10 itlentifies

travel time to work and Table 11 identifies commute methods for Lathrop workers in 2017.

TABLE' IO: TRAVELTIMETOWORK( ZO' I    TABLE' I: COMMUTEMETHOD( 2017
e^ h s      a       xa s. -,, r   +     S$ 2„: C '     zM  .

s tra.'. s-  a   ya[ R r3'; Y y;+    ^# e r r

rx.."
N` rYw''   . 

3`.' y„,*.'"
nr

B 
4.
c+'}^ a&`-  u'" E:  '     k.4 z

y

y. P" 1̀.!

l. i; 
p f '

1   
ddm °"+ n  > -

t,      z R,  s    €   k:      r - x. t 3; p" y,         i

i" ea?

Numbe r d Percen# ;     N,u mb er Percent
5. x, k'., r.. ..,.:  . r'. x       .

r,:. J.„ ,. s.r,.,  t:.: tn   ..    s: r  ., a'?' z   . 3^-:',.    '

Less than 10 minutes.        462       5. 7%  Drive Alone 6, 499 76J%

10- 19 minutes 2, 286 28. 2% Carpooled 1, 296 15. 3%

20- 29 minu# es 1, 341 16. 5% PublicTransportation 15S 1. 9%

30- 44 minutes 761 9. 4%  Walk 50 0. 6%

45- 59 minutes 628 7. 7%  Other 102 1. 2%

60+ minutes 2, 638 32. 5% Work at Home 356 4. 2%

Souece: US CEmsus, 2013- 2017ACS Souacsr USCsNsus, 2013-2017ACS

25

463



O19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

EXISTIIVG HOUSIIVG NEEDS

Housing Trends

Table 12 identifies population, housing, and household characteristics in Lathrop from 2005 througli_2019. During th,e
2005-2019 timeframe, the average rate of increase in population was 4. 5%, compared with a 5. 2% increase in housing
units and a 0. 2percent increase in pers.ons per household. As shown, housing production has kept pace with population
growth, with the total increase in housing units occurring at a greater average rate tfian the increase in population and
households. At buildout( based on the existing City limits), the City is anticipated to have approximately 85, 292 persons
and 23, 356 housing units( City of Lathrop Municipal Services Review and Sphere of Influence Plan, 2016).      ;

TABLE 12: POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLD TRENDS
r

riir  . s` z     a g      g-  s g     ;„ r x, 3ru     '.     na

f"'   Average Annua,l, `
2U0 5 201 0 2A1`

9J      
Growth Ra te,:   

2005 9
n.    s

cr:^

y;':

x . 

w  ,-' E.  . 81 
k      r}'" 4  '° 4x}   4+, .-,-' sc''`,"^ et  k^ s'.

u h ... s_

Population 12, 81; 3 , 18, 023 24, 936 4. 5°/a

Total Housing U. nits 3, 577 5, 261 6, 895 5. 2%

Households 3, 467 4, 782 6, 160 4. 2%

Household Population 12, 803 18, 011 24, 924 4. 5%

Group Quarters Population 10 12 12 2. 2%

Persons Per Household 3. 69 3. 77 4. 05 0. 2%

SOURCE: STATEOFCALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENTOFFINANCE, 2O09, 2019.

The U. S. Census divides hbuseholds into categories based on theircomposition. Family households arethosethat consist
of two or more related persons living together. Non- family households include persons who live alone or in groups
composed of unrelated individuals. As shown in Table 13, Lathrop primarily has married couple families ( 62. 9%),
followed by female householders( 14. 7%) and non- family households( 13. 6%).

TABLE' I 3: HOUSEHOLD TYPE( ZO1

Cat'egor,ya  .   n£   4   Num'ber Percent'
b      ..,   r .    

Married Couple Family 3, 447 62. 9%

Male Householder, No Wife Present 485 8. 8%

Female Householder, No Husband
g07 14. 7%a

Present

Non- family Household 744 13. 6%
SOURCE:" US CENSUs, 2013-2017ACS

Table 14 shows the rate of home ownership iri Lathrop was nearly 78. 5% in 2000. While there has not been an increase
in multifamily housing, the ownership rate has decreased to 70. 1% in 2017, with a commensurate increase in enters

to from 21. 5% to 29. 9°/a.

TAB E 14: HOUSEHOLDS BYTENURE

R'=:, in"   1  .' Zooa  '      

M urnber Percent Nu mber Percent

Owner 1, 512 78. 5% 3, 844 70. 1°/ a

Rental 415 21. 5% 1, 639 29: 9%

SOURCer U$ CENSUSf1C$, 2013- 2017

26

464



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Household Income

From 2000 to 2017, the median household income increased by 24. 0% to$ 72, 094 and the per capita income increased
bv almost 31. 9% to $ 21, 710.  From 2010 to 2017, there was an increase in both median per capita and median
household incomes. Table 14 identifies the per capita and median household income.

TABLE' I5: MEDIAN HOUSEHOLDAND PER CAPITA INCOME    

2000     2010   `        2017 ;: , . <

Medien Household Income 55, 037 68, 226 72, 094

Per Capita Income 16, 032 21, 139 21, 710

SOURCE: US CENSUS, 2000; US CENsus, 2006- 2010 ACS,• US Csrvsus, 2013- 2017ACS

In 2017, the majority ( 52. 6%) of Lathrop' s households earned in excess of $ 50, 000 per year.  The incidence of

households earninq less than $ 35, 000 per year was higher amonq owner households( 11. 7%) than renter households

9. 2%). Table 14 identifies household income by tenure. As shown in Table 1 b, the average income of owner households
is almost$ 20, 000 more than renter households.

TABLE' I G: HOUSEHOLD INCOME FOR ALL HOUSEHOLDS AND BY TENURE 2017

All Households Owner Households Renter Households

1 come,          • Number  = Peicent    ` Nu m ber  :  , Percent".,,  : Numb er. _ ;. P,ercen°t, 

Less than $ 5, 000 146 2J%    97 1. 8%    49 0. 9%

5, 000 to$ 9, 999 54 1. 0%    14 0. 3°/a 40 0. 7%

10, 000 to$ 14, 999 195 3. 6%   129 2. 4%    66 1. 2%

15, 000 to$ 19, 999 141 2. 6%    65 1. 2%    76 1. 4%

20, 000 to$ 24, 999 227 4. 1%   105 1. 9°/a 122 2. 2%

25, 000 to$ 34, 999 384 7. 0%   230 4. 2%   154 2. 8%

35, 000 to$ 49, 999 465 8. 5%   322 5. 9%   143 2. 6%

50, 000 to$ 74, 999 1259 23. 0%   866 15. 8%   393 7. 2%

75, 000 to$ 99, 999 979 17. 9%   673 12. 3%   306 5. 6°/a

100, 000 to$ 149, 999 1173 21. 4%   933 17. 0%   240 4. 4%

150, 000 or more 460 8. 4%   410 7. 5%    50 0. 9%

Median Household------  ----------
72, 094 ----------  ----------$ 78, 528 ---------- ---------$ 59, 725--------

Income

SOU2CE: USCENSUs, 2013- 2017ACS

Table 17 shows the distribution of household incomes for Lathrop in 2017 compared to 2000. The median income
increased by 31. 0% from $ 55, 037 ( 2000) to $ 72, 094( 2017). The income groups that experienced the most growth

were at the opposite ends of the spectrum with households earning $ 150, 000 or more increasing by 1, 079. 5%,
100, 000 to$ 149, 999 increasing by 399. 1%, and households earning less than $ 10, 000 increasing by 159. 7%. The

increase in the upper income groups is attributed largely to households living in expensive communities or regions,
such as the Bay Area, moving to Lathrop where they can enjoy a comfortable home that is affordable relative to the
community they relocated from and a high quality of life.

27

465



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT        

TABLE 17: HOUSEHOLD I NCOME DISTRIBUTION

200U .  : y    .: ' '      
2U17   

s'' A

Fercent .   ,:

House hods    Percent' H:oueholds     `; Perecnt Chan e       "
x .:, a 9     ',.a....._   4

Less than $ 10, 000 77 2J%    200 3. 6%      159. 7%      

10, 000to$ 14, 999 117 4. 1%    195 3. 6%      66. 7%

15, 000 to $ 24, 999 272 9: 6%    368 6: 7%       35. 3%  .   

25, 000 to $ 34, 999 271 9. 5°/a 384 7. 0% .    41. 7%

35, 000 to$ 49, 999 510 17. 9%   292 5. 3%      42. 7%       

50, 000 to$ 74, 999 813       -  28: 6%  1, 259 23. 0%      54. 9% 

75, 000 to $ 99, 999 510 17. 9%   979 17. 9%      92. 0%

100, 000 to $ 149, 999 235 8. 3%   1, 173 21: 4%     399. 1%

150, 000 or more 39 1. 4%    460.   8. 4%     1, 079. 5%

Median Household Income 55, 037 . .      72, 094 31. 0%  

SOURCE: U. S. CENSUS BUREAU, 2000; US CEmsus, 2013= 2017ACS

Poverty Levels
The 2013- 2017 ACS data indicates that 568( 10. 9%) of all Lathrop families and 2, 634 individuals( 12. 6%, had incomes

at or below the poverty level. Approximately 13. 6% of all San Joaquin County families were classified at or below the
poverty level in 2017. While the San Joaquin Fair Housing and Equity Assessment ( California Coalifion for Rural
Housing, 2014) does not provide data specific to Lathrop it does provide an overview of economic challenges in the 8-
county San Joaquin Valley region. The Assessment riotes that poverty rates are disparate between races and economic
indicators are particularly severe for non- White populations. In 2010, non- Hispanic Whites had a Countywide poverty
rate of 9. 0°/ a compared to 22. 1% for Hispanics/ Latinos, 22. 0% forAfrican Americans/ Blacks, and 15. 6% forAsians/ Pacific

Islanders.

Households by Income Group
Aspecial aggregation of 2011- 2015 ACS data performed by HUD provides a breakdown of households by income group
by tenure, as shown in Table 16. The number of households in Extremely Low, Very Low, Low, and Moderate/ Above
Moderate income groups is shown in Table 18. The majority of households( 56%) are above median income. The HUD

CHAS data indicatesthe extremely low:income group represents 8: 4% of households and a higher proportion are renters
220) than owners ( 205).  The very low income group represents 9. 4%. of households and the low income group

represents 13. 6% of households.   The smalf amount`of extremely low and very low income households in the City is
likely due to the limited housing opportunities forthe lower income groups in the City, including a lack of housing with

restricted affordable rents. The City' s RHNA( see Table 32) identifies the City' s share of regional housing needs of the
extremely low, very low, and low income householtls, as well as for motlerate and above motlerate income households.
As shown in Table 16, there is a larger proportion of renters in the extremely low, very low, and low income groups, while
there is a larger rate of moderate and above moderate income groups in owner households.

TaB e 18: HOUSEHOLDS BY INCOME. GROUP( ZO' I S

Total Owner Renter
Income Group „  

House.holds P, rcen     Hous.eholds Percen:t Mouseholds  . Percentr ,

Extremely Low 425 8. 4%   205 5. 8°/a 220 14. 5%

Very Low 475 9: 4%   210 6. 0%   265 17. 5%

Low 685 13. 6%   470 1. 3%   215 14. 2%

Motlerate and Above Moderate. 3, 455 68. 6% 2, 640 74. 9%  815 53. 8°/a

TOTAL 5, 040 100%  3, 525 100%  1, 515 100%

SOURCE: HUD SPECIAL AGGREGATION OF US CENSUSACS 2OI I-201$ DATA

AVAILABLE: HTTPS: WWW. HUDUSER. GOV PORTAL DATASETS CP. HTML

28

466



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENTBACKGROUND: REPORT

Overpayment

As with most communities, the location of the home is one of the biggestfactors witli regards to price. Compared to the

restofthestate, housing in Lathrop isstill relativelyaffordable. However, housing is notaffordableforall income levels,
particularly the very- low and low- income households. 

As shown in Table 19, 80°/a of renters in Lathrop and 74%a of homeowners overpay for housing. The majority of renters
that overpay are in the lower income groups, with 80% in the extremely low income group and 5Z% in the very low
income group severely overpaying for housing( over 50% oftheir monthly income), compared to 54% of extremely low
income owners and 55% of very low income owners severely overpaying. While overpayment is more predominate
among lower income renter households, overpayment is an issue for both renter and owner households, with 43°/a of

all homeowners and 46% of all renters in Lathrop overpaying. More than three-quarters of all very low, low, and
moderate income households overpay for housing:

TABLE' I9: HOUSEHOLDS: BYINCOMEEEVELANDOVERPAYMENT ZO S      "
v   .. rt 5;:       *` r;  f ;     a ...   "

k°,>;. r s.  
se '.     

s,  ' 

x '.:!', v'      
k .

aH ousehold Overpymen  Po Renters  ,  ' Owners    Total
In   / aC tr,- 

Y,    -     w.  .  come a egory;lr E o

n

ExtremelyLowlncome_ Househ` olds" j 2;20 .  
j        "  

205  ,  
4 

42Y5             100%0 ,  . '•

With Cost Burden 30%0- 50%.     010%    50/ 24%       50 . 12%

With: CostBurtlen > 50%      175/ 80%  110/ 54%     285 67%

Very Low Inco, me Households.     j  ,     265 -       '       210  ;  .', ,       475    : . , 1`_       100%

With Cost Burden 30%- 50%    75/ 28%   55/ 26%       80 17%

With Cost Burden > 50%     150/ 57%  115/ 55%     365 77%

w
Low: fncome Househol, ds 215   :,:,:   :  .  _ 470 __ .;::      , 685      ;;;    . . 1, 00%

With CostBurden 30%- 50%    125/ 58%  120/ 262%     245 36%

With Cost Burden > 50%      40/ 19%  
210/ 45%     

250 36°/a

yy'^ 0 ' ". 1Y^`.•,':? s`+wn^''' 6  ." h'.   a , t eu{"    : j" ffi   *'.;...       ,,., 9, w i ta '+   e ,. vaa n t+ r, 5.   4' m: s 
aYP    k.k' ai

Total Extreme y Lowf Uery L Ow; a nd. =  ."  : t 77% of low;er"k 

aw lncome Househo Pay—n5eg.  ,  - 565/ 80%0     660/' 74%0     ? 1, 2¢25     ,  c>nome,
j'' y ' y       ,.  µ a  ' m    7. d y  p"

Ir.  -      /1„ r,"Ip Y,/ 7,(
3

P i T6 5c idh 
oO/ }

t `"

v Ls7  (
d'`

ri       
19°   .. S+ e  F l %

Yf     4WN 4 I1' J'

JY 5,"•  .:.. i„ r° 4 r;.., a       y',..,... F    n s^ k. a .<. fi a. ,      

x.
f

z       ,Moderate and, Above- Motlerate lncome     ' g15   :    ,     : 2,
640

r            3, 455   `     . 
100%- Households    :' .     . j

l,   With Cost Burden 30%- 50%    115/ 14%  690/ 32%     690

20%With Cost Burden > 50%       10/ 1%    165/ 6%      175

5%TotalHou's,
eholds  

9;    
a..      . 1, 515   ._.,  _   3

25`    ..-  ...    
pa..    _5-, 040 `   1

00%With Cost Burtlen 30%- 50%315/ 27%  915/ 26%    1, 020

20%With Cost Burden > 50°/ a 375/ 25% 600/ 17%    1, 074

21%NOTE: DATA IS ROUNDED TO TNE NEAREST

S.SOURCE: HUD,201S SPEClALAGGREGATIONOF2011-

201SACSDATA

467



O 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS

Table 20 identifies the types of housing units in Lathrop in 2019. The table summarizes total housing stock according
to the type of structure; total occupied units; and the vacancy rate. As shown in the table, the majority of housing in
Lathrop is single- family detached housing, which accounted for 91. 3% of units in 2019. Mobile homes represent 5. 5%

of the housing stock.  Multifamily units represent 1. 6% of the housing stock, with duplex through fourplex units
accounting for less than 1% and multifamily developments with five or more units accounting for 1. 0%. Single family
attached homes represent 1. 6% of housing units.

TABLE ZO: HOUSING STOCK BY TYPE AND VACANCY( 2019  

Single, Family      ;     Nultifar ily    '     Mobile .'
Total =  

Detached   Attached ''   2- 4      5:+ Units-   Homes  ' 
Oeeupied    Vaca t '

Units 6, 895 6, 296 108 42 71 378 6, 160 738

Percent 100%       91. 3% 1. 6% 0. 6% 1. 0°/a 5. 5°/ a 89. 3%       10. 7%

SOURCE: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE DOF, 2019.

Vacancy Rate
Table 20 also shows the number and percentage of occupied units and the percentage of vacant units. It is important to

note that these counts include all vacant units, including those units that are newly constructed but not yet occupied.
Lathrop is shown as relatively steady vacancy rate over the last five years, at 10. 7% in 2017 compared to 9. 1% in 2010.

The 2017 ACS data indicates that there were 235 vacant units in 2017( 4. 1%). As shown in Table 21, of the total vacant

units in 2017, none were for rent, 74 were for sale, 52 were rented or sold but not yet occupied, 81 were classified as

othervacant, and 28 were forseasonal, recreational, or migratory worker use. According to DOF data, the overall vacancy
rate in Lathrop in 2019 was 10. 7%. Another 11. 9% are for seasonal, recreational, or occasional use and 34. 5% are other

types ofvacant units.

It is noted that the vacancy rate reported by DOF over the past several years is much higher than the vacancy rate
identified by the ACS data, with DOF- reported vacancy rates increasing from 8. 6% in 2015 to 10. 7% in 2019. This is

likely due to the increase in residential construction and a high number of residential homes that are recently
constructed and either sold or for sale, but not yet occupied.

TABLE 21: VACANCY BYTYPE

Vacanc Ty:pe Number Percent F;   

For rent 0 0. 0°/a

Rented or sold, not occupied 52 22. 1%

For sale only 74 31. 5%

For seasonal, recreational, or
28 11. 9°/o

occasional use

For migrantworkers 0 0. 0%

Other vacant 81 34. 5%

TOTAL 235 100%

SouecE: USCENsus, 2013-2017ACS

I ousing Conditions

The U. S. Census provides only limited data that can be used to infer the condition of Lathrop' s housing stock. In most
cases, the age of a community' s housing stock is a good indicator of the condition of the housing stock. The 2013- 2017
ACS data indicates that most of the housing in the City is less than 50 years old; 92. 9% of units have been built in 1970

or later. Due to the relatively young age of the City' s housing stock, overall housing conditions are good. While units
built after 1970 may require new roofs and windows, it is anticipated that most units after 1970 would not need
significant rehabilitation to the structure, foundation, electrical, and plumbing systems. Units built prior to 1970 may

30

468



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

require aesthetic and maintenance repairs including roof, window, and paint improvements and some units in this age
range may also require significant upgratles to structural, roof, plumbing, and other systems.

When examining a housing stockto figure out what condition it is in, there are certain factors thatthe Census considers.
For example, older units may not have plumbing that is fully funetional or the plumbing might be substandard. Table
22 indicates that all but 17 cental units had complete plumbing facilities in 2017.    -      _      

TABLE 22: HOUSING STOCK CONDITIONS(' ZO1
Y

O,wner      Rente;_   ,   Tbta
e5t'  ,    

r n,"
s+ " v"

I       .    .i

Number    P rcent Nmb,er   Per cenf Number Percnt
M,, x Y ea"rStructure Built7,     ;       ,_      s     .    ._ 

2014 or later 207 5. 4/ 0 32 2. 0% 239 4: 4%

2010 to 2013. 207 5. 9%  59 3. 6% 286 5. 2%

2000 to 2009 227 37. 9% 599 3b: 5%       2055 37. 5%

1999 to 1999       1, 456 20. 9°/a 305 18. 6%  -     1110 20. 2%

1980 to 1989 805 13. 3% 252 15. 4% 764 13: 9%

1970 to 1979 512 9. 5% 225 13. 7% 589 10. 7%

1960 to 1969 364 3. 0%  63 3. 8% 179 3. 3%

1950 ta 1959 116 2. 1%  44 2. 7% 126 2. 3%

1940 to 1949 82 1. 0%  29 1. 8%  66 1. 2%

1939 or earlier 37 1. 0%  31 1. 9%  69 1. 3%

TOTAL 3, 844 100% 1, 639 100%       5, 483.       100°/a
a ,  .    ,,.  .   

I°umbin' Faciiities,  ,°`;.  .,;,       ,`t       

Units Witfi Corriplete Plum.bing
3, 844 100%       1, 622 100%       5, 483 100%

Facilities

Units Lacking Complete Plumbing 0 17 1. 0%  17 0. 3%
Facilities   _

SouncE: US Csnrsus, 2013-2017ACS

2015 Housing Conditions

The City' s planning staff has indicated that rehabilitation is needed in the older neighborhoods. As part of the 2015
Housing Element Update, a review of housing conditions was performed in December 2015 that focused on the
condition ofthe roof, siding, windows, and doors; most foundations and electrical systems were not significantly visible
from the street and thus were not considered in the review. While the review conside[ ed housing conditions Citywide,
the survey intentionallyfocused on older neighborhoods east of I- 5 that were likely to have some units in need of repair.
The results of the 2015 survey indicated that the majority of the City' s housing stock( 392 units surveyed, 87%) are in

good or fair condition and the repairs needed are primarily aesthetic.

Approximately 8%a of the units surveyed ( 35 units) needed at least one major improvement( roof replaced, windows
replaced, siding replaced, etc). The remaining 22 units( 5%) need substantial rehabilitation of the majority of the unit
and some of these units may need to be demolished.  It was not possible from the windshield survey to determine
whether any entire housing unit should be demolished, or if there is a portion of the units in need of significant repair
that remains structurally sound.

By applying the results ofthe 2015 survey to the City' s housing stockthat was 6uilt priorto 1990( 2, 496 units); it can be
estimated that approximately 200 units in the City are in need of rnajor repair and 125 units need substantiaf repairs or
demolition.

Results from the 2015 survey will be incorporated with findings from the Building and Code Enforcement Divisions to
target homes that may benefit the most from the use of CDBG and other potential funds for housing rehabilitat' ion, as
described in Housing Plan Program.

31

469



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TABLE 2$: LATHROP HOUSING$ TOCK CONDITIONS, 2015 ..... "           

S g leFamly.      , Iti a
ily  

Moblie Ffomes '   ;, ` TQTAL  ,;

Condition       , Number   Percent4 Num ber, r P ercent N,umber, m, Percent Nuyrnber; P er.ce nt;

GoodlFair 327 93%      - 22       . 42%       . 43_-_      96% 392      . 8.7%

Needs Major

Improvement 22 6%  11 21°/ a 2 4% 35 8%      

Needs Substantial ',

Improvements 2 1% 20       - 38%  0 0%  22 5% 

TOTAL 352     .  100% 53 100% 45 100%       449 100%   

SOURCE: DE NOVO SURVEY, 201 S

Overcrowding

Typically, a housing unit is considered overcrowded ifthere is more than one person per room and severely overcrowded
if there are more than 1. 5 persons per room. Table 24 summarizes overcrouvding data for Lathrop. It should be noted
that kitchenettes, strip or Pullman kitchens, bathrooms, porches, balconies, foyers, halis, half- rooms; utility rooms,
unfinished attics, basements, or other space for storage are not defined as rooms for Census purposes.

Overcrowded households are usually a reflection of the lack of affordable housing available. Households that cannot
afford housing units suitably sized for their families are often forced to live in housing that is too small for their needs,
which may result in poor physical condition ofthe dwelling unit. In 2017, 399 housing units( 7. 3% ofthe total occupied

units) were overcrowded, which represents 5. 5% of owner units and 11. 5% of renter unifs.

TABLE 24: OVERCROWDING BYTENURE( ZO17
x x r

Ow,n er.      -  Renter Tio al       
P ersons per Room .-  .   --,       r-,  

tY;:., IVumber_.,=, Per,cent Nu m, rr_    - ercent  Number`    Percent
9.: Y tu , fi.     ..', k5.  ..}., R.".,,. J-. s..... • ,...   ., 1+;..

1. 00 or less 3, 633 94. 5%a 1, 451 88. 5% 5, 084        92J%

1. 01 to 1. 50 173 4. 5%  138 8. 4%  311 5. 7%

1. 51 or more 38 1. 0%   50 3. 1%   88 1. 6%

TOTAL 3, 844 100% 1, 639 100% 5, 483 100%

Overcrowded 211 5. 5%  188 11. 5% 399 7. 3%

SOURCE: USCENSUs, 2O13= 2017ACS

As shown in Table 25, the average household size in Lathrop was 3. 83 persons, which is a slight increase from the
average household size of 3. 77 persons in 2010. Table 25 shows Lathrop' s household sizes for owner, renter, and alf
households. The average household size is higher for renters( 4. 20 persons). Owner households have an average size

of 3. 68 persons, with the majority of owner and renter households having three to five persons( 52%o for owners, 54%
for renters). Approximately 36. 3% of owner households and 30. 7% of renter households are two persons or less in size.

Table 26 identifies bedrooms by tenure. While renter households are generally larger than owner households, the
proportion of large( 4 or more bedroom homes) is higher for owner households.

32

470



ZO19 HOl1SING ELEMENT BACKGROUND' REPORT

TABLE 25: HOUSEHOLD SIZE BY TENURE( Z01    ._.,

4 `

d %{'

ed :{   
3 k ' Y     ! .       

k      YYIIGI£..  R
fb +

YS. t ., R III rIy  t  .  3u fi9 m
NN{{ ' ti. . J YL    * d Y y      

Y  <  
Householtl NSize (,  

F IVum erE_, a , erCent  '   , Nu""m ber f,, Percent,     Numbe       Percerit`. 5   -
r    . . .. 

1- person 367 9. 5%   133 8. 1%   500 9. 1°/ a

2- person 1, 030 26. 8%  371 22. 6%  ;       1, 401 25. 6%

3- person 585 15. 2%0 297 18. 1%  882 16. 1%

4- person 861 22. 4%  243 14. 8% 1_, 104 20. 1%

5- perso. n 552 14. 4%  346 21. 1%  898 16. 4%

6- person 258 6. 7%   130 7. 9°/a 388 7: 1% a

7- or- more- person 191 5%    119 7. 2%   310. . 5. 7% :

100%( 70: 1°/ a 100%0( 29. 9%
3, 844 1, 639 5, 483 100%

TOTAL       ------------ of total)--= =------- -------- of tot:al).-- =-----------------------------

Median Household Size 3. 68 4. 20.  3. 83

SouncE:. US CENsus, 2013- 2017ACS_

TABLE 2G: NUMBER OF BEDROOMS BYTENURE  -
s k P..   4 yi dt,`

t
i 7 Y S y

1

y.    '
k lr':  4 1 ;. f F Po-,.

r Owner R rrter f             
Total   

BedroomType
Number a Percent a I umber     Perc e,nt '   , N um,bet' , Perc n.

r;'  -a_  a.     .  ,.. . ,.,.,
2_.. o .  n_           

u  

No bedroom 42   . 1. 1.%0 8 D. 5°/a 50 0; 9°/a

1- bedroom 14 0. 4%  98_  6. 0% 112 2. 0%

2- bedroom 258 bJ%  274 16J% 532 9. 7%

3- bedroom 1, 556 40. 5% 612 37. 3% 2, 168. 39. 5%

4=bedroom 1, 485 38. 6% 427 26. 1°/ a 1, 912 34. 9%

5 or more bedroom 489 12J% 220 13. 4%  :.     709 12. 9%

TOTAL 3, 844 100% 1, 639 100% 5, 483       _ 100%

SOURCE: USCENSUs, 2013-2017ACS

For Sale Housing Market
Home sales in Lathrop have fluctuated significantly over TABLE2: HOMESFORSALE( AUGUST2O19

the past decade.  As shown in Chart 1, median housing        '     ; Pri e, ,,?     ,.: Homes Percent,;
prices in Lathrop have risen over the past seven years,.    $

500, 000 and more_     24 33 3%

increasing from approximate. ly $ 176, 200 in September    $ 400, 000-$ 499, 999 31 43. 1%
2009 to a high of$ 465, 000 in, March 2017.    

300, 000-$ 399, 999 11 15. 3%

In August 2019, there were 72 homes listed for sale, on    $
200, 000-$ 299, 999 0 0%

Zillow. com with prices ranging from $ 59, 000 to$ 720, 000    $
100, 000-$ 199, 999 0 0%

0  ,
in price. Of these homes, there were 66 detached single    $

0-$ 99, 99.9 b.   8. 3/ a

family homes, with sales prices beginning at$ 349, 900 and

SOURCE: ZILLOW.COM, ao19;

6 mobile homes ranging from to $ 59,000 to $ 95, 000. As
shown in Table 27, the majority of homes for sale are in the$ 400, 000 to$ 499, 999 and$ 500,000+ price ranges, with

15. 3% of homes in the $ 300,000 to $ 399, 999 range and b priced under:$.100, 000. Zillow itlentifies the July 2019
median sales prices as $ 421, 470.. While the median sales price is not affordable to lower and modera#e. income

households; the City' s home sales prices are relatively low compared to the Bay Area( Zillow reported a median home
sales price of$ 1, 040, 000 forthe San Jose metropolitan area in July 2019), which results in d.ema_nd forthe City' s higher
priced housin.g unifs; which offer more amenities and are significantlymore affordable than comparable homes in the
Bay Area.

33

471



2019 HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

CHART 1: MEDIAN HOME$ ALES PRICE TRENDS
Ssoo,000  --------------_   __...._ .__._..._._    _.......   _.-__  _:__.,_ __._--- -------     ___._   , __ - --___   ----, ..__

5aes, soo   ;

i

i$
450, 000 -----..___.--._._..___.._--'_....._ -----------   - 

418, 900
i

421, 700.

5400. 000 ---.__._ .:___. ._.------- ..  .__._.  .__._.:._...._.... _._ .__,._....___ ...__.____..- ----_  ......_._..._.. .. 5397. 500..

373, 400

i i

i.      
376,700

i i
5350.000 — -  -- --  

339, 200

328. 200..
i i

300;000 -.._.------.___-',-------._._._,.. _._,._._..,__.. $
29Y1, 700 -------/- 4$ 308, 900_ ...._....._.._____..._.._-.. _.._._____..._.._---,.-" 

I 5281, 000

286, 300

S

iSzs0, 000  ------------ ------.___ ...- -- - -----_  SzSo; soo  --------____._ ._._----_____-  _---.._.    _.._,.________—_  

j I
i

201, 10.0  .___.._ .._,----- 5196, 600 ..._._       
f$ 200, 000  __.,._....  .    

202. 400.__..._-------- --- -- ._  .._._._... .------ -'---  _..._-.   -__'--'

179, 500

i 5i7a zoo

5va zoo
Svs soo

SiZo, soo     `   
5150, 000  _.._-.-. ---.--     _..---.._ _  

f

I
i I
lSioo, 000 -----------__-----------..._ --------------- ------------------, ------_._._-------- i

Sso. oao _.---._____--______.___,_--__.___.__._._.. —.---------  _------  ---___..___  i
I

i

So  —   -.--   -,—_ r _,__,—•-- r  = -- --    - ,_,  ,  .    .   — -,- -  , _
r----  -  -    -

r- -   -----  ;

3 Of O O O O O .- i - 1 .- i .-- N N N N M M HI Hl V V C  u1 ut vl ul O tD cD D h  I 1 00 00 W 00 01 Ol 1
O O .- 1 .- 1 .- 1 '- I r1 .- i .- I rf fi - I rl e- 1 .- f .- 1 '- I '- 1 .- 1 .- 1 r1    .- 1 . y - 1 - I r1 . i .- e e- I rt rl .-- 1 r1 .- 1    .- i .- i r l

I- t1       C  .       C O.       C a      C O.      C a u   C O.    `'  C Q. U  '-  C O_ U    C a U    C

1 ai ci ` m   
y  a io   a  w ` v  

v ai      v a      w         w a      m m      ai a     °'  w  

i
v, a     in o     v, 0     v, o     u,      ,      n o g    n o g in o     n o -

SOURCE: ZILLOW,2019

Rental Housing Costs

Table 28 summarizes rents paid in Lathrop by rental range. There were no units renting for less than $ 250 dollars and
the majority of units rented for$ 1, 500 or more. Only 1. 8% of rentals were in the$ 200 to$ 299 range and another 4. 5%
were in the$ 300 to$ 749 rarige. Almost one- quarter of rentals were in the$ 1, 000 to$ 1, 499.

Based on a review of rental ads in the Lathrop Times, Craigslisf.org, and Zillow. com, the median rent in Lathrop is$ 1, 995
per month. Very few rentals were available in June, 2019. Rents range from $ 1, 400 to$ 2, 000 for 3 bedl2 bath homes
to$ 2, 095 to$ 3, 100 for a four bedroom homes. Table 29 summarizes rental rates Citywide in 2017, based on ACS data
as well as a survey of units advertised for rent in June 2019.

TABLE 28: RENTAL COSTS( 2017 .

F;;._.'.     
r

g_..: 4,    , Num'b,er ..' Percentµ '';. ;;Ren Rar e         

Less than $ 200 0

200 to $ 299 29 1. 8%

300 to$ 499 11 0. 7%

500 to$ 749 63 3. 8%

750 to$ 999 157 9. 6%

1, 000 to$ 1, 499 395 24. 1%

1; 500 or more 883 53. 9%

Median( dollars)------ -----------------$ 1, 604--------- - - - -

Souecs: 2013- 2017ACS

34

472



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TABLE 29: RENTAL RATES BY NUMBER OF BEDROOMS

2019" Rental S uwuey;; C,ensu s Data=

Bedroom Type Uni; s
a ge`     

M: dian Rent Median Rent

µ ...  .

w uailabl, e   -' ._.  .       .. .,..       20 7),,.;       200) 1

0 Studio 0 _      N/ A   ,  

500 1 bed 0     -       N1A 745

625 2 bed 2 1, 395 979

750 3 bed 7 1, 400-$ 2, 500 1, 518

800 4 bed or more 11 2, 095-$ 3,
650 1,846(

4)/ 
NIA 2,380(

5+)SOURCE: US CENSUS, 2000;US CENsusACS, 2013- 2017;ZILLOW. COM, 2019,CR.4IGSLIST. COM,

2019 I ousing
Affoxdabilaty Income

Groups The California Department of Housing and CommunityDev. elopment( HCD)publishes household income data
annually forareas in California. Table 30 showsthe maximum annual income level foreach income group adjusted for
household size for San Joaquin County..The maximum annual income data is then utilized to calculate the maximum
affordable housing payments for different households ( varyirig by income level) and their eligibility for housing
assistance

programs. ExtremelyLowlncomeHouseholdshaveacombinedincomeatorlowerthan30% ofereamedianincome(

AMI),as established by the state Department of Housing and Comrriunity Development(

HCD).Very Cow Income Households havea combined income between 30 and 50%of AMI,as established by

HCD. Low Income Households havea combined income between 50 and 80%of AMI,as established by

HCD. Moderate Income Households havea combined income between 80 and 120%of AMI,as established by

HCD. Above Moderate Income Nouseholds havea combined income greater than 120%of AMI, as established
by

HCD. TAs E 30: STATE INCOME LIMITS- SAN.IOAQUIN COUNTY(

2019 lncome
Group ' .,1f. Person._.'2 Peqso n' '-;  3 Person  ,°'4.

Person„ ,,
x 5:';Person.;   6 Pers n y,' 7Pers" or  1,. r$ Pe'

san .Ext erriely Low 14, 700   ;   $16, 910      $21, 330      $25, 750      $30, 170      $34, 590   ;   $39, 010      $43,

430 Very Low 24, 500      $28, 000   ;   $31, 500   ;   $35, 000      $37, 800      $40, 600      $43, 400   ;   $46,

200 Low 39, 200   :   $44, 800      $50, 400   :   $56; 000   !   $60, 500   !   $65, 000   !   $69, 450   !   $74,
950

i Moderate 60, 000   ;   $68, 550   ?   $77, 150   ;   $85, 700   ;   $92, 550   ;   $99, 400   ;  $106, 250  ;  $113,

100 Above Motlerate      $60, 000+  '  $68, 550+  '  $77, 150+    $85, 700+  :  $92, 550+  '  $99, 400+   $106, 250+ ; $113,

100+SOURCE: HOUSINGAND COMMUNITYDEVELOPNIENT DEPARTMENT,

ZOI9 Housing

Affordabilitv Table 31 shows the maximum rents and sales prices, respectively, that are affordable to very low, low, moderate, 
and above moderate- income households.  Affordability is based on a household spending 30% or less of their

total household income for shelter. Affortlability is based on the maximum household income levels established by
HCD Table 30). The annual income limits established by HCD are similar to those used by the US Department of

Housing and Urbari Development( HUD)for administering various affordable housing programs. In order to provide an idea
of afforda6le housing costs by income group, affordable home sales prices are estimated for one, two, four, and six
person households ( see Table 29).  Maximum affordable sales price is based generally on the following assumptions: 
5%interest rate, 30-year fixed loan,and downpayments that vary with income level,as described in Table

31.Comparing the maximum affordable housing costs in Table 31 to the rental rates in Tables 28 and 29, rental rates
in Lathrop are generally afforda6le to moderate income households oftwo or more persons and to above moderate

income

473



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

households. While there are some units affordable to extremely low, very low, and low income households, there is a
very limited number of the more affordable units. The median rental rates reported by 2013-2017 ACS( Table 29) are
in the affordability range of low, moderate, and above moderate income households. The 2019 rental survey indicated
thatthere are currently is a limited number ofsmaller rental units( studio, 1 bedroom, and 2 bedroom units) in Lathrop
that are affordable to very low and low income households, butthatthere are units affordable to low income households
with 4 or more persons as well as to moderate and above moderate income households of all sizes. The majority. of
available rentals were larger units; there were no studio or 1 bedroom units listed for rent and onlytwo 2- bedroom units.
Moderate and above moderate income households can afford a broad range of available housing.    

Similarly, homes for sale in Lathrop are affordable to moderate and above moderafe income households, based on a
comparison of Tables 27 and 31. There is a small number of units, all mobile homes, affordable to very low and low
income households. Current home sales prices are not affordable to extremely low income households.

TAs E31: HOUSIfVG AFFORDABILITY BY INCOME GROUP

O e Persori       
µ
j  ,'fwo Person    ,'.      ,  Four Person"_      j ;      Six

Persor     °  ;
Home,'    Moi thly  ;_   H, or

e      onfih' ly  ;   H`
ome   ;  on` thiy 1t NV'

onthl,;Income
Groiu        Hor

e Rent or   , Ren y; or  E R r t or  , :       Ren

or °Pr
eIe*.

w Hoiising i::   P ice*      Housirig     Prlc e*  `.  Housing     P
ice*      H

ason r Gost    !
Cost°... 

m,   Cast   - LL,,  

Cost

g Extremely Low     $51, 100      $ 367      $58, 1 00       $ 422      $8 6, 000     $ 643     $114, 900      $

864  Very Low 89, 000       $ 612     $100, 400      $ 700      $123, 100      $ 875     $141; 200     $ 1,

015 Low 1.38, 000      $ 980    ; $155, 600     $ 1, 120     $190; 900     $ 1, 400    $219, 200     $ 1,

625 Moderate 226, 600     $ 1, 500   ! $255, 500     $ 1, 713   !  $313, 400     $2, 142   ! $359, 600     $2,

485 Above Moder. ate  .$226, 600+    $ 1,50. 0+.   $255, 500+ .   $ 1, 713+   $313, 400+    $2, 142+   $359, 600+    $2,

485+MAXIMUMAFFORDABLE SALES PRICE(S BASED ONTHE FOLLOWINCASSUMPTIONS: S%INTEREST R.4TE, 30-YEAR FIXED LOAN,

DOWNPAYMENT: 5, 000-EXTREMELY LOW,.$10, 000- VERYLOW,'$ 15, 000- LOW,$ 25, 000- MODERATE, PROPERTYTAX, UT( LITIES, AND

HOMEOWNERS lNSUR. 9NCE AS 3O%OF MONTHLY HDUS( NG COST EXTREMELY LOW, 28%OF MONTHLY HOUSING COST LOW, AND 2$%OF MONTHLY

HOUSlNGCOST MODER. 4TE ABOVEMODERATE. HOMESSAGESPRICESAREROUNDEDTONEAREST$

100. SOURCE: DE NOVO PLANN/ NG GROUP, 2OI

9Affordable Housing

Inventory There are no subsidized or otherwise rent-restricted affordable multifamily complexes in

Lathrop. Mobale Home

Parks Lathrop has four mobilehome parks with a total of 259 spaces; as listed below.  None of the mobilehome parks
are restricted to lower income households, however, mobilehomes typically present a lower cost housing

option.Lathrop Sands, 15550 S.Harlan Road-36
spaces Walnuf Grove Mobile Home Park, 365 E.Louise Avenue- 54

spaces Camino Real Mobile Estates, 15820 S.Harland Road- 167

spaces Harlan Park, 11424 S.Fiarlan Road-2

spaces FUTU iE IOUSIIVG NE

DSA Regional Housing Needs Plan( RHNP) is mandated by the Stateof California( Government Code[ GC],Section
65584) for regions to address housing issues and needs based on future growth projections for the area. The RHNP for
San Joaquin County is developed by the San Joaquin Council of Governments ( SJCOG), and allocates a "fair share" 
of regional housing needs to individual cities and unincorporated county. The intent of the RHNP is to ensure that
local jurisdictions address not only the needs of their immediate areas but also that needs for the entire region are
fairly distributed toall communities. A majorgoal ofthe RHNP is to assure that every community provides an
opportunityfor a mixof affordable housing to all economic segments of its

population.

474



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

This Housing Elementaddresses SJCOG' s Regional Housing Need Allocafion( RHNA) schedulefrom 2014through 2023.
The City will need to plan to accommodate 5, 156 new units, whieh includes 526 extremely low income units, 493 very
low, 759 low, 957 moderate, and 2, 421 above moderate income units. SJCOG determined the City' s extremely low and  .    
very low income housing needs as part of the allocation process, which resulted in a higher number of extremely low
income units than- very low low income units. To date, 29 moderate and 1, 571 above mo derate income units have been
constructed and another 197 above moderate income units are under construction. Table 32 summarizes Lathrop' s fair
share, progress to date, and remaining unit.

TABLE 32: REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION ZO 4-2023

Extr tnely A Above w

t

Status   °      x

derate
Uer Lauu T. ow Moderate T

a ,    C ow

TO
Y  

s ,,, t .. 
v.. . we.  _. M.  ,..  

w
A L

m.
k    .     au .    , .          .. . .. _ ,   

RHNA Allocation 526 493 759 957 2, 421 5, 156

Built 0 0 0 29'      1, 571 1, 600

Under Construction/    
0 0 0

OZ
197 197

Permitted

Remaining Allocation 526  .   493 759 928 653.    3,359

1INCLUDES 1$ HOMES BllILT IN 2014 AND 9 NOMES BUILT lN 201 S SOLD AT MARKET- R.4TE PRICES AFFORDABLE TO MODERATE INCOME HOUSEHOLDS

AND 2 AD US BUILT IN THE 2016-2019 PERIOD

ZANADDITIONAL 104 BUNGALOW UNITSARE UNDER CONSTRUCTION IN RNER/ SLANDS,' THESE UN/ TS WILL BE MONITORED FOR AFFORDABILITY BASED

ON MARKET R. 9TE PRICES.

SOURCE: SAN OAQUINCOUNCIL OFGOVERNMENTS, 201; ZlLLOW. COM,' CITYOFLATHROP, 2019

Special I ousing l eeds

Household groups with special_ needs include seniors, mentally, physically, and developmentally disa6led persons,
large family households, female-headed households, agricultural workers, and homeless persons.  Households with
special housing needs often have greater difficulty in finding decent and affordable housing:  As a result, these

households may experience a higher prevalence of overpaying, overcrowding, and other housing problems. Where data
is available, estimates ofthe population or number of households in Lathrop falling into each group is presented. The
special housing needs are a subset of the overall housing needs identified in Table 32, unless otherwise noted.

Seniors

Seniors are considered persons age 65 or older in this Housing Element. However, it must be noted that some funding
programs have lowerage limitsfor persons to be eligible fortheirsenior housing projects. Seniors have special housing
needs primarily resulting from physical disabilities and limitations, fixed or limited income, and health care costs.
Additionally, senior households also have other needs to preserve their independence iricluding supportive services to
maintain their health and safety, in=home support services to perform activities of daily liuing, conservators to assistwith
personal care and financial affairs, public administration assistance to manage and resolve estate issues and networks

of care to provide a wide variety of services and daily assistance.

Various portions of the Housing. Element describe characteristics of the senior population, the extent of their needs for
affordable housing, housing designated for seniors, and City provisions to accommodate their need.  The senior

population( persons 65 antl older) in Lathrop is shown in Table 33. There were 631 seniors( 65 years and over) in Lathrop
in 2000; the senior population increased by 507. 1% to 1, 780 persons in 2017.

TAB E 33: $ ENIOR POPULATION BYAGE

2U00  ' ` f     '`  2017          Percent ;
r Age Group      

r `    ,-     -,  ;        

Chan e.Number    P'ercen; ,  I u mber   Percen    9      
z v d.:    

w. . .. .      

65 to 74 years 386 61. 2%       1, 149 64. 6%       197: 7%

75 to 84 years 197 31. 3% 511 28J%       159: 4%.

85 years and over 48 7. 6% 120 6. 7% 150%  .

TOTAL 631 100% 1, 780 100%       182. 1%

37

475



2019 HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

SOURCE: US CENSUS, 2000; US Ce,vsusACS, 2013-2017

There are 659 senior households in Lathrop.  The majority of senior households are owners, 5 3 or 79. 4%.
Approximately 20. 6% of senior households, 136, are renters. Lathrop has a higher percentage of owner- occupied and
a lower percentage of renter- occupied elderly households than in San Joaquin County. Elderly renters tend to prefer
affordable units in smaller single-story structures or multi-story structures with an elevator, close to health facilities,
services, transportation and entertainment.

Senior household growth in Lathrop from 2010 to 2017 is TaB E 34: SENIOR POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLDS

shown in Table 34. The large increase in elderly persons is       ` Populatiori_   201: 0 20'17 .. `;

likely due to the residential growth experienced in Lathrop as Number 1, 169 1, 780

well as aging in place of Lathrop' s residents.   

OSenior
percent Change 52. 3%

households have increased by approximately 37. 3/ o from
2010 to 2017. While seniors represent approximately 7, 5%    

Annual Percent Change 7. 5%

of the City' s population,  senior households represent       ' .
Houseiiolds` 

approximately 13% oftotal households, wl ich is primarily due Number 480 659 _

to the smaller senior household size. Percent Change 37. 3%

During the planning period;  senior households are
Annual PercentChange 3. 1%

anticipated to increase at a rate commensurate with overall
souRCE: uscE,vsus, zolo; USCetvsus, 2013-2017ACS

population and household growth.   It is anticipated that

approximately 550 of the City` s RHNA will be needed or used by senior households. Senior housing types can include
market rate homes, senior single family housing communities, senior apartments, and mobile homes.

Mostsenior households own their home, 79. 4%. One- fifth ofsenior households rent. The incidence of renting increases
with age for Latlirop' s senior populafion; a higher percentage of householders 65 to 74 own than do households in the
75 and over age bracket. Table 35 summarizes senior households by age and tenure.

TAB E35: HOUSEHOLDERAGEBYTENURE 2O77

0 ers  ..   `     Re ters  x

Age Group
r T

Number .      Percent v  9u"snb r P cent
m   ,.  e _ .   .

65- 74 years 359 68. 6%    85 62. 5%

75- 84 years 119 22. 8%    31 22. 8%

85 plus years 45 8. 6%     20 14. 7%

TOTAL
523

79. 4%    
136

20. 6%( of

of total)   total)

SOURCE: US. CENSUs, 2013- 2017ACS

The 2013- 2017 ACS survey indicates that 11% of senior households in Lathrop are below the poverty level. It is likely
that a portion of these senior households overpay for housing due to their limited income. The median income of
households with a head of household that is 65 years and over is$ 32, 396, significantly less( 44: 9%) than the median

household income of$ 72; 094.

In 2007, the City' s Senior Center was completely renovated and additional renovations ace currently planned for the
Center. The Center provides the areas seniors with a meeting space, various recreational activities, and assistance with
food and other necessities. Below is a list of the programs offered at the Lathrop Senior Center.

o Senior Lunch Program

Senior Brown Bag food distribution
Mobile Farmer' s Market and" Nutrition on the Move"

CountryBreakfast( monthly)

38

476



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND. REPORT

Activities- arts and recreation. classes and group activities

Senior Housin       

There is increasing variety in the types of housing available to the senior population. This section focuses on three basic
tyPes.

Independent Living- housing for fiealthy seniors who are self-sufficient and want the freedom and privacy of their
own separate, apartment or house. Many seniors remain in their original homes, and others move to special residential
communities which provide a greater level of security and social activities of a senior community.

GrOup Livirag = shared living arrangements in which seniors live in close proximity to their peers and have access to
activities and special services.

Assisted Living- providesthe. greatest level ofsupport; including meal preparation and assistance with otheractivities
of daily living. .

There are three assisted living residential care facilities for the elderly in Lathrop:

Home Sweet Home forthe Elderly, 14110 Jasper Street- 6- bed elderly residential care facility

Johanan Care Home, 13754 Jasper Street- b- bed elderly residential care facility

Stonebridge Care Facility, 555 Deerwood Avenue- 6- bed elderly residential care facility

Although there are several senior residential care facilities in Lathrop, there are no senior communities or affordable
senior multifamily complexes. In addition, there are no residential projects with supportive services or assisted- living
type projects that serve low- and very low- income seniors who cannot afford to pay the market rates for housing and
services.

Senior Resources

The Lathrop Senior Center serves adults 50 and above, offering a range of classes. and activities. The center serves a
nutritious lunch daily and also distributes' Brown Bag' food and commodities to seniors in need weekly. The eenter also
hosts a program of legal services for seniors that are 60 and older.

Supplement Security Income( SSI) is a federal welfare program for persons 65 and over and for blind or disabled persons
of any age." Disabled" means that you have a physical or mental disability that is expected to keep you from working for
12 months or longer, or wil) result in death. Medicare is a federal health insurance program for people who are 65 and
over, for some younger people with permanent disabilities, and for people with end-stage kidney disease: SSI may
provide total monthly income or it may supplement a low income. In addition to cash payments, SSI recipients are
automatically covered by Medi- Cal, the state health insurance plan.

The Area Agency on Aging( AAA} is a legislated overseeing body within the Aging and Community Services Division of
San Joaquin County Human Services Agency( I). The Board of S.upervisors and Area on Agency Staff are assisted and
guided by the Commission on Aging which serves as an Advisory Board. The AAA/ HAS provides a directory of services
available for seniors, includirig an explanation of Medicare and Medi-:Cal,; resources to prevent elder abuse and elder
fraud, arid a I. isting of agencies and programs providing services to seniors with specific rieeds.

The San Joaquin HSA administers the Meals on Wheels Program. This program promotes the health, well- being, and
independence of elder adufts and the disabled by providing meals fo persons 60 years and older that are homebound. 

In- Home Supportive Services( IHSS) serves low- income aged, blind, or disabled persons who are unable to perform the

activities of daily living and cannot remain safely in their own homes without help. The services provided, such as
transportation, shopping, and household management enable these clients fo continue to live in their own homes or
apartments.

Dignity Alcove in Stockton helps homeless veterans find permanent housing, secure a substantial income and address

39

477



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

the specific challenges that veterans face,. including 6ut not limited to mental illness, physical illness, and substawce
abuse.   

The Emergency Crisis Intervention Program ( ECIP) provides assistance witli uti.lity bills for low- income individuals in
crisis, if they have a 48- hour notice or a. shut off notice.  Clients are required to call for an appointment on Monday
mornings and, are required to attend an Energy class and bring appropriate documents to receive immediate help with
their utility bill. Similar to the program above; no nambers were available for how many seniors are served in Lathrop.

Home Energy Assistance Program( HEAP) assists low- income households to pay their energy costs. Assistance is in_the
form of a dual orsingle- party warrant, or; a direct payment to the utility company on behalf ofthe applicant. The amount
of assistance is based on the number of persons in the household, total household income, the cost of energy within the
Countythe household resides in, and funding availability. HEAP provides one payment peryear.:

The Housing Authority of the County of San Joaquin is the agency responsible for providing decent, safe, and affordable
housing for low- income families; elderly, and th,e disabled. Programs incfude the Housing Choice Voucher Program
Section 8), Migrant Family Centers, and Family Self Sufficiency.

PG& E offers assistance to low- income, disabled and seni.or citizen customers through; numerous programs and

community outreach projects which include: California Alternate Rates for Energy ( CARES), family Electric Rafe
Assistance( FERA), and the Balanced Payment Flan Program.

San Joaquin County Community Development Department administers the Urban County CDBGlHOME Home
Rehabilitation Program, a creative financing program that assists property owners in making residential building.
improvements.. lt offers low interest amortized and deferred payment loans. The program is designed to make needed

renovations affordable for low income homeowners as well as off.ering a range of serv' ices to help make property
improvements as easy as possible: County loans are secured by second deeds of trust. Loans are processed" on a first    ,
come, first served basis unl.ess: it is an emergenry; and the homeowner must occupy the home as their principal
residence while they own it.

San Joaquin Counfy Behavi,oral Healtfi Services provides emergency, inpatient and outpatient behavioral health
counseling and services including Adult Day Health Care, throughout San Joaquin County with offices in Lodi, Manteca
and Tracy.  

San Joaquin County provides State and federally-mandated public assistance and a variety of social service programs for
the citizens of San Joaquin County. Programs include: California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids
CaIWORKs), Foster Care, CalFresh, General Assistance, Medi-Cal, Adoptions, Child Protective Services, Adult Protective

Services, In- Home Supportive Services( IHSS), Refugee Assistance, and the Mary Graham Children' s Shelter. Federal and
State legislation and local regulations govern the methods by which resources of the Agency are allocated.

San Joaquin Human Services Agency provides the Weatherization Program for home or duplex weatherization services
such as: minor home repair, glass replacement, attic ventilation, low-flow showerheatls,: ceil.ing insulation, euaporative
coolervent cover, doorweatherstripping, water heater blanket, ductwrap, switches& outlet gaskets, caulking, and other

weatherstripping.

San Joaquin Rapid Transit District Dia1=A- Ride.  The service area includes the entire S.an Joaquin County; to assure
accessibility to basic services such as shopping, public hospitals, and connections to Metro Stockton, ( Stockton

Metropolitan Area) and intercity fixed routes.    

Disabled. Persons

A" disability" includes; but is not limited to, any physical or mental disability es defined in California Government Code
Section 12926. A" mental disability" involves having any mental or psychological disorder or condition; such as mental
retardation, organic brain syndrome; emotional or mental illness, ot specific learning disabilities that limits a major life
activity. A`' physical disability" involves having any physiological disease, disorder, condition, cosmetic disfigurement,

40

478



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

or anatomical loss that affects body systems including neurological, immunological, musculoskeletal; special sense
organs, respiratory, speech organs, catdiovascular, reproductive, digestive, genitourinary, hemic and lymphatic, skin
and endocrine. In addition, a mental or physical disability limits a inajor life activity by making the achievement of major
life activities difficulf including physical, mental, and social activities and working.   

Physical, menfal, and/ or developmental disabilities could prevent a person from working:, restrict a persons' mobility or
make caring for oneself difficult. Therefore, disabied persons often require special housing needs related to potential
limited earning capacity, the lack of accessible and affordable housing, and higher health costs associated with
disabilities. Additionally, people with disabilities require a wide range of different housing, depending on the type and
severity of their disability. Housing needs can range from institutional care facilities to facilities that support partial or
full independence( i. e., group care homes). Supportive services such as daily living skills and employment assistance
need to be integrated in the housing situation.

Indiv'iduals with a mobility; visual, or hearing limitation may require housing that is physically accessible.
Examples of accessibility in housing include widened doorways and hallways, ramps, bathroom modifications

i. e., lowered counfertops, grab bars; adjustable shower heads, etc:) and speciaf sensory devices induding
smoke alarms and flashing lights.

Individuals with self- care limitations ( which can include persons with mobility difficulties) may require
residential environments that include ' in- home or on- s'ite support services ranging from congregate to
convalescent care. Support services can include medical therapy, daily living assistance, congregate dining,
and related services.

Individuals with developmental disabilities ahd other physical and mental conditions that prevent them from

functioning independently may require assisted care or group home environments.

Individuals with disabilities may require financial assistance to meet their housing needs because a higher
percentage than the population at large are low- income and their special housing needs are often more costly
than conventional housing:

According to the 2013- 2017 ACS, there were 2, 338 persons with one or more disabilities in Lathrop. Of the disabled
population, 70. 4% are aged 5 to 64 and 29. 6% are aged 65 and over. No d'isabilities were reported in the population
aged five and under. Of the disa6led persons in the 16 to: 64 age bracket, 36% were employed and 1. 2% were

unemployed. Table 36 identifies disabilities by type of disability and Table 37 identifies disabled persons by age and
employment status:

TABLE 36: DISABILITIES BY DJSABILITYTYPE..

z    

Persans Ages S 64    ,`  ; Persons Ages 65+    '  >  `     i'ot l„ ,
Type of D sab l ty      s : x: a xi        "     T    

ra,      „`.  ,     
Numbe    , Perce t    , 

e
Numb: er,    ,  ; P rcent,     Number;;   P,ercent„

Hearing Difficulty 223 13. 5%    244 35; 3%  472 20. 2%

Vision Difficulty 319 1. 9. 4%    113 6. 4%  432 18. 5°10

Cognitive Difficulty 710 43. 1%    105 5. 9%  815 34. 9%a

Ambulatory Difficulty 694 42. 2%    417 23. 6% 1, 111 47. 5%

Self- Care Difficulty 330 ZO%     130 7. 4°/a 460 19. 7%

Independent Living 647 39. 3%    279 15. 8%  926 39. 6°/a
Difficult

Total Persons with One or
100% I 100% I

MoreDisabilities
1, 646 70. 4% of 692 29. 6% of 2, 338 100%

disabled disabled

lA PERSON MAY HAVE MORE TKAN ONE DlSABlLITY, SO THE TOTAL D/ SABlL( TIES MAY EXCEED THE TOTAL PERSONS WITH A D/ SAB/ L/ TY
SOURCE: US CENSUSACS, ZO13- ZOS

41

479



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

As shown in Table 37, the 2013 2017 ACS indicates that for individuals between the ages of 16 and 64, approximately-
886 persons had some form ortype of disability and were not in the laborforce. This indicates thattheir disability may
impede their ability to earn an adequate income, which in turn could affect their ability to afford suitable housing
accommodations to meef their special needs. Therefore, many in this group may be in need of housing assistance.

Tae E 37: DISABLED PERSONS BYAGE AND EMPLOYMENTSTATUS
Ages; 1 6 to. 64'       '; Perrent    

Employed uvith Disability    508 36%   l

Unemployed with Disability 18 1. 2%

Not in Labor Force 886 62. 7%

Total 1, 412 100%

SOURCE: US CENSUSACS, 2013-2017

While recent Census data does not provide income levels or overpayment data for persons with a disability, the 2013-
2017 ACS survey does report on indicators that relate to a disabled person' s or household' s income. The:2013- 2017 ACS  
data indicates that372 persons with a disability are below the poverty level. It is likely that a portion of these disabled-
persons are in households that overpay for housing due to their limited income. The 2013- 2017 ACS data indicates that
46. 4% of households receiving food stamps or similar ass'istance have a disabled member. Of the 1, 598 households
with a disabled member, 272 households receive food stamps orsimilar assistance. The 2013- 2017 ACS data indicates

that the mediari earnings for males 16 years and over with a disability were$ 32, 350 compared with$ 40, 617 for males
with no disability. Median earningsforfemales 16 years and overwith a disabilitywere$ 30, 757, compared to$ 27; 500
forfemales with no di.sability.

The persons in t{ie ''with a disability" category in Tables 36 and 37 include persons with developmental disabilities.
Developmental disability" means a disa6ility that originates before an individual attains age 18 years, continues, or

can be expected to continue, indefinitely, and constitutes a substantial disabilityforthat individual." This term includes
mental retardation, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, autism, and disabling conditions found to be closely related to mental
retardation orto require treatment similarto that required for indivitluals with mental retardation, but does not include

other handicapping conditions that are sofely physical in nature.

While the US Census reports on a broad range of disabilities, the Census does not identify the subpopulation that has a
developmental disability. The California Department of Developmental Services( DDS) maintains data regarding people
with de elopmental disabilities, defined asthose with severe, life- long disabilities attributable to mental and/ or physical
impairments. The DDS dafa is reported by zip code, so the data reflects a larger area than the City of Lathrop, however
approximately 57% ofthe population within the zip code resides in Lathrop based on 2013- 2017 ACS population data.
The DDS data indicates that 252 developmentally disabled persons reside in zip code 95330. Table 38 breaks down the
developmentally disabled pop.ulation by residence type: Ofthese persons, the majority( 127) live at home with a parent
or guardian and less than 23 live independently or in a community care environment.

TABLE 3S: DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED PERSONS. BY RESIDENCE TYPE.( ZIP CODE 9S33O

Home of, °   s        

Ind:epend, ent   Fos terl Farnily    ,    Q7A l     `Zi p Code      Pare ntl        Dther     , 

ard an 
Livong Hom         = s t  

s
u

Gu" ri      a.
r.     , r    ,     . m...._.    ,  ..  ,.    . 0  . „,.

e.  , . , .,; .. . . F,;. a, yr

95330 222 11 30  .      0 252

Lathrop*   127 b 17 0 150

DATA FOR THE ZIP CODE INCLUDES LATHROP AND UNINCORPOR. 9TED. AREAS ADJACENT THE CITY
SouacE: CA DDS, 2019

Housing for Disabled Persons

Households with a disabled memberwill require a mixture of housing units with accessibilityfeatures, in- home care, or
group care housing facilities. Some of these households will have a member with developmental disability and are

42

480



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

expected to have special housing needs. Developmentally disabled persons may live with a family in a. typical single
family or multifamily home, but some developmentally disabled persons with more severe disabilities mayhave special
housing needs that may include extended family homes, group homes,- small and large residential care facilities,
intermediate care, and skilled nursing facilities and affordable housing such as extremely lowlvery lowllow fncome
housing( both rental and ownership), Section 8lhousing choice vouchers, and single room occupancy- type units.

In Lathrop, there are eight residential facilities serving adults with special needs, including physical, mental, and
developmental disabilities; two ofthese facilities are pending approval of licensing.

Casa de Esperanza( license pending), 400 Olivine Avenue- 4- bed adulf( ages 18- 59) residential facility

Conti Estate II, 800_Quaker Ridge Court- 6- bed adult( ages 18- 59) residential facility

Harmony Care Home, 13200 Cedarbrook Way- 6- bed adult( ages 18-59) residentiaf facility
Haven Place Care Home( license pending), 961 Englewood- 4- bed adult( ages 18- 59) residential facility_.

Lagua' s Care Home, 721 E. Mingo Way- 4- bed adult( ages 18- 59) residential facility

Lathrop Ranch Home, 15198 South Fifth Street- 6 bed adult( ages 18- 59) residential facility
Schumard Care Home, 18268 Schumard Oak- b- bed adult( ages 18- 59) residential facility

Vista Haven 758 Frewert Road- 6- bed adult( ages 18- 59) residential facility

ACS 2013- 2017 data indicated that for individuals between . fhe ages of 5 and 64, approximately 2. Z%a of the total
population of Lathrop has an ambulatory difficulty, 1. 2% have vision difficulty, 0. 9%o have a hearing difficulty, and 2. 6%
have an independent living difficulty.  These types of disabilities may impede their ability fo find suitable housing
accommodations# o meet their special needs. Therefore, many in these groups may be in need of housing assistance.
Households containing physically handicapped persons may also need housing with universal design measures or
special features to allow better physical mobility fo.r occupants.

The 2013- 17 ACS data indicates that 1, 598 households( 29. 1 percent) in Lathrop had one or more disabled persons,
including developmentally disabled persons. It is anticipated that this rate will remain the same during the planning
period. Housing needed for persons with a disability during the planning period is anticipated to include community
care facilities or at- home supportive services for persons with an independent living difficulty or self- care difficulty)
approximately 7% ofthe population), as well as housing that is equipped to serve persons with ambulatory and sensory

disabilit'ies.  Approximately 10% of the RHNA, 516 units, may be needed to have universal design measures or be
accessible to persons with a disability.

Resources for Disabled Persons

Supplement Security Income( SSI) is a federal welfare program for persons b5 and over and for blind or disabled persons
of any age." Disabled" mearis that you have a physical or mental disability that is expected to keep you. from working for
12 months or longer, or will result in death. Medicare is a federal health insurance program for people who are 65 and
over, for some younger people. with permanent disabilities, and for people with end-stage kidney disease. SSI may
provide total monthly income or it may supplement a low income. In addition to cash payments; SSI recipients are
automatically covered by Medi- Cal, the state health insurance plan.

The Area Agency on Aging( AAA) is a legislated overseeing body within the Aging and Community S,ervices Division of
San Joaquin County Human Services Agency( HSA). The Board of Supervisors and Area on Agency Staff are assisted and
guided by the Commission on Aging which serves as an Advisory Board. The AAA/ HAS proVides a directory of serviees
available for seniors, including an explanation of Medicare and Medi- Cal, resources to prevent elder abuse and elder
fraud, and a listing of agencies and programs providing services to seniors.with specific needs.

The San Joaquin HSA administers the Meals on Wheels Frogram. This program promotes the health, well- being, and
independence of elder adults and the disabled by providing meals to persons 60 years and olderthat are homebound.

43

481



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

In- Home Supportive Services( IHSS) serves. low- income aged, blind, or disabled persons who are unable to perform tfre
activities of daily living and cannot remain safely in their own homes without- help: The services provided, such as
transportation, shopping, and. household management enable these clients to continue to live in their own homes or
apartments.

California Healthy Families is, low cost insurance for children up to 18 years old and pregnant mothers. This includes   
Health, Dental and Vision coverage for qualifying applicants.

Community Center for the Blind and Visually Impaired provides case management, personal adjustment support,
orientation and mobility, independent living skills training, Braille and accessible; computer classes.

Dignity Alcove in Stockton helps homeless veterans find permanent housing, secure a substantial income and address
fhe specific challenges that veterans face, including but not limited to mental illness, physical illness, and substance
abuse.

The Emergency Crisis Intervention Program ( ECIP) provides assistance with utility bills for low- income individuals in
crisis, ifthey have a 48- hour notice or a shut off notice.  Clients ace required to call for an appointment on Monday
mornings and are required to attend an Energy class and bring appropriate documents to receive immediate help with
their utility bill. Similarto the program above, no numbers were available for how many seniors are se ved in Lathrop.

Home Energy Assistance Program( HEAP) assists low- income households to pay their energy costs. Assistance is in the
form of a dual orsingle-party warrant, or; a direct paymentto the utility company on behalf ofthe applicant. The amount
of assistance is based on the number of persons in the household, total household income, the cost of energy within the
Eountythe household resides in, and funding availability. HEAP provides one payment peryear.

The Housing Authority ofthe County of San Joaquin is the agency responsible for providing decent, safe, and affordeble
housing for low- income families, elderly, and the disabled. Programs include the Housing Choice Voucher Program
Section 8), Migrant Family Centers, and Family Self Sufficiency.

PG& E offers assistance to low- income, disabled and senior citizen customers through numerous programs and

community outreach projects which include: California Alternate Rates for Energy ( CARES), Family Electric Rate
Assistance( FERA), and the Balanced Payment Plan Program.

San Joaquin County Community Development Department administers the Urban County CDBGIHOME Home
Rehabilitation Program, a creative financing progrem that assists property owners in making residential building
improvements. It offers low interest amortized and deferred paymenf loans. The program. is designed to make needed

renovations affordable for low income homeowners as well as offering a range of services to help make property
improvements as easy as possible. County loans are secured by second deeds of trust. Loans are processed on a first
come, first served basis unless it is an emergency; and the homeowner must occupy the home as their principaJ
residence while they own it.

San Joaquin County Behavioral Nealth Serv.ices provides emergency, inpatient and outpatient behavioral health
counseling and services including Adult Day Health Care, throughout. San Joaquin County with offices in Lodi, Manteca
and Tracy.

San Joaquin County HSA provides State and federally- mandated public assistance end a variety of social service
programs forthe citizens of San Joaquin County. Programs include: California Work Opportunity a,nd Responsibility fo
Kids ( CaIWORKs), Foster Care, CalFresh, General Assistance, Medi- Cal, Adoptions, Child Protective Services, Adult

Protective Services, In- Home Supportive Services( IHSS), Refugee Assistance, and the Mary Graham Children' s Shelter.
Federal and State legislation and local regulations goVern the methods by which resources of the Agency are allocated.

San Joaquin Human Services Agency provides the Weatherization Program for home or duplex weatherization services
such as: minor home repair, glass replacement, attic ventilation, low- flow showerheads, ceiling insulation, evaporative
coolervent cover, door weatherstripping, water heater blanket, duct wrap, switches& outlet gaskets, caulking, and other

44

482



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REFORT

weatherstripping.

San Joaquin Rapid Transit District Dial- A- Ride.  The service area includes the entire San Joaquin County, to assure

accessibility to basic services such as shopping, public hospitals, and connections to Metro Stockton, ( Stockton

Metropolitan Area) and intercity fixed routes.

The Valley Mountain Regional Center provides a range of housing and supportive services for persons with a qualifying
developmental disability. Services and programs include California Mentor( homesfor developmentally delayed adults
18 and older, Central Valley Training Center( employment training, community integration, behavioral support, and       '
advocacy),   

Large Family Households

Large family households are defined as households of five or more persons. Large family households are considered a
special needs group because there is often a limited supply of adequately sized housing to accommodate their needs.
The more persons in a household, the more rooms are needed to accommodate that household. Specifically, a five-
person household would require three or four bedrooms, a six-person household would require four-bedrooms, and a
seven- person household would require fourto six bedrooms.

In Lathrop, 1, 596 households, 29. 2% of all households, have five or more persons as described in Table 25. Of the large

households, 62. 7% own their home and 37: 3% rent. Typically, there are more owner occupied large households that
are cost burdened when compared to renter households and the population as a whole. However, the 2013- 2017 ACS
survey does not provide data regarding overpayment for large households. Table 39 compares the median income for
households with five or more persons to the Citywide median income. INhile the median income is slightly lower for
five persons households($ 68, 929 versus the Citywide median of$ 72, 094), the median income is higher for six and
seven or more persons households.

TAa E 39: NIEDIAN INCOME BY HOUSEHOLD SIZE

Size ledi' an l ncome

Five Person Households 68, 929

Six Person Households 91, 923

Seven or More Person Households 82, 900

Median Household Income( All Households) 72, 094 .

SOURCE: US CENSUs, 2013- 2O17ACS '

Large families can have a diffieult time finding housing units large enough to meet their needs.  In Lathrop, there
appears to be an adequate amount of housing available to provide units with enough bedrooms both for larger
households that own their home and that rent. Table 40 itlentifies the number of large households by household size
versus the numberof large owner and rental units. While there are adequate units in Lathrop to accommodate all large
ownerand renterhouseholds, itdoes notmeanthatthere isa match between housing unitsthatexistand largefamilies.
As described in Table 24, 55. 4% of owner- occupied homes and 11. 5% of renter-occupied homes are overcrowded.

TABLE 4O: HOUSEHOLD SIZE VERSUS BEDROOM SIZE BY TENURE( ZO 7

P 6 P rsan and Large
S' Person H usehofds x

3 R        . A+ BR           Ha rseholds  ,   ;
T      Unifs       House ' `  ' Sho tfall      Units   '  

e

House Sho rtfa ll

iolds Exress holds Excess
u

Owner 1, 556 552 1; 004 1, 974 268 1, 706

Renter 612 346 266 647 130 517

SOURCE: US CENSUs, 2013=2017ACS

Large households require housing units with more bedrooms than housing units needed by smaller householtls. In

45

483



2O19 HOUSiNG ELEMENTBACKdiROUND REPORT

general, housing for these households should provide safe outdoor play areas for children and should be located to
provide convenient access to schools and child- care facilities. These types of needs can pose problems particularly.for
large families that cannot afford to buy or rent single- family houses.  It is anticipated that approximately 25% of the

regional housing needs allocation units will be needed to accommodate large households and an emphasis should be
placed on ensuring rental units are available to large households.

Single Parent and Female- Headed Households

Single parent households are households with children underthe age of 18 at home and include both male- and female-
headed households. These households generally have a: higher-ratio between their income and their living expenses
that is, living expenses take up a largershare of income than is generallythe case in two- parent households). Therefore,  

finding affordable, decent; and safe housing is often more difficult for single parent and female- headed households.     
Additionally, single parent and female- headed housefiolds have special needs involving access to daycare or childcare,
health care and other supportive services.

Whilethe majorityof households in Lathrop are eithertwo- spouse couples orsingle person households, 23. 6% offamily
households are headed by a single male or single female. There are 485 male heads of household with no wife present
and 307 ofthese households have children under 18. There is a larger numberoffemale householderswith no husband
present, 807 households or 14. 7°/a of households, and 468 ofthese female-headed households have children under 18.
Table 41 identifies single parent households by gender of the householder and presence of cliildren.

The median income of female- headed families( no husband present) is$ 58, 559, 33. 8% more than the median income

of a male- headed, no wife present family($ 41, 648) and 20. 7% less than the median income of all households in the

City($ 72, 094). Approximately 10. 7°/ a offamilies are underthe poverty level; 23. 1% offemale- headed households wifh

related children under 18 are underthe poverty level.

Taa E 41: FAMILIES AND FEMALE HOUSEHOLDER WITIi CHILDREN UNDER 18(? O 7:

f

Category Nu ber Pe"rcen

Total~Families 5, 483

Male householder, no wife present:       485 8. 8%

With chifdren under 18 307 5. 6%

Female householder, no husband present:       807 14. 7%

With children under 18 468 8. 5%

SouRcs: ACS, 2009- 2013

As Lathrop' s population and households grow, there will be a continued need for supportive services for single parent
households with children present.  To address both the housing and support' ive service needs of female- heatled
households, addition:al multifamily housing should be developed that includes childcare facilities ( allowing single
mothers to actively seek employment).

In addition, the creation of innovative. housing for female- headed households could include co- housing developments
where childcare and meal prepsration responsibilities can be shared, The economies of scale av,ailable in this type of

housing would be advantageous to this special needs group as well as all other low- income household groups. Limited
equity cooperatives sponsored by non=profit housing developers are another financing structure that could be
considered for the benefit of alI special needs groups.

A ricultural Workers

Farm workers traditionally are defined as persons whose primary in.comes are earned through permanent or seasonal
agricultural labor. Permanent farm workers work in the fields; processing plants, or support activities on a year- round
basis. When workloads increase during harvest periods, the labor force is supplemented by seasonal or migrant labor.
Farm workers' special housing needs typically arise from their limited income and the unstable, seasonal nature of their
employment, according to the California lnstitute for Rural Studies. Because ofthese factors, farm worker households
have limited housing choices and are often forced to double up to afford rents:

46

484



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Most data related to the farmworker population is collected at the County and regional levels and does not idenfify .
farmworker data at the City level. The San Joaquin Fair Housing and Equity Assessment( California Coalition for Rural
Housing, 2014) indicates thatthe 8- County San Joaquin Valley has more farm workers than any other region ofthe state
and that the majority of the Valley' s nearly 190, OOQ workers are foreign born from Mexico, receive very low wages, and
have limited access to education, housing, and healthcare. The Assessment indicates that in San Joaquin County there
were 23, 037 farmworkers, of which 20. 5% are foreign born and 18. 4% are linguisticelly isolated.

The 2017 US Agricultural Census, reported by the US Department ofAgriculture, indicates that there were 3, 43Q farms
in San Joaguin County totaling 772, 762 acres. Of the 3,430 farms, there are; 1, 707 farms with hired labor, which
collectively hire a total of 19, 741 workers. Of the workers, 11, 738 worked less than 150 days and 12, 097 workerswere
m ig ra nt wo rke rs.  

While there has been an increase in the number of farms since the 1992 USDA Census( 2, 106 farms in 1992, 2, 427
farms in 2002), there has been a decrease in the number of workers as shown in Table 42. Workers have declined from
34, 816 in 1992 to 19, 741 in 2017. Several reasons; could be attributed to the trend( increasing farms and decreasing
farmworkers), but the primary factor is likely that advanced farm equipment is replacing the need for fiuman labor and
there is an increase in smaller owner-operator farms that do not hire farm labor in large amounts. This is demonstrated

by, the data that out of the 3, 430 farms in San Joaquin County in 2012, only 1, 707 farms hired farm workers.

TABLE 42: $ AN OAQUIIV COUNTY FARMS AND FARM LABOR WORKERS
5      °`     

19;92 2002 i 2012'       2017     
4_.     ,  .,

e . .,  LL   , ,,.. „ w u  ..  ,      .

Hiretlfarmlabor( farms)    2, 106 2, 427 3,580 3, 430

Hired farm labor( workers)  34, 816 . . .   30, 957  _    24, 872 19, 741

SOURCE: 2010 HOUSING ELEMENT,' USDA, 2012 GENSUS OF FARMWORKERS,

While US Census data is available atthe City level; there is no specific Census data available forthejob category of'` Farm
Worker." The Census groups" agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining" together( see Table 8); and there
is no method for separating individual job classifications from the grouping, meaning that farm owners and operators
are grouped in with the farm labor.  There are 198 workers reported in Lathrop' s agriculture, forestry, fishing and
hunting, and mining industrysector, according tothe_2013- 2017 ACS.

The City has actiVely farmed agricultural lands, with orchards and field and row crops( alfalfa, safflower, small grains,
melons, corn, etc.) the predominantagricultural use in the City: While undeveloped land in the City is generally planned
for urban uses, including residential, commercial, and industrial, the 704-acre Paradise Cut area of River Islands is
planned for long-term resource conservation uses, including seasonal flooding, open space, and agricultural. In San
Joaquin County, there are 615, 075 acres of important farmland ( California Department of Conservation Farmland
Mapping and Monitoring Program, 2016). Farmlantl within the City limits, 8, 049 acres, accountsfor approximately 1. 3%
of the agricultural land in San Joaquin County. Applying the City' s proportion of farmland ( 1: 3%) to the 2017 USDA

farmworker count for the County, there are approximately 256 farmworkers associated with farming operations in the
City. Based on the USDA data for the County, approximately 104 of these workers worked 150 days or more and
approximately 157 workers are migrant workers. The most recent wage data released by EDD indicates that in San
Joaquin County, the average farm, fishing, and forestry occupations wage was $ 10. 33 per hour in the first quarter of
2015. The average wage per hourfor fruit and tree nut labor was$ 9. 28 and the average annual wage was$ 19, 315.

In 2015, EDD identified three agricultural operations in Lathrop. While no farm or agricultural operations are currently
listed in Lathrop by EDD, the following agricultural operations appearto continue to be in business:

A&W Farms, Miscellaneous Crop Farming,( EDD indicated 1- 4 employees in 2015)

Dell' Osso Farm, Miscellaneous Crop Farming,( EDD indicated 1- 4 employees in 2015

Classy GrassTurf, Nursery and Tree Production,( EDD indicated 5- 9 employees in 2015)

Fabulously Feathered Silkies, LivestocklPoultry( No EDD employment data)

47

485



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TheHousingAuthorityofSanJoaquinCountycurrenflymanagesthreemigrantfamilyfarm laborhousingdevelopments

within the Counfy, with the capacityto accommodate 285 individuals. Two ofthe farm labor housing centers are located
in French Camp and one is located in Lodi. The Housing Authority also manages 30 unifs of year-round farmworker
housing. In Lathrop, Del' osso Farm, which has row crop and agritourism operations, provides facmworker housing for
two families.       ,.      •

Farmworkers are genecally considered fo have special housing needs because of their limited income and the often
unstable nature of employment( i. e., having to move throughout.the year from one harvest to the next)._Historically,   
many migrant agricultural workers resided in farm labor camps throughout San Joaquin County. It was not uncommon
to see rows of housing, mobile homes, ortrailers right atthejob site where workers lived. This scenario was also common
throughout California'sfarming and ranching communities. Thesetemporary, migrantfarmworkers may have the need
fortemporary trailers or other mobile housing or for dormitory-style housing or other type of group quarters developed
to provide temporary housing. Some of the migrant farmers who formerly moved from state to state or from other
countries to California to pursue agricultural employment may have now become permanent residents of Lathrop. For
those agricultural workers in Lathrop who are full-time residents, housing needs are best met through the provision of
permanent affordable housing: The City is aware ofthe need for permanent housing that is suitable forfarmworkers. As
described, the housing needs offarm workers may need to be addressed through both permanent housing and migrant
farm labor camps. Their housing need may be the same as other households and large families who are in need of
affordable housing with three or more bedrooms.

In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to allow farmworker housing as a permitted use, in all; iones where
agriculture is a permitted use and to permit employee housing for six orfew employees in the same manner as a single
family home, consistent with the requirements of Health and Safety Code Sections 17021. 5 and 17021. 6. The Housing
Plan includes pol.icies and programs directed to encourage the p.royision of adequate farmworker housing.

HomeTess Persons

The federal definition of a homeless person perthe McKinney Act, P. L. 100- 77, Sec. 193( 2), 101 Sat. 485( 1987) is cited
as:

a person is considered homeless when the person orfamily lacks a fixed regular night-time residence, or has a primary
night-time residence that is a supervised publicly- operated shelter designated for providing temporary living
accommodations or is residing in a public or private place not designated for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping
accommodation for human beings."

In 2019, the San Joaquin Continuum of Care Report on the Point in Time Count of the Sheltered and Unsheltered
Homeless identified 1, 071 sheltered and 1, 558 unsheltered homeless persons Countywide and 14 homeless persons
in Lathrop. This is consistent with the 2015 Housing Element, which estimated the number of homeless persons in
Lathrop to be between 15- 20; based on information from the Police Department. Local police officials have stated that
fhey believe that the lioineless who pass through Lathrbp are transient and do not remain in the City due to a lack of
supportservices, There does not appearto be seasonal fluctuatio. n in the number of homeless in the City. The homeless
in San Joaquin County are provided shelter primarily in Stockton, Lodi, Tracy, and Manteca. Homeless persons in Lathrop
are referred to Stockton, as Stockton provides the most comprehensive range of services and shelter.

Countywide, there has been an increase in the homeless population since the 2015 homeless surveys( see Table 43),

primarily due to more accurate counting measures. During this time frame, tlie number of homeless in shelters has
decreased by approximately 8.7% (- 293 homeless), while the unsheltered homeless increased by 191. 6% ( 1, 023.

homeless). The 2015 survey only provided Countywide information and did not identify homeless persons by place
within the County.

48

486



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

r A i

TaB E 43: HOMELESSNESS IN SAN. IOAQUIN COUNTY- ZO' I 5- ZO' I9
M+ . r'   -- a) qs Tp. tr'_" ' g3r >    - r : tc... 

i
V( x o-" 3- '   - t: na.  .

s" k7.£ v 1  '" j`      
sa; `. k, ; ti .   Sheltered  . Unsheltered  ., TO TAL,,.;

Homeless Point- in: Time Survey 2019 1, 071          1, 558         2, 629

Homeless Point- in=Time Survey 2017 985_      56_7    ". 1, 552

Homeless Point- in_Time Survey 2015______    _    1, 173__ _ ____ _______ _535________   _ ___  1, 708______

Change: 2019 to 2015 102/- 8. 7% 1, 0231+ 191. 2%      + 9211+ 53. 9%

SOURCE: HUD CONTINUUM OF CARE, 201 S AND 2OI7,'SAN OAQUIN COUNTY HOMELESS POINT lN TIME SURVEY, 2019

Data is available• regarding certain characteristics of the Countywide homeless population. As shown in Table 44, the
majority of homeless persons are in households, including households both with and without children. Subpopulations
ofthe homeless include the chronically homeless, severely mentally ill persons, persons wifh chronicsubstance abuse,
veterans, persons with HIVIAIDS, and victims of domestic violence. The largest subpopulations in San Joaquin County
are chronic substance abusers( 1, 183 homeless), victims of domestic violence( 9.99 homeless), and severely mentally ill
815 homeless). Data is not available at the city- level regarding population and household characteristics of the

homeless population.

TABLE44: HOMELE55 POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS IN$ AN. IOAQUIN COUNTY( 2019
rw;;       S" cr

r r``   ,,
a- v r vm xs . r  , C> wces.'. r+-**" f' "  €"` t`'"'

w,       =
C haract eristic s ¢^    zk           Sheltered; r  ;; Un h l,tered  r. . 9 Total'_    .

Chronically Homeless                145 3 27         552    

Veterans 82 71 153

Chronic Subsfance Abuse'       N/ A N/ A 59%

Mentall III'      N/ A N/ A  ,,,  . .  34%
R* jt'

ne ..".    
v,

k,. 
ov e

y ;, R e           , a;;      ,    .  ,,  g    xr     . ;       :   . r'"""     "``,-  ""'", N^,a'; "
Tota l Sheltered  !

Ernerge cy   Tra nsitiona

G.: -
HouseholtlT,.$

s .   H'` g_:
19 s teretl., {    and      ,

Shelter ousm      ,    y

t Unshelteredj_,;

Persons in households without children 381 171 1, 548 2, 100      

Persons in households with at. least one
458 57 10 525

adultlone child

Persons in households with. onl children 4 0_    0_    4

TOTAL 843 228 1, 558 2, 629

THE POINT- IN- TIME SURVEYREPORTS THE TOTAL PERCENTAGES FOR THESE SELF- REPORTED POPULAT( OIVS, BUT DOES NOT IDENTIFY

SHELTERED UNSHELTERED COUNTS.

SOURCE: SANJOAQUlNCOUNTYHOMELESSPOINTINTIMESURVEY, 2019.

In 2016, the City amended the Zoning Code to allow 1) emergency shelters as a permitted use in the RM and PO zones,
and 2) transitional and supportive housing as a residential use subject to the same requirements for residential uses of
the same type( e. g., single family or multifamily) in the same zone. The Housing Plan includes policies and programs
directed to encourage the provision of housing and services for the homeless population as well as persons and
households at-risk of homelessness.

Homeless Resources

As part of the Urban County consortium, the City participates in the Countywide homeless programs and resources are
funded primarily through the federal Emergency Shelter Grant and Community DeDelopment Block Grant programs.
The homeless in San Joaquiri are provided shelter primarily in Stockton, Lodi, Tracy, and Manteca.. Homeless from
virtually all other County towns are referred to Stockton. Some of the major shelter providers, most of which are in
Stockton, are the Stockton Shelters forthe Homeless, the Gospel Center' s Rescue Mission and New Hope Fam. ily Shelter,
and Salvation Army. There are over a dozen other shelter providers whose operations are smaller in scale.

49

487



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Citv of Lathro 
Second Harvest Food Bank: Second Harvest Food Bank serves San Joaquin and Stanislaus Counties. Second Harvest

provides supplemental groceries to families with children, senior brown bag groceries, fresh fruits and vegetables to at-
risk populations through local partners, and provides referrals to local food programs and other programs to persons
and households in need of assistance.

Our Cady of Guadalupe, 16200 Cambridge Drive: Our Lady of Guadalupe partners with Second Harvest' s mobile fresh   -
program to provide groceries and fresh fruits and vegetables to at- risk populations( food provided on Wednesdays at
10: 30 am).

PrayerValley: 14172Avon Ave, PrayerUaliey partners with Second Harvest' s mobile fresh program to provide groceries
and fresh fruits and vegetables to at- risk populations( food provided Tuesdays/ Thursdays at 10 am).  

Food For You - Commodity Program: The Commodity Program delivers over 9 million pounds of USDA, FEMA, and
donated foodstuffs to 16 community centers and sites that, in turn, distribute the food to needy individuals and families
on the third Thursday of every month. Food donors and prospective volunteers may contacttfie Commodity Program at
Lathrop' s Senior Center.

St. Vincent de Paul Society: The food pantry and clothes closet are run by a group of volunteers who serve men, women,
and children who are currentljr withoutthe meansto attain adequate food or clothing. Parish and community donations .
fund the food pantry and clothes closet. Special food collections take place during the holiday season.

Countywide Sup ortive Programs

Coordinated Agency Response Effort( CARE): The CARE program was designed to allow smallerfamily shelters to provide
continuing support services to clients that moved from shelters to transitional housing. The primary focus is on
households with dependent children. Continuing case management is often, but not always, provided by the shelter
where they previously resided.

Shelter Plus Care: This program provides rent assistance to homeless and disabled persons. Qualifying disabilities
include serious mental illness, HIVIAIDS, or physical disabilities through the Central Valley Low Income Housing
Corporation( CHLIVC) located in Stockton.

Central Valley Low Income Housing Corporation: This supportive housing program provides rent assistance and
supportive services to homeless families and individuals. Supportive services include case management, budgeting
assistancelcounseling, education assistance, and job search preparation.

Hermanas I& 11: The Hermanas Programs were designed to provide transitional housing to homeless households with
significant substance abuse problems. The focus is on single mothers with dependent children.

Homeless to Homes 1& 11& Horizons: The Homeless to Homes and Horizons Programs provides transitional housing
and support services to homeless families. The Programs put an emphasis on the transition from emergency shelter to
stable housing.

Lutheran Social Services of Northern California: This permanent supportive housing program provides rent assistance
and support services to homeless former foster youth with disabilities. Supportive services include case management,

education assistance, child care, and transportation assistance.

NewDirections: This supportive housing program serves homeless individuals, most ofwhom have had contactwith the
criminal justice system because of a history of substance abuse. The program participants reside in tlormitories and
receive supportive services which include individual and group counseling.

ProjectHope: Aprogramgearedtowardsaged- outfosteryouthathighriskofhomelessness. TheProgramusesscattered

site apartments throughout Stockton and Lodi and offers educational and life skills training.

50

488



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Supporting People In a Community Environment( SPICE): The SPICE program offers permanent housing for people with
disabilities. Eight separate households provide a shared housing experience for up to 27 individuals.

Emergency Shelters

Familyand Youth Services( Stockton): Provides a safe, caring shelterto runaway and throw awayyouth. The Program also
offers hot meals and counseling services( family, group, and individual) to assist in their employment and educational
needs.

Gospel CenterRescue IUlission( Stockton): Provides emergency food, clothing, shelter, health care services and life skills
training for both homeless families and individuals. The Emergency lodging program provides residential lodging to
families and individuals on an emergency basis. The New Life Program provides longer- term assistance- two- six month
residential programs that include daily meals, housing, clothing, chapel services, and addiction counseling and an array
of supportive services.

Haven of Peace( French Camp): Since 1959 has provided emergency shelter, food, clothing, and hygiene services to
single women and chiidren. Clients receive case management services, job readiness, and life skills training in
preparation in becoming self-sufficient.

Hope HarborShelter( Lodi): Offers emergencyshelterservices and transitional housing forfamilies and individuals, as
well as meals and clothing. Hope Ministries ( Manteca) — Operates two family shelters offering meals and clothing
services.

Lodi House( Lodi): Offers shelter, meals, and clothing services to homeless women and their children. In addition, Lodi
House also offers counseling services to assist women in gaining control of their lives and to making the transition to
self- sufficiency.      

Mary Graham' s Children' s Shelter( French Camp). Marcy Graham' s Children' s Shelter provides educational, medical,
dental, immunizations and mental health services to all residents. The facility strives to meet the children' s recreational,
religious, social and emotional needs through various programs/ activities. This residential children' s shelter provides

protective custody on a temporary emergency basis for abused and neglected children in San Joaquin County.

McHenry House ( Tracy):  Offers meals, shelter for up to 12 weeks, and clothes for homeless families with children.
Services such as life skills training, parenting skills, family counseling, budgeting skills, are offered to assist families to
selfsu.fficiency. Follow up counseling is offered for up to one yearafter leaving the shelterto ensure clients are improving
their lives.

New Home FamilyShelter( Stockton): Offers shelter and related services for homeless single women and women with
children. Services including counseling, coping skills, parenting skills, anger management, relapse prevention,
nutrition, personal hygiene, and job readiness, and savings assistance.

St. Mary' s Interfaith Community Services ( Stockton): Provides care to the community' s homeless and working men,
women and children living significantly below the poverty line since 1955. Services include the Fr. Alan McCoy Dining
Room, Virgil Gianelli Medical Clinic, St. Raphael' s Dental Clinic, Kara Brewer Family Clothing and Hygiene Center and
Social Services Department. Clients are able to care for their basic human needs in a compassionate and caring
environment on a daily basis.

Stockton Shelter( StocktonJ: Offers emergency shelter, food, and clothing services for single adults and families at two
facilities in Stockton. During the winter months additional shelterforfamilies is provided in French Camp. Also provides
mental health services, drug screening and hygiene products. Transitional housing for individuals and families with
AIDS is provided year round.

Women' s Center( Stockton, Lodi, Tracy): Operates two emergency shelters for women and children fleeing violent and
abusive environments. Both sites offer case management, parenting classes, domesticviolence and self- esteem support

51

489



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

groups, financial literacy, and services for employment preparation. The Women' s Center also operates the Just for Kids
Program and an aftercare support group.    

HOPEFamilyShelter( Manteca): Off.ersemergencyshelterforadultswithchildren. 

Raymus House( Manteca): Offers emergency shelterto single mothers.

LTNITS AT- R SK OF CONVERSION

California housing element law requires jurisdictions to include a study of low- income assisted multifamily housing
units that are eligible to change from low- income housing uses during the nextten years due to termination of subsidy
contracts, mortgage payment, or expiration of restricted use( Government Code 65583). These units riskthe termination

of various subsidy groups which could convert certain multifamily housing frbm affordable to market rate. State Law
requires housing elements to assess at- risk housing in order to project any potential loss of affordable housing.

Lathrop does not have any assisted multifamily rental housing, based on a review of HUD, LIHTC, USDA, and public
housing data for the region( California Flousing Partnership Corporation mapping tool, 2015) and, consequently, does
not have any units at- risk of conversion.

52

490



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

4.     Constraints      

Constraints to housing de.velopment are defined as government measures or non=government conditions that limit the
amountortiming of residential development.

Governmentregul. ationscan potentiallyconstrainthesupplyofhousingavailable. in a communityifthe regulationslimit

the opportunities to develop housing, impose requirements that unnecessarily increase the cost to develop housing, or
make the development prbcess so arduous as to discourage housing developers. State law requires housing elements
to contain an analysis of the governmental constraints on housing maintenance, improvement, and development
Government Code, Section 65583( a)( 4)). Lathrop is undertaking many changes to its Zo-ning Ordinance as part of its

work program to implement the 2010 Housing Element and is also addressing potential constraints identified during
the preparation of this Housing Element.

Non- governmental constraints ( reqaired to be analyzed under Government Code, Section 65583( a) ( 5)) cover land

prices, construction costs, and financing. While local governments cannot control prices or costs, identification of these
constraints can be helpful to Sebastopol in formulating housing programs.

GOVERNMEIVTAL CONST&iAINTS

Land Use Conta ols

General Plan Land Use Designations

By definition, local land use controls constrain housing deveiopment by restricting housing to certain sections ofthe City
and by limiting the number of housing units that can be built on a given parcel of land.  The City' s General Plan
establishes land use designations for all land within tfie City' s boundaries.

Lathrop' s General Plan designations are separated into three sub- plan areas as shown in Figure 1. Lands east of the San
Joaquin River are p:art of sub- plan areas# 1 and # 2 ( this area does not iriclude the Central Lathrop Specific Plan area),
Lands east ofthe San Joaquin Riverare partofsub-plan# 2( this area includes the Mossdale Landing and Central Lathrop
Specific Plan area). Lands west of the San Joaquin River are part of sub- plan# 3, which is referred to as the Stewart Tract
this area includes River Islands and SoutheastStewartTract).

The General Plan includes designations that eccommodate a range of residential development types in each sub- areas
seeTable 45 and Figure 1).

TaB E 45: CITY GENERAL PLAN RESIDENTIAL LAND USE DESIGNATIONS

General Plari D.esi` nation           S   =  :      r     Descri tion      `'   y. s,1,     . . e.   q, , .  v   ,
r      ., .,      ,.   , a.. ,.,

Low Densify Residential Single family d.etached homes with densities of 1- 7 housing units per net
acre

Medium Density Residential Single- family and multifamily housing with densities of 8- 15 units per net
acre

Hi h Densit Residential Multifamily and group homes with densities of 16- 25 units per net acre
Recreational Residential. .  :   No description provided. See zoning.

Professional Office( Office Centers)    Provides for office complexes as distinct centers of business activity in close
relation to the Central Business District

Community Commercial Provides for a full- range of retail goods

Nei fiborhood Commercial Provides for convenience store and personal services

Central Lathrop- Variable Dens: ity Sin le famil , multifamil with a densit ran e of 3- 16 units per acre

Centrel Lathrop- Residential/ Mixed Residential and commercial uses with densities of 10- 40 units per net acre

Central Lathrop- High Density
Multifamily dwellings( flats, townhouses, condominiums; apartments,
du lexes, with a densif ran e of 15- 40 units er net acre

River Islands- Low Density .   Up to 9 housing units per aae

53

491



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

General; Plan. Desig' riation  .;       
y      = ;.       °'°.    ;. .:  .

Descripti. on;     ..,, a      .      

River Isla_nds- Medium Density Up to 20 housing units per: n.et acre
River Islands- High Densit .    Up to 40 housing units per net acre _
River Islands- Mixed Use 3 to 40 housing units per acre
SOURCE: CITY OF LATHROP GENER.4L PLAN, AMENDED II O9 O4

Zonin

The City' s Zoning Code provides for a range of densities and residential uses, including single family, multifamily,
mobile homes and manufactured housing, second units, and residential care as shown in Table 46.    

The City' s Zoning Code also addresses three areas within Specific Plans( River Islands, Central Lathrop, and Mossdale
Village).  For each of these areas, the applicable specific plan documents provide additional guidance regarding
permitted densities, lot sizes, and development permitted. Table 46 reflects densities, lot sizes, and uses allowed by
both the Zoning Code and applicable specific plan documents.

Tae E 46: RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS

Types:'of Un'its Per nitted
Permo ted Densitiy      Niinimu;m Lot Sizes       ( w/ o Conditronal, Use  .;'

DU/ AC)     sf) Perortit)
e

Single family, second unit,Residential Acreage( RA)    1 20, 000
residential care.( b or less)

One- Family Residential( R- 1- 6, R- 1-  Minimum: 1 Single family, second unit,
6X)     Maximum: 7

6, 000
residential: care( 6 or less)

One- Family Residential( R- 1- 5)       
Minimum: 1

5, 000 Single family, second unit,
Maximum: 7 residential care( b or less)

Minimum: 8 6, 000 Single family, duplex,
Multifamily Residential( RM- 3)      

Maximum: 15 3, 000 per unit) 
multifamily, second unit,
residential care( b or less)

i Minimum; 16 6, 000 Single family, duplex,
Multifamily Residential( RM- 2)      

aximum: 25 2, 000 per unit) 
multifamily, second unit,
residential care( 6 or less)

Minimum: 16 6, 000 Single family, duplex,
Multifamily Residential( RM- 1. 5)'   

Maximum: 25 multifamily, second unit,1, 500 per unit) 
residential care( 6 or less)

Multifamily Residential( RM- MH8)   
Minimum: 1_  

5 acres
Maximum: 8

Single family: 6, 000 Single family, duplex,
Professional Office( PO)      Maximum: 25

Multifamily: 2, 000 multifamily, residential care
b or less)

Single family over or to the
Neighborhood Commercial( CN)    Same as RM- 2 6; 000 rear of a permitted use,

residenfiaLcare( b or less)

Conditional use permit

Central Commercial( CC)    Same as RM- 1. 5 Same as RM- 1. 5 required for residential uses

allowed in RM- 1. 5

Single family, duplex,
Recreational Residential( R- REC- ST)      29. 04 1, 500 multifamily, small

residential care

Rive„r' Isfands(= RI)      r  E

Minimum: 3 Single family, duplex,
Residential Low Density( RL- RI)       

Maximum: 9
2, 400 multifamily, second unit,

residential care( b or less)

54

492



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND: REPORT

r  

as    

3x 
t 2s'  

2a :;, .

c,` .... "'; 
t . "" 

sx  ".'   
r 3z N'

M'^:
a,:, ra  .,    .   r-.  ?s   i

ry ; y    x-.   f  ,       ,        <   4 .  -;       ; T:y es of 11n' its Permitted;
x.{. j "';;, P+r i' d D"e'n   ,.  ` g,,..    ,   :,°

a     ., , e m te      ity.   Mintmum Lot,S zes ,    wlo Cond fit anal Us   w,
f..   

4    -  ffi  e;, „`"  '] fi w4t    , Y` t.`^,^,}
y  ,

a" 4,;.' m h r:, a s5     3.   r    , R'  
r 4",

hTk     
amF    k- 

a a r  7      " s, r          
t * f k 4 c  r      §+,`  s+'   , b X

y    
t 

x        n F   
a    "`

a(  \  t r Perm t,: r  -   s

a,a. s. y„>?:.., g' Yn  
l`(

r s;"`" a a.'"°
kem. 4. "  s; , HC   `' ,_ r,. .). rr 4"  '+, ttr.,- ISfA'

r s  -,.
s; a...'..?; p, tia n     ,  . J^`+° W"? w.    

Residential Medium Density( RM-    Minimum: 6 SingJe family, duplex,

RI)  Maximum: 20
2, 400 multifamily, second unit, 

9

residential care( 6. ox less)

Minimu. m: 15 Single family, duplex;
Residential High Density( RH- RI)   0- 20, 000 mufti#amily, second unit,

Maximum: 40
residential care( 6 or less)

Low: 3- 9

Mixed Use( MU- RI)
High:   .   

2, 400 Si.ngle family, multifamily, :     .
Minimum: 15 residential care( b o.r less)

Maximum: 40. 
7 n       . d i ap t 4   ^ a ; .!    ,}&       3 tt' - +^  :     . aiy

w* r
R rvta u z

x     ° en ral+lathro ( CLxj:    Y. F' ,
a ... X.,' h c_,+_,.

f., x,     
rv1     . Aw'. S s K.     . ,. ta, ....., t. „ C.,   t. yr ocF " b yt  .. M. . A°

a;  ,._" s".$:    a lv, ra... _... ...  . . . ..  .. .... ....  o..., d     , w u.. ,. .

Minimum: 3
Single Eamily: less  .       Single family, duplex,

Variable Density Residential( VR- CL)   than 4, 000 to over multifamily, second unit;Maximum: 16 5, 000 residential care( b or less)

Minimum: 15 Singie famify, duplex;
High Density Residential( HR- CL) multifamily, second unit,.Maximum: 40

resitlential care( b o.r less)

Single Family: 0. 14- 4
Single Family: less Singl_e family, duplex,

ResitlentiallMixed- Use( RIMU- CL)     Multifamily
than 4, 000 to over multifainily, second unit,

Minimum: 10
5, 000 resitlential care( 6 or less)

Maximum: 40
h`"

5',
k' ^'"' SF.     ',' .'.  '# ' '' ee": rr'     r      .

T

4. t     >. 
r i  - 

r, t z k a sa;  h

r'       : s x 4 r w r 5 e z;
Massdal Uilla e

Mila   
r  ... re

f  ,  ,,
t.,, ,   ,,

r.r.& a. a a..,.., s,.. ,..,.. r,..... t,_.,y ,.. .: 2,. ww , s,,. da, <. ,,,,:   ,.,.. ....,,,
r.

l.u—
s.,.- r,., .. .«..

a..       
v x   4  ...* . r.`.,u, Waur  ,. x.. . .,.   .    .   „   . r.,

Single Family Resid' entiaf( R_-MV,  Single family, multifamily, :
RX- MV)      

1-. 7 6, 000
residential care( b or less)

Minimum: 8 6, 000( multifamily)  :      
Single family, duplex,

M,ulti- family Residential( RM- MV) multifamily, residential careMaxirrium: 15 5, 000( single family)       b or less)

Minimum: 15 Single family, duplex,
Residential High Density( RH- MV)     None multifamily, second unit,Maximum: 40

residential care( 6 or less)

High density residential
Minimum: 16 apartments, senior

Village Commercial( CV- MV) 
Maximum: 25

None
housing, condominiums,

live/ work)
SOURCE: LATHROP ZON/ NG. CODE, Z01 S; WEST LATffROP SRECIF( C PLAN R( VER ISGANDS. SOUTHEAST STEWART TRACT, AND MOSSDALE V/ LLAGE,

2012; R1VER ISLAIVDS URBAN DESIGN CONCEPT, 2OI3; CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN, 2011

1 ZONING CODE SECTION 17.36.01 O AND GENERAL PLAN TABLE lV-2.S ARE CLEAR THAT THE RM-3 ZONINC D/ STRICT ACCOMMOD'ATES 8-1 S DU PER

ACREAND TH6 RM-2.S AND RM-I:S ACCOMh10DATE I 6-ZS DU AC. HOWEVER, ZONING CODE SEETION I7..36.OSO. D CREATES CONFUSION BY

NCORRECTLYWDICATING THAT ALL RM MULTIFAMILYDISTRICTS ACCOMMODATE 8-1 S DU AC. PROGR. 4M 2R lN THE HOUSING PLAN W1LL REMOVE'

THISEHROR IN THE ZONING EODE.

The City' s Zoning Code a_nd_specific plans provide for a range of residentia. l uses, including single family, duplex,
multifamily, mobile.or manufactured housing, second units, residential care( small and large), and mobile home parks.
Table 46 identifies the residential uses permitted in each zoning district. As shown in Table 47, single family uses' are
permitted in the zoning districts forthe sites identified in Table 61 to accommodate lower income housing. The Housing
Plan includes a program to limit the development of single family housing on sites identified for lower income
development, in order# o' enco,urage multifamily and affordable dev.elopment projects.

55

493



2019 HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TAB E 47: PERMITfED RESIDENTIAL USES '   
a;

f ^.,   ,. 7k}  i  " k£ A   z      `     ,.   n
f       ¢  s, s T u :.,

c' b
g  ;,

fG t sc y,  r i
v  ' ?

3         a . '':     y}:.  '

t ,
w  ,_       y^ r  '  s         4 ^ ?„     s    ± s          

r       

F,.     

c4    
r}.§

N., 

p;
rMobile/ 

k
t  ,;

r  .,`   xRes den„ tr, Resitlen#  Mo6tle
1 3F:  

r`"„ r`: w `. z`. YY:.;.hP "   J n I ; 1 r a,       ,.
IVIU tI   : i  i?„ ",+

r, a r; we  $,',.

z';.:     •
ir  . r',

N'

n"&}§ w lt i P?' Fcn, z ;.'
a;-       .        .   r:   Manuf = ` aDU;:,  SRO.;  3       qy.

r
Zo`ning Distrrct ',   „  .;   Du I;ex    w         

a     i
r Y ral Care„  ial, Care Mome

Famil       ' family ,,  x .    , ,; „.      

p     ,                 Y.  ,   
ng     E.,  :: ,   .

a A ..  6 ar( ess      7 +°,. Park ,e   Hous 3      
ff

y.      < 9

p eh1.   .
T'    .      ...     

x  '- » .  .   . .    _  ..,,       
x T., r.    a.,..   ,. ..    

Residential Acreage"( RA)  P P P ,. P C
One- Family Residential( R)       , P.: P p       _  ':   ...      p C C_   _  _  .._.

Multifamily Residential :  
P P F P F C P A/ C1         C

RM- 3, RM= 2,; RM- 1. 5) ,      

Multifamily Residential
P .  P P P p p.  A/ C1 C

RM- MH8)

Professional Office( PO)   P P P.    P F P C

Neighborhood
A2 A2 P A2        .. .

Commerc. ial( CN)

Community CommerciaC
C3 C3 C3 C3 R C3

CC)      
Recreational Residential

P A S P R P C
R- REC- ST)       

a.  
y        sr. 1c  , r   RIVP$ s'llld$, z    „ wb .  .. e.  v ,. . . v ..  ,. w , ,.  _      .,..<.  .,     ,

Mixed Use( MU- RI) _       P P P P P C A

Residential Low Density P P P P P P C C
RL- R1).

Residential Medium
P p P P P P C

Densit ( RM- R1)  .      

Resitlenfial High Density
P P p P P P:    C

RH= RI}
f

x    . ;  

x 

Centra I La h r'op f;,),    
Fr       

x

ris2,.    -,,... t t ,      .
ri    , i w 4 d- ,

t.   ? n z: .    , ad"
r, r a  ,; b_. v

IY v   , 1.,;'u.     ..    _,       .,..    _. ,.._.   

Variable Density P p F P P P C
Residential( VR- CL)

High Density Residenfial
P _  P P F P P C

HR- CL)

Residential/ Mixed- Use P P P p p P C
R/ MU- CL)

p.°' u ESS f',, 4Sik^'' is  . yf:^ a. . "+. r`. z  
kr,°

i i f  ..
r'

v    

Mr!:

r r
x'^ &,

w*>. s :.,    , au;': ,, n s  .,: 3
k t$.,. t., y , m 3 b 2:,, t,' x '    e" d

T .. 
u  "

x' Eafv' r ;= .

C--.'.;'` ka. w'
x`,.

z".^ :.

5,,

u:, t€  ,
r...,
N,.,.; a.

4S i„`^` ù* Y. Y IYIQs" et la. f V   t r'. s t, w  '' i ts;"., '."; r: f"- i``.w'rk a.' $ .'  .: r.+"a;f:..      _ e    n'4`"'.-9 x,._ a _ w€rr$  °+, n fi_       aka;ti,`"
r o,_ x .„ a.  .   , :. , m       .   a

Single Family Residential
R- MV, RX- MV)     

P F P P P PC

Multi- family Resi.denti.al
P .  q S P P P PC PC

RM- MV). .  

Residential High Density P P P P R P
RH- MV)       

Village Commercial( VC-       
P P P,

MU) . :      

ADU=ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT,'SRO= SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY:

P= PERMITTED USE,'$= PERMITTED USE, ADMINISTR. 9TNEAPPROVAL CH. 17.I08; S= PERMITTED USE, SIT& PLAN REV( EW,' C= CONDITIONAL

USE PERMIT CH. 17.I I2; PC—PLANNWG COMMISSIONAPPROVAL REQUIRED

FAMILYCARE NOh1E— 17.32.020;! IANUFACTURED HOIISING— 1:7.68

ADMIN/ STR. 9TIVE NURSING HOMES, REST HOMES AND CONDITIONAL GROUP HOMES

Z SINGLE FAMILYALLOWED IN CN DISTRICT IF OVER OR AT REAR OF PERMITTED USE, SUBJECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE RM- 2, DISTRICT

3 RESIDENTIAL ALLOWED IN CC DISTRICT! F OVER A PERMITTED USE, SUBJECT TO THE DEVEGOPMENT STANDARDS OFTHE RM—I.S D/ STRICT

56

494



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Development Standards

Table 48 summarizes developmentstandards, including minimum lotsize, setbacks, lot coverage, and building height,    
by zoning district. Zoning districts within a specific plan are addressed in Tables 49 through 51 for residential zoning
tlistrictsthatarenotwithinaspecificplan. Table49summarizesdevelopmentstandardsforRiverlslandszoningdistricts

and Mossdale Village zoning districts, both addressed by fhe West Lathrop Specific Plan.

Table 50 describes development standards for conventional plotted single family lots and multifamily lots in zoning
districts addressed by the Central Lathrop Specific Plan.   Table_ 51 summarizes development standards for

unconventional lots, such as rear- or alley- loaded single family lots and cluster housing forzoning districts in the Central
Lathrop Specific Plan.  Deve_lopment standards have not been established for the R- REGST district; standards for this

districtwill be established by an urban concept plan during the planning processforfuture development in this district,

The City' s stantlards are appropriate to- accommodate the permitted uses in each zone, with the exception of the height
limits for multifamily uses in Mossdale Village.  It is noted that the lot coverage standards are limited to structures
homes, garages, etc.) and do not applyto features such as driveways, parking areas, or patios orfeatures forthe disabled
walkways, ramps, etc.).

The maximum building heightfor all residential zoning districts is between 32 to 75 feet. This allows for development
to exceed two stories in all zones for all residential housing types. The zoning code allows the maxi.mum height limit to
be exceeded for architecturel features and projections such asfire and parapet walls, skylights, towers, spires; cupolas,

flagpoles, chimneys, and similarstrucfures.

While all ofthe base residential developmentstandards are listed above; the City' s zoning code contains other provisions
that provide flexibility for many of the base standards, which allows property owners and developers to maximiie
development on their lots without requiring discretionary action. For instance, ce.rtain architectural featu,res may project
into required yards such as sills, chimneys, fireplaces; cornices and eaves may extend into a required rear yard or a space
between structures not more than 36 inches and may extend into a required front yard not more than 6 feet; provid.ed,
that where an architectural feature extends more than 24 inches into a required side yard, said extension shall be
protected by a minimum 1- hour fire resistant standard. Also, open, unenclosed, uncovered metal fire escapes and
depressed ramps or stairways may project into any required yard or spaee between buildings not more than 4 feet;
planter boxes attached to a building may be extended into a required front yard by not more than 3 feet. The Central
Lathrop Zoning District allows several elements to project into the right- of-way; entry feafures up to 12 inches, awnings
up to 5 feet; bay windows up to 3 feet.

TABLE 4H: DEVELOPMENT$ TANDARDS BY ZONING D.ISTRICT
rt,       

u s       
xR

De efopment«          '
I 6 R      

x  ,     ' '    ,    M     " IST_   
T             A    

E       x
k     P4 CN CC  

R 1 5  " RM MH8 RNi 3 ;    RIN4, 2^ RM  5  '     ' , r     `   . ir5tandards          
x<    `          

LATH6              , '    `,

k.    

a,,       2          v     . a*. v
d       ; 

E     
Y r ,:      

o                  . a
k'   ,  „ x N. M    ...'  .... . ,. ,      _ v               .. r. , t ptt       .,    r   . fi  ..   . n._ w ....     n   . Y. a  . 0.,

CN:

i 8J1 to 7. 26- SF
Same as

Density 1 1- 7 1- 7 8- 15 8- 15 16-25 16- 25
29. 04 21J8 MF

RM= 1. 5
CC: Saine

as RM- 2

20, 000/     6, 000-       
CN:

6, 000 6, 000 6, 000 Sarrie as
Min. Site Area 40; 000 2, 800-       SF

2 6, 000 5, 000 5 aaes    ( 3, 000    ( 2, 000    ( 1, 500 RM- 1: 5
sf)  average 3 200 2, 000-

lot size
per du)   per du)    per du)      '   

MF
CC: Same
as RM- 2

Minimum Lot
100 65160 60/ 50 50 50 50 50 50- 35 50 No limit

Width( ft)

Minimum lot
150 80/ 90 80/ 90 80 80 80 80 75- 35 100

de th( ft)

57

495



2019 HOUSfNG. ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

t;: r +'s'"   '^ l.
A.

c § s;^    . Z -.: 2
y  .:

r,  r k pp      '%,
in T   ;,"    '" a : x , 3!` v  . y r^ t , T,'      .;    .

F  + a'>'r`     '`. arf ; 6'" 7"'' .
s,

a`* t-    C' f' s      k,. h `, k  `'
t   !

dr „•'`   1 141
a "` i, 

xw:     .   ' t rd2s*n2i,.'%"`" 3s"  S i'.., e. a'"£+ w t̀ 2^  ;      .   _  ..
rs v      ' '

s``i  " ' 7- x` L.   + f,..° ns  .. st rz, L.^ af Z.    ,. n +.       e.." c., ra*    r m av..?¢ :

IST'
1°`" a" ar. u .. a-+§

as

er,ek pment,
w   

V ; . K,   yts       f'               K`     
q{`-` a, ,., i   

s=: .

a;;`[
iA R 7 b, R,. r   `"'""''     `'   ' 2'  aNl=1 5  '' L

ATHb'

a r

PO a CNICC z

Stand y        R 1 5 RM MH8  RM 3 RNO
m       p

ty  "' t' nP".: 3 k j 4"yx{'!  .; 
J   '""` r Y G .`

l          
fi

t .:     
y 4   )   m'       0 k.     ' u f' ,"   Mr* x a-.

JA" t w'"} 
ff?`

v  ?' N      _v

t. w a
i.'*-..

r.,_. as:^_.
s ., mi i'*:k u''

i".    .,
4"_  m, d,.,- .. ,,, d n' P_"'.. b". a.%     a,<_&  • r-... 4..        '     § t..,

v„: tiH a xr".°..°' fi rv.  X.    +,   .

Minimum

Setbacks( ft)
8- 10/ 15- .

35. 20 20 15 15 15 :       15 15 15/ 10
Front 20:.

0110 if
Side 5 5 5/ 10 5 5/ 5 5/ 5 5/ 5 4- 5 5 abutting

interior/
Street3. .      residential,

Rear 0%10 if

single- storyltwo-     5/ 10 10/ 10 10120 5/ 10 5/ 106 51106 5/ 106 . . 5- 10120 515 abutting
storya resi.dential

Maximum Height
35 35 35 35 35 35 35 32- 35 40 65/ 75

ft) :       -

Maximum Lot
35%      40%       40% NA S0%       60%      65%     60- 70%    JO%  .   No limit

Coverages

SOURCE: LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 17, 201 S.'

IZONING CODE SECTION 17.36.010 AND GENERAL PLAN TABLE IV-2.$ ARE CGEAR THAT THE RM-3 ZONlNG OISTRICT ACCOMMODATES 8- 1 S DU PER .
ACRE AND THE RM=2.$ AND RM- I.S ACCOMMODATE 16- 2$ DU AC HOWEVER, ZONING CODE SECTION I7.,36. 0$ O. D CREATES CONFUSIOIV BY
INCORRECTLY INDICATING THAT ALL RM MULTIFAIN( LYDISTRICTS ACCOMMODATE 8-1 S DU AC. PROGRAM 2R IN THE HOUSING PLAN WlLL REMOVE
THIS ERROR/ N THE ZONING CODE.

2IN RM DISTRICTS, SITEAREA! S SHOWN AS MINIMUM SITEAREA PER PARCEL MINIMUM SITE AREAPER DWELLING UNIT.

3SlDE YARD SETBAGKS INCREASED BY IO FEET INRA AND R DISTRICTS PER EACHSTORY OVER ONE STORYAND BY S FEET IN RM DISTRICTS

4 REAR SETBACK INCREASED BY I O FEET lN AL'L RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS S FEET IN PO PER EACH STORY OVER ONE STORY

SLOT GOVERAGE APPLIES TO AREAS COVERED BYSTRUCTURES

CH/STORIC LATHROP O VERLA Y DlSTRICT PROVIDES FOR FOUR ZONING DISTR/ CTS:' R ONE- FAMILY RESIDENT/ AL LARGE AND SMALL LOTS, RM

MULTIFAM¢ Y RESIDENTIAL UNITSATTACHED AND DETACHED. THE TABLE PROVIDES FOR RANGES WITHIN THE D/ FFERENT DISTRICTS.   
7SIDE YARDS SHALL BE I O FEET lF PROVIDING ACCESS TO MORE THAN ONE UN/ T.

TAs E 49: DEVELOPMENT. STANDARDS — WEST LATHROF SPECIFIC PLAN..      ,
J       5,     x i 7    

g*   M   '   an  ".  y.
h.    ., h. 7

k,  4;a y py  
p

J{
i'   Sa  F

q      :„      :
x      '      xtty F 

t`     
5' .,' A`*  :

R vor fslands Mossdale Villarye       {      
rr m          + 

n r"'   ' - u      .' 2,   ^ a e       o-    5..  a r, ` x h.-' i  '  s.   . ' ta    

d.

e....   Jr 5 x w 1 2 s a

n* 1! 
x . " wrv. 3* c '

a,.,A' i`  's.. a k? t, 
T'

y
r 

y?+
y. a"` r

rp ar +,
g   ^" 

x 

s, $ k     
X i+

y,        : 
J a  P V'`

k:"'

r°,°'„ w '}:° azs` 5i, y#.   .
s  - °":    !   ; b     .: k       . , s $ s

c F Yj" Sf   '       i - a') tX -  v# SI II IP.   k '°`     k.:    x   t"6, X k

f:   .  a.•:,    . ti;    ,.  ; 

y   €':
Y

wb  x.,.:.. 4 
rd^ s6x,- s' z   `' ..     .,,

4    . i,   .        ,,  " ":, . , . 
a5::    

n F`
t4+. ^ it`  Y IagP. y. r;:

5.:    s v S        t^     '   . n r'      S
6` , F X t-' a d.,   £ n r x S       ""

Deuel;o ment    ,'  W '_  
A  

z <'      ;   '
h    .  " " Famil    { xMulfi Fam"il Hi h;Aensit : Com meru;;x

r"'".': b w'- F;:,,°'"
f',...+.

a ,,," ro- y'   ,!.  `:    
Mk` d n Y j ^..   

u    ,„     c w,.'., 3 Ya r c    .   a      rr&  .      l i  F.' s    
n   . a.:  "

v7    S' t  `;    = a,
Z

a"4f r+ h 7    .> $, wE  ,.       '`...; sks' d f',
y

r".,

n,..,"'. z`° y,
µ 3:' 1""     r". x" i°

2ti Sfandard' s k   ,,  R         RH          NiU    Residential   esrdent al*e+ s d ntial al(VC
MW)

f r   a
c<

z a  '       ,,

s         2 s  + r  ; y` ri, Y""  '

kt'

l  s
y: 4 7

s
r wril,.  R s,.            J'";;`" 2           ki''   

7   „
e           

r             y Y M11 a   k (R1U MVf Rli
MII) ,-       ,`"    

h  

Mrt.,         ^;.1w er  , C,,"' ,
4a e t'.,«, w  , x;` s,", z ,,

z , "„..',
x"   , c`:,&;i

w.
t''

n,
f<'

3 r...i mf"„',„, r•.z jAaa" ,{,..' M F'  +; f x-    ,..m̂ sm
d¢;..   

K.,,,. l' fr,,''
3 a

s s£ F„: r" Cx,"`  '  
d, 

t k!,
f.  `

r s ,:    

h,""„".,.    .  S   +, o-

r,`. 5` a. a,, 2.aw'; mr..   N' afk   .,-,.` s.
1` vdm; t"' v, 4a.' h..^  ,."'w t.  -?;  „ r..,, .a. r vw. k,,.  :za, e„. a rr c   , i,. F•, r ǹw' i' n°*:. ro...,,, aa .:. ..,, , a}.. r+; d° x.'^ic. r,   s.., ..

w„Low density 16-

25;.Density( DU/ AC) 3- 9 6= 20 15-
40 3

9 1- 7 8- 15 15-
40 Max. 2:

0 High densify:       floor

area 15- 40

ratio 6,

000 .:
multifamily . 2, 400-    developments

or Min. Site Area( sf)   0-  S. ingle;     2 or:more
single 2, 400 2,

400 Z0, 000 20,
000- 6,

000 family units on
a

None Multifamily  .       

site) . 5,000:(

single

famil )Minimum

Lot Width 35 35 65160 50.      

None

Comerllnterior Minimum lof 75/ 75 75/ 75 80/ 90 50

None

496



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REFORT

k'        '    River Is ands'  

G                 $`    

f'  "
t'     = Mossdale Uullage       

s
l"="" 4. ' c'

3, r      ,   s re
s y    , r a' t; s a  «, +; a       . a°   t-       _.-. h     x 

3,

wsr  r w s t  ..

a'.   "«'.? z ','` .
x   n x7 r':;  

sr  .  "  a 5""
R-  .".`

i'".'  t  '
E"

3 n^   ,

r
r  , " ',

s`
a

H'+,

3

m;`^»",   ,

r

t,   Singie  ry    '      

x*          r       U Ilage A,
A k k t 6   ' m

S^ .. 6 t.;

D evelop ment 
ro"     ,,      ,  $            r    Fam ly pMulti amil. H gi Density CommerciFp. s    r"a:   r 3

r   ; s  '".       ^          '      `

5tandards  
r  '   

IU Resi entia'  x Residentia,   esi dentra l  (_       ,       RL         RI  ffH  , x
t

al UC MV

R MV, X ,     ( RMr MU)       ( RH MV)     ,  ,
e.      .   a t

w

tt\ d wy     .   
s

r t^`     w" t

b
x. t:      S t 4 5

Y..,     r t
V   } y  

A_X  

dept.li     .  
r . 

Cornerllnterior

Minimum Setbacks
L F.  : .  

10- 20( must 10- 20( mustvary
Primary 5 ft=

Front 0- 10 0- 10  .     0= 20 vary within within
streets: 15 ground

subdivision)    subdivision)       
Interior floor

streets: 10 residential

0 ft
5 ft- corner -

5
lot with

Side 0- 10 0- 10 0- 20 10- Corner 0- 20
ground.

lot floor
residential

10- first 10=: first story
Rear story 10= add' I story

0- 20 0- 20 0- 20 10=       ( single family)       0= 20
atlditional 5- add' I story

stor multifamil )

Maximum Height 35 50 50 125 35 35 50 .   38

Low densit 40%(.6, 000
50% 6, 000 s ; ft.Maximum Lot 500

o

y
sq: ft. or

ormore)

Coverage by 50% 65% 90%      
High density a

ore)     
60%( 5, 000 sq. ft.      

70%

Structures 90%      
50%( 5, 000_      

orless)
s . ft. or less)

SOURCE: WEST LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN RIVER/ SLANDS, SOUTHEAST STEWART TRACT, AND MOSSDALE V/LLAGE,_ 2012; URBAN DESIGN CONCEPT

RIVER IS ANDS), 2013

1. GENER. 9L SETBACKS PROVIDED. SETBACKS VARY WlTH/ N EACH DISTRICT BASED ON DISTANCE FROM STREETS ARTER/ AL, PARKWAY, AND

COLLECTOR, CANALS, AND WATERFRONT SETBACKSVARYBASED ONDISTANCE

TABLE 5O: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS= CENTRAL LATHROP SPEGIFIG PLAN: CONVENTIONAL LOTS
r  ¢ }'       . 

h 4
w          

a      , i . l a" i ra. a`" X`   n z, fj     .+  ".
d.@U L1pIti1Cl}       , °      $ F  ' M( IllJll    , -;     M'   ' a 

s`=     ;

x
k SF l,arge Lot      ` 5E , Sn aIl Lot= Hrgh Density 

S; andartls, ,     
a e      ' Lo  v      

a      ,

a..   r.       . r.  , ti. f e ,..  ., a  _.,    u e. rs..., r_ '<"a r .   ..,': t`-,rs bc:c, a,»,. t, a_ P r,_. n,, t r. ; s&

Min. Site, Area( sf) 5, 000+  .    4, 000- 5, 000:.  :':. < 4, 000

Lot Width 45 40 32: 

Lot Depth     _       85     _ .       75 60_  . ..    

Building Setbacks( ft)
Sfr:eet to Porch 12 10 8 8

Sfreet to Liuin 15 12 10 10.

Street to_Garage:      12. ._    10 8  ,  3=5 or 20+

Side- Interior 5 5 .      0/ 5.       :       10

Side-. Street 15.       12 10 10

Rear .  15 12 5 10 .

Open Space( sf)      400 300 180 801unit

Buildin Hei ht( ft)    50.

59

497



ZO19.HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

4    `-' Sa au d+._. " 4`'s      " 3S'
2k    p    , ,' Y Z'S u- y  a 5 x : 

a,? s e * z   .   ; a
k g  .,.

yr fr    

Oevelopment ,,
F La rgE Lot F etl

urli F, SmaII. Lot Hig' Denstyt 
z T'     

A P_,...
y,   "

z    ''^.,  ° t t   "    t ±   a''" m¢ u` k i d x   "'  .   ^       -
i;:«,xar: P'. ta,, daC$

a       _.."..'
a.

A ..  '.  ,
3'„ d,. r., r; 3 «§,' s-- A+ ,  laa, ar w t,, : s. e.:  

Lots 45'_wide o:r more 35 35 35

Lotsless than 45'

wide 30 30 :     30

50%- one story 50%- orie story
Maximum Site

60% multi,      60% multi-
Coverage( Structures)       

stor stor 65%      65%

SOURCE: CENTR.4L LATHROP SPECIFlC PLAN, 201I.

TAa E 51: CENTRAL LATHROP ZONING DISTRICT: UNCONVEfVTIONAL PLOTTED LOTS
t' r.  ,+   .

A'  , ,}....   g "„  ' s
d   '* K` n^ 

t w 1 5̀    n   
q.
a2'" 0a``  , ,,;, 4 " v ap  . g ary^` y,;'"   ,"+ .",' ;$" J   ;       . .  

u",^     
ab.     

x'

taY Pf f.^ ìl r" a"
4 + N.-`^* d; '  r utv'*

e5'  +  ".: 4     .> t    .. r    

h

k      '   

J. $`
L..   

1`     f       :    u, '    

a

i`  '       '          ' r La RC US & 0"` RearlSid: e1  `` x';:   +   -    v`'  ,   ' '

Lnt TY e.             Coverage Herght   o; t)"
3    Categ ory Intenor           

5; >  °`    `   
g'<.,`.

x d' mm 2' g ,>,. F s.,, A'!€        
a   ra,

y'' ` wwk , a-:,'- a x+ a f r
S i d e        +,       3  , ` '  Ww

3. s    ,,       ..h ^ i' "
y

s

x' 
s ^ a a' S: s r x ' c r+  ° m a^ z 5`' y

t r 

r ..'

r; 5,:
s n e„`+.?

g.
kX' .

s N w  F+ A      *',''- 5-, b. 3^''
k2 '',` S' `,. l`....,.*aW  . r   y'" a a    ,.,.. 3. w u.., t`  i.«:',

r'" M`.'
v.   .   .=.. u       ,

Sin le Fam il D'eta:ched=°Rear Lo atle tl
SFD Large Lot( 5, OOO: sq. ft..or greater)   SFD 15/ 5110 50- 60%       40

SFD Medium( 4, 000- S, OOO sq; ft.) S.FD  ; 12/ 3/ 10 50- 6D%    _ :_.. ;   40

SFD Small( up to 4; 000 sq. ft.)    SFD 1013/ 10 65% ' _     40

S:in Ie. Family Detached Clu ster ,  ;' 
SFD Lar e Lot( 5, 000 s . ft. or reater}   SFD 15/ 5/ 10 50- 60%       40

SFD Medium Lot( 4, 000- S, OOO sq. ft.)  ,  SFD 1213110 50- 60%  `     40

SFD SmaII Lot( u to 4, 000 s . ft.). SFD 0/ 3I10 65% 40

Rear Loaded Triplex SFD 10/ 3/ 10. .  65% 40

Rear Loaded Townhomes SFD 8/ 4/ 10 65%. 40

SOURCE: CENTRAL LATHROPSPECIFICPLAN, 2011

NOTES:.

FRONT SETBACK TO LIVING AREA

REAR SETBACK TO L/ VING AREA AVERAGE 20 1 S 10

ZERO LOT LlNE PRODUCTS ARE PERMITTED lF BUILDING SEPARATION/ S IO

REAR LOADED AND DETACNED CL USTER UNITS DO NOT HAVE REAR SETBACKS STANDARDS. STANDARDS ARE FROM DRIVE AISLE TO L( VING AREA. SIDE
SETBACKS ARE FROM DR/ VE AISLE TO SIDE—ON GAR. 9GE.

Parkin    

Residential parking standards are: based on the number of unitsfor both single and multi- family developments. All
single-family residences are required to provide a minirrium of two enclosed parking spaces for. each unit, except
developments financed by the Farmer' s Home Administration ( USDA Rural Housing Service) are: permitted to have a
single space. in a: garage. Duplexes, a.partments and multiple, family dwellings are based on°the number of bedrooms.
Studio and one bedroom units must provide 1. 5 parking spaces per unit and two or mo.re bedroom units are required
to providetwo parking spaces per unit. The City does. not require additional guest orvisitorspacesfor muftifamily units.
Multifamily parking is not-required to be enclosed. 

In the case of mixed uses, the total requirements for all off-stceet parking is the sum ofthe requirements each individual
use computed separately. The City encourages mixed uses and shared parking by allowing 75%0 ofthe, parking facilities
required for a primarily daytime use considered to be counted toward the parking facilities of a use considered to be
primarily a nighttime use, or.the reciprocel.

In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to include density bonus provisions required by State law and to provide
flexibility to reduce parking requirements for housing serving disabled persons. As provided by State law, reduced
parking requirements for eligible affordable housing are as follows: one on- site parking space for each zero and one-
bedroom unit, two on- site parking spaces for each two- and three- bedroom unit, and two and a half on=site parking

60

498



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

spaces for units with four or more bedrooms. The Zoning Code also allows on- site parking to be accommodated by
tandem parking or uncovered parking.  The City' s parking requirements do not constrain housing and encourage
affordable housing, as well as housing serving seniors and disabled persons, through prbvisions for reduced parking
requirements.

Accessory Dwelling Units

Government Code Section 65852. 2( a)( 1) allows cities to designate areas within the City where accessory dwelling units
ADUs) may be permitted and to impose development standards addressing issues such as unit size, height, setbacks,
parking, lotcoverage, landscaping, and architectural review. The Gity recentlyestablished a policyto exemptADUsfrom
utility connection fees and to reduce any applicable fees to the multifamily rate_rather than the single family rate to
encourage development of ADUs.   

In 2019, the City updated Chapter 17. 80 (Accessory Dwelling Units) to ministerially permit an ADU on a lot vuith an
existing or proposed single family unit in all areas zoned to allow single-family or mulfi-family use. The ordinance sets
forth criteria forADUs, which include:

s Maximum floor area- detached ADU: 1, 200 square feet

Maximum floor area - ADU attached fo residence: 50°/o of the existing residence, with a maximum
increase of 1, 200 square feet

Setbacks: Minimum interior side and rear of 5 feet, street side of 10 feet. No setback for a garage
converted to an ADU. 5 feet from side and rear lot lines for an ADU above a garage.

Lotsize: 5, 000squarefeet

Compatibility and Appearance: Compatible with the existing house as to height, roofing, style,
materials, and colors.

Access: From the side or rear of the ADU.

Off-street parking: One off-street space, which can be in tandem with parking for the main residential
structure; off-street parking not required if the ADU is within '/ z- mile of public transit, located within
an architecturally and historically significant historic district, is part of the existing primary residence
or an existing accessory structure, when on- street parking permits are required but no offered to the
ADU occupant, and when there is a car share vehicle located within 1 block of the ADU.

Utility service and kitchen: ADUs shall have adequate. water, sewer, and other utilities and shall have
full kitchen facilities.

Mobilehomes or Maniafactured Housing: Allowed if installed on permanentfoundation and complies
with the 1974 National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Act.

In addition to permitting ADUs, the City also allows guest houses, which can be a more affordable alternative to
constructing an ADU. A guest house is different from an ADU in that it doesn' t include a kitchen; however, it ca_n have a
bathroom. " Guest house" means living or sleeping quarters within an accessory building for the sole use of occupants
ofthe premises, and guests ofsuch occupants or persons employed on the premises. Such quarfers shall have no kitchen
facilities and shall not be rented. The development standards/ requirements for a guest house are less than that for an

ADU. For example, there is not an off-street parking requirementfor a guest house and school facility fees would not be
assessed since the guest house is typically less than 500 square feet in size.

The City does receive inquiries about ADUs from time to time; however, in previous Housing Element cycles, only a few
were constructed. The City has encouraged development of ADUs and has begun to. see an increase in second master
and guest suites, both as attached and detached units, in its developing communities. In addition, two ADUs have been
built since adoption of the 2015 Housing Element; no ADUs were constructed in the previous cycle. The City' s ADU
standards are consistent with the requirements of Government Code Section 65852. 2 and provides for ADUs as a

permitted use in all zoning districts that allow single family and multifamily uses.

61

499



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Planning for a Variety of Housing' Types
The City' s Zoning Code and Specific Plans include provisions for a range of housing types as described below.

Sengle Family: The Zoning Code and specific plans accommodate single family housing in a range of densities. Single
family housing can be built as large lot_rural developments, low and medium density subdiv' isions, medium or high
density cluster or small lot housing, and high density attached housing.

Multlfamily: Multifamily housing is accommodated in a range of densities,-from RM- 3 developments at 14. 52 units
per acre up to 40 units per acre in the River Islands, Central Lathrop, and Mossdale Village zones. Multifamily housing
can be constructed as apartments, townhomes, condominiums, and as mixed- use housing above or in conjunction with
commercial or office uses. Duplexes are allowed in most residential zones, as shown in Table 47.

Small LotDevelop nent: The Mb designation in General Plan Sub- Plan Areas# 1 and# 2 provides for a wide variety of
housing types within walking distance of shopping centers and employment centers. MD housing types would includ,e
zero lof line, multi- plexes, patio homes on lots with reduced setbacks, garden apartments, condominiums, townhouses,

arid mobile homes in mobile home parks ( General Plan Pg. 4- A- 7). The standards act as an alternative to attached

housing in multi- family districts. They apply to all small lot subdivisions, whether the tentative map is designed with
single or multiple units per lot.(condominium). By providing greater development flexibility and allowing smaller lot
sizes, the ordinance facilitates development and reduces development costs:  Development standards for small lot

development are summarized in Table 52.

Tae E 52: SMALL LOT DEVELOPNIENT STANDARDS

Miniinum'      
Rear     

x,   Lot Size      I, t A  Fro t 5etback E SideS tbac C
q

yZortrng  ,      

n Yard   „ F e ght':
d s Gross     Airnens ons   Nouse GaragelPorth InterioClStre et     :

a    
Setback    ' ^

s
F       g    '  a           ;,    F.      

a...,_       b..    .,  R e

R=1- 61R- 1- bx 6, 000 60' x 100'       20'     5'      TO' 35"

R- 1- 5 5, 000  .     50' x 100' 20'     5'      10' 35'

R- 1 small lots 3, 200 40' x80`       10'/ 15' S'/ 4'* 10/ 20**`      35'

RM- 1. 5 6, 000 60' x 100' .      15'     S'       S'  35'

RM- 2 6, 000 60' x 100' 15'     S'       5'  35'

RM- 3 6, 000 60' x 100' 15'     S'       5'  35'

SOURCE: CITYOFLATHROPCOMMUNITYDEVELOPMENT 2OOS.

FOR LOTS OTHER THAN ZERO LOTS, THE MINIMUM DISTANCE FROM THE PROPERTY LINE ALONG THE S( DE YARD TO A STRUCTURE SHALL BE FIVE FEET

EXCEPT THAT ENCROACHMENTS MAY ENCROACH INTO THIS FIVE FOOT AREA AS PROVIDED 1N SECTION 17:.38.070. FOR ZERO LOTS, THE M( NIMUM

DISTANCE SHALL BE ZERO FOR THE LENGTH OF THE GARAGE, A WALL WHICH S/ TS ON THE PROPERTY L/ NE, AND FOUR FEET FOR THE REMAINDER ON ONE

SIDE WITH ElGHT FEET ON THE OTHER SIDE AND WITH E/ GHT FEET ON ADJACENT PROPERTY WITH A FOUR FOOT RECIPROCAL A CCESS EASEMENT ON THE

ADJACENT LOT, EXCEPT THAT ENCROACHMENTS AS DESCRIBED BELOW MAY ENCROACN INTO RECIPROCAL ACCESS AREq BY UP TO ONE FOOT.

TWO- S7'ORY HOME

ManufacturetlFlousing: State law requires that m,anufactu ed housing, when constructed as a single family dwelling
on a permanent foundation, be treated as a conventional single family home subject to the same development
standards as a single family residential dwelling on the same lot would require, except for architectural requirements
limited to its roof overhang, roofing material, and siding material. In April 2019, the City Council amended the Zoning
Code to remove constraints to manufactured housing. Section 17. 68. 010 allows manufactured housing in any zoning
district fhat permits residential uses; it is noted that the revised Zoning Code language still is unclear as to whether a.
mobile home woultl be allowed where a single family home is listed as a conditionally permitted use. Program 2r in
the Hous'ing Plan will clarifythat manufactured housing on a permanentfoundation is permitted in the same manner
as single family, subject to the requirements of State law. The development and architectural standards established
under Section 17. 68.080 removed minimum width and floor area_requirements for manufactured homes and establish

roof overhang, roofing material, and siding material requirements as well requirements for the manufactured housing
to be placed on a permanentfoundation.

62

500



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Mo6ilehome Park: Mo6ilehome parks are allowed in all RM zones as a conditional use and in fhe RM- MV zone as a
permitted use subjectto Planning Commission approval.

Small Residential Care Home: In 2016, the Gity. updated the Zoning Code to remove constraints to small residential
care homes. Small residential care homes, which are a licensed group home or residential care facility serving six or
fewer persons not including the operator; operator' s family; or staff, are treated as a single family home and allowed as
a permiffed use in all residential zones subject to the same requirements as residential uses of the same type in the
same zone.       

Large Residential Care Facilify: Residential care facilities serving seven or more persons are allowed in all residential
zones. Permit requirements vary from zone and include permitted ( administrative), conditional; and permitted with
planning commission review.   

Single Room Occupanry:  The City' s Zoning Code was revised in 2016 to allow si'ngle room occupancies as a
conditional use in the RM district. The development standards for SROs include requirements for a management plan,      
24- hour on- site management, room limitation to. single occupancy witfi allowance for overnight guests, requirements
for monthly tenancies, minimum unit size of 275 square feef( including bathroom), and parking ratio of one vehicle
space per unit and bicycle rack storage of one rack per 5 units.     

FarmworkerHousing: In 2016,,the City updated the Zoning Code to define housing for agricultural employees that
is no morethan 36 beds in a group quarfers or 12 single fam.ily units as an agricultural use:subjectto the same standards
and permit requirements' as an agricultural use, pursuant to the requirements of Health and Safety Code Section
17021. 6.

Employee Housing: In 2016, the.City updated the Zoning Code to define employee housing that accommodafes up
to six employees as a single family use subjectto the.same standards permit requirements as a single family residence,
pu,rsuantto the req.uirements of Health and Safety Code Section 17021. 5.

Emergency Shelter: In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to permit emergency shelters as a permitted use
without discretionary action in tfie City' s RM and PO ioning districts, The City has 8 vacant parcels ranging from 0. 25 to
1. 03 acces in size that are designated RM( specifically; RM 3) and PO( see Appendix A). These parcels are located east of
I- 5 and are primarily infill parcels in developed areas and are suitable foremergencyshelters. Water, sewer, and utilities
are available in the roadways adjacentthese parcels. The sites designated PO are located along Reverend Maurice Cotton
Drive north of Lathrop Road and the sites designated RM- 3 are generally located along along Reverend Maurice Cotton
Drive or Avon Avenue, also raorth of Lathrop Road. The parcels range from 0. 25 to 2. 43 acres in size and any of the sites 
would accommodate a shelter with up to 14 beds, which would meet the needs of the City' s unsheltered homeless
population. The PO parcels are loce#ed 0. 2 to 0. 25 mile from services( shopping is located north and south of Lathrop
Road and Harlan Road) and transit service stops ( San Joaquin Regional Transit District Routes 90 and 97) located at

Lathrop Road and Harlan Road; the sites designated RM- 3 are located approximately 0. 5 mile from the same shopping
and services as. the PO sites. It is noted that services, including transit, are limited in Lathrop and most supportive
services, including public health and goVernmental assistance, are mainly focused in Stockton. The, proximity of these
sites to Routes 90 and 97 provide better public transit access to Stockton: than sites and districts located farther from

these routes, as these routes are the only routes serving Lathrop.

Emergency shelters are subject to objective standards established in Chapter 17J4, which are consistent with those
standards allowed underState law, including hours of operation, maximum numberof beds to be served nightly bythe
facility, off-street parking requirements, size and location ofwaiting and intake areas,. on- sife management, proximity
to other shelfers( 300 feet apart); length of stay, lighting, and on- site security.

LowBarrierNavigation Centers: Low barrier navigation centers are a housing first, low barrier, temporary, service-
enriched shelter that are identified and defined by State law: AB 2162 requires jurisdictions to further streamline

approval of eligible low barrier navigation center applications in areas zoned for, mixed use and residential zones
permitting multifamily uses, subject to specific criteria.  The City' s Zoning Code does not address these recent

63

501



ZO19 HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

A

requirements. Progrem 2tin the Housing Plan requires the Zoning Code to be updated to address thisrequirement.

Transitional and Supportive Housing:  In 201.6, the City updated the Zoning Code to define transitional and
supportive housing consistent with requirements of State. law. The Zoning Code permits transitional and supportive
housing as residential uses, subject to the same permit requirements and development standards applicable to .     
residential uses ofthe same type of deyelopment( single family or multifamily). AB 101 reguiresjurisdictions to further
streamline approval of eligible supportive hoasing applications, including allowing supportive housing by riglit in all       
zones that allow residential and mixed use: The City' s Zoning Code does not address these recent requirements.
Program 2t in the Housing Plan requires the Zoning Code to be u.pdated to address this reguirement.

Condominium Conversions:   Tfie City' s subtlivision ordinance refers to the State Subdivision Map Act for
requirements for condominium conversion. The conversion requirements include providing notice to tenants and _  _

offering tenantsthe rightto exclusive contractfor purchase in condominium, communityapartmentorstockcooperative
projects.

Housing for Disabled Persons: On January 1, 2002, SB 52.0 became effective and required local jurisdictions to  "  '
analyze local government constraints on developing, maintaining, and improving hous'ing for persons with disabilit'ies.
In accordance with S6 520 and Government Code 65583( a)( 7) the City recognizes the importance of providing housing
for persons with disabilities. The City has since conducted a review of development applications and processing for
adherence to the American Disabilities Act( ADA). This review addressed constraints, during the entitlement processing   "
stage as well as dur.ing the issuance of buil,ding permits for minor alterations.

In 2008, the City amended Title 18 ( Zoning) to allow group homes/ residential facilities of six or fewer persons as a
permitted use in all districts where single- family homes are allowed( residential districts), No discretionary approvals
for group homes of six orfewer persons are r,equired in residential zones. In 2016; the Cityfurther amended the Zoning
Code to define small residential care facilities consistent witfi State law and to allow small residential care facilities in all
res,idential zones, subject to the same permit requirements and standards as a residential unit.

The Lanterman Development Disabilities Act ( Lanterman Act) is that part of California law that sets out righfs and
responsibilities of persons with developmental disabilities. The Lanterman Act impacts local zoning ordin'ances by
requ'iring the use propertyforthe care ofsix orfewer disabled persons to be elassified as a residential use under zoning.
Municipal Code Section 17. 32. 020 defines a state authorized, certifietl or licensed family care home, foster home or
group home serving six or fewer mentally disordered o[ ofherwise handicap persons, or dependent or neglected
children.  This classification includes only those services and facilities licensed by the State for such purposes. The City
currently allows" Residential Care Homes" in the R and the R- M zones as a permitted use without further discretionary
entitlements. The City does not impose ad.ditional zoning, buildin.g code, or permitting procedures other than those
allowed by State law. . .

The City also allows residential retrofitting to increase the suitability of homes for persons with disabilities in compliance
with accessibility requirements. Such retrofitting is permitted under the California Building Standards Code. The City
works with applicants. who need special accommodations in their homes to ensure that application of building code
requirements does not create a constraint.-  

As part of the 2010 Housing Element, the 2015 Housing Element, and this Housing Element update, the City' s ioning
and development requirements have been reviewed to identify potential constraints to housing for persons with a
disability. Single family; multifamily, and other housing types in Lathrop may accommodate persons with disabilities.
State laws and building codes mandate accessibility provisions for certain fypes and sizes of housing developments.

The City' s Zoning Code allows for small residential care facility uses by right in residential zones and in several ofthe
non=residential zones.  Small residential care facility means a home that provides services` to six or fewer persons,
excluding the owner/ operator and employees of the home. This use includes small congregate living facilities, housing
forthe deuelopmentally disabled; small rest homes, intermediate care facilities, alcoholism and drug abuse recover and
treatmentfacilities, and simi:lar housing._ Large residential care facilities are allowed as an administrative or conditional,

b4

502



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Planning Commission- approved use in multiple residential and non- residential zoni g districts.       

The parking requirements for housing serVing disabled persons are the same as the requirements for single family and
multifamily housing that does not serve disabled persons. Depending on. the disabled population being served, the
need for on- site parking may be less than a similar projsct serving a non- disabled population. The Zoning Code was
updated in 2016 to revise Section 17. 76..090 to provide for a reduction in parking, based on demonstrated need for the
reduction, in order to remove this potential constraint. The approving party ( Community Development Director for
permitted uses, Planning Commission for conditional uses) would reduce the parking requirement by up to 20% based
on the project applicant demonstrating a reduction in need.

The Zoning Code was updated in 2016 to revise the definition offemily to be consistent with fair housing requirements
to ensure that disabled, or other household types that function as a„ single unit with shared living expenses and
responsibilities are freated in the same manner as a family household. Household has the' same definition as family.

The City does not impose special permit procedures or requirements that could impede tlie retrofitting of homes for
accessibility. The City' s requirements for building permits and inspections are the same as for other residential projects
and are straightforward and not burdensome. City officials are not aware of any instances in which an applicant
experienced delays or rejection of a retrofitting proposal for accessibility to persons witfi disabilities.

Lathrop provides reasonable accommodation foe persons with disabilities in the enforcement of building codes and the
issuance of building permits, but does not have a written policy or procedure. For new construction, the City' s building
department requires new housing to comply with the California Building Code and the 1998 amendment to the Fair
Housing Act, with multi-family development also subject to the Americans with Disabilities Act( ADA) standards. These
standards assure that all new apartment buildings are subject to requirements for unit" adapta6ility" on ground floor
units. Adaptable units are built for easy conversion to disabled access, such as doorway and hallway widfhs, and added
structural support in the bathroom to allow the addition of handrails. In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to
establish reasonable accommodation procedures in Chapter 17. 126 that are consistentwith State law and modeled after
HCD' s sample reasonable accommodation procedure.

Assembly Bill 2787 ( Chapter 726 of Statutes of 2002) adopted Section 17959 of the Health & Safety Code. This law
required the California Department of Housing and Community Development( HCD) to develop and certify one or more
model universal design ordinances applicable to new construction and alterations for voluntary adoption by local
governments. In 2005, HCD certified a" Model Universal Design Local Ordinance" which, among otherthings, requires
that various universal design features be offered to homebuyers. As part of the ordinance, builders must install those

universal design features that are requested by the buyer, provided the buye:r pays the homebuilder' s corresponding
upgrade costs. In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Gode to require universak design and accessibility measures for
new and rehabilitated residential development projects, except in certain circumstances( undue hardship or constraint,
rebuilding from a flood or other disaster).

Density8o tus: In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to allow density bonuses for affordable and senior housing
projects in accordance with State law. Ehapter 17. 81 of the Zoning Code reguires density bonuses and other incentives
for housing andlor child care facilities to be granted in accordance with the requirements of State law, including
Governrnent Code Title 7, Division 1, Chapter 4. 3( Density Bonuses and Other Incentives)!

HistoriclathropOverlayDestrect: Ordinance No. 05- 252 established an overlayzonefor low and medium residential

areas in Historic Lathrop. The overlay zone includes lots that permit property owners to increase the size of their existing
house and vacant infill parcels that can be developed into small lot, zero lots, or zipper lots. Development standards for
multi- family land uses induded such townhouses, condominiums, apartments, cluster housing, and duef units. The
Historic Overlay District provides for reduced setbacks thereby increasing density and promoting property owner
deuelopment.

65

503



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Inclusionary Requirements

The City does not have any requirements fhat obligate developers to provide or fund housing at specific affordability
levels.

Short-term Rentals  `        Y

The City does not: have an ordinanee that addresses short- term rentals. There are 18 rentals listed on Airbnb. com;
however, none of the rentals are for an entire house. All 18 rentals are limited to a oom or sui#e within a home and do
not decrease the amount of housing stock available for permanent occupency. There are no short-term rentals listed in  _.
the City on URBO. com.   _       

Grow#h Controls/ Growth Management

The City manages growth primarily through the General. Plan, Zoning Code, and specific plans.  The Generai Plan

establishes relatively finite limits to ultimafe urban expansion, with definite future. 6oundaries for urban development
during the timeframe of the General Plan. The City' s General Plan planning boundaries are to. be considered relatively
fixed" for very important reasons pertaining. to the logical spheres of influence of neighboring cities as a means to

assure the preservation of environmental qualities and amenities ofthe sub- regi.on. Lathrop is located in the near=center
of the triangle formed by Stockton, Modesto, and Trary, and is almost adjacent to Manteca to the east. The spheres of
influence of neighboring cities constrain Lathrop from future expansion to. the north, east and southwest. Th.e
environmental qualifies of lands to the northwest, particularly for continued agricultural use and fish and wildlife; '
contribute to the appropriateness of limiting urban expansion witfiin the boundaries depicted in the Lathrop' s General
Plan Diagram. Apart from defined growth boundaries( City Limits, Sphere; ofi lnfluence) in the General Plan, the City
does not have established growth controls( e. g., limitations on the amount of growth that can occur on an annual basis
or process for allocating a limited number building permits) and has not adopted a growth management program.

Building Codes and Enforcement
New construction in Lathrop, including additions and : remodels, must comply with the 2016 California Building
Standards Code, Title 24. The City adopted the 2016 California Building Standards Code with all required updates: The
Building Standards Code establishes construction stsndards necessary to protect public health, safety and welfare, and
the local enforcement of this code does not unduly constrain development of housing. The Gity implements the 2016
California Building Standards Code without one amendment, which requires that provisions related to grading,
excavation, and earthwork in Reclamation District 2062 are governed bythe applicable geotechnical report in the event

of conflicts between the California Bu'ilding Code and the geotechnical report.

With regard to existing residences, the City does not require compliance with current codes, witli one exception. The
Fire Department inspects all apartmen# buildings annually to ensure thatthe units.compl:y with life safety requirements,
such as having appropriate smoke detectors and emergency exits.  Other than the inspections of apartments, City
ins.pectorswillonlyinspectexistingresidences; in. r.esponsetocomplaintsofsubstandardhousin. gorlifesafetyconditions ,
received from the public. In these:csses, tfie City takes enforcement action only in cases wliere the dwelling in question
does not comply with the Uniform Housing Code, which specifies minimum standards forthe health, safety, and welfare
of residents.  These standards are less stringent than the Califomia Building Standards Code # or new construction.     °
Existing residences may be remodeled orexpanded provided thatthe existing structure has no' obvious sanitary orsafety
hazards, all building code requirements have been met, andthe necessary permits have: been issued.

On/ Off Site Improvement Requirements

The, City requires that developers complete certain minimum site, improvements in conjunction with new housing
development.  Required improvements include the construction of streets, curbs, gutters, and sidewalks and, where

necessary, the installation of water mains, fire hydrants, sewer mains; storm drainage mains, and street lights. These
standards are typical of many communities and do not adversely affect the provision of affordable housing in Lathrop.
However, wheneverthe developer advances the costs for improvements not located on the development project, which
are required as a condition of such development project, the developer shall be ehtitled to reimbursement for tfiat part

66

504



2019 HOUSINGELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

of the required improvement which contains suppiemental size,. capacity, number or length for the benefit of property
not within the development project.

The City' s General Plen establishes roadwaystandardsforfourand eight- lane roadways. The i,mprovement requirements
for a midblock four- lane arterial require an 88-foot right-of-way with 68 feet of constructed curb=to=curb improvements,
including tvuo 12- foot inner travel lanesand fwo outer 22=foot travel lanes.  A fou"r- lane ar erial at an intersection     - "  
approach location requires 116 feet of right- of=way with 84 feet of constructed curb- to- curb improvements, including a
12- foot turn lane, two 12-foot travel lanes, and two 24- foot outer travel lanes. For both four- and eight- land roadways,

the City: requires sufficient righf-of-way to include room for landscaped pedestrian corridors on either side and to have
adequate space for bike lanes. Collector streets typically have a right-of-way of 60 to 64 feet, which includes a separated
sidewalk. Minor streets, which generally serire residential areas, typically have a 60- foot right- of-way requirement with
a minimum of 40 feet between curbs. Typically, minor streets have a sidewalk adjacent the street( rather than adjacent
a landscaped separator) and an: unstriped bike lane.

Bicycle routes are included in the street system,. with. Class II striping- along major arterials and witho;ut-striping in other
areas: The City has also planned an open space corridor system with' in Sub- Plan Area# 3 to encourage bicycle/ pedestrian

movement and reduce potential auto conflicts.  

Each Specific Plan identifies standards for arterials; collectors, and other roadways within the Specific Plan. As part of .

the development impact fees associated with each Specific Flan, the City collects roadway improvement fees that go
towards each development projects fair- sfiare of roadway improvements that serve the Specific Plan, ensuring that the
backbone roadway system is construcfed and remove the burden of each individual development project constructing
full road improvements.

Fees and Exactions

Tfie City requires a number of permits and deyelopment fees to cover the cost of processing deyelopment requests,
providing public facili#ies: and services to new development, and mitigating the environmental: impacts of new
development. Although these fees are necessary to provide services necessary for healffi and safety and to meet State
envi[ onmental miti.gation requirements, they can have a substantial impact- on the cost of housing, particularly
affordable housing.    

Residential development is assessed fees by the City, County and school district to cover the costs of infrastructure
improvements and maintenance, and the provision of services. The largest fees are related to sewer and water service,

and reflect the cost of providing, improving and expanding these utilities. Fees are also charged to cover the costs of
City staff' s review and processing of applications and permits [ elated to housing development. A project' s application
fees are estimated upon submittal and the developer pays a deposit covering the estimate. Actual staff time; spent in
the project is then tleducted from the deposit amount, and any unspent remaintler is refuntled.     _

Othertypes of exactions include land dedication, which may be required of residential development for right- of-ways or
as an alfernative to the park deVelopment fee, in addition to on- site improvements that are necessary for tfie public
health, safety and welfare. On- site improvements may incfude water, sewer and otlier utility line extensions, street
construction and traffic control device installations that are reasonably related to a project.  .

Table 53 details the City' s processing fees for development project entitlements and Table 54 describes the fee schedule
for. residential building permits. Lathrop has not raised its development project processi' ng fees since tfie 201 S Housing
Element. One or more_ of fhe, entitlements would be required to process a; iesidential project and. a building permit is
required for eacfi residential structure.

67

505



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT ` 

T E 53: DEVELOPMENT PROJECT PROCESSING FEES= ZO19.

Permits/ Entitle m̀ents
a. z,,. _  ,  t .

Administrative Permit 382

Conditional Use Permit 2, 167

General Plan Amendment ,  3, 561

Variance 938

Rezone 2, 327

Minor Site Plan Review 382

Site Plan Review 1, 330

Rezone to PD 3, 413

General PlanTextAmendment 2, 178

Zoning/ Subdivision Ordinance Amendment 2, 109

PUD Permit 2, 867

Environmental=         

Initial Stud Consultant cost plus 15%

Negative Declaration Consultant cost plus 15%

Mitigate. d Negative Declaration Consultant cost plus 15%

Land Division

Certificate of Compliance 498

Lot Line Ad' ustment 456

Lot Merger 424

Tentative Subdivision Map 3, 837

Tentative Parce.l Map 461

SOURCE: CITYOFLATNROP, 2019

NOTES: EACH FEE REPRESENTS THE TOTAL PROCESSING FEE FOR PLANNING, PUBLIC WORKS, FIRE, POLICE, AND PARKS.

SOME DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS WILL BE DEEMED MAJOR PROJECTS" AND W/ LL BE CHARGED TIMEAND MATER/ ALS.

MAJOR PROfECTS INCL UDE PROJECTS REQUI R( NG AN EIR.
NOTE: THIS/ S ONLYA PARTIAG LIST OF TYPICAL PLANN( NG FEES.

Tas E 54: RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT FEES- ZO1 Q

P@P; ffllt e

Buil.ding Perr it Fees.     ^         r

50 0 01- to$ 100, 000 fr .

u   .

g mit Residentia l Valuation 606 for the first$ 50, 000 plus$ 6 for each additional $ 1, 000 or
action thereofto and includin  $ 100, 00

Building Permit Residential Valuation 906 for the first$ 100; 000 plus$ 5 for each additional $ 1, 000
100, 001 to$ 500, 000 orfraction thereofto and includin  $ 500; 000

Building Permit Residential Valuation 2, 906 for the first$ 500, 000 plus$ 4 for each additional $ 1, 000

500, 001 to$ 1, 000, 000 orfraction thereofto and includin  $ 1, 000, 000

Plan Checkfee 70% of Building Permit Fee
Electrical Permit 25% of Building Permit Fee.. .

Plumbing Permit 1. 5% of Building Permif Fee
Storm Drain Plan Check Cost plus 15% Administration Fee

y. 0,fiher In s̀pectrons and Fees°( incfading"inspection fi fire.sp ii kl:e r̀ s ste sJt ;_r _ .   
x .       r

Code Compliance inspection 159

Inspections oittside of normal business hours
74 per hour

minimum char e- two hours)

Re- inspection fees      _     50 per hour

Other inspections 50 per hour

SOURCE: CITYOFZATNROP, 2019

68

506



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Development im:pact fees have a much larger effect than permit fees on the final cost of a home. Development impact
fees include water and sewer impact and hook- up costs, park fees( in lieu of land dedication), traffic impacf fees, and
similar charges. Fees collected for development

Table 55 identifies the development impact fees collected for development in the City by impact area. Projects

developed in each of the impact areas, East Lathrop, North Harlan, Mossdale Village, Mossdale Landings, Central
Lathrop, and StewartTract, pay development impact# ees specific to the service needs ofthe area as well as City- wide and
regional fees. Where fees are not calculated by unit, the fees are estimated for single family units based on a 6, 000-
square foot lot with a 1, 900- square foot home and for multifamily units based on a 24 du/ a density( 1, 815- square foot
lot size per unit) and a 850- square feet home.

In 2019, the City reviewed its fee structure and adopted a policy identifying that capital facility fees for water and sewer
service are not applicable to ADUs and further identified that any applicable fees collected for an ADU are at the
multifamily rate.

Developer fees established by Lathrop range from $ 24, 817 to$ 40, 981 per single family unit and $ 15, 726 to$ 29, 180
per multifamily unit. In neighboring cities, local development impactfees rangefrom a lowof$ 27, 926 persiriglefamily
unit( Oakdale) and $ 16, 268 per multifamily unit( Oakdale) to a high of $ 43, 949 per single family unit( Ripon) and

29, 073 per multifamily unit( Modesto). Lathrop' s fees are comparable to regional fees. In addition to the City' s fees,
County and school district fees of approximately $ 10; 000 per single family unit and $ 5, 000 per multifamily unit are
required. Most of Lathrop' s available sites are located in the Stewart Tract and Central Lathrop areas, which have fees
comparable fo the lower to mid range of regional fees. Development fees in East Lathrop are similarto the upper range
of regional fees and East Lathrop fees are affected by higherfees, particularlyforsewer, wastewatertreatment, and water.
East Lathrop is served by different water, wastewater, and sewerfacilities than the other areas ofthe City. There is limited
development potential in East Lathrop, compared to the rest of the City, so the cost of water, sewer, and wastewater
upgrades needed to support development are borne by a' smaller number of new units resulting iri a higher cost per
unit. However, these fees are necessary to provide essential public health and safety services.

69

507



2019 HOIJSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TABLE 5S: DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES .( CITYAND REGIONAL FEES FOR SINGLE FAMILYAND MULTIFAMILY UNITS, 2019 

SteuuartTract: incl..
µ<

k..  i       } Fe.., ,,. : t
v       ;;., 

1;       :ast lathrop . .     „North, Harlan    , . Mossdale 1/ illa e,,mM. oss ale Lan`di, ngs;    C er tral
Lathxop    ;-     Develop nent Impac,F` ees g River

Islan)

r SF MF,- SF MP       ..
SF

x       '=MF SF„   ,    MF Sf      • n1iF SF        
M Parks 5, 685    $4, 060     $5, 685     $4, 060    :$:5, 685     $4, 060     $5, 683     $4, 059     $6; 247     $.4, 463 0        $

0 Facilities 3, 483     $2., 487     $3, 483     $2; 487     $3, 483     $2, 487     $2, 282     $ 1, 629     $3, 483     $2; 487     $3, 483     $2,

487 Munici al Services 3, 902     $2, 787     $3, 902     $2, 797     $3, 902     $2, 797     $3, 833     $2, 738     $3, 902     $2, Z87     $3, 902     $2;

787 In-Lieu Communit Park.      0 0 0 0 0: 0 0 0 2, 413     $ 1, 724.       $ 0

0W. ater SuI IWater Stora e'       3, 901     $ 2, 032     $3, 825 .    $ 1, 993     $4, 261     $2, 217      $ 921: .  .   $ 480      $5, 768 .   $3, 004  . ,   $ 0

0 Water S stem Well Im rov.'   0 0 0 0 778       $ 405       $ 778      $ 405       $ 778       $ 405       $ 778  .  ' _$

405 Sewer( incl. Rec cled Water) 5, 697     $2, 967     $5, 697     $2, 967     $ 1; 114      $ 580      $ 1, 114      $ 580      $2, 661     $2, 262 0

0 Rec cled Water Outfall 0 0 0 0 47 24 47 24 47 24 47

24 Storm Draina e 919       $ 919       $ 919       $ 919       $ 351 188       $ 351 188 0 0 0

0 Environmental Miti ation 0 0 0 0 205 42 205 42 0 0 0

0 A ricultural Miti ation 399       $ 121 399       $ 121 399       $ 121 399       $ 121 399       $ 121 399       $

121 Manteca WQCF 8, 710     $8, 710     $8, 710     $8, 710 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 Economic: Develo ment Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5, 000     $5,

000 LocalTrans ortation 3, 661     $2, 692     $3, 661      $2, 692     $3, 661      $2, 692     $3; 661     $2, 692     $3, 6b1      $2, 692     $3, 661.    $2,

692 WLSP Re ionalTrans ortation 0 0 0 0 353       $ 413       $ 353       $ 413       $ 353       $ 413       $ 353       $

413 West/ Centrai Lathro . Trans orfation 0 0 0 0 3, 573     $2, 204 0 0 3; 658     $2; 245     $4,. 113.     $2;

525 Mossdale CFD One- Time Fee 0 0 0 0 996       $ 332       $ 996       $ 332 0 0 0

0 Offsite Roadwa Im rovement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 150     :   $ 92 0         $

0 North Lathro Trans ortation Im act 747       $ 747       $ 767       $ 767       $ 747       $ 747       $ 747       $ 747       $ 648      $ 648       $ 747       $

747 Mossdale Tract Levee 2, 575      $ 709      $2, 57b      $ 709      $2, 575      $ 709      $2, 575      $ 709      $2, 575      $ 709      $2, 575      $

709 Administrative F, ee 1, 302      $ 945      $ 1, 343      $ 958      $ 1, 118      $ 712       $ 873       $ 566      $ 1, 257      $ 834       $ 777       $

569 Cit /CFD FeesSubtotal   $ 40, 981    $29, 177    $40, 965    $29, 180    $33, 248    $20, 731    $24, 817    $15, 726    $37, 999    $24, 910    $25, 834    $18,

480 Count CFF Trans ortation 2, 487     $ 1, 846     $2; 487     $ 1; 846     $.2,. 487     $ 1, 846     $ 2,4. 87     $ 1, 846     $2, 487     $ 1; 846 0

0 SanJoa uin RTIF 3, 406     $2, 044     $3, 406     $2, 044     $3, 406 -   $2, 044     $3, 406     $2, 044     $3, 406     $2, 044     $3, 406     $2,

044 School District Fees 6, 384     $2, 856     $6, 384     $ 2, 856     $6, 384     $2, 856     $6, 384     $2, 856     $6, 384 .   $2, 856     $4, 560     $2,

040

SJMSCPz 0 : 0 1,42" b      $431      $ 1, 426      $ 431  .    $ 1, 426      $ 431       $ 1, 426      $ 431       $ 1, 426   '  $

431 Re ional FeesSubtotal    $ 9, 790     $4, 900    $11, 216     $5, 331     $11, 216     $5, 331     $11., 2T6     $5, 331     $11, 216     $5, 331     $9, 392     $4,

515

TOTAL3 50, 771    $34, 077    $52; 181    $34, 511    $44, 463    $26, 062    $36, 033    $21, 057    $49, 214    $30, 241    $35, 226   $22,

995 lASSUMES 4 WATER' METER PER 48

UNITS ZAVER. 4GE bFAGRICULTURE OR MULTI- PURPOSE OPEN SPACE FEES$ 1. 3,999 ACREAND.$ Fi, 700 AC,,RESPECTIVELY; LAND IN THE EAST LATHROP AREA IS GENER. 9LLY

EXEMPT 3TNE SUM OF THE/NDNIDUAL FEES MAY NOT EQUAL THE TOTAL DUETD'

ROUNDING. SDURCE: CITYOFLATHROP,

2019

508



2019 HOUSINGELEMENTBACKGROUND. REPORT

TABLE 5G: DEVELOPMENT INiPACT FEE COMPARISON

Jurisdicti' on . Single Fa iYrly Mul#ffa ily° 
Lathrop 24, 817( Mossdale Landings)-      15, 726( Mossdale Landings)-

40, 981 ( East Lathrop)       29, 180( North_ Harlan)

Manteca 37; 592 28, 952

Modesto 39, 821 29, 073

Oakdale 27, 926 1b, 268

R' ipon 43; 949 2 6, 049

Stockton 30, 257 22, 216

1 FEES REFLECT CITYAND CFD FEESAND ARE EXCLUSIVE OF REGIONAL AND OUTSlDE AGENCY FEES

SOURCE: CITYOFMANTECAFEE: SCHEDULE, MARCHZOI9; CITYOFMODESTOFEESCHEDULE, JULY2018; C/ TYOFOAKDALEFEESCHEDULE,

JANUARY ZOI G; CITY Ol' STOCKTON FEE SCHEDULE, ZOT E,' CITY OF R/ PON FEE SCHEtl ULE, ZOIB' CITY OF ESCALON, 2O1 S

As shown in Table 57, total City and regional fees, including planning, building, and development impact fees, range
from approximately $ 35, 833 per unit for a multifamily development of 48 units averagin,g 850 square feet to

58, 824. 74 perunitfora 200- unitsinglefamilysubdivisionwith atypical homesize of.1, 900squarefeetto$ 62, 156. 91

for an individual single family home on an existing lot.

TABLE 5: DEVELOPMENT FEES- SINGLE FAMILY$ UBDIVISION,$ INGLE FAMILY HOME, AND MULTIFAMILY DEVELOPMENT
r

4$ It    . :
200 Unit Single Family

Fe s i ul ifa m̀bly   
Subdivis ion t nit

4. P,ro ect

Planning Fees
Administrafive PermitlMinor Site Plan Review 382

Site Plan Review 1, 330 1, 330

Environmental Review( CfQA)     22, 000

Tentative Subdivision Map 3; 837

Building Permit Fees( building permit, plan check, 540, 800 2, 704 67, 468

electrical, etc.)

Development Impaet Fees( Central Lathrop Specific      $
9, 842, 800 49, 214 1, 451, 568

Plan)

TOTAL 10, 410; 767 52, 300 1; 520, 366

Total Fees Per Unit 52, 054  _ 52, 300 31, 674

SOURCE: CITY 0' LATHROP, 2019; DE NOVO PLANNING GRO!/ P, 2019

Processing and Permit Procedures

The evaluation and review process required by City procedures contributes to the cost of housing in that holding costs
incurred by developers are ultimately manifested in the selling price of the home. The City Council and Planning
Commission govern the review process in the City, or depending on the project, it might be reviewed bythe Community
Development Director.

Permits Requiring Community Development Director Approval

Uses which are a permitted use underthe zoning ordinance and acted upon without environmental review under CEQA
may be approved by the Community Development Director, rather than the Planning Commission or Gity Council. ADU
permits are ministerial and reviewed bythe Community Development Director.

Administrative Permit Review

An Administrative Permit is the City' s application for development permits that only require approval of the Community
Development Director. Decisions ofthe Director can be appealed to the Planning Commission and if necessary; the City
Council. Such entitlements include, but are not limited to home occupation permits and minor site plan review permits.

71

509



ZO 9 HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Minor Site Plan Review

The purpose of tlie minor site plan review process is to eneble the Gommunity- Development Director to review
development proposals. that do not include major improvements or renovation and can" 6e considered exemptunder
the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA). If a development proposal cannot be considered for
an exemption under CEQA, it must be approved through the. full site plan review process. It differs from the minor

revision to approved site plan review application( as descri6ed above), in that a minorsite plan review providesthe initial
review of a project in which conditions of approval are issued. A revision to an approved site plan has conditions of -

approval previously issued bythe Planning Commission.

Minor Revision to A proved Site Flan Review

Once a site plan review application has been approved by the Planning Commission, only minor modifications to the
approved site plan can be made. The minor reuision to approved site plan review application is utilized by staffto review
such modificationsto an approved site plan and ensurethat no additional or revised conditions of approval are necessary
in approving anychanges to the plan. If staff determines that additional or revised conditions of approval are necessary,    -
a new site plan review.applieation will be required.   

Minor Variarice

In certain situations where a full variance is not necessary, a minor variance may be utilized. The Community
Development Director may approve such re_quests if the request is not s;ubject to the provisions of the California
Erivironmental Quality Acf CEQA) and deals only with small changes in development requirements, such as with minor
setback and side yard requirements: Minor variances are only approved when an app:licant can show fhat there are
special circumstances that prevent the applicant from enjoying the same land use privilege as surrounding property
owners.

Discretionary Permits Requiring Planning Commissiori Approval:

The Discretionary PermitApplication isthe City s application for development. permits that require Planning Commission
andlor City Council approval. Sucfi entitlements include; but are not limited to conditional use permits; site plan review
permits and variances.

Site Plan Review  ,

The purpose of the Site Plan Review process is to enable the Planning Commission to make a finding that a proposed
development is. in conformity with the intent and provisions of the City Code( primarily the zoning ordinance) and to
guide the Builtling Official in th.e issuance of building permits for that development.

The project applicant is required to provide a site plan that includes the site dimensions, all buildings and structures

including location, size, height, and proposed use), yards, setbacks, walls and fences, off-street parking and loading,
site access, signage, lighting, street names, landscaping, and garbage enclosures.  Site plan review is performed

concutrentlywith the: requested entitlement( e. g., subdivision map, multifamilydevelopment, mixetl- use project).

As described under Section 17. 100. 040, each site plan must demonstrate consideration of# he following,: to the: extent
that each fopic is applicable to the proposed project:

Special yards, spaces and buffers;

Fences and walls;  

Surfacing of parking areas and provisions for surface water dra'inage subject to city specifications;

Requiring street dedicat' ions and improvements, subject to the . provisions of Section 17. 100. 060,
incfuding service roads:or.alleyswhen practical, and the requiring ofdrainage; sewer and water connection
fees, and other developmentfees when applicable;

Regulation of points ofvehicular ingress and egress;

Regulation of signs, in accordance with the standards prescribed in fhe•Zoning Code;

72

510



2019 HOUSINGELEMENT BACKGROUND: REPORT

Requiring maintenance of the grounds.and the undergrounding of utilities;

Requiring landscaping-and refuse enclosures and maintenance thereof;      
Regulation of noise, vibration, odors and other similar characteristics•   

Measures necessary. to eliminate or to effect mitigation to acceptable levels of enVironmental impact;
Regulation of time for certain acfivities to be conducted on the site;  

Regulation of the time period within which the proposed use shall be developed; and .       

A bond, deposit of money, recorded lien secured by deed of trust, or letter of credit for the completion of
streetand site, improvements and otherfacilities orforthe removal ofsuch use within a specified period of
time to assure conformance with the intent and purposes set forth in this chapter.   

The following findings are required for site plan approval:       _
1.       That the site plan complies with all applicable provisions of Chapter 17. 100( Site Plan Review);

2.:      That the following are so arranged that traffic congestion is avoided and that pedestrian and vehicular safety
and welfare are protected, and there will not be adverse effect on surrounding property:
a. Facilities and improvements,

b.       Vehicula_r ingress, egress, internal circulation and off-streef parking and loading, _
c. Setbacks,

d. Height of buildirigs, 

e. Location of seryice,

f. Walls and fences,

g. Landscaping, including screen pla;nting and street. trees,

h. Drainage of site, and

i. Refuse enclosures;

3. Proposed lighfing is so arranged as: to deflect. the light awayfrom adjoining properties;
4. Proposed signs will comply with all of the applicable provisions of Section 17: 16. 010 and Chapters 17. 64

through 17J2, 17. 80 end 17. 84; and

5.       That adequate provision is made to reduce adverse or potentially adverse environmental impacts to acceptable
levels.

In orderto make thefindings, the Planning Commission must review the site plan and fhe related standards ofthe City' s
adopted planning documents, including the General Plan, Zoning Code, and; if-applicable;. the relevant,Specific Plan.
Projects that. are, consistent with the :development standards a.nd requirements esta.blished by the Cify' s planning
documents are considered to meet the requirements for Findings 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5. The Planning Commission is not
required to hold a public hearing for a site plan. review permit.

The site plan review process is a straightforward process that is not considered a constraint to providing housing.

Conditional Use Permit

Due to their unusual characteristics, projects subject to. a conditional use permit require special considerations so that

they may be focated properly with respect to the objectives of the Zoning Gode and their effects on surrounding
properties. A Conditional Use Permit is" reviewed by the Planning Commission and requires a public hearing: The
Planning Commission must make the following findings to approve a conditional use permif:

1. That all applicable provisions of Chapter 17. 112 are complietl with;

2; That the following are so arranged that traffic congestion is avoided and pedestrian and vehicular safety and

73

511



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

welfare are protected; and there will be no' adverse effect on surrounding: property:

a:    All facilities and im.provements,   

b.    Vehicular ingress, egress and internal circulation, 

c.    Setbacks,

d.    Height of buildings,,       : :

e.    Location of utilities and other services;

f.    Walls,     _    

g.    Landscaping, including screen landscaping and streettrees,       
h.    Drainage of site; and

i.    Trash enclosures and refuse pickup;

3. Proposed lighting is so arranged as to deflectthe light awayfrom adjoining properties; and

4. Proposed signs will comply with all applicable provisions of Chapter 17. 84. 

The above,findings are not considered a constraint fo providing a va.riety of housing types As shown in the inventory of
residential sites, there are adequate residential sites to accommodate a v.ariety of single family; duplex, multifamily,
second. unit, and other housing types to meet the City` s housing needs without. the requirement for a Gontlitional Use
Permit.

Variance

In certain situations where; strictly interpretetl, the ioning code preyents a physical, land u.se entitlement applicab,le to
real property, a variance may be requested. Under the zoning code, variances are allowed when special circumstances
applicable to size, shape, topography, or location and surroundings, for a particular property deprives such property
privi;leges enjoyed by other property owners in the vicinity.

Time Extension

This application is to extend the I' ife of a particular development permit. The amount of time that may be extended is a
one- time extension of one year from the expiration dafe,  

Anpeal of Staff Code Interpretatiori

In the event that an applicant or interested pa ty does not agree with an interpretation of city code or decision made by
sta,ff;on a development pe:rmit, an appeal may be filed with the Planning Commission for reconsiderafion. Any decision
made byfhe Commission may also be appealed to the City Council. Appeal requests are heard bythe Council atfhe next
available Gity Gouncil meeting.

Addition of Perm'itted Use to Code

This application is utilized to add a permitted use to a particular zoning district under circumstances where a certain use
is compatible uvith other permitted uses within the same districtand is allowed by generaf plan policy, but not specifically
included in the text of the zoning code. The Planning Commission can approve_the application by adqpting a resolution
adding the use# o the( isf of permitted uses as codified' m the adopted city zoning code.

Discretionary Permits Requiring City Council Approval:
Tentative Subdivision Man

Atentative subdivision map is reviewed by: Planning Commission and then forwarded to the City Council forfinal review
and approval.     

Appeal of Planning Commission Decision
Any interested party may file an appeal with the City Council after a decision has been made by the Planning
Commission. An appellanf has ten( 10). days to file an appeal vuith the Planning Division office. The appeal would then

74

512



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

be heard bythe Council attheir nextavailable Council meeting.

Permit Processing

The time required to process a project varies greatly from one entitlement to another and is diCectly related to the size
and complexity of the proposal, as well as the number of actions or approvals needed to complete the process. Table 58
identifies the typical processing times for most entitlements and the reviewing body for each entitlemerit. It should be
noted that each project does not necessarily have to complete each step in the process ( i. e.; small scale projects
consistent with general plan and zoning designations do not generally require Environmental Impact Reports ( EIR),
General Plan Amendments, Rezones, orUariances). Also, certain review and approval procedures may run concurrently.

for example, a ministerial review for a single- family home would be processed concurrently with the design review.

The City also encourages the joint processing of related applications for a single project. For example, a rezone petition
may be reviewed in conjunction with the required site plan, a tentative tract map, and any necessary variances. These
procedures save time, money, and effort from both the public and private sector and could decrease the costs for the
developer by as much as 30%. The typical process for a single-family and multi- family residence usually consists of an
Administrative Permit ( permitted use) which is approved by the Community Development Director. The plans are
checked for compliance with applicable codes and development standards. A property owner will bring their plans to
the Building Departmentforsubmittal into plan check.

For most new single-family dwellings and some multi- family. residential projects, a prope,rty owner will leave their plans
with the Building Department. Depending on the quality of plans submitted by the property owner, the entire plan
check could take as little as two weeks but may take longer if subsequent plan checks are required. As indicated in Table
58, average processing times for plan check( building permits is 2- 4 weeks. As most property owners and developers will
factor some amount of time for plan check and building permits into a project' s budget, typical processing times for
most single- famiJy dwellings and some multi-family projects do not impact housing costs.

When a single-family dwelling proposes to deviate from applicable codes, a discretionary entitlement such as a variance
is required. The Planning Commission acts on these requests and processing times would be an additional two months
than the plan check times noted above. Multi- family residential projects typically require some type of discretionary
action. All new buildings exceptforsingle-family homes( which are constructed on a residential site with complete street
improvements) require site plan review. Site plen review is a discretionary permit which requires Planning Commiss.ion
approval and make take an additional two months.

TABLE 58: TYPICAL PERMIT PROCESSING TIMES AND REVIEWING BODY

Processing
x      

k

T pe of Approva! or Pe r     
s e

F        . ;       Reu ewrin'g BodY;
a r

z.   

ar ,  .   
w. 

e      ..
r,    . . :<.. _ 6 

Administrative Ap roval 1 -. 6 weeks Cit Staff

Minor Revision to Approved S.ite
4- 8 weeks City Staff

Plan Review

Minor Site Flan Review 4- 12 weeks City Staff
Minor Variance 4=8. weeks City Staff
Design Review( Ministerial) b- 8 weeks City Staff
Lot Mer er 8- 12 weeks Cit Staff

Tentative Parcel Map 8- 12 weeks City Staff
Final Ma 1= 3 weeks Cit Staff

Tentative. Map 4- 6 months Planning CommissionlCity Council
Tentative Map Extension b- 8 weeks Plannin Commission/ Cit Council

Variance 6- 12 weeks Plannin Commission

Negative Declaration/ Mitigated
3- 6 months Planning Commission

Negative Declaration

75

513



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

De.sign Review ( Discretionar )    8=1; b we:e.ks Planning Commission/ Cit Council
Conditional Use Permit 12- 16 weeks ,:.     Plannin Commission/ Cit Council

General Plan Amentlment .       4- 12 montNs Planning Com"mission/ Cit Council
General Plan TextAmendment 4- 12` months Planning Commission/ City Council
Rezoning 4- 12 months Planning CommissionlCit Council
Zonin.g/ Subtlivision Ordinance

4- 12 months  "     Planning Commission/ City Gouncil
Amendment

Environmental Impaet Report .   b- 12 months Planning Com:mission/ Cit Council   -
Plan Checking/ Building Permits 2- 4 weeks: Building Department

SOURCE: CITYOFLATHROP, 2019

City staff avoids any unnecessary timing constraints on development by working closely wifli deVelopers to expedite
approval procedures. In addition, the City staff will assist tlie developerthrough the permit processing to ensu e a rapid
processing time:     

For most proposed projects, fhe City invites the developer to a. pre- application meeting.  These meetings provide

developers with an opportunity to meet various City staff representing numerous City departments.( e. g. Planning,
Building, Public Works, Fire and Police) to strategize about project design; City standards, necessary pu6lic
improvements, and funding strategies( where, appropriate)..

The next step in th:e: process usually includes submittal of an application for the proposed, entitlement. The application
includes insfrucfions that are meantto simpCifythe process forthe applicant by provid' ing steps on howto' proceed. Once
staff is satisfied that all requiced information has been submitted to the City, and the application is consistent with
Lathrop' s General Plan and Zoning Code, an Initial Study in accordance with CEQA will; soon follow. During the, lnitial
Study period, many departments vuill review the project and provide comments. Afthe same time, planning staff is likely
to be preparing other documents to expedite the process as previously mentioned. All scheduling, noticing, and
correspondence with interested parties usually coincides with this period: After the project is approvetl, the buildirig
department performs plan checks: and issues building permits. Administrative approval projects requiring minor permits
are approved by City staff. Minor site plan review and mi'nor variances are also reviewed by staff.  Throughout

construction, the building department will perform building checks to monitorfhe progress ofthe project. This process
does not put an undue time constraint on most developments because of the dose working relationship between; Gity
staff, developers, and the decision- making body.    

It should be noted that eacli project does not necessarily have to complete each step in the process( e. g., small scale
projects consistent with General Plan and zoning desigriations do not generally require Environmental Impact Reports
EIRs), General Pl.en Amendments, Rezon.es, or Variances): Also, certain review" and: app.roval procedures may run

concurrently. Since a majority of EIRs are prepared in response to a General Rlan Amendment request, th:ese two actions
are often processed simultaneously. The City also encourages the joint processing of related applications for a single
project. As an example, a rezone petition. may be reviewed in. conjunction with the requiCed site plan, a tentative map,
and any other necessary variances:. Sueh procedures save time, money, and effort# or both the private and pu6lic sector.
It is important to note that some processing ti.melines cannot be made shorter without violating State laws, particularly
astfiey relate to public noticing; compliance. uvith CEQA; etc.

Architectural Design Review

As with all other development-related matters in tathrop, design review is handled by the Community Development
Department. Anyone considering a development project is instructed to make an appointment to discuss the project
and design standards with a member of th:e Community Development Department staff: The staff member wi:ll help
explain the City' s development procedures and determine if design review is required. The staff member can also
proVide an approximate timetab;le forthe processing ofthe project and describe any other permits or approvals that may
be required.

Chapter 17. 104 ofthe Zoning Code identifies site and,architectural design reyiew provisions that a_pplyto permitted an;d

76

514



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

conditional uses listed w'ithin the R, RM, P0, C, or l districts.  

As part. of the Architectural Design Review process, architectural designs drawn to scale must be sub:mitted with an

application for any site plan review, conditional use permit, planned unit development, tentative subdivision map,
tentative parcel map, or administrative approval permit.    

Architectural design is reviewed based on the following standards: 1) generally accepted principles of architecture and
design related to building design, particularly in terms of scale, bulk, mass, color, texture and form, and 2) review of
proposed development in the context of the surrounding land use an structures. Site design is reviewed based on the  -
following standards: 1) City code requirements for development as they relate to circulation, parking, setbacks, and -     
landscape design issues, and 2) general prin.ciples related to site planning.    

The design review process is completed in conjuncfion with review of other entitlements requested( site plan approval,
parcel map, etc.) and is based on the City' s zoning standards, including site design ( setbacks, building height, etc.),
parking, circulation, and landscaping. The Architectural Design Review process' is straightforward and does not result in
delays in development or present a constraintto residential development.

Snecific P.lan Design Review

Development within each specific plan is reviewed based on the design criteria proposed by each specific plan
applicantldevelopmentteam and adopted iri conjunction with the specific plan.

Central Latlirop Specific Plan

The Cenfral Lathrop Design Guidelines were prepared bythe CLSP developmentteam to implementtlie adopted Central
Lathrop Specific Plan. CLSP is designed to provide traditional neighborhoods organized around interior neighborhood
parks and schools.

Planning and design concepts are defined to create a clear and common understanding of the design expectations for
the area, and to contribute towards the creation of a community that is characterized by high quality, diverse, attractive,
and functional development. The Central Lathrop Design Guidelines encourage creativity in addressing solutions to
specific design opportunities, and are structured to emphasize flexibility in s_atisfying the intent of particular goals and
provisions. This flexibility complements the GLSP land uses and zoning, which provide for a renge of residential
densities, mixed uses and potential developmerit standard exceptions. The Central Lathrop Design Guidelines are
structured to allow design innovation arid choices to accom.modate the diversity of dwelling types and land uses
anticipated by the GLSP, and to create a vibrant and livable community.

Section 4, District Specific Design Elements, of the Design Guidelines establishes requirements for residential

neighborhoods including single family and high density residential uses. Neighborhoods are composed of assembled
residential subdivisions and projecfs. Design concepts applicable to overall neighborhood design are provided first,

followed by more detail.ed guidelines that apply specifically to Conventional Single Family Detach:ed, CLSP Varia6le
Dens'ity Residential, and High Density Residential land uses. The neighborhood design requirements address
residential buffers, interfaces between residential uses and linear parks, open space, and neighborhood edges, site

planning for a range of densifies, lot sizes, and product types, and architectural requirements. Specific requirements
that address architectural design ( massing; scsle, and articulation), building elements ( entries, porches, windows,
balconies, garages, roofs, exterior stairs; colorslmaterials, and building planslstyles), landscaping, access, fences,
mailboxes; and lighting are identified for conventional single family residences, unconventional single family
res'idences, and multifamily development.

The CLSP emphasizes higher densities and a wide diversity of product types in order to provide more efficient land use,
better use of public infrastructure, and to expand purchase and rental opportunities to households at a broad range of

economic levels. The basicdesign elements and cciteria are included in the Central Lathrop Design Guidelines that are
intended to provide creative new approaches to the challenge of creating high quality, high amenity neighbo.rhoods.
The underlying objective ofthe Central Lathrop Design Guidelines is that neighborhood form not only follows function
but also proVides a visually interesfing and exciting stimulus to function. By pulling living spaces towards the sfreet, de-

77

515



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

emphasizing garages, and encouraging a variety of architect ural styles vuhich make use of a. board range of-materials
and colors; a friendlier and sustainirig community character can be achieved for residents and visitors alike.

Design Review for projects witfiin t he CLSP are completed concurrently with entitlement requests, such a a subdivision
map,orsite plan review, The Design Review requirements provide detailed descriptions and include written and graphic
examples to ensure that the requirements are simple and straightforward to implement.  The Design Review

requirements are typical and ensure well- designed neighborhoods that interface well with surrounding uses.  The
Design Review requirements were prepared by the CLSP development team to assist with the implementation of the
CLSP and do not present a constraint to developmenf.       

River Islands

The River Islands Urban Design Concept establishes Urban Design Standards for each district within the River Islands

planned community. The Urban Design Goncept was prepared by the River Islands development team to implement
the standards of the. West Lathrop Specific Plan.

The Urbsn Design Concept is a detailed document that illustrates the lotting, street patterns, and layout of residential
and mixed- use communities, within River Islands.  The _neighborhood design guidelines for River Islands include

objective parameters for both single=family_and multi-family projects including erriphasizing entryways, deemphasized
garages, methods to conserve energy, using: appropriate window forms, varying roof styles, and emphasizing the
appropriate use oftrim, materials, and colors where appropriate. Multi- family projects are requiredto use a variety of
materials and colors with architectural variations.

Staff works closely with the architects to ensure designs conform with existing guidelines. While. there are no cost
provisions within the Urban Design Concept, the purpose of these Urban Design Concept is not to be cost prohibitive

but rather to provide detailed ass'istance for developers and architects during the initial design process.

Mossdale Landin

The Mossdale Landing Urban Design Concept emphasizes the creation of a livable, p.edestrian- oriented community that
provides identity and variety. Lathrop' s Mossdale Landing is based upon the Mossdale Village plan and policies
presented in the West Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP), It is consistent with the City' s General Plan. Mossdale Landing is
unique in that it follows ne.o- traditional planning principles for greater community interaction and access, provides
opportunities for a wide range of housing options, supplies a catalyst for commercial development, imparts more park
acreage than is required- meaning more play and green areas, presents local and regional bicycle and pedestrian trails,
and provides street trees and separated sidewalks on all streets.

Neighborhood Design Review is applicable only to proposed subdivisions within the Mossdale Village section of the
West Lathrop Specific Plan ( which. encompasses both the Stewart Tract and Mossdale Village). Neighborhood Design
Review is utilized to provide a uniform and consistentde"sign standard program( including publicfacilities) fora planned
unit of residential developrrient consistent with the Mossdale Landing Urban Design Concept.. Neighborhood Design.
Review approval typicallytakes 8- 12 weeks. Neighborhood Design Review is not required fo.r multifamily developments.

Strearr lining Approvals
Lower Income Sites included. in Previous Elements

While the site plan review process is not considered a constrainf to housing, Program 1 n has been provided to comply
with Government Code 65583. 2.' This program will provide for ministeriai approval ( e. g., Community Development
Directorapproval ofsite plan review and entitlements otherthan a subdivision map) of housing projects with a minimum
of 20 percent of units affordable fo lower income households and will increase certainty for affordable and multifamily
developers on R- 3 sites.

SB 35

SB 35 provides provisions for streamlining projects based on a jurisdiction' s progress fowards its RHNA and timely
submittal of the Housing Element Annual Progress Report. When jurisdictions have insufficient progress toward their

78

516



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

above moderate income RHNA and/ or have not submitted the latest Housing Element Annual Progress Report, these
jurisdictions are subject to the streamlined ministerial appCoval process ( SB 35 ( Chapter 366, Statutes of 2017)

streamlining) for proposed developments with at least 10% affordability.   

HCD reviews the annual progress report deadlines and RHNA progress on an annual basis. Lathrop is currently subject
to SB 35 streamlining provisions when proposed developments include 10% affordability.  Program 2t has been

provided to incorporate the mandatory streamlining provisions into the City' s Zoning Code.  These streamlining
provisions will reduce approv.al requirements for projects that include a minimum of 10 percent of units affordable to

lower inc me households end that meet the criteria specified by State law.

Specific Plan Capacities

Development within each adopted Specific Plan is limited to the approved and development intensiti_es for each plan.

The West Lathrop Specific Plan approved 12, 700 units for River Islands and 3, 480 units for Mossdale Village.  River
Islands i's approved to develop with a renge of 9, 100 to 12, Z00 units, as shown 'in Table 59 below. Mossdale Village is
approVed to develop with up fo 3, 480 units. Table 60 identifies the units anticipated in each area of Mossdale Village,
based on development occurring at the average allowed density. Central Lathrop Specific Plan is approved for 6, 790
units as shown in Table 61 below.

The development approved foreach specific plan is not considered a constraintto growth. As shown below, each specific

plan accommodates a cange of development densities and is planned to include low, medium, and high density
residential. uses, ensuring that there is an opportunity to distri:bute a variety of housing types throughout each specific
plan, as well as throughout the City as a whole.

Tae E 59: APPROVED DEVELOPMENT CAPACITIES- RIVER ISLANDS.
s             fediur Dens ty( 8 20'   '      H gh pensity j15 40

r Lo r D nsrty` 3 9" Dli1AC}                    s

Distr ct
s DU/ AC) DUlAC)    '   :

x     .

W,,', , M nimt m ..   Maximum '   Minimu n,  P.
UlaxirYlur,  kMini' mUin.,. >. I ax,imumn n

Town Center 100 300 0 0 500 700

Old River Road  .  600 800

Lakeside 1, 200 1, 600 .

Lake Harbor _ .   400 600

EastUillage .  .   1, 800 2, 000 200 600

WestVillage 1, 600 1, 80.0 200 550 500.     650

Woodlands.      1, 600 2, 000 400 1, 100

TOTAL 7, 300 9, 100 800  , 2, 250 1, 000 1, 350
SOURCE: WEST LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN, AMENDED 2012

TABLE GO: APPROVED DEVELOPMENT. CAPACITIES— MOSSDALE VILLAGE

Resrdentia! i
n          Au erage, De rs ty       "  AcCes Rwe11 n'g Un tsArea

5. 5 dulac. .    235. 0 .  . .. . ._     ..

w     

293 :

F 10. 0 du/ ac 620 620

G- I 5. 5 du/ ac 82. 0 451

J 10. 0 dulac 20. 0 200

K- 0 5. 5 dulac 115. 5 637

TOTAL 1072. 5 3, 201

Note: Up to 3, 480 units are permitted in Mossdale Village and it is anticipated that
some neighborhoods or sites may develop at higher than the average densities

SO(IRCE: WEST GATHROP SPEGIFIC PLAN, AMENDED 2012

79

517



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

TAs E 61: APPROVED DEVELOPMENT CAPACITIES- CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN

Denfiityl ntensity   
D  el( ing Un ts     -         Designat an        , A res        

z;vRan" e( dulacj  .    
VR- CL 703. 1 3- 16 5, 114 .

HR- CL 28. 3 15- 40 453

RIMU- CL 45. 2 10- 40. or 0. 17- 4. 0 723'

OC- VR 67. 0 3- 16 500

TOTAL 843. 6 13, 298

1. INADDITION TO 723 RESIDENTIAL UNITS, THE R MU SITESAREANTICIPATED TO DEVELOP WITH

APPROXIMATELY$ 90,674 SQ( IARE FEET OF NON- RESIDENTIAL USES.
SOURCE: CENTItALLATHROPSPECIFICPLAN, AMENDEDZOII

Local Efforts to Remove Barriers

Historic Lathrop Overl District

Consistent with State. law, the City has developed several programs to fielp remove barriers fo creating affordable
housirig. In 2005, the City amended its Municipal Code, to include Ordinance 05-252( Historic Overlay District Lathrop).
This amendment established the overlay zone for medium and for low density residential areas in Historic Lathrop. The
Historic Overlay district provides for reduced setbacks and small lot sizes thereby increasing density and promoting
development of parcels in the older neighborhoods in the City.

Residential Review

The evaluation and review process required by City procedure contributes to the cost of housing. One way to reduce
housing costs isto reduce thetime required to process permits. The City has streamlined its development review process
through 1) ensuri_ng that all City departments participate early in the development review process through pre-
application meetings and application review; 2) encouraging concurrent processing of permits and entitlements, and
3) providing straightforward and clear design guidelines and development standards. As shown Table 54, the City has
a relatively short processirig time. From 1- 6 weeks for Administrative Approval to 4- 12 months for Discretionary Review
ApprovaL

The majority of new developmentwill occurwithin planned communities( Central Lathrop, River Islands, and Mossdale
Landing) which means that much of the planning, design review, and entitlements have been completed and
infrastructure is planned and underway. The completion ofsignificant advance planning, detailed design concepts, and
infrastructure planning means that the process for subsequent projects and development phases has been simplified
and: is straightforward.

Zoning Code Updates

In 2016, the City updated the Zoning Code to reduce potential governmental constraints and provide for a variety of
housing types. The revisions to the Zoning Code addressed density bonus law, single room occupancy uses, emergency
shelters, transitional housing, supportive housing, large residential care homes, farmworkerlagricultural employee
housing, reasonable accommodation procedures, and incentives for affordable housing:

In 2019, the City adopted additional revisions to the Zoning Code to allow accessory dwelling units subject to the
requirements of State law and to accommodate manufactured housing consistent with State law.

Fees

In 2019, the City adopted policy direction to support staff' s interpretation of fees applicable to ADUs. The policy ensures
that water and sewer connection fees are not included in ADU fee calculation and e.nsure_that any applicable fees are
applied at the multifamily rate, ratherthan the single family rate. This ensures reduced fees forADUs and is intended to
promote development of ADUs.

80

518



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

POTENTIAL NON- GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS     

Development Costs

Land Costs

The cost of to develop hous' ing is influenced by the cost of the raw land, the cost of holding the land during the
development process, and the cost of providing services to meef City standards for development. The cost of raw land is
influenced: by variables such as scarcity, location, availability of public utilities, zoning, general plan designation, and
unique features like trees, water frontage, and adjoining uses. A review of lots for sale and recently sold indicates that
land prices range from approximately$, 14, 000 to $ 50, 000 per acre for unentitled land to $ 134,474 per acre for land
approved for single familyand multifamily development based on a review of zillow and loopnet lisfings. Finished
subdivision phases within the River Islands development have sold from to$ 108, 300 to$ 131, 221 perfinished lot.

Several underdeveloped parcels with a single family unit that could be redeveloped with single family or multifamily
developments: with 8 to 15 units have been sold for$ 245; 000 to$ 356, 000 per acre( approximately$ 20, 000 to$ 30, 000
per potentisl unit) in the past year. A recently sold parcel previously approved for a 12- unit subdivision sold for

35.6, 000, which translafes to an average of$ 29, 667 per single family lot.:   

Multifamily land sales in Lathrop have included the Mossdale Cending Apartments parcels, which are entitled for a 204-
unit apartment complex, for a price of$ 5, 900, 500($ 28, 924 per unit) and 231 Towne Centre Drive( 191- 550-74), a 3'.4-

acre site, which sold for$ 1, 300, 000 zoned CV- MU and is assumed to deVelop at approximately 24 units per acre, wh' ich
would result in a land cost of approximately$ 15, 931 per unit.

Cost of Construction

The cost of construction is primarily dependent on the cost of labor and materials. Construction costs in Lathrop are
comparable to costs throughout the Central Valley. Non- union labor is rypically used, for residential construction and
there are no unusual costs with obtaining materials.

Single family homes that were issued permits and constructed in 2019 cosf an average of$ 127, per square unit to
construct, based on an average cost of$ 319, 892( U. S. Census building permits data; 2019.) and an average size of 2, 506
squarefeet( Zillow, 2019). Buildingpermitdataindicatesthatsinglefamilyconstructibncostsrangefromapproximately

115 to$ 150 persquare foot. Lathrop uses the lnternational Conference of Building Officials good standard for a basis
of building permitfees. .-:  ,

Upon securing fhe raw land; a residential developer would fiave to make certain site improvements to" finisfi" the lot
before a home could aetually be built on the property.  Such improvements would include the installation of water
mains; fire hydrants; sewer mains; sto.rm drainage mains; street liglits; and the construction of streefs, curbs,, gutters,
and sidewalks.  In addition, the develo: per is required to provide other improveme. nts,, including, but not limited to
bridges, culverts, fencing ofwatercourses and hazardous areas, ornamental walis, landscaping, noise barriers, recreation
areas and facilities, and providing access to, tlie San Joaquin River, In 2019, the site improvement cost for a single-
family lot in Lathrop is estimated at approximately $ 20, 000 based on estimated in-tract improvement costs for River
Islands CFD2003- 1. This estimate does not include the cost of land.      

Construction cost increases; like land cost increases, affectthe ability of consumers to pay for housing: Construction cost
increases occur due to the cost of materials, labor, and higher govemment imposed standards( e. g., energy conservation
requirements). The development community is currently producing market rate for-sale housing that is affordable to
moderate and above moderefe income households.

Cost and Availability of Financing

Financing is critical to the housing market. Developers require construction financing, and buyers require permanent
financing. The two principal waysin which financing can serve as a constraint to new residential development are the
availability and cost of construction financing and the availability and cost of permanentfinencing.

If financing is not easily available, then mor.e equity may be required for developing new projects and fewer

81

519



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

homebuyers ean purchase homes, since higherdown payments are required.   

Higher construction period interest rates for developers result in higher development costs: For homebuyers,       .
higher interest rates translate into higher mottgage payments( for the same loan amount), and therefore reduces the
purchasingpowerofhomebuyers.    

On August 22, 2019, the reported average rate for a 30- year mortgage was 3. 55% with 0. 5 pointsLFreddieMac, 2019).-   
From 2005 through 2019, av_erage monthly mortgege. rates have ranged fro:m a high of 6. 76% in July 2006 to a low of
3. 35% in November and December; 2012.  For home,buyers, it is necessary`to_pay a higher down payment than in the
immediate past; and demonstrate credit worthiness and adequate incomes; so that loan applications meet standard
underwriting criteria. While adherence to strict underwrifing criteria was not required during the early and mid- 20QOs,
the,return to stricter standards is consistent with loan standards prior to 2001.

Annroved and Built Densities

While the City' s regulations identify minimum and maximum densities that. may be developed in the City, individual
developers may optto build atthe lower, mid- range, or higher end of allowed densities. Recent projects in Lathrop that
are built or are under construction are consistentwith the d,ensities anticipated by the City' s General Plan, Specific Plans,
and Zoning Code. A review of final suqdivision maps for projects with low density residential designations and zoning
indicates projects zoned RL- RI; which allows 3 to. 9 units per acre, are constructing housing from approximately 6 units
per acre to the maximum den,sities allowed, averaging approximately 7 units per acre.  In the medium density  
residential districts and designations, a single projectwith a density of 18 units per acre has 6een construcfed ih the RM-
RI zone, which allows b to 20 units per acre. Towne Centre Phase l and II have been approved at densities of 24.96 units
per acre in the CV- MU zone, which allows 16- 25 units per acre:

While not yet constructed, several multifamily projects have been reviewed as well. Towne Centre Phase l and II have
been approved at densities of 24. 96 units per acre in the CV- MVzone, which allows 16- 25 units per acre, The Mossdale

Landing Apartments are approved at a density of 22: 6 units per acre in the RH- MV zone, which allows 15- 40 units per

acre.      

Building Permit Timing

Typically, single family home developers apply forthe first builtling permits for a subdivision upon or near completion
of grading and infrastructure irriprovements for a development. Depending on the timing of the initial approval, this
can occur anyw.here from 1 month( approvals issued during. the dryseason) to 6 months( entitlements issued during the
wet season when grading and infrastructure improvements are prohibited in compliance with wafer. quality
cequirements) from the initial entitlement. For large- scale projects such as the City' s specific plans,. building permits
will be issued over multiple years based on the phasing and market demand.  For smaller-scale projects, building
permits may be issued over a one orfwo month period.

Deyelopers of multifami.ly projects in the City have failed to request building permits in a ti_mely fashion.  The City
approved the. Fairfield Apartments in 2007 forthe construction of 208- units, and. has subsequently approved revisions
to the site plan in 2016 as the Mossdale Landing Apartments ( 204 units). The City has reviewed and approved the
construction plans; however, the developer is working to secure financing and has yet to request issuance of building
permits:  The Towne Centre Apartments Phase I and II were approved in 7017 and 2018, respectively; during the
approval meeting for Phase II, the developer indicated that permits would be requested in approximately b months but
site related issues due to conflicts with existing easements delayed submittal of plans: As of October 201:9, the developer
has submitted plans and the City has completed the building permit plan checkfor both Phases I and II, resulting in 1: 1
months from project approval to the developer completing plan check. Issuance of building permits for Phases I and II
is pending payment offees. The developer is diligently workin.g towards issuance of building permits.

Affordable Housing Development Consfraints
In addition to the constraints to market rate housing development discussed above, affordable housing projects face
add_itional constraints. While the"re is a range of sites available for potential affordable housing projects, as well as
projects thatfocus on special needs populations, there is very little financial assistance forthe development of affordable

82

520



2019 HOiJSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

housing.

Multiple funding sources are needed to construct an affordable housing project, since substantial subsidies are required
to make the units affordable to extremely low, very low, and low income households. It is not unusual to see five or more
financing sources required to make a projectfinancially feasible. Each ofthese sources may have different requirements
and application deadlines, and some sources may require that the project has already successfully secured financing  .
commitments. Since financing is so critical and is also generally competitive, organizations and agencies ihat provide
funding often can effectively dictate the type and sizes of projects. Thus, in some years senior housing may be favored
by financing programs, while in other years family housing may be preferred. Target income levels can also vary from
yeartoyear.   

This situation has worsened in recent years: federal and state funding has decreased and limited amounts of housing
funds are available and the process to obtain funds is extremely competitive. Tax credits, often a fundamental source of
funds for affordable housing, are no longer selling on a one for one basis. In other words, once a project has received
authorization to sell a specified amount of tax credits to equity investors, the investors are no longer purchasing the
credits at face value, but are purchasing them at a discount. ( Tax credits are not worth as much to investors if their
incomes have dropped.)

The City does not have any local funds for affordable housirig. While the City can support CDBG andlor HOME funding
applications made to the Urban CountylSan Joaquin County, there are limited funds available to City projects
approximately$ 20, 000 in HOME funds peryear) and there is no guarantee offunding.

83

521



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Fi ure 1

84

522



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Fi ure 2

85

523



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Figure 3

86

524



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Fi ure 4

s

525



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT      

5.     Resources

This section of the Housing Element describes resources arrailable for housing development. Resources include land
designated for housing development and financial resources to assist with tlie development of housing.

INVENTORY OF HOUSIIVG SITES

Housing element law requires an inVentory of land suitable for residential development( Government Code Section
65583( a)( 3)). An important purpose ofthis inventory is to determine whether ajurisdiction has allocated sufficient land
for the development of housing to meet the jurisdiction' s share of the regional housing need, including housing to
accommodate the needs of all household income levels.

This section provides an analysis of the land available within tfie City. for residential development.  In addition to

assessing the quantity of land available to accommodate the City' s total housing need.s,. this section also considersthe
availability of sites to accommodate a variety of housing types suitable for households witfi a range of income levels and
housing needs.

Criteria for ldentifying Housing Sites

This Housing Element identifies vacantand underutilized sitesthatwould accommodafe residential useswithin Lathrop.
It is noted thatthe underutilized sites are not necessaryforthe Cityto accommodate the RHNA and have been induded
fo provide additional options for developers tfiat review the inventory ofsifes. A citywide parcel database, aerial photos,
and General Plan GIS data were used to located parcels for this update. Parcel acreages by land use designation are
based on assessor and GIS data.,

Parcels in the inyentory fall into three categories:

1.)       Parcels with approved projects,

2)       Parcels that arevacant and designated for residential development, and

3)       Parcels that are underutilized and are suitable for higher interisity residential redevelopment.
Underuti.lized ( or underdeveloped) parcels are defined as those whe're a significant portion of the site is
vacant, there is potential for additional residential units, and the site exceeds one acre.

All identified developable land designated for residential use( all residential land use designations in the General Plan)

is considered available for residential development. Additionally, land within the Community Commercial and
Professional Office designations is also considered available for residential development as the Zoning Code permits
residential uses for these sites.  It is noted thaf the CC and PO sites are not counted toward the City' s sites to
accommodate; lower income housing units. The methodology shall consider factors including the extent to which
existing uses may constitute an impediment to additional residential development, development trends, market
conditions, and regulatory or other incentives or standards-to encourage additional residentiel development on these
sites.

Summary of Residential Sites
Table 62 summarizes the City' s inventory of siteswith approv.ed projects and sites that are vacant or underutilized.
Available sites a e shown in Figure 2 and are described in detail in Appendix A.

The majority of sites are in specific plans, as sh'own in Table 62. These sites were anticipated to develop with resitlential
uses at densities consistent with the approved specific plans and are consistent with the capacities of each specific plan.

Vacant and underutilized sites that are not in specific plans are located east of I- 5. Develop.ment in eastem Lathrop was
generally assumed to occur at approximately 80% ofcapacity. Each ofthe underutilized sites in eastern Lathrop is at least
an acre in size and many larger lot( 0. 5 acres and higher) in eastern Lathrop have expressed interest. in dividing their
parcels or in developing liigher intensity uses. Development assumptions iri eastern Lathrop assumed development at
80% of capacity. For the three underutilized lots with an existing residence, the potential capacity shown is ne4 of the
existing residence( e. g., the residence was su6tracted from the total development potential).

88

526



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

As described in the previous section, the City was allocated 5, 156 housing units by the SJCOG Regional Housing Needs
Allocation( RHNA) for 2014 through 2023. The City' s progress to date includes 1; 600 constructed units and 197 units
that are under construction or have been permitted ( see Table 32).  The City has 3, 359 units remaining to be
accbmmodated. As is shown in Table 62, the City has adequate sites to accommodate the RHNA for all income levels.
For lower income units, the Cify has an allocation of 1, 778 units and has 103. 3 acres that can accommodate 2, 121 units
on sites that allow densities of at least 20 units per acre, consistent with the assumptions for lower income sites

established by Government Code Section 65583. 2( c)( 3)( B)( iiij. The City also has a surplus of sites for moderate and
above moderate income units.

As shown in Appendix A, the City has sites in a range of sizes. Sites available for single family development appropriate
for above moderafe income households range from small lots of 0. 10 to 0: 38 acres in exisfing subdivisions to in- fill lots
of 0. 43 to3.45 acres in east tathrop to lots over 100 acres. Lots for moderate income households accommodate higher
density single family( e. g., townhomes, attached single family, cluster housirig) and mediumlhigh density multifamily
units. These lots vary in size from smaller lots of 0. 25 acres to laxge lots of more than 30. acres. Sites for lower income,

multifamily housing range from 1 to 27. 5 acres and are described in more deta'il in Table 63.

TABLE 62:. COMPARISON OF RHNATO INVENTORY OF SITES

Extreme y Lo.wi
Very, L'6w,& L ò"iiv      `   Mo`derate`   l     : Ab,oue Mode r̀a„te n TOTAL      {

F ., ; Acres ,!   Units'.   ''' Acres "  llni#s'  .   ; Acres .'   Units'  ,    Acres  ;`  „ Units'_ w"

2014= 2023 RHNA.    .

Rerpain ing
r       , 

1, 7Z8      ,     928 653       ;    3, 359':
AlPoca ion     " 

Table` 32},   

West Lathrop
Specific 2. 84 70 41. 3 613 98. 7 542 142. 8 1, 225

Plan/ Mossdale

West Lathrop
Specific Plan/ River 45.2 1, 025 195. 5 1, 444 2, 655. 0 5, 514 2, 895. 7 7, 983

Islands

Central Lathrop 52. 5 978 55. 4 440 382. 2 2, 634 490. 1 4, 052
Specific Plan

lndividual Sites not
2. 49 48 20. 88 218 8J8 52 32. 2 318

in specific plans

Total Capacity 103. 03 2, 121 313. 1 2, 7:15 3, 144J 8, 742 3, 560. 8 13, 578

Surplus 343 1, 787 8, 084 10, 219

I CALCULATIONS DO NOT REPRESENT MAXIMUM CAPACITY,' DEVELOPMENT POTENT/ AL IS H/ GHER IF S/ TES ARE DEVELOPED AT MAXIMUM DENSITIES

ALLOWED

SOURCE: C(TYOFLATXROP, 2019; DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP, ZOI9

Approved Projects

Many ofthe City' s sites are in approved projects, including approved Vesting Tentative Maps( VTM 3647- Central Lathrop
Specific Plan and VTM 3789- Central Lathrop Specific Plan), approved final maps( River Islands Maps- all portions of
Tract 3694), and three approved multifamily projects. These approved projects are included in the inventory of sites
shown in Table 62. Each approved project is described in more detail, including applicable APNs, land use designations,
and numberof units, in AppendixA.

While no multifamily units were constructed, the City did approve three multifamily projects. Although there is no
affordabilify component proposed for these projects, it is anticipated that the market- rafe rents will be affordable to

89

527



2019 HOUSfNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

moderate income households.

Mossdale Landing Apartments( formerly Fairfield Apartments)- This project was initially approved the Fairfield
Apartments in 2007 for 208 units. On June 28; 2016, the City approved a Minor Site Plan Review to reduce the
project size to 204 units and replace the garages with carports. The project has applied for building permits and
has been approved through plan check; however, the developer has not requested issuance of building permits
yet. The City extended the DeVelopment Agreement for the Mossdale Landing Apartments project and the
Towne Centre Apartment projects to March 1 b, 2029 to provide sufficient time to complete these projects.

Towne Centre Apartments Pfiase l= The City approved the Site Plan Review for this 62- unit multifamilyproject   
on a 2. 46- acre site ( two separate parcels) in 2017. The developer has applied for and obtained approval of     -

building permits; however, has not requested issuance of building permits yet.    

Towne Centre Apartments Phase II- The City approved the Site Plan Review forthis 84-unit multifamily project
on a 3. 4- acre site( two separate parcels) project on September 19, 2018. The developer has applied for and

obtained approval of building permits; however, has not requested issuance of building permits yet.
Lower Income Sites

The City has 103. 3 acres of land that allows multifamily uses at densities of 15 to 40 units per acre. These sites will
accommodate 2, 121 lower income units, as shown in Table 63, based on realistic capacity assumptions. If these sites
are developed at maximum densities, more thari 3, 600 units could be developed, so there is significant potential for
multifamily development beyond what was calculated underthe realistic caPacity scenarib. All ofthe sites identified for
lower income units in Table 63 allow densities of at leasf 20 units per acre, consistent with the assumptions for lower

income sites established by Government Code Section 65583. 2( c)( 3)( B)( iii).

In River Islands, Vesting Tentative Map 3694 designates 17. 7 acres for development with approximately 425 multifamily
apartments in. tlie mixed use zone. While densities are allouved at 15- 40 dulac, Vestirig Teritative Map 3694 is entitled
at a density of approximately 24 dulac would occur: An additional 2:7. 5- acre site is located in River Islands that was
identified for 500 to 650 units in the West Lathrop Specific Plan; this site is anticipated to accommodate a minimum of
600 units at a density of approximately 21. 8 du/ ac. It is noted that the mixed use site; while not split-zoned, has been
designated for several types of development; only the portion identified to accommodate multifamily apartments has
been included in the lower income sites inventory. Tfie remainder ofthis parcel is anticipated to accommodate moderate
income units( townhomes) and above moderate income units and the associated acreages ofthe remainder ofthe parcel

are counted separately in the moderate and above moderate income inventories. The 27. 5- acre site is part of a larger
parcel that has been designated in the Specific Plan for low, medium, and high density residential uses; only the portion
ofthis site that is designated for high density residential uses is included in the lower income sites inventory.

In Central Lathrop Specific Plan, Vesting Tentative Map 3647 identifies Neighborhood 4 for multifamily uses at 15 to 40
dulac. This site was anticipated to accommodate approximately 341 units. Central Lathrop Specific Plan identifies one
additional high density site and four additional sites for mixed use; these sites are allowed to develop at 15- 40 dulac.
For the purposes of this inventory, the mixed use sites in Central Lathrop Specific Plan were assumed to develop with
multifamily uses at 25 dulac for approximately 50% ofthe site. These sites could develop at.higher densities on a larger
portion of the site, but a reduced amount of development was assumed in orderto provide a conservative estimate.

As identified in Table 63 below, the majority of sites in the inventory of lower income sites are vacant( Sites 1, 2, 3, 4; b,
8, 9, 10, 11, and 13). Sites 5, 7, and 12 are underutilized with a small older structure.

Site 5 lias two agriculturel industrial buildings tliat occupy approximately 10°/0 of the parcel; tlie exisfing agricultural
industrial use is planned to be replaced with approved Specific Plan uses.  Site 7 has two residences and several
outbuildings that ocwpy approximately 10 to 15% of th.e parcel; these uses are planned to be replaced with approved
Specific Plan uses. Both Sites 5 and 7 are significantly underutilized and are appropriate forfuture residential use. The
existing uses on these sites are not considered an impediment to development. The City has incentivized development
of these sites by removing regulatory barriers to development through approval of the Central Lathrop Specific. Plan,
which has planned for urbanization of the area and it is anticipated that these sites will be developed as envisioned by

90

528



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

the Specific Plan. This is consistent with the development patterns in the City' s other specific plan areas, which have
included agricultural- industrial uses, rural residential uses, and` a variety of other uses that were, envisioned for
urbanization and were developed with higher density uses consistent with the applicable Specific Plan. Site 12 is     -
underutilized with a small olderstructure.

Development of individual subdivision maps under the approved Vesting Tentative Maps is moving forward and it is
likely that development in the City and the region will continue to be strong and encburage development of these
multifamily housing sites. As development. progresses in each of the City' s specific plan areas, it is anticipated fhat the
demand for the multifamily housing will increase and that the multifamily sites will begin to be planned for
development, as has recently occurred with approved multifamily projects.       

The lower income sites shown in Table 63 are adequate to accommodate the City' s RHNA for extremely low, very low,
and low income sites. As described in Table 63, each of the sites is anticipated to develop with high density uses as each
site: 1) has a required minimum density, 2) has an approval with a density of 20 units/ acre or more, 3) are required to
have a minimum number of units in the Specific Plan that addresses the site, or 4) are suitable for high density
development and are irifill sites.

While many of the City' s lower income sites exceed the 10-acre size recommended by the Government Code, these sites
are located within specific plan areas and required to accommodafe a minimum number of multifamily units. Because
these sites have been master planned by the specific plan developer, have plans in place to ensure infrastructure is
provided to the site, and will be developed as part of the overall plan, the City has determined thatthese larger sites are
realistic and feasible. The City has also induded one small ( 0. 25-acre) site in the lower income inventory; this site is
vacant and could be used to develop a small housing project serving a special needs population.

While all ofthe sites are realistic and feasible, Program 1 b has been included in the Housing Elementto ensure thstthe
multifamily sites located within the Vllest Lathrop and Central Lathrop Specific Plans are maintained or replaced within
the Specific Plans as the Gerieral Plan Update, future subdivisions, and project approvals move forward.  Program 1 b

would ensure_that a realistic capacity of 1, 025 lower income units( 45. 2 acres designated for 15- 40 dulac) in the West
Lathrop Specific Plan and 972 lower income units( 39. 2 acres designated for 15- 40 du/ ac).

91

529



201:9 HOUStN6 EtEMENT: BACKGROUND REPORT

TABLE G3: INVENTORY. OF LOWER INCOME SITES,       
x:    

a y ?    --   }  Y       - > .':  
kr` t"' . a:d,'  t..;`    a-";  

f;:`*       . s , a.. na'..    Jrt        ,    $     y   lncf tUetlr  .., '   
r '.",,     a'    ' a t- , ha  . rs fFsi.y     ` t.::"."'    ._„     "  '-...:.  

v",,     +,'    

E&
Gene.ra' I      Site    Real istic. ;   s,  ,      _  -`>        .    .    ...      -        

t,;

Preu:rousI e    i1X UIl{ t,           _- f`..
rt 

r          

Y    : a     '     ,
c., ' @  .. t,  ,  .< r,:,.

s_  . a
a a     „ s

f
f     ':- , 

t.       Plan/       Siie       Onit Status   Infrastructure4  ,
i i       s`       -   g,''' Y,"°,.  

s   ' 4' ..<,      .. s      ,,.,  
s  ,;`, a,;..'   `",: s    ..."       ;"   A, 

Y

R

PN s LL r
zGapacitY     , x      .   HbusingZonin:    ,= Aeres Cayaeity   :;      r     :    . n     s r.:  $ F;r:

yg 1 J Y
4 k i'i. '

e             / - i F J
y

a  
2

yi' 1
t _    g.:  

x  .'""     

k . r a> ,,. x      ,       
2,111e. 1t S

x
t, . ,.  _..   t _ .>_ 4.           =. r.,..._.. .., ,, ., . n_ r,.      _.,_ .. .,       , , h, . .

Site 1:       River Islands Vestirrg Tentative Map 3694 includes approximately 17. 7 acres of.  West Lathrop   ;  Yes: 2 or more

i ^

21331033 this 119: 92- acre mixed use parcel for multifamily development at Specifi' e Plan '    rycles.

approximately 24 dulac. A portion of this parcel has been developed with estab'lishes Program 1 n in the

planned tommercial uses, which are included in the range of uses identified by requirements.     Housing Element
the West Lathrop Specific Plan. Tfie high density component of this site is '      and financing ' ,  would ensure"that
required to include a minimum of 500 and a maximum of 700 multifamily mechanisms to ' the approval

units. The site is entitled at the higher end of the range, with Vesting Tentative  provide water,. .,  requirements for

Map 3694 approved for 425: apartments and 243 townhomes on this. parcel sewer, and dry this site are

11. 3 acres assumed for apertments and 8. 4 acres assumed for. townhomes),     utilities to all     consisfent with

The apartments are assumed to accommodate lower income housing as 4he sites within the Government Gode

tlensities can range from. 15 to 40: dulac. The fownhomes are anticipatetl to be plan.    Section 65583: 2.

afforda6le to moderate income households as attached for sale products.

typically are not affortlable in the lower income range and affortlable housing
MU- RI/    developers typically do nof build townhomes. The requiretl multifamily units

Ml1- RI
17. 7 425 700 may be built in- multiple locations on the site as separate projects. The area

identified for multifamily housing is vacant and backbone infrastructure is
being extendetl throughout the site.' This site is owned by the River Islands
Master Developer( Califia LLC) and is anticipated to be sold to subsequent

developers in the same inanner as the single family sites have been improved
with inf"rastructure and then sold to housing developers. This site is a realistic
lower income site as it is required to include a minimum of 500 multifamily
units by the Specific Plan; this' requirem:ent is reflected in the approved Vesting: .
Tentative Map:   

Program 1b ofthe Housing Elemeht requires tlie:West Lathrop Specific Pfan to
maintain 45. b7 acres for multifamiiy development at 15- 40 dulac, which
means that the multifam' ily component of this site cannot be developed with
less intensive uses or non- residential uses, without replacing the site within the
West Lathrop Specific Plan:

Site 2:     RH- RI/    Vacant. Realistic capacity is 6ased on the. o,ptimal number of multifamily units Wesf Lathrop :    Yes: 2 or more

21321006 27. 5 b00 650 identified for this 270- acre parcel by West Lathrop Specific Plan. West Lathr.op Specific Plan ry.cles.
RH- RI

S ecific Plan desi nates this Rive. r Islands site( Wesf Villa e) for a minimum of establishes   `   Pro ram1 n in: the       

92

530



2019 HOUSINGfLEMENTBACKGROUND REPORT

4;
H   "'   '   s        S, 2        x', ,

2      `'``     ,
a. :  r

r               
a e   , '

s e   , i:a
g

t`',  ,

X      ,
e`_   `; a  '  Il'C UE II}

G n rai     Site     Realistir x    
R ;          _      ..

7t       lX V"°     a--   r * i j:  ; a` a' r i€ '?` -S°    a      a„,_.`,
fr

s r S
s    :

x                        -
a

d.    << 
Pre,viou

Plant.       Size "      Uniti`  r.    ,       :°       
aStatus     e  .   Infrastructure

r P d s=     Cµa aci# y,,   , ., .   ,   .=     w'  _ Housin` 1,)     :.  ;   :       .... ...   g '    : ;. y

i,.  ,. . -  '",-
7 ; ' u' t"

4

e-,:.. '
e'

k    z.;
u"

R-._,:'.
e,

r*    :

a '-."       .  9     `'`#` c       "'<    "  ".,,..,     " , g  `  '_. ZUlllllg     
aCf$   C8 dC t r P„  a w            + .   ,             _-*       •r      a.  

z  ., t«'¢_ . -       :i,.<. s;    H .:  o
t.   ".k d x.','#;:eA-, a ti? I:      s€     _ F t$,.  et = .. , .      .        

fl   500

and a maximu. mof 650 multifamily un:its and ide. ntifies 600 multifamily requirements,    Housing Element.  . .units(
equal to 21. 8 tlu/ ac) as optimal. It is noted that this: site is part of a larger and financing would ensure that  :parcel

that has multiple zoning designations u_nderthe SpecificPlan; each  .    mechanisms to the approval portion

of this parcel: and associated zoning is s: hownin Appendix A.The: prov. ide water,   , requirements for required

multifamily units may be built in multiple: phases as separate projects. sewer; and dry this site are . :This

site is realistic for multifamily and afforda6le developmentas it is plarrned utilities' to all consistent with for

multifamily development in the West Lathrop Specific Plan and is required sites within the Government Code fo

ihclude a minimum of 500 units.      plan.      Sectionb5583. 2. :Housing

Plan P ogram 1 b requires the West Cathrop Specific Plan to maintain 45.
67 acres for multifamily development at 15- 40 du/ ac, which means that the multifamil.
y eomponentof this site cannot be developed with.less intensive uses,
oc.non-. residential uses,without replacing tfie site within. the West Lathrop Specific
Plan. Site

3:. Central Latlirop Yes: 2:or more 19121017

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Vesting Tentative Map 364. 7;Neighborhood 4 Specific Plan cycles: requires

15 to 40 du/ ac on thisparcel. Vacant:    establishes Program 1n in the This

site is realisticfor multifamily.and affordable development as it is planned requireinents Housing Element HR/

DS- CLl for multifami.ly developmentin the Central Lathrop Specific Plan and is and financing would ensure fhat 13.
65:       341 546 required: to develop at a density of:15 to 40 du/ ac. :      mechanisms to the: approval. HR-

CL Housing
Plan- Program 1 b re. quires the Gentral Lathrop S_pecific Plan.to provide water,    requiremenfs for maintain

43 acres for multifamily development at 15: 40 tlu/ ac, which rrieans sewer, and d:ry this site are tliat

this site cannot be developed with less intensive. uses; without replacing utilities to all.,    consistent with the

site within th' e Central Lathrop Specifie Plan.  sites within the Government Code: plan:    

Section 65583:2.Site

4: Central: Lathrop Specifit Plan requires 15 to 40 du/ ac on this; parcel. Vaca: nt:      Cent[ al Lathrop  : This site was not T9•

121041 This site: is ealistic for multifamily and afforda6le development as it is pfanned Specific Plan included in ttie for.

multifemil.y development in the Central Lafhrop Specific Plan a.nd. is establishes  .     previous Housing_HR/
DS- CL/  required

to develop at a density of 15 to. 40 du/ac. Program 1 b of the Housing  . requirements Element cycle.12.
32 305 493 HR-

CL Element requires the Central Lathrop SpecificPlanto maintain 43 acres for and financing multifamily
develo: pment at 15- 40 du/ ac, which means that this site cannot be mechanisms to_developed

with less intensive uses, without replacing the site within the Central provide water,   Lathrop
Specific Plan:    sewer,. and dry 93

531



201;9 HOUSING ELEMENT BAC.KGROUND REPORT

p
s  `  

y In eluded in,  }       _i. }`$'  
Z?' c. rN.      '_

a`,-'" 
t       S` a+`€      3 t3

4: Gene,r:al Site _     ea l st icv`   ^'  

M. X U il'It  ,  ;:' ,' r.-`  ;; °` ' 
z; . x j' pP@U#:Ol1S'"    

s+.•      s`
lan Siz  .      11n i Status    ._       Flnfrastr.ucture        ,  .

APN s;           .  fapac ty:  
A

5= Housmg    ='  .   
Zonin.       , 4eres)   Capacrty

ss: J,z    `,`*,'- a.    ",, i;, ,,..,'  '        z`.  E[ ilE flt S
Y

utilities to all.:..  

sites within tBe:

plan.  ._

Site 5: Central Lathrop Specific Plan identifies sites allows multifamily densities of 15-     Yes: 2 or more- ,,

19122032 40 du/ acon mixed use sites. This site can tlevelop with solely multifamily uses,     cycles.

orwith a mix of uses: To reflect the potential for mixed use development> the Program 1 n in fhe

realistic capacity is assumed at 50% of the site. However, the entire 11. 89 acres Housing Element
may develop wifh multifamily uses. A portion,of this 24. 36- acre percel is would ensure that

R/ MU/ DS-   
designatetl NP:- DS- CL and has not been ineluded in the sife size or unit:     the. approval   ,  

CL/ 11. 89 149 475
celculations. requirements for  '

Nonvaeant. This site has two agricultural intlustrial buildings that occupy this site are

RIMU- CL
approximately 10% of the parcel;: this use is planned to be replaced with consistent wifh .

approved Specific Plan uses. Govemmen# Code

Nousing Plan Program 1b requires the Central Lathrop Specific Plan to Section 65583. 2. :

maintain 43 acres for multifainily developinent at 15- 40 d'u/ ac, which means
that this site cannot be developetl with less intensive uses, without rep Jacing
fhe 50°/a of the site within fhe Gentral Lathtop SpecificPlan.

Site 6:    Central Lathrop Yes,: 2 or more   
Central' Lathrop Specifie Plan identifies sites for. mixed uses: and allows

19122039 Specific Plan cycles.

multifamily densities of 15- 40 dulac: To reflect the potential for mixed use
establishes P.rogram 1 n in the

tlevelopment, the realistic capacity is assumed at 50% of the site. However, the
R/ MUIDS-   entiYe 5. 99- acre site may develop with multifamily uses. A portion of this

requirements:    Housing Element

CLI.      12: 28- acre parcel is designated NP- DS- CL and has not been included' in the site
and financing,    would ensure that

5, 99 75.  239      . mechanisms. to:  theapproval

RIMU= CL
size o' r unit calculations. Uacant.  

provide wafer,. .  re,quir.em.ents for
Housing Plan P' rogram: 1 b requires the Central Lathrop Specific Pian to

sewer; and dry this site are
maintain 43 acres for multifamily deyelopmen.t at 15- 40 du%ac, which means

utilities to all consistent with '      
that this site cannot be developed. with less infensive uses, without replacing

sites within the Goliernment' Code

the 50% of the site within the Central Lathrop Speci#ic Plan..
plan.      Section 65583. 2.

Site 7::. Central Lathrop Specific Plan identifies sites for mixed uses and allows Central Lathrop Yes: 2 or more  ,

19122040 RIMUIDS-_  
multifamily densities of 15=40 du/ ac. To reflect the po# ential for mixed use S;pecific Plan..:    cycles; .:

G 5: 8.1 73 232 development, the realistic capacity is assumed at 50% of the site. Ho:wever, the establishes Program 1 n in the.' :

R/ MU- CL entire 5. 81- acre site may develop with multifamily uses. The realistic capacity requirements Housing Element
calculation assumes tlevelo ment at 24 du/ ac for 50% of the mixed use sites. A and financin

94

532



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Included in
General Site  .  Realis c

4.,       .-

K

f     =        *   , `

x

Site1.   _   Ma Un"rt, 5. - ,     . .   . 3 Pre, ious
lan/:  '.-  ize Un   . Status' ylnfrastrucfure kA N( s.) Capacity Housin

Zoning .    ( A res)   C pacity
a      '-  {        

fi,
g          

g

u"`;'; . y .-.<   

s    
s,.              '

4      x    Elem:ent(s) f_ c.= r „

u Y  '.     ,. w a.,,,. , F r._,. Y.`.       1,  .:.:.;.      ;      x

portion of this: 11, 70- acre parcel is designated NP- DS- CL and has not been m.echanisms to would ensure that

included in the 5ite size or unit calculations.: Nonvacant: This site has two provide water;    the app,roVal
residences and severaFoutbuildings: that occupy approximately. 10 to 15%. of.    sewer, and dry requirements for

the parcel and are planned to be replaced with:approvetl Specific Plan uses.      utilities to all     this site are :

Housing. Plan Program 1 b requires. the Central Lathrop Specific Plan to sites within the consistent with

maintain 43 acres for muitifamily development at 15- 40 du/ ac, which means plan.      Government Code

thatthis site cannot be developed with lessintensive uses,. without replacing Section 65583. 2.

the 50°/a of the site within the Central Lath op Specific Plan.
Site 8:   Central Lathrop .  Yes: 2 or more

19122059 Central Lathrop Specif' ic Plan identifies sites for m:ixetl uses antl allows      ;    Specific Plan cycles.'     '

multifamil.y densities of 15- 40 dulac. To reflect the potential for mixetl use.      establishes Program 1 n in. the

development, the realistie capacity. is assumed at 50% of the: ite. However, the requireinents Hou' sing Element
R/ MU/ DS-  entire 2. 81 acres may develop wifh maltifamily uses. The realisticcapacity._      and financing would ensure that

CU 2; g1 35 112 calculation assumes development at 25: du/ ac. ' Vacant:       mechanisms to the approval

R/ MU- CL Housing PIan: Program 1 b . cequires the Central Lathrop Specific Plarrto provide w,ate,    requiiements for  : :

maintain 43 acres for multifamily development at 15- 40 du/ ac, which means sewer, an'd dry this site are  

tha't this site eannot be developed with less intensive uses; without replacing utilities to all consistent with

the 50% of the site within the Cent al Lathrop Specific Plan. '    sites within the Governmen. Code 

plan.      Section 65583: 2..

Site 9: Vacant. This site allows multifamily residential_development at densities up to Utilities are No.

19155071 2. 0 floor area ratio( this floor are ratio supports densities up to approximately available in the

VC/ CV- MV 1: 47 36 58 60 units per acre). The recently approved Towne Centre Apartments projects are pu6lic road right-
Iocated in the immetliate vicinity and have-the same land use tlesignation and of-way adjacent
zoning, indicating that this site fias the potential for multi#amily development . thesite.    

similar to Towne Center Phase 1 arrd Phase 2 Apartments.

Sife 10:       Vscant: Tfiis site allows multifamily residential: development. afdensities up to Utilities are No.

1; 9155073 2. 0 floor a ea ratio( this floor are ratio supports densities up. to approximately availa6le in the

VC/. GV- MV 1: 39 34 55 60 unifs per acre). The recently approved Towne Centre Apartments projects are p.ublic road right-
located in the:immediate vicinity and have the same land use designation and . of- way adjacent

zoni.ng, intlicating that this site has the p,otential for multifamily deyelopment the site.   

similar to Towne Center Phase?: and Phase 2' Apartments..

95

533



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

ky

z.`'' a.    .'' . a .' zs, s .  .      ;^. y+"a-.       '" wv,.`'"
e, , ;    

i. ii"F, ii".

L,''.
a ' t<           _.;.- M1; y:        ,  {  

y, d`'    .'
N4,

4 ...         n' u '',
7181? @ '       It Realistic r, u,.," i`^.   `•     e,° ,;',.°    =. r,` -

F

r .   r        . '
x

e,   Max Unrt      -
s

5            ,     PreuT.ous
P an/  - 

Q.  
Sr e  =     Uni Status,      , lnf astructure

4 AP ' s Ca arit`   ........-       
y       }      d

1 P Y.    _         _ -                       ,       Hous ng
N Zonin:      ( Aeres).  Ga ac t t=  

4          ;        u
e    p,    

q:-
r;.'  *„,'  `.,  F s:   '` 3  .`, a. . '  a"  e x:    a.

as.           < 5.I.ement( s)
x:.> E. .,    rk.. :;,, x. 4

Assumed development at R3 de.nsities( can build from R- 1- 6 to RM=.1.. 5 Infill site. :    .  Yes: 1 or more   

densities). Emergenry shelter is a permitted use. Due to the' small. parcel size, it Utilities are rycles.

is not anticipated that a mixed- use project would be constructed. Existing available in the Program 1 n in the

development in the P0 zone is all iesidential, indicating that it is likely          public road right- Housing Element
residential uses would continue to be constructed in the PO zone: Vacant. of-way adjacent would ensure that

PO/ PQ; 1. 0 19 25 the si4e.  , the approval

requirements for

this site are

consistent with

Site 11:     Governmen.t Code

19608021 . Section 65583. 2.   ,

Assumed development at R1. 5 densities consistent. with recenfly approved. .    Infill site. Yes: 1 or more.

multifamily' projects in. the City( ca:n builtl from.; R- 1:- 6 to RM. 1; 5 densities);      Utilities are rycles.    

Emergenry shelter is permitted use. Underutilizetl- small older structure on available in the Program 1 n in the:. '

large lot. Due to: the small pa cel size, it is nofanticipated that a mixed- use public road: right- Housi;ng; Element_  '
project would be°constructed; Existing development in the PO zone isall of-way adjacent would ensure that.

P:O/ PO 1. 5 29 37 residential, indicating that it is likely resid'ential uses would continue to be the site.   the approval

constructed in the PO zohe. equirements for

this site are

con`sistent with .

Site 12:.    Govemment Code
196080. 26 Section 65583. 2. :  :.

TOTAL 403. 03 21. 21 3622

1 1 S DU AC lS THE;hIINIMUM ALLOWED DENSITY FOR ALL OF TNE THE,SITES INCLUDEp lN THIS TABLE; THE REAL(STIC CAPAClTY.OF EACH SITE WAS CALCULATED AT 24 DU AC,, WHICH lS CONSIST NT W1TH THE DENSITIES_
OF THREE APAROVED PROJECTS/ N THE C/ TY ON S/ TES DESlGNATED AS HlGH DENSITY RES/ DENTIAL OR MIXED USE: MOSSDACE LANDING APARTMENTS FORMERLY FAIRFIELD APARTMENTS, TOWNE CENTREAPARTMENTS

PHASE 1, AND TOWNE CENTRE APARTMENTS PHASE 2.

SOURCE: CITY OFLATHROP, Z019; DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP, 2019

96

534



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Moderate Incorne Sates

As identified in Table 62 and AppendixA, the City has 313. 1 acres of land that canaccommodate 2, 7T5 moderate' income        '
units.

Medium densitysitesthat accommodate 10 units peracre or higherwere anticipated to accommodate moderate income

units.  Available moderate income sifes include APN 21331033, a mixed use parcel in River Islands that has been

approved for 668 multifamily units ( fhis is designated for 243 townhomes at densities that could be developed as
housing affordable to moderate income households as well as 425 apartments counted toward the lower income range)
byVestingMap3694. RiVerlslandsalsoincludesparcelsdesignatedforcourtyardhomes( singlefamilysmalllothomes)
and medium density residential development ( RM- RI) - the RM- RI parcels can accommodate townhomes, clustered

single family housing, or high density single family development and are appropriate for development in the moderate
income range. In the Central Lathrop SpecificPlan, Neighborhood 1 is approved for 103 attached courtyard housing
units and Neighborhoods 2, 3, and 5 are approved for small lot single family projects and are anticipated to be
appropciate for moderate income units. East of I- 5, there are a number of RM3 and PO lots that can accommodate mid-

to high densities that are appropriate for moderate or lower income development. As described in Appendix A, the

majority of above moderate and moderate iricome sites are vacant, except for several parcels that have rural residential
uses, barnsloutbuildings, or agricultural industrial uses. All of these uses are appropriate for development at higher

densities and intensities and are anticipated to be developed with urban uses as planned by the City' s General Plan and
adopted Specific Plans.

In addition, thethree approved multifamily projects have been included in the moderate in,come inventory. Whilethere
is the potential for any of these th ee projects to apply for subsidies for all of a portion of the project through the Low
Ineome Housing Tax Credit program, Project- Based Voucher Program, or other affordable housing programs, the
developer has not indicafed an interest in developing these projects as affordable housing. Therefore, these projects are
anticipafed to be market- rate rentals; market rates for rentals in Lathrop are generally in the range affordable to
moderate income households.

Elbove I Ioderate Income Sites

As identified in Table 62 and Appendix A, the City has 3, 144.7 acres of land anticipated to accommodate 8, 742 above
moderate income units.

Sites planned for lower density single family uses were anticipated to be appropriafe for above moderate income
developrnent. As described in AppendixA, the majority of above moderate and moderate income sites are vacant, except
for several parcels that have rural residential uses, barnsloutbuildings, or agricultural industrial. uses. All of these uses
are appropriate for development at higher densities and intensities and are anticipated to be developed with urban uses

as planned bythe City' s General Plan and adopted Specific Rlans.

ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Roads

The G_enerai Plan indicates the City must manage its roadways to maintain a l:evel of Service ( LOS) C or better on all
roadways, exceptwithin one- half mile of State or Federal highways and freeways and within the Downto.wn core. In these

areas, an LOS of D or b'etter must be maintained. The General Plan further states that all new development projects are

required to construct orfund improvements necessaryto mitigate anytraffic impacts resulting from the projecf;

The City' s Transportation Management Program ( TMP) Update identifies roadway improvements required to
accommodate growtli planned bythe General Plan. The TMP uses revised traffic counts to update the traffic model, which
projects future traffic patterns based on build out land use estimates, resulting LOS, deaelopment of a future project list,
evaluation of policy considerations, and prioritizatiori of projects. The City' s development impact fees include roadway
fees to construct improvements to accommodate planned growth.  The TMP is updated from time to time to reflect
development conditions and to continue to ensure that adequate roadway improvements are planned to. accommodate
future growth underthe General Plan.

97

535



ZO19 HOUSfNG. ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Water

This section discusses the City' s ability to provide adequate water service to future planned development. This section
is based on the most recent water assessments performed for Lathrop, including the water analysis provided in the City
of Lathrop Municipal Services. Review and Sphere of Influence Plan ( MSR) prepared by the City in February 2016, the
City' s 2018 Draft Water System Master Plan( WSMP), and the City' s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan( UWMP). The
UWMP addresses the City' s planned supplies and projected demands and addresses the supplyldemand balance under
normal, single dry year, and multiple dryyear conditions and identifies measures.necessaryto ensure the City can meet
its water demand in normal and dry year conditions. The WSMP analyzes the City' s water supply and demand and -
identifies the improuements necessary for the City to deliver its projected water supply under long-term and buildout
growth conditions:       

The City' s ultimate water serVice area is determined by the Lathrop General Plan. The service area iricludes the City
Limits, the City' s proposed 501, and two areas of County land. The City has thr.ee water sources: groundwater from the
San Joaquin groundwater basin, surface waCerfrom the South San Joaquin Irrigation Distr'ict( SSJID), and recycled water

from the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility( LCTF).

Groundwater

The groundwater basin used by the City for municipal potable water is the Tracy Sub- Basin of the Eastern San Joaquin
County Groundwater Basin. The basin is located in the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta sub- region, a part of the Central
Valley aquifer system that occupies most of the large 6asin in central California between the Sierra Nevada and the
Coastal Range Mountains. Prior to surface water supplies becoming available from the South County Surface Water
Supply Project ( SCSWSP), the City relied solely on local groundwater wells to meet municipal and industrial water
demands.

Currently, six groun.dwater wells supply potable water to City_ residents: Wells Na b, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 21. Wel, l 21 is
currently inactive; the City is upgrading the well and water treatment facility over multiple phases to utilize fhe full
capacity of Well 21. Well 21 Phase 1 improvements are anticipated to be completed by 2020 and yield 403 acre- feet per
year( AFY); Phase 2 will be completed by 2025 and yield 1, 210 AFY. Most City welis are currently treated for arsenic
which requires a ferric removal process and disposal ofthe removed compounds in an approved landfill. The City does
not plan to expand its groundwatersupply.

The use of groundwater throughout the region as a water supply source has created overdraft conditions and
contamination of the groundwater aquifer. Overdraft occurs when the rate of groundwater extraction exceeds the rate of

groundwater recharge. According to the Department of Water Resources( DWR) Bulletin 118, the Eastern San Joaquin
County Groundwater Basin is in a critical condition of overdraft due to extraction rates higher than the aquifer can safely
yield. The safe yield of an aquifer is defined as the maximum rate of groundwater extraction that can be regularly
withdrawn without causing adverse impacts to groundwater levels or quality, The estimafed safe yield of the entire
groundwater basin is approximately 670, 000 AFY; or approximately 0. 95 AFY per acre.

Surface Water

The City purchases Stanislaus Riversurface waterfrom SSJID through the South County Water Supply Program( SCWSP),
whieh is planned to be implemented in two phases. Phase 1 was completed in 2005. Phase 2 will increase the treatment

capacity ofthe wate treatment plant. Lathrop has an agreement with SSJID to receive treated waterthrough December
2029. If SSJID and the cities participating in the SCWSP do not agree to extend the contract past 2029, then$ SJID would
transfer the project to a Joint Powers Authority composed of the four cities, which would then be responsible for
operation and maintenance ofthe SCWSP. The total Phase 1 capacity of the SCWSP is approximately 3 1, 500 AFY. Phase
2 is anticipated to increase the treatmenf capacity of the water treatment plant to approximately 43, 000 AFY. Lathrop' s
SCWSP Phase 1 allotment is 6, 887 AFY; the City' s total allotment with completion of Phase 2( anticipated to be available
by 2040) is 10, 671 AFY.

Future Su lv and Demand and Improvements to System

There are two main sources of water available to the City, surface water supplied by SSJID and groundwater.  The

98

536



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

projected supplies under normal vuater year conditions exceed the projected demand. This is because groundwater     -- 

supplements surface water to make up for.any unmet demand after surface water supplies are used. Groundwater will
also be utilized to meet peak flow events and emergencies.

Water demand projections through 2040 are shown in Table 64. The projected demand is based on known proposed
new development projects within the City and a reasonable amount of projected growth. Demand assumptions and
further detail are available in the City' s 2018 WSMP. The wafer lemand estimates are specific to each product type
within each proposed development as described 6ythe developers and relevant land use planning documents. The City
recently prepared its Recycled Water System Master Plan ( RWSMP), which includes comprehensive plans to harvest      
recycled water to be used more efficiently in public landscaping and open spaces. It is reasonable to assume that as the
City' s recycled water system is expanded, the non- potable water supply will increase significantly in the future.

Underthe most conservative scenario, which anticipates multiple dry years and no reduction in demand, the City would
potential experience water shortages in 2 030 and 2040 as shown in Table 64. However, the City has developed a Water
Reduction Contingency Plan and series of water demand management measures to be implemented in the event of one
or more dry years. The City' s demand management measures are projected to be more than adequate to offset the
anticipated deficits, as calculated in AppendixJ ofthe 2015 UWMP.

Tas E64: WATERSUPPLYANDDEMANDDURINGDRYYEARS( AFY     

2020 -. - .  --   2025     :  , .. 2Q30,  2035, .;._.  _    2040

Water S'upply( Multiple Dry;YearsScenario) 
w   .

SCWSP      5, 694 5, 737 5, 781 5, 825 9, 026

Groundwater Wells b- 10 5, 850 5, 850 5, 850 5, 850 5, 850

GroundwaterWell 21 403 1, 210 1, 210 1, 210 1, 210

Total 11, 947 12, 797 12, 841 12, 885 16, 086

Projected Demand{ without reduction for Water Shortage Contingency Pla,n Measures)   
Demand 7, 665 10, 645 12, 696 14, 230 15, 584

Surpl us or Deficit 4, 284 2, 152 1, 345( 9%)
z

502 2,891( 15%)Z

Water Reduction The City' s Water Reduction Contingency Plan identifies measures the City can
Contingency Plan/ implement in the event of one or more dry years. The water- saving measures
Demand Management would result in an approximately 50°/a reduction in demand and would be
Measures adequate to offset th"e potential deficit in multiple dry years.

1 PHASE 1 ALLOTMENT IS 6, 887AFY,' PHASE2 ALLOTMENT ANTICIPATED TO BE UTILIZEU 1N2D40 IS 10, 671 AFY.

SOURCE: CITY OF LATHROP WATER SYSTEM MASTER PLAN, 2018; CITY OF LATHROP 201 S URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN, 2017

The City' s WSMP identifies infrastructure needed for new development and the City' s development impact fees have
been developed to support the City' s planned water and groundwater supply, including water treatment and
distribution facilities. To ensure that appropriate funding is available when the water related infrastructure is needed,
developers of approved projects have committed through development agreements to cover all the costs of the

infrastructure upfront even if they are only responsible for their portion of costs. The developers are then reimbursed at
a later point ( e. g., when additional development fees are collected) for any payments in excess of what they are
responsible. The infrastructure would be built by the projects and includes distribution pipelines, tanks, and booster
pump stations.

Under the 2040 scenario, water supply would exceed demand as described in the WSMP under normal conditions.
However, under dry year scenarios, demand would exceed supply. The worst-case multiple dry year scenario is shown
in Table 64: In orderto ensure that the City' s existing and future water customers have an adequate supply, the City has
developed a water reduction contingency plan that includes water- saving measures, including requiremerits for water
customers to reduce their water supply under certain conditions. As demonstrated by the UWMP, implementation of
the City' s water demand management measures would result in significant reductions to water demand and would
ensure that the City`s supply is adequate to meet the demand through 2040 conditions. The Water Master Plan
anticipates approximately 13; 592 dwelling units between 2018 and 2040, which greatly exceeds the City' s RHNA.

99

537



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Therefore, the City' s water supply is more than adequate to accommodate the City' s full RHNA.

Wastewater  

This section discusses the City' s ability to provide adequate wastewater service to future planned development. This
section is based on the most recent wastewater analysis performed for Lathrop, which was provided in the 2016 City of
Lathrop MSR, the 2018 Wastewater System Master Plan( WWSMP), and the 2019 Recycled Water System Master Plan
RWSMP). These documents outline a long term strategy for meeting future discharge and capacity requirements in

orderto meetcommunity needsfora planning horizon thatextendsto build- outofthe City Limits and S01 regardless of
when build-out occurs.

The wastewater collection system in the City is owned and operated by the City of Lathrop. Wastewater is treated at the
newly consolidated Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility( LCTF) which became operational August 25, 2015 and at
the Manteca- Lathrop Wastewater Quality Control Facility( WQCF). The City owns the LCTF and a percentage ofthe WQCF.

Wastewater Collection and Treatment

Vllastewater from the City is currently treated at the LCTf and the Manteca- Lathrop WQCF. The wastewater collection
system consists of gravity sewer lines that range from 6 to 18 inches in diameter, pumping stations, and force mains. A
portion of the existing City' s wastewater is conveyed via gravity sewer and pump stations to a regional pump station.
The regional pump station coriveys wastewaterto a force main, which discharges to the Manteca- Lathrop WQCF. A sewer
project was recently completed that allows the McKinley Corridor area to pump wastewater to the WQCF through a new
sewerforce main pipeline.

The City owns 14. 7% of the Manteca- Lathrop WQCF by contract with the City of Manteca. The City of Lathrop, however,
does not participate in the operation of the plant: Mostwastewater generated in the areas east of l- 5 and north of Louise

Avenue is conveyed to the Manteca- l.athrop WQCF. The current design capacity of the WQCF is 9. 87 million gallons per
day( MGD); the City' s capacity is approximately 1. 45 MGD. At buildout, the WQCf is planned to have capacity to treat
23. 0 MGD and Lathrop' s allocation ofthe planned capacity would be 3. 97 MGD.

The City owns the LCTF.  This wastewater treatment plant operates under a separate permit.  All of the wastewater

generated in the areas wes# of I- 5 and Crossroads is conveyed to the LCTF. The daily operations of LCTF are performed by
a private contractor, Veolia Water NA. The LCTF has a current capacity of 2. 5 MGD and is permitted for 1. 5 MGD until the
recycled water disposal facilities for the expansion are complete. The City has the ability to upgrade the existing LCTF to
increase the treatment capacity and operational flexibility of the plant to 7. 5 MGD.

The City has established development impact fees and capital accounfs as part of the planning to construct
improvements for future capacity when needed.

Wastewater Disposal and Reuse

Wastewater at the LCTF is treated to meet the State' s recycled water requirements. The City' s recycled water system has
a disposal capacity of 1. 0 MGD; recycled water is applied to seven agricultural land application areas. The City plans to
expand recycled water application to landscaping areas to reduce the use of potable water for landscape irrigation. The
City is currently expanding its recycled water distribution system to meet disposal requirements for the Phase 2
expansion of the LCTF, which will increase the LCTF treatment capacity and disposal capacity to 2. 5 MGD. The Phase 2
recycled watersystem expansion is planned to be completed. in two phases. Phase 2A improvements would provide a

disposal capacity of 1. 9 MGD and Phase 2B facilities would expand the disposal capacity to the full 2. 5 MGD LCTF Phase
2 treatment capacity. The Phase 2A improvements were implemented in 2017 and 2018 and the permitting needs to
be completed to increase the disposal capacity to 1. 9 MGD in orderto utilize the Phase 2A improvements. Phase 2B is
anticipated to be completed in the near- term. The City is planning to convert the recycled water system from manual
operation to a pressurized on- demand system. Improvements for the automation of these operations are being
designed. Future LCTF expansions are anticipated to produce up to 5. 22 MGD of recycled water at buildout. The recycled
water supply could be expanded from land application uses to increased use of percolation basins in order to increase
groundwater supplies and reduce the land area needed for discharge and land_application. All potential uses of the

recycled water system that have been evaluated, including land application, i.ncreased percolation, and discharge of

100

538



2019 HOUSINGELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

LCTF effluent to the San Joaquin River, have the potential to provide watersupply benefits to the City and to reduce the
areas required for recycled water_storage and disposaL

Future Wastewater Demand and System Improvement

The Wastewater System Master Plan projects new developments will increase the total wastewater flow to an average

dry weather flow of approximately 5. 34 MGDain 2040, as shown in Table 65: All wastewater flows will be treated a the
LCTF or WQCF: The City has identified capital improvement projects needed to increase system capacity; these projects
are funded through the City' s development impact fees. Projects include Lathrop CTF Exparision to. 5. 0 MGD( WWT- 1)
and a range of pump station, gravity main, and infrastructure replacement and upgrade projects. With the planned
improvements, the City is anticipated to reach capacity in 2027. The current capacity would accommodate approximately
5, 790 units and is- adequate to accommodate the City' s remaining RHNA of 5, 156 units. While wastewater treatment
capacity would exceed the City' s projected RHNA; Program 2o in the Housing Element is essential to ensuring that
adequate capacity is maintained to accommodate the City' s lower income units. This program was included in the 2015
Housing Element and was not implemented. The City is preparing policy language concurrently with this Housing
Element Update and anticipates adopting policies to ensure water and sewer priority for lower income units consistent
with the requirements of Government Code 65589J.

TAs E 65: PROJEGTED VIIASTEWATER. FLOWS AND TREATMENT CAPACITY( MGD

f    Treatment Capatity     ;   '   
s       = 

A
YEAR

Pro ecte      4      '

x

z°; Flows,       M an# eca     CTF Phase;    CT F Phase °   CTF Phase '; `` CTF Future Totai   ;.
t

x
k :

UVQCF 0 1 2'      '   ,: Phases      Ca ` acit   `

2018( Existing)       1. 66 1. 45 0. 75 0. 25;_.   1. 5 3. 95:

2040 5. 34 1. 45 OJ5 0. 25 1. 5 2• 5 6. 45

ICTF PHASE2/ S COMPLETED AND HASA PERM/ TTED CAPAC/ TY OF 1:.SAND, ONCE RECYCLED WATER DISPOSAL FAC/ L( T/ESARE COMPLETE, W/LL HA VEA
FULL CAPACITYOF2. S

SOURCE: 2018 WASTEWATER SYSTEM MASTER PLAN, Z018

The City' s Wastewater Collection Master Plan, WastewaterTreatment and Disposal Master Plan( prepared in 2000 and
updated in 2004) and the 2006 Lathrop 5- year Plan have identified the requirements anticipated to be necessary forthe
conveyance and treatment of wastewater at build- out, whenever it may occur. Furthermore, the Master Plan outlines a
phasing plan for the implementation and anticipated cost for construction. The City collects development impact fees
to fund needed wastewater improvements. To ensure that appropriate funding is available when the wastewater related
infrastructure is needed, the developers of approved projects are required through development agreements to cover

all the costs ofthe infrastructure upfront euen ifthey are only responsible fortheir portion of costs. The developers are     
then reim6ursed at a later point( e. g. when additional development fees are collected) for any payments in excess of
whatthey are responsible.

The City' s Wastewater Treatment and Disposal Master Plan is a phased plan to provide treatment capacity for the
anticipated 11. 9 MGD at build- out, whenever it may occur. This plan accounts for# he phasing and location of each
planned future development area within the City: The City has planned adequate capacity to accommodate General
Plan buildout, which is more than enough to accommodate growth associated with the 2014- 2023 RHNA.

ENVIROIliME1V' AI. ISSUES

Special Status Species

Thevegetation_associationsintheLathropareasupportavarietyofwildlifeand plantspeciesandsubspeciesintligenous

to California; including special- status species, and also include areas of sensitive habitats. San Joaquin County and the
cities of Escalon, Lathrop. Lodi, Manteca, Ripon, Stockton, and Tracy developed the San Joaquin County Multi-Species
Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) to conserve open space for wildlife and to address the effects of
development and other activities that affect special- status species and convert habitat Iands for species to other uses.

The SJMSCP identifies six different land use categories, including A- Exempt, B- Other Open Spaces, C- Agricultural

101

539



2019 HOUSiNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Habitat Open Spaces, D;-: Natural Lands Habitat, E -: Vernal Pools, F- Prior Agreement. All sites east of I- 5 that are  -

identified in the Inventory of Residential Sites in Lathrop,are designated Category A, . The majority of residential sites
located east of 1- 5 are identified as Category C- Cropland, with the remaining sites in Categories A, B, and D.

Th.e SJMSCP facilitates development by providing pre-approved mitigation measures and streamlining the permitting
process to address special- status specGes. The SJMSCP. allows specific permittees, includ.ing Lathrop and SJCOG, to issue
incidental take_permits and. allgws project applicants to mitigate for imp cts to SJMSCP covered spe ies resulting from
development projects. as_well as otherspecified activities. Project applicants have four options o receive coverage under

the SJMSCP: 1) pay appropriate' fees( based on habitat type), 2) conserve habitat lands, 3) purchase mitigation bank
credits, or 4) propose an alternative mitigation plan.

Geolo v

The San Joaquin Valley is a geologic structural trough with its axis oriented northwest and southwest. The valley is
bounded to tfa.e east by the granitic a.nd metamorphic rocks of:the Sierra Nevada, and to the west by the folded and
faulted sedimentary, volcanic; and metamorphic rocks of the Coast Ranges: The crystalline rocks of the Sierra Nevada
extend westward ben.eath the valley. These rocks are overlain by a westward- thickening wedge of marine and continental
deposits about 10, 000 feetthick in the Ripon area. The marine deposits are siltston,e, shale, and sandstones. The thicker
continental setliments overlie the marine deposits. These consistof unconsolidated alluvium, lacustrine, and flood plain
sediments derived from the Sierra Nevada.

Faults. Earthquakes originate as movement orslippage occurri:ng along an active fault. These movements generafe shock
waves that result in ground shaking. Structures of all types, if not designed or constructed to withstand ground shaking,
maysuffer severe damage o collapse. No known faults are located within the City of Lathrop orthe Sphere of Influence.
faults located within San Joaquin County_include the Tracy-Stockton Fault, the Black Butte Fault, tfie Tesla Fault, the
Patterson Pass Fault, and the Midland Fault.

According to the California Division of Mines and Geology Bulletin 198,° U.rban Geology Master Plan for California," the
Lathrop area is shown to be in a lowseverityzone with a probable maximum intensity ofVl orVll on the Modified Mercalli
Scale.

New buildings and significant rehabilitation of existing buildings in Ripon are constructed in accordance with the
standards established by the California Building Standards Code to prevent loss of life as a result of an earthquake.

Floodin

Flood zone mapping prepared by the Federal Emergency Management Agenry( FEMA) and California Department of
Water Resources indicates thatthe majority of Lathrop is within a 200- year flood hazard area, as sfiown in Figure 3.

100-year flood protection is primarily provided by levees certified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency
FEMA). The levees are maintained by three local reclamation districts( RDs): RD 17, RD 2062, and RD 2107. Although

100-yearflood protection is provided by the levees, there are extensive areas within the 200-yearfloodplain. Until the
passage of recent State law( Senafe Bill 5},. 100- yearflood protection was the standard statewide. Senate Bill 5 amended

Stafe law to require 200- year flood protection. The, new 200- year flooding, requirements of.State law exceed FEMA' s
100-yearstandards. Senate BiIL5 requires urbanand urbanizing areas must be provided with 200-yearflood protection
no fater than 2025. After July 2, 2016, new development in areas potentially exposed to 200-year flooding more than
three feet deep will be prohibited unless the local land use agenry certifies that 200- year flood protecti' on has 6een
provided, or that" adequate progress" has been made toward provision of 200- year flood protection by 2025.

The City amended its Safety Element in 2015 to incorporate the 200yearstandards. The; City prepared a financing plan
in coortlination with RD 17 forfuture levee improvements in orderto demonstrate" adequate progress" for areas within 

RD 17 consistent with State law. RD 2067 is independently pursuing 200-year flood protection for the River Islands
project, which is underconstrucfion. The Citydemonstrated" adequate progress° toward meeting the 200-yearflooding
requirements for urban and urbanizing areas in RDs 17 and 2062, consistent with the requirements of State law; prior
toJuly2, 2016.

102

540



ZO19 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

RDs 17 and 2062 - together with the City - are responsible for providing flood protection to urban. and urbanizing
portions of Lathrop; in addition,-RD 17 along with the City of Manteca is responsibl.e for flood protection in portions of
Manteca immediately adjacentto Lathrop:   

The_City of Lathrop, City 9f Manteca, and RD 17 developed a program for design, funding and improvement-of the RD
17 levees, including the " non=project" levee, to meet the ULDC and provide ULOP'. A technical evaluation of levee
conditions, improvements needed to meet. ULDC and a. preliminary cost estimate for' improvements was completed in     -
20.14( KSN, 2014) based on existing data, including the DWR ULEP studies and the 200-Year Freeboard Analysis and
Floodplain Mapping within RD 17 ( PBI, 2014). The evaluation found that there were no ULDC deficiencies in height,
geometry or other physical characteristics. The primary concern with respect to meeting the ULDC is potentiel for
underseepage. The plan to provide flood protection consists of two primary components: 1) RD 17' s ongoirig Levee
Seepage Repair Project and 2) SJAFCA Levee Improvements to achieve ULDC 200- year requirements.$ 20. 85 million in

bonds have been issued to fund the work and construction of improvements is underway.

Adequate progress has been demonsfrated annually for the RD 17 levee. improvements. The 2019 Annual Adequate
Progress Report Update documented that the total. project scope, schedule, and cost ofthe completed; flood protection

system have been developed to meet the appropriate standard of protection; that 90% of the required revenues

scheduled to be received by that year have been appropriated and are being expended; that critical features ofthe flood
protection system are under construction and each critical feature is progressing as indicated by the actual expenditures
ofthe construction budget; and, thatthe city or county has not been respo.nsible for a significant delay in the completion
of the system.

RD 2062 Stewart Tract is responsible for flood protection for approximately 4, 900 City acres located west of the San
Joaquin Riverand north ofthe UPRR, which isthe. site ofthe River Islands planned urban development. Flood protection

for the StewartTract as a whole is provid.ed by" project" and SPFC levees along the banks of the San Joa_quin River, Old
River and Raradise Cut( Figure. 4). RD 2062 was organized, and initial levee plans were approved, in 1922. The entirety

of S#ewartTract, including the levee system,. was annexed to the City of Lathrop and approved for utban development in
1997. In 2003, the Riverislands planned urban communitywas approved: Stage 1 ofthe River Islands project iscurrently
under development. This portion of tfie Stewart Tract is protected from 100- year flooding by FEMA- accredited levees
constructed in 2005 and 200b. The Stage 1 area is mapped as Zone X( areas protected by levees) by fhe FEMA Flood
Insurance Rate Maps. RD 2062 is planning and will improve the balance ofthe leveesto provide ULOP for planned urban
devefopment; an appl'ication has been submitted to the USACE for approval of levee and related improvements within

the USACE jurisdietion, including improvements that will prevent flooding of RiveYlslands caused from a levee failure
in; the RD 2107 portion of Stewart Tract. The USACE prepared and released. a Draft Environment.al Impact Statement
covering this work for public review in November 2014. RD 2062 has submitted reports demonsfrating how the R'iver
Islands area levees meet the" Adequate Progress" requirement for an ultimate 200- year level of certification in 2025.

It is noted that RD. 2107 is no.t working to achieve flood protection as it is not an urbanizing acea; none ofthe sites in the
City' s inventory of residentiel sites are located in RD 2107.

While 200;yearflood protection is not required to be in place unti1. 2025, which is afterthe end ofthis Housing Element
planning . period ( 2015- 2Q23), " adequate progress" to address the Z00-year flooding requirements must be
demonstrated annually for the City to continue ta permit urban development. This requirement has been met on an
annual basis and urban development has not been de4ayed or constrained by the 200-year flood protection  .
requirements. The City and RDs 17 and 2062 contin.ue to demonstrate" adequate progress" for levee improvements to .
provide 200-year flood protection in order to ensure that development in the City may continue. The Housing Plan
includes a program to address flood constraints.

103

541



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

I) isadvantaged Unincorporated Commur ities -.            

The City has a very limited Sp.here of Influence; there are approximately 4 residences in the portion of the Sphere that is
west of 1- 5/ Rofh Road. These residences and the overall area do not meet the definition of a disadvantaged

unincorporated community( DUC). The remaining portion of the Sphere is located north of Roth Road and east of I- 5;
this area is industrial and does not include any residential communities or uses. Further, the 2016 City of Lathrop MSR
reviewed the City' s Sphere of Influence for potential DUCs and identified thatthere are no DUCs located within the City' s
Sphere of Influence.    

FINANCIAL OTH It RESOiTRCES

Federal and State Programs

Affordable Housing and Siistainable Communities Program ( AHSC) funds land use, housing, transportation, and land
preservation projects that support infill and compact development and reduce greenhouse gas( GHG) emissions. Fands

are available in theform of loans andlor grsnts in two kinds of projectareas: Transit Oriented Development( TOD) Project

Areas and Integrated Connectivity( ICP) ProjectAreas. There is an annual competitive funding cycle. 

Community Development Block Grants( CDBG) funds are awarded to entitlement communities on a formula basis for .
housing activities. Funding is awarded on a competitive basis to each participating city. Activities eligible for CDBG
funding include acquisition; rehabilitation, economic tlevelopment and public services. The City participates in the
Ur an County program, through which San Joaquin County administers• CDBG funds forthe unineorporated County as
well as cities that participate in the program. The City may receive funds, on a competitive basis, through the Urban
County program.

HOME Investment Partnership funds are granted by a formula basis from HUD to increase the supply of decent, safe,
sanitary, and affordable housing to lower income households. Eligible activities include new construction, acquisition,
rental assistance and rehabilitation. The City participates in the San Joaquin County- administered HOME Program,   
which administers HOMEfundsto projects in participatingjurisdictions. County=administered HOMEfundsforfirsttime
homebuyer assista.nce are made available to residents or employees of the local jurisdictions participating in the HOME
program. New development projects are typically allocated funding on a competitive basis.

Housing Choice VoucherProgram( formerly Section 8) provides monthly rental assistance payments to private landlords
on behalf of low-income families who have been determined eligible by the San Joaquin Housing Authority. The
program' s objective is to assist low- income families by providing rental assistance so that families may lease safe,
decent; and sanitary housing units in the private rental market. The program is designed to allow families to move
withoutthe loss of housing assistance. Moves are permissible as long as the family notifies the Housing Authority ahead
of time, terminates its existing lease within the lease provisions, and finds acceptable alternate housing. There are 33
Section 8 vouchers in use in Lathrop.

Project Based Housing Voucher program is a compone.nt of the former Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program
funded through HUD. The program' s objective is to induce property owners to make standard housing available to low-
income families at rents within the program limits. In return, the Housing Authority or HUD enters into a contract with
the ownerthat guarantees a certain level of rents. Currently, there is no project-based Section 8 housing in Lathrop.

Section 811/ 202 Frogram ( Supportive Housing for Persons witH Disabilities/ Elderly) = Non- profit and consumer

cooperatives cari receive no interest capifal advances from HUD under the Section 202 program for the construetion of
Very, Low Income rental housing for seniors and persons with disabilities. These funds can be used in conjunction with
Section 811, which can be used to develop group ho mes, independent living #acilities and immediate care facilities:   -
Eligible activities include acquisition, rehabilitation, new construction and rental assistance.

California Housing Finance Agenry( CaIHFA) Multifamily Programs provide permanent financing for the acquisition;
rehabilitation, and preservation or new construction of rental housing tfiat includes affordabfe rents for Low and
Moderate lncome families and individuals. One ofthe programs is the Preservation Acquisition Finance Program: that is

designed to facilitate the acquisition of at- risk affordable housing developments and provide low- cost funding to

104

542



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REFORT

preserve affordability.

CaIHOME P.rogram provides grants to local public agencies and non- profit developers to assist households in becoming
homeowners. CalHome funds_may b e used for predevelopment, development, acquisition, and rehabilitation costs as
well as downpayment assisfance. While CaIHOME funding has been limited to disaster assistance in recent years, this
would be an appropriate program for the City to pursue to begin to develop a local portfolio of housing assistance
programs and funds.

California Housing Finance Agency( CHFA) offers permanent financing for acquisition and rehabilitation to for- profit,
non- profit, and public agency developers seeking to preserve " at- risk" housing units. In addition, CHFA offers low
interestpredevelopmentloansto nonprofitsponsorsthrough itsacquisitionlrehabilitation program.

Emergenry Housing and Assistance Program ( EHAP) provides funds to local government agencies and non- profit
corporations for capital development acfivities and facility operation for emergency shelters, transitional housing and
safe havens that provide shelter and supportiye services for homeless individuals and families. No current funding is
offered forthis program.     -     

finergency Shelter Grant( ESG) Program provides emergency shelter and related services to the County' s homeless
populations. Eligible activities include: the rehabilitation and conversion of buildings for use as emergency shelters; the
provision of essential services to the homeless;  operating support for emergency shelters;  and homeless      _

prevention/ rapid rehousing activities. ESG funds administered by San Joaquin County can be used within the Urban
Co u nty.

Federal Home Loan Bank System facilitates Affordable Housing Programs( AHP), which subsidize the interest rates for
affordable housing. The San Francisco Federal Home Loan Bank District provides local service within California, Interest
rate subsidies underthe AHP can be used to finance the purchase, construction, andfor rehabilitation of rental housing.
Very low income households must occupy at least 20% of the units for the useful life of the housing or the mortgage
tecm.

Housing for a Healthy California ( HHC) provides furiding on a competitive basis to deliver supportive housing
opportunities to developers using the fede,ral National Housing Trust Funds ( NHTF) allocations for operating rese.rve
grants and capital loans. The Department will also utilize from a portion of moneys collected in. calendar year 2018 and

deposited into tlie Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund to provide funding through grants to counties for capital and
operating assistance. Funds will be announced through a Notice of Funding Availability.

Infill Infrastructure Grant Program( IIG) funds infrastructure improveinents. to facilitate new housing development with
an affordable component in residential or mixed use infill projects and infill areas.  If an affordable or special needs

housing developer is interested in developing in the. City' s core area, this program could be useful to fund infrastructure
improvements.

Joe SernaJr. FarmworkerHousing GrantProgram finances the new construction, rehabilitation and acquisition of owner-
and renter- occupied housing unitsfor agricultural workers, with a priority for lower income households. No current
funding is offered forthis program.

Low Income Housing Tax Credits. The California Tax Credit Allocation Committee ( CTCAC) administers the federal and
state Low- Income Housing Tax Credit Programs. Both programs were created to encourage private investment in
affordable rental housing for households meeting certain income requirements. Under these programs, housing #ax
credifs are awarded to developers of qualified projects. 20% of federal credits are reserved for rural areas, and 10% for

non- profit sponsors. To compete for the credit, rental housing developments have to reserve units at affordable rents to
households at or below 46% of area median income. The assisted units must be reserved for the target population for

55 years. The federal tax credit provides a subsidy over ten years towards the cost of producing a unit. Developers sell
these tax 6enefits to investors forfheir present market value to provide up-front capital to build the units. Credits can be
used to fund the hard and soft costs( excluding land costs) ofthe acquisition, rehabil' itation, or new construction of rental
housing. Projects not receiving otherfederal subsidy receive a federal credit of 9% peryearforten years and a state credit

105

543



2019 HOUSINGELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

of 30% over four years( high cost areas and qualified census tracts get increased federal credits). Projects with a federal

subsidy receive a 4% federal credit each year for ten years and a 13% state credit over four years. The CTCAC also

administers a Farmworker H.ousing Assistance Program and a Gommercial Revitalization Deduction Program.

Low-lncome Housing Preservafion and Residential Home OwnershipAct( LIHPRHA) requires that all eligible HUD Section
236 and Section 221( d) projects" at-risk" of conversion to market- rate rental housing thr.ough the mortgage prepayment
option be subject to LIHPRHA Incentives. The incentives to owners include HUD subsidies which guarantee owners an

8% annual return on equity. Owners mustfile a Plan of Action to obtain incentives or offer the projectforsale to a) non-
profit organizations, b) tenants, or c) public bodies for a 12 month period followed by an additional three- month sale to
other purchasers. Onlythen are owners eligible to prepay the subsidized mortgages.

Mobilehome Park Rehabilitation and Resident Ownership Program( MPRROP) makes short- and long- term low interest
rate loans for the. preserVation of affordable mobilehome parks for ownership or control by resident organizations,
nonprofit housing sponsors, or local public agencies.  MPRROP also makes long- term loans to individuals to ensure
continued affordability.  Funds are made available through a periodic, competitive process. MPRROP is currently
accepting applications on an over-the-co-unter basis.

Multifamily Flousing Program ( MHP) provides low interest loans to developers of affordable rental and transitional
housing projects' Funds may be used for new construction, refiabilitation, acquisition and rehabilitation, or conversion
of non- residential structures.

National HousingTrustFund is a permanentfederal program with dedicated sources offunding notsubjectto the annual
appropriations. The funds can be used to increase and preserve the supply of affordable housing, with an emphasis on
rental housing for extremely low- income households.  California is receiving approximately $ 10: 1 Million for the

program in 2019. Funds will be made available through a competitive process and will be announced through a Notice
of Funding Availability.

Preservation Interim Repositioning Program( PIRP) is a short-term loan program designed to preserve housing at risk of
conversion to market rates. Only non- profits, dedicated fo the provision of affordable housing, may apply. Local
matching funds, together with PIRP funds, may not exceed 20% of total costs. No current funding is offered for this
program.

S8 2 Planning Grants Program provides orie-time funding and technical assistance to all eligible local governments in
California to adopt, and implement plans and process improvements thatstreamline housing approvals.and accelerate
housing production. Eligible activities include updating a variety of planning documents and processes such as general
plans and zoning ordinances, conducting environmental analyses, and process improvements that expedite local
planning and permitting. The planning grants program is funded through the Building Homes and Jobs ActTrust Fund
SB 2, Chapter364, Statutes of;2017). The City is eligibleto receive fundsthrough this program and this program should

be considered to develop an affordable housing program forthe City.

California Community Reinvestment Corporation( CCRC) is a multifamily affordable housing lender whose mission is to
increase the availability of affordable housing for Low Income families, seniors and residents with special needs by
facilitating private capital. flow from its investors for debt and equify to developers of affordable housing. Eligible
activities include new construction, rehabilitation snd acquisition of properties.

SupplementSecuritylncome( SSl) is a federal welfare program for persons 65 and over and for blind or disabled persons

of any age." Disabled`' means that you have a physical oc mental disability that is expected to keep you from working for
12 months or longer, orwill result in death. Medicare is a federal health insurance program for people who are 65 and

over, for some. younger people with permanent disabilities, and for people with end- stage kidney disease. SSI may
provide total monthly income or it may suppJement a low income. In addition to cash payments; SSI recipients are
automatically covered by Medi- Cal, the state health insurance plan.

106

544



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Local Programs

SanJoaguinCountyCommunityDevelopmentDepartmentadministersthefederally- funded UrbanCountyCDBG/ HOME
Home Rehabilitation Program, a creative financing program fhat assists property owners in making residential building
improyements. It offers low interest amortized and deferred payment Ioans: The program is: designed: to make needed
renovations affordable for low income homeowners as well. as offering a range of services to help make property
improvements as easy as possible. County loans are secured 6y second deeds of trust. Loans are processed on a first   -
come; first served basis unless . it is an emergency; and fhe homeowner m.ust occupy the home as their principal
residence while they own it. : 

San Joaquin CountyHuman ServicesAgency( HSA) providesState and federally- mandeted public assistance and a variety
of social service programs for the ci#izens of San Joaquin County. Programs include: California Work Opportunity and
Responsibility to Kids ( CaIWORKs), Foster Care, CalFresh, Generaf Assistance, Medi- Cal, Adoptions; Child Protective
Services, Adult Protective Services, In- Home Supportive Services ( IHSS), Refugee Assistance, and the Mary G aham
Children' s Shelter. Federal and State legislation and local regulations govern the methods by which resources of the
Agency are allocatetl.   , -      

San Joaquin County Behavioral Health Services provides emergency, inpatient and: outpatient behavioral health
counseling and services including Adult Day Health Care, throughout San Joaquin County with offices in Lodi, Manteca
and Tracy.

The HousingAutliorityofthe County ofSan Joaquin is the agency responsible for providing decent, safe, and a.ffordable
housing for low- income families; elderly, and the disabled. Programs include the 1- fousing Choice V ucher Program
Section 8), Migrant Family Centers, and Family Self Sufficiency.

Area Agency on Aging( AAA) is a legislated overseeing body witfiin the Aging and Comm`unity Services Divisio.n of San
Joaquin County' HSA. The Boar.d of Supervisors and Area on Agenry Staff are assisted and guided by the Commission on
Aging" which serves as an Advisory Board. The AAA/ HAS provides a directory of services available for seniors, including
an explanation of Medicare and Medi- Cal; resources to prevent elder abuse and elder fraud, and a listing of agencies
and programs providing services to seniors with specific needs.

The San Joaquin HSA administers the Meals on Wheels Program. This program promotes the health, well- being, and
independence of elder adults and the disabled by providing meals to persons 60 years and older that are homebouhd.

In-Home Supportive Services:(IHSS) serves low- income aged, blind, or disabled p'ersons who are unable to perform the
activities of daily liVing and cannot remain safely in their own homes uvithout help. The services provided, such as
t ansportation, shopping, and household management enable, these clients to continue to live in their own homes or
apartments:

California Healthy Families is low cost insurance fo[ children up to 18 years old and Pregnant Mothers. This includes
Health, Dental and V'ision coverage for qualifying applicants.

DignityAlcove in Stockton helps homeless veterans find permanent housing, secure a su6stantial income and address
the specific challenges that veterans face, including but not limited to mental illness, physical; illness, and substance .
abuse.

Emergenry Crisis Intervention Program( ECIP) provides assis#ance with utility bills for low- income individuals in crisis, if      '
they have a 48- hour notice.or a shut off notice, Clients are required to call for:an appointment on Monday mornings and
are required to attend an Energy class and bring appropriate documents to receive immediate help with their utility bill.
Similarto#he program above, no nuinbers were available for how many seniors are served in Lathrop.

Home EnergyAssistance. Program( HEAP) assists low- income households to pay their energy costs. Assistance is in the
form of a dual ors'ingle- party warrant, or, a direct paymentto the utility company on behalf ofthe applicant. The amount
of assistance is based on the number of persons in the household, total household income; the,cost of energy within the
County the household [ esides in, and funding avai.lability. HEAP provides one payment per year,

107

545



2019 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

PG& E offers assistance to low- income, disabled and senior citizen customers through_ numerous programs and

community out.reach projects which incl:ude: California Alternate Rates for Energy ( CARES), Family Electric Rate
Assistance( FERA), and the Balanced Payment Plan Program:

Weath rization Program administered through San Joaquin HSA provides home or duplex weath:erization services such ,  _

as: minor home repair, glass replacement, atticventilation; low- flowshowerheads, ceiling insulation, evaporative cooler
vent cover, door weatherstripping, water heater blanket, duct wrap, switches & outlet gaskets, caulking, and other
weatherstripping.     "       -

San Joaquin Rapid Transit Distrid Dial-A- Ride provides dial- a- ride services to ha,ndicapped persons with an ADA     -

certification. The service area includes fhe entire San Joaquin County, to• assure accessibility to basic services such as
shopping, public hospitals; and connections to Metro Stockton,( Stockton Metropolitan Area) and intercity fixed routes.

108

546



2019 HOUSINGELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

6.     Other Requ rements
CONSISTENCY WITH GEllTERAL PLAN

Government Code Section 65300. 5 states:" In construing the prouisions of.this article, the Eegislature. intends that the
general plan and elements and- parts thereof comprise an integrated, internally consistent and_compatible statement of     -
policies for the adopting agency." , Ad.ditionally, Government Code Section 65583( c)( 7) requires the identification of
means by which consistencywill be achieved with otlier general plan elements and community goals:"

The Housing Element of a general plan sets out a city`s. overall long- range planning strategy for p roviding housing for
all segmerits of the community. The Galifornia Government Gode requires general plans to contain an integrated,   -
consistent set of goals and policies. The Housing Element is, therefore, affected by policies contained in other elements
of a general plan. The hous' ing element is most intricately related to the laad use element. The Land Use Element
establishes the framework for deyelopment of housing by Iaying out the land. use designations: for residential
development and intlicating the type and density permitted by a city.

Working within this framework, the City of Lathrop' s Housing Element identifies priority goals, objectives, and program
actions for the 2015- 2023 planning period that directly address the housing needs of lathrop' s existing and future
residents. The policies contained in other elements of the City' s General Plan affect many aspects of life tfiat residents
enjoy such as the a:mount and variety of open space; the preservation of natural, hisioric and. cultural resources;
permitted noise levels in residential areas; and the safety of the residents in the event of a natural or man- made disaster:
The Housing Element has been reviewed for consistency with the City' s other General Plan Elements and tfie policies
and prog ams in this Element do not conflict. with the policy direction contained in other parts ofthe Generaf. Plan:

As the General Plan Update proceeds and as portions of the General Plan are amended in tlie future, the Housing
Element will be reviewed to ensure; that internal consisfency is maintained. The General Plan Update wil:l address all
requirements of State law related fo the scope and cflntent of a General Plan, including updated goals, policies, and
programs to address complete streets, environmental justice, climate adaptation and resiliency, and air quality.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER CITY PLANS AND POLICIES

The Housing Element identifies priority goals; objectives, policies, and action programs for the next five years that
directly address the housing needs of Lathrop. Tfie City' s other plans and policies including its Municipal Code, Zoning
Code, Master Plan, arid Specific Plans must all remain consistentwith the Housing Element. As revisions are considered
to the City' s Code and various plans, each revision will be reviewed to ensure that no conflicts with the Housing Element
occur.

PRIORITY FOR WATER A1VD SEWER

Per Chapter 727, Statues of 2004 (SB 1087), upon completion of an am"en ded or adopted housing element, a local
government is responsible for immediately distributing a copy ofthe Elementto area water and sewer provitlers. Water
and sewer prov'iders must grant prior'ity for service allocations to proposed developments that include housing units
affordable to lower-income households. As the responsible agency, the City of Lathrop will supply a copy of the adopted
housing element to the Lathrop Public Works Department( LPWD), as well as to all other water and sewer providers
serving the City. The Cify is. also preparing policy language to ensure that all lower income housing projects receive
priority for water and sewer service, consistent with State law,      

ENERGY CONSERVATION

Energy efficiency has direct application to affordable housing because the more money spent on energy, the less
available for rent or mortgage payments.  High energy costs have particularly detrimental effects on low=income
households that do not have enough income or cash reserves to absorb cost increases and many times must choose
between basic needs such as shelter, food, and energy.

109

547



2019 HOUSiNG ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

City Standards

The City has adopted and enforces the 2016 Califocnia Energy.Code and the 2016 California Green Building Standards  .
Code( CALGreen). CALGreen has streamlined energy efficieney and conservation measures forjurisdictions throughout
Galifornia. CALGreenaddressesenergyefficienrythroughrequiringcompliancewithTitle24en_ ergyeffi_cienrystandards

which address energy efficiency through appliances,  air conditioning/ heating units, water heating systems,
windows/ doors, insulation, roofing, lighting, solar- readiness, as. well as. requiring additional mandafory measures: that
address site development( stormwater management); construction ( construction waste reduction/ rerycling; pollution
control,) and long- term use ofthe residence( indoorwater use, outdoorwater use, building ma'intenance and operation,
fireplaces, indoor air quality and ezhaust, and interior moisture control). Single family and duplex developments are-
required to be: wired for electricvehicle charging antl the multifamily projects with 17 or more units must provide electric
vehicle charging spaces. The2019 CalGreen, which will be mandatory in 2020, will require an increase in the number
of electric vehicle charging spaces at multifamily pro ects. The 2019 CalGreen also places California at the forefront of
renewable energy requirements for residential uses, requiring all new homes underthree stories to install solar panels
c CALGreen has standardized energy efficiencythroughout California, making the process straightforward for developers
who often work in multiplejurisdictions.    

Chapter 13. 08 of the Municipal Code establishes water conservation and rationing standards, including measures for
water conservation and water restrictions.  Section 17. 92: 060 of the Zoning Code esta6lishes water conservation
requirements for landscaping in new development. .

Households benefit from increased energy efficiency and water conservation requirements as demand for electric,
natural gas, and water is reduced which can result in reduced electric, natural gas, and wafer bills: The Housing Plan
includes policies and actions. to encourage energy efficiency and conservation in residential development.

Energy Efficiency and Assistance Programs

Owners of existing housing can benefit from home improvements, such as window, door, and appliance replacement,
increased insulation, and weatherization that reduce energy and water demand and thus reduce energy and water bills.
Energy efficient programs include but are not limited to the following:

California Municipal Finance Authority Open PACE program. The City participates in this program to ensure that
loans and financing are available for residential and commercial property owners to make clean- energy and
eneCgy- efficient improvements to their homes. This program provides for deferred. payments and can be u.sed
for extensive energy-efficiency and renewable energy improvements.

PG& E Energy Savings Assistance Program.: This program provides qualified customers. with: energy- saving
improvements at no charge. Energy-saving measures through the Energy Sayings Assistance Program can
include repairing or replacing appliances, including the refrigerator, furnace, or water heater, and installing
insulation, weatherproofing, energy- efficientJight bulbs, caulking; and low-flow showerheads. Participants
must live in a home that is at leastfive years old and must meet household income requirements.

Rebafe•Programs. PG& E offers rebates for eligible appfiances including clothes washers and gas, electric, or
solar water heaters: Appliances eligible for rebafes typically change annually.
Home Upgrade Program.  PG& E offers up to $ 6, 500 in home upgrades based on an energy assessment   '
performed by a participating provider. Home upgrade options include air conditioner, furnace, water heater,
wall insulation, floor insulation; duct insulation, high efficiency windows, and wall heaters.
Weatherization Program. San Joaquin County Weatherization Weatherization Program administered through
San Joaquin HSA provides home or duplex weatherization services. such as: minor home repair, glass

replacement, attic ventilation, low-flow showerheads; ceiling insulation, eiiaporative cooler vent cover; door
weatherstripping,. water heater blanket,  duct wrap,  switches & outlet gaskets,  caulking,  and other

weatherstripping;  

110

548



ZO19 HOUSINGELEMENT BACKGROUND: REPORT

References
California Coalition for Rural Housing; 2014. San Joaquin Valley Fair Housing and: EquityAssessment. Abood; Maya.
California Coalifion. for Rural Housing. Apri12014.

CaliforniaDepartmentofDevelopmentafServices, 2019. ConsumerCountbyCaliforniaZlPCode. DataforEndofJune

2019.   

California Department of Finance, 2019. Report E- 5 Population and Housing Estimafes for Cities, Counties, and the
State, January 1, 201-1- 2019, with 2010 Benchmark. Ca ifornia Department of Finance De iograpliic Research Unit.   

California Department of Finance, 2009. E- 5 City/ County Population and Housing Estimates 2001-2009 with 411/ 2000
DRU Benchmark.  

City of Lathrop; 2003. River Islands: at Lathrop Urban Design Concept. Published- 0ctober 15, 2002, adopted January
28, 2003.

City of Lathrop, 2004. Central Lathrop Specific Plan. City of Lathrop. November.9, 2004.

C' ity of Lathrop, 2004. Centrallathrop Design Guidelines. City of Lathrop. November 9, 2004.

City of Lathrop, 2004. Comprehensive General Plan. City of Lathrop. Adopted December 17, 1991, with amendments
through. N.ovember 9, 2004. . Note:. Subsequent Housing Element and Safety Element amendments published
sepaYately. 

City of Lathrop, 2006. 2003 West Lathrop Specific Plan. City of Lathrop. Prepared October 1, 2002, adopted January    ,
28, 2003, amendmentsthrough 2006.

City of Lathrop, 2010. 2009-2014 Housing Element: City of Lathrop.

City of Lathrop, 201b. 2015 Housing Element. City of Lathrop;   

City of Lathrop, 2013.  Mossdale. Landing Urban Design Concept.  City of Lathrop.  Adopted: January 27, 2003,
amendments through August 2013.

City of Lathrop, 2015. Comprehensive General Plan- General Plan Amendment of 2015 SB 5 200-Year flood Protection.
Adopted 2015.

City of Latfirop; 20:19. 2019 Mas#erFee Schedule. City of Lathrop. Updated March 2019,

City of Lathrop, 2019._ Lathrop Municipal Code. City of Lathrop. Currenf tfirough Ordinance 19=405: and the May 2019
code supplement.

City of Lathrop/ EKI, 2017. 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. October 2017.

City of Lathrop/ EKI, 2018. Wastewater System Master Plan. December 2018.

City of Cathrop/ EKI, 2018. Water System Master Plan: December 2018.

Cify of LathroplEKl, 2019. Recycled Water System Master Plan. July 2019.

City of LathroplLAFCo, 2016.: City of Cathrop Municipal Service Review and Sphere' of lnfluence Plan.

EDD, 2019. Labor Market Information. Online Se vices. Data accessed via: www. labormarketinfo: edd. ca. gov.

HCD; 2019. State Income Limits for2019: California Department of Housin, g and Community Development, Division

111

549



ZO 9 HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

of Housing Policy Development.

HUD, 2019. CHAS Data Query Tool- Special Aggregation of 2011- 201 5 ACS Data.

San Joaquin County, 2014. San Joaquin County and the Cities of Escalon, Lathrop, Manteca, Ripon, and Tracy 2013-
2014 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report.

San Joaquin County; 2015. San Joaquin County and the Cities of Escalon, Lathrop, Manteca, Ripon, and Tracy 2014-
2015 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report.

San Joaquin County, 2018. San Joaquin County and the Cities of Escalon, Lathrop, Manteca, and Ripon 2018- 2019
Annual Action Plan.

San Joaquin County, 2019. San Joaquin Gounty and the Cities of Escalon, Lathrop, Manteca, and Ripon 2019- 2020
Annual Action Plan.

San Joaquin County, 2015. San Joaquin County and the Cities of Escalon, Lathrop, Manteca, Ripon, and Tracy 2015-
2019 Consolidated Plan.

San Joaquin County, 2015. San Joaquin County 2015 Point- in- Time Unsheltered Homeless Count Report.

San Joaquin County, 2017. San Joaquin County 2017 Point-in-Time Unsheltered Homeless Count Report,

San Joaquin County, 2019. San Joaquin County 2019 Point- in-Time Unsheltered Homeless Count Report.

SJCOG, 2014.  2014- 2023 Regional Housing Needs Plan ( RHNP).  San Joaquin Council of Governments.  Adopted

August 28, 2014.

Trendgraphix, 2015. Lathrop Real Estate Market Report.

US Census, 2018. 2013- 2017American GommunitySurvey5- YearEstimates. US Census Bureau. 2014. Data accessed
via: factfinder. census. gov.

US Census, 2010. United States Census 2010. US Census Bureau. Data accessed via: factfinder. census. gov.

US Census, 2000. United States Census2000. US Census Bureau. Data accessed via: factfinder. census. gov.

USDA, 2012. 2012 CensusofAgriculture, CaliforniaState and CountyData. Tables 1, 7, and 8. United States Department

of Agriculture. May 2014.

Zillow, 2019. Homes sales and rental data.

112

550



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites

0 1 p

re& ,  W < d ,» ya : J   ' "
t    ' a x     i   `     

e
s' `

x,y^e   y a `'    " rc   
ar   ,

r           
ht, Y 3,, rk     +,' .

WQS s r t' 1YOp;$ peCI IC°P II OSS[ 8 @;' s        ?  
a: 

a,. s,.          "  s§
2;     r ds      ' fi, r='   r_„?,.   z,, fi', k'  

West Lathrop Specific Plan/ IVlossdale Area D. Acreage

column does not include portion of 190. 5- acre_s.ite

designated for.non- residential and recreational uses.       

Assumed density of at 5. 5 units per ae e for this site.
Primarilyvaca. nt; home and outbuildings, located in

19119001 RL- MV LD 82. 06 4S1 portion of parcel that is east of River IslancJs Parkway.  AM

West Lathrop Specific Plan/ Mossdale identifies 5: 5

units per acre: Vacant. Acreage does not include
portion of 39. 4- acre parcel designated for non-

19120002 RL- MV LD 1633 89 residential uses.    AM

24170025 RL- MV  '  LD 0. 14 . 1 Mossdale- vacant single family Jot: .      '      AIVI

24170026 RL- MV LD O: T6 1 Mossdale- Vacant. single family lot:       AM

This site accommodates densities of 8- 15 du/ ac;'

densities are assumed at 10 du/ ac as there is no

minimum density. Does not incfude portion of 19. 12- .
24102063 RM- MV IyID.   13. 38 133 acre parcel designated P- MV and CS- MV: M

This site accommodates densities up to 8- 15 du/ ac;
densities are assumed at 10. c1u/ ac as there is no

minimum density. Does not inclucle remainder of 4. 14-

24102034 RM- MV MD 3. 50 35 acre site zoned P- MV and OS- MV. M

This site accorrimodates densities up to 8- 15 du/ ac;

densities are assumed at 10 du%ac as there is no ,

minimum density. Does. not include remainder of site
24102068 RM- MV MD 9. 50 95 zoned P- MV and OS- MV.   M

Mossdale Landing South. Mossdale Apartments

approved for 204 units,( APNs 24102061, 065, 066).

Building permits have not been pulled; while this site

has potentiaFto be sold to an affordable housing

developer or developed as an affo deble project,

However, it is assumed. to be market- rate iri orderto

provide a conservative estimate of lower income sites

and as the deyeloperhas not expressed interest in

24102061 RH- MV HD.    5J6 204 seeking funding to provide affordable housing: Vecant. M

24102065 RH- MV HD 2. 67       -     See ARN 24102061. M

24102066 RH=MV  . HD 0. 60       -     See APN 24102061. M

19170014 CV- MV VC 2. 46 62 Approved. Towne Centre Apartments 1..      M

Approved. Towne Cenf e Apartments 2. APNs

19155074 CV- MV, _  VC 2: 17 84 19155074,: 19155075.      M

19155075 CV- MV VG 1: 22       -     $ ee APN 19155074. M

Identifies parcels with. split zoning A- 1

551



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites

0

1    C e Q

Vacant. Site has same designation as the approved

Towne Centre Apartments projects and is anticipated

19155071 CV- MV VC 1. 46 36  . to develop at comparable densities( 24. 96 du/ ac).       L

Vacant. Site has same designation as the approved
Towne Centre Apartments projects and is anticipated

19155073 CV- MV VC 1: 38 34. to develop at comparable densities( 24.96 du/ ac).       L

Subtotal: Residential Low 98. 68 542 AM

Subtotal: Residentia/ Medium 26.38 263 M

Subtotal: Residential High 14.88 350 N1

Subtotal: Residential High.    2.84 ZO L

West Lathrop Specific Plan/ River lslands  .

21323001 RL- RI RL- RI 91. 09 137 River Islands Vesting Tentative Map 3694 is approved AM

21322004 RL- RI RL- RI 28. 33 42 for 3, 616 single family units and 668 multifamily anits AM

21021017 RL- Rl RL=RI 11. 84 18 including 425 apartments( approx. 17J net acres. at 24 AM ,. .

21323002 RL- RI RL- RI 2. 00  _      3
du/ ac) and 243 townhomes( approx. 21 net acres at

AM

21323003 RL- RI RL- RI . 2. 00 3
11. 6 du/ ac) in the Mixed Use area. Approximately AM

1, 331 single family uriit§ are completed and an
21323004 RL- RI RL- RI 2. 00 3 AM

additional 197 single family units have been
21323005 RL- RI: , .  RL- RI 95: 47 .    143 AM

permitted. There are 2, 088 single farrrily units
21323006 RL- RI RL- R1 89J9 135 ANl

remaining to be permitted; approximately 740 sirigle
21033001 RL- RI RL=RI 13. 81 21

family lots are in final maps whicfi includes the 197
AM

21034031 RL- RI:     RL- RI 9. 94 15
single family units that are permitted/ under

AM

24040003 RL- RI RL- RI . 16: 97 25
construction end the remaining 1, 545 single family

AM

24040005 RL- RI RL- RI : 19. 65 29 units are allocated to the Yemaining parcels based. on AM

24040006 RL- RI RL- RI 2. 78 4 each- parcel' s proportionate share of the parcels.  See AM  ,,

24040009 RL- RI RL- RI 21. 22 32 Appendix A1 for single family.parcels that have been AM .

24040010 RL- RI RL- RI : 24. 16 36 su6divided; these are all assumed to be above AM

24040011 RL- RI RL- Rf 10. 84 16 moderate income. The remaining parcels in the AM

24040012 RL- RI RL- RI 11. 45 17 Vesting Tentative Map will accommodate 425 lower qM

income units( 15- 40 du/ ae; assumed at approx. 24:
21040013 RL- RI RL- RI. . 11J1 18 AM

du/ ac located in the. Town Center) 627 moderate
21040014 RL- Rl RL- RI . 14J1 22 AM .

income units at medium densities( including 243
21040016 RL- RI RL- RI 75. 76 114 AM .

townhomes in the Mixed Use Area and 384 single
21040023 RL- RI RL- RI : 18: 80 28 AM

family attached units in;Vil.lages S and CC), and 1, 3,20
21042051 RL- RI RL- R1: . 0. 62 1   .     AM

single family units at low and medium densities.
21042052 RL- RI RL- RI 1: 26 2 AIVI

21042053 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 83 1 AM

21043052 RL- RI RL- RI- . 0.84 1 AM

21045051 RL>RI..    RL- RI 4. 40 7 AM .

21046017 RC- R1 RL- RI -  2: 66 4 AM

21046018 RL- RI RL- R1 2. 02 3 AM

21047034  . RL- RI.     RL- RI 1. 54 2 AM

Idenfifies parcels with split zoning A- 2

552



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites

e

o

o o

21048045 RL- RI RL- RI 1. 45 2 AM

21048046 RL- RI RL- RI 0.91 1 AM

21048047 RL- RI RL- RI 1. 05 2 AM

21048049 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 70 1 AM

21048050 RL- RI RL- RI 0.47 1 AM

21312005 RL- RI RL- RI 16. 71 25 AM

21321004 RL- RI RL- R1  .       68. 40 103 AM

21321005 RL- RI RL- RI 62. 83 94 AM

21322005 RL- RI RL- RI 58. 19 87 AM

21322006 RL- RI RL- RI 36. 92 55 AM

21325001 RL- RI RL- RI 103. 96 156 AM

21325002 RL- R1 RL- RI 4ZZ3 71 AM .

21004002 RL- RI RL- RI 6. 59 10 AM

21021022 RL- RI RL- RI 2. 84 4 AM

21331033* RL- RI RL- RI 33. 18 50 AM

21331033* MU- RI MU- RI 17. 70 425 EV/ VL/ L

21331033* MU- RI MU- RI 21. 00 243 M

21311001* RL- RI RL- RI 202. 60 551 West Lathrop Specific Plan/ River Islands. Assumed AM

21311002* RL- RI RL- RI 149. 26 441 proportional share of 4, 916 low density units AM

21311003* RL- RI RL- R1 143. 98 425 allocated to Woodlands, West Village, and remaining AM

21312001* RL- RI RL- RI 206. 06 6pg
portions of districts not developed by VTM 3694.       

AM

21312003* RL- RI RL- RI 0. 95 3
Development would occur at approx. 3. 15 du per

AM

21312004* RL- RI RL- Ri 173. 59 513
gross acre or 4. 5- 5 du per net acre. Vacant.      

AM

21321002* RL- RI RL- RI 106. 87 316 AM

21321003* RL- RI RL- RI 11. 99 35 AM

21321004 RL- RI RL- RI 65. 60 194 AM

21321005 RL- RI RL- RI 60. 25 178 AM

21321006* RL- RI RL- RI 225. 89 667 AM

21325001 RL- RI RL- RI 103. 98 307 AM

21325002 RL- RI RL- R1 53. 43 158 AM

21325003 RL- R1 RL- RI 46. 70 138 AM

21325004 RL- RI RL- RI 112. 68 333 AM

21311001* RM- RI RM- RI 16. 71 115 West Lathrop Specific Plan/ River Islands. Assumed M

21311002* RM- RI RM- RI 26. 22 180 proportional share of 1, 200 medium density units M

21311003* RM- RI RM- RI 6. 91 48 designated for the Woodlands, East Village, West M

21312001* RM- RI RIVI- RI 26. 84 185
Village. Approx. 10: 16 du/ ac net density, 7. 62 du/ ac

M

21312002 RM- RI RM- RI 18: 29 126
gross density: Vacant.      

M

21312003* RM- RI RM- RI 1. 05 7 M

21312004* RM- RI RM- RI 17. 22 118 M

21321002* RM- RI RM- RI 33. 24 229 M

Identifies parcels with split zoning A- 3

553



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites .    

e

21321003* RM- RI RM- R1 ..  .   17. 02 11Z M

21321006* RM- RI RM- RI 6: 66 .     46 M

21322003* RM- R1 RM- RI 4. 33 30 M

West Lathrop Specific Plan/ River Islands designates

site for 500 to 650 units and. ide.ntifies 600 units( 21..8

23.321006* RH- RI RH- RI 27. 50 600 du/ ac) as optimal. Vacant. EL, VL, L

Subtotol: Residential Low 2, 654. 95 5,514  .       AM

SubtotaL• Residential Medium 195. 49 1, 444 M  ..

Subtotal: Residentia! High 45. 20 1, 025 EL, VL, L

Central Lath"rop Specific Plan. 

Neighborhood 1: 103 attached courtyard housing lots

19120023 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 10. 85 103 in approved Vesting Tentative Map 3647. Vacant.       M

Neighborhood 2: 136 35x72 lots in approved Vesting

19120024 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 15. 34 136 Tentative Map 3647: Vacant.      M

Neighborhood 3: 119 45x75 lots in_a.pproved Vesting

19120021 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 17: 02 119 Tentative IVIap 3647. Vacant.      IVI

Neighborhood 4: approved Vesting Tentative IVlap

3647 allows 210 to 560 units on this site( 15- 40 du/ ac),
in addition to the 1, 040 residential lots. Assumed 25

19121017 HR/ DS- CL HR-.CL . .     13. 65 341 du/ ac. Vacant.  .   EL, VL, L

Neighborhood 5: 82 45x75 lots in approvetl VeSting

19120026 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 12: 17 82 Tentative Map 3647. Vacant:      M -

Neighborhood 6: 98 50x80 lots iri approved Vesting

19121018 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 16. 85 98 Map 3647. Vacant, .       AM

Neighborhood 7: 10445x1001ots in approved Vesting
19121023 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 19. 54 104 Map 3647. Vacant. AIVI

Neighborhood 8: 100 50x100 lots in approved Vesting

19121022 VR/ DS- CL VR=CL 20. 90 .    100 IVlep 3647. Vacant. AM

Neighborhood 9: 107 55x100 lots in approved Vesting

19121021 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 22. 51 107 Map 3647. Vacant. AM

Neighborhood 10: 87 50x100 lots in approved.Vesting
19121035 : VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 20. 62 87 Map 3647. Vacant. AIVI

Neighborhood 11: 104 45x100 lots in approved

19121033 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL . .     19. 52 104 Vesting Map 3647. Vacant. _      AM

19121041 HR/ DS- CL HR- CL 1232 305 Central Lathrop high density residential site.     EL, VL, L

R/ MU/ DS Centraf Lathrop Vesting Tentative Map 3789 permifs a

19121037 CL R/ MU- CL 12. 38 61 total of 430 single family units. Vacant. . AM

19121013 VR/ DS=CL VR- CL 24. 47 120 AM

1912:101_6 VR/ DS- CL VR= GL. .; .    13. 31 65 AM

Identifies percels with split zoning A- 4

554



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites

s

e

19121024 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 17. 02 84 AM

19121025 VR/ DS- CL VR- GL:"       2036 100 AM

Central Lathrop Vesting Tentative Map 3967 permits
19121019 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 18. 03 113 113 residential lots. AM

Central Lathrop 5pecific. Plan. Assumed: 24.8 du/ ac for
R/ MU/ DS 50% of mixed use site. Existing agricultural. industrial

19122032 : CL R/ MU- CL 11. 89 149 use will be:ceplaced with planned Specific Plan uses..    EL, VL, L

R/ MU/ DS Gentral Lathrop Specific Plan. Assumed 24. 8 du/ ac for    
19122039 CL R/ MU-: CL 5. 99 75 50% of mixed use site.. Vacant.   EL, VL, L

Central Lathrop Specific Plan. Assumed 24. 8 du/ ac for

50% of mixed use site.  Two residences and

R/ MU/ DS outbuilding planned to be replaced with approved

19122040 CL R/ MU=CL 5. 81 73 Specific Plan uses.   EL, VL, L

R/ M. U/ DS Central. Lathrop Specific Plan. Assumed 25 du/ ac for

19122059 CL R/ MU-.CL 2. 81 35 50% of mixed use site.  Vacant.   EL, VL, L

Small portion developed with agricultural structures.

19122006 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 12: 61 95 Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac. AM_ .

19122007 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL. 1. 48 11  . Vacant. Assumed 7: 5 duJac.       AM

19122008 VR/ DS=CL VR- CL 14. 85 _    111 Vacant. Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac,       AM

Small portion developed with single family home: ,

19122009 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 16. 38 123 Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac. AM

19122010 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL . 5. 15 39 Vacant: Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac:       AIVI

19122011 VR/ DS=CL VR- CL _ 10. 43 ;      78 Vacant., Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac,       AM _

19122012 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 0. 96 7 Vacant. Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac.       AM

19122013 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 15. 66 117 Vacent: Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac.       AM  -

19122014 VR/ DS- CL VR- GL. 47. 82 359 Vacant. Assumed 7, 5 du/ ac.       AM

Single famiiy fiome and outbuildings: Assumed 7. 5

19122016 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 5. 00 38 du/ ac.       AIVI

19122017 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL 6. 04 45 Vacant. Assumed 7. 5 du/ ec.       AM :.

19122018 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL:. ,     18. 51 139 Vacant. Assumed 7, 5 du/ ac.       AM

19122019 VR/ DS-.CL VR- CL 5. 89 44 Single family home. Assumed Z. 5 du/ ac. AM

Identifies percels with split zoning A- 5

555



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites

19122035 VR/ DS- GL VR- CL 8. 96 67 Vacant, Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac.      AM

19122036 VR/ DS- CL VR- CL.. . .     5. 00 38  . Barn or outbuilding: Assumed 7. 5 du/ ac. AM _

Subtotal: Residentidl Low 382.Z1 2, 634 AM

Subtotal: Residentidl Medium 55:38 440 M.

Subtotal: Residential High_  .       52. 48 978  : .    EL, VL, L

Individual Sites

19651008 R-. 1=6 LD 3. 13 18 Vacant.      AIVI    '

19651010 R- 1- 6 LD 0. 48 3  . V.acant.      AM

19612068 R- 1- 6 LD 2J2 16 Vacant.      AM . ..

19631029 R- 1- 6.     LD 3: 47 9 Vacant.      AIVI

19638050 R- 1- 6 LD 0. 98 6 Vacant.      AM

19605017 RM3 MD_. . 1. 03 6 Vacant.      M

19605020 RM3 . .    MD 1. 00 6 Vacant.      M

Underdeveloped. 5mall, older home anticipated to be

replaced with permitted higher density uses_based on

market demand; site has capacity to support

19605030 RM3 MD 0; 97 10 signlficant additional development:       M

19605032 RM3 MD 0.97 11 Vacant.      M

19605033 RM3 . .   MD 0. 99 :      12 Vacant. M.. .

Underdeveloped with significant capacity for

additi onal development. Single family home  .

anticipated to be replaced with permitted higFier

19608039 RM3 .     MD 1. 0,8 .     12 density uses_ based on market demend.   M: , ,

Underdeveloped with significant capaeity for

additional development. 5ingle familyhome

anticipated to be replaced with permitted h"igher

19605052 RM3 MD 1. 03 11 density uses tiased on market demahd.   M: ..

Underdeveloped with significant capacity for

additional development: Single family home

anticipated to be replaced with permitted higher

1960804T RM3 MD 1. 00 11 denSity uses based on market demand.   M'

Underdeveloped with significant capacity f.or -
additional development. Single family home

anticipated to be replaced with permitted higher

19605034 RM3 MD:.    0. 99 10 density uses based on market demand._  M

Underdeveloped witfi significant capacity for

additional development. Single family home

anticipated to be replaced with permitted higher

19605036 RM3 MD _   1. 01 11 density uses based on market demand._ _  .::    M

Iderififies parcels with split zoning A- 6

556



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites

s

Underdeveloped with significant capacity for

additional development. Single f.amily home

anticipated to be replaced with permitted higher

19608U38 RM3    •  MD 1. 00 11 density uses based on market demand..', M

Underdeveloped with significant capacity for    '

additional de elopment. Single family_ home   -

anticipated to be replaced with permitted higfier

19608052 RM3.      MD 0.94 10 density uses based an market demand.   M

Underde eloped with significant capacity for

additional development.: Single family home

anticipated to be repla.ced with permitted higher   

19608040 RM3 MD 1. 00 11 density uses based on market demand.   M

19605053 RM3 .     MD 0. 50 6 Vacant:.:. .  M

19605062 RM3 MD.    0. 13 2 Vacant.     M

Tfi ee units on site: Capacity for site:to support

19650001 RM3 MD 2, 43 25 additiona. l development.   M: ,: .

One single family dwelling. Site has capacity to
19650005 RM3 MD 1. 32 14 support additional residential development. : :  M

Vacant. Previously approved for a 10- unit apartment
19650008 RM3 MD 0. 69 10 project( Griffith Apartm.ents}.      M

Residential required to be above commerciaf use:

Assum'ed 20 du/ ac( 25 du%ac reduced by 20% for site
19607004 CC CC 0. 46 5 improvements) on 50% of parcel., Vacant. M

Residential required to 6e above commercial use:

Assumed 20 du/ ac( 25 du/ ac reduced by 20% for 5ite .

19607005 CG CC 0. 67 7 improvements) on 50% of parcel. Vacant. M-

Residential required to be above corrimercial use.

Assumed 20 du/ ac( 25 du/ ac reduced by 20% for site
19607011 CC CC 0. 31 3 improvements) on 50% of parcel. Vacant. M

Residential required to be a6ove commercial use.

Assumed 20 du/ ac( 25 du/ ac reduced by 20% for site

19608078 CC CC 0.56 „•      6 improvements) on 50% of parcel. Vacant. M .

Residential equired to be above commercial use.

Assumed 20 du/ ac( 25 du/ ac reduced by.20% for site
19608079 CC CC _. . 0. 80 improvements) on 50% of parcel.Vacant:. ..:: ; • .       M

Assumed development at RM- 1. 5 densities( can build

from R= 1- 6 to RM- 1. 5 densitiesj with a 20% reduction

to account for site improvements. PO alJows  .

residential- only development with no requirement for

mixed- use; residential- only is considered a reasonable

assumption as 90% ofthe City' s PO sites_are
deVeloped with solely residential uses. Emergency

19608021 P0. PO 1. 00 19 shelter is permitted use. Vacant:   L

Identifies parcels with split zoning A- 7

557



Appendix A- Inventory of Residential Sites

Assumed development at RM- 1. 5 densities( can build

from R- 1- 6-to RM=1. 5 densities) with a 20% reduction

to account for site improvements. PO allows

residential- only development with no requirement for

mixed- use; residential- only is considered a reasonable

assumption as 90% of the City' s PO sites are      

developed with solely residential uses Underutilized-
19608026 PO PO 1. 50 29 small older structure on large lot. L

Assumed: development at RM- 1. 5 den.sities( can build .

from R- 1- 6 to RM- 1. 5 densities) with a 20% reduction

to account for site improvements would allow 4 units.       

PO allows res.idential- only development with no

requirerrient for mixed- use. Emergency shelter is

permitted use. Vacant. Due to small size( less than 0. 5

acre), this site is not used in the lower income sites

inventory but is included as it can eccommodate an

erriergency shelter. It cannot be used as a replacement

lower income site unless supplemental analysis is

provided pursuant to Governm. ent Code Section

19608072 PO PO 0. 25 65583. 2( c)( 2)( B).    L

SubtotaL• Residential Low 8.78 52 AM

SubtotaL• Residential Medium 20.88 218.00 M

Subtotal: Residential High 2.49 48.00 L

Identifies. parcels with split zoning A- 8

558



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

G`eneral Incomew

r       ' 

Parcel         Plan      Zoning Acresu   ;   Status _    Units  ,    Level`. :

21024074  :   RL= R1 RL- R1  : 0. 1607 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

2T027022 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 133 Vacant singie family lot.  1 AM

21027023 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1313 Vacant single family lot.  ..  1 AM

21027024 RL- R1 RL- RI.       '. 0. 1313 Vacantsingle family lot.      •   1 AM

21027025 RL=R1 RL- RI 0. 1313 Vacant single family lot..:. 1 AM

21027026 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1313 Vacant single family lot:•. . 1 AM

21027027  .   RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 149 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21027028 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1516 Vecant single family lot.,. . 1 AM

210270Z9 RL- RI       RL- R1 0. 1499 Vacant single family lot: .    1 AM

21027030 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1458 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21027031 RL- RI RL- RI    -.    0: 1206 Vacantsingle family lot.   1 AM ..  .

21027032 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1194 Vacant single farriily. lot:  . 1 AM

21027033 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1196 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21027034 RL+ RI RL- RI 0. 1336 Vacant single family lot.  . 1 AM

21027035 RL- RI RC- RI 0. 2433 Vacant single family lot.::: 1 AM

21027036 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 2357 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21027037  .   RL= R1 :       RL- RI 0. 2057 Vacant single family lot.      1 AM

21027038 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1948 Vacant single family lot. . : 1 AM

21028020 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1194 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21028021  :   RL+ RI. RL- RI   -       0. 1194 Vacant single- family lot.   1 AM

2,1028022 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1194 Uacant singfe family lot.   1 AM

21028023 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1194 .Vacant single family. lot.  . 1 AM

21028024 RL- RI.. '      RL- RI . 0. 1194 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM__.  :

21029070 Ri=RI RL- R1 0. 1315 Vacantsingle family lot.  ,.      1. AM '

21029071 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1157 Uacant single family lot:., ,  1 AM

21029072 RL- R1 RL- RI _. 0. 1136 Vacant singl,e family lot.   1 AM

21029073 RL- R1 RL- RI.   0. 1136 Vaca. nt single femil.y lot. , . 1 AM

21029074 RL- RI RL- R(  0. 1271 Vaca. nt single family lot. .  1 AM

21029075 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0..1301 Vacant single family lot. 1 AM

21029076 RL- R1 RL- RI . . _.,:   0..1331 Vacant. singl.e family lot.   1 AM. .  .

21034004 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1859 Uacant single family; lot., . 1. AM

21034005 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1747 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21034006 RL- R1 ,       RL- RI 0..1343 Vacant single: family lot.   1 AM

21034007 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1343 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034008 RL- RI .       RL- R1 0..1343 Vacant single family lot.      1 AM

21034009 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0. 1343 Vacant single femily lot.   1 AM

21034014 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1418 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1 AM

21034015 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1499 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1 AM

21034016 .    RL- RI    _    RL- RI ; 0. 1646 Vacant singl.e. family lot.   1 AM.,

21034017 RL- R1 RL- RI 0: 168 Vacant single family lot. ._ 1. AM

21034018 RL- RI RL- R1.   0. 1502 Vaca.nt single family lot.   1 AM  .    

21034019 .    RL- R1 RL- RI__. 0: 1522 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM .     .

21034020 RL- R1 RL- RI 0: 1355 Vaca. nt single famil_y lot.   1 AIVI

559



Appendix A1: Riverlslands Single Family Farcels

21034021 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1343 Vacent single family lot.   1 AM

21034029 RL- RI .       RL- RI 0. 1287 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034034 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 188 Vacant single family lot.          1 AM

21034035 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1729 Vacant single family lot.  . 1 AM

RL- R1 0. 1 98 Vacant single family. lot.     1 AM21034036 RL- RI

21034037 RL- RI RL- RI . 0: 1375 Vacant singfe. family lot.   1 AM :

21034038 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1463 Vacant single family lot.   -      1 AIVI

21034039 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1697 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034040 RL- R1 RL- RI  . 0. 1525 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034041 RL- R1 RL- R1    :      0: 1434 Vacant single family lot.     1 AM

21034042 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1682 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034043 RL- RI RL- RI  . 0: 1631 Vacant single family lot.     _ ..   1 AM

21034044 RL= RI RL- RI .  0. 143 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034045 RL- RI RL- RI         0. 1574 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034046 RL- R1 RL- Rf 0. 1513 Vacant s'ingle family lot.   1 AM

21034047 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0. 1521 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034048 RL- RI      ' RC- R1 0. 2018 Va.cant single family lot.   1 AM

21034049 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1594 Vacant single_family lot.   1 AM.

21034050 RL= RI .       RL- RI     `..     0. 178 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM. .,

21034051 RL- RI     ' _ RL- R1 0. 3654 baca`nt single family lot. _ 1 AM

21034052 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 3396 Uacant single familq lot.   1 AM

21034053 RL= R1 RL- RI 0.,1523 Vacanf singfe family lot.   1 AM

21034054 RL- RI RL- R1.   0. 1841 Uaca, nt single femily lot.  1 AIVI

21034055 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1861 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034056 RLRI RL- RI .       . 0. 1789 Vacantsingle. family lot.   1 AM ___ , , ,

21034057 RL- RI RL- R1       '   0: 1817 Vacant single family lot. _ 1 AM

21034058 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 3546 Vacant single family lot.._ 1 AM

21034059 RL- R1 RL- RI .; 0. 3259 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034060 RL- R1 RL- RI.  0. 1535 Vacant single family lot.  1 AM

21034061,     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1625 Uacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034063 RL- R1 RL- RI 0..1785 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034064 RL- R1 .       RL- RI . . .... . 0. 2284 Vacan. t single family lot.   1 AM, ,

21034065 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1.358 Ua.cant single family. lot._ . 1. AM

21034066 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1931 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21034067 RL- R1 RL- RI     '.  : _ 0..1601 Vacan# single. family lot.   1 AM, ._ _ ._

21034068 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1486 Vacant single famify, lot 1 AM

21034069 RL- RI RL- RI 0..1448 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21034070 RL- R1 RL- RI  . 0..1876 Vacant singl.e family lot.   1 AM

21035003.     RL- R1 RL- RI.   0. 1475 Vaca. nt single family lot:   1 AM

21035004 RL- RI       , RL- RI.   0. 1343 Vacant single family lot.  ,. 1. AM

21035005 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 171 Vacant single family lot.      1 AM ..  . .

21035006 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1449 V.acant single family lot. .. 1 AM

21035007 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 158 Vaca_nt single family lot.,. .      1 AM

21035008 RL- RI RL- RI , 0. 3577 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM . . ., .

21035009,     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1698 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM  

560



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

210350T0     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 3936 Vacant single family lot: .    1 AM

21035011 RL- RI RL=R1 0. 4832 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21035012 RL- R1       RL- RI . 0. 199.1 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21035013 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1897 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21035014 RL- RI RL- R1          0. 1722 Vacant single family. lot:     1 AM

21037001 RL= R1 RL- RI    _     0. 1301 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037002 RL- RI RL- R1 0: 1301 Vacant single famil. y lot.       1 AfVI '

21037003 RL- RI RL= R1 O. T301 V.acant single family lot:   1 AM

21037004 .    RL- R1 RL- RI . 0: 1301 Vacant single family lot.    1 AM

21037005 RL- RI RL- RI      '    0: 1301 Vacant single family lot.      1 AM

21037006 RL- R1  '.    RC- R1 O. T296 Vacantsingle farriily lot: . 1 AM

21037018 R_L- RI :       RL- RI 0: 1301 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037019 RL- R1 RL- RI 0: 1301 Vacantsingle family lot.  1 AM

21037020 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1301 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037021 RL- RI RL- Rf 0. 1301 Vacant single family lot.       1 AM

21037022 RL- RI .       RL- RI 0. 1271 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM  .

21037023 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1136 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037024 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1136 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM       ,

21037025 RL- RI RL- RI 0, 1136 Vacant single_family lot.   1 AM_ .  : ..

RL- R1 0. 1271 Vacant sin le famil lot.   1 AM21037026 RL- RI g y

21037027 RL- RI RL- Rf 0. 1251 Vacant single family lot.  1 AM

21037028 -    RL- RI RL- RI _. 0, 1157 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037029 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1136 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1 AM

21037030 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1157 Vacant single family lot.-  _ 1 AM

21037031 .    RL- R1 RL- RI . 0. 1251 Vacant single f,amily lot.   1 AM

21037047 RL= R1 RL- R1 0: 1301 Vacant single family lot.  , 1, AM

21037048 RL- Rl RL= R1.  0. 1301 Vacant single family lot.._ . 1 AM

21037049 _    RL- RI RL- RI _ 0. 1301 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037050.     RL- RI RL- RI.  0. 1301 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1 AM

2.1037051,     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1301 Vacant single family lot,   1 AM

21037052 RL- R1 _       RL- RI 0. 1271 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037053 RL- R1, RL- RI _ 0. 1136 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM._ _ :

21037054 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1136 Vacant single family lot..  1, AM

21037055 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1136 Vacant single_family lot.   1 AM

21037056 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0._1271 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM, ., ; ,: ;

21037057 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1301 Vacant single family lot. .  1 AM

21037058  .   RL- RI , -     RL- RI 0._1301 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037059  .   RL- RI .       RL- RI  . 0.,1301 Vacant single family lot.   1 A.M

21037060,     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1301 Vaca. nt single family lot:   1 AM

21037061_     RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1.293 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037062 :    RL- R1 RL- RI .  0. 117 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21037063 RL- R1 RL- R1 0: 1335 Vacant single family lot._ 1 AM

21037064 RL- R1 RL- R1 0. 1157 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21037065 RL- R1 RL- RI  . 0: 1136 Vacan. t single family lot.   1 AM . . :. .

21037066 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1136 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI

561



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21037067 RL- RI RI:=RI 0. 1271 Vacant single family lot.  1 AM

21037068 RL- RI .       RL- R1 0. 1271 Vacant single family lot. 1 AM

21037069 RL= R1 RL- RI  : 0. 1136 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM-

21037070 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1136 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21037071 RL- RI        RL- RI  ._       0. 1157 Vacant single family lot.   1 / M      -   

21037072  '   RL= R1 RL- RI 0. 1251 Vacant single family lot.. 1 AM _

21038002.    RL- RI-  -     RL- RI.  0. 1313 Vacant singfe family lot.     _    AIVI

21038003 RL- RI,       RL- RI 0. 1528 Vacarit single family lot.   1 AM

21038004 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1952 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038005     RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1359 Vacant single family lot.      -                  1 AM '

21038006 RL- RI RC- RI O. T158 Vacant single family lot: =   -      1 AM

21038007 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1148 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038008 RL- RI_ RL- RI 0: 1327 Vacantsingle family lot.   1 AM .   

21038009 RL- RI   =    RL- RI 0. 1984 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038010 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1468 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038012 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 3528 Vacant single family lot.     1 AM

21038013 RL- RI RC= RI 0. 1415 Vacant single family. lot: 1 AM

21038014 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1878 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038015 RL- RI .       RL- RI      _   0, 1368 Vacant single:famil lot.y 1 AM

21038016 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1634 Vacant single famify lot.   1 AM

21038017 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 2194 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038018 RL- RI_ RL- RI 0. 2619 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038019 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 2034 Vacant single famify lot.   1 AM

21038020 RL- RI RC- RI 0. 1839 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038029 _    RL- R1_ RL- RI 0. 1247 Vacant single, family lot.   1 AM  _

21038030 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 135 Vacant singfe family lot,._. 1 AM

21038031 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1413 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038032 _    RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1568 Vacant single family lot.          1 AM

21038033.     RL- R1 RL- RI - 0. 1429 Vaca. nt single femil.y lot. . 1 AM- _

21038034 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 123 Uaca_nt single family lot:   1 AM

21038035 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1268 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038036 RL- R1 RL- RI 0: 1242 Vacant singl.e family lot.   1 AM. .

21038037 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1_162 Vacant single family_lot.   1 AM

21038038 RL- R1, RL- RI ' 0. 1148 Vacant single. familq lot.   1 AM

21038039 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0. 1148 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM_ .  .

2_1038040 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1182 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21038045 RL- RI RL- RI 0._1148 Vacent single family lot.   1 AM

21038046 RL- RI ,       RL- RI  . 0..1148 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21039001:     RL- RI RL- RI . 0. 0943 Vacant single family lot:   1 AIVI

21039002:     RL- RI RL- R1 0. 0928 Vaca. nt single family lot:  .: 1. AM

21039003 :   RL- RI. RL- RI . 0: 0885 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI ._

21039004 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 0906 Vacant single family lot....      1. AM

21039005.     RL- RI RL- RI,   0. 0885 Vaca.nt single family lot:.  : 1 AM

21039006  :   RL- RI RL- RI ..       , 0. 0928 Vacan. t singl.e family lot.      1 AM

21.039008.     RL- RI RL- RI,   0:0943 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1 AIVI

562



Appendix A1: River lslands Single Family Parcels

21039009 RL- RI     - . RL- R1 .        0: 0928 Vacant single family lof.      -    1 AM  -

21039010 RL- RI .       RL- R1 0. 0885 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21039011 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 0906 Vacant singfe family lot.   1 AM   .. .      

210390TZ RL- RI RL- RI 0. 0885 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21039013 RL- RI RC- R1 0. 0928 Vacant single family: lot.   1 AM

21039014 RL=RI RL- R1 .        0. 0906 Vacant single family lot.       _  1 AM

21039015 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 0928 bacant single family lot.   1 AM

21039016 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 0885 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21039017 RL- R1 RL- RI . 0. 0916 Vacant. singl.e family lot.   1 AM.

21039018 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 0885 Vacant single family lot. .      `,"  '       :      1 AM

21039019 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 0928 Vacant single family lot. 1 AM

21039020 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 0885 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM      ' .

21039021 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 0928 Vacantsingle family lot.   1 AM .

2103902Z RL- RI RL- R1 0. 0906 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21039023 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 0928 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21039024 RL- RI RL- RI 0; 0885 Vacant single: family lot.   1 AM

21039025 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 0928 Vecant single family lot:. . 1 AM

21039026 RL- RI -       RL= RI 0. 0883 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM      -.

21041001 RL- RI RL- RI 0.. 1061 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM. .

21041002 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 104 Vacant single family, lot: .  1 AM

21041003 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1065 Vacant single family lot.  .. 1 AM

21041004 RL- R1 RL- RI _ 0. 1088 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM -

21041005 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 102 acant single family lot.   1 AIVI

21041006 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 0992 Vacant single family. lot. .  1_ AM

21041007 _    RL+ RI RL- RI 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21041008 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot. ;, 1 AM

21041009 RL- RI RL= R1.   0. 0992 Vacant single family lot..  1 AM

21041010 RL- RI -       RL- RI 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM .

21041011 RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 0992 Vacant single famil.y lot. .  1 AM

21041012,     RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1054 Vaca. nt single familylot. . 1 AM

21041013 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0. 1099 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21041014 RL- RI.,       RL- RI 0: 0992 Vacant. single family lot.   1 AM. .-

21041015 RL- RI   -    RL- R1 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot., ,       1_ AM

21041016 RL- RI. RL= R1 0.0992 Vacant single, family lot.   1 AM

21041017 RL- RI .       RL- RI 0. 0992 Vacant singl.e_family lot.   1 AIVI_ .. , „ ;

2:1041018 RL- RI      '_ RL- R1 0. 0992 Vacant single family, lot: _ 1 AM

21041019 RL- RI _       RL- R1 0, 0992 Vacant single family_lot. • 1 AM

21041020 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 102 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

2.1041021 RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1023 Vaca. nt single family lot:   1 AM

21041022.     RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1052 Vaca. nt single family. lot.  .- 1. AM

210410Z3 _    RL- RI RL- RI . 0. 0992 Vacant single, family lot.   1 AM _

21041024 RL- RI        RL- RI 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot, ..       1. AM

21041025.     RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 0992 Vaca. nt single family lot:.  1 AM

21041026 RL- RI RL- RI 0:0992 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM  . _  .

2104102. 7.     RL- RI RL- RI, 0.0992 Vaca_nt single famil.y lot. . 1 AM

563



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21041028 RL- RI RL= R1          0. 0992 Vacant single farriily lot: ;  _       1 AM

21041029 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21041030  ..  RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1098 Vacant single, family lot.   1 AM     .    -  .  .       •

21041031 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1054 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21041032 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21041033 .   RL= R1 RL- RI 0: 0992 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM :

21041034 RL=Rf      ' RL- R1 '       0. 0992 Vacant single family lot: :  1 AM

21041035 RL- RI       RL- R1 0. 0992 V cant singls_family lot: : :-      1 AM      -

21041036 RL- R1 RL- RI.. 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot.,  1 AM .

21041037 RL- RI RL- RI     •     0: 0992 Vacant single family lot. . 1 AM '

21041038 RL- RI .       RC- RI 0. 0992 Vacant single family lot. '      1 AM

21041039 RL= RI .       RL- RI 0: 1052 Vacant single femily lot. 1 AM

21042001 RL= R1 RL- RI  `  . .    0: 1249 Vacantsingle family lot.   1 AM .

21042002 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 0996 Vacant single family. lot;   1 AM

21042003 RL- RI: RL- RI   °       0. 0996 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042004 RL=RI RL- RI 0. 0996 Vacanf single family lot.   1 AM  -  

21042005 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 0973 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042006 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 102 Vacant single family lot.  1 AM

21042007 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1935 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042050 RL- RI RL- Rf 0. 1131 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043017 RL- R1 RL- Rf 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043018 RL RI .       RL- RI _`  .-      0. 109 Vacant single family lot.       -  1 AM

21043019 RL- RI RL- R1.    0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043020 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1. AM

21043021 RL- RI, RL- RI ,  0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM :

21043022 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot, ,  1. AM

21043023 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 109 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1 AM

21043024  :   RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043025. .    RL- R1 RL- RI.  ' 0. 109 Vaca, nt single famil,y lot.  . .     '_ 1 AM

21043026 RL- RI   '    RL- Rf 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043027 RL- RI RL- RI A. 109 Vacant single family lot.  1 AM

21043028 RL- R1 RL- RI . . ._.. _   0. 109 Vacan_t.single family lot.   1 AM,, _

21043029 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1,087 Vacent single family. lot.. .       1. AM

21043030 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1726 Vacant single_family lot. 1 AM

21044001 RL- R1 .      RL- RI 0.:1623 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

2:1044002 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1489 Vacant single family. lot. ,  1 AM

21044003 RL- RI _       RL- R1 0. 1595 Uecant single family lot.   1 AM

21044004 RL- RI RL- Rf  . 0..1605 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044005.     RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1389 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21044006 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 120:1 Uacant single family, lot.   1 AM

21044007 RL- R1 RL- RI : 0: 1195 Vacan. t single family lot.      ..   1 AM, .

21044008 RL- RI RL- R1 0: 1196 Vacant single family lot, .  1. AM

21044009 RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1196 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044010 RL- R1 RL- RI .. 0: 1553 Vacan. t single family lot.   1 AM . . ;, .

21044011 RL- R1 RL- RI,   0: 1443 Vaca. nt single family lot. . _ 1 AM

564



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21044012 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1368 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044013 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1295 Vacant single family lot.       1 AM

21044014 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1408 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM      •

21044015 RL- R1     .  RL- RI. ,>--      0. 142 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM -•

210440T6 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1302 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM .         .

21044017 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1375 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044018 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1294 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI       

21044019 RL- RI   "     RL- RI 0. 1577 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21044020 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1205 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM :    

21044021 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1213 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044022 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1205 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044023 RL- RI RL- RI.    ,.     0. 1201 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044024 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1389 Vacant single family lot. 1 AM .. "   -

21044025 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1307 Vacant single family lot.  1 AM

21044026 RL- RI  '     RL- RI 0. 127 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM
21044027 RL= RI .       RL- RI 0. 119 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM:  .- . .

21044028 RL- RI RC- R1 0. 1162 Vecant single family lot.   1 AM

21044029 RL- R1. RL= R1 0. 1395 Vacant single family lot.     1 AM

21044030 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0. 1452 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044031 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1192 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044032 RL- RI ,       RL- R1 , 0, 1192 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044033 RL- R1 ,       RL- RI  . 0. 1192 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044034 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1192 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044035_     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1192 Vacant single family lot.  . 1 AM

21044036, :    RL- RI RL- RI : 0. 1192 Vacant single,family lot.   1 AM ,

21044037 RL- RI RL- R1 0: 1192 Vacant single family lot.,  1 AM

21044038 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1192 Vaca. nt single family lot._ , 1 AM

21044039 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1192 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044040 RL- R1 RL- RI. . 0: 1192 Vacant single family lot. . . 1 AM _ .

21044041.     RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1481 Uacant single family lot; . . 1 AM

21044042 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1429 Vacent single family lot.   1 AM

21044043 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1191 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM ,.,

21044044 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1.191 Vecant single family lot.   1_ AM

21044045 RL- RI. RL- RI 0. 1191 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044046 RL- RI .       RL- RI 0..1191 Vacanf single, family lot.   1 AM.  .

21044047 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1191 Vacant single family. lot. , 1 AM

21044048 RL- RI .       RL- R1 0, 1191 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM
21044049  .   RL RI .       RL- RI 0..1191 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044050.     RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1191 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21044051.     RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1191 Uaca.nt single family. lot:  ,.    1. AM

21044052 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1191 Vacant single, family lot.    -  ,._  , . _   1 AM.,,  , , .

21044053 RL=R1 RL- R1 0. 1375 Vacant single family lot. „     1. AM

21044054 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1177 Vacant single family lot. , _ 1 AM

21044055 ,:   RL- R1 RL- RI 0: 0982 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21045001 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1512 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI

565



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21045002 RL- RI RGRI 0. 1258 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045003 RL- RI RL= RI  ' 0. 1192 Vacant single family lot.         - 1 AM

21045004 RL= RI .       RL- RI 0. 1183 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

Z1045005 RL- RI.-  .    RL- RI 0. 1295 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045006 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1389 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045007 RL= RI. RL- RI 0. 1201 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM :

21045008   _ RL= R1`       RL- R1 0: 1205 Vaca' nt single family lot...      '   1 AM

21045009 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1213 Vacant single family lot.      1 AM

Z1045010   •  RL- R1: RL- RI 0: 1205 Vacant single family lot.     ,     1 AM . .

21045011 RL- R1 RL- RI 0: 1592 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045012 RL- I I RL- RI O. T228 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21045013 RL= RI'      RL- RI 0. 1244 Vacant single family lot.    1 AM

21045014 .    RL= RI .       RL- RI 0: 1148 Vacantsingle family lot.   1 AM ..

RL- R1 0. 1305 Vacent sin le famil lot.   1 AM21045015 RL- RI g y

21045016 RL:- R1 RL- RI 0. 1827 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045017 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1357 Vacant sirigle family lot.   1 AM

21045018 RL- RI RGRI 0. 2386 Vecant single family lot:. . 1 AM

21045019 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 12 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045020  _   RL- RI :       RL- RI  :   0. 12 Vacant single: family lot.   1 AM_ .  : ,. :

21045021 RL= R1 RL- R1 0. 1201 Vacant single famify lot. ; . 1 AM

21045022 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1339 Vacant single familq lot. ' 1 AM

21045023  _   RL- R1 .       RL- RI  _ 0..1496 Vacanf single family lot.   1 AM

21045024 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1266 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045025 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1228 Vacant single family_lot.   1 AM

21045026 RL- RI RL- RI - 0. 1425 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21045027 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 151 Vacant single family lot.   1. AM

21045028 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 124 Vacant single family lot. . ,       1 AM

21045029 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 124 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045030 RL- RI.       RL- RI 0. 124 Vaca, nt single family lot.   1 AM .

21045031 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1238 Vaca.nt single family lot. . _ 1 AM

21045032 RL- RI .       RL- RI 0. 1243 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045033 RL- RI _       RL- RI q. 124 Vacant, single family lot.   1 AM. .     _

21045034 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 124 Vacant single family lot,. . 1, AM

21045035 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 124 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045036 R.L=RI RL- RI      „ , 0.:1501 Vacant singl.e family lot.   1 AM      „

2104503. 7 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1,398 Vacant single family. lot.   1 AM

21045038 RL- RI RL=RI 0..1215 Vacant single family lot.   1 , 4M

21045039 RL- R1 RL- RI 0..1214 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21045040.     RL- R1 RL- RI.   0. 1214 Vacant` single family lot:   1 AM

21045041:     RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1.214 Vaca,nt single family lot:  .: 1. AM

21045042 .    RL- R1 RL- RI , . ,      0: 1214 Vacan. t single. family lot.   1 AM.

21045043 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1214 Vacant single family lot,.. , 1 AM

21045044 RL- RI RI:- RI.   0. 1214 Vaca. nt single family lot: : . 1 AM

21045045 .    RL- RI RL- RI . 0. 1214 Vacant singl.e family lot.   1 AIVI

21045046.     RL= RI RL- RI,  0: 1214 Vacant single family lot. . ..  -    1 AM

566



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21045047 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1398 Vacant single farimily lot.   1 AM

21045048 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1159 Vacant single family lot.  1 AM

21045049 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1159 Vacant single family lot.     1 AM

21045050 RL= RI RL- RI 0. 1159 Vacant single family. lot:   1 AM

21045052 RL- RI RC- RI 0. 0706 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21046001    . RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1711 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21046002.    RL- RI•       RL- RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot:     '      -    - 1 AM

21046003 RL- RI RL= RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot. .  1 AM

21046004 RL- RI;       RL- RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot.       .     -     1 AM

2T046005 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 2119 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21046019 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1536 Vacant single family lot. .  1 AM

21046021 -   RL- RI RL- RI 0. 4161 Vacant single family lot.  ' 1 AM

21047001 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 19 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM .  :

21047002 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047003 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot.     1 AM

21047004 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047005 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047006 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047007 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1538 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047008 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1717 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047009 RL- RI ,       RL- R1 0. 1722 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047010 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1574 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047011 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1618 Vacant sirigle family lot.   1 AM

21047012 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1643 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047013 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 2125 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047014     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1492 Vacant single femily lot.   1 AM

21047015 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1492 Vaca, nt single family lot._  . 1 AM

21047016 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1492 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047017 RL= RI RL- RI 0: 1492 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1 AM -

21047018 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1939 Vaca. nt single family lot. .  1 AM

21047019 RL- RI .       RL- RI 0, 1675 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047020 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1569 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047025 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 2599 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047035 RL- R1 RL- R1 0. 1488 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047037 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 0812 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI.

21048001 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1794 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048002 RL- RI RL- R1 0, 1983 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048003 RL- R1 RL- RI 0..2032 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

2.1048004 RL- RI RL- RI.   0. 1978 Vaca_nt single family lot.   1 AIVI

21048005:     RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1731 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048006 RL- RI RL- RI 0..1275 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21048007 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1275 Vacant single family lot..  1 AM

21048008 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 171 Vacant single family lot,   1 AM

21048009 RL- RI RL- RI . 0. 2025 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048010 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

567



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21048011 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048012 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048013 RL- R1 RL- RI  : 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048014 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048015 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048016 RL= RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048017 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 142 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048018 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 1421 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048019 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048020 .    RL= R1 RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048021 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21048022 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048023 RL- RI RL- RI . 0: 1263 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM -. :

21048024 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1263 Vacant single farriily lot..  1 AM

21048025 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 144 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21048026 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1357 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048027 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1384 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048028 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1512 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048029 RL- RI RL- RI 0..1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM _

21048030 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Uacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048031 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048032 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048033 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048034 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot..  . 1_ AM

21048035 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21048036 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048037 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048038 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM _ .

21048039 RL- RI RL- RI_   0. 1297 Vaca. nt single family lot. , , 1 AM

21048040 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vaca.nt single family lot. , 1 AM

21048041 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant singlefamily lot.   1 AM

21048042 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1297 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048043 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1294 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21048044 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 5406 Vacant singl.e family lot.   1 AM  .

21048053 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0.,2201 Vacant single,family lot.   1 AM ..

21049001 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1415 Vacant single famiCy, lot. . 1 AM

21049002 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1275 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049003 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1282 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049004 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 131 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049005 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 131 V.acant single family lot.   1 AM

21049006 .   RL- RI, RL- RI 0. 131 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM_.

21049007 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1451 Vacant single family lot,  . 1 AM

21049008 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1451 Vacant single family lot..  1 AM

21049009 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 131 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049010 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 131 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

568



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21049011 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 131 . Vacant single family lot:  1 AM

21049012 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 2112 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049013 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1622 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049014 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1381 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049015 RL- RI.       RC- RI 0. 1299 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21049016 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1303 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049017 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1304 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049018 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1306 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049019 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1628 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049020 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1605 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049021 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 2303 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049022 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1991 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049023 RL- RI RL- RI 0: 1944 Vacantsingle family lot. 1 AM

21049024 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1847 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21049025 RL- RI RL- RI 0..1681 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049026 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1302 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049027 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1302 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049028 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1303 Vacant single familjr lot.   1 AM

21049029 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1459 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049030 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1492 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21049031 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 13.76 . Vacant single family. lot.   1 AM

21049032 RL RI .       RL- RI 0. 1376 Vacant single femily lot.   1 AM

21049033 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1375 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049034 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1375 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049035 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1375 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049036 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1282 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049037 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 1276 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049038 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1275 Vacant single family Iot.   1 AIVI

21049039 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1275 Vaca. nt single famil.y lot.   1 AM

21049040 RL- RI RL- RI,      0; 14 Vaca,nt single family lot.-, . 1 AM

21049041 RL- RI _       RL- RI 0. 14 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049042 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 14 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM .

21049043 RL- RI RL- R1 0. 14 Vacant single family lot.   1. AM

21049044 RL- R1 RL- RI 0. 1395 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049045 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1305 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM,  .

21049046 RL- RI RL- RI 0. 1275 Vacant single family lot. .  1 AM

21049047 RL- RI RL= R1 0. 392 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21049048 RL- R1 .       RL- RI 0, 3719 Vacant singl.e family lot.   1 AM

21049049 RL- R1 RL- RI.   0. 0973 Vaca. nt single family lot:   1 AM

21040022.     RL- RI RL- R1 0. 2368 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21043008 _    RM- R1 RM- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM _

21043010 RM- R1 RM- RI 0. 1134 Vacant single femily lot. .  1 AM

21043045.     RM- RI RIVI- RI 0. 1079 Vacant single family lot. .  1 AM

21042048 RM- RI RM- RI 0: 0987 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI

21042009 RM= RI RM_-RI 0. 1027 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

569



Appendix A1: River Islands Single Family Parcels

21042049 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1717 Vacant single family lot. _ 1 AM

21036008 RM- RI RM- RI 1. 0234 Vacant single family. Village L.  15 AM

21043032 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1079 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043046 RM- RI  .    RM- R1 0. 1079 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21042047 RM- RI . .  . RIVI- RI 0. 0987 Vacant single farriily lot.   1 AM

21042013 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0995 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043003 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1105 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043014 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042027 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1482 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM .

21042010 RM- RI RIVI- RI 0: 0971 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042016 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0995 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043043 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1079 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043050 .    RM- Rf      RM- RI 0: 1079 Vacantsingle femily lot.   1 AM .: :

21043056 RM- RI RIVI- RI 1. 8235 Vacant single family. Village T. 16 AM

21043054 RNI- RI RM- RI 1. 3187 Vacant single family. Village T. 12 AM .

21043006 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043047 RM- RI RIVI- R1 0. 1122 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21036002 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1684 Vacant. Village L.   3 AM

21043036 RM- R1 RM- R1 0. 1079 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042045 RM- RI RM= RI 0. 0964 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042035 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0964 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042037 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0988 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI.  ,

21042012 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0995 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042026 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0994 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042024 RM- R1 RM- RI 0. 0994 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM. .

21043051 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1079 Vacant single family lot. . 1 AM

21043009 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043012 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 109 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

2.1042025 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0994 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042018 RM- RI RM- R1 0. 1047 Vacant single family lot:   1, AM

21036003 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 194 Vacant. Village L.   3 AM_ ,

21043031 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1331 Vacant single family lot. , 1 AM

21043039 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1872 Vacant single family lot._  1 AM

21043034 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1079 Vacan. t single family lot.   1 AM

21042011.     RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0995 Vacant single family lot. . 1 AM

2,1036004 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 3435 Vacant. Village L.   6 AM

21043001 RM- RI.       RM- RI 0. 1612 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21043040 . ,  RM- RI RM- RI 0..1079 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM_.

21036007 RM- RI RIVI- RI 1. 0081 Vacant. Village L.  1$, AM

21043002 RM- RI RIVI- R1 0. 1105 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042043 RM- R1 RM- RI 0. 0987 Vacant singl.e family lot.       1 AM

21046014 RM- RI ..,    RM- RI 0. 1536 Vacant single family lot. _ 1 AM

21047022 RM- RI RIVI- RI 0. 2034 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042019 RM- RI RM- RI _ 0. 097 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21042032 RM- RI RM- RI 0. 0988 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI

570



Appendix A1' River lslands Single Family Parcels.

21036009 RM- RI RM- RI 15165 Vacant. Village L.  21 AM

21043038 RM- RI RM= R1 0. 1981 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM  "

21047023 RM- RI RM- RI . 0. 1617 Vacant single family lot. 1 AM.

21046006 RM- RI  .    RM- RI 0. 1507 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21046016 RM- RI, -     RM= R1 OJ869 Vacant single familq. Village U.   5 AM.

21046008 RM- R(       RM- RI ; 0. 165 Vacanf single family lot.   1 AM

2.1047031.     RM- RI RM- RI 0. 1998 Vacant single family lot.   1 AIVI

21Q47026 RM- RI RIVI- R1 0. 2013 Vaca. nt single family lot.   1_ AM

21047033 RIVI- RI RM- RI 0. 1507 Vacant singl.e. family lot.   1 AM ..  ;

21046011 RM- RI RM- R1 0: 2668 Vacant single family lot.   1. AM

2-1047030 RM- RI RIVI- R1 0. 1818 Veca, nt single family lot. 1 AM

21046015 RM=RI RM- RI ,  .     0: 1536 Vacan. t single family lot.   1 AM . _ :

21046010.     RM- RI RM- R1 0: 1927 Vaca. nt single famil.y lot. , ,       1 AM

21047032,     RM- RI RM= R1 0. 1569 Vaca.nt single family lot.   1 AM

21047029  .   RM- RI RM- RI . 0. 1499 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21047021 . .  R.M- RI RM- RI , .  . . 0. 1859 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM.

21047028 RM- RI :     RIVI- RI 0. 1743 Vacant single family lot:   1. AM

21046022 RM- RI RM- R1 0. 2077 Vacant single. family lot.   1 AM

21046009 RM- R1 RM- RI 0. 1492 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

2104601Z RM- RI RM- R1 0. 1536 Vacant single family_ lot.   1 AM

21043055 RM- RI RM- RI 1. 3837 Vacant single family. Village T. 12 AM

21047024 RM- RI,       RM- RI 0; 1529 Vacanf single_family lot.   1 AM. .  :

21047036 RM- RI RM- R1 0. 1098 Vacant single family lot:   1 AM

21046013 RM- RI RM- R1 0, 1536 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

21046007     RM- RI RM- RI . 0, 1923 Vacant single family lot.    1 AM

21047027 RIVI- RI RM- R1 0. 2702 Vacant single family lot.   1 AM

571



ATTACHMEfVI" °  3     $

TAT OF A IFORNIA- B IN S C' ONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM. Gavemor

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITYDEVELOPMENT
DNISION DF HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMEN7'    
2020 W. EI Camino A tenue, Suite 500
Sacrarr ento CA 95833

n:  .

9.16) 263- 2911/ FAX( 916) 263- 7453 j

www. hcd. ca. qov

November 12, 2019

Mark Meissner, Director

Community Development Department
City of.Lathrop
390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Dear Mark Meissner:

RE: Review of the City of Lathrop' s 5th Cycle ( 2015- 2023) Draft Four-Year Housing
Element Update

Thank you for submitting Lathrop' s draft Housing Element update received for review on
September 18, 2019, along with revisions received on October 23, 2019. Pursuant to
Government Code section 65585, subdivision ( b), the California Department of Housing
and Community Development ( HCD) is reporting the results of its review. Our review
was facilitated by a telephone. conversation on October 14, 2019 with Beth Thompson,
Principal, De Novo Planning Group. 

The draft element, incorporating the revisions submitted, meets the statutory
requirements of state Housing Element law. The Housing Element will comply with
state Housing Element law ( Article 10. 6 of the Government Code) when it is adopted,
submitted to and approved by HCD, in accordance with Gov. Code section 65585,
subdivision :( g).

Public participation in the development, adoption and implementation of the Housing
Element is essential to effective housing planning. Throughout the Nousing Element
process, the city must continue to engage the community, including organizations that
represent lower- income and special needs households, by making information regularly
available while considering and incorporating comments where appropriate.

Government Code section 65588, subdivision ( e)( 4), requires a jurisdiction that failed to

adopt its Housing Element within 120 calendar days from the statutory due date to
revise its element every four years until adopting at least' two. consecutive revisions by
the applicable due dates. The city is subject to the four-year revision requirement
provided the city adopts its Housing Element on or before December 31, 2019, it will
meet the first four-year update requirement.

572



Mark Meissner, Director

Page 2

For your information, some general plafl element updates are triggered by Housing
Element adoption. For example, a jurisdiction must address environmental justice in its

general plan by the adop#ion of an environmental justice element, or by the integration of       .
environmental justice goals, policies; and objectives into ofher general plan elements

upon the adoption or next revision of two or more elements concurrently on or after
January 1, 2018. ( Gov. Code, § 65302, subd..( h).) HCD reminds the City of Lathrop to
consider timing provisions and welcomes the opportunity to provide assistance. For
information, please see the Technical Advisories issued by the Governor's Office of
Planning and Research at: http:// opr. ca. qov/ docs/ OPR Appendix C final. pdf and

http:// opr. ca. qov/ docs/ Final 6. 26. 15. pdf.

Several federal, state, and regional funding programs consider Housing Element
compliance as an eligibility or ranking criteria. For example, the CalTrans Senate Bill
SB) 1 Sustainable Communities grant; the Strategic Growth Council and HCD' s

Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities programs; and the SB 2 Planning
Grants as well as ongoing SB 2 funding consider Housing Element compliance and/ or
annual reporting requirements pursuant to Gov. Code section 65400. With a compliant
Housing Element, Lathrop meets Housing Element requirements for these funding
sources.     

HCD appreciates the hard work and dedication Beth Thompson, Principal, De Novo

Planning Group, provided in preparation of the Housing Element and looks forward to
receiving Lathrop' s adopted Housing Element. If you have any questions or need
technical assistance, please contact Cynthia Marsh, of our staff, at ( 916) 263- 7421.

Sincerely,

Shannan West

Land Use & Planning Manager

573



AT" 4C H E N' 
e     

1

ps

ITY OF' I,A7CI IZOP

PLAI>1NING C010 INIISSIOlV tESOLUT'IOl 1̀ NO. 19- 11

A RESOY,iJTION OF T' PLt NI 1IIv1G COlO IIl ISSION OF THE CI7C' OF LAT II OP

REC011 I9 1oTI3ING TI AT TI E CITY COLTNCIL AIVIEIVD T IE GENE L PLAN TO

1 EPI. ACE T IE r DOP' TED HOUSIIl1G ELEli IE1VT WdTk T IE 2019 HOUS I 1G

EL]Ell NT LJPDATE

V iE][ EA3, Sections 65580 through 65589. 8 of the California Government Code require

each jurisdiction to regularly update its Housing Element in accordance with deadlines established
by the State; and

W I REAS, the City has held visioning and outreach workshops in 2018 and 2019 for the
General Plan Update and on August 14, 2019, the City held a public workshop to provide the
community and interested agencies with an opportunity to identify priorities and concerns related
to the provision of housing; and

iVI REt S, the City submitted the Draft Housing Element Update to the California
Department of Housing and Comnnunity Development( HCD) for HCD for state- mandated review;
and

3E AS, the City made the Draft 2019 Housing Element available for public review
from September 19, 2019 tYuough October 21, 2019; and

4V IEI2 AS, the City held a public workshop on October 8,  2019 to provide the

community and interested parties with an opportunity to learn about the Draft 2019 Housing
Element and comment on the Draft Housing Element and no public comments were received; and

WI ERE, HCD identified revisions to the Draft Housing Element that were necessary
to comply with state law through oral comments to the City' s consultant; and

VHEREEi, proposed revisions were made to the Draft Housing Element and submitted
to HCD for review; and

W REAS, the City has analyzed the Draft Housing Element and proposed revisions and
determined that the Housing Element does not have the potential to result in a significant adverse
environmentaI effect and is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA)
pursuant to Section 15061( b)( 3) of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

Vb' HEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on November
20, 2019 regarding the Housing Element Update, including the changes requested by HCD, at
which time all interested persons were given an opportunity to be heard; and

VVY A,  the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered all evidence
submitted in connection with the Housing Element Update, including the staff report, public
testimony, and all other documents and evidence that are part of the City administrative record for
these actions.

Planning Commission Resolution 19- 11 Page 1 of 3

574



NO V, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVEI) the Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrop does hereby make the following findings:

1.     The goals, policies, programs, and objectives contained in the Housing Element Update,
considered individually and cumulatively, do not adversely affect the internal consistency of
the City of Lathrop General Plan.

2.     The above recitals are true and correct and constitute the facts supporting the findings made
by the Planning Commission in approving this Resolution.

3.     The Planning Commission has utilized its independent judgment in considering the
information contained in this resolution, in the staff report and attachments and other

exhibits, and in written and oral testimony during the public hearing.

4.     The Housing Element does not have the potential to result in a significant adverse
environmental effect and is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA)
pursuant to Section 15061( b)( 3) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

E IT FURTI EI212ESOLVED that based on the Findings included herein, substantial

evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, including the staff report, attachments to the
staff report, attachments to this resolution and documents listed or referenced herein, and input

provided during the public hearin; the Planning Commission of the City of LatYuop hereby
recommends the City Council amend the General Plan to adopt the Draft Housing Element dated
November 5, 2019, including any revisions made in response to HCD comments, to address the
requirements of California Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589. 8.

Planning Commission Resolution 19- 11 Page 2 of 3

575



PASS 1 AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at this regular
meeting on the 20th day of November, 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:   Gatto, Ralmilay, Dresser, Ishihara

NOES:   Rhodes

ABSTAIN:     None

ABSENT:      None

i

Bennie Gatto, Chair

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Mark is ner,    cretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution 19- 11 Page 3 of 3

576



ITEM 5. 3

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL FtEGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       Pl1BLIC HEAF ING     ( PUBLISHED IVOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER MUNICIPAL CODE T@X7' AMEIVDMENT TA-

19- 141

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consicler the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  First Reading anci Introduction of an Ordinance to

Amend the Zoning Coele, Title 17 of the Lathrop
Municipal Code,   to Implement the Housing
Element of the General Plan. The Amendments to

the Muroicipal Cocle Inclucle the Following:
Sec#ions 17. 36. 020  4nd 17. f 2. 032,  and Table

17. 61. 1 are Revised to Limit Development of

Single Family Units on Sites Designated for High
Density Residential Uses.
Section 17. 68. 010 is Revised to Permit

Manufactured Flousing in the  ame Manner as

ingle Family Homes.
Section 17. 36. 050. D.   Is Revised to Identify
Densities for the RM Zone that are Consistent with

the Densities Allowesi in the General Plan Land

Use Element.

Project Sumrrv ary and Recommendation:

The City is in the process of updating the Housing Element to meet the State deadline
for the current update, which addresses the 5t" cycle with a planning period through
2023.   As part of the Housing Element Update, the City and its consultant have
identified a number of programs for implementation, as described below.

Staff recommends that the City Council consider all information presented at the
public hearing, consider all public testimony, and if determined to be appropriate,
adopt an Ordinance to amend the Zoning Ordinance, Title 17 of the Municipal Code
adopting Municipal Code Text Amendment TA- 19- 141 to implement the Housing
Element of the General Plan.

Project ackgrounsl and Proposed Zoning Amendment:

The proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments implement the 2019 Housing Element
programs related to accommodating a variety of housing types and removing
constraints to the development of housing.  Each amendment is described below.

577



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT AMENDMENT TA- 19- 141

Sections 17. 36. 020 and 17. 62. 032, and Table 17. 61. 1 ( Attachments # 2- 4) are

revised to limit development of single family units on sites designated for high
density residential uses ( 2019 Housing Element Program 2p).

Section 17. 68. 010 ( Attachment # 5) is revised to permit manufactured housing
in the same manner as single family homes ( 2019 Housing Element Program
2q).

Section 17. 36. 050. D ( Attachment # 6) is revised to identify densities for the
RM zone that are consistent with the densities allowed in the General Plan Land

Use Element ( 2019 Housing Element Program 2r).

Environmental:

The proposed Municipal Code text amendments would not result in any significant
environmental impacts.   The potential effects associated with adoption and

implementation of the amendments to Title 17 have been reviewed and have been

determined to be exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act as it meets
with the criteria established in Section 15061( b)( 3) of the CEQA Guidelines because

there will be no physical changes to the environment.

Public Notice

A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the Manteca Bulletin on November 27,
2019.    Staff also mailed the public hearing notice to all individuals that have
requested to receive notice of actions taken by the City relative to the General Plan.
In addition, the meeting agenda was posted at our designated posting locations in
the City.   As of the writing of this report,  no comments were received in favor or

against the proposed project.

At their regular meeting of November 20,  2019,  the Planning Commission voted
unanimously ( 4- 0), one absent, to recommend the City Council adopt Municipal Code
Text Amendment TA- 19- 141 to amend the Zoning Ordinance, Title 17 of the Municipal
Code, to implement the Housing Element of the General Plan

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Planning Commission and staff recommend that the City Council consider all
information provided and submitted, take and consider all public testimony and, if

determined to be appropriate, take the following actions:

Introduce an Ordinance adopting amendments to Title 17 of the Lathrop
Municipal Code to implement the 2019 Housing Element programs related to
accommodating a variety of housing types and removing constraints to the
development of housing.

578



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT AMENDMENT TA- 19- 141

Attachments:

1.       Ordinance to Adopt the Municipal Code Text Amendment TA- 19- 141

2.       Section 17. 36. 020 - Residential Multifamily Permitted Uses Mark Up

3.       Section 17. 62. 032 - Central Lathrop Permitted Uses Mark Up

4.       Table 17. 61. 1 - Stewart Tract/ River Islands Permitted Uses Table Mark

Up

5.       Section 17. 68. 010 - Manufactured Housing Mark Up

6.       Section 17. 36. 050. D -  Residential Multifamily Density Mark Up

7.       Planning Commission Resolution 19- 12

579



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT AMENDMENT TA- 19- 141

APPROVALS: 

Zs-1 q
Ma Me sn r Date

Commun ty evelopment Director

Z -  ' 9
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z• 3 •19
Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

580



ORDINANCE NO. 19-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ADOPTING

MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT AMENDMENT TA- 19- 141 TO AMEND THE ZONING

ORDINANCE, TITLE 17 OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE, TO IMPLEMENT

THE HOUSING ELEMENT OF THE GENERAL PLAN

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public
meeting on November 20,  2019,  at which they adopted PC Resolution No.  19- 12

recommending the City Council adopt Municipal Code Text Amendment TA- 19- 141
pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public hearing
at a regular meeting on December 9, 2019 to review and consider Municipal Code

Text Amendment TA- 19- 141; and

WHEREAS, the proposed text amendment is Citywide and affects all applicable

properties in the City; and

WHEREAS,  Chapter 17. 124 of the Lathrop Municipal Code mandates the
transmittal of a recommendation to the City Council by resolution; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed text amendment is exempt according to the
California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Article 5 § 15061 by the " General Rule"

that CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a direct physical
change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in
the environment; arid

WHEREAS,  the City Council finds that the proposed text amendment is
consistent with applicable provisions of the Lathrop General Plan and will implement
the City' s Housing Element goals by clarifying development standards and removing
constraints to housing development as described in the Staff Report; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral
testimony presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings
and pursuant to its independent review and consideration, does hereby recommend
the City Council adopt Municipal Code Text Amendment No. TA- 19- 141 as shown in
Attachments  2", " 3", 4", " 5" and " 6", incorporated by reference herein.

Ordinance No. 19-
581



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DOES

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.   The Lathrop Municipal Code is hereby amended as shown in Municipal
Code Text Amendment No. TA- 19- 141 as shown in Attachments ' 2"  ' 3"  " 4"  " 5"

and " 6", incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2.     This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given

effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as
to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3.     Severabilitv.     If any section,   subsequent subdivision,   paragraph,

sentence,  clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be

unconstitutional, or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not afFect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,

clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or invalidity
of any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.

Section 4.     EfFective Date.  This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and

after the date of its passage.

Section 5.     Publication.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this ordinance
and shall publish a summary thereof and post a certified copy of the full ordinance in
the office of the City Clerk at least five days prior to the adoption of the proposed
ordinance;  and within fifteen days after adoption,  the City Clerk shall publish a
summary of the ordinance with the names of the members of the City of Lathrop City
Council voting for and against the same.

Ordinance No. 19-
582



THIS ORDINAIVCE was regularly introduced at a meeting of the City Council of the
City of Lathrop on the 9t" 

day of December, 2019 and was PASSED AND ADOPTED at
a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on this th day of

2020, by the following vote:

AYES:

IVOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO ORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 19-
583



I 0o z BQ

Multifamily Residential District— Chapter 17. 36. 020 Mark- Up T!

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by r*r;vo*, r^„ n,

Chapter 17. 36 Rli I NIULTIFAMIL' RESIDEIiTTIAL DISTI ICT

17. 36. 20 Permitted uses

A.   One- family dwellings limited to:

1.     a sinale family dwelling replacin an existing single family dwellin on a one
far one basis,

2.     a sin le fanulv dwellin on an existin lot of 8, 000 sc uare feet or less, or

3.     sin le family dwellings that are part of a housindgevelopment with the majority
of units affordable to extremely low, very low, andlor low income households;

Multifamily dwellin

B.    A small family day care home, a substance abuse recovery facility or a small
residential care home, as provided in Section 17. 32. 020;

C.   Fenced or enclosed swimming pools for either individual, famiIy or communal use
on an exclusive noncommercial basis; provided, that no swimming pool shall be located
within a utility easement or a front yard;

D.   Incidental and accessory structures and uses located on the same site with a permitted
use;

E.    Other uses which are added to this list according to the procedure in Section
17. 16. 020;

F.    The keeping of animals in accordance with the standards of Chapter 17. 28;

G.   Emergency shelters, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17. 74. ( Ord. 16-

365 § 1; Ord. 92- 96; Ord. 92- 73)

Page l of 1

584



Central Lathrop Zoning District ATT C H E N T 
B      

HR- CL: High Density Residential-- Chapter 17. 62.032 Mark-Up

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by *
r; vA*, r^,,,,

Chapter 17. 62 CElo1TRAL LATI3ROP ZONING DISTRICTS

17. 62. 032 Permitted Uses

A.      One- family dwellings limited to:

1.     a sinQle family dwellin replacin an existing single family dwellin on a one for
one basis,

2.     a sin le familv dwelling on an existing lot of 8, 000 square feet or less, or

3.     single famil dwellings that are part of a housin development with the majorit of

units affordable to extremely low, verv low, and/ or low income households;

Multifamily dwelling

B.    Two or more single-family dwellings proposed for the same site limited to:
1.    one of the single familv dwellings is replacing an existing sin le family dwelling on

a one for one basis,

2.    the dwellings are on an existin lot of 8, 000 square feet or less, or

3.    single family dwellin s that are part of a housing development with the maiority of
units affordable to extremely low, very low, and/ or low income households;

C.    Multi-family dwellings, flats, townhouses or apartments;

D.   Duplexes;

E.    Artist' s studios; live/ work units;

F.    A small family day care home, a substance abuse recovery facility, or a small residential
care home as provided in Section 17. 32. 020 of the Lathrop Zoning Code;

G.   Fenced or enclosed swimming pools for either individual, family or communal use or an
exclusive non-commercial basis, provided that no swimming pool shall be located within a utility
easement or a front yard;

H.   Incidental and accessory structures and uses on the same site as a permitted use;

I.     Neighborhood parks;

J.     Open space;

K.   Public or private playgrounds;

L.    The keeping of animals in accordance with Chapter 17. 28 of the Lathrop Zoning Code;

Page 1 of 2

585



Central Lathrop Zoning District
HR- CL: High Density Residential= Chapter 17. 62.032 Mark-Up

M.   Other uses added to this list according to the procedures in Section 17. 16. 020 of the
Lathrop Zoning Code. ( Ord. 16- 365 § l; Ord. 04- 245 § 3)

Page 2 of 2

586



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use
T`,

g       

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by *•' To*, r^„ n,

Chapter 17. 61 RIVER ISLANDS ZOle1ING DISTRICTS

ABLE 17. 611       . 

Stewart Tract—Itiver Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Uses 1

Land Use RL- RI RM- RI RH-
RIZ MU CR CN RCO

AGRICULTURAL USES

Raising of field crops C P

including cotton),
vegetables, horticultural

specialties and rangelands

Raising of fruit and nut trees,   P P

vines and cotton on land for

which Swainson' s Hawk

Mitigation has been paid

Raising of fruit and nut trees,
vines and cotton on land for

which Swainson' s Hawk

Mitigation has not been paid

Raising of livestock C

Breeding, hatching, raising C

and fattening of fowl and/ or
rabbits

Barns, stables and other farm-  C

type out- buildings

Coops for fowl; bee- keeping C

structures

RESIDENTIAL USES

SF detached P P P P

SF attached P P I'    P

MF attached P P P P C

Mobile homes PA C

Second housing units PA PA PA

Apartments/ hotels C P

Small family day care home P P P P

eight or fewer children)

587



17. 61. 1 Table: Sfewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

Large family day care home P P P P

nine to fourteen children)

Private garages and carports PA PA PA PA

when not on the same lot as a

residential unit

Recreation rooms and hobby C C C C

rooms or shops when not on

the same lot as a residential

unit

Residential care home, small P P P P

Residential care home, large C

Storehouses; garden PA PA PA PA

structures; greenhouses

Fenced or enclosed private PA PA PA PA

swimmirig pools or tennis

courts

Home occupations PA PA PA PA

Model home display areas PA PA PA PA

COMMERCIAL USES

Adult entertainment C

Apparel P C P

Arcades C C

Art and antiques P

Arts and crafts P C

schools/ colleges

Art galleries C C C P C P

Art supply P P

Auction rooms P

Auto and motorcycle C C

dealerships

Automobile and tractor repair C C

and maintenance

Automobile supply ( no repair C P

or installation

Bakery goods P P P

Banks and other lending P P P

institutions

Banquet facility P C

Bars, cocktail lounges,     C

nightclubs

Barbershops and beauty shops P P

Bicycle shops P P

Billiard and pool halls P

Blacksmiths P

Blueprint and photocopy P C

Boat sales and services P C

588



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

Book binderies P

Books and rental libraries P P

Bowling alleys C PA

Business, professional and P C

trade schools and colleges

Cafeterias P P

Camera equipment and . P P

supplies

Candy and confectionaries P P

Card rooms C

Carpenters/ cabinetmakers P

Carpeting and flooring P

Catering P C

Christmas tree or pumpkin PA P

sales

Clothing cleaning( Pick-up P P P

and delivery, dry cleaning
within enclosed machines;

self serve laundromats

Clothing and costume rental P

Convenience stores ( max. P C P

5, 000 square feet)

Commercial small business P P P

offices ( not more than 8, 000

square feet)

Copying and mailing P P P

businesses

Dairy products P P

Dance halls C

Day spas P

Department stores P C

Drapery P P

Drive- through restaurants, C C C

pharmacies and dry cleaning
Drugs P P

Dry goods P P

Electrical small appliance P P

repair

Employment agencies P P P

Exterminators C

Factory outlets C

Farmers' markets C

Florists P P P

Food market; delicatessen P P P

Furniture stores P

Garden supplies and nurseries P P

589



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

provided that all equipment,

supplies, merchandise other

than plants and mulch shall be

kept within completely

enclosed building)

Gifts, novelties and souvenirs P P

Glass installation P

Gunsmith P  .

Gymnasium and health C C

studios

Hardware P P

Health foods P P

Hobby supplies P P

Home furnishings P

Home improvement supplies P

Hospitals and sanitariums C C

Hotels and motels PA PA

Household repair shops P P

Ice dispensers ( outdoor)   P P

Inns ( temporary PA PA

accommodations with

accessory recreation and

commercial facilities

Interior decoration P

Jewelry P

Kennels              C P

Kiosks C C

Leather goods and luggage P

Liquor( packaged)  C

Locksmith P P

Massage( with city license)       C

Medical and orthopedic P

supplies

Meeting halls P

Messenger offices P

Millinery P

Musical instruments &    P

supplies

Music and dance studios P

News and magazine stands P P P

Office and business P P

machines stores

Outdoor cafes P P P

Paint and wallpaper P

Pet and bird stores and pet P

grooming( but not pet

590



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

boarding)
Pawn shops C

Photographic supplies P

Photographic studios P P

Picture framing P

Posddelivery offices P P P

Pressing of wearing apparel P P P

Printing.    P P P

Private clubs and lounges PA PA

Publishers P

Public and private non-profit P

charitable institutions

Radio, television and film P P

broadcasting/ studios
Radio, television and audio-      P

visual equipment sales and

repair

Reading rooms P

Retail stores larger than C C

75, 000 square feet

Restaurants, including cafes P P P

Scientific instrument stores P

Secretarial services P P

Self-service laundry and dry P P

cleaning

Self- service carwash C

Service station, excluding C C C

automotive repair services

not included in the definition

of" service station",

provided that all operations,

except the sale of gasoline,

shall be conducted in a

building enclosed ori three
sides

Self storage facilities C C

Shoes P P

Shoe repair P P

Skating rinks P

Small animal hospitals and C P C

clinics; veterinarian offices  '

Soda fountains P P P

Sporting goods ( excluding P

incidental boat sales, resales

and camper sales)

Sports arenas within C C

591



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

buildings

Stamps and coins P

Stationers P P P

Storage buildings incidental PA PA PA

to a permitted use

Supermarkets P

Tailoring and dressmaking P P

Taxidermists P

Theaters and auditoriums, PA C

including movie theaters and     .

performing arts

Thrift shops; second hand C

stores

Theme parks C C

Tobacconists P

Tool or cutlery sharpening P P

or grinding

Toys P

Transit stations C C C

Travel agents P P P

Upholsterers P

Variety stores P P

Vending machines within P P P

enclosed areas

Video stores ( subject to the P P

limitation of Chapter 5. 08)       '

Warehouse style retail C

Wedding chapels P

OFFICE USES

Professional offices,   C C P P P

business and administrative

offices

Research & development P P

offices

Financial services P P

INDUSTRIAL USES

Warehousing X

Light industrial and related X

uses

Heavy industrial and related X

uses

MEDICAL USES

Elderly care facilities;     C C C

assisted living facilities;
nursing homes and rest
homes except as provided

592



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

under Section 1734. 040

Medical clinic C C .   P

Medical or dental office P P   P

building
Medical and orthopedic P

appliance stores

CIVIGCOMMUNITY

USES

Bus depots; transit stations C C C

with storage elsewhere)

City offices P PA PA

Administrative centers and P P

courts

Community center C C C P P

Convention centers C C

Fire station C C C C C C

Libraries C C C C C

Mortuaries, columbariums C C

and crematoriums

Police station C C C C C

Post office P C

Religious facilities and C C C C C PA

schools

Private schools and other C C C C C PA

educational facilities

Public schools and other C C C C C PA

educational facilities

Public and private charitable C C C C C

institutions

Substance abuse recovery P P P

facility for six or fewer
persons

State authorized, certified or P( sm) C P ( sm)      P( sm)

licensed family care facility, lg) C ( lg)       C ( lg)
foster home or group home

serving six or fewer persons
PARKS & OPEN SPACE

Boat dock- individual P P P P P P

Boat dock- group C C C C C C

Boat rental facility C C C C C P

Gas dock and associated C C

gasoline storage facilities

Pony rings, race tracks,       C

riding stables

Public and private parks and P P P P P PA C

playgrounds and such

593



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

buildings, structures and

facilities appropriate to such

uses

Public or private golf PA PA PA PA

courses       .

Private recreation facilities,  C C C C C

other

Wildlife Preserves C PA

OTHER

Incidental and accessory PA PA PA PA PA PA

structures and uses located

on the same site as permitted

use

Expansion or remodeling of C C C C C C C

an existing nonconforming

use of a structure or land, up
to 50% of the value of the

structure, or reestablishment

of a nonconforming use.

which has been damaged,

except nonconforming signs

and outdoor advertising

structures, nonconforming

uses occupying a structure

with assessed valuation of

less than two hundred

dollars ($ 200) and

nonconforming fences, walls
and hedges

Expansion, remodeling or C C C C C C C

additions to a conditional

use not considered an

incidental or accessory use
as defined in Section

17. 04. 080

Incidental and accessory C C C C C C C

structures and uses located

on the same site as a

conditional use

Gas/ electrical transmission P PA PA PA 1' A PA C

lines subject to provisions of

Section 17. 108. 080;

electrical substations; gas

regulator stations

Communications equipment P PA PA PA PA PA C

buildings

Enclosed temporary PA PA PA PA PA PA

materials storage yards

594



17. 61. 1 Table: Stewart Tract/ River

Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Use

Flood control, water P P P P P P P

pumping stations/ reservoirs;

elevated pressure tanks;

irrigation ditches/ canals; 

settling and water

conservation recharge

basins; drainage ponds;

streets & roads as necessary

for access to permitted uses

Parking lots and garages C  -  P P C

improved in conformity with
the standards prescribed for

off-street parking facilities
Underground storage tanks P

for petroleum or oils

Other uses added to this list PA Pt  PA PA PA PA PA

by the Planning Commission
according to the procedure

in Section 17. 16. 020

1 P= Permitted uses; PA= Permitted but administrative approval required; C = Conditional uses,

administrative approval required; X= Prohibited use

2 Single family detached dwellin s are limited to:
a.    a single family home replacin an existing sin le family unit on a one for one basis,
b.   a single family home on an existin lot of 8, 000 sc uare feet or less, or
c.    single family dwellin s that are part of a housin d evelopment with the majority of

units affordable to extremely low, very low, and/ or low income households.
None of the above applies when the box is blank.

Ord. 16- 365 § 1)

595



Manufactured Housing— Chapter 17. 68 Mark- Up TT 4C H f E V T 
u     s°

New text is shown_by underline; deleted text is shown by * r; vo*, r^„,

Chapter 17. 68 MANUFACTURED HOUSING

17. 68. 010

Applecation.

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all single- family manufactured housina

and mobilehomes on permanent foundations, which shall be allowed subiect to the same permit

rec uirements and standards as a sin le familv home in all districts that allow single family homes
and shall also be subject to the standards identified in Section 17. 68.0201isted•-„;**' „ n"

Page 1 of 1

596



Multifamily Residential District— Chapter 17. 36. 050 Mark- Up TT 4CH M ENT        

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by UQ*' r^'

Ghapter 17. 36. 1VIULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

17. 36. 50 Propert_y development standards.    

A.   Fences, walls and hedges shall conform to the provisions of Chapter 17. 92.

B.    Site Area. The minimum Site area in the.RM- 3, RM-2 and RM-1 . 5 districts shall be six

thousand( 6, 000) square feet. The minimum site area in the RM- MH8 district shall be five acres ( see

Section 17. 72. 030)     

C.    Site Area Per Dwelling Unit. The minimum site area shall be as follows:

District  .  Area per Unit

RM- MH8 3, 000 sq.. ft.
RM- 3 3, 000 sq. ft.
RM- 2 2, 000 sq. ft.
RM- 1. 5 1, 500 sq, ft.

D. " Density. The allowable density for the RM multifamily residential districts shall be as
identified below- .  _ '  '    per

the city' s general plan_
RM- MH8:     a minimum of one ( 1) and a maximum of eight( 8) units per acre

RM-3:     a minimum of.ei ht ( 8) and a maYimum of fifteen.( 15) units per acre

RM-2:     a minimum of sixteen ( 16) and a maximum of twenty- five ( 25) units per acre
RM- 1. 5:  a minimum of sixteen ( 16) and a maximum of twenty-five (25) units er acre

E.   Frontage, Width arid Depth of Site.  .

1.    Each site, other than for a mobilehome in a mobilehome park, shall not have less than fifty
50) feet of frontage on a public street, except that those sites which front on a cul- de- sac or loop- out

street may have a frontage of not less than forty( 40) feet, provided the width of the site, as measured
along the front yard setback line, is at least sixty (60) feet.

2.    The minimum width of each site, other than for a mobilehome park, shall be fifty (50) feet.

3.    The minimum depth of each site, other than for a mobilehome in a mobilehome park, shall be

eighty

80) feet.

Page 1 of 1

597



ATT 4CHf EIVT
a,    

7   

CI Y OF LAT IROP

PY Al>11\ TING C011 MISSION RESOLTJTION NO. 19- 12

A RESOLUTION OF HE PI,ANNING COMIVIISSION OF' T IE CITY O I.ATHROP

RECOMMENDING CITY COLINCIL ADOPT MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT

AMENDIV N'I' TA- 19- 141 TO AMENI) THE ZONING ORDII ANCE, TITLE 17 OF

T I I,ATI3120P 1VIUNICIPAL CODE, TO INIPLEMENT THE IOUSING ELEMEIVT

OF TI E GE1viERAL PLAN

WI EREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public meeting
to consider a text amendment pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the proposed text amendment is Citywide and affects all applicable properties

in the City; and

WI EItEAS, Chapter 17. 124 of the Lathrop Municipal Code mandates the transmittal of a
recommendation to the City Council by resolution; and

WIIEREAS,  the proposed text amendment is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Article 5 § 15061 by the " General Rule" that CEQA applies

only to projects th t have a potential for causing a direct physical chan e in the environment, or a
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and

WgIE12EAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed text amendment is consistent
with applicable provisions of the Lathrop General Plan and will implement the City' s Housing
Element goals by clarifying development standards and removin  constraints to housin

development as described in the Staff Report; and

W IEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on November 20,
2019 regardin the Housing Element Update, including the changes requested by HCD, at which
time all interested persons were given an opportunity to be heard; and

W IER AS, proper notice of this p iblic hearing was given in all respects as required by
law; and

W IEIZEAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date; and

NOW, T IEI F012E, BE IT RESOI VEI) that the Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to its
independent review and consideration, does hereby recommend the City Council adopt Municipal
Code Text Amendment No. TA- 19- 141 as shown in Exhibit 1, incorporated by reference herein.

PC Resolution No. 19- 12

598



PASSED 2iND ADOP ED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at this regular
meeting on the 20th day of November, 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:   Gatto, Ralmilay, Dresser, Ishihara

NOES:   Rhodes

ABSTAIN:     None

ABSENT:      None

Bennie Gatto, Chair

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FO

ark ssner,   ecretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

PC Resolution No. 19- 12

599



CITY OF LATHROP

PLAI NING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 1 10. 19- 12

EXHIBIT 1

Municipal Code Text Amendment TA- 19- 141 will amend Municipal Code Title 17, Zoning
Ordinance, as shown below.

L Section 17.36.020,-PczragYaphA is revise l as follows:

A.       One- family dwellings limited to:
1.    a sin le family dwelling replacing an existinQ single familv dwelling on a one for

one basis,

2.    a single family dwellin on an existin lot of 8, 000 square feet or less, or
3.    sinale family dwellings that are part of a housindgevelopment with the majority of

units affordable to extremelv low, ver_y low, and/ or low income households;

2. Sectioyi 17.62. 032, Paragraphs A and B, is revise l czs follotivs:

A.       One- family dwellings limited to:
l.    a single family dwellinQ replacing an existina sinale family unit on a one for one

basis,

2.    a sinale family dwellina on an existinQ lot of 8, 000 sc uare feet or less, or
3.    sinale family dwellings that are part of a housing development with the majority of

units affordable to extremely low, very low, and/ or low income households;

B.       Two or more sin le- family dwellings proposed for the same site limited to:
l.    one of the single family dwellinas is replacing an existinQ sin le family dwelling on

a one for one basis,

2.    the dwellinas are on an existinQ lot of 8, 000 square feet or less, or

3.    sinale family dwellin s that are part of a housinQ development with the majority of

units affordable to extremely low, very low, and/ or low income households;

3. The hea ling rotiv of Tczble 17.61. 1 is evised to c d l cc footnote to the RH-RI
ccctegory as showfz below.

TABLE 17. 61. 1

Stewart Tract— River Islands Zoning Districts and Permitted Uses 1

Land Use RL-RI RM-RI RH-RI'=     MU CR CN RCO

4. The following footnote is addecl to Table 17.61. 1:

Single family detached dwellings are limited to:

Page 1 of 2

600



CITY OF LATHROP

PI,AI iNII TG COMMISSION 12ESOI, UTION NO. 19- 12

EX II IT 1

a. a sin le familv home replacin an existin sin le family unit on a one for one
basis,

b. a sin le familv home on an existin lot of 8, 000 sc uare feet or less, or

c. sinqle familv dwellings that are part of a housing develo ment with the majoritY
of units affordable to extremelv low, verv low, and/ or low income households.

S. Section 17.68.010 is revised as follows:  

17. 68. 010 Application.

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all single- family'
T alanufactured housina

and mobilehomes on permanent foundations, which shall be allowed subject to the same permit

rec uirements and standards as a sinale family home in all districts that allow sinale family homes
and shall also be subject to the standards identified in Section 17. 68. 020         . 

th: n ..      1;• r•;.. r rl,., r ,.  .,,; r .- ; lo„ r;., l      „
b   .. . 

6. Section 17.36.050, Paragraph D, is revised as follotivs:

D.  " Density. The allowable density for the RM multifamily residential districts shall be as
iclentified belowu u::..«.. b:,:, U 111UA11111. 11L1 :^ ,{` '«,";^-„;*

c r   ^+   r, 

per

the city' s general plan:
RiVI- NfH:     a minimum of one (]) and a maximum of ei ht () units per acre

RM- 3:     a minimum of eiaht ( 8) and a maximum oF fifteen ( 15) tinits per lcre

RM- 2:     a minimum of sixteen ( 16) ancl a maximurn of wenty- five ( 25 j units per acre
RM- 1. 5:  a minimum of sixteen ( 16) and a maximum of twenty- five (25) tulits per acre

Page 2 of 2

601



602



ITEM 5. 4

CITY MANAGERS REPORT
DECEMBER 9; 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIIVG

ITEM:     PUBLIC HEARINC     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING

PEDESTRIAN USE OF MOBILE ELECTRONIC DE\/ ICES
IN CROSSWALKS AND A RESOLUTIOfV APPROVTNG.
RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     City Council to Consider the Following:
1.. Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance
Amending the Lathrop Municipal Code by

Adding Chapter 8. 48 to Title 8 to Prohibit
Pedestrian Use of Mobile Electronic Devices in
Crosswalks; and

3.  Resolution Approving Buclget Amendment for
Purchase of Signs Prohibiting/ Discouraging
Pedestrian Use of .Mobile Electronic Devices in
Crosswalks.  

SUMMARY

Although State Iaw prohibits the use of mobile . electronic devices while driving, no

such law exists to prohibit pedestrian use of mobi.l.e electronic devices while using
crosswalks. At its last meeting, City Council approved a refierral by Councilmember
Torres- O' Callaghan to consider this item. This staff report provides two options:

Option 1: City Council consider, adoption of an Ordinance to prohibit pedestrian use
of mobile electronic devices in crosswalks with enforcement provision$:

Option 2:  City Council direct the City Manager to have staff install signage at
crosswalks to warn pedestrians against use of mobile electronic devices in crosswalks.

BACKGROUND

At the City Council meeting of October 14, 2019 Council voted to approve a referr.al
by Councilmember Torres=0' Callaghan to consider: prohibiting pedestrian use of .    
mobile electronic devices in crosswalks. As a result of City Council' s approval, the

City Attorney requested additional information from Councilmember Torres-

O' Callaghan.    Councilmember . Torres- O' Callaghan provided two examples of

Ordinances adopted by..other jurisdictions ( Montclair, CA and Honolulu, HI) to use as

a starting point in drafting an Ordinance for consideration by the City of Lathrop.

603



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING-

OPTIONS TO PROHIBIT PEDESTRIAN USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES IN

CROSSWALKS

cost of the signs is approximately $ 50 per sign resulting in the need of 160
signs for the 20 signalized crossings.   The total cost of the signs is

approximately $ 8, 000.

Unsignalized Crossings Near Schools:  A sign or decal could also be

installed at all unsignalized crosswalks within 100 yards of any school within

the City of Lathrop. The cost of each sign, hardware and post is approximately
140 each resulting in the need of 154 units for the 24 unsignalized crossings

within 100 yards of each school in the City.  The total cost of the signs,

hardware and posts is estimated at approximately $ 21, 560.

Option 2:  Instead of adopting an Ordinance with enforcement provisibns,  City

Council could choose to simply direct the City Manager to have staff install decals
and/ or signs at or near City crosswalks to discourage the use of rriobile devices by
pedestrians wfien using the City' s crosswalks.  This . approach.  would avoid the

enforcement concerns that are associated with issuing fines pursuant to an

Ordinance. The purposed Resolution allows Council to authorize a budget amendment

for the purchase of signs to prohibitjdiscourage pedestrian use of mobile electronic :
devices in corsswalks.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council consider:

Option 1: The purposed Ordinance amending the Lathrop Municipal Code to add
prohibition of pedestrian use of mobile electronic devices in crosswalks and a

budget allocation for up. to $ 30, 000 to cover the cost of signage. :

Option 2: Direction to the City Manager to install signage to discourage the use
of mobile dev.ices by pedestrians when using crosswalks and a budget allocation
for up to $ 30, 000 to cover the cost of signage.

FISCAL IMPA CT:

Adoption of either option and the purposed Resolution would have a fiscal impact on       .
the City' s General Fund Streets Reserve Fund of approximately $ 30, 000 for signage.

In order to have adequate funds for this project, staff request City Council approve a
budget amendment transferring $ 30, 000 from the General Streets Repair Reserve

Fund  ( 1010)  to the Local Streets Othe"r Maintenance  &  Reserve Fund  ( 2080)  as

follows:

604



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 6

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

OPTIONS TO PROHIBIT PEDESTRIAN USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES IN
CROSSWALKS

APPROVALS:

1T y 2 -3  1 1

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

a   l'
Cari Jam s Date

Director f nance and Administrative

Services

1 Z-- 3  --  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

2 - ¢ /%

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

605



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ADDIIVG

CHAPTER 8. 4 (` PEDESTRIAN USE OF MOBILE ELECTRONIC DEVICES") TO

TITLE 8 (' HEALTH AND SAFETY") TO THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE

WHEREAS, Section VII of Article XI of the California Constitution provides that

a City may make and enforce within its limits all local, police, sanitary, and other

ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws; and

WHEREAS, a number of national university and safety studies, including a

2012 study conducted by the Harborveiw Injury Prevention and Research Center,
University of Washington,  reveal that approximately one in three pedestrians use
their mobile electroriic devices or teXt messages wfiile crossing busy streets; and

WHEREAS,   according to the Safe Kids Worldwide advocacy group

approximately half of students age 15 to 19 report they use a mobile device when
walking to and from school; and

WHEREAS, a study by the journal, Injury Prevention, has determined that an
increase in the use of headphones by pedestrians in environments with moving
vehicles has led to a dramatic rise in the number of injuries, with teenagers, young

adults and men the most at risk and that the wearing of headphones may have played
a direct part in the injury accidents, as the users could not hear or were distracted
from warning that they were in danger; and

WHEREAS,  pedestrians now account for 15.  percent of all vehicle- related

fatalities;

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHRO,P DO@S

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.  Add Chapter 8. 48 (" Pedestrian Use of Mobile Electronic Devices") to Title

8 (' Health and Safety") of the Lathrop Municipal Code as follows:

8. 48.010 Definitions.

As used in this section, the following definitions shall apply. For purposes of

this chapter, these definitions shall supersede any other definitions of the same terms
elsewhere in this Code.

Emergency Responders include, but not limited to, public safety officers of
either municipal or county police department or fire department, emergency medical
technicians,   paramedics,   private ambulance .  service responders,   emergency

management workers, and federal and state law enforcement and fire service officers
on duty and responding to an emergency service request.

606



Mobile Electronic Devices means any handheld, head- or body- mounted, or
portable electronic equipment capable of providing wireless and/ or data

communication between two or more persons or a device for providing amusement,

including but not limited to a cellular phone, smart phone, text messaging device,
paging device, personal digital assistant, laptop computer, video game, video/ audio
player, digital photographic device, or any other similar electronic device.

Pedestrian means a person who is afoot or who is using and of the following:
1) a means of conveyance propelled by human power other than a bicycle: or ( 2)

an electronic personal mobility device.

Personal Audio Equipment means any device placed in,  ori or around a

person' s ear capable of providing an audible sound,  including but not limited to
headphones or ear buds.

Viewing means looking : in the direction . of the screen of a mobile electronic
device.

8. 48.020 Prohibition against Pedestrian Use of Mobile. Electronic Devices.

A.  No pedestrian shall cross a street or highway while engaged in a phone call,

viewing a mobile device or with both ears covered or obstructed by personal
audio equipment.      

B.  Upon presenting evidence, it is an affirmative defense to any citation for a
violation of subsection ( A) that the cited person was engaged in, or making a

911" emergency communication with a mobile electronic device.

C.  Emergency responders viewing a mobile electronic device, or whose ears are
covered or obstructed by audio equipment, while in the performance and scope
of his or her official duties are exempt from subsection ( A).

D.  Persons, whose disability necessitates the use of a mobile electronic device or
personal audio equipment to safely cross a street or highway, are exempt from
subsection ( A).

8. 48.030 Violation.

A.  A violation of this chapter shall constitute an infraction.  Conviction of an

infraction under this chapter shall be punishable only by fine as follows: for the.
first conviction, the fine shall not exceed the amount of fifty dollars ($ 50. 00),

for the second and any subsequent conviction within a twelve  ( 12)  month

period, the fine shall not exceed the amount of one. hundred_ dollars ($ 100. 00).

Section 2.   Severabilitv.   If any section,   subsequent subdivision,   paragraph,

sentence,  clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be

607



unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of

the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,

clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or invalidity

of any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.

Section 3. - Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and
after the date of its passage.

Section 4. - Publication.  Within fifteen days of the adoption of`this Ordinance, the

City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Ordinance, to be published in full accordance with
Section 36933 of the Government Code.

608



The foregoing Ordinance was introduced the 9th day of December and adopted
this day of by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  d4PPROVED AS TO FORMe

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

609



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
APPROVING A BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE- PURCHASE OF SIGNS

PROHIBITING/ DISCOURAGING PEDESTRIAN USE OF MOBILE ELECTRONIC
DEVICES WITHIN CROSSWALKS

WHEREAS, at the City Council_meeting of October 14; 2019 Council voted to
approve a referral by Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan to consider prohibiting
pedestrian use of mobile electronic devices in crosswalks; and

WHEREAS,  City Council was presented with two possible options:  1.)  the

adoption of an Ordinance to amend the Lathrop Municipal Code to prohibit pedestrian
use of mobile electronic devices in crosswalks with enforcement provisions and

signage or 2.) direct the City Manager to install signage to d'iscourage pedestrian use
of mobile electronic devices in crosswalks; and

WHEREAS, both options include provisions which describe the installation of
signage at signalized and unsignalized crosswalks within the City; and

WHEREAS, the total projected expense to install signs at signalized crosswalks

and unsignalized crosswalks within 100 yards of any school within the City is
29, 560; and

WHEREAS,   staff . request City Council approve a budget amendment

transferring $ 30, 000 from the General Streets Repair Reserve Fund ( 1010) to the

Local Streets Other Maintenance & Reserve Fund ( 2080) as follows:

Decrease Reserve

1010- 251- 03- 00  .   30, 000

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 30, 000

Increase Transfer In

2080- 9900- 393- 0000 30, 000

Increase Expenditures

2080- 5010- 430- 2600 30, 000

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of

Lathrop does hereby approve signs to be installed at all signalized and unsignalized
crosswalks to discourage/ prohibit pedestrian use of mobile electronic devices within

crosswalks; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City CounciJ of
the City of Lathrop does hereby approve a budget amendment transferring $ 30, 000

from the from the General Streets Repair Reserve Fund ( 1010) to the Local Streets

Other Maintenance.& Reserve Fund ( 2080) to fund the purchase of signage.

Resolution No. Page 1 of 3

610



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9th day of December
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. Page 3 of 3

611



ATTACHMENT    C °

J     A v'. '       
f

w,       ,

4 -;--  

a. 

t      ,
j

4 
r.   

F E•,      

C f
y 

ir '  e

ou" a     ;. 

t       
1N ., a          

1
L.  ," -•    

F
1

i
R  ..  4.     w

1y,=` 

3y  ,     *'  ,       f  .r  ,
a "; -       

t  .    .
ir...   _:.   

n,  '   ,       a,  c

w    _ wq wq: _"    

t ,       3  `     
S     '       I '
t  ^'         c r

r , t'  . .+"}„ . 
s. 

1    t'       

Yy,    "+  
r

n

p      c

s   , v,  k.      ...       i,   

w ..-  

t

a     :  ,        

a,:.     ..      ,.      
I     .       :_     ..  , 1

w   -
0       '           +'           ::         ''

y,   

rs
s. Y      .,,

r...       .}       r    

r
r

M       
3

f
j  

R

r,,    ' 

E 

a   .   #     

E r

n

r
r

1
f.

y'``.       
ft r Y     '     

L

l .   4`      

y,  '"
x              

0

1r..  ; -<.   '      ..__
F

w.

r

tl -  ...

13 i t.
irii.`

S'.,.

612



ITEM 5. 5

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: REVIEW AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON PARK

IMPROVEMENTS FOR SANGALANG PARK

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Discuss and Consider the Adoption

of a Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP
PK 20- 18 for Improvements at Sangalang Park
and Authorizing Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

Staff is requesting City Council review the following park improvement projects for
Sangalang Park and consider the creation of CIP PK 20- 18 Sangalang Park

Improvements.

Project 1: Replacement of the playstructure.

Project 2: Installation of restroom adjacent to the playstructure.

Project 3: Installation of a six element waterplay splashpad.

The furiding for these proposed improvements at Sangalang Park would be paid from
Measure C funds, with the approval of the Measure C oversight committee.   Staff

requests Council review proposed improvements, provide direction on which projects

to include, and approve a budget amendment of $ 20, 000 from Measure C funds for

the creation of construction drawings for these improvements.      Completed

construction drawings will allow staff to issue a request for bids for the project and
return to Council for approval of a construction contract for the selected

improvements at a future meeting.

BACKG ROUN D:

Sangalang Park is an approximately 10 acre parksite within the Stonebridge

development of Lathrop,  located along the north boundry of Joseph Widmer
Elementary School and along Opal Street,  Deerwood Avenue,  and Slate Street.

Based on the age of the existing playstructure and outreach from our local
community, stafF is asking Council to consider the following park improvements.

Project 1: Playstructure Replacement

Sangalang Park, which was constructed more than 20 years ago, includes the original
children' s play structure which is in need of replacement.  This improvement would

include the removal of the existing structure and replacement with an updated
playstruture to meet the developmental needs of the park users.  StafF estimates the

cost of this improvement to be approximately $ 250, 000.

Project 2: Installation of a Second Restroom

The park currently includes a public restroom on the south east corner of the park
with the children' s play area along the park' s northern edge ( Deerwood Avenue).    

613



CITY MARIAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
PARK IMPROVEMENTS FOR SANGALANG PARK

Recently,  a number of local families who regularly use the Sangalang Park have
contacted the department regarding the possibility of placing a restroom facility
closer to the playstructure and picnic areas within the park.   Currently, families with
multiple children utilizing these areas have to collect their children and walk across
the park to use the restroom.    A restroom closer to the picnic shelters and

playstructure would better meet the needs of the park users.   Staff estimates the

cost of a an additional restroom adjacent to the picnic areas and children' s

playstructure to be approximately $ 200, 000.

Project 3: Installation of a Six Element Waterplay Splashpad
Currently,  the City of Lathrop has two waterplay areas within the community.
Mossdale Community Park and Valverde Park has a smaller fountain feature.   This

project would consider the installation of an approximately 30' x 40' splashpad with
six features to be installed between the existing playground and the picnic shelter
along Deerwood Avenue. Staff estimates the cost to purchase the proposed splashpad
to be approximately $ 175, 000.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

As stated within this report, the children' s play structure at Sangalang Park is more
than 20 years old and needs to be replaced, a second restroom closer to the picnic

shelter and childrens play area would improve accessibility for the users of this
facility, and the installation of a splashpad waterplay area would provide an additional
water play experience for the residents of Lathrop.  Staff asks Council to review the

projects presented and provide direction as to which projects should be considered

as part of CIP PK 20- 18 Sangalang Park Improvements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff estimates the following approximate costs associated with each of the projects
presented within this report:

Playstructure removal and replacement 250, 000

Purchase and installation of restroom 200, 000

Purchase and installation of splashpad 175, 000

Project Design Services 20, 000

Estimated cost ( all projects) 645, 000

Project Contingency ( 10%)  64, 500

Total Estimated Cost 709, 500

Based on the direction of Council,  staff will move forward with the creation of
construction drawings for these improvements.   The completed drawing will allow
staff to issue a request for bids for this project and return to Council for approval of

a construction contract for the selected improvements at a future meeting.

i
614



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUIVCIL REGULAR MEETING

PARK IMPROVEMENTS FOR SANGALANG PARIC

Allocation of funds to CIP PfC 20- 18

Budget Amendment

Transfer Out

1060- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 Measure C)      20, 000

Transfer In

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 PK 20- 18 20, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 PK 20- 18 20, 000

ATT/ CH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PK 20- 18 and Authorizing Related
Budget Amendments.

615



CITY MANAGER' S I EPO1' P'    PAGE 4

DECEMBEIt 3, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETINC

PARIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR SANGALANG PARK

APPROVALS:

f l - l 6- Z(, 1

Zachary Jo Date

Director of Park nd Recreation

I I- ZS — 1

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

Cari Jarri s Date

Director of Finance and Administrative Services

Z?  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

j• 2•

Stephe     .   alvatore Date

City Manager

616



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING CREATION OF CIP PK 20- 18 AND A BUDGET AMENDMENT OF

20, 000 FROM THE MEASURE C FUNDS, WITH APPROVAL OF THE MEASURE

C OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE, FOR SELECTED IMPROVEMENTS AT SANGALANG
PARK. 

WHEREAS,   on December 9th 2019 .  Council reviewed and selected

improvement projects for Sangalang Park; and

WHEREAS,  staff requests City Council authorize a budget amendment of
20, 000 from the Measure C fund 1060,  with the approval of the Measure C

oversight committee, to the General CIP Fund 3010 to fund CIP PK 20- 18 to allow

for the creation of construction drawings for selected improvements at Sangalang
Park; and

WHEREAS,  the creation of these construction drawings will allow staff to

issue a request for bids for this project and return to Council for approval . of a

construction contract for selected improvements at a future meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves a budget amendment of $ 20, 000 from Measure C fund 1060, with

subject to subsequent review and approval by the Measure C oversight committee,
into the General CIP Fund to fund CIP PK 20- 18 for the creation of construction

drawings for selected improvements at Sangalang Park to allow staff to issue a       '
request for bids for this project and return to Council for approval of a construction

contract at a future meeting;  

Transfer Out

1060- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 Measure C)      20, 000

Transfer In

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 PK 20- 18 20, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 PK 20- 18 20, 000

617



ATfACFiMENT A

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 9th

day of December
2019 by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED p S TO FO     .

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

618



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 5. 6

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       FIVE- YEAR WATER AND SEWER RATE PLAN REVIEW

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider a Resolution Postponing the
Scheduled Rate Increase for both the Water and

Wastewater Funds for 2020

SUMMARY:

In January 2016, a water and wastewater ( sewer) rate study proposing a five- year
rate increase for years 2016 through 2020 was approved by Council.  Rate increases

took effect in March 2016 and were schedule to escalate automatically every January
starting in 2017 through 2020.   Staff reviews the performance of the Water and

Sewer Funds annually to assess the funds' fiscal health.

The City has followed the approved Water and Sewer Fund rate increase schedule for
the first three ( 3) years for Water and four ( 4) years for Sewer. The next scheduled

rate increase is programmed for January 2020.

The ability to keep rates low is at the forefront of every action that staff has control
over.  Over the last several years, staff has worked diligently to reduce expenses and
make informed policy decision for both the water and the sewer funds to keep rate
increases to a minimum.   The following are some cost saving policy decisions and
expense reductions that the City has implemented:

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act ( SGMA)  - Water Fund cost

savings emerged in the policy decisions surrounding the City' s ability to
negotiate its destiny in the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).
The City overlies two groundwater subbasins of the San Joaquin Valley Basin
designated by the Department of Water Resources ( DWR); the Tracy Subbasin,
and the Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin ( ESJS). The City successfully lobbied
for a Basin Boundary Modification Request to Align the Eastern San Joaquin
and Tracy Subbasins with the City' s Limit. This basin boundary modification
allowed the City of Lathrop to disassociate with the overdrawn ESJS and
allowed the City to avoid having to do' costly capital expenditures that would
have been required had the City still been a participating agency in the ESJS.

Water Meter Reads - The decision was made to start upgrading the meter
reading system from a labor- intensive manual process to the ability to
remotely read meters digitally. This has improved efficiencies and allowed
stafF to spend time more effectively and efficiently.  All new development,

will install the new remote read meters, and the City will begin replacing
older meters in the City beginning in 2020.

619



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

WATER AND SEWER RATE PLAN REVIEW

J

Economy of Scale - The Crossroads Wastewater Treatment Facility ( WWTF)
was nearing the end of its service life and stafF proposed/ council adopted the

Crossroads decommissioning project. This action permanently shut down the
Crossroads Wastewater Treatment Facility and sent its influent flow to the
adjacent, existing Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF). Combining
the two facilities into one has broadened and diversified the rate base for

those customers located in the Crossroads industrial area as well as those
businesses and residents located West of I- 5.

Surface Water Discharge Project - Another example of Sewer Fund savings

materializing over fiscally sound policy making has recently been approved at
the October 14, 2019 Council meeting. Through the creation of CIP WW 20- 17
Surface Water Discharge Project. This Project lays the ground work for the City
to construct the necessary infrastructure needed to obtain a National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit from the Central Valley Regional
Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) to allow discharge of tertiary treated
effluent from the Lathrop CTF to the San Joaquin River. The ability to dispose
of efFluerit from the LCTF to surface water is necessary to minimize future rate
increases and support growth as the City' s wastewater flows increase and land
becomes unavailable for the storage and disposal of recycled water.

Value engineered capital improvements paired with fiscally sound policy making
decisions has materialized in the ability to keep rates flat in both the Water and Sewer
Funds.  StafF recommends postponing the approved water and sewer rate increases
scheduled for January 2020.  A review will be conducted in the Fall of 2020 to evaluate

the Water and Sewer fund' s fiscal performance to determine if additional rate

increases are necessary.

BACKGROUND:

Regulations of Proposition 218, the ' Right to Vote on Taxes Act" require Municipalities

to increase utility rates through a specific set of guidelines. This includes preparing
rate studies,  providing notification to customers of the proposed rate increases,
allowing for protests,  holding a public hearing,  and having a majority council
approval. In February 2014, the City entered into a contract with Municipal Financial
Services ( MFS) to perform a water and sewer rate study for the next five- year period
2016- 2020).

In January 2016,  MFS prepared a water and sewer rate study,  proposing rate

increases for years 2016 through 2020. The rate study showed expenses increase in
both the water and sewer funds,  yet revenues continue to decrease due to

diminishing consumption based on mandated water conservation measures.  Council

adopted the rate increases for years 2016 through 2020 beginning in March 2016
and escalating every January thereafter.

620



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

WATER AND SEWER RATE PLAN REVIEW

Staff monitors the performance of the Water and Sewer Funds annually to assess the
funds' fiscal health. Due to the importance of utility rates and the sensitivity of the
impacts that increases may have on rate payers, staff is recommending the following
actions. The City has followed the approved Water and Sewer Fund rate increase
schedule for the first three ( 3) years for Water and four (4) years for Sewer. The next

scheduled rate increase is programmed for January 2020 as shown on the table
below.

PROP 218 APPROVED UTILITY RATES

East Lathrop Monthly Bill West of I- 5 Monthly Bill
Increase from Increase from

Previous Year Previous Year

YEAR Water Sewer Total Water Sewer Total

MARCH 2O16 5 3 112 5 6 106

JANUARY 2017 6 4 122 6 6 118

JANUARY 2018 6 4 132 6 7 131

JANUARY 2019 8 4 144 8 5 144

JANUARY 2020 8 4 156 8 3 155

COUNCIL APPROVED/ STAFF PROPOSED UTILITY RATES

East Lathrop fVlonthly Bill West of I- 5 Monthly Bill
Increase from Increase from

Previous Year Previous Year

YEAR Water Sewer Total Water Sewer Total

MARCH 2O16( APPROVED)    5 3 112 5 6 106

JANUARY 2017( APPROVED)  6 4 122 6 6 118

JANUARY 2018( APPROVED) 6  „ 4       ._$ 132   .
k    $

6     __     $ 7      _
y$

131., _

JANUARY 2019 ( APPROVED) 0    ;      $ 4      ;  $ 136 0   `  i    $ 5 136  ;

JANUARY 2020( PROPOSED)      __ $ 0    _ _   $ 0__.      $ 136   __ ._. $ 0__       _. $ 0 _ .__$ 136_ `;

During the 2019 annual review, staff determined that the Sewer Fund revenues were
trending at levels equal to the rate study' s projection. Sewer rates are based on a
flat rate rather than unit consumption and stafF will continue to monitor increased

development activity that contributes to a larger rate base for the Sewer Fund.
Therefore, staff is recommending to postpone the previously approved rate increase
of $4.

In contrast, the Watler Fund was outperforming the rate study' s projections mainly
due to increased development activity and the lifting of drought restrictions. The

study conducted in 2i015 took a conservative approach to projecting the City' s water
consumption since the region had strict drought conservation mandates. Since 2015,

drought conservation mandates have been lifted and water usage has returned to a

new normal. Normalization in water consumption equates to the Water Fund meeting
revenue requirements without the need for additional rate increases at this time.

i

I

I
621



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

WATER AND SEWER RATE PLAIV REVIEW

Close monitoring of fiscal, usage and policy trends for the Water Fund will be kept to
determine the need to implement additional rate increases in the future.

It is important to note that rates are directly impacted by short term and long term
outside influences, such as changes in Federal or State regulations and declining
revenues due to mandatory water conservation.   In the City' s case, both of these

factors directly impact the water and sewer enterprise funds operational costs.   In

the short term, revenues could drastically decline if drought conditions appear due to
conservation measures.  In the long term,  State and Federal regulations,  such as

sustainable groundwater legislation and hazardous materials disposal ( arsenic) could

increase expenses to the water and sewer funds.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Postponing the 2020 water and sewer rate increases will have an economic benefit
to our residents while still supporting each fund' s ongoing operations and debt
obligations. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

Postponing the scheduled rate increase for the Water and Sewer fund will be offset
by revenue generated through the City' s growing customer base.   A review will be

conducted in the Fall of 2020 to evaluate the Water and Sewer Fund' s fiscal

performance, to determine if future rate increases are warranted.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Postponing the 2020 Rate Increases for the Water and Sewer
Fund Approved by Council on January 11, 2016.

622



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CYTY COUNCIL REGl1LAR MEETIIVG

1A/ e4' TER AND SEWER I2ATE PLAN REVIEUV

APPROVALS:

Z  

Thomas Hedegard Date

Accounting Manager

Cari Date

Finance ir ctor

1 -  I «
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

i dl"  2  -  /
Stephen Salvatore Date

City Manager

623



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

POSTPONING THE CITY' S WATER AND SEWER RATE INCREASE FOR 2020

WHEREAS, Chapters 13. 04 and 13. 16 of Title 13 of the Lathrop Municipal Code
permit the City Council of the City of Lathrop to set the City' s water and sewer charges;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article XIIID, Section 6 of California Constitution and

applicable state law,  notice of the public hearing was mailed to each customer and
property owner affected by the proposed increases; and

WHEREAS, on January il, 2016, the City Council held a full and fair public
hearing and approved the Five- Year Water and Sewer Rate increases effective March
2016 and escalating every January thereafter through 2020; and

WHEREAS, a full fiscal review of the Water and Sewer Funds was conducted at

the end of fiscal year 2018/ 19 concluding the Water and Sewer fund' s fiscal
performance met projections;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Lathrop does
hereby postpone the Water Rate increase scheduled for 2020; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of Lathrop does hereby
postpone the Sewer Rate increase scheduled for 2020;

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City
of Lathrop on the 9t'' day of December, 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

624



ITEM 6. 2

CITY MAIVAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUIVCIL REGULAR NiEETINC;

ITEN9:       MAYOR' S REFERttAL

RECOfNMENDATIOIV:     Appointment of One   ( 1)   Member to the Youth

Advisory Commis§ion with Term Expiring May 31,
2020

YOl1TH ADVI ORI COMMISSYOI` 1 — LNIC CHAPTEIt 2. 20

The commission currently has one ( 1) available vacancy; two ( 2) applications were

received.

p   _      

Reappointment TermForrt er Date o

Commiss oner s  •  A o ntment          Da'te Expiration

Date

An elica Gomez 8/ 13/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

PPLICANTS FOlt COIVSIDE 4TIOIV:

1.   Tiana Duong
2.   Cheyenne Rains

625



COMMISSIUN/ COMMITTEE APPLICAT
E

APPlyeng for:    t L1  S P    11iq

S ceisl Reaairement: ITY C. ERK
Yo, nb Adnlsory Conra, tulo,,: Must be a LatM up raiden betwern l3 to 1 S years of sge to serve on lhis commissioa
Sentar ldvitnr Co r lsslcn: Must 6e SO years of agc cr over ond 0 rcgistered otcF to sccvc on this commissian.  "
Plannb g anJ arks& Jierreodon Comnr stfonr. Must be o Lethrap rrsident ond a crd votcr to save on ehis commJssion,   

EASE PRINT OR TYPE THE ROLLOWiNC 1Ni'ORMA'1' iON:

Name•  Q  Vt,q

Addr ss•   City:_ g 2ip:    9S' 3 U

Telephone( heme) Tclephone( work)

Telephone( cell)   Telephona( other)

Email:       Resident o E the City of Latluop:_ ' _ years

Do you have Trensportatioa ta attend tiie Cotnmission meetings and Fut tions?  YcsL! Na

Backgraund Jaformation:

Are yau relatai to e cturent City Eaiployee?       ' N      r

r a

If Yes, give nams and relationship

EmpioymentNolanteer information: 

l D     
OrgwiL-affon        .      .  -       Dau      .

R S t   l a v `  .    .  .    djG..o,
ir+ r  st,cyn

locaNal Posltlon( s)     .

Respotuibiliues accomplishmeats:_       QgStg{cp  '' Ql1C' f PX tr1 hAr  pL

asS  1.— l ln  1BIf      . .     t„ 1. c enc  nn kruelr l SS

O anh.allon Dale

loeariat Posfrton ja)

Responsi6ilities/ aecomplisfunents:

626



r.  .  
6

wt Ca timdn t ActivitEcs that you have beea invnlved with( fee! fr ta attach attditional pages)

r FFN
r-' t"       

lvanr ojGf g r fiou PasirtonlXespnnsfbllJrfes rer
r e,,

SiY1d WI C1 il Tu t l u   . ar AtJQUS 20iQ- .] I{L1tXU 2020
Nan e OrgairL-arlon PasJrlon/ Res lirderl( annrpltshnrentr er

Special Avdrartls or Recognitiubs you have rcce ved:  A

Educatioaal Iafarmatian:

La lnrt l o t In   rna N A 202
Edacalio Atslfluh n Degreelplplonw eld Yeor

Edrrrottono! huruu!! on DegrerJfllplarPia Fleid Year

Additfontll Infoene tion( Please prm fde any ather IrrformatFon vhich yoir jeel vould be, aefu! a the Ci1y Cou» c111a
revie vingyou applJcallon.J

P1eQse sfgn oitd date you app/ featlon vnd s,rb„: ii ta the affrce ojtlie Ciry C ertr al the address belo K.

Qli![ v
a urc  ,     Jate

uafdi Siganwre( Reqertrerl for Yeirth isory Caadidatcr a dv)    

City Clerk
City oELathron i

390 Towne Ceatrc Drive

Latbrop, CA 95330

I

I

I

627



r

COMMISSION/CUlOZl.VIITTEE APP       
C= t D

Applying for: 

Special Reauiremenfs:       PAA s,
a R     

Youl r Advisory Cammissinn: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 ycars of age to serve an this commissio n
r      

SentorAdvlsory Conrniiss' on: Miest bc 50 years of a$ o or over and a registered vater to srnre on this commission.
Plan ring rrnd Parks& Recrealiorr Conimissions; Must be a Lathrop resident and a rcgistered voter to serve on this commissian,    

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

I

Name: g

i

Adtlress: City•   /_ r'oT_ Zip:  tfS 3 3a

Telephone( hotne)   Telephone( work} 

Telephone( ceIl Telephone( other)  -

Email:   Resident of the City af Lathrop:           years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Cammission meetings and Fuuctions?   Ye.  No0

Background Information:       

Are you related to a ctirfent City Employee7 V  

If yes, give name and relationskup

Emp[oyment/ Yolnnteer Information:  

Organf: ution Date

Locatton Position{s)

Responsibilides/ accomplislunents:

Organr: allon Date

I

Locatfon Positlan( s}

Responsibilities/ accoEr plishments; 

I

628



i

Community ActiviNesithat you have been involved with{ feel free to attach additional pages)

Nante oJOrganrrafivrr ,,. Pasirion/ Responsibfliiies Qares

Nanre ojOrga ifaaHon PosfNorr/ Responsibllft es/ Acconrplish» re ils Dctes

Special Awards or Recognitioas you 6ave received:     

Educational Information:       

G          !!'
dJ!' C 5 5        f''   

f 
i    

r
Edrrcatio tallnslitutio i Degrce/ Dlplonra Field Year

EdrrcationallnstituNon DegreeJl) lplonta Field Year

Additional Informallop( Please prot ide any olher injorntatton s hlch you feel woatld be useful to tlie Crty Counctl in
reviewing you applicalion.)      

ti LG lJ       

D  a   1.•' S

s G      l.r h

r r

SOG'./    

i

Pl ase s gn arid date you appl caHon and submit o thc O ce ofthe City Clerk at lhe address belotv..
i

Signatur Date

i

ParendGuazdi Signature( Requiredfor Yo ith Odvlsory Candida es orrly)     

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centrc Drivc

Lathrop, CA 95330

i

i

629



630



ITY MAIVAGER' S REPORT
ITEM C.

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COIJMCIL RE S; ULAR MEETIf lC;

ITEM:       APPOINTMERIT OF VICE MAl(OR

ItECOP IMENDATION:     Mayor to Appoint / ice I Ilayor for 2020

ACKGItOUIVD:

Chapter I,  Section F of the City Council Handbook of Rules and Procedures

provides: The Vice Mayor shall be appointed by the Mayor for a one- year term at
the meeting in December.

If,   in any year in which an election for Mayor of Council takes place,  the

appointment of Vice Mayor should occur after certification of election results. Since

this is not an election year, staff is requesting the appointment at this time.

FISCAL IMPACT:      /

fVone.

ATTa4CH fW EIVTS:

None.

SUBMITTED Bl:

ic'    ' 9''   <./      f          9
Teresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

631



632



ITEM 6. 4
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT i

DECEMBER 9, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBER APPOINTMENTS TO

SERVE ON OUTSIDE AGENCY BOARDS,  

COMMISSION AND COMMITTEES FOR 2020

RECOMMENDATION:     Mayor to Assign City Council Appointments for 2020

BACKG ROU N D:

Councilmembers serve on various outside agency boards,   commissions and

committees in order to represent the interests of the City of Lathrop.  Chapter V,

Section B( 2) of the City Council Handbook of Rules and Procedures provides:  The

Mayor shall,  instead of nominating,  announce the appointment of the designated

Councilmember as a member of a County,  regional,  multi- public agency, or other

outside agency, at the time the matter is considered at the City Council meeting.  If

no motion is made by a Councilmember,   immediately following the Mayor' s

announcement, to submit the Mayor' s intended appointment to formal vote of the

City Council, the Mayor' s announced appointment is deemed approved."

The Mayor traditionally reviews these appointments each year,  following Council
reorganization, to examine whether current assignments should remain the same or

if they should be changed for the upcoming year.   Some assignments are made by
jurisdictions that the City of Lathrop does not control.   Attached to this report is a

list of current appointments,   some appointments require filing a Form 700

Statement of Economic Interest at the time of assuming or leaving office and
annually. The Form 700 filings must be provided directly to the subject agency.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.  Current Mayor and Councilmember Appointments ( Assigned for 2019)

SUBMITTED BY:

eresa Vargas Date

ity Clerk

633



CITY OF LATHROP i
MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBER APPOINTMENT LIST FOR 2019

REGIONAL COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

Committee When and Where Delegate Alternate

When:    As needed

Time:      As scheduled

Where:   Various locations

League Address: 1400 K St., Suite 400
Central Valley Executive Committee

Sacramento, CA 95814
League of California Cities)      

Councilmember Akinjo Vice Mayor Salcedo

Contact:  Stephen Qualls - ( 209) 614- 0118

saualls aC cacities. org

916) 658- 8200 Main

Website: www. cacities. ora

When:     4th Thursday of each month
Time:      4: 00 p. m.

Council of Governments ( COG)       V/ here:    555 East Weber

Board of Directors Stockton, CA 95202

Contact:  Rosie Gutierrez, Office Administrator
Mayor Dhaliwal Councilmember Lazard

Form 700 San Joaquin Council of Governments

209) 235- 0600

Website: www. sjcog. org

When:    As needed

Time:      As scheduled

Where:   Various locations

1810 East Hazelton Avenue

Integrated Waste Management Stockton, CA 95202 Councilmember Torres-

Task Force ( Solid Waste Division)     Contact:  Dave Gorton
Councilmember Akinjo

O' Callaghan

Solid Waste Division

dQorton@sjgov. org
209) 468- 3066

Websire: http:// www. sjgov. org/ solidwaste/

pg. 1 Approved at the January 14, 2019, City Council Meeting - Updated March 12, 2019

634



rr
l

CITY OF LATHROP

MAYOR Q ND COUNCILMEMBEit APPOINTNiENT LIST FOR 2019

Q,.

REGIONAL COlMMITTEE APPOINTNlEIVTS

Committee When and Where Delegate Alternate

When:    As needed

Time:      As scheduled

Where:   Various locations

Reclamation District 17 235 E Weber Avenue

Joint Powers Authority Stockton, CA 9520Z

Mailing address:  Stephen Salvatore
N/ A

P. O. Box 1461
Form 700 Stockton, CA 95201- 1461

mail to: Mia Brown, AYtorney at Law)   
Contact:  Dante John Nomellini, Special Counsel

namplcs@pacbell. net

Website: n%a

When:     15Y Monday of each month
Time:      1: 30 p. m.
Where:   102 S. San Joaquin St., Conf. Rm. C

San Joaquin County Stockton, CA 95202

Commission on Aging Contact: Barbara Parrish
Nellie Zavala N/ A

209) 468- 2202

bparrish@sjgov. org
Website: http:// www. sjgov. org

When:     4th

Thursday of each month
Time:      8: 00 a. m.

Where:   2800 W. March Lane, Suite 470
San Joaquin Partnership Stockton, CA 95219

Board of Directors
Contact:  Chris Bamesberger- Youngsma Stephen Salvatore N/ A

Office Manager

cby@s pnet. org

209) 956- 3380

Website: www. sjpnet. orq

pg. 2 Approved at the January 14, 2019, City Council Meeting - Updated March i2, 2019

635



CITY OF LATHROP

MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBER APPOINTMENT LIST FOR 2019

h,'_.*'

REGIONAL. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

Committee When and Where Delegate Alternate

When:    As needed

Time:      As scheduled

San ] oaquin Valley Air Pollution       / ere:   4800 Enterprise Way

Control District Modesto, CA 95356- 8718

Special City Selection Committee Contact:  Michelle Franco Councilmember Akinjo Mayor Dhaliwal

Deputy Clerk of the Boards
Form oo Michelle. Franco( a valleyair. org

559) 230- 6038

Website:  www. valleyair. org

When:     3 d Wednesday of each month
Time:      11: 30 a. m. to 1: 00 p. m. with a Brown

Bag from 1: 00 p. m. to 3: 00 p. m.
Where:    Public Health Building

San ] oaquin County 1601 E. Hazelton Avenue Councilmember Torres-
Water Advisory Commission Stockton, CA 95201 O' Callaghan

Councilmember Lazard

Form T00
Contact:  Kelly Villalpando

kvillalpando sjgov. org
209) 468- 3073

Website: www. sjwater. org

When:     2" d Wednesday of each month
Time:      2: 00 p. m. to 4: 00 p. m.
Where:   Alternating from Tracy/ Livermore

Tri Valley- San Joaquin Valley Tracy Transit Center
Regional Rail Authority Board of 50 East 6th Street, Tracy N/ A

Directors Robert Livermore Community Center Councilmember Akinjo     ( Alternate has no voting
4444 East Avenue, Livermore rights)

Form 700 Contact:  Michael Tree, Executive Director

mtreeCa lavta. org
925) 455- 7564

Website: htt  :   www. acetobart. or

pg. 3 Approved at the January 14, 2019, City Council Meeting - Updated March i2, 2019

636



CITY OF LATHROP

MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBER APPOIWTMENT LIST FOR 2019
j.

REGIONAL COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

Committee When and Where Delegate Alternate

When:     2" d
Thursday of each month

Time:      9: 00 a. m.   

Where:   San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
San Joaquin Area Flood Control 425 N. EI Dorado, City Hall, Council

Agency ( SJAFCA) - Two Board Chamber, 2" d Floor

Members- Reguired Stockton, CA 95202 Councilmember Akinjo
N/ A

Contact:  Marlo Duncan, Project Manager Councilmember Lazard

marlo. duncan@stocktongov. com

Form 700 Dawn Clement, Office Specialist

Dawn. Clement@stocktonca. gov

209) 937- 8211

Website: htt s:   www. s' afca. com

STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee When and Where Delegate Alternate

City of Manteca & City of Lathrop
when:     As needed

Time:      As scheduled Mayor Dhaliwal Councilmember Torres-
2x2 Meetings

Where:   TBD O' Calla han

Lathrop Manteca Fire Department &   When:    As needed

City of Lathrop Time:      As scheduled Mayor Dhaliwal Councilmember Akinjo

2x2 Meetin s Where:   TBD

When:    As needed

Manteca Unified School District &     Time:      As scheduled Councilmember Torres-

City of Lathrop Where:    MUSD Administration Offices Mayor Dhaliwal O' Callaghan

2x2 Meetings Contacr:  Chelo De Leon, Superintendent' s Office

cdeleonCa musd. net /  209 858- 0729

Lathrop Police Services Review
when:    As needed

2- City Councilmember Committee
Time:      As scheduled Mayor Dhaliwal Councilmember Akinjo

Where:   TBD

Lathrop Economic Development When:    As needed

Review Committee Time:      As scheduled Mayor Dhaliwal Councilmember Lazard

2- Cit Councilmember Committee Where:   TBD

pg. 4 Approved at the January 14, 2019, City Council Meeting - Updated March 12, 2019

637



638


	2019-12-09 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2019-12-09 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of October 14, 2019
	2019-12-09 Item 4.3 Approval of Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of November 21, 2019
	2019-12-09 Item 4.4 Second Reading & Adoption of Ordinance 19-410
	2019-12-09 Item 4.5 Treasurer's Report for December 2019
	2019-12-09 Item 4.6 Deliquent Utility Turn Offs
	2019-12-09 Item 4.7 Community Facilities Districts Annual Bond Accountability Report for FY 2018_19
	2019-12-09 Item 4.8 Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles & Equipment Surplus Property & Authorizing Their Disposal
	2019-12-09 Item 4.9 Purchase Replacement of Three Police Vehicles & One Police Motorcycle
	2019-12-09 Item 4.10 Modification of Compensation for Planning Commission
	2019-12-09 Item 4.11 Recommendation to Change South Harlan Road to Old Harlan Road
	2019-12-09 Item 4.12 Create CIP GG 20-19 for Irrigation & Landscape Improvements in Mossdale Village
	2019-12-09 Item 4.13 Approve T.O. No. 16 with 4Leaf, Inc
	2019-12-09 Item 4.14 Approve Construction Contract for Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Upgrades Pursuant to CIP WW 19-01
	2019-12-09 Item 4.15 Accept Public Improvements for CLSP Storm Drainage River Outfall Structure & Recind Initial Rejection of Roadways & Easements
	2019-12-09 Item 4.16 Approval of Final Map & Subdivision Improvement Agreement for 418 Single Family Lots in Various Tracts
	2019-12-09 Item 4.17 Accept Public Improvements for Louise Avenue & McKinley Avenue from Sukhchain Gill, Owner of A&A Intermodal
	2019-12-09 Item 4.18 Approval of Final Map & SIA for R.I. Tract 3995 Village T
	2019-12-09 Item 5.1 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Certification of EIR & Adoption of the IWRMP PW 10-10 & WW 15-08
	2019-12-09 Item 5.2 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider General Plan Amendment GPA 19-140
	2019-12-09 Item 5.3 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Municipal Code Text Amendment TA-19-141
	2019-12-09 Item 5.4 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Ordinance Prohibiting Pedestrian Use of Mobile Electronic Device in Crosswalk
	2019-12-09 Item 5.5 Review & Provide Direction on Park Improvements for Sangalang Park
	2019-12-09 Item 5.6 Five-Year Water & Sewer Rate Plan Review
	2019-12-09 Item 6.2 Appointment of One (1) Member to the Youth Advisory Commission
	2019-12-09 Item 6.3 Appointment of Vice Mayor
	2019-12-09 Item 6.4 Mayor & Councilmember Appointments to Serve on Outside Agency Boards, Commission & Committees for 2020



